
 

1 

 

Agenda 
City Council, Redevelopment Successor Agency, 
Folsom Public Financing Authority, Folsom Ranch 
Financing Authority, and South of 50 Parking Authority 
Regular Meeting 
City Council Chambers | 50 Natoma Street, Folsom CA  95630 
October 13, 2020 
6:30 PM 

Welcome to Your City Council Meeting 

We welcome your interest and involvement in the city’s legislative process. This agenda includes 

information about topics coming before the City Council and the action recommended by city staff. You 

can read about each topic in the staff reports, which are available on the city website and in the Office 

of the City Clerk. The City Clerk is also available to answer any questions you have about City Council 

meeting procedures. 

Participation 

If you would like to provide comments to the City Council, please: 

 Fill out a blue speaker request form, located at the back table. 

 Submit the form to the City Clerk before the item begins. 

 When it’s your turn, the City Clerk will call your name and invite you to the podium. 

 Speakers have three minutes, unless the presiding officer (usually the mayor) changes that 

time. 

Reasonable Accommodations 

In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, if you are a person with a disability and you need 

a disability-related modification or accommodation to participate in this meeting, please contact the City 

Clerk’s Office at (916) 461-6035, (916) 355-7328 (fax) or CityClerkDept@folsom.ca.us.  Requests must 

be made as early as possible and at least two full business days before the start of the meeting. 

How to Watch 

The City of Folsom provides three ways to watch a City Council meeting: 

In Person Online On TV 

 

  
City Council meetings take place at 

City Hall, 50 Natoma Street 
Watch the livestream and replay past 

meetings on the city website, 
www.folsom.ca.us 

Watch live and replays of meetings on 
Sac Metro Cable TV, Channel 14 

 
More information about City Council meetings is available at the end of this agenda 

Page 1

file:///C:/Users/ELobbato/Downloads/CityClerkDept@folsom.ca.us
http://www.folsom.ca.us/


 

2 

 
 

 

 

 

 

City Council, Redevelopment Successor Agency, Folsom Public Financing Authority, 
Folsom Ranch Financing Authority, and South of 50 Parking Authority Regular Meeting 

 
Folsom City Council Chambers 
50 Natoma Street, Folsom, CA 

 

 www.folsom.ca.us   

Tuesday, October 13, 2020 6:30 PM 
 

Sarah Aquino, Mayor 

 

Ernie Sheldon, Vice Mayor Mike Kozlowski, Council Member 
Kerri Howell, Council Member Andy Morin, Council Member 

REGULAR CITY COUNCIL AGENDA 

Pursuant to Governor Newsom’s Executive Order N-29-20, members of the Folsom City Council and 
staff may participate in this meeting via teleconference.  

Due to the coronavirus (COVID-19) public health emergency, the City of Folsom is allowing for remote 
public input during City Council meetings.  Members of the public are encouraged to participate by 
emailing comments to CityClerkDept@folsom.ca.us.  Emailed comments must be received no later 

than thirty minutes before the meeting and will be read aloud at the meeting during the agenda 
item.   Please make your comments brief. Written comments submitted and read into the public record 
must adhere to the principles of the three-minute speaking time permitted for in-person public comment 

at City Council meetings.  Members of the public wishing to participate in this meeting via 
teleconference may email CityClerkDept@folsom.ca.us no later than thirty minutes before the meeting 
to obtain call-in information.  Each meeting may have different call-in information.  Verbal comments via 
teleconference must adhere to the principles of the three-minute speaking time permitted for in-person 

public comment at City Council meetings.  

 Members of the public may continue to participate in the meeting in person at 
Folsom City Hall, 50 Natoma Street, Folsom, CA while maintaining appropriate social distancing and 

wearing face coverings. 
 

CALL TO ORDER 

ROLL CALL: 

Council Members:     Kozlowski, Morin, Sheldon, Howell, Aquino 

Page 2

http://www.folsom.ca.us/


 

3 

The City Council has adopted a policy that no new item will begin after 10:30 p.m.  Therefore, if you are 
here for an item that has not been heard by 10:30 p.m., you may leave, as the item will be continued to 
a future Council Meeting. 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

AGENDA UPDATE 

BUSINESS FROM THE FLOOR: 

Members of the public are entitled to address the City Council concerning any item within the Folsom 
City Council's subject matter jurisdiction.  Public comments are limited to no more than three 
minutes.  Except for certain specific exceptions, the City Council is prohibited from discussing or taking 
action on any item not appearing on the posted agenda. 

SCHEDULED PRESENTATIONS: 

1. Presentation of 2020 Community Service Day Results 

2. Presentation by Folsom Chamber of Commerce and City of Folsom of the Shop Local Campaign 

3. Presentation on Copper Pipe Pinhole Leaks - Update 

4. Folsom Plan Area Quarterly Update 

CONSENT CALENDAR: 

Items appearing on the Consent Calendar are considered routine and may be approved by one 
motion.  City Council Members may pull an item for discussion. 

5. Approval of the September 22, 2020 Regular Meeting Minutes  

6. Ordinance No. 1308 – An Ordinance of the City of Folsom Repealing and Re-enacting Chapter 
2.30 of the Folsom Municipal Code Pertaining to the Establishment and Maintenance of the City 
Merit System and Personnel Policies, Rules, and Regulations (Second Reading and Adoption) 

7. Resolution No. 10533 - A Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to Execute an Agreement 
with Pure Technologies, U.S. Inc. dba Wachs Water Services to Complete the Water Distribution 
System Leak and Loss Detection Survey 

8. Resolution No. 10534 - A Resolution Authorizing the Public Works Department to Submit Grant 
Applications to the California Department of Transportation for Highway Safety Improvement 
Program Funding 

NEW BUSINESS: 

9. Ordinance No. 1309 – An Ordinance of the City of Folsom Amending Sections 12.20.020 and 
12.20.030 of the Folsom Municipal Code Governing Encroachments on Public Property 
(Introduction and First Reading) 

ADJOURN TO JOINT MEETING 

Joint Meeting Agenda 

Folsom City Council, Folsom Redevelopment Successor Agency,  
Folsom Public Financing Authority, Folsom Ranch Financing Authority, and  

South of 50 Parking Authority Special Meeting 

CALL TO ORDER: 

ROLL CALL: 

Page 3



 

4 

Council/Board Members:     Kozlowski, Morin, Sheldon, Howell, Aquino 

CONSENT CALENDAR: 

10. Approval of the December 10, 2019 Joint City Council / Successor Agency / Public Financing 
Authority / Folsom South of 50 Parking Authority / Folsom Ranch Financing Authority Special 
Meeting Minutes 

11. Receive and File the City of Folsom, the Folsom Redevelopment Successor Agency, the Folsom 
Public Financing Authority, the Folsom Ranch Financing Authority, and the South of 50 Parking 
Authority Monthly Investment Reports for the Month of June 2020 

PUBLIC HEARING: 

12. FRFA City of Folsom CFD No. 23 Improvement Area No.1 Special Tax Revenue Bonds, Series 
2020 

a. Resolution No. 10535 – A Resolution of the City Council of the City of Folsom Authorizing the 
Issuance of the City of Folsom Community Facilities District No.23 (Folsom Ranch) Improvement 
Area No.1 Special Tax Bonds, Series 2020, the Execution of an Indenture Providing therefore, 
Authorizing the Execution of a Local Obligation Purchase Contract, and Authorizing Necessary 
Actions and the Execution of  Other Documents in Connection therewith 

b. Resolution No. 006-Folsom Ranch FA - Resolution of the Governing Board of the Folsom 
Ranch Financing Authority Authorizing the Issuance, Sale and Delivery of Not to Exceed 
$16,500,000 Aggregate Principal Amount of City of Folsom Community Facilities District No.23 
(Folsom Ranch) Improvement Area No.1 Special Tax Revenue Bonds, Series 2020; Approving 
the Form and Substance of a Trust Agreement, Authorizing Modifications thereof and Execution 
and Delivery as Modified; Approving a Preliminary Official Statement, Authorizing Changes 
thereto and Execution and Delivery thereof and of an Official Statement to be Derived therefrom; 
Approving a Local Obligation Purchase Contract and a Bond Purchase Contract and Execution 
and Delivery of Each; and Authorizing Related Actions Necessary to Implement the Proposed 
Financing 

ADJOURNMENT 

RECONVENE CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

CITY MANAGER REPORTS: 

COUNCIL COMMENTS: 

ADJOURNMENT 

The City Council's next regular meeting is scheduled for October 27, 2020. 

 

NOTICE:  Members of the public are entitled to directly address the City Council concerning any item 

that is described in the notice of this meeting, before or during consideration of that item.  If you wish to 

address Council on an issue, which is on this agenda, please complete a blue speaker request card, and 

deliver it to a staff member at the table on the left side of the Council Chambers prior to discussion of the 

item.  When your name is called, stand to be recognized by the Mayor and then proceed to the podium.  If 

you wish to address the City Council on any other item of interest to the public, when the Mayor asks if 

there is any “Business from the Floor,” follow the same procedure described above.  Please limit your 

comments to three minutes or less. 

 

NOTICE REGARDING CHALLENGES TO DECISIONS:   Pursuant to all applicable laws and regulations, 

including without limitation, California Government Code Section 65009 and or California Public 

Page 4



 

5 

Resources Code Section 21177, if you wish to challenge in court any of the above decisions (regarding 

planning, zoning and/or environmental decisions), you may be limited to raising only those issues you or 

someone else raised at the public hearing(s) described in this notice/agenda, or in written 

correspondence delivered to the City at, or prior to, the public hearing. 

As presiding officer, the Mayor has the authority to preserve order at all City Council meetings, to remove 

or cause the removal of any person from any such meeting for disorderly conduct, or for making personal, 

impertinent, or slanderous remarks, using profanity, or becoming boisterous, threatening or personally 

abusive while addressing said Council, and to enforce the rules of the Council. 

PERSONS INTERESTED IN PROPOSING AN ITEM FOR THE CITY COUNCIL AGENDA SHOULD 

CONTACT A MEMBER OF THE CITY COUNCIL. 

The meeting of the Folsom City Council is being telecast on Metro Cable TV, Channel 14, the 

Government Affairs Channel, and will be shown in its entirety on the Friday and Saturday following the 

meeting, both at 9 a.m.  The City does not control scheduling of this telecast and persons interested in 

watching the televised meeting should confirm this schedule with Metro Cable TV, Channel 14. The City 

of Folsom provides live and archived webcasts of regular City Council meetings.  The webcasts can be 

found on the online services page of the City's website www.folsom.ca.us. 

In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, if you are a person with a disability and you need 

a disability-related modification or accommodation to participate in this meeting, please contact the City 

Clerk’s Office at (916) 461-6035, (916) 355-7328 (fax) or CityClerkDept@folsom.ca.us.  Requests must 

be made as early as possible and at least two full business days before the start of the meeting. 

Any documents produced by the City and distributed to the City Council regarding any item on this agenda 

will be made available at the City Clerk’s Counter at City Hall located at 50 Natoma Street, Folsom, 

California and at the Folsom Public Library located at 411 Stafford Street, Folsom, California during 

normal business hours. 

  

Page 5

http://www.folsom.ca.us/
https://municode.sharepoint.com/sites/WebMeetingsTeam/Shared%20Documents/_Customers/California/Folsom%20California/Meetings%20Project/Templates/CityClerkDept@folsom.ca.us


 

6 

 

 

 

 

 

 

This page is intentionally left blank. 

Page 6



Folsom City Council
Staff ort

RECOMMENDATION / CITY COUNCIL ACTION

No action is requested of the City Council at this time.

BACKGROUND / ISSUE

City of Folsom Communications Director Christine Brainerd will provide a brief overview of
the2020 Community Service Day results.

MEETING DATE: t01t312020

AGENDA SECTION: Scheduled Presentations

SUBJECT: Presentation of 2020 Community Service Day Results

F'ROM: City Manager's Office

1

Page 7

10/13/2020 Item No.1.



This page is intentionally left blank.

Page 8

10/13/2020 Item No.1.



ffi
i1,-{-bLrd (ll\l
ai rlr.ctr.3 ai trlr tI

Folsom City Council
Staff ort

MEETING DATE: t011312020

AGENDA SECTION: Scheduled Presentations

SUBJECT: Presentation of the 2020 Support Local Campaign

FROM: City Manager's Office

RECOMMENDATION / CITY COUNCIL ACTION

No action is requested of the City Council at this time.

BACKGROUND / ISSUE

Greater Folsom Partnering Senior Vice President Mary Ann McAlea and City of Folsom
Communications Director Christine Brainerd will provide a brief overview of the upcoming
support local campaign.

I
Page 9

10/13/2020 Item No.2.



This page is intentionally left blank.

Page 10

10/13/2020 Item No.2.



ffi
,F'$I-FlOF!.

grlr at

oiatrrEttl! at latSaa

Folsom City Council
Staff ort

BACKGROUND / ISSUE

Environmental and Water Resources Director, Marcus Yasutake, provide an update to the
information shared with City Council on September 8, 2020 related to the copper pipe
pinhole leaks occurring within residences and businesses. The discussion will include
information collected to date, overview of the water quality evaluation from Black and
Veatch, pipe scale analysis and results from Virginia Tech University, and recommendations
provided by Black and Veatch and Virginia Tech.

Submitted,

t'1,, .r*
Marcus Y Director
ENVIRONMENTAL AND WATER RESOURCES DEPARTMENT

MEETING DATE: 10t1312020

AGENDA SECTION: Scheduled Presentations

SUBJECT: Update on Pinhole Leaks

FROM: Environmental and Water Resources Department

I

Page 11

10/13/2020 Item No.3.



This page is intentionally left blank.

Page 12

10/13/2020 Item No.3.



City Council
Copper Pinhole Leak Investigation - Update
October 13, 2020 Page 13

10/13/2020 Item No.3.



Copper Pinhole Leaks

• City database currently has 895 reported (as of 10/1/2020)

• Updated City’s webpage with a copper pinhole leak page

• www.folsom.ca.us/pinholeleaks

• Includes map of where pinholes occurred

• Trends remain consistent

• Mostly houses in the 1980s, 1990s and some early 2000s

• Mostly on horizontal pipelines – increase in vertical 

• Mostly in cold water lines

Page 14

10/13/2020 Item No.3.

http://www.folsom.ca.us/pinholeleaks


Water Quality Sampling
Willow Creek – BT Collins Park Black Diamond – Mann Park Misty Meadow/Horseshoe Glen

Page 15

10/13/2020 Item No.3.



Water System Pressure Data

40

41

42

43

44

45

46

47

48

49

50

9/22/2020 0:00 9/23/2020 0:00 9/24/2020 0:00 9/25/2020 0:00 9/26/2020 0:00 9/27/2020 0:00 9/28/2020 0:00 9/29/2020 0:00

P
re

ss
u

re
 (

p
si

)

Date

514 Mormon Street Pressure Readings

Average Pressure

Maximum Pressure

Pressure Zone 1

Page 16

10/13/2020 Item No.3.



Water System Pressure Data

Pressure Zone 1

65

67

69

71

73

75

77

79

81

83

85
P

re
ss

u
re

 (
p

si
)

Date

Turnpike at John Henry Pressure Readings

Average Pressure

Maximum Pressure

Page 17

10/13/2020 Item No.3.



Water System Pressure Data

45

47

49

51

53

55

57

59

61

63

65
P

re
ss

u
re

 (
p

si
)

Date

520 Willow Creek Drive Pressure Readings

Average Pressure

Maximum Pressure Pressure Zone 2

Page 18

10/13/2020 Item No.3.



Water System Pressure Data

70

72

74

76

78

80

82

84

86

88

90

P
re

ss
u

re
 (

p
si

)

Date

108 Crossing Way Pressure Readings

Average Pressure

Maximum Pressure

Pressure Zone 2

Page 19

10/13/2020 Item No.3.



Water System Pressure Data

40

42

44

46

48

50

52

54

56

58

60

P
re

ss
u

re
 (

p
si

)

Date

McAdoo at Moonlit Pressure Readings

Average Pressure

Maximum Pressure

Pressure Zone 2

Page 20

10/13/2020 Item No.3.



Water System Pressure Data

70

75

80

85

90

95

100

105

110

115

9/23/2020
0:00

9/24/2020
0:00

9/25/2020
0:00

9/26/2020
0:00

9/27/2020
0:00

9/28/2020
0:00

9/29/2020
0:00

9/30/2020
0:00

10/1/2020
0:00

10/2/2020
0:00

10/3/2020
0:00

10/4/2020
0:00

10/5/2020
0:00

P
re

ss
u

re
 (

p
si

)

Date

305 Willow Creek Drive Pressure Readings

Average Pressure

Maximum Pressure

Pressure Zone 3 
Cimarron

Page 21

10/13/2020 Item No.3.



Consultant Analysis

• Water Quality Analysis – Black & Veatch
• Examined 10 years worth of City data

• Chlorine, pH, sulfates, alkalinity, water hardness, metals

• Regulatory compliance – State and Federal Drinking Water Standards

• Specifically Lead and Copper Rule (LCR)

• Pipe Forensics Analysis – Virginia Tech
• Pipe scale imagery

• Associated elemental composition of the pipe scale

• Percent composition of the scale

Page 22

10/13/2020 Item No.3.



Consultant Results

• Corrosion control treatment, based on LCR, is doing well

• Water meets all State and Federal regulations for public 

consumption

• Copper pitting may occur in drinking water with some of the 

following characteristics:
• Low alkalinity, low pH, low sulfates, and low water hardness – leads to a lower 

“buffering” capacity 

• Presence of chlorine in the water

• Corrosion control options for the City:
• pH adjustment with low alkalinity water

• Add orthophosphate to the treatment process
Page 23

10/13/2020 Item No.3.



Consultant Recommendations

• Decrease likelihood of copper pitting by adding orthophosphate 

to the treatment process

• Strive to maintain target pH of 8.5 

• Start with small increments of orthophosphate
• 0.1 parts per million (ppm) in the first week

• 0.2 ppm the second week (if needed)

• 0.3 ppm the third week (if needed)

• Samples from households in each pressure zone

• Maintenance dose based on results of sampling 

Page 24

10/13/2020 Item No.3.



What is Orthophosphate?

• Food grade additive used as a corrosion inhibitor in the form of 

phosphorous

• Forms a coating in copper pipes that does not dissolve in water

• Approved for use in drinking water systems by:
• Environmental Protection Agency

• U.S. Food and Drug Administration

• Not classified as environmentally hazardous

Page 25

10/13/2020 Item No.3.



Phosphorous in Foods

• The following is a list of foods containing phosphorous1:

Food Milligrams/serving

Low Fat Yogurt (6 ounces) 245

Salmon (3 ounces) 214

American Cheese (1 ounce) 182

Potato (medium) 123

Corn tortilla 82

Bread (whole wheat slice) 68

Tomato (1 cup) 44

Soda (1 cup) 24

Apple (1 cup) 14

One liter of City water = 0.1 milligrams

1. According to U.S. Department of Health & Human Services - National Institutes of Health Page 26

10/13/2020 Item No.3.



Recommended Phosphorous 

Amounts

Life Stage Recommended Amount

Birth to 6 months 100 mg

Infants 7–12 months 275 mg

Children 1–3 years 460 mg

Children 4–8 years 500 mg

Children 9–13 years 1,250 mg

Teens 14–18 years 1,250 mg

Pregnant and breastfeeding teens 1,250 mg

Adults 19 years and older 700 mg

Pregnant and breastfeeding women 700 mg

• Recommended daily phosphorous intake2:

2. According to U.S. Department of Health & Human Services - National Institutes of Health Page 27

10/13/2020 Item No.3.

https://ods.od.nih.gov/factsheets/Phosphorus-Consumer/


Additional Consultant Analysis

• Second, independent analysis by HDR

• Expected completion by end of October

• Similar scope of analysis to Black & Veatch and Virginia Tech
• Review of City’s treatment process

• Review of City’s water quality data

• Water quality sampling

• Copper scale analysis

Page 28

10/13/2020 Item No.3.



Report a Leak, Learn More

• For questions or to report a pinhole leak:

• Call 916-461-6190, or

• Email waterquality@folsom.ca.us

• Pinhole Leak Webpage:

• www.folsom.ca.us/pinholeleaks

• Community outreach:
• News media

• NextDoor

• Facebook

• Twitter

• E-newsletter

• City website

• Direct mailer survey Page 29

10/13/2020 Item No.3.

mailto:waterquality@folsom.ca.us
http://www.folsom.ca.us/pinholeleaks


QUESTIONS?

Page 30

10/13/2020 Item No.3.



t"'d,lLstlt+,'I
f

o Sfrralr.t $i *att,!r

Folsom City Council
Staff Re ort

RECOMMENDATION / CITY COUNCIL ACTION

No action is requested of the City Council at this time.

BACKGROUND / ISSUE

Community Development staff will provide an update on the planning, engineering and

building activity in the Folsom Plan Area south of Highway 50 during the third quarter of
2020.

ATTACHMENT

1. Power Point Presentation

Submitted,

MEETING DATE: t01t312020

AGENDA SECTION: Scheduled Presentations

SUBJECT: Folsom Plan Area Quarterly Report

FROM: Community Development Department

Pam Johns, Community Development Director

1

Page 31

10/13/2020 Item No.4.



This page is intentionally left blank.

Page 32

10/13/2020 Item No.4.



Folsom Plan Area 
Quarterly Update Q3 2020

Page 33

10/13/2020 Item No.4.



FPA Quarterly Update Outline

Planning Activity

Infrastructure and Site Engineering Activity

Map Activity

Building Activity

Public Information/City Website

Page 34

10/13/2020 Item No.4.



Page 35

10/13/2020 Item No.4.



Planning Activity (last 90 days)
Applications Submitted/Pending and City Actions

Development Applications Submitted/Pending

Alder Creek Apartments (Spanos)

Toll Brothers Clubhouse Design Review

Dignity Health Medical Campus

City Council (final action)

Rockcress Subdivision TSM, Residential Design Review

Page 36

10/13/2020 Item No.4.



Development Applications Submitted/Pending
Alder Creek Apartments GPA, SPA, and PD Permit

265 luxury apartments

5 buildings with 1-, 2-, and 4-stories
Page 37

10/13/2020 Item No.4.



Development Applications Submitted/Pending
Toll Brothers Clubhouse Design Review

18,600 sf single-story clubhouse

Indoor Amenities (pool, fitness center, 

social Hall, meeting rooms)

Outdoor Amenities (pool, spa, sports 

courts, putting green, lounge area)Page 38

10/13/2020 Item No.4.



Development Applications Submitted/Pending
Dignity Health Planned Development Permit

28-acre medical campus

2 medical office buildings

300 bed hospital

~530,000 square feet

Page 39

10/13/2020 Item No.4.



CC Approved:
Rockcress Subdivision VTSM, Residential Design Review

118 single-family lots

Lot size 3,000 – 3,500 sf

Home size 1,638 to 2,018 sf

Page 40

10/13/2020 Item No.4.



Infrastructure/Site Engineering Activity
(Last 90 Days)

White Rock Springs Ranch 

Villages 2 - 7

East Bidwell Street 

Improvements

Mangini Ranch Phase 2 

Villages 4, 7, 8

Enclave 

Subdivision Old Placerville Road

Creekstone

Subdivision

Toll Brothers

Phase 1

Rockcress 

Subdivision

Page 41

10/13/2020 Item No.4.



Small Lot Final Map Activity
Tentative Maps Approved by City Council Final Maps Approved by CC Small Lot Final Maps Submitted
Mangini Ranch Phase 1 (833 dwelling units) Village 1 (May 2018)

Villages 8 and 9 (May 2018)

Village 2 (June 2018)

Village 5 (September 2019)

Villages 6 and 7 (November 2019)

Village 4 (July 2020)

Village 3

Creekstone Subdivision

White Rock Springs Ranch (395 dwelling units) Village 1 (July 2019)

Villages 8 and 9 (October 2019)

Villages 2 – 7 (December 2019)

Carr Trust (28 dwelling units) Carr Trust (July 23, 2019)

Russell Ranch Phase 1 (394 dwelling units) Village 6 (February 2019)

Villages 1, 2, 3, and 7 (March 2019)

Village 5 and 8 (May 2019)

Village 4 (June 2019)

Enclave at Folsom Ranch (111 dwelling units) Enclave (April 2020)

Broadstone Estates (81 dwelling units)

Folsom Heights (407 dwelling units)

Mangini Ranch Phase 2 (545 dwelling units) Village 7 (December 2019)

Villages 4 and 8 (July 2020)

Rockcress Subdivision

Russell Ranch Phase 2 (398 dwelling units)

Total SF Lots Ready for Permits 1892 lots mapped 248 lots pending

Page 42

10/13/2020 Item No.4.



Building Permit Tracking
Total permits 672 (Q3: July through September 96)

672 Building Permits Issued
483 Homes Final Inspected

Page 43

10/13/2020 Item No.4.



Mangini

Ranch 

Phase 1

Russel 

Ranch 

Phase 1

White 

Rock 

Springs 

Ranch

Carr Trust
Mangini

Ranch 

Phase 2

Enclave

Page 44

10/13/2020 Item No.4.



Mangini Ranch Phase 1 Neighborhoods

Tri-Point

Taylor Morrison

Taylor Morrison

Lennar

School Site
Park Site

Tri-Point

Page 45

10/13/2020 Item No.4.



Building Activity
Mangini Ranch Phase 1 Builders

 Taylor Morrison (Villages 6, 7) 

 Lennar (Villages 8, 9)

 Tri Pointe Homes (Villages 3 – 5)

 Tri-Pointe Homes (Creekstone)

Lennar: 
Villages 
8 and 9

Tri-Pointe Homes: Creekstone Taylor Morrison: 
Villages 6 - 7

Tri-Pointe Homes: 
Villages 3 - 5Page 46

10/13/2020 Item No.4.



Mangini Ranch Phase 2 and Enclave Neighborhoods

KB Homes 

(Enclave)

Signature Homes

Village 7

KB Homes

Villages 4, 8

Rockcress

Page 47

10/13/2020 Item No.4.



Building Activity
Mangini Ranch Phase 2 and Enclave Builders

 KB Homes (Enclave and Soleil)

 Signature Homes (Village 7)

KB Homes: Enclave Models

Page 48

10/13/2020 Item No.4.



Russell Ranch Phase 1 Neighborhoods

Meritage 

Homes 

Village 4

Anthem United 

Villages 6, 8

The New Home 

Company Villages 1, 7

Page 49

10/13/2020 Item No.4.



Building Activity
Russell Ranch Phase 1 Builders

 The New Home Company (Villages 1, 7)

 Meritage Homes (Village 4)

 Anthem United (Villages 6 and 8)

New Home Company: Village 7

Anthem United: Villages 6 and 8

Meritage: Village 4

New Home Company: Village 1
Page 50

10/13/2020 Item No.4.



Carr Trust and White Rock Springs Ranch Neighborhoods

Highway 50

Alder Creek Parkway
Richmond American

Carr Trust/Village 1

JMC Homes

Villages 8, 9

Page 51

10/13/2020 Item No.4.



Building Activity
Carr Trust and White Rock Springs Ranch Builders

 Richmond American (Carr Trust/Village 1)

 JMC Homes (Villages 8 and 9)

Richmond American: Carr Trust

JMC Model Home Sites: 
Villages 8 and 9

Page 52

10/13/2020 Item No.4.



Home Sales
Total sales 671 (Q3: July through September 140)

Builder July August September

Taylor Morrison (Azure and Dakota) 9 15 15

Lennar (Oakleaf and Copperwood) 11 0 3

Tri Pointe (Brookstone and Waterstone) 12 19 8

Meritage (Steel Canyon) 7 5 3

Anthem United (Iron Ridge) 1 5 0

New Home Company (SilverCrest) 2 4 3

Richmond American (Seasons) 4 6 8

KB Homes (Enclave and Soleil) Model homes under construction

JMC Homes Model home permits issued

Signature Homes Model home permits pending

Total 46 54 40Page 53

10/13/2020 Item No.4.



Questions?

Quarterly presentations and additional project 
information can be found on the City’s website:

https://www.folsom.ca.us/community/planning/appr
oved_master_plans/folsom_plan_area/default.asp

Page 54

10/13/2020 Item No.4.

https://www.folsom.ca.us/community/planning/approved_master_plans/folsom_plan_area/default.asp


Book 75 Page214
Folsom City Council
September 22,2020

Gity Council Regular Meeting

MINUTES

Tuesday, September 22,2020 6:30 PM

Pursuant to Governor Newsom's Executive Order N-29-20, members of the Folsom City
Council and staff may participate in this meeting via teleconference.

CALL TO ORDER

The regular City Council meeting was called to order at 6:30 p.m. in City Council Chambers, 50
Natoma Street, Folsom, California, with Mayor Sarah Aquino presiding.

ROLL CALL:
Council Members Present: Kerri Howell, Council Member

Mike Kozlowski, Council Member
Andy Morin, Council Member
Sarah Aquino, Mayor

Council Members Absent: Ernie Sheldon, Vice Mayor

Participating Staff: City Manager Elaine Andersen
City Attorney Steve Wang
City Clerk Christa Freemantle
Assistant City Manager/Human Resources Director/CFO Jim Francis
Public Works Director Dave Nugen
Finance Director Stacey Tamagni
Community Development Director Pam Johns

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANGE

The Pledge of Allegiance was recited

AGENDA UPDATE

City Clerk Christa Freemantle advised that there were no agenda updates.

Mayor Sarah Aquino presented a Resolution of Commendation to Jim Francis upon his
retirement from the City of Folsom and thanked him for serving the City in the roles of Assistant
City Manager, Chief Financial Officer and Human Resources Director.

DRAFT - Not fficial until approued b1t the Ci4t Council Page 55

10/13/2020 Item No.5.



Book 75 Page215
Folsom City Council
September 22,2020

BUSINESS FROM THE FLOOR:

Michael Massengale addressed the City Council regarding homelessness.

Justin Sanders addressed the City Council regarding the civic work and legacy of Vice Mayor
Ernie Sheldon.

SCHEDULED ESENTATIONS:

1. City Manager's Fiscal Year 2019-20 Fourth Quarter Financial Report

Finance Director Stacey Tagmani made a presentation and responded to questions from the
City Council. City Manager Elaine Andersen provided additional information.

2. Presentation on the Use of Federal Coronavirus Aid, Relief, and Economic Security
(CARES) Act Funds

Finance Director Stacey Tagmani made a presentation. City Manager Elaine Andersen
provided additional information.

CONSENT GALENDAR:

3. Approval of the September 8,2020 Special and Regular Meeting Minutes

4. pulled for comment

5. Resolution No. 10527 -A Resolution Repealing Resolution No. 10129 and Designating
Conflict of lnterest Filing Positions and Disclosure Categories

6. Resolution No. 10528 - A Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to Execute a Program
Supplement Agreement with Caltrans for the SouthEast Connector Segment D3(A)
Project No. PW1607, Federal Project No. 5288(046)

7 . Resolution No. 10529 - A Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to Execute a Contract
Change Order with Western Engineering Contractors, lnc. for the Green Valley Road
Widening Project, Project No. PW0804 and Appropriation of Funds

8, Resolution No. 10530 - A Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to Execute a
Construction Agreement with Sierra National Construction, lnc. for the Folsom
Amphitheater Shade Structure Project, Project No. RD101 , and Appropriation of Funds

Council Member Kerri Howell asked a question regarding ltem No. 8. Public Works Director
Dave Nugen responded,

Council Member Mike Kozlowski asked to pull ltem No. 4.

Motion by Gouncil Member Kerri Howell, second by Gouncil Member Mike Kozlowski
to approve ltems Nos. 3 and 5-8 of the Gonsent Calendar.

Motion carried with the following roll call vote:

DRAFT - Not ofidal until approued fut the Cig Coarucil
Page 56

10/13/2020 Item No.5.



Book75 Page216
Folsom City Council
September 22,2020

4. Resolution No. 10526 - A Resolution Accepting a Grant from the Sacramento
Metropolitan Air Quality Management District for the Replacement of Two Diesel Refuse
Trucks with Two Zero Emission Electric Refuse Trucks

Council Member Mike Kozlowski pulled this item to asked questions and get clarification. Public
Works Director Dave Nugen responded.

Motion by Gouncil Member Mike Kozlowski, second by Gouncil Member Kerri Howell
to approve Resolution No. 10526.

Motion carried with the following roll call vote:

AYES:
NOES:
ABSENT:
ABSTAIN:

AYES:
NOES:
ABSENT:
ABSTAIN:

AYES:
NOES:
ABSENT:
ABSTAIN:

Gouncil Member(s):
Council Member(s):
Gouncil Member(s):
Gouncil Member(s):

Gouncil Member(s): Howell, Kozlowski, Morin, Aquino
Council Member(s): None
Gouncil Member(s): Sheldon
Council Member(s): None

Council Member(s): Howell, Kozlowski, Morin, Aquino
Gouncil Member(s): None
Gouncil Member(s): Sheldon
Council Member(s): None

NEW BUSINESS:

9. Resolution No. 10531 - A Resolution of the City Council Declaring 300 Persifer Street as
Surplus

Community Development Director Pam Johns made a presentation and responded to questions
from the City Council. City Attorney Steve Wang added clarification.

Motion by Gouncil Member Kerri Howell, second by Gouncil Member Andy Morin to
approve Resolution No. 10531.

Motion carried with the following roll call vote:

Howell, Kozlowski, Morin, Aquino
ne

nldoe
ne

No
Sh
No

10. Ordinance No. 1308 - An Ordinance of the City of Folsom Repealing and Re-enacting
Chapter 2.30 of the Folsom Municipal Code Pertaining to the Establishment and
Maintenance of the City Merit System and Personnel Policies, Rules, and Regulations
(lntroduction and First Reading)

Human Resources Director Jim Francis made a presentation.

DRAFT - Not fficial antil approued b1t the Ciry Coundl
Page 57

10/13/2020 Item No.5.



Book75 Page217
Folsom City Council
September 22,2020

Motion by Council Member Kerri Howell, second by Gouncil Member Mike Kozlowskito
introduce and hold first reading of Ordinance No. 1308.

Motion carried with the following roll call vote:

AYES:
NOES:
ABSENT:
ABSTAIN:

Gouncil Member(s): Howell, Kozlowski, Morin, Aquino
Council Member(s): None
Council Member(s): Sheldon
Council Member(s): None

GITY MANAGER REPORTS:

City Manager Elaine Andersen wished Vice Mayor Ernie Sheldon good health and rest. She
announced that with the retirement of Jim Francis, she has promoted Finance Director Stacey
Tagmanito Finance Director/Chief Financial Officer. Ms. Andersen commented on the success
of Community Service Day, the status of pinhole leaks in copper pipes, COVID-19 case
numbers and election vote centers and ballot tracking.

COUNGIL GOMMENTS:

Council Member Kerri Howellencouraged everyone to drive safely.

Council Member Mike Kozlowski commented regarding propositions for the upcoming election
and the recent drive-in concert at the rodeo arena. He provided an update regarding recent
SACOG board meeting discussions regarding the allocation of transportation funding and
SACOG's youth leadership academy.

Council Member Andy Morin congratulated Jim Francis on his retirement, expressed his best
wishes to Vice Mayor Ernie Sheldon, congratulated Stacey Tagmani.

Mayor Sarah Aquino discussed her recent Zoom call with 85 second and third graders, her
upcoming mobile office hours with Council Member Andy Morin and an upcoming Zoom
meeting with Sacramento County Health Department. She talked about the success of
Community Service day and thanked Christine Brainerd, Chris Shepherd and Raina Bassa for
their hard work, along with Justin Raithel for chairing the event. She concluded with
encouraging everyone to shop localto help Folsom businesses.

ADJOURNMENT

There being no further business to come before the Folsom City Council, the meeting was
adjourned at 8:15 p.m.

DRAFT - Not ffidal antil approued b1 the Ciry Counc'il

SUBMITTED BY

Page 58

10/13/2020 Item No.5.



Book 75 Page218
Folsom City Council
September 22,2020

Christa Freemantle, City Clerk

ATTEST

Sarah Aquino, Mayor

DRAFT - Not ofidal antil approued fot the Cig Coundl
Page 59

10/13/2020 Item No.5.



This page is intentionally left blank.

Page 60

10/13/2020 Item No.5.



Folsom City Council
Staff Re ort

RECOMMENDATION / CITY COUNCIL ACTION

The Human Resources Director recommends that the City Council adopt Ordinance No. 1308
- An Ordinance of the City of Folsom Repealing and Re-enacting Chapter 2.30 of the Folsom
Municipal Code Pertaining to the Establishment and Maintenance of the City Merit System
and Personnel Policies, Rules, and Regulations.

BACKGROUND / ISSUE

Chapter 2.30 of the Municipal Code was initially adopted by the City Council in 1983 and
most recently amended in 1995. The existing provisions do not clearly state the principals of
the City Personnel Policies, Rules, and Regulations, restrict the administrative actions, and do
not reflect actual practice.

The introduction and first reading of this Ordinance took place on September 22,2020
There have been no changes to the Ordinance since then.

POLICY / RULE

Section 4.04 of the City Charter requires the City Council to provide, by ordinance, for the
establishment, regulation, and maintenance of a merit system governing personnel policies.

MEETING DATE: 10n312020

AGENDA SECTION: Consent Calendar

SUBJECT: Ordinance No. 1308 - An Ordinance of the City of Folsom
Repealing and Re-enacting Chapter 230 of the Folsom Municipal
Code Pertaining to the Establishment and Maintenance of the City
Merit System and Personnel Policies, Rules, and Regulations
(Second Reading and Adoption)

F'ROM: City Manager's Office and Human Resources Department

Page 61

10/13/2020 Item No.6.



ANALYSIS / FINANCIAL IMPACT

The proposed Ordinance will repeal existing Chapter 2.30 of the Folsom Municipal Code and
re-enact Chapter 2.30 in its entirety.

The following changes are being proposed:

Section 2.30.010 is entirely new and spells out the principles of the City merit system and
Personnel Policies, Rules, and Regulations. While many of these principles are spelled out in
other documents, they have not been consolidated and presented as guiding principles. The
current Ordinance 2.30.040lists merit system requirements but does not list the principles.

Section 2.30.020(A) fulfills the City Council's Charter responsibility to provide for the
establishment, regulation, and maintenance of the City's merit system by instructing the City
Manager to prepare and maintain a system of Personnel Policies, Rules, and Regulations.

Section 2.30.020(B) replaces the existing section 2.30.020 and calls for the City Manager to
amend the Personnel Policies, Rules and Regulations. Currently amendments are done by
resolution of the City Council.

Section 2.30.020(C) instructs the Director of Human Resources to propose to the City
Manager amendments to or new provisions of the Personnel Policies, Rules, and Procedures
when it will be in the best interest of the City. This is currently expressed in Section
2.30.040(Q) of the current Ordinance.

Section 2.30.020(D) replaces the existing section 2.30.030 and spells out the requirements for
meeting with labor unions when changes are made that affect their members. There is no
substantial change to this provision.

Section 2.30.030(4) gives the City Manager the exclusive authority to manage City
employment and personnel matters.

Section 2.30.030(8) permits the City Manager to hire a Director of Human Resources who
shall oversee and assure the proper administration of the Personnel Policies, Rules, and
Regulations. This is currently provided for in 230.015 of the existing Ordinance.

Section 2.30.040 states that the Personnel Policies, Rules, and Regulations apply, in whole or
in part, to all persons employed by the City in a classified or unclassified position.
Attachment 4 spells out in detail the classified and unclassified definitions. The main
exception is that they are not intended to supersede any provision of an existing collective
bargaining agreement. This is covered under section 2.30.030 of the existing Ordinance.
The new Section 230.040 also designates certain positions as exempt and at-will employees
and is the same as are listed in Section 2.30.080 of the existing Ordinance and Section
1.01.030 of the existing Personnel Rules and Regulations.

Page 62

10/13/2020 Item No.6.



Section 2.30.050 allows Department Directors to propose, to the City Manager, personnel

policies, rules, and regulations that are unique to their operational requirements. Such
policies, rules and regulations must be approved by the City Manager. This is currently
provided for in Section 1.01.070 of the existing Personnel Rules and Regulations.

Section 2.30.060 provides a list of those topics which should be included in the Personnel

Policies, Rules, and Regulations. The list is not limited to those mentioned and reflects the
current list of elements specified in Section2.30.040 of the existing Ordinance.

Section 2.30.070 is an updated list of required records and reports that must be maintained as

part of the Personnel system.

Section 2.30.080 is an outline of the elements included in Department Director employment
Agreements. This provision reflects the curent list specified in Section 230.070 of the

existing Ordinance.

Section 2.30.090 presents the restrictions on the City Council in regards to personnel matters.

This reflects the current restrictions specified in Section 2.30.060 of the existing Ordinance
and Sections2.07B and2.07C of the City Charter.

ATTACHMENTS

1 Ordinance No. 1308 - An Ordinance of the City of Folsom Repealing and Re-
enacting Chapter 2.30 of the Folsom Municipal Code Pertaining to the Establishment
and Maintenance of the City Merit System and Personnel Policies, Rules, and
Regulations (Second Reading and Adoption)

2. Existing Chapter 2.3 of the Folsom Municipal Code
3. Sections 2.078,2.07C,4.04A, and 4.048 of the Folsom City Charter
4. Classified and Unclassified Definitions

Submitted,

Susan Walter,
Director of Human Resources

Page 63

10/13/2020 Item No.6.



ATTAGHMENT 1

Ordinance No. 1308 - An Ordinance of the City of Folsom Repealing and Re-enacting
Chapter 2.30 of the f,'olsom Municipal Code Pertaining to the Establishment and

Maintenance of the City Merit System and Personnel Policies, Rules, and Regulations

Page 64

10/13/2020 Item No.6.



ORDINANCE NO. 1308

AN ORDINANCE OF'THE CITY Of,'F'OLSOM
REPEALING AND RE.ENACTING CHAPTER 2.30 OF THE F'OLSOM MUNICIPAL
CODE PERTAINING TO THE ESTABLISHMENT AND MAINTENANCE OF THE

CITY MERIT SYSTEM AND PERSONNEL POLICIES, RULES, AND REGULATIONS

The City Council of the City of Folsom hereby does ordain as follows:

SECTION 1 PURPOSE

The purpose of this ordinance is to speciff the principles that guide the City merit system and the

Personnel Policies, Rules, and Regulations. In addition, it will provide for the establishment,

amendment, and administration of the City merit system and Personnel Policies, Rules, and

Regulations by the City Manager.

SECTION 2 REPEAL AND RE.ENACTMENT TO CODE

Chapter 2.30 of the Folsom Municipal Code is hereby repealed and re-enacted to read as follows

CHAPTER 2.30

MERIT SYSTEM OF PERSONNEL ADMINISTRATION

Sections:

2.30.010
2.30.020
2.30.030
2.30.040
2.30.050
230.060
230.070
2.30.080
230.090

Principles of the City Merit System

Adoption and Amendment of Personnel Policies, Rules and Regulations

Personnel Administration
Application of Personnel Policies, Rules, and Regulations

Department Rules
Personnel Policies, Rules, and Regulations

Records and Reports
Department Head Employment Agreements

City Council Restrictions in Personnel Matters

2.30.010 PRINCIPLES OF TIIE CITY MERIT SYSTEM

In establishing, regulating, and maintaining the City merit system and the Personnel Policies,

Rules, and Regulations, it is the policy of the City of Folsom to:

1. Provide equal employment opportunity (EEO) to all employees or applicants without
regard to illegal discriminatory characteristics in accordance with applicable federal,
state, and local laws. Nondiscrimination principles shall apply to all aspects of the

Ordinance No. 1308
Page 1 of8 Page 65

10/13/2020 Item No.6.



employment relationship, including, but not limited to, hiring, discipline, termination,
promotions, transfers, reductions in force, compensation, benefits, and training.

2. Comply with all applicable federal, state, and local employment laws relating to the

administration of a comprehensive personnel program.
3. Ensure that all persons at the workplace and /or involved in City operations have a

work environment free of harassment, discrimination, abusive conduct, hostile work
environment, and retaliation, including discrimination or harassment based on any

legally protected class in accordance with all applicable federal, state, and local laws.
4. Prohibit any employee of the City to act in any way to undermine a person's work

performance or create an abusive, intimidating, hostile or otherwise offensive work
environment.

5. Provide a system for addressing personnel matters that balances the needs of
employees and the interests of the city.

6. Establish and maintain positive employee and labor relations.
7. Maintain open, publicly posted, and competitive recruitment and selection processes.

8. Employ the best qualified persons available and ensure that the tenure of every City
employee will be based on compliance with laws, rules, and regulations (including
City Personnel Policies, Rules, and Regulations) as well as satisfactory work
performance.

9. Ensure that promotions will be made based on required knowledge, skills, abilities
and other measures of fitness; that poor performance, incompetence, and
inappropriate behavior will not be acceptable; and that no permanent employee will
be subject to suspension, demotion, dismissal or other disciplinary action without
complying with the applicable process set forth in the City Personnel Policies, Rules,

and Regulations or the collective bargaining agreement.
10. Ensure that employees of the City of Folsom will be informed of their duties and

responsibilities; that they will be provided with administrative and supervisory
direction, and that they will be informed by their supervisor through periodic
evaluation of the adequacy of their performance.

1 1. Prohibit any employee, contractor, or other agent of the City to engage in any type of
illegal discriminatory conduct.

2.30.020 ADOPTION AND AMENDMENT OF PERSONNEL POLICIES, RULES'
AND REGULATIONS

A. Pursuant to Section 4.04, as limited by 2.07(B) and2.07(C) of the Folsom City Charter,

and as further limited in implementation by the Meyers-Milias Brown Act of the state of
California, the City Manager is instructed and authorized to prepare and maintain a
comprehensive system of Personnel Policies, Rules, and Regulations following the
principles set out in this chapter.

B. The Personnel Policies, Rules, and Regulations shall be adopted andlor amended by the
City Manager. The City's current Personnel Policies, Rules, and Regulations existing at

Ordinance No. 1308
Page 2 of8 Page 66

10/13/2020 Item No.6.



the adoption of this Ordinance shall continue to have full force and effect until amended

by the City Manager.

C. The Director of Human Resources may propose to the City Manager, adopting new or
amending existing Personnel Policies, Rules, and Regulations whenever the Director
believes it will be in the best interest of the City.

D. Prior to adoption, the City Manager shall cause notice to be given to the appropriate
employee labor organizations, if such amendments apply to employees covered by those

labor organizations and are mandatory subjects of bargaining and the City Manager will
consider comments submitted by employee organization representatives prior to final
adoption.

E. Upon adoption or amendment, the adopted or revised Personnel Policies, Rules, and

Regulations shall be distributed to affected employee organizations or employees and

made available to any City employee requesting a copy.

2.30.030 PERSONNEL ADMINISTRATION

A. The City Manager is responsible for the overall administration of the City Personnel

System, and shall appoint, remove, dismiss, promote or discipline all employees of
the City, shall transfer employees between departments and organizational
components of the City, and order investigation of any employment or work-related
complaint from or involving any Crty employee, and to assure the integrity of the

City merit system of employment.

B. The City Manager shall appoint a Director of Human Resources to oversee and assure

the proper administration of the personnel ordinance, Personnel Policies, Rules, and

Regulations, and the City personnel merit system in all its aspects, and to administer
all employee benefits, serve as the city labor relations officer for purposes of meeting
and conferring with employees and their representatives, and further serve as the
official upon or with whom all notices, requests for hearings, complaints and other
official documents relative to City employee matters or affecting city employees shall
be served or filed, and to perform such additional duties as the City Manager shall
assign. The Director of Human Resources shall serve at the pleasure of the City
Manager under the terms of an employment agreement.

Ordinance No. 1308
Page 3 of8

Page 67

10/13/2020 Item No.6.



2.30.040 APPLICATION OF PERSONNEL POLICIES' RULES' AND
REGULATIONS

A. The provisions of the Personnel Policies, Rules and Regulations shall apply, in whole
or in part, to all persons employed as classified employees or unclassified employees

of the City. This includes the categories of Unclassified Non-Employees,
Unclassified Employees - Contract, Unclassified Employees, and Classified
Employees.

B. The Personnel Policies, Rules and Regulations are not intended to supersede any
provisions of an existing collective bargaining agreement. If a provision of the

Personnel Policies, Rules, and Regulations is directly covered by a provision of a
collective bargaining agreement, the collective bargaining agreement shall prevail and

the parallel provisions in the Personnel Policies, Rules, and Regulations shall not
apply to the affected unit. This pertains to recognized bargaining units who represent

and negotiate for all employee classifications within their unit.

C. The following employees shall be designated as exempt from the classification plan,

the rules pertaining to recruitment and selection, and as specified in the policies,
rules, and regulations: the City Manager, the assistant city manager, the city attorney,
all department heads, any confidential administrative assistants to the city manager or
city attorney, and such other positions as designated by the City Manager after
conculrence by the city council. These employees shall be employed at the discretion
and will of the City Manager and the City Manager shall determine all terms,
benefits, and conditions of employment.

D. An employee designated as exempt from the classification plan shall be ineligible for
any classified position in the City for a period of 1 year after the termination of any
contract of employment.

2.30.050 DEPARTMENT RULES

A. The separate department directors of the City may propose to the City Manager, any
policies, rules, and regulations needed to improve the performance of their
department responsibilities due to their unique operational requirements. Such
policies, rules and regulations shall be in accordance with the principles set out in this
Ordinance.

B. Departmental personnel policies, rules, and regulations shall be reviewed and

commented on by the Director of Human Resources and shall be approved by the

City Manager prior to implementation or revision.

Ordinance No. 1308
Page 4 of 8

Page 68

10/13/2020 Item No.6.



C. Departmental personnel policies, rules, and regulations shall be adopted and/or
amended in accordance with Section 2.30.020.

2.30.060 PERSONNEL POLICIES, RULES, AND REGULATIONS

The City merit system of personnel administration, as set out in detail in the Personnel Policies,

Rules, and Regulations shall address, but not be limited to, the following areas and be guided by

the principles set out in this Ordinance:

A. Recruitment, Testing, and Certification
B. Selection, Appointments, and Probationary Periods
C. Classification and Pay
D. Performance Evaluation and Merit Increases

E. Training and Development
F. Discipline, Grievances, and Appeals
G. Hours and Working Conditions
H. Employee Conduct
I. Leaves and Holidays
J. Downsizing
K. Employee Relations
L. Benefits Administration

2.30.070 RECORDS AND REPORTS

A. The Director of Human Resources shall be responsible for producing the forms
required to comply with the Personnel Policies, Rules, and Regulations, and

B. The Director of Human Resources shall be responsible for maintaining the official
file of personnel records relating to each employee in City service as required by law
These files shall contain information as required by law or as deemed appropriate by
the Director of Human Resources.

C. The department directors of the City are responsible for sending all records and

reports that are to be kept in an employee personnel file to the Department of Human
Resources.

D. The Director of Human Resources shall compile and file reports as are required.

E. All medical information regarding City employees shall be maintained in separate

files and stored securely. Medical records shall not be placed in an employee's
personnel file.

Ordinance No. 1308

Page 5 of8
Page 69

10/13/2020 Item No.6.



F. All workers compensation information regarding City employees shall be maintained
in separate files and stored securely. Workers compensation records shall not be

placed in an employee's personnel file.

G. All I-9 forms shall be maintained in separate files and stored securely. I-9 forms shall
not be placed in an employee's personnel file.

H. Employees may, upon reasonable advance notice to the Human Resources

Department, inspect records pertaining to their own employment at any reasonable
time during normal business hours.

2.30.080 DEPARTMENT HEAD EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENTS

Department heads and assistants to the City Manager and the city attorney shall be appointed to

their positions by means of an employment agreement, pursuant to the provisions of City Charter

Section 4.01(C), which employment agreements mandatorily shall address and encompass the

following matters:

A. Terms and conditions of employment;
B. Compensation, including pay andbenefits;
C. Goals and objectives to be met, and the measurement of achievement of such goals

and objectives;
D. A requirement of and a procedure, including specific time intervals, for the periodic

and regular evaluation of employee performance;
E. Job obligations;
F. Provisions of termination:
G. No such employment agreement afforded by the city manager to a department head or

assistant to the City Manager or the city attomey is intended to be in excess of 4
years, however, such agreement may be amended or extended at the discretion of the
City Manager.

2.30.090 CITY COUNCIL RESTRICTIONS IN PERSONNEL MATTERS

Neither the City Council nor any of its members shall in any manner control, demand, or
interfere with the City personnel system in any manner, including:

A. No interference in or request regarding the appointment, discipline or release of any
City department head or employee;

B. No issuance of any direct order to any City employee, either publicly or privately;

Ordinance No. 1308
Page 6 of 8 Page 70

10/13/2020 Item No.6.



C. But the City Council shall have the authority to express its views and fully and freely
discuss with the City Manager anything pertaining to the appointment and release of
city department heads and employees, or the adoption of any personnel policy, rule,

or regulation.

SECTION 3 SCOPE

Except as set forth in this Ordinance, all other provisions of the Folsom Municipal
Code shall remain in full force and effect.

SECTION 4 SEVERABILITY

If any section, subsections, clause, phrase, or portion of this Ordinance is for any

reason held to be invalid or unconstitutional by the decision of any court of competent
jurisdiction, such decision shall not affect the validity of the remaining portions of this
Ordinance. The City Council hereby declares that it would have adopted this Ordinance and

each section, subsection, sentence, clause, phrase or portion thereof, irrespective ofthe fact that

any one or more sections, subsections, clauses, phrases or portions be declared invalid or
unconstitutional.

SECTION 5 EFF'ECTIVE DATE

This Ordinance shall become effective thirty (30) days from and after its passage

and adoption. In lieu of publication of the full text of the Ordinance within fifteen (15) days

after its passage, a summary of the Ordinance may be published at least five (5) days prior to and

fifteen (15) days after adoption by the City Council and a certified copy shall be posted in the
office of the City Clerk, pursuant to Government Code section 36933(c)(1).

This Ordinance was introduced, and the title thereof read at the regular meeting of
the City Council on September 22,2020 andthe second reading occurred at the regular meeting
of the City Council on October 13, 2020.

On a motion by Council Member seconded by Council
the foregoing Ordinance was passed and adopted by the City

of the City of Folsom, State of California, this 13ft day of October2020,by the

following vote, to wit:

Member
Council

AYES:
NOES:
ABSENT:
ABSTAIN:

Ordinance No. 1308

Page 7 of 8

Council Member(s)
Council Member(s)
Council Member(s)
Council Member(s)

Page 71

10/13/2020 Item No.6.



Sarah Aquino, MAYOR

ATTEST:

Christa Freemantle, CITY CLERK

Ordinance No. 1308

Page 8 of8 Page 72

10/13/2020 Item No.6.



ATTACHMENT 2

Existing Ghapter 2.30 of the Folsom Municipal Gode

Page 73

10/13/2020 Item No.6.



Ghapter 2.30
MERIT SYSTEM OF PERSONNEL ADMINISTRATION

Sections:
2.30.010 Basis of personnel svstem.
2.30.015 Deoartment of personnel administration.
2.30.020 Adoption and amendment of personnel rules.
2.30.030 Meet and confer required.
2.30.040 Citv merit svstem requirements.
2.30.050 Svstem of emplovee selection and appointment.
2.30.060 Restriction on citv council in personnel matters.
2.30.070 Department head emplovment aqreements.
2.30.080 Emplovees exemptfrom classification.

2.30.010 Basis of personnel system.

Pursuant to Section 4.04, as limited by 2.07(8) of the Folsom City Charter, and as further limited in

implementation by the Meyers-Milias-Brown Act of the state of California, the city manager is
instructed and authorized to prepare and present to the city council for its consideration and
adoption a comprehensive system of personnel administration following the principles set out in this
chapter. (Ord.697 $ 2 (part), 1990)

2.30.015 Department of personnel administration.

The city manager shall appoint a personnel director who shall serve at the pleasure of the city
manager under the terms of an employment agreement. The personnel director shall direct the
administrative work of the personnel department and shall be responsible for the following duties
and responsibilities:

A. Oversee and assure the proper administration of the personnel ordinance, personnel rules and
regulations, and the city personnel merit system in all its aspects and in all respects;

B. Maintain all personnel records, and certify to the finance director that all payments made to all
employees are for work performed at the proper level of compensation, is earned, and is paid in a
timely manner with the proper level of employee benefits included;

C. Establish and maintain a roster of officers and employees of the city and, in conjunction and
cooperation with the finance director, assure that all officers and employees are compensated
properly and are provided with all employee benefits to which each is entitled;

D. Be the official upon or with whom all notices, requests for hearings, complaints and other official
documents relative to city employee matters or affecting city employees shall be served or filed;

E. Serve as the city labor relations officer for purposes of meeting and conferring with employees
and their representatives, as required by state law;

F. Assure the integrity of the city merit system of employment;

Page 74

10/13/2020 Item No.6.



G. Perform such additional duties as the city manager shall assign. (Ord. 697 $ 2 (part), 1990)

I Z.SO.O20 Adoption and amendment of personnel rules.

The personnel rules which set in detail the system of city personnel administration shall be adopted
by the city council by resolution. Amendments and revisions to the personnel rules shall be
processed as provided in the personnel rules. (Ord. 697 $ 2 (part), 1990)

I Z.SO.O30 Meet and confer required.

During development of the city personnel rules, as considered appropriate by the city manager, and
prior to submission to the city council for its consideration and adoption, the city manager shall
cause the city personnel rules to be subjected to the meet and confer process with duly selected
representatives of city employee organizations, as required by California law. (Ord. 697 $ 2 (part),
1eeo)

I z.OO.O40 City merit system requirements.

The city merit system of personnel administration, as set out in detail in the personnel rules, shall
include the specific procedures governing the following elements of the personnel program:

A. Preparation, installation, revision and maintenance of a position classification plan covering all
positions in the career service, including employment standards and qualifications for each job
classification;

B. Preparation, revision and administration of a plan of compensation directly related with the
position classifi cation plan;

C. Public announcement of all vacancies and examinations;

D. Acceptance of applications for employment;

E. The use of examinations and the development of appropriate selection processes to determine
the relative qualifications of employment applicants for appointment to or promotion in the career
service;

F. The establishment and use of employment lists containing the names of persons eligible for city
appointment;

G. The certification and appointment of persons from employment lists to fill vacancies in the
career service;

H. The establishment of a probationary period and evaluation of employees prior to attaining
regular full- time status under the city's merit system;

l. The making of provisional, temporary and emergency appointments;

J. Transfer, promotion and demotion of employees within the career service;

Page 75

10/13/2020 Item No.6.



K. The resignation and reinstatement of employees;

L. The separation of employees through layoffs, suspensions, dismissals, resignations and for
incapacity to perform required duties;

M. The establishment of provisions governing the accrual and use of various leaves such as sick
leave, vacation, holidays and leave of absence;

N. The establishment of grievance and appeal procedures which include provisions of hearing
procedures on any appeal;

O, The establishment of adequate personnel records and the certification of payrolls;

P. Employee in-service training and professional development; and

O. Such other matters as the city council, city manager, personnel director and the meet and
confer process determine to be desirable in a comprehensive and effective personnel program. (Ord

697 S 2 (parl),1990)

I Z.OO.O50 System of employee selection and appointment.

The personnel rules shall provide for a comprehensive and detailed process for the selection,
appointment, discipline and dismissal of city employees, which system mandatorily shall include the
following elements:

A. An open, public posted, and competitive employee selection process utilizing, where and when
feasible, validated examinations at entry level, and objective evaluation process for all other
classifications of city employment;

B. Delegation by the city manager of appointment, discipline and dismissal of all employees except
for department heads, assistants to the city manager, and the secretary to the city manager, to the
several department heads, provided:

1. Such delegation shall apply only to positions in the department assigned to the
department head to which such authority has been delegated,

2. The city manager shall approve, and may, in his/her discretion, modify or disapprove all
recommendations for employee appointment, discipline or dismissal. (Ord. 697 S 2 (part),
1e90)

2.30.060 Restriction on city council in personnel matters.

Neither the city council as a whole, nor the mayor, nor any individual member of the city council may
interfere with the city personnel system in any manner, including:

A. No interference in or request regarding the appointment, discipline or release of any city
department head or employee;

B. No issuance of any direct order to any city employee, either publicly or privately;

Page 76

10/13/2020 Item No.6.



C. But the city council shall have the absolute authority to express its views and fully and freely
discuss with the city manager anything pertaining to the appointment and release of city department
heads and employees. (Ord.697 S 2 (part), 1990)

| 2.30.070 Department head employment agreements.

Department heads and assistants to the city manager shall be appointed to their positions by means
of an employment agreement, pursuant to the provisions of City Charter Section 4.01(C), which
employment agreements mandatorily shall address and encompass the following matters:

A. Terms and conditions of employment;

B. Compensation, including pay and benefits;

C. Goals and objectives to be met, and the measurement of achievement of such goals and
objectives;

D. A requirement of and a procedure, including speciflc time intervals, for the periodic and regular
evaluation of employee performance;

E. Job obligations;

F. Provisions of termination;

G, No such employment agreement afforded by the city manager to a department head or
assistant to the city manager shall be for a term in excess of 4 years. (Ord. 697 $ 2 (part), 1990)

2.30.080 Employees exempt from classification.

The following employees shall be designated as exempt from the classification plan and rules
pertaining to classified employees as established in the city's personnel rules and regulations: the
city manager, the assistant city manager, the city attorney, all department heads, any confidential
administrative assistants to the city manager and such other positions designated by the city
manager after concurrence by the city council. Those employees shall be employed at the discretion
and will of the city manager, and the city manager shall determine all terms, benefits and conditions
of employment. An employee designated as exempt from the classification plan shall be ineligible for
any classified position in the city for a period of 1 year after the termination of any contract of
employment. (Ord. 836 S 2, 1995)

Page 77

10/13/2020 Item No.6.



ATTACHMENT 3

Sections 2.078, 2.07C, 4.04A, and 4.048
of the

Folsom City Charter

Page 78

10/13/2020 Item No.6.



ATTACHMENT 3

SECTIONS 2.079,2.07C,4.04A, and 4.048 OF THE FOLSOM CIW CHARTER

SECTION 2.07 PROHIBITIONS ON CITY COUNCIL:

B. Neither the Council nor any of its members shall in any manner control or demand the

appointment or removal of any City department head or employee whom the City Manager or

any subordinate of the City Manager is empowered to appoint. But the Council may express its

views and fully and freely discuss with the City Manager anything pertaining to appointment

and removal of such department heads and employees.

C. Neither the Mayor nor any Councilmember shall interfere with the execution of the powers

and duties of the City Manager. Except for purposes of inquiry, the Mayor and

Councilmembers shall deal with the administrative service solely through the City Manager and

neither the Mayor nor any Councilmember shall give orders to any subordinate of the City

Manager, either publicly or privately.

SECTION 4.04 PERSONNEL SYSTEM

The City Council shall provide by ordinance for the establishment, regulation and maintenance

of a merit system governing personnel policies necessary to effective administration of the

employees of the City's departments and offices.

A. Merit System Components: Such merit system of personnel administration shall

include, but not be limited to classification and pay plans, selection processes, force

reduction, working conditions, provisional and exempt appointments, discipline and

dismissal, in-service training, grievances, relationships with employee organizations,

regular and periodic employee performance evaluations, and incentive plans.

B. Employee Selection. The merit system shall provide for open, publicly posted, and

competitive employee selection processes utilizing, where and when feasible, validated

examinations at entry level and objective evaluative processes for all other
classifications.

Page 79

10/13/2020 Item No.6.



ATTACHMENT 4

Glassified and Unclassified Definitions

Page 80

10/13/2020 Item No.6.



ATTACHMENT 4

CLASSIFIED AND UNCLASSIFIED DEFINITIONS

A. Unclassified Non-Emplovees
1) Elected officials (City Council) and appointed public members of boards,

commissions, and committees.
2) Persons engaged under contract to supply expert technical, professional or

any other service authorized by the City Council.
3) Volunteers.

B. Unclassified Employees - Gontract
1) The City Manager, City Attorney, all department heads, Administrative

Support Specialist, Assistant City Manager, Assistant City Attorney, Legal
Secretary, and Legal Analyst.

2) Unclassified Employees - Contract shall be employed, rewarded, disciplined,
or discharged at the discretion and will of the City Manager and the City
Manager shall determine the wages, hours, and conditions of employment for
the Unclassified Employees - Contract.

C. Unclassified Employees
1) Reserve, temporary, seasonal, provisional, and other employees who are not

regularly employed in permanent positions or designated to be in classified
service.

2) Probationary employees holding positions in the classified service.
3) Emergency employees who are hired to meet the immediate requirements of

an emergency condition which threatens life, property, or the delivery of vital
services to residents of the community.

D. Classified Emplovees
1) Represented Employees. The personnel policies, rules, and regulations are

not intended to supersede any provisions of an existing collective bargaining
agreement. lf any section of the policies, rules, and regulations is covered by
a provision of a collective bargaining agreement, the collective bargaining
agreement shall prevail and the parallel provisions in the policies, rules, and
regulations shall not apply to the affected unit. This pertains to recognized
bargaining units who represent and negotiate for all employee classifications
within their unit.

2) Unrepresented Employees. All employees not represented by a labor
organization and/or are classified as "confidential employees" as defined in

the Meyers-Milias Brown Act.

Page 81

10/13/2020 Item No.6.



This page is intentionally left blank.

Page 82

10/13/2020 Item No.6.



Folsom City Council
Staff Re rt

RECOMMENDATION / CITY COUNCIL ACTION

The Environmental and Water Resources Department recommends the City Council pass and
adopt Resolution No. 10533 - A Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to Execute an
Agreement with Pure Technologies, U.S. Inc. dba Wachs Water Services to Complete the
Water Distribution System Leak and Loss Detection Survey.

BACKGROUND / ISSUE

The Environmental and Water Resources (EWR) Department is requesting that Pure
Technologies, U.S. Inc. dba Wachs Water Services (Pure Technologies) provide Leak and Loss
Detection Surveys of the City's Water Distribution System, including the Ashlandarcaand the
development South of US-50. The City's water distribution system consists of approximately
400 miles of water pipes and is comprised of transmission mains, distribution mains, service
lateral connections (approximately 22,000), blow-offs, fire hydrants, backflow preventors,
valves, and other appurtenances. The City's water pipes range in size from 1-inch service lines
to 3O-inch transmission mains.

The previous comprehensive leak detection survey was performed on the City's water system
in the Spring of 2015. The discovery and subsequent repairs of new leaks will reduce water
loss, increase annual water cost savings, and prevent unnecessary strain on the water system.

I

MEETING DATE: t011312020

AGENDA SECTION: Consent Calendar

SUBJECT: Resolution No. 10533 - A Resolution Authorizing the City
Manager to Execute an Agreement with Pure Technologies, U.S.
Inc. dba Wachs Water Services to Complete the Water
Distribution System Leak and Loss Detection Survey

F'ROM: Environmental and Water Resources Department

Page 83

10/13/2020 Item No.7.



The work will consist of performing two acoustic leak and loss detection surveys on the City's
water distribution system (including the Ashland area and the South of US-50 area) in order to
identiff leak locations in need of repairs. The first leak and loss detection survey and

associated report will be performed during this winter (December 1,2020 through March 1,

2021). The second leak and loss detection survey and associated report will be performed
during the next winter (December 1,2021through March 1,2022).

The City issued a Request for Proposals to provide Leak and Loss Detection Surveys of the
City's Water Distribution System. Because of their knowledge and experience with Leak and

Loss Detection services, Pure Technologies has proven to be uniquely qualified in having the
technical expertise to provide these services. City staff recommends authorizing the City
Manager to execute an agreement with Pure Technologies for services for the Leak and Loss
Detection of the City's Water Distribution System.

POLICY / RULE

In accordance with Chapter 2.36 of the Folsom Municipal Code. supplies, equipment, services,

and construction with a value of $62,014 or greater shall be awarded by City Council.

ANALYSIS

The two leak and loss detection surveys will include a Comprehensive Survey of the City's
water system. All detected leaks (both city-side leaks and customer-side leaks) will be

documented. The leak flow rates will also be estimated based on the visible appearance of the
leak or the intensity of the noise produced by non-visible leaks. Whenever a leak is found, the
field project team will document identifuing factors about the leak such as address and location,
pressure zone, leak type, estimated volume of leak (gallons per minute), cost of water (dollar
per acre feet), priority rating, etc.

At the conclusion of each survey, Pure Technologies will deliver a final report to the City
which details the findings of all the leak locations, loss rates, and any other pertinent
information for the City to successfully make the necessary repairs to the water system. The
City will be responsible for repairing the leaks that are discovered.

The leak and loss detection surveys will aid in locating smaller leaks before they become larger
problems. Repairing smaller leaks before they become more problematic can save money on
construction costs, help prevent long water main shutdowns, reduce water loss, and increase

efficiency, all of which are crucial in keeping the City's water system operating smoothly.

The City issued a Request for Proposals for Leak and Loss Detection Surveys and received
eight proposals from qualified firms. EWR staff ranked the proposals based on project
understanding, consultant experience, the team assigned to this project, and their answers to a
supplemental questionnaire. Because of their knowledge, understanding of the project, and

experience with Leak and Loss Detection services, Pure Technologies has proven to be

uniquely qualified in having the technical expertise to provide these services. After review of

2
Page 84

10/13/2020 Item No.7.



the proposals, EWR staff proposes to utilize Pure Technologies for these services for a not-to-
exceed amount of $240,820.

FINANCIAL IMPACT

Sufficient funds have been budgeted in the Water Operating Fund (520) for this agreement in
the FY 2020-2I budget. The second survey will be included in the Water Operating Fund
(Fund 520) during the budget process for FY 2021-22.

ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW

This project is exempt from environmental review under the California Environmental Quality
Act, Section 15301 "Existing Facilities."

ATTACHMENTS

Resolution No. 10533 - A Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to Execute an Agreement
with Pure Technologies, U.S. Inc. dba Wachs Water Services to Complete the Water
Distribution System Leak and Loss Detection Survey.

Submitted,

Marcus Yasutake, Director
ENVIRONMENTAL AND WATER RESOURCES DEPARTMENT

JPage 85

10/13/2020 Item No.7.



RESOLUTION NO. 10533

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO EXECUTE AN
AGREEMENT WITH PURE TECHNOLOGTES, U.S. rNC. DBA WACHS WATER
SERVICES TO COMPLETE THE WATER DISTRIBUTION SYSTEM LEAK AND

LOSS DETECTION SURVEY

WHEREAS' the City is currently implementing its 2016 Water Master Plan which
consists of condition assessment, as well as operation and system improvements; and

WHEREAS, the City has identified this project as a priority to maintain integrity and
operation of the water distribution system; and

WHEREAS, Pure Technologies, U.S. Inc. dba Wachs Water Services by reason of their
past experience and abilities for performing these types of services, is qualified to perform the
required water distribution system leak and loss detection survey for the project; and

WHEREAS, the Water Distribution System Leak and Loss Detection Survey was
included in the Water Operating Fund (520) for FY 2020-21; and

WHEREAS, the second survey of the Water Distribution System Leak and Loss
Detection Survey will be included in the Water Operating Fund (Fund 520) during the FY 2021-
22budgelprocess; and

WHEREAS, sufficient funds are budgeted and available in the FY 2020-21 Water
Operating Fund (Fund 520); and

WHEREAS, the agreement will be in a form acceptable to the City Attorney

NOW, THEREFORE' BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council of the City of Folsom
authorizes the City Manager to execute an agreement with Pure Technologies, U.S. Inc. dba
Wachs Water Services to complete the water distribution system leak and loss detection survey
for a not-to-exceed amount of $240,820.

PASSED AND ADOPTED this 13ft day of October 2020, by the following roll-call
vote

AYES:
NOES:
ABSENT:
ABSTAIN:

Council Member(s):
Council Member(s):
Council Member(s):
Council Member(s):

ATTEST:

Christa Freemantle, CITY CLERK

Resolution No. 10533
Page 1 of I

Sarah Aquino, MAYOR

Page 86

10/13/2020 Item No.7.



Folsom City Council
Staff

MEETING DATE: t0/13/2020

AGENDA SECTION: Consent Calendar

SUBJECT: Resolution No. 10534 - A Resolution Authorizing the Public
Works Department to Submit Grant Applications to the
California Department of Transportation for Highway Safety
lmprovement Program Funding

FROM: Public Works Department

RECOMMENDATION / CITY COUNCIL ACTION

The Public Works Department recommends that the City Council pass and adopt Resolution
No. 10534 - A Resolution authorizing the Public Works Deparhnent to submit grant
applications to the California Department of Transportation for Highway Safety Improvement
Program funding.

BACKGROUND / ISSUE

The Public Works Department has retained the consulting firm TJKM to prepare a Local Road
Safety Plan (LRSP). The LRSP identifies intersections and road segments that have the highest
incidence of fatal or severe injury collisions, the factors associated with those collisions, and
the corrective measures that should be applied to attempt to reduce those collision rates. The
LRSP is used by local agencies to submit grant applications to the California Department of
Transportation (Caltrans) for the Highway Safety Improvement Program (HSIP).

POLICY / RULE

Authorization to apply for grant funding from extemal agencies must be granted by the City
Council before staff can submit any such application.

Page 87

10/13/2020 Item No.8.



ANALYSIS

The LRSP is a data-driven, analytics-based tool for identifuing the location, associated factors,
and potential corrective measures of fatal and severe injury collisions. Based on the LRSP, the
City has identified three projects that could improve safety at several intersections and road
segments throughout the city. The three projects are as follows:

Project 1: Signalized Intersections ($1M HSIP grant request, $lM local match). Improve
traffrc signal hardware, optimize signal timing, install raised pavement markers and striping at
the following intersections :

L
2.
J.

4.
5.

6.

7.

8.

9.

10.

11.

12.
13.

Folsom Boulevard and Natoma Station Drive
Blue Ravine Road and Flower Drive
E. Bidwell Street and Blue Ravine Road
Folsom Aubum Road and Oak Avenue Parkway
E. Bidwell Street and Oak Avenue Parkway
E. Natoma Street and Prison Road
Iron Point Road and Willard Drive
E. Natoma Street and Green Valley Road
E. Bidwell Street and Broadstone Parkway
Blue Ravine Road and Natoma Station Drive
E. Bidwell Street and Glenn Drive
E. Bidwell Street and Creekside Drive
Folsom Auburn Road and Folsom Lake Crossing

1.

2.
J.

4.
5.

6.

7.

8.

Project 2: Roadway Segments ($523K HSIP grant request, no local match). For roadways
with high incidence of run-off roadway, hit object, and night-time collisions. Install/modifi
regulatory and waming signs, delineators, reflectors and object markers, or edgeline rumble
ships/stripes on the following road segments:

American River Canyon Drive, between Oak Canyon Way and Canyon Rim Drive
Folsom Boulevard, between US-50 and Iron Point Road
Glenn Dr., between 360 ft. west from Sibley St. and 1,050 ft. east from Folsom Blvd.
Blue Ravine Road, between i200 ft. south of Crossing Way and Riley Street
Folsom Aubum Road, between Berry Creek and 900 ft. north of Berry Creek Drive
Prairie City Road, between 2000 ft. and 4200 ft. north of White Rock Road
E. Bidwell St., between 700 ft. south and 1,800 ft. south of Alder Creek Pkwy
E. Bidwell St., between US-50 eastbound ramp and 700 ft. south of Alder Creek Pkwy

Project 3: Roadway Segments ($900K HSIP grant request, no local match). For roadways
with high incidence of right-of-way violations, driver awareness, and speeding. Construct
median barriers, dynamic/variable speed warning signs, delineators/reflectors/object markers
on the following road segments:

1. Folsom Lake Crossing, between Folsom Dam Road and Johnny Cash Trail entrance

2

Page 88

10/13/2020 Item No.8.



2.
3.
4.

E. Natoma Sheet, between Folsom Lake Crossing and Gionata Way
E. Natoma Street, between Cimmaron Circle and Fargo Way
Folsom Aubum Road, between Pinebrook Drive and Folsom Dam Road

Each of these three projects will be submitted to Caltrans as a separate application for HSIP
funding.

FINANCIAL IMPACT

There is no financial impact associated with submitting the HSIP grant applications. If the City
is awarded HSIP grant funding, then there would be a local funding match $lM for Project
No. I if that application is successful.

ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW

None required.

ATTACHMENT

Resolution No. 10534 - A Resolution authorizing the Public Works Department to Submit
Grant Applications to the California Department of Transportation for Highway Safety
Improvement Program funding

Submitted,

Dave Nugen, Public W Director

3

Page 89

10/13/2020 Item No.8.



RESOLUTION NO. 10534

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE PUBLIC WORKS DEPARTMENT TO SUBMIT
GRANT APPLICATIONS TO THE CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF

TRANSPORTATION F'OR HIGHWAY SAFETY IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM
FUNDING

WHEREAS, the City of Folsom has prepared a Local Road Safety Plan (LRSP); and

WHEREAS, the LRSP analyzes traffic collision datato determine the causes and solutions
for fatal and severe injury collisions; and

WHEREAS, the LRSP has identified the highest priority intersections and road segments
and the corrective measures that could reduce collision frequency at those locations; and

WHEREAS, the LRSP is integral to successfully applying for funding from the Highway
Safety Improvement Program (HSIP) that is administered by the California Department of
Transportation (Caltrans); and

WHEREAS, if successfully awarded, the City would be required to provide up to
$1,000,000 in matching funds.

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council of the City of Folsom
authorizes the Public Works Department to submit grant applications to the CaliforniaDepartment
of Transportation for Highway Safety Improvement Program funding.

PASSED AND ADOPTED this 13ft day of October2l2l,by the following roll-call vote:

AYES:
NOES:
ABSENT:
ABSTAIN:

Council Member(s):
Council Member(s):
Council Member(s):
Council Member(s):

Sarah Aquino, MAYOR

ATTEST:

Christa Freemantle, CITY CLERK

Resolution No. 10534
Page I of I

Page 90

10/13/2020 Item No.8.



Folsom City Council
Staff

RECOMMENDATION / CITY COUNCIL ACTION

Staff recommends that the City Council conduct the first reading and introduction of
Ordinance No. 1309 - An Ordinance of the City of Folsom Amending Sections 12.20.020
and 12.20.030 of the Folsom Municipal Code Governing Encroachments on Public Property

BACKGROUND / ISSUE

Chapter 12.20 of the Folsom Municipal Code -oolJse of City Property" - was adopted in
1999 (Ordinance 905) to address private encroachments into the public right-of-way in order
to protect public safety and provide for the preservation of public properties including City
maintained roads, landscaping, curbs, gutters, and sidewalks. The purpose and intent behind
Chapter 12.20 was to address unattended encroachments by non-City actors thatmay damage
public property or jeopardize public safety, and to require private permittees to indemni$
and defend the City for injuries and lawsuits arising out of the permittee's work on City
property. In practice, this chapter defines construction standards, prescribes application
procedures for encroachment permit issuance, establishes bonding and liability requirements,
and prescribes penalties for violations of its provisions.

From time to time, certain individuals and contractors have claimed that the City is also
required to apply for, and obtain, an encroachment permit for the City's own work in the

1

MEETING DATE: r011312020

AGENDA SECTION: New Business

SUBJECT: Ordinance No. 1309 - An Ordinance of the City of Folsom
Amending Sections 12.20.020 and 12.20.030 of the Folsom
Municipal Code Governing Encroachments on Public Property
(Introduction and First Reading)

FROM: Community Development Department

Page 91

10/13/2020 Item No.9.



City's right-of-way, notwithstanding the inapplicability and duplicative nature of such

requirement to City projects as explained below.

POLICY / RULE

Under Section 2.12 of the City Charter, amendments to the FMC require review and approval
by the City Council.

ANALYSIS

The City cannot encroach upon its own property and does not need to indemnifu itself for its
own work, and hence Chapter 12.20 was never intended to apply to the City's own
operations. Additionally, the City already follows applicable requirements for public safety

and traffic control in City projects that occur in the public rights-of-way such as, for
example, the City's Standard Construction Specifications and applicable Caltrans andlor
FHWA manual for traffic safety. When working on City projects, the City implements much
more detailed and robust protection measures than those required of private non-City actors

in Chapter t2.20 of the Folsom Municipal Code.

Accordingly, the purpose of this Ordinance amendment is to clarifu and codifu the City
Council's legislative intent that Chapter 12.20 of the Folsom Municipal Code is only
applicable to address unattended encroachments by non-City actors that may damage public
property or jeopardize public safety. As amended, Chapter 12.20 would make it clear that
the encroachment permit requirement does not apply to the City except when the City
requires its contractor to comply with such a requirement. A11 other aspects of the chapter
relating to permitting, public safety, and code enforcement are not modified by Ordinance
No. 1309.

FINANCIAL IMPACT

There are no financial impacts to the City.

ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW

The project is categorically exempt under Section 15061(b)(3) Review for Exemption of the
California Environmental Qualify Act (CEQA).

ATTACHMENTS

l. Redline of Proposed Ordinance Amendment

2. Ordinance No. 1309 - An Ordinance of the City of Folsom Amending Sections
12.20.020 and 12.20.030 of the Folsom Municipal Code Governing Encroachments
on Public Property

2
Page 92

10/13/2020 Item No.9.



3. City Council Staff Report, dated 0312311999 for second reading and adoption of
Ordinance No. 905 - An Ordinance Repealing and Reenacting Chapter 12.20 of the
Folsom Municipal Code goveming encroachments on public property.

Submitted,

PAM JOHNS
Community Development Director

J
Page 93

10/13/2020 Item No.9.



Attachment 1

Page 94

10/13/2020 Item No.9.



REDLINE

12.20.020 Definitions.

"Person" means any person, firm, partnership, association, corporation, company or
organization of any kind. Person does not include City of Folsom or anyone under
contract with the City working on City projects unless specifically provided for in a
written contract.

12.20.030 Purpose and Intent.

The purpose of this chapter is to establish regulations to control encroachments into
public property by requiring encroachment permits and to establish measures for the
protection of life and property, including traffic and pedestrian safeguards. Additionally,
this chapter defines construction standards, prescribes application procedures for
encroachment permit issuance, establishes bonding and liability requirements and
prescribes penalties for violations of its provisions. This chapter does not apply to work
undertaken by the City of Folsom or through its contractors unless specifically provided
for in a written contract.

Page 95

10/13/2020 Item No.9.



Attachment 2

Page 96

10/13/2020 Item No.9.



ORDINANCE NO. 1309

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF'F'OLSOM
AMENDING SECTIONS 12.20.020 and 12.20.030 OF THE

FOLSOM MUNICIPAL CODE GOVERNING
ENCROACHMENTS ON PUBLIC PROPERTY

The City Council of the City of Folsom hereby does ordain as follows:

SECTION 1 PURPOSE

The purpose of this Ordinance is to codifi'the legislative intent behind Ordinance
905, which established the Encroachment Permit ordinance in Chapter 12.20 of the
Folsom Municipal Code, that the Encroachment Permit requirement in Chapter 12.20 of
the Folsom Municipal Code does not apply to City operations. The Encroachment
Permits requirement was implemented to address unattended encroachments by non-City
actors that have damaged City-maintained curbs, gutters, and sidewalks, and interfered
with the orderly operations of City utility programs such as solid waste pickup.
Examples include basketball stands left in the street or across sidewalks, landscaping
materials left in the street, utility power cords crossing sidewalks to recreational vehicles,
and private contractors crossing the public right-of-way while accessing private property.

SECTION 2 AMENDMENT TO CODE

The definition of ooPerson" in Section 12.20.020, "Definitions" of the Folsom
Municipal Code is hereby amended to read as follows:

12.20.020 Definitions.

"Person" means any person, firm, partnership, association, corporation, company or
organization of any kind. Person does not include City of Folsom or anyone under
contract with the City working on City projects unless specifically provided for in a
written contract.

SECTION 3 AMENDMENT TO CODE

Section 12.20.030, "Purpose and Intent" of the Folsom Municipal Code is hereby
amended to read as follows:

12.20.030 Purpose and Intent.

The purpose of this chapter is to establish regulations to control encroachments into
public property by requiring encroachment permits and to establish measures for the
protection of life and property, including traffic and pedestrian safeguards. Additionally,
this chapter defines construction standards, prescribes application procedures for
encroachment permit issuance, establishes bonding and liability requirements and
prescribes penalties for violations of its provisions. This chapter does not apply to work

Ordinance No. 1309
Page I of3

Page 97

10/13/2020 Item No.9.



undertaken by the City of Folsom or through its contractors unless specifically provided
for in a written contract.

SECTION 4 SCOPE

Except as set forth in this ordinance, all other provisions of the Folsom Municipal
Code shall remain in full force and effect.

SECTION 5 NO MANDATORY DUTY OF'CARE

This Ordinance is not intended to and shall not be construed or given effect in a
manner that imposes upon the City or any officer or employee thereof a mandatory duty
of care towards persons and property within or without the City, so as to provide a basis

of civil liability for damages, except as otherwise imposed by law.

SECTION 6 SEVERABILITY

Ifany section, subsection, clause, phrase, or portion ofthis ordinance is for any

reason held to be invalid or unconstitutional by the decision of any court of competent
jurisdiction, such decision shall not affect the validity of the remaining portions of this
ordinance. The City Council hereby declares that it would have adopted this ordinance
and each section, subsection, sentence, clause, phrase or portion thereof, irrespective of
the fact that any one or more sections, subsections, clauses, phrases or portions be

declared invalid or unconstitutional.

SECTION 7 EF'FECTIVE DATE

This ordinance shall become effective thirty (30) days from and after its passage

and adoption, provided it is published in full or in summary within twenty (20) days after
its adoption in a newspaper of general circulation in the City.

This ordinance was introduced and the title thereof read at the regular meeting of
the City Council on October 13,2020, and the second reading occurred at the regular
meeting of the City Council on October27,2020.

On a motion by Council Member , seconded by Council
Member the foregoing ordinance was passed and adopted by
the City Council of the City of Folsom, State of California, this 27th day of October,2020
by the following vote, to wit:

AYES: Council Member(s)

NOES: Council Member(s)

ABSENT: Council Member(s)

ABSTAIN: CouncilMember(s)

Ordinance No. 1309
Page2 of3

Page 98

10/13/2020 Item No.9.



Sarah Aquino, MAYOR

ATTEST

Christa Freemantle, CITY CLERK

Ordinance No. 1309
Page 3 of 3 Page 99

10/13/2020 Item No.9.



Attachment 3

Page 100

10/13/2020 Item No.9.



OLD BUSINESS
Agenda Itern No.: 8a

CC Mtg.: 3123199

DATE:

TO:

FROM

March 18, 1999

Mayor and City Council Members

Public Works and Plaming,Inspections, and Pennitting Departments

SUBJECT: ORDINANCE NO. 905 - AN ORDINANCE REPEALING AND REENACTING
CHAPTER 12.20 OF THE FOLSOM MUNICIPAL CODE GOVERNING
ENCROACHMENTS ON PUBLIC PROPERTY (SECOND READING)

BACKGROUND

Currently, the Folsom Municipal Codp, Chapter 12.20, does not address encroachments into the
public right-of-way except sub-surface encroachments associated with excavations. Concerns

regarding various facilities left unattended on public streets and sidewalks, and other surface

encroachments that have damaged City-rnaintained curbs, gutters, and sidewalks have been the
driving factors in preparing this revised ordinance.

Code Enforcement and Public Works staff have recognized the need for controlling encroachments

into the public right-of-way for some time and recommended that the Traffic Safety Committee
(TSC) examine these situations for comment. At its March 26.1998 meeting, the TSC unanimously
voted to adopt the recommendations reflected in the proposed ordinance by the City of Folsom.

On March 9, T999, City Council approved the First Reading of Ordinance No, 905 repealing and

reenacting Chapter 12.20 of the Folsorn Municipal Code governing encroachments on public
property, City Council comments made at the First Reading ltave been incorporated into the
proposed ordinance.

ANALYSIS

Code Enforcement Officers have received complaints regarding myriad surface encroachments, such

as landscaping bark and gravel dumped in the street and left for months, umbilicals crossing

sidewalks connecting recreational vehicles to.homesr.portable toilets placed on the sidewalks in.front
of occupied lromes during build-out of adjacent developments, shrubs taking overthe sidewalks, and

basketball stands Ieft unattended, blocking the street and/or sidewalk, eto. In other instanoes,

conhactor's equipment, in accessing private property fi'orn the public right-of-way, has damaged

City owned and maintained curbs, gutters, and sidewalks.

In the past, Code Enforcement has sent a letter advising those responsible that they are violating
Section 647c of the California Penal Code, "Obstruction of street, sidewalk or other place open to
public." However, because there are not specific prohibitions contained in the Folsot4.Mqpicipal

Code, the City has not been able to impose administrative sanctions in lieu of filing a civil nuisance

action or seeking criminal prosecution. Adoption of the proposed ordinance will enhance the Ctty's
ability to eliminate dangerous and/or unsightly encroachments on public ploperty. The revised

ordinance will also assist staff in protecting public infrastructure,
j1905d2

Page 101

10/13/2020 Item No.9.



Materials left unattended in the street cause a potential traffic hazard, and interfere with the pickup

of refuse containers and street sweeping. Leaving any materials on sidewalks also represents a

traffic hazard since people are forced to walk into the street to get around the obstacles. Damaging

the infrastructure also places undue financial and maintenance burdens on the City and its resources.

Accidents resulting from such damage that involve motorists and/or pedestrians could also increase

the City's exposure to liability.

At an earlier presentation of this revised ordinance before the City Council in October 1998, there

was concern with the impact the proposed revision might have on existing encroachments,

particulady those inthe Historic District. Subsequently, the City Council directed staffto reexamine

the proposed revised ordinance to address existing encroachments in the Historic District. Staff,

working with *re Assistant City Attomey, has developed proposed wording (Section 12.20.A4q that

under certain conditions "grandfathers" existing encroachments in the Historic District as well as

elsewhere in the City. These type of encroachments are permitted until such time as the City

determines that the encroachment presents ahazatd,public nuisance, or restricts access to or use of
public property.

A.TTACHMENT

Ordinance No. 905 - An Ordinance Repealing and Reenacting Chapter 12.20 of the Folsom

Municioal Code Governing Encroachments on Public Property (Second Reading)

RECOMMENDATIOI$S - CITY COUNCIL ACTION

The Public Works and the Planning, Inspections, and Permitting Departments recommend that the

City Council pass and adopt Ordinance No. 905 * An Ordinance Repealing and Reenacting Chapter

e.2A of the Folsgm Muricio,el Code Goveming Encroachments on Public Property (Second

Reading).

Respectfully tted,

w Public Worls Director

A. Storer, Inspections, and Permitting Director

?

j19o5d2
Page 102

10/13/2020 Item No.9.



ORDINANCE NO.9O5

AII ORDINANCE REPEALING AND REENACTING CTIAPTER 12.20

OF TI{E TOLSOM MTTNICIPAL. CQPE GOVSRNING
ENCROACTIMENTS ON PUBLIC PROPERTY

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COIJNCIL OF' THE CITY OF FOLSOM AS

FOLLOWS:

$ECTION 1 PURPOSE

The purpose of this ordinance is to repeai and reenact Chapter 12.20 of the Folsom Muqicipal Code

pertaining to encroachments on public property'

SpCTION ? Chapter 12.20 is hereby repealed in its entirety and reenacted as follows:

12.20

Use o-f Ci[v ProP.erfY

M:
t2,20,010
n.za.020
12.20.030
72.20.A40
12.20.054
t2.20.060
12.20,074
12.20.080
12.20.090
12.20.100
12.20.114
12.20.124
12.20,n4
n.za.r40
12.20.150
12.20:t60
12.20.170
n.za.180
n.za.t90
12.20.200
12.20.210
12.20220
12.20.230
12.20.240
t2.20.2s0
12.20,260
t2.20.270
n.za.280

Short Title.
Definitions.
Purpose and Intent'
Encro achment Permit Required.

Encroachment Permit Required Related to Swimming Pool Construction.

Encroachment Permit Required Related to Building Construction.

Utility Permits.
Relocation or Removal of Encroachment.

Application.
Permit Fees.

V/ork Requirements.
Liability.
Performance DePosits'

Protection Measures and Routing of Traffic.

Clearance of Vital Structures.

Relocation alrd Protection of Utilities.
Abandonment of Facilities.
Care of Excavated Material.
Clean-up.
Protection of Water Courses'

Prompt ComPletion of Work'

Urgent Work.
EmergencY Action.
Preservation of Monuments.

Inspections, Rules, Regulations.

Revoking of Permit,

Appeal.
Action After Expiration of Permit Unlawful.

j1905d2 Page 103

10/13/2020 Item No.9.



t2.20,290
12.2As00
t2.203r4
12.20320

Removal Required When*Notice'
Enforcement.
Penalties,
Enforcement Procedures; Notice to Correct.

IZ.Z0,0\0 Short.Iitle. This Ordinance shall be known and may be cited as the
..Encroachment Ordinance as Pertaining to Public Property of the City of Folsom-"

12.20.020 Deflfritiqns. For the purposes of this Ordinance, the following terms,

phrases, words and their derivations shall have the meaning given herein.

A. "Administative Authority" shall mean the City Manager of the City of Folsom or his

duly delegated rePresentative.

B. "Construction Standards" shall mean the most current edition of the Standard

Construction Specifications of the City of Folsom'

C. ',Encroachment" shali mean going upon, over, or under public property, or placing

any facility upon, along, across, over, or under public properly, or using any public property in such

a manner as to prevenl obstruct or interfere with the use of that public property. Encroachments

include, but are not limited to buildings, fences, sports equipment not in use, signs, trees, plants,

underground facilities, and construction and landscape material or any excavations on public

property

D. "Excavation" shail mean any opening under, i4 or across the surface of public

properly made in any manner whatsoever, except an opening into a lawful structure below the

suriace of public proierty, the top of which is flush with the adjoining surface and so constructed

as to permit frequent openings without injury or damage to the public proper1y'

E. "Facility" shall mean any pipe, pipeline, tube, hose, main, service, trap, vent, vault,

manhole, meter, gupg", tagulator, Valve, conduit, rvbe, tower, pole, pOle line, anchOr, Cable, junctiOn

box, transformo, oi*y other material, structure, public improvement, or object of any kind or

character, including a blilding, portion of a building, or any other structure, whether enumerated

herein or no! which is or may bl ta*nlty constructed, used, operated, left, placed, or maintained

in, upon, along, across, under, or over any public properly'

F. .'permit" shall mean encroachment/excavation permit as refened to in this Chapter.

G. "person" shall mean any person, firm, parhership, association, corporatio& oompany,

or organization of anY kind.

H. ,,plans" shall mean those drawings prepared by an appropriately licensed professional

engineer.

L "public Property" shall mean any public street, roadway, place, alley, sidewalk,

parkway, square, plazareasemint, right-of-way, or any other similar public property dedicated to

public use.

i. ',Sketch', shall mean a drarving that shows a concept or location of facilities'

jre05d2 Page 104

10/13/2020 Item No.9.



. K. "Subsfucture" shail mean any pipe, conduit, duct, tunnel, buried cable or wire, or any

other similar structure located below the surface of any public property.

L. "Utility" shall mean a private company and/or corporation operating under regulation

of the Public Utilities Commission, or mruricipaUcounty departrnent or other governmental agency

engaged in providing a particular service to the general public'

12,20,03.9 Purpose and-lfrtent. The pwpose of this Ordinance is to establish

regulations to control encroachments into public property by requiring Encroachment Permits and

to establish measures for the proteotion of life and property, including traffic and pedestrian

safeguards. Additionally, this Ordinance defines construction standards, prescribes application

pror.d*"r for Encroachment Permit issuance, establishes bonding and liabilify requirements and

prescribes penalties for violations of its provisions,

l?.20.0+0 Encrqach$ent Permit Required. It is unlawful for any person to place,

erect oi maintain, or to permit the piacement, erection, maintenance or existence of any

encroachment upon, over or under any public property without an Encroachment Permit wittr the

following exceptions:

A. Existing cornices, eaves, porticos and overharrgs within the Historic District, as

defined in Chapter 17.52of theFolsom Municipal Code'

B, Any eisting encroachments in the City on the effective date of this ordinance, until

such time as repairs/refurbishments effecting 50 percent or more of the encroaohing

structure's value and/or size are accomplished. At that time an encroachment permit

shall be obtained.

Encroachments maintained in the public right of way prior to the effective date of this ordinance may

remain in the public right of way until such time as the Administrative Authority determines that the

encroachmeni presenti ahazard, public nuisance or restriction to access or use of Administrative

Authority o*tr.d property. At such time the City shall direct removal of such encroachment at the

sole expense of the current owner of said encroachment'

12,20.p50 Encro.eclune{rt Permit Required Relate-d to Swimming Pool Co4structign.

prior to the commencernent of any excavation associated with construction of a swimming pool,

where excavation or other equipment, including but not limited to high lifts, front end loaders, dump

trucks, forklifts, bobcats, skip ioad"tr, and tractors, will traverse existing sidewalks or other public

improvements, an Encroachment Permit shall be obtained'

12.20.069 Encroachment PermitRequired Reiated to Building Construction. Prior to the

commencernent of construction of a new building or for additions to existing buildings, where

construction or other equipment, including but not limited to high lifts, front end loaders, dump

trucks, forklifts, bobcats, skip loaders, and tractors, will traverse existing sidewalks or other public

improvements, an Encroachment Permit shall be obtained'

l?.20.07,0 Utilitv_Permits. The Administrative Authority may issue Utility Permits to

a utility to rnake excavations for the location of trouble in conduits or pipes, for making repairs

thereto, or for emergency pwposes. Utility Permits shall be issued on a yearly basis ottly, and will

authorize excavation only as stated above. Utility Permits shall not be issued for installation of new

facilities,

jreosd2 Page 105

10/13/2020 Item No.9.



. 1.2.20.0.g0 Reloqation or Regr.qval of, Encfoachr4ent. When any encroachment

autlrorizid hereunder t founa m Ue in conflict with the use of public property or existing or proposed

facilities owned, maintained, or operated by the City, such encroachment shall, upon written notice

by the City, be ielocated in such a way as to eliminate the conflict, said relocation to be at the sols

.*p.rr* of the permittee. if the Permittee fails to comply with said written notice within a

reasonable period of time, the City may cause such relocation of the encroachment at the expense

of the Permittee.

I2.?0.0g0 Application. A. An application form, provided by the Administrative

euthority, rnul6e suUmitteo before any Encroaohment Permit is issued. The application shall

contain the following information:

the name, address, and telephone number of the applicant

the purpose of the proposed encroaohment

the location and dimensions of the proposed encroachment

the approximate date on which construction is proposed to begin, if applicabie

the approximate duration of the construction

the name and contractors license number of the person performing the construction

plans or sketches necessary to describe the construction

the disposal site for material to be removed from the site

the signature of the aPPlicant

acknowledgment by the applicant that insurance, indemnification and performance

securiry requirements must be satisfied prior to a Permit being issued

B. Upon review of the application, the Administrative Authority may impose conditions

on the perrnit, in order to insure the safety of the public and to protect and preserve the public

piop"rfy. If the Administrative Authority denies the application, written notice shall be provided

to the applicant.

C. The permit, if issued, will be prepared and issued when fees have been paid,

insurance documents and performance security have been reviewed and accepted, and the applicant

has signed the Permit.

D. Each permit shall state a time when all the work to be done thersunder shall be

completed. The Administrative Authority may grant extensions of time, provided satisfactory

."usont therefor are presented by the applicant'

l2:2_q.100 peimit,FOes. The Administrative Authority shall collect a permit fee to

cover the cost in",rrr.d ny tttr City. Recoverable costs include administrative expenses involved in

the issuance of an Encioachment Permit, checking plans for compliance with this and other

ordinances, and field inspections conducted to insure compliance with the terms and conditions

,nder which the Encroaohment Permit was issued. Fee sohedules shall be established by Resolution

of the City Council.

12.20.i10 W"ork-Requirements. All encroaohment work shal1 be performed in

accordance *ith ,ooditionr rp..ified in the Encroachment Permit, the Standard Construction

Specifications of the City of Folsom, and according to the plans and specifications refened to inthe

Permit.

(1)

Q)
(3)
(4)
(5)
(6)
(7)
(8)
(e)
(10)

jl905d2 Page 106

10/13/2020 Item No.9.



. l?,20.120 LiabiliW. Permittee shall defend, indemniff and save harmless City

lirr"tuaiffi-ir ortrrrr, uffiffiployees, and representatives) and each of them' of and from any

and all claims, a.**J., r"uilr, L*.t of utiion, damages, costs' expenses, lo-sses or iiabilify, in lalv

orin equity, of 
"uery 

kilrd and nature whatsoever ("Claims") arising out of or in connection with

prr*itt."'r work to be performed under the Encroachment Permit.

The above paragraph shall be stated on all Enmoachment Permits'

The Administrative Authority may require in all circumstances where he/she deems it

appropriate that the permittee procure ani maintain in force insurance covering the City' The

amounts and tenns of such inswance coverage shall be consistent with the provisions set forth in the

Standard Construction Specifications'

IZ.ZOjr.la perfor,mance Deposits. Permittee shall provide a cash deposit, surety bond,

orothersecurity""."@amountdeterminedbytheAdministrativeAuthority
as sufficient to reimbLse the City for the costs of restoring the public properly to its original

condition in the event Permittee fails to do so'

1?.2Q.140 Prolection Measures a{.rd Rgutirrg qf Tlaffrc. It shall !t th duty of every

person *a.ttuf.iog *y r"oou.t**t, io place and maintain baniers and waming devices necessary

for safety ofthe general Public'

For excavations over five (5) feet in depth, blasting operations, and tunneling work, the

permittee shall, when required by ia-w, obtain a Permit from the califomia Division of Industrial

Safety and/or any other Permit required by State or Federal safety regulations'

Barriers, signs, lights, etc., shall conform to the requirements of the "Manual of Warning

Signs, Lights, *A beui;t for Use in Performance of Work Upon Highways," issued by the State

of California, Department of Transportation, and to any additional requirements specified by the

Administrative AuthoritY.

permittee shall take appropriate measures to assure that during the performance.of

construction work on streets, traffic conditions as near normal as practicable shall be maintained at

all times ,o u* to *inimize'inconvenience to the occupants of the adjoining property and to the

general public, Fermittee shall conform to the requirements of the standard construction

Specifications.

When traffic conditions permit, the Administrative Authority may by written approval,

permit ttre.ctosinf o-f streetS ana ailgf,l io alf tqaffic foJ a period of time prescribed by him or her'

The wrirten "pp;";';i 
t6. aoministrative Authoii* may require that the Permittee proVide

approved a.to*, *Jgiv";otlfication to various pubiic ageniies and to the general public' In such

."*r, the written apptval shal1 not be valid 
'ntil 

notice is given'

IZ.ZLJSA Clearance For Yitgi Structure-s. The encroachment shall be performed and

conducted so as ti oot **o*uty intrrf.r. with access to fire hydrants, fire stations, ftre escapes,

water gates, *o.igro*J vu',rlts, valve housing structures, and all other vital equipment designated

by the Administrative AuthoritY'

12.20.1$0 Relocatign ar,rd Protectigr.r of ulilities. Permittee shall inform themselves as

to the existence ;d lo!-]ion of ull facilities likely to be encountered by their operations.

jr905d2 Page 107

10/13/2020 Item No.9.



. Unless the law otherwise provides, relocation of an existing facility shall be performed in

accordance with a plan approvedty the owner. No facility owned by the City shall be moved to

accommodate the permittle unless the cost of such work be bome by the Permittee and is approved

by the CitY.

All facilities affected by any excavation or other construction work sha1l be supported and

protected by the permittee with methods approved by the owner of the facility. Should an existing

facility be OamagJ by the Permittee's oferations, and f,9r 
this pr'pgse pi'e-coating or other

encasement or devices are to be consideredas part of a facility, the Permittee shall promptly notify

the owner of the damaged facility. All facilitiei damaged by Permittee's operations shall be repaired

as directed by the o*o", and the expense of such repairs shall be charged to the Permittee.

12.20.170 Abandogment of Eacilities. Whenever a facility is abandoned, except the

abandonment of servio" fi* a.signed to serve single properties, the person owning, using,

controlling, or having an interest therein, shall file with the Administative Authority a drawing or

written statement indJing, in detail, the location of the facility so abandoned. At the time of such

abandonment, the Administrative Authority may determine what portion, if any, of the abandoned

facility shall be removed or otherwise treated'

Whenever a driveway approach is abandoned, or can no longer be justified by the use made

of the abutting p*p"ttJ, tft ai*inistrative Authority may require removal of any associated

driveway, apron, o, 
"*u 

depression, and restoration of any existing curb, gutter, or sidewalk across

the driveway width.

12.20.1g0 Qareof ExcavatedMeterial. A. The Administrative Authority may

require tt . p*itt.e to haul away any eicavated material and the Permittee shall be responsible for

securing any necessury aisposat siies. In addition, the Permittee shall anticipate, and make

provisions for abatement of, dust and dirt nuisances resulting from its operations' All excavated

material shall be rto*pif"a, disposed o[ and all clean-up performed in away that conforms to Local'

State, and National pollution control regulations'

B. Whenever permittee is hauling away material from the encroachment site, proof of proper

disposal shall be ,"qui."a by the Administrative Authority prior to final inspection or retum of

security.

12_?0.1?q elean-gp. As the permitted work progresses, all public properties shall be

thoroughly cleaned oruffiuiitt, earth, rock, and other debris resulting from the work. All clean'up

operations at the location of the encroachment shall be accornplished at the expense of the Permittee

to the satisfaction of the Administrative Authority'

1Z.Z0.Z0A protectign of Water Cqurses. The Pennittee shall provide and maintain

adequate waterways foGitotpG *"*t; including stormwater, run'offpumped from excavations'

n*hirrg*, o,. orh", *xer resuiting from Permittee's operations. All water leaving the site shall

conform to National pollution Discharge Elimination System and Local, State and Federal laws and

regulations regarding pollution prevention

12.20.210. p.ror.npt Cotnpletion of Work, After a project is commenced, the Permittee

shall diligently pwsue all work covered by the Encroachment Permit, promptly complete all work,

and restore the public property, as neff as practicable, to its original condition to avoid obstructing

the public prop".ry more than is reasonably necessary'

jl905d2 Page 108

10/13/2020 Item No.9.



IZ,ZL.LZ| Urgpnt.Wo.rk. When, in the judgement of the Administrative Authority, the

safety oiI-*-*irnr" oith" puulic or the public interest requires that encroachment work be

performed * .*.rg-*.V *o.f., the Administiative Authority shall have full power to order, at the

time the permit i, it*i"a, thaian adequate size crew and adequate facilities be employed by the

permittee twenty_fiur (24) hours a day to the end that such work may be compreted as soon as

practicable.

1Z,Z0.Z30 Er4ergency A.,ctio,rl. Nothing in this Ordinance shall be construed to prevent

the making of .*ruuutiliil@*.for*ance of work necessary for the preservation of life or

property, or for the location of trouble in conduit or pipe, or flor making repairs, provided that the

person undertaking ,,.ri *ort shall apply to the Adminishative Authority for a Permit on the first

working day after the work is commenced'

t2.2p.2.40PrqservatiqnofM9rtr+menJs'Nomgnumentsetforthepurposeoflooating
o, pr.rffi th" lines ofany street, property or subdivision, including precise survey reference

points or pennanent survey Lench **ti within the City, shall be removed or disturbed by any

person who has not first obiained written permission&om the Administative Authority. Permission

to remove, distub, or replace *ono*rnt shall only be granted upon the condition that the femoval'

disturbance o, ,.piur"*int of any monument be done under the supervision of a registered engineer

or lioensed land surveyor. Any expenses incurred by the Administrative Authoriry for the proper

replacement of monuments shall be paid by the Permittee'

IZ,ZL4ilA Inspections. Rules. Resglatigns. The Administrative Authority shall make

inrprrt[ilIi-d rhall establish *t"u *o iegulations reasonably necessary to enforce and carry out

the intent of this Ordinance.

12.29.260 Revoking pf ppnnit. This ordinance empowers the Administrative Authority

with the right to ,*ot ffiT*"*it ror good and sufficient cause' including violation of any

provision of the fpisor,n l\iu*"iput Cod; or non-compliance with any Encroachment Permit

condition,

lZ,Z-0.?70 Appeal, A. In the event the application for the permit is denied in whole

or in part or the-.ondiffi* imposed by the Administrative Authority are unacceptable to the

applicant, trr. uppti.unt *uy uppeut his iecision to the city Council within 10 days of receiving

notice of the decision,

B. Appeals shall be in witing, shall slate the specific reasons therefor and grounds '

asserted for reti*fi'anJurr*t t. filed with tf," city clerk within 10 calendar days after the date of the

action being uppr"r.J. If an appeal is not filed within the time or in the manner prescribed above,

the right to review of the action against which the complaint is made shall be deemed to have bsen

waived.

IZ.?O.Zil} Action aftSr.expiration of permit pnlawful. It is unlawful for a person to

place, erect or *uirrtuin * to p"ttit the placement, erection, maintenance or existence of any

encroachment after his or her permit has expired or after his or her permit has been revoked and the

time specified inthe notice from the city clerk for removal of the same has expired'

\2.20.?90 B.e$oval required w"hen-Noti9p. Any psrson whose property encroaches in

any manner upor,, our, * under any publi; property who has not obtained a permit for the placing'

jl905d2 Page 109

10/13/2020 Item No.9.



erection and/or maintenance of such encroachment, shall remove the same after written notice by

the City demanding removal. Notice of removal shall be by certified mail addressed to the post

office address of the owner or occupant of the premises where the encroachment exists, by personal

service of such notice upon the owner or occupant, or by posting the notice on the premises' The

time required for tlre removal of the encroachment shall be specified in the Notice, and shail be a

,.uronubl" time consid.ering danger, risk and size ofjob"

Iz.z03a0 Enforcement. A. This Chapter shall be enforced prusuant to the provisions

of Cf,upt"ts t.OS-1.10, inciusive, of Title I of theFolsomMunicipal Code'

B. The Administrative Authority shall enforce the provisions of this Chapter.

12.20.310 penalties. A. A violation of this Chapter shalt be an administrative violation

as defined in Section I ^0g^020 
of Chapter 1.08, Title 1 of the Fols.qrn Municipal Qode.

B. Each of the sanctions for administrative violations identified in Section 1.09.013 of

Chapter 1.09, Title 1 of the Folsom Municipal -code shall be available for enforcement of the

provisions of this ChaPter'

C. Based upon the criteria for the imposition of administrative sanctions set forth in

section 1.09.014 of 
-hapter 

1.09, Title 1 of theFolsomMpnicipal codp, aviolationofthis Chapter

shall be deemed u l,.urin violation, as that term is described in Section 1.09.012 of Chapter 1.09'

Title I of the Folsom Municipal code. The range of monetary sanctions available for a violation

of this chapter shall be as set forth in section 1.09.012(4)4.

12.20.32Q. Enforgement, Progeduresl No,tice to Ab.4telcor-r9ct' A' Prior to the

,urp.nr[i, ,.u*utiorr, orlilu-hTffi li.tnt. ot permit, or the assessment of any fee, penalty' or

chatge, or the courmencement of any other enforcement action pursuant to this chapter'

Administratirr" euit oiiry shall follow the procedures set forth in Sections 1.09.020-1'09'048'

inclusive, of chapter 1.0"g of ritle I of the I'plsqrn Municipal code. The rights to judicial review

set forth in sections 1.09.050-1.09.059, incrusive, of chapter r.09 of ritle 1 of the Folsgm

Mpnicipal Code shall aPPlY.

B. A Notice to Abate/Correct shall be served in accordance with the provisions of

Section 1.09.023 of chapter 1.09,Title l of theFQlsogrMunicipdcode' Thetimetocorrectany

violation of a provisio" oi,rtir chapter shall be a reasonable time as specified by the Administrative

Authority, dep"nding upon the type of encroachment, risk to the public property, and risk to tho

general pubiic. purJuant to section 1.09.024(A) of chapter 1,09, Title 1 of the Folsom Municipal

Code, a Notice orRa*ioistrative Violation shali be served in accordance with the provisions of

Section 1.0g.027 of Chapter 1.09, Title 1 of the folsom Mqnicipal Code'

SECTIOI3 SCOP.E

Except as set forth in this ordinance, all other provisions of Title 12 shall remain in fulI force and

effect.

$pgTIoN4 SIqVERABILITY

Ifany section, subsection, clause, phrase, or portion ofthis ordinance is for any reason held to be

invalid o, *ronrtitutionuiuv ttre iecision of any court of competentjurisdiction, such decision shall

jreosd2 Page 110

10/13/2020 Item No.9.



not affect the validity of the remaining portions of this ordinance. The city council hereby declares

that it would have adopted this ordinance and each section, subsection, sentence, clause, phrase or

portion thereof, irr.rpJ"ii"" 
"i,rr" 

fact that any one or more sections, subsections, clauses, phrases

fr portions be declared invalid or unconstitutional'

SECTION 5 EI'FECTIVE DATE

This ordinance shail become effective thfuty (30) davs frol and after its passage and adoption,

pr""ii;Jiilrliifirr..a in tu1Iwithinfwenry iiol'aays after its adoption inanewspaper of general

circulation inthe CitY of Folsom'

This
on

ordinance was introduced and the titie thereof read at the regular meeting of the CitY Council

and by unanimous vote of the Council Members present, further reading

was waived.

On a motion bY Council Mernber seconded bY Council Member

the foregoing ordinance was Passed and adoptedby the CitY Council of

the City of Folsom, State of California, this daY of 1999, by the

following roll call vote:

AYES: Council Member(s)

NOES: Council Member(s)

ABSENT: Council Member(s)

ABSTAIN: CotxrcilMember(s)

MAYOR

ATTEST:

CITY CLERK

jl905d2 Page 111

10/13/2020 Item No.9.



This page is intentionally left blank.

Page 112

10/13/2020 Item No.9.



Book 2 Page 68

Folsom Public Financing Authority
December 10,2079

Meetinq Minutes

Joint Gitv Council / Successor Aqencv / Public Financins Authoritv Special Meetinq /
Folsom South of 50 Parkins Authoritv / Folsom Ranch Financinq Authoritv Meetins

December 10. 2019

The joint City Council / Successor Agency / Public Financing Authority Special Meeting /
Folsom South of 50 Parking Authority / Folsom Ranch Financing Authority meeting was called
to order at 8:29 p.m. in City Council Chambers, 50 Natoma Street, Folsom, California, with
Mayor Kerri Howell presiding.

CONVENE JOINT CITY COUNCIL / SUCCESSOR AGENCY / PUBLIC FINANCING
AUTHORITY SPECIAL MEETING / FOLSOM SOUTH OF 50 PARKING AUTHORITY /
FOLSOM RANGH FINANCING AUTHORITY:

CALL TO ORDER:

The joint City Council / Successor Agency / Public Financing Authority / Folsom South of 50
Parking Authority / Folsom Ranch Financing Authority meeting was called to order at 8:29 p.m.
in City Council Chambers, 50 Natoma Street, Folsom, California, with Mayor Kerri Howell
presiding.

ROLL GALL:

Council Members
Present: Sarah Aquino, Vice Mayor

Roger Gaylord, Council Member
Ernie Sheldon, Council Member
Mike Kozlowski, Council Member
Kerri Howell, Mayor

Council Members Absent: None

Staff Present: City Manager Elaine Andersen
Assistant City Manager Jim Francis
City Attorney Steve Wang
City Clerk Christa Freemantle
Finance Director Stacey Tamagni
Community Development Director Pam Johns
Public Works Director Dave Nugen

DRAFT - Not fficial until approved by the Folsom Public Financing AuthorityPage 113

10/13/2020 Item No.10.



Book 2 Page 69

Folsom Public Financing Authority
Decembet 70,2019

Consent Calendar:

gb(i). Approval of the October 8, 2019 Joint City Council/Successor Agency/Public Financing
Authority/Folsom South of 50 Parking Authority/Folsom Ranch Financing Authority
Special Meeting Minutes

gb(ii). Approval of the November 12, 2019 Joint City Council/Folsom Ranch Financing
Authority Special Meeting Minutes

gb(iii). Receive and File the City of Folsom, the Folsom Redevelopment Successor Agency,
the Folsom Public Financing Authority, the South of 50 Parking Authority, and the
Folsom Ranch Financing Authority Monthly Investment Reports for the Month of
September 2019

Motion by Council Member Roger Gaylord, second by Vice Mayor Sarah Aquino to
approve the Consent Calendar. Motion carried with the following roll call vote:

AYES: Council Member(s): Aquino, Gaylord, Kozlowski, Sheldon, Howell
NOES: Council Member(s): None
ABSENT: Council Member(s): None
ABSTAIN: Gouncil Member(s): None

Adiournment

There being no further business to come before the Folsom City Council, the joint City
Council / Successor Agency / Public Financing Authority / Folsom South of 50 Parking
Authority / Folsom Ranch Financing Authority meeting was adjourned at 8:31 p.m.

PREPARED AND SUBMITTED BY:

Christa Freemantle, City Clerk/Board Secretary

ATTEST

Kerri Howell, Mayor/Board Chair

DRAFT - Not fficial until approved by the Folsom Public Financing AuthorityPage 114

10/13/2020 Item No.10.



Folsom City Council
Staff

MEETING DATE: 1011312020

AGENDA SECTION: Consent Calendar

SUBJECT: Receive and File the City of Folsom, the Folsom Redevelopment
Successor Agency, the Folsom Public Financing Authority, the
Folsom Ranch Financing Authority, and the South of 50 Parking
Authority Monthly Investment Reports for the Month of June

2020

F'ROM: Finance Department

RECOMMENDATION / CITY COUNCIL ACTION

The Finance Department recommends that the City Council receive and file the City of Folsom,
the Folsom Redevelopment Successor Agency, the Folsom Public Financing Authority, the
Folsom Ranch Financing Authority, and the South of 50 Parking Authority monthly
Investment Reports for the month of June 2020.

BACKGROUND / ISSUE

Under the Charter of the City of Folsom and the authority granted by the City Council, the
Finance Director is responsible for investing the unexpended cash of the City Treasury. The
primary objectives of the City's investment policy are to maintain the safety of investment
principal, provide liquidity to meet the short and long-term cash flow needs of the City, and
earn a market-average yield on investments. The City's portfolio is managed in a manner
responsive to the public trust and is consistent with state and local laws and the City's
investment policy. The Finance Department hereby submits the investment reports for the
City of Folsom, the Folsom Redevelopment Successor Agency, the Folsom Public Financing
Authority, the South of 50 Parking Authority, and the Folsom Ranch Financing Authority for
the month of June 2020.

1

Page 115

10/13/2020 Item No.11.



POLICY / RULE

l. Section 3.30.010(a) of the Folsom Municipal Code states "the term 'city' shall
encompass the city of Folsom, the Folsom community redevelopment agency, and all
other agencies and instrumentalities of the city under either the direct or indirect control
of the city council, and this chapter regulates the investment of all moneys of those

agencies."

2. Section 3.30.030(0 of the Folsom Municipal Code states that "the city's chief
investment officer shall each month submit an investment report to the city council,
which report shall include all required elements as prescribed by California
Government code section 53646."

3. California Government Code, Sections 53601 through 53659 sets forth the state law
goveming investments for municipal governments in California.

4. Section 3.30.020(9) of the Folsom Municipal Code states that"all city cash shall be

consolidated into one general bank account as set out in this code and invested on a
pooled concept basis. Interest earnings shall be allocated to all city funds and subfunds

according to fund and subfund cash and investment balance on at least a quarterly
basis."

ANALYSIS

Overview
The City has diversified investments in accordance with the City Investment Policy and

Government Code. The City of Folsom's total cash and investments are invested on a pooled
basis as required by the Folsom Municipal Code.

The Portfolio Summary of the City's current report includes a ooPooled Equity Section"
identifuing the Redevelopment Successor Agency's (RDSA) and Folsom Public Financing
Authority's (FPFA) portion of the investment pool. The RDSA and FPFA list these amounts

under "Cash" in their respective sections. Currently, the Folsom Ranch Financing Authority
(FRFA) has no funds invested in Pooled Equity.

City of Folsom

Total Cash and Investments
The following graph illustrates the City's monthly cash and investment balances for fiscal
years20l6 through 2020. Monthly fluctuations in cash and investments are the result oftypical
receipt of revenues less expenditures for operations, debt service, and capital improvements.
As of June 30, 2020, the City's cash and investments totaled $156,766,206; an increase of
515,203,766 (II%) from June 30,2020.

2
Page 116

10/13/2020 Item No.11.



City of Folsom Total Cash and Investments
(Fiscal Year)

2015/16 +201.6/L7 +2OI7h8 +20I8/I9 
-20L9/20

AUGJUL
Sros

s14s

Srzs

s10s

$ss

s6s

e

Ps ocr NOV DEC JAN FEB MAR APR vnv i turrr

The following chart shows the City's monthly cash and investment balances and percentage
change for Fiscal Year 2019-20 along with the yearly dollar and percentage changes.

Total City Cash and Investments

Monthly
2019-20 Change 2018-19

Monthly
Change

Yearly $
Change

Yearly oh

Change

Jul
Aug
Sep

Oct
Nov
Dec

Jan
Feb

Mar
Apr
May
Jun

$ 133,948,255

$ 129,657,395

$ 121,952,538

$ 122,996,173

$ 121,112,560

$ 132,661,948

$ 145,156,622

$ 146,494,239

s 139,814,364

$ 146,903,587

$ 156,511,919

$ 156,766,206

$ I l9,l 84,5 l9
$ 111,476,371

$ 107,672,166

$ 106,928,144

$ 101,854,232

$ I I1,671,000

$ 108,415,002

$ 121,032,339

$ 118,761,692

$ 127,305,933

$ 141,756,814

$ 141,562,440

$ 14,763,736

$ 18,181,024

$ 14,280,372

$ 16,068,029

$ 19,258,329

$ 20,990,948

$ 36,741,620

$ 25,461,900

s 21,052,672

s 19,597,654

s 14,755,104

$ 15,203,766

-3%

-6%

1%

-2%

10%

9%

1%

-5%

5%

7%

0%

-6%
-3%

-t%
-5%

l0%
-3%

12%

-2%

7%

1t%
0%

12%

16%

13%

t5%
t9%
t9%
34%

2t%
18%

1s%

l0%
t1%

The City's projected cash needs for the next six months are sufficiently provided for by
anticipated revenues and the liquidity of its cash and investments. In addition, in accordance
with Section3.30.020(c) of the Municipal Code, less than 50o/o of the City's total cash is
invested for a period longer than one year.

J
Page 117

10/13/2020 Item No.11.



To Maturity as of June 30, 2020

2-3 Yrs

18,970,390
11.496

3-4 Yrs

6,059,060

4-5 Yrs

4503,373

1-2 Yrs

16,436,930

0 Days

23,558,058
L4j%

184-365
11,800,099

7.L%

2-183 Days

10,163,965
6.1%

X Day
75,394,977

45,2%

Investment Performance
The City's Portfolio Management Summary report for the month of June 2020 is presented in
attachment 1 to this report. Portfolio investment earnings (including pooled equity earnings

for the RDSA and FPFA) for the three-month quarter ending June 30, 2020 totaled$725,447.
The total rate of return of the investment portfolio for the same period was 1.82%.

The following graph illustrates the total dollar amount and allocation percentages for June 30,

2019 and June 30, 2020. The percentages in this graph are based on book value.

4
Page 118

10/13/2020 Item No.11.



City of Folsom Portfolio Allocation

$100,000,000

$90,000,000

$80.000,000

$70,000,000

$60,000,000

$50,000,000

$40,000,000

$30,000,000

$20,000,000

$10.000.000

$-
Cash -

Checking
Money Market Local

Govemment
lnvestment

Pool

Commercial Certificates of corporate US Agencies
Paper Deposit Bonds

Municipal
Bonds

tsJune 30, 2019 City Portfolio lJune 30, 2020 City Portfolio

azia%

15,7''4

9.37%
6.Ur.r

r52:a l.!c% UEEA

A detailed listing of the portfolio holdings as of June 30 , 2020 is included in Attachm ent 2 to
this report.

The Local Government Investment Pool (LAIF) yield typically moves in the same direction as

market yields, but is less volatile, lagging somewhat behind market moves. This can be seen

in the chart on the next page, illustrating the historical monthly change in yield from July 2017
through lune2020 for LAIF and two-year US Treasury secwities. The effective rate of return
for the City Portfolio is also included.

The Federal Funds rate reached its post-2008 global economic downturn peak at 2.50o/o in
December 2018. The Federal Open Market Committee (FOMC) began lowering the rate in
July 2019, with three cuts resulting in the Federal Funds rate at I.75% as of December 31,
2019. Due to the Covid-19 pandemic, the FOMC cut rates twice in March, by 50 basis points
on March 3'd, and I%o onMarch 15th. The effect of these rate cuts was to push down borrowing
costs to help consumers and businesses handle the financial challenges posed by the economic
slowdown that has resulted from the pandemic. It is anticipated that the Federal Funds rate

will remain at this effective floor for a considerable period of time, likely until2023 or beyond.

5
Page 119

10/13/2020 Item No.11.



Yield Comparbon

July 2017 - June 2020

3.00%

2.50%

2.00%

150%

1.00%

0,50%

0.00%

t$ e,1 +d.J {r- {$ 1o\ b'g! +d C rtf {t- t$ b'gl +d dtr {r- $t-

+LAIF +2 Yr Trsy +city

A listing of transactions for the fourth quarter of fiscal yeat 2020 is included in Attachment 3
to this report.

Folsom Redevelopment S uccessor Agency

Total Cash and Investments
The RDSA had total cash and investments of $10,003,531 as of June 30,2020. This is a
decrease of $255,227 (2%) since June 30,2019. The cash held by the RDSA is comprised of
city-held funds, as well as 20Il bond proceeds to be utilized for housing and non-housing
projects. These proceeds held by the Agency are broken out individually in the Portfolio
Management Summary in Attachment 1.

The following table and graph illustrate the monthly balances and their respective percentage

changes for the reporting period. Monthly fluctuations in cash and investments are the result
of typical receipt of revenues less expenditures for operations, debt service, and capital
improvements.

6
Page 120

10/13/2020 Item No.11.



Fols om Redeve lopment Succes s or Age ncy

Monthly Monthly Yearly $ Yearly %
2019-20 Change 2018-19 Change Change Change

Jul
Aug
Sep

Oct
Nov
Dec
Jan
Feb

Mar
Apr
May
Jun

-29%

0%

0%

0%

50%

0%

-7%

0%

0%

0%

-t%

-2s%

0%

0%

0%

27%

0%

-8%

r%
0%

0%

-2%

-13%

-17%

-17%

-17%

-17%

-2%

-2%

-2%

-2%

-3%
-3%

-2%

$

$

$

$

$

$

$

$

$

$

$

$

10,2s8,949

7,325,874

7,325,990

7,326,077

7,321,623

11,003,048

11,003,290

10,190,327

10,190,508

10,158,753

10,751,289

10,003,531

11,774,675

8,867,880

8,868,071
g,g6g, I g7

8,868,303

17,220,064

11,220,181

10,367,842

10,420,039

10,420,219

10,415,221

10,258,759

$ (1,515,726)

$ (1,542,006)

$ (1,542,080)

$ (1,542,1 lo)
$ (1,546,680)

$ Ql7,0l7)
$ (216,891)

$ (177,514)

s Q29,531)
s Q61,467)
$ Q63,932)
$ Q55,227)

$

$

$

$

$

$

s

$

$

$
t$

$

Folsom Redevelopment SuccessorAgency Total Cash and Investments

$20,000,000

$15,000,000

$10,000,000

$5,000,000

$0
Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov l)ec Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun

tr 2017-18 t2018-19 s20r9-20

The RDSA's projected cash needs for the next six months are sufficiently provided for by
anticipated revenues and the liquidity of its cash and investments.

Investment Performance
The RDSA's Portfolio Management Summary report for the month of June 2020 is presented

in Attachment 1. The RDSA's investment earnings for the three-month quarter ending June

30,2020 totaled $45,787 . The effective rate of return for the RDSA investment portfolio for
the same time period is 1.83%.

7
Page 121

10/13/2020 Item No.11.



Folsom Public Financing Authorily

Total Cash and Investments
The FPFA cash and investments totaled $58,623,180 as of June 30,2020. This is a decrease

of $10,326,274 (15%) from June 30,2019. Monthly fluctuations in cash and investments are

the result of typical receipt of debt service repayment revenues and the subsequent debt service
expenditures. The following table and graph illustrate the monthly balances and their
respective percentage changes for the reporting period.

Folsom Public Financing Authority

2019-20

Monthly
Change 2018-t9

Monthly
Chanse

Yearly $
Chanse

Yearly o/o

Chanse

Jul
Aug
sep
Oct
Nov
Dec
Jan
Feb

Mar
Apr
May
Jun

$ 68,442,988

$ 71,705,665

$ 60,l l2,ll4
$ 60,000,597

$ 60,001,190

$ 60,001,153

$ 60,001,161

$ 60,001,168

$ 60,00l,l30
$ 59,896,891

$ 59,896,893

$ 58,623,180

78,713,643

83,1 58,965

70,072,260

69,965,468

70,948,837

69,973,145

68,764,791

68,884,597

68,793,604

68,524,049

69,033,362

68,949,454

$ (10,270,655)

$ (11,453,300)

$ (9,960,146)

$ (9,964,871)

s (t0,947,647)

$ (9,971,991)

$ (8,763,630)

$ (8,883,429)

s (8,792,474)

$ (8,627,158)

$ (9,136,470)

$ (10,326,274)

5%

-16%

0%

0%

0%

0%

0%

0%

0%

0%

-2%

$

$

$

$

$

$

$

$

$t$

$

$

6%
-16%

0%

l%
-t%
-2%

0%

0%

0%
l%
0%

-13%

-t4%
-t4%
-14%

-ls%
-14%

-13%

-t3%
-13%

-13%
-13%

-15%

Folsom Public Financing Authority Total Cash and Investments

$90,000p00

$80,m0,000

s70,000,000

$60,0oo,ooo

s50,000,000
Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun

tr2017-18 r2018-19 r2019-20

8
Page 122

10/13/2020 Item No.11.



The FPFA's projected cash needs for the next six months are sufficiently provided for by
anticipated revenues and the liquidity of its cash and investments.

Investment Performance
The FPFA's Portfolio Management Summary report for the month of June 2020 is presented
in attachment 1. The FPFA's investment earnings for the three-month quarter ending June 30,
2020 totaled $493,888. The effective rate of return for the FPFA investment portfolio for the
same time period is3.39%.

Folsom Ranch Financing Authority

Total Cash and fnvestments
The FRFA cash and investments totaled $71,540,000 as of June 30, 2020, an increase of
$23,465,000 from the prior year. This increase is due primarily to the issuance of $14,040,000
Community Facilities District No. 19 Local Obligations on August7,2019 and the issuance
of $9,695,000 Community Facilities District No. 21 (White Rock Springs Ranch) Local
Obligations on December 19,2019. The only other activity within FRFA was the maturing of
$270,000 of CFD No. 17 and CFD No. 19 Bonds on September 1,2019.

The Authority's projected cash needs for the next six months are sufficiently provided for by
anticipated revenues and the liquidity of its cash and investments.

Investment Performance
The FMA's Portfolio Management Summary report for the month of June 2020 is presented
in attachment 1. The FRFA's investment earnings for the three-month quarter ending June 30,
2020 totaled $859,395. The effective rate of return for the FRFA investment portfolio for the
same time period is 4.89%.

South of 50 Parking Authority

Total Cash and Investments
The South of 50 Parking Authority cash and investments totaled $0 as of June30,2020,

The Authority's projected cash needs for the next six months are sufficiently provided for by
anticipated revenues and the liquidity of its cash and investments.

Investment Performance
There is no investment activity for the South of 50 Parking Authority.

9
Page 123

10/13/2020 Item No.11.



ATTACHMENTS

1. City of Folsom, Folsom Redevelopment Successor Agency, Folsom Public Financing
Authority, and Folsom Ranch Financing Authority Portfolio Management Summary
June2020

2. City of Folsom Portfolio Holdings as of June 30,2020
3. City of Folsom Transaction Summary, Fourth Quarter of Fiscal Year 2020

Submitted,

Tamagni, Finance Director
Agency Finance Officer
Folsom Public Financing Authority Treasurer
Folsom Ranch Financing Authority Treasurer
South of 50 Parking Authority Treasurer

10
Page 124

10/13/2020 Item No.11.



ATTACHMENT 1

Page 125

10/13/2020 Item No.11.



W
City of Folsom

Combined Gity of Folsom, Redevelopment
Successor Agency, FPFA & FRFA

Portfolio Summaries
June 30,2020

50 Natma St

Folsom, CA 95630

(916) 3s1-3345

lF(on-S6,NII

FEce Amunu Book

Value

ttl.rk.t Days to ACGmd
of Folsom

Caeh

C6rtifi6tr Of OepoBIt

Corporato Bond

FFCB Bond

FHLITC Bond

Looal Gov€mment lnvestment Pool

Money M8.kel

Municipal Bond

Total / Average

t6 ol
Portfollo

0 108%

2.33996

2.710%

2.300%

1 950%

1 465%

0.060%

2,270,136.00

11.342.000.00

22,530,000.00

2,000,000 00

3,000,000 00

92,979.559 80

3,703,27AOO

2,270,138.00

1'1,341,387 50

22,641,070 00

2,000,000.00

3,000,000.00

92,979,559,80

3,703,278.00

2,270,13E.00

11,341,683 00

22,563,122.53

2,000,0m 00

3,000,000 00

92,979,559 80

3,703,278 00

2,270,r38.00

11,768,584.59

22,984,'t71 70

2,00s,690.00

3,014,120.00

92,S79,559 80

3,703,278.00

49,976,46

150,837 12

13,044.45

1'1,93'1 95

1

691

726

446

600

1

1

542

679

r3.50

120
180

55 70

2.22

17 43112 36

t 165,922,118.16 $ 166,848,823.81 S 108,890,792.91 I 12 26t I 434,665.0G

Book %of
Pottfolio

'155,388,651.4r

10,003 ,297 20

't,504,844 30

93.1 oYo

5 S996

0.90%

lntgteat Totsl RrtE

ofRotlrn
City of Folsom Ca6h and lnvoslments (excluding RDSA, FPFA & FRFA amounts)

R€dcv.lopment Su@ssorAgenoy (includ€d in RDSA lnvdtment Rsport)

Public Finenclng Aulhorit (included in PFA lnvegtrnent Report)

Folsom Ranch Financlng Aqthority (included in FRFA lnvestmsnt R6port)

Totrl Pooled Eqult}l 10O.0OY.

$ 3,190,885 28

208,55S.97

2,O75,042.5A

F.oe AmounU Book

Vrlua
M.rtct
Vrl0e

Dayr to Acqrugd
C6t

"h ol
Po,ltollo

C.sh

Non-llolslng 201 1A PGsd6
Housing 20118 Pr@ede
Mmy Mark€t

Tottl , Aveoge

2.898,468.78

2,551,95125

4,512,877 17

2v 15

2,898,468 78

2,591,051 2s

4,512,877 17

2,898,468 78

2,591,551 25

4,512,877 17

234.15

2,898,408 78

2,591,951 25

4,512,877 17

2U.15

1n0%
1 77ogn

1 770%

0 't10%

25.91

45 11

000
.35 10,qt3,531.t5 I {0,003,531.35 I r$

Faco Amuril
Shr6

Book Day! to Accrued %ol
Ytu

1,504,844.30

6,385 16

1,50,1,844.30

6,365 t6

t$arket

Valuo
'r,504,844.30

6,385,.16

,1

2734

Csh
Money Market

Mulcipal gond

Totll tAvsruge

2360%
0 200%

3.384%

2,51

0.0't
02

3.tt8% I 60,tt0t,t30.48

6,3A5 16

130.i18 $ 60,001,130.48 $ 60,001,130.48 184,953.25 100.00

Face AmunU Book liLrket Drys to Accroad %ol
Folsom Ranch Flnancing Authorlty YTll @ GGt sh8rc8 colt value vrtre v.luo Mrturtt IntoErt porttofio
Munlclpdl Bond 4 859% 71,540,000,00 . 71,54O,OOO.OO 71,54O,OOO.OO 71,540.000.00 t94i r8s383 86 ---
Total/Avongc 4.860% I ?t,640,000.00 t 71,r1o,ooo.oo I ?,1,640,000.00 $ zt,Eito,o00.oo zeal f 2sg,6s3.oo 100.00

(
\..-. ji:.-,./|'r
) l" 't

Septemb6.30. 2O2O

Skey Temagnl. Finane oirector Dale

Page 126

10/13/2020 Item No.11.



ATTACHMENT 2

Page 127

10/13/2020 Item No.11.



City of Folsom

Portfolio Holdings
Portfolio Holdings for lnv. Report

Report Format: By Transaction

Portfolio / Report Group: City of Folsom

Group By: Security Type

Average By: Face Amount/ Shares

As of 6/3012020

Descdpdon lrruer Coupon
R.b

Face
Amt/Shrrr

96ot
Poillbllo

Cash

Wells Fa.go Cash Wells Fargo 0.000 zzo,rsa.ool 0.16

Wells Fargo Cash Wells Fargo 0.120 z,ooo,ooo.ool 1.2Q

Sub Total / Average Cash 0.106 2,270,13S.001 1.36

Certmcate Of Deposit

Ally Bank 2 1012612020 Ally Bank 2.000 247,000.00 0.15

Amedcan Express - Centudon2.3 41512021 American Express - Centurion 2.300 247,000.00 0.15

Appalachian Community CU 3.2 212812022 Appalachian Community CU 3.200 245,000.00 0.15

Belmont Savings Bank 2.75 3n412023 Belmont savings Bank 2-750 246,000.0c 0.15

Beneficial Bank 2.15 1011812022 Beneficial Bank 2.150 247,000.0c 0-1 5

BMO Hanis Bank NA 2 1011812023-20 BMO Hanis Bank NA 2.000 248,000.00 0.'t5

BMW Benk 2.1 911512021 BMW Bank 2.100 247,000.00 0.15

Capital One Bank USA NA 2.35 8/26/2020 Capital On€ Bank USA NA 2.350 247,000.00 0.15

Centerstate Bank, NA 1.4 313012022 Centerstate Bank, NA 1.400 248,000.00 0.15

CIT Bank, NA 1.05 312812022 CIT Bank, NA 1.050 248,000,00 0.15

Citibank, NA 2.8 41261202'l Citlbank, NA 2,800 245.000.00 0.'15

Citizens Deposit Bank of Arlington, lnc. 3.1 6/29/ Citizens Deposit Bank of Arlington, lnc. 3.100 246,000,00 0.15

Discover Bank 2.25 211 612022 Discover Bank 2.250 247,000.00 0.15

Easl Boston Savings Bank 2.3 713012021 East Boston Savings Bank 2.300 247,000.00 0.15

Essentlal FCU 3.55 121512023 Essential FCU 3.550 245,000.00 0.15

Farme/s & Merchants Bank3.3 912712023 Farme/s & Merchants Bank 3.300 245,000.00 0.15

First Bank of Highland Park2.2 812312022 First Bank of Highland Park 2.200 247,000.00 0.15

Greenstate Credit Union 1.5 212812022 Greenstate Credlt Union 1.900 249,000.00 0.15

HSBC Bank Slep 1111712O2A48 HSBC Bank 3.'t 0c 245,000.00 0.15

lnvestors Bank 2.1 1212812020 lnvestors Bank 2.100 247,000.00 0.15

Jefferson Financial FCU 2.45 1111012022 Jefferson Financial FCU 2.45C 245,000.00 0.'15

Keesler FCU 3.05 81301202'l Keesler FCU 3.050 249,000.00 0.15

LCABank2.l 6121n021 LCA Bank 2toa 247,000.00 0.15

Medallion Bank 2.'15 10n1n022 Medallion Bank 2t5A 247,000.00 0.15

Mercantil Commercebank NA 1.65 6/2412021 Mercantil Commercebank NA 1.650 247,000.00 0.15

Morgan Stanley Bank, NA 2.2 712512024 Morgan Stanley Bank. NA 2.204 247,000.00 0.15

Morgan Stanley Private Bank, NA2.27l'18!2024 Morgan Stanley Private Bank, NA 2.204 247,000.00 0.15

National Cooperative Bank, NA 3.4 1212'|12023 National Cooperative Bank, NA 3.400 245,000.00 0.15

Neighbors FCU 3.3 911912023 Neighbors FCU 3.300 245,000.00 0.15

Public Service CU 3.15 1012612021 Public Service CU 3.150 245,000.00 0.15

Raymond James Bank, NA 1.95 8/2312023 Raymond James Bank, NA 1.950 247,000.00 0.15

Sallle Mae Bank2.6 411812022 Sallie Mae Benk 2.600 246,000.00 0.15

SunTrust Bank Step 113012023-20 SunTrust Bank 2.500 245,000.00 0.15

Syncft rony Eank 2.4 51 1 912022 Synchrony Bank 2.404 240,000.00 o.14

Page 128

10/13/2020 Item No.11.



Sytows Bank 1.45 1W1712O22 Synovus Bank 1.450 248,000.00 0.15

Ihid Federal Savings and Lo€lnz7n$n021 Ihird Federal Savlngs and Loan 2.000 245,000.00 0.15

T|AA, FSB 2.2 8/16/2022 TIAA, FSB 2.200 247,000.00 0.'15

Townebank 2.8 1 1 l21l2O2O Iownebank 2.800 246,000.00 0.15

UBS Bank USA 2.9 4/3/2024 UBS BanK USA 2.900 249,000.00 0.15

Uinta County BanR 2.6 21 1612023 Ulnta County Bank 2.600 246,000.00 0.15

Valley Strong CU 1.'l 912012021 Valley Strong CU 1.100 249,000.00 0.15

Valliance Bank 1.55 2rlU2A21 Valliance Bank 1.550 247,000.00 0.15

Vlbrant CU 3.1 1212112020 Vibrant CU 3.1 00 246,000.00 0. 15

VisionBank of lowa 2.15 5rc1n022 VisionBank of lowa 2.150 247,000.00 0.15

Wells Fargo National Bank West LV 1.5 1l2gl2123 Wells Fargo National Bank West LV 1.900 249,000.00 0.15

Wex Bank 1.4 41812022 Wex Bank 1.40C 248,000.0c 0.15

Sub Tolal/ Avorage Cedificate Of D,eposit 2.US 1r,342,000.00 6.73

Corporate Bond

Ametican Express Cledil 2.25 5151202'l -21 American Express Credit 2.250 1,000,000.00 0.60

Bank of Amerlca Corp 3.499 811712022-21 Bank of America Corp 3.499 2,000.000.00 't.20

Bank of America Corp Step 21102025-21 Bank of America Corp 2.125 2,000,000.00 1.20

Bank of NY Melhin2.62l7f2022-22 Bank of NY Mellon 2.600 1,000,000.00 0.60

Bank of NY Mellon 3-5 4128/2023 Bank of NY Mellon 3.500 1,000,000.00 0.60

Bardays Bank PLC 3 1U171i2023,,.22 Barclays Bank PLC 3.000 2,000.000.00 1.20

Citibank NA 2. 1 2 5 1 0120 |2O2O-2O Citibank NA 2.125 1,000,000.00 0.60

JPMoryan Chase & Co 2.295 811512021-20 JPMorgan Chase & Co 2.295 1,000,000.00 0.60

JPMoqan Chase & Co 2.55 31112021-21 JPMorgan Chase & Co 2.550 2,000,000.00 1.20

MUFG Union Bank NA 3.15 4/1f2022-22 MUFG Union Bank M 3.150 1,000,000.00 0.6c

PNC Bank NA 2.15 412912021-21 PNC BanK NA 2.150 1,000,000.00 0.6c

PNC Bank NA 2.1 5 4t 29 12021 -2'l PNC BanK NA 2.150 1,000,000,00 0.60

State Street Corp 2.653 5l'1512023-22 State Street Corp 2.653 2,530,000.00 1.52

Wells Fargo & Co 2.5 31412021 Wells Fargo & Co 2.500 2,000,000.00 1.24

Wells Fargo & Co 2.625 712212022 Wells Fargo & Co 2.625 1,000,000.00 0.60

Wells Fargo & Co. 3.069 112412023-22 Wells Fargo & Co. 3.069 1.000,000.00 0.60

Sub Total I Average Corporate Bond 2.662 22,530,000.00 13.50

FFCB Bond

FFCB 2 9t23t2022-20 FFCB 2.oool 1,o0o,ooo.ool 0.60

FFCB 2.6 9t14t2020 FFCE 2.6001 1,ooo,ooo.ool 0.60

Sub Total / Average FFCB Bond 2.3001 2,0o0,ooo.0ol 1,20

FHLMC Bond

FHLMC I.85 1 1 t27 1202A-17 FHLMC 1.850 2,ooo,0o0.0ol 1.20

FHLMC 2.15 8nno2+20 FHLMC 2.15C 1,000,000.001 0.60

Sub Total /Average FHLMC Bord 1.95C 3,000,000.001 1.80

Local Govemment lnvestnent Pod

l-AlF City LGIP LAIF City 1.4651 62,e13,303.701 4o:6e

I.AIF FPFA LGIP LAIF FPFA 1,,$51 2s,os6,2s6.1ol 10.02

Sub Total, Average Local Govemment lnv€strnent Pool 1.4651 e2,e?9,559.S01 55.70

MorFy Martet

Wells Fargo MM lwetts rargo 0.060l 415,357,5S1 0.26

Wells Fargo MM lwetts Fargo o.o6of 3,287,s2o.421 1.s7

ISub Total / Average Money Martet 0.0601 3,7o3,2zs,ool z.2z

Page 129

10/13/2020 Item No.11.



Munidpal Bord

CA St DWR Pwr Supp Rev 1.71 3 51112021 CA St DWR Pwr Supp Rev 't .713 742,142.36 o.44

CA St DWR Pwr Supp Rev 2 51112022 CA St DWR ftvf Supp Rev 2.000 1,000,000.00 0.60

CA St DWR Pwr Supp Rev 2 51112022 CA St DWR Purr Supp Rev 2.000 1,000,000.00 0,60

CA St DWR Pwr Supp Rev 5 5/1/2021 CA St DWR Pwr Supp Rev 5.000 500,000.00 0.30

Cabrillo CCD 1.913 211 12021 Cabrillo CCD 1 .9'13 225,000,00 0.13

Cabrillo CCD 1.913 8t112022 Cabrillo CCD 't.9't3 230.000.00 o.14

Cal St Hlth Fac Fin Auth Rev 1.893 6l'|12022 Cal St Hlth Fac Fin Auth Rev 1.893 1,000,000.00 0.60

Carson RDA SA TABs 2,74221112021 Carson RDA SA TABs 2.742 145,000.00 0.09

Carson RDA SA TABs 2.992 21112022-17 Carson RDA SA TABS 2.992 100,000.00 0.06

Cent. Contra Costa San Dist Rev. Bonds 2.gO 9/1/20 Cent, Contra Costa San Dist Rev. Bonds 2.960 235,000,00 o.14

Coast CCD GOBs 1.975 81112023 Coast CCD GOBs 1.975 1,265,000.00 0.76

CSU Revenue Bonds 2.982 1'll1l2l21 CSU Revenue Bonds 2.982 300,000.00 0.'t8

Davis RDA-SA TABS 1.68 9/1/2021 Davis RDA-SA TABs '1.680 1,200,000.00 o.72

Davis RDA-SA TAA$ 1.729hf2022 Davls RDA-SA TABS 1.720 1,225,000.00 0.73

Davis RDA-SA TAB$ 1.75 91112023 Davis RDA-SA TABs 1.750 625,000.00 0.37

Fuilenon RDA SA TABS 5.774 9/1/2020 Fullerton RDA SA TABS 5.774 100,000.00 0.06

Gilroy USD 1.721 81112021 Gikoy USD 1.721 320,000.00 0.19

Highland RDA-SA TABs 2 2nn021 Hhhland RDA€A TABS 2.000 405,000.00 0.24

Highland RDA-SA TABS 2.25U112O22 Highland RDA-SA TABS 2.250 390,000.00 o.23

lmperial CCD 1.8il A1 nO2O lmperial CCD 1.854 200,000.00 0.12

lmperial CCD 1.874 811 12021 lmperial CCD 1.874 200,000.00 0.12

l-A Cnty RDA Ref Auth 291'11i2022 LA Cnty RDA Ref Auth 2.000 1,235,000.00 0.74

Long Beach CCD 1.738 81112021 Long Beach CCD 1.738 780,000.00 0.47

Marin CCD GOBS 2.243 81112021-16 Marin CCD GOBs 2.243 650,000.00 0.39

Murrieta RDA-SA TABS 2 8n PA20 Munleta RDA-SA TABS 2.000 400,000.00 o.24

Murrieta RDA-SA TABS 2.25 8t112021 Munieta RDA-SA TABS 2.250 350,000.00 0.21

Murriela RDA-SA TABs 2.5 81112022 Murrieta RDA-SA TABs 2.500 250,000.00 0.15

Riverside CCD 2.848 A1n020 Riverside CCD 2.848 500,000.00 0.30

Riverside Cnty PFA 1.8471112023 Riverside Cnty PFA 1.840 195,000.00 0.'t2

San Diegulto USD GOBs 2.799 8l1l2o2o San Dieguito USD GOBs 2.793 500,000.00 0.30

San Francisco RDA SA TABs 2.796 81112021 San Francisco RDA SA TABs 2.79e 1,000,000.00 0.60

San Jose RDA-SA 2.259 81112020 San Jose RDA-SA 2.259 1,000,000.00 0.60

San Jose RDA-SA 2.63 81112022 San Jose RDA-SA 2.630 1,000,000.00 0.60

San Jose RDA-SA 2.63 81112022 San Jo6e RDA.SA 2.630 1,000,000.00 0.60

San Jose RDASA TABs 2.828 81112023 San Jose RDASA TABs 2.828 500,000.00 0.30

Santa Clara Coung GOBs 2.125 81112020 Santa Clara County GOBS 2.125 1,000,000.00 0.50

Santa Rosa RDSA 2,75 81112020 Santa Rosa RDSA 2.750 400,000.00 o.24

Sanlee CDC SuccessorAg 28t112020 Santee CDC Successor Ag 2.000 385,000.00 0,23

SF BART Rev Bonds 2-621 71112023-17 SF BART Rev Bonds 2.62'l 735,000.00 o.44

state of cA Go 2.5 10t112022 State of CA GO 2.500 1,000,000.00 0.60

Univ of CA Revenue 2.15 511512021-17 Univ of CA Revenue 2.150 1,000,000.00 0.60

Univ of CA Revenue 2.553 511512021-19 Univ of CA Revenue 2.553 300,000.00 0.18

Univ of CA Revenue 2.657 511512023-19 Univ of CA Revenue 2.657 500,000.00 0.30

Univ of CA Revenue 3.283 511512022-18 Univ of CA Revenue 3,283 500,000.00 0.30

Vacaville RDA-SA TABs 1.848 91112020 Vacaville RDA-SA TABs 1.848 450,000,00 0.27

West Contra Costa USD 1.434 81112022 West Contra Costa USD 1.4U 360,000.00 0.22

West Contra Costa USD 1.761 81112024 West Contra Costa USD 1.761 1,000.000.00 0.60

West Contra Costa USD GOB93.031 81112021 West Contra Costa USD GOBs 3.031 300,000.00 0.18

Page 130

10/13/2020 Item No.11.



West Sacramenlo Area Flood Control Agy 1.797 gl1l2 West Sacramento fu.eq Elood Clntrol Agt : r,zezl 20o,oo0.0ol 0.12

Wesl Sacremento Area Flood ConfotAgy 1.847 gl1l2 Weet Sacremsnto Al€a Flood ControlAgj 1.3471 2oo,ooo.odl 0.12

S_.UD Total lAverlgs Murfcipil Bond 2.?f,tl' 29,037,142.301 17,49

Page 131

10/13/2020 Item No.11.



ATTACHMENT 3

Page 132

10/13/2020 Item No.11.



City of Folsom
Transactions Summary

Transaction Summary - lnvestment Report

Portfolio / Report Group: City of Folsom
Group By: Action

Begin Date:0410112020, End Date: 0613012020

Itccrlpdon Secudy fypo SetrloilFnt
hb

ilatudty
D.!e

F!co
ArntlShalte Prlnclprl

nile
Cocn

Buy

Barclays Bank PLC 3 1011712023-22 Corporate Bond 04117t2020 10t17t2023 2,000,000.00 z,ooo,ooo.ool 3.ooo

Cal St Hlth Fac Fin Auth Rev 1.8936nn022 Municipal Bond o4t06no20 06t0112022 1,000,000.00 r,ooo,ooo.ool 1.899

Synovus Bank 1.45 1011712022 Certificate Of Deposit 04t't7t2020 10t17t2022 248,000.00 e+a,ooo.ool 1.4s0

west contra costa usD 1.434 81112022 Municipal Bond 05t12t2020 08t01t2022 360,000.00 360,000.001 1.434

West Contra Costa USD 1.761 8l'll2o24 Municipal Bond 051',!212020 08t0112024 1,000,000.00 t,ooo,ooo.ool 1.761

WexBank 1.441A2022 Certiflcate Of Deposit 04t0912024 04t08t2022 248,000.00 z4s,ooo.ool 1.400

Sub Total / Average Buy 4,856,000.00 4,S56,000.001

Called

Citibank, NA 2.1 61 1212020-20 Corporate Bond 051121202A 06t12t2020 1.000,000.00 1,000,000.00 0.000

Nicolet National Bank 1.1 312A2A22-2O Certificate Of Deposit o6t2712020 03t2w2022 249,000.00 249,000,00 0.000

Sub Total / Average Called t,249,000.00 1.249,000.00

Matured

Genersl Elec Cap Corp 5.55 51412020 Corporate Bond osto4t2020 05t04t2020 1,000,000.00 1,000,000,00 0.000

Monrovia RDA-SA 2.35 51112020 Municipal Bond 0510112020 05101t2020 1 65,000.00 165,000.00 0.000

Santa Cruz County Cap FA Lease Rev 2.88 6/112020 l\ilunicipal Bond 0610112020 o6to'v2020 490,000.00 490,000.00 0,000

Sterling Bank 2.35 41212020 Certificate Ot Deposit 041o2t2020 04t021202Q 248,000.00 248,000.00 0.000

Univ of CA Revenue 1.49 511512020-16 Municipal Bond o5t15t2020 o5t15t2020 1.000,000.00 1,000,000.00 0.000

Sub Total /Average MatuEd 2,903,000.00 2,903,000.00

Sell

CA St DWR Pwr Supp Rev 1.713 51112021 Municipal Eond 05t01t2020 o5to1t2021 202,541.45 202,541.451 0.000

Sub Total / Avorage Sell 202,541.45 202,54't.451

Page 133

10/13/2020 Item No.11.



This page is intentionally left blank.

Page 134

10/13/2020 Item No.11.



Folsom City Council
Staff ort

MEETING DATE: t01t312020

AGENDA SECTION: Joint Meeting Public Hearing

SUBJECT: Folsom Ranch Financing Authority City of Folsom Community
Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch) Improvement Area
No. I Special Tax Revenue Bonds, Series 2020

a. Resolution No. 10535 - A Resolution of the City Council of
the City of Folsom Authorizing the Issuance of the City of
Folsom Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)
Improvement AreaNo. 1 Special Tax Bonds, Series 2020,the
Execution of an Indenture Providing therefor, Authorizing the
Execution of a Local Obligation Purchase Contract, and
Authorizing Necessary Actions and the Execution of Other
Documents in Connection therewith

b. Resolution No. 006-Folsom Ranch FA - A Resolution of the
Governing Board of the Folsom Ranch Financing Authority
Authorizing the Issuance, Sale and Delivery of Not to Exceed
$16,500,000 Aggregate Principal Amount of City of Folsom
Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)
Improvement Area No. I Special Tax Revenue Bonds, Series
2020; Approving the Form and Substance of a Trust Agreement,
Authorizing Modifications thereof and Execution and Delivery
as Modified; Approving a Preliminary Official Statement,
Authorizing Changes thereto and Execution and Delivery thereof
and of an Official Statement to be Derived therefrom; Approving
a Local Obligation Purchase Contract and a Bond Purchase
Contract and Execution and Delivery of Each; and Authorizing
Related Actions Necessary to Implement the Proposed Financing

FROM: Finance Department

1

Page 135

10/13/2020 Item No.12.



RECOMMENDATION / COUNCIL ACTION

It is recommended that the City Council adopt the following resolution:

Resolution No. 10535 - A Resolution of the City Council of the City of Folsom Authorizing
the Issuance of the City of Folsom Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)
Improvement Area No. 1 Special Tax Bonds, Series 2020, the Execution of an Indenture
Providing therefor, Authorizing the Execution of a Local Obligation Purchase Contract, and

Authorizing Necessary Actions and the Execution of Other Documents in Connection
therewith

It is recommended the Governing Board of the Authority adopt the following resolution:

Resolution No. 006-Folsom Ranch FA - A Resolution of the Governing Board of the Folsom

Ranch Financing Authority Authorizing the Issuance, Sale and Delivery of Not to Exceed

$16,500,000 Aggregate Principal Amountof City ofFolsom Community Facilities DistrictNo.
23 (Folsom Ranch) Improvement Area No, 1 Special Tax Revenue Bonds, Series 2020;
Approving the Form and Substance of a Trust Agreement, Authorizing Modifications thereof
and Execution and Delivery as Modified; Approving a Preliminary Official Statement,

Authorizing Changes thereto and Execution and Delivery thereof and of an Official Statement

to be Derived therefrom; Approving a Local Obligation Purchase Contract and a Bond
Purchase Contract and Execution and Delivery of Each; and Authorizing Related Actions
Necessary to Implement the Proposed Financing.

BACKGROUND / ISSUE

Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch) (CFD No. 23) is a community facilities
district organized by the City Council under the Mello-Roos Act for the purpose of providing
for the construction and acquisition of certain public improvements and the financing of certain
services to serve property within CFD No. 23. The City established CFD No. 23 onMay 26,
2020 and designated six separate improvement areas, including Improvement Area 1.

Improvement Area 1 consists of a gross area of approximately 205 acres and is located wholly
within the City of Folsom, east of East Bidwell Street, west of Placerville Road, north of
Mangini Parkway, and south of U.S. Highway 50.

Development within Improvement Area 1 is planned to include 441 single-family high density
units, 222multi-family low density units and 265 multi-family high density units (pending the

successful completion of the plan amendment for and rezoning of Lot C), for a total of 928
units. Property within Improvement Area 1 is in varying stages of early development, including
partially improved lots, unimproved lots and unimproved land and is anticipated to be

completed in three main phases: Phase 2A, Phase 2B andPhase 2C. Phase 2,A. of development
within Improvement Area 1 includes Villages 4,7,8 and 10 and Lots C and D and is entitled
for a total of 560 units at the time of full build-out, comprised of 73 single-family high density
units, 222multi-fanrily low density units and 265 multi-family high density units (pending the
successful completion of the plan amendment for and rczoning of Lot C). Phase 29 of

2Page 136

10/13/2020 Item No.12.



development includes Villages 1 and 2 and is entitled for a total of 162 single-family high
density units at the time of full build-out. Phase 2C of development includes Villages 3, 5 and

6 and is entitled for a total of 206 single-family high density units at the time of fuIl build-out.
Both the single-family high density units and the multi-family low density units, representing

663 total residences, are expected to be developed as detached single-family homes. The 265

multi-family high density units are expected to be constructed as apartments.

The cost to construct all the facilities necessary to service property within Improvement Area
1 is estimated at approximately $86,047,361 and is comprised of backbone infrastructure, soft
costs and subdivision infrastructure. Backbone facilities infrastructure improvements for
Improvement Area 1 are expected to include transportation improvements, water system

improvements, recycled water system improvements, drainage system improvements,

wastewater system improvements, and park, parkway and open space improvements.

Subdivision improvements for development of Improvement Area 1 includes intract
infrastructure such as underground utilities, subdivision roadways, street lighting, soundwalls

and landscaping improvements. The tables below summarize the budgeted construction costs

for each phase of development within Improvement Area 1.

Phase 2A Budgeted Construction Costs Phase 28 Budgeted Construction Costs

Description

GBCA - Enclave Cost Sharing S

GBCA - Mangini Ranch Phase 2

Other Sub-Contractors

Costs

8,560,411

25,956,UI
5,501,872

Description

Grading & Backbone

Subdivision I mprovements
Soft Costs

Costs

s 1.2,319,000

9,232,375

3,232,706

Total Construction Hard Costs S rm,0$,325 Total Construction Costs 5 24,7U,081

Phase 2C Budgeted Construction Costs

Description

Grading & Backbone

Subdivision I mprovements

Soft Costs

Costs

$ 7,638,875

10,835,000

2,77t,081Notice of this public
inthe Folsom Telegraph

hearing was published
October 8,2020.Total Construction Costs 5 21,24,956

POLICY / RULE

Resolution No. 9282 - A Resolution of the City Council of the City of Folsom Approving
Goals and Policies for Community Facilities Districts

Chapter 3.110, "Community Facilities Financing", of the Folsom Municipal Code

Mello-Roos Community Facilities Act of 1982

Marks-Roos Local Bond Pooling Act of 1985

ANALYSIS

-)Page 137

10/13/2020 Item No.12.



The Folsom Ranch Financing Authority City of Folsom Community Facilities District No. 23

(Folsom Ranch) Improvement Area I Special Tax Revenue Bonds, Series 2020 (Series 2020
Revenue Bonds) are being issued by the Folsom Ranch Financing Authority (FRFA) in a not
to exceed amount of $16,500,000 to finance the purchase of the limited obligation special tax
bonds (Local Obligations), issued by CFD No. 23. The purchase price of the Local Obligations
will be used to finance the acquisition and construction of certain public facilities, fund a debt

service reserve fund, fund capitalized interest to September 1,2021, and pay certain costs of
issuance of the Local Obligations and Series2020 Revenue Bonds.

A special tax will be annually levied and collected to service the Local Obligations. Annually,
CFD No. 23 shall determine the annual special tax requirement. The annual special tax
requirement is that amount of special tax revenue required in any fiscal year for Improvement
Area 1 to:

Pay administrative expenses
Pay annual debt service on all outstanding bonds for Improvement Area I
Pay other periodic costs on outstanding bonds, including credit enhancement or rebate
payments, if applicable
Pay any amounts required to replenish the reserve fund
Pay for reasonably anticipated delinquent special taxes
Fund Improvement Area 1 PAYGO costs
Pay for authorized services
Pay other associated costs as listed in the Rate and Method of Apportionment

The special tax shall be levied each fiscal year proportionately on each Sacramento County
assessor's parcel of taxable property within Improvement Area I at a rate up to l00Yo of the
applicable maximum special tax to satisff the annual special tax requirement. The appraised
value for the property within Improvement Area I is$69,72I,745 andthe value-to-lien ratio is
4.70:I, which is in compliance with the City's CFD policy. The total projected residential
property tax level for both developed single-family property and developed single-family high-
density property within CFD No. 23 Improvement Area I is approximately l.85Yo and shall
not exceed 2.0Yo of the estimated sales price of the respective homes to be constructed in
Improvement Area 1.

Upon the conclusion of the noticed public hearing, and by adopting the proposed City Council
Resolution, the City Council is taking the following actions in connection with the Local
Obligations:

Determining that there are significant public benefits to the City from the proposed
financing and approving the Series 2020 Revenue Bonds
Authorizing the issuance of an aggregate principal amount of not to exceed

$16,500,000 in Local Obligations
Approving the execution and delivery of an Indenture with MUFG Union Bank, N.A.
Approving the execution and delivery of a Continuing Disclosure Certificate

a

o

a

a

a

a

a

o

1

2

J

4

4
Page 138

10/13/2020 Item No.12.



5

6

7
8

Approving the execution and delivery of a Preliminary Official Statement, and

authorizing the preparation of a final Official Statement
Approving the execution and delivery of a Local Obligation Purchase Contract
Approving the execution and delivery of a Trust Agreement
Authorizing the officers of the City to execute any and all documents and instruments,
for and on behalf of the City and/or CFD No. 23,to carry out the issuance of the Local
Obligations

By adopting the proposed FRFA Resolution, the Goveming Board is taking the following
actions in connection with the Series 2020 Revenue Bonds:

Authorizing the issuance of an aggregate principal amount of not to exceed

$16,500,000 in Series 2020 Revenue Bonds
Approving the form and substance of the Trust Agreement
Approving the form and substance of the Local Obligation Purchase Contract
Approving the form and substance of the Bond Purchase Contract
Approving the form and substance of the Preliminary Official Statement authorizing
the Treasurer to determine when said Preliminary Official Statement is final, and

authorizing the distribution of both the Preliminary Official Statement and the Official
Statement to be distributed by the Underwriter
Authorizing the officers of the FRFA to execute and deliver any and all documents,

and to do any and all things deemed necessary to comply with the terms and intent of
this resolution

Other documents included as exhibits to this staff report include:

1

2.
J.

4.
5.

6

a Preliminary Offi cial Statement
Trust Agreement
Indenture
Local Obligation Purchase Contract
Bond Purchase Agreement
Form of Continuing Disclosure Certificate
Good Faith Estimatesa

The City has engaged the following consultants to assist in the issuance of these Series 2020
Revenue Bonds:

Bond Counsel:
Disclosure Counsel:
Tax Consultant:
Financial Advisor:
Trustee:

Orrick, Herrington & Sutcliffe LLP
Orrick, Herrington & Sutcliffe LLP
NBS
Fieldman, Rolapp & Associates, Inc.
MUFG Union Bank, N.A.

5

F'INANCIAL IMPACT

Page 139

10/13/2020 Item No.12.



There is no discernable financial impact on the City of Folsom. The CFD No. 23 formation,
bonded indebtedness, and expenses, including those for Improvement Area l, are solely the

responsibility of CFD No. 23. The City will receive reimbursement from the issuance of the

Series 2020 Revenue Bonds for staff time and expenses and will receive an annual

administrative fee throughout the term of CFD No. 23; these amounts are intended to offset

expenses incurred by the City for administration and other items.

ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW

On February 13,2018 the City Council approved the Mangini Ranch Phase 2 Vesting Tentative
Subdivision Map and determined that the Mangini Ranch Phase 2 Subdivision project is
entirely consistent with the Folsom Plan Area Specific Plan (FPASP) and Westland Eagle

Specific Plan Amendment and therefore exempt from review under the California
Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) provided by Government Code section 65457 and CEQA
Guidelines sections 15182. No additional environmental review is required.

ATTACHMENTS

1. ResolutionNo. 10535 - A Resolution ofthe City Council ofthe City of Folsom Authorizing
the Issuance of the City of Folsom Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

Improvement Area No. 1 Special Tax Bonds, Series 2020, the Execution of an Indenture
Providing therefor, Authorizing the Execution of a Local Obligation Purchase Contract,
and Authorizing Necessary Actions and the Execution of Other Documents in Connection
therewith

2. Resolution No. 006-Folsom Ranch FA - A Resolution of the Governing Board of the
Folsom Ranch Financing Authority Authorizing the Issuance, Sale and Delivery of Not to
Exceed $16,500,000 Aggregate Principal Amount of City of Folsom Community Facilities
District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch) Improvement Area No. I Special Tax Revenue Bonds,
Series 2020; Approving the Form and Substance of a Trust Agreement, Authorizing
Modifications thereof and Execution and Delivery as Modified; Approving a Preliminary
Official Statement, Authorizing Changes thereto and Execution and Delivery thereof and

of an Official Statement to be Derived therefrom; Approving aLocaI Obligation Purchase

Contract and a Bond Purchase Contract and Execution and Delivery of Each; and

Authorizing Related Actions Necessary to Implement the Proposed Financing

3. Trust Agreement by and among the Folsom Ranch Financing Authority and the City of
Folsom Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch) and MUFG Union Bank,
N.A., as Trustee

4. Indenture between the City of Folsom Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom

Ranch) and MUFG Union Bank, N.A., as Trustee

6
Page 140

10/13/2020 Item No.12.



5. Preliminary Official Statement for the Folsom Ranch Financing Authority City of Folsom
Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch) Improvement Area No. I Special
Tax Revenue Bonds, Series 2020

6. Local Obligation Purchase Contract for the City of Folsom Community Facilities District
No. 23 (Folsom Ranch) Improvement AreaNo. 1 Special Tax Bonds, Series 2020 between
the Folsom Ranch Financing Authority and the City of Folsom Community Facilities
District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

7. Bond Purchase Agreement for the Folsom Ranch Financing Authority City of Folsom
Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch) Improvement Area No. 1 Special
Tax Revenue Bonds, Series 2020 between the Folsom Ranch Financing Authority and
Piper Sandler & Co.

8. Form of Continuing Disclosure Certificate

9. Good Faith Estimates for the City of Folsom Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom
Ranch) Improvement Area No. 1 Special Tax Bonds, Series 2020 and the Folsom Ranch
Financing Authority City of Folsom Community Facilities DistrictNo. 23 (Folsom Ranch)
Improvement Area No. 1 Special Tax Revenue Bonds, Series 2020

10. Powerpoint: City Council Presentation - Special Tax Revenue Bonds, CFD 23 IA1

S Tamagni
Finance Director
Treasurer of the Folsom Ranch Financing Authority

7Page 141

10/13/2020 Item No.12.



ATTACHMENT 1

Page 142

10/13/2020 Item No.12.



RESOLUTION NO. 10535

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF FOLSOM
AUTHORIZING THE ISSUANCE OF'THE CITY OF FOLSOM COMMUNITY

FACILITIES DISTRTCT NO. 23 (FOLSOM RANCH) IMPROVEMENT AREA NO. I
spEcIAL TAX BONDS, SERTES 2020, THE EXECUTION OF'AN INDENTURE
PROVIDING THEREFOR, AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTION OF'A LOCAL
OBLIGATION PURCHASE CONTRACTO AND AUTHORIZING NECESSARY

ACTIONS AND THE EXECUTION OF OTHER DOCUMENTS IN CONNECTION
THEREWITH

WHEREAS, the City Council (the *City Council") of the City of Folsom (the "City") has

formed the City of Folsom Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch) (the
ooCommunity Facilities District") and designated various improvement areas therein, including
Improvement Area No. 1 (the "Improvement Area"), under the provisions of the Mello-Roos
Community Facilities Act of 1982 (the "Act"); and

WHEREAS, the Community Facilities District is authorized under the Act to levy special
taxes within the Improvement Area (the "Special Taxes") to pay the costs of certain public
facilities (the "Facilities") and to issue bonds payable from the Special Taxes; and

WHEREAS, in order to provide funds to finance certain of the Facilities (the "Project"),
the Community Facilities District proposes to issue not to exceed $16,500,000 principal amount
of its City of Folsom Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch) Improvement Area
No. 1 Special Tax Bonds, Series 2020 (the 'ol-ocal Obligations"); and

WHEREAS, the Folsom Ranch Financing Authority (the "Authority") has agreed to
purchase the Local Obligations pursuant to a Local Obligation Purchase Contract between the
Authority and the Community Facilities District with a portion of the proceeds of the Authority's
City of Folsom Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch) Improvement Area No. 1

Special Tax Revenue Bonds, Series 2020 (the "Authority Bonds"); and

WHEREAS, the City Council has determined in accordance with Government Code
Section 53360.4thatanegotiated sale of the Local Obligations to the Authority in accordance with
the terms of the Local Obligation Purchase Contract will result in a lower overall cost to the
Community Facilities District than a public sale; and

WHEREAS, there has been submitted to the City Clerk of the Crty (the "City Clerk") a

form of Indenture providing for the issuance of the Local Obligations and a form of Local
Obligation Purchase Contract providing for the sale of the Local Obligations to the Authority; and

WHEREAS, there has been submitted to the City Clerk a form of Trust Agreement (the

"Trust Agreement"), among the Authority, the Community Facilities District and MUFG Union
Bank, N.A., providing for the issuance of the Authority Bonds; and

Resolution No, 10535
Page I of5 Page 143

10/13/2020 Item No.12.



WHEREAS, the Authority has authorizedthe sale of the Authority Bonds to Piper Sandler

&, Co., as undenvriter (the 'oUnderwriter"), with the net proceeds of sale thereof to be utilized to
purchase the Local Obligations from the Community Facilities District; and

WHEREAS' the Community Facilities District desires to assist the Underwiter in its
compliance with Rule I5c2-12 promulgated under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 ("Rule
l5c2-12") pursuant to a Continuing Disclosure Certificate (the "Continuing Disclosure
Certificate"); and

WHEREAS, the form of a Preliminary Official Statement (the "Preliminary Official
Statement") to be used in connection with the offering and sale of the Authority Bonds has been
prepared and is on file with the City Clerk; and

WHEREAS, there have been prepared and submitted to the City Council for consideration
at this meeting the forms of:

(a) the Trust Agreement;

(b) the Indenture;

(c) the Local Obligation Purchase Contract;

(d) the Continuing Disclosure Certificate; and

(e) the Preliminary Official Statement; and

WHEREAS, the City Council has considered the evidence of the public benefits to the
Community Facilities District of the proposed financing and is fully advised in the premises; and

WHEREAS, the Community Facilities District desires to proceed to issue and sell the
Local Obligations and to authorize the execution of such documents and the performance of such

acts as may be necessary or desirable to effect the offering, sale and issuance of the Local
Obligations; and

WHEREAS, on this date, the City held a public hearing on the financing of the Project in
accordance with Section 6586.5 of Articles I,2,3 and4 of Chapter 5 of Division 7 of Title 1

(commencing with Section 6500) of the Government Code of the State of California (the "Marks-
Roos Act"); and

WHEREAS, in accordance with Section 6586.5 of the Marks-Roos Act, notice of such

hearing was published once at least five days prior to the hearing in the Folsom Telegraph, a
newspaper of general circulation in the City; and

WHEREAS' Government Code Section 5852.I requires that the City Council obtain from
an underwriter, financial adviser or private lender and disclose, prior to authorization of the
issuance of bonds with a term of greater than 13 months, good faith estimates of the following
information in a meeting open to the public: (a) the true interest cost of the bonds, (b) the sum of
all fees and charges paid to third parties with respect to the bonds, (c) the amount of proceeds of

Resolution No. 10535

Page 2 of 5
Page 144

10/13/2020 Item No.12.



the bonds expected to be received net ofthe fees and charges paid to third parties and any reserves

or capitalized interest paid or funded with proceeds of the bonds, and (d) the sum total of all debt
service payments on the bonds calculated to the final maturity of the bonds plus the fees and

charges paid to third parties not paid with the proceeds of the bonds; and

WHEREAS' in compliance with Government Code Section 5852.I, the City Council has

obtained from Fieldman, Rolapp & Associates, Inc., the municipal adviser to the Community
Facilities District, the required good faith estimates and such estimates have been disclosed at this
meeting; and

WHEREAS, the City Council is the legislative body of the Community Facilities District;

NOW, THEREFORE' BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Folsom,
as follows:

Section I The foregoing recitals are true and correct, and the City Council so finds
and determines.

Section 2. The City Council, on behalf of the City, hereby approves the issuance of the
Authority Bonds to finance the Project and finds that the use of the Marks-Roos Act to assist the
Community Facilities District in financing the Project will result in significant public benefits to
the citizens of the City, including more efficient delivery of local agency services to residential
and commercial development.

Section 3 Subject to the conditions described in Section 8, the issuance of the Local
Obligations in an aggregate principal amount not to exceed $16,500,000, on the terms and
conditions set forth in, and subject to the limitations specified in, the Indenture, is hereby
authorized and approved. The Local obligations shall be dated, shall bear interest at the rates, shall
mature on the dates, shall be subject to redemption, shall be issued in the form, and shall be as

otherwise provided in the Indenture.

Section 4. The form of the Indenture (the "Indenture") providing for the issuance of
the Local Obligations, on file with the City Clerk, is hereby approved, and the City Manager of
the City (the "City Manager"), the Finance Director of the City (the "Finance Director") and the
Chief Financial Officer of the City (the "Chief Financial Officer") and such other officers of the
City as the City Manager, the Finance Director or the Chief Financial Officer shall designate (each

an "Authorized Officef' and collectively, the "Authorized Officers") are, and each of them is,
hereby authorized and directed, for and in the name and on behalf of the Community Facilities
District, to execute and deliver the Indenture in substantially said form, with such changes therein
as may be approved by the City Attorney of the City (the "City Attorney"), such approval to be

conclusively evidenced by the execution and delivery thereof.

Section 5. The form of the Continuing Disclosure Certificate (the "Continuing
Disclosure Certificate"), in substantially the form submitted to this meeting and made apafihereof
as though set forth in full herein is hereby approved. The Authorized Officers are, and each of
them is, hereby authorized and directed, for and in the name of the Community Facilities District,
to execute and deliver the Continuing Disclosure Certificate in the form presented to this meeting,
with such changes, insertions and omissions as the Authorized Officer executing the same may

Resolution No. 10535
Page 3 of5

Page 145

10/13/2020 Item No.12.



require or approve, such requirement or approval to be conclusively evidenced by the execution
of the Continuing Disclosure Certificate by such Authorized Officer.

Section 6. The Preliminary Official Statement, in substantially the form presented to
this meeting and made aparthereof as though set forth in full herein, with such changes therein as

may be approved by an Authorized Officer, is hereby approved, and the use of the Preliminary
Official Statement in connection with the offering and sale of the Authority Bonds is hereby
authorized and approved. The Authorized Officers are, and each of them is, hereby authorized
and directed, for and in the name of the Community Facilities District, to certiff to the Underwriter
that the Preliminary Official Statement has been "deemed final" for purposes of Rule l5c2-12.

Section 7. The preparation and delivery of a final Official Statement (the "Official
Statement"), and its use in connection with the offering and sale of the Authority Bonds is hereby
authorized and approved. The Official Statement shall be in substantially the form of the
Preliminary Official Statement, with such changes, insertions and omissions as may be approved
by an Authorized Officer, such approval to be conclusively evidenced by the execution and

delivery thereof. The Authorized Officers are, and each of them is, hereby authorized and directed
to execute the final Official Statement and any amendment or supplement thereto, for and in the
name of the Community Facilities District.

Section 8. The form of the Local Obligation Purchase Contract (the "Local Obligation
Purchase Contract") providing for the sale of the Local Obligations to the Authority, on file with
the City Clerk, is hereby approved, and the Authorized Officers are, and each of them is, hereby
authorized and directed, for and in the name of the Community Facilities District, to execute and

deliver the Local Obligation Purchase Contract in substantially said form, with such changes

therein as may be approved by the City Attorney, such approval to be conclusively evidenced by
the execution and delivery thereof; provided that the final maturity of the Local Obligations shall
be no later than September I,2050,the principal amount of the Local Obligations shall not exceed

sixteen million five hundred thousand dollars ($16,500,000) and the true interest cost (taking into
consideration the associated underwriter's discount and any original issue premium or discount
relating to the Authority Bonds) of the Local Obligations shall not exceed five percent (5.0%).

Section 9. The form of the Trust Agreement, in substantially the form submitted to this
meeting and made a part hereof as though set forth in full herein is hereby approved. The
Authorized Officers are, and each of them is, hereby authorized and directed, for and in the name

of the Community Facilities District, to execute and deliver the Trust Agreement in the form
presented to this meeting, with such changes, insertions and omissions as the Authorized Officer
executing the same may require or approve, such requirement or approval to be conclusively
evidenced by the execution of the Trust Agreement by such Authorized Officer.

Section 10 Pursuant to Section 53345.8 of the Act and the City's Local Goals and

Policies, the City Council hereby finds and determines that the value of the real property that would
be subject to the Special Taxes to pay debt service on the Local Obligations will be at least three
(3) times the principal amount of the Local Obligations to be sold and the principal amount of all
other bonds outstanding that are secured by a special tax levied pursuant to the Act on property
within the Improvement Area or a special assessment levied on property within the Improvement
Area. The City Council determines in its sole discretion that it is necessary and desirable to waive

Resolution No. 10535

Page 4 of 5
Page 146

10/13/2020 Item No.12.



certain of its Local Goals and Policies to the extent the issuance of the Local Obligations does not

conform thereto.

Section 11. The officers of the City are hereby authorized and directed, jointly and

severally, for and on behalf of the City andlor the Community Facilities District to do any and all

things that they may deem necessary or advisable in order to consummate the transactions herein

authorized and otherwise to carry out, give effect to and comply with the terms and intent of this
resolution, including any subsequent amendments, waivers or consents entered into or given in
accordance with any of the documents approved hereby. The City Manager, the Finance Director,
the Chief Financial Officer, the City Clerk and the officers of the City are hereby authorized and

directed to execute and deliver, for and on behalf of the City and/or the Community Facilities
District, any and all certificates and representations necessary and desirable to accomplish the

transactions set forth above.

Section 12. This resolution shall take effect immediately upon its adoption.

PASSED AND ADOPTED this 13th day of October 2020, by the following roll call vote:

AYES: Council Member(s)

NOES: Council Member(s)

ABSENT: Council Member(s):

ABSTAIN: Council Member(s):

Sarah Aquino, MAYOR

ATTEST:

Christa Freemantle, CITY CLERK

Resolution No. 10535

Page 5 of5
Page 147

10/13/2020 Item No.12.



ATTACHMENT 2

Page 148

10/13/2020 Item No.12.



RESOLUTION NO. OO6-FOLSOM RANCH FA

RESOLUTION OF THE GOVERNING BOARD OF THE FOLSOM RANCH
FINANCING AUTHORITY AUTHORIZING THE ISSUANCE, SALE AND DELIVERY
oF NOT TO EXCEED $16,500,000 AGGREGATE PRTNCIPAL AMOUNT OF CITY OF'

FOLSOM COMMUNTTY FACILITIES DTSTRTCT NO.23 (FOLSOM RANCH)
TMPROVEMENT AREA NO. 1 SPECIAL TAX REVENUE BONDS, SERTES 2020;

APPROVING THE FORM AND SUBSTANCE OF A TRUST AGREEMENT,
AUTHORIZING MODIFICATIONS THEREOF AND EXECUTION AND DELIVERY

AS MODIFIED; APPROVING A PRELIMINARY OF.F.ICIAL STATEMENT,
AUTHORIZING CHANGES THERETO AND EXECUTION AND DELIVERY

THEREOF'AND OF AN OFFICIAL STATEMENT TO BE DERIYED THEREFROM;
APPROVING A LOCAL OBLIGATION PURCHASE CONTRACT AND A BOND
PURCHASE CONTRACT AND EXECUTION AND DELIVERY OF.EACH; AND

AUTHORIZING RELATED ACTIONS NECESSARY TO IMPLEMENT THE
PROPOSED F'INANCING

WHEREAS' Folsom Ranch Financing Authority is a joint exercise of powers
entity duly organized and existing under and by virtue of the laws of the State of California (the
"Authority"); and

WHEREAS, the City Council (the "City Council") of the City of Folsom (the
"City") has formed the City of Folsom Community Facilities DistrictNo. 23 (Folsom Ranch) (the
"Community Facilities District") and designated various improvement areas therein, including
Improvement Area No. 1, under the provisions of the Mello-Roos Community Facilities Act of
1982 (the "Act"); and

WHEREAS, the Community Facilities District has completed its legal proceedings
under the Act with respect to authorizingthe issuance and sale of the "City of Folsom Community
Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch) Improvement Area No. I Special Tax Bonds, Series
2020" (the "Local Obligations") for the purpose of financing certain public facilities within the
City south of Highway 50;

WHEREAS, the Community Facilities District is empowered under the provisions
of the Act to undertake legal proceedings for the levy of a special tax and for the issuance, sale

and delivery of special tax bonds upon the security of the recorded special tax liens; and

WHEREAS' the Authority is empowered under the provisions of Article 4,
Chapter 5, Division 7, Title 1 of the California Government Code (the "Law") to issue its bonds
for the purpose of purchasing various local obligations issued by certain local agencies and
applying the proceeds of the bonds to finance certain authorized public facilities; and

WHEREAS, the Authority desires to issue the "Folsom Ranch Financing
Authority City of Folsom Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch) Improvement
Area No. 1 Special Tax Revenue Bonds, Series 2020" (the "Bonds") pursuant to that certain Trust
Agreement (the "Trust Agreement"), among the Authority, the Community Facilities District and

Resolution No. 006-Folsom Ranch FA
Page I of5 Page 149

10/13/2020 Item No.12.



MUFG Union Bank, N.A., as trustee (the "Trustee"), in order to provide funds to purchase the
Local Obligations and to pay costs of issuance; and

WHEREAS, the Authority has determined that the estimated amount necessary to
finance the purchase of the Local Obligations will require the issuance of the Bonds in the

aggregate principal amount not to exceed sixteen million five hundred thousand dollars
($16,500,000); and

WHEREAS, the Authority and the Community Facilities District have determined
that all things necessary to make the Bonds, when authenticated by the Trustee, and issued as

provided in the Trust Agreement, the valid, binding and legal obligations of the Authorify
according to the import thereof and hereof have been done and performed; and

WHEREAS, in furtherance of implementing the financing, there have been filed
with the Authority Secretary for consideration and approval by this Board forms of the following:

(a) a Trust Agreement, under the terms of which the Bonds are to be issued and

the Revenues (as said term is defined in the Trust Agreement and as said
Revenues are received by the Authority as holder of the Local Obligations)
are to be administered to pay the principal of and interest on the Bonds;

(b) a Local Obligation Purchase Contract, under the terms of which, among
other things, the Community Facilities District agrees to sell and the
Authority agrees to purchase the Local Obligations;

(c) a Bond Purchase Contract, under the terms of which, among other things,
the Authority agrees to sell and the underwriter agrees to purchase the
Bonds; and

(d) a Preliminary Official Statement, describing the Bonds and the Local
Obligations; and

WHEREAS' Government Code Section 5852.I requires that the Governing Board
of the Authority obtain from an underwriter, financial adviser or private lender and disclose, prior
to authorization of the issuance of bonds with a term of greater than 13 months, good faith
estimates of the following information in a meeting open to the public: (a) the true interest cost of
the bonds, (b) the sum of all fees and charges paid to third parties with respect to the bonds, (c) the

amount of proceeds of the bonds expected to be received net of the fees and charges paid to third
parties and any reserves or capitalized interest paid or funded with proceeds of the bonds, and (d)
the sum total of all debt service payments on the bonds calculated to the final maturity of the bonds
plus the fees and charges paid to third parties not paid with the proceeds of the bonds; and

WHEREAS, in compliance with Government Code Section5852.l,the Governing
Board of the Authority has obtained from Fieldman, Rolapp & Associates,Inc., municipal adviser
to the Authority, the required good faith estimates and such estimates have been disclosed at this
meeting; and

Resolution No. 006-Folsom Ranch FA
Page 2 of 5 Page 150

10/13/2020 Item No.12.



WHEREAS' being fully advised in the matter of the proposed financing program,
this Board wishes to proceed with implementation of said financing program; and

WHEREAS, all acts, conditions and things required by the Constitution and laws
of the State of California to exist, to have happened and to have been performed precedent to and
in connection with the consummation of the financing authorized hereby do exist, have happened
and have been performed in regular and due time, form and manner as required by law, and the
Authority is now duly authorized and empowered, pursuant to each and every requirement of law,
to authorize the execution and delivery of certain documents in order to further implement the
financing in the manner and upon the terms herein provided; and

WHEREAS, as required by the Law, the City has conducted a public hearing and
has determined that the issuance of the Bonds by the Authority and the acquisition of the Local
Obligations will result in significant public benefits, including more efficient delivery of local
agency services to residential and commercial development.

NOW, THEREF'ORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Governing Board of the
Folsom Ranch Financing Authority as follows:

Section 1. The foregoing recitals are true and correct, and this Board so finds
and determines.

Section 2. Pursuant to the Law, the Bonds shall be issued in the aggregate
principal amount of not to exceed sixteen million five hundred thousand dollars ($16,500,000).
No Bond shall mature later than September 1, 2050.

Section 3 The form and substance of the Trust Agreement are hereby
approved. The Treasurer of the Authority or designee thereof is hereby authorized and directed,
for and in the name and on behalf of the Authority, to execute and deliver the Trust Agreement in
substantially said form, with such changes therein as such officer may require or approve, such
approval to be conclusively evidenced by the execution and delivery thereof.

Section 4. The form and substance of the Local Obligation Purchase Contract
is hereby approved. The Treasurer of the Authority or designee thereof is hereby authorized and
directed, for and in the name and on behalf of the Authority, to execute and deliver the Local
Obligation Purchase Contract in substantially said form, with such changes therein as such officer
may require or approve, such approval to be conclusively evidenced by the execution and delivery
thereof.

Section 5. The form and substance of the Bond Purchase Contract is hereby
approved. The Treasurer of the Authority or designee thereof is hereby authorized and directed,
for and in the name and on behalf of the Authority, to execute and deliver the Bond Purchase
Contract in substantially said form, with such changes therein as such officer may require or
approve, such approval to be conclusively evidenced by the execution and delivery thereof;
provided that the true interest cost of the Bonds shall not exceed five percent (5.0%) and the
underwriter's discount (exclusive of original issue discount) shall not exceed one and one half
percent (1.5%).

Resolution No. 006-Folsom Ranch FA
Page 3 of5

Page 151

10/13/2020 Item No.12.



Section 6. (a) The form and substance of the Preliminary Official Statement is

hereby approved. The Treasurer of the Authority or designee thereof is authorized to execute the

final Official Statement to be derived therefrom.

(b) This Board hereby authorizes the Treasurer of the Authority or designee

thereof to find and determine that said Preliminary Official Statement in preliminary form is, and

as of its date shall be deemed "final" for purposes of Rule I5c2-12 of the Securities and Exchange

Commission, andthe Treasurer of the Authority or designee thereof is hereby authorizedto execute

a certificate to such effect in the customary form.

(c) The Treasurer of the Authority or designee is authorized to approve

corrections and additions to the Preliminary Official Statement by supplement or amendment

thereto, by appropriate insertions, or otherwise as appropriate, provided that such corrections or
additions shall be regarded by such officer as necessary to cause the information contained therein

to conform to facts material to the Bonds or the Local Obligations or to the proceedings of this
Board or the City Council or that such corrections or additions are in form rather than in substance.

(d) The underwriter of the Bonds is authorized to distribute said Preliminary
Official Statement and the final Official Statement to be derived therefrom in connection with the

sale and delivery of the Bonds.

Section 7. The officers of the Authority are hereby authorized and directed,
jointly and severally, to do any and all things and to execute and deliver any and all documents,

including any agency agreement, which they may deem necessary or advisable in order to carry

out, give effect to and comply with the terms and intent of this resolution, including any subsequent

amendments, waivers or consents entered into or given in accordance with any of the documents

approved hereby, and to obtain a policy of bond insurance, a rating andlor a reserve fund surety
policy for any series of the Bonds. Such actions heretofore taken by such officers are hereby

ratified, confirmed and approved.

Section 8. This resolution shall take effect immediately upon its passage.

Resolution No. 006-Folsom Ranch FA
Page 4 of5 Page 152

10/13/2020 Item No.12.



PASSED AND ADOPTED this 13ft day of October 2020,by the following roll call vote:

AYES:

NOES:

ABSENT:

ABSTAIN:

Board Member(s):

Board Member(s):

Board Member(s):

Board Member(s):

Sarah Aquino, CHAIR

ATTEST:

Christa Freemantle, SECRETARY

Resolution No. 006-Folsom Ranch FA
Page 5 of5 Page 153

10/13/2020 Item No.12.



ATTACHMENT 3

Page 154

10/13/2020 Item No.12.



OH&S DRAFT
09t2s/20

TRUST AGREEMENT

by and among the

FOLSOM RANCH FINANCING AUTHORITY

and the

CITY OF FOLSOM
COMMI.INITY FACILITIES DISTRICT NO. 23

(FOLSOM RANCH)

and

MUFG UNION BANK, N.A.,
as Trustee

Relating to the

$[PAR AMOI-INT]
FOLSOM RANCH FINANCING AUTHORITY

CITY OF FOLSOM COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT
NO. 23 (FOLSOM RANCH) IMPROVEMENT AREA NO. 1

SPECIAL TAX REVENUE BONDS,
SERIES 2O2O

Dated as of Novernber 1 ,2020

4162-2872-2726.5
Page 155

10/13/2020 Item No.12.



TRUST AGREEMENT

This Trust Agreement (the "Trust Agreement"), dated as of November 1 ,2020,by
and among the Folsom Ranch Financing Authority, a joint exercise of powers agency duly
organized and existing under the laws of the State of California (the "Authority"), the City of
Folsom Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch), organized and existing under and

by virtue of the laws of the State of California (the "Community Facilities District") and MUFG
Union Bank, N.A., a national banking association duly organized and existing under the laws of
the United States of America, as Trustee (the "Trustee");

WITNESSETH

WHEREAS, the Authority is empowered under the provisions of the Marks-Roos
Local Bond Pooling Act of 1985, being Article 4, Chapter 5, Division 7 , Title 1 of the California
Government Code (the "Law"), to issue its bonds for the purpose of purchasing various Local
Obligations (as defined herein) issued by certain local agencies; and

WHEREAS, the Authority has determined to issue its Folsom Ranch Financing
Authority City of Folsom Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch) Improvement
Area No. I Special Tax Revenue Bonds, Series 2020 (the "Authority Bonds") to be secured by a
pledge, lien and claim upon the Revenues (as that term is defined herein) in order to provide a

portion of the funds necessary to purchase the Local Obligations (as that term is defined herein);

WHEREAS, the Authority and the Community Facilities District have determined
that all things necessary to make the Authority Bonds (as that term is defined herein), when issued

by the Authority and authenticated by the Trustee and delivered as provided herein, valid, binding
and legal obligations of the Authority according to the imporl thereof and hereof have been done

and performed; and

NOW, THEREFORE, THIS TRUST AGREEMENT WITNESSETH, that in
consideration of the premises, the acceptance by the Trustee of the trusts hereby created and other
good and valuable consideration, the receipt of which is hereby acknowledged, and in order to
secure the payment of the interest on and principal of and redemption premiums, if any, on all
Authority Bonds Outstanding (as that term is defined herein) hereunder fi'om time to time
according to their tenor and effect, and the making of such other payments required to be made by
the Authority and the satisfaction of all the agreements, conditions, covenants and terms expressed

and implied herein and in the Authority Bonds, the Autholity does hereby assign, bargain, convey,
grant, mortgage and pledge a security interest unto the Trustee and unto its successors and assigns
hereunder fbrever in all light, title and interest of tl-re Authority in, to and under, subject to the
provisions hereof permitting the application thereof for the purposes and on the terms and

conditions set for'ththerein, each and all of the fbllowing (collectively, the "TrlrstEstate"):

(a) the proceeds of sale of the Authority Bonds;

4 t62-2872-2726.5

(b) the Revenues (as that terrn is defined herein);

Page 156

10/13/2020 Item No.12.



(c) the amounts in the Funds (as that term is defined herein) established and

held hereunder, except amounts in the Rebate Fund; and

(d) the Local Obligations;

TO HAVE AND TO HOLD IN TRUST all of the same hereby assigned, bargained,

conveyed, granted, mortgaged and pledged or agreed or intended so to be to the Trustee and to its
successors and assigns forever for the equal and ratable benefit of the Owner issued by the

Authority hereunder and authenticated by the Trustee and delivered hereunder and Outstanding

hereunder, without any prior"ity as to the Trust Estate of any one Authority Bond over any other
(except as expressly provided in or permitted hereby), upon the trusts and subject to the

agreements, conditions, covenants and terms hereinafter set forth;

AND THIS TRUST AGREEMENT FURTHER WITNESSETH, and it is expressly

declared, that all Authority Bonds issued and secured hereunder are to be issued, authenticated and

delivered and all of the rights and property hereby assigned, bargained, conveyed, granted,

mortgaged and pledged are to be dealt with and disposed of under, upon and subject to the

agreements, conditions, covenants, terms, trusts and uses as hereinafter expressed, and the

Authority and the Comrnunity Facilities District have agreed and covenanted, and do hereby agree

and covenant, with the Trustee and with the Owner, as follows:

ARTICLE I

DEFINITIONS

SECTION 1.01. Definitions. The terms set forth below shall have the following
meanings set forth herein, unless the context clearly otherwise requires:

"Act" shall mean the Mello-Roos Community Facilities Act of 1982, as amended

(being Sections 53311 et seq. of the Government Code of the State of California), and all laws

amendatory thereof or supplemental thereto.

"Authority" shall mean the Folsom Ranch Financing Authority, a joint exercise of
powers agency duly organized and existing under the laws of the State of California, and its
successors and assigns.

"Authority Bond" or "Authority Bonds" shall mean the Folsom Ranch Financing

Authority City of Folsom Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch) Improvement
Area No. 1 Special Tax Revenue Bonds, Series 2020. "Serial Authority Bonds" shall mean the

Authority Bonds for which no Minimum Sinking Fund Payments are provided. "Term Authority
Bonds" shall mean the Authority Bonds which are payable on or before their specified maturity
date from Minimum sinking Fund Payments established for that purpose and calculated to retire

such Authority Bonds on ol befbre tl-reir specified rnaturity date.

"Authorized Denominations" shall mean five thousand dollars ($5,000) and any

integral multiple thereof, but not exceeding the principal amount of the Authority Bonds rnaturing

or1 any one date.

2
4 t 62-2872-2726.5

Page 157

10/13/2020 Item No.12.



"Authorized Officer" shall mean, when used with reference to the Authority, the
Chair, the Treasurer or any other person authorized by the Authority in a Written Order or
resolution to perform an act or sign a document on behalf of the Autholity for the purposes hereof,
and when used with reference to the Community Facilities District and the City, acting for and on

belialf of the Community Facilities District, the Mayor, the Chief Financial Officer, the Finance
Dilector or any other person authorized by the City or the Community Facilities District, as

applicable, in a Written Order or resolution to perform an act or sign a document on behalf of the

City or the Community Facilities District for the purposes hereof.

"Bond Counsel" shall mean an attorney-at-law, or a firm of such attorneys, of
nationally recognized standing in matters pertaining to the tax-exempt nature of interest on

obligations issued by states and their political subdivisions.

"Bond Register" shall mean the registration books specified as such in Section 2.05.

"Bond Year" shall mean the twelve-month period terminating on September 1 of
each year; provided, that the first Bond Year shall commence on the date of the execution and

initial delivery of the Authority Bonds and end on September 1,2021.

"Business Day" shall mean any day other than (i) a Saturday or a Sunday or (ii) a

day on which commercial banks in New York, New York, or the city in which the Corporate Trust
Office of the Trustee is located, are closed.

"Cash Flow Certificate" shall mean a written certificate executed by a Cash Flow
Consultant.

"Cash Flow Consultant" shall mean a financial consultant or firm of such

consultants generally recognized to be well qualified in the financial consulting field relating to
municipal securities such as the Authority Bonds, appointed and paid by the Community Facilities
District or the Authority and who, or each of whom:

(1) is in fact independent and not under the domination of the Community
Facilities District, the Authority or the City;

(2) does not have any substantial interest, direct or indirect, with the

Community Facilities District, the Authority or the City; and

(3) is not connected with the Community Facilities District, the Authority or
the City as a member, officer or employee of the Community Facilities District, the Authority or
the City, but who may be regularly letained to make annual or other reports to the Community
Facilities District, the Authority or the City.

The Cash Flow Consultant shall not, as a result of its role as Cash Flow Consultant,
be deemed to have a "financial advisory relationship" with the Authority within the meaning of
Califolnia Gover'ntnent Code Section 53590(c).

"Chair" shall mean the Chair of the Authority

a)
4162-2872-2726 5

Page 158

10/13/2020 Item No.12.



"Chief Financial Officer" shall mean the Chief Financial Officer of the City

"City" shall mean the City of Folsom, a charter city and municipal corporation duly
organized and existing under its charter and the Constitution and laws of the State of California,
and its successors.

"City Manager" shall mean the City Manager of the City

"Code" shall mean the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, and the
regulations issued thereunder.

"Community Facilities District" shall mean the City of Folsom Community
Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch), established by the City pursuant to the Act.

"Corporate Trust Office" shall mean the designated corporate trust office of the
Trustee at the location set forth in Section 13.03.

"Dated Date" shall mean the applicable date of the original execution and delivery
of the Authority Bonds.

"DTC" shall mean The Depository Trust Company, in New York, New York; or,
in accordance with then current guidelines of the Securities and Exchange Commission, such other
securities depository as the Authority may designate in an Officer's Certificate delivered to the
Trustee.

"Event of Default" shall mean an event of default specified as such in Section 8.01

"Finance Director" shall mean the Finance Director of the City

"Fund" or "Funds" shall mean any or all, as the case may be, of the Revenue Fund,
the Interest Fund, the Principal Fund, the Redemption Fund, the Proceeds Fund, the Local
Obligations Fund and the Rebate Fund, including all accounts therein.

"Government Obligations" shall mean any Investment Securities described in
clause (i) or clause (ii) of the definition thereof but excluding any securities that are callable or
prepayable prior to the redemption or maturity date of the Authority Bonds to be paid therefi'om,
and excluding any securities that do not have a fixed par value or the terms of which do not promise
a fixed dollar amount at maturity or earlier call date.

"lmprovement Area" means Improvement Area No. I of the Community Facilities
District.

"Indenture Trustee" means MUFG Union Bank, N.A., as trustee under the Local
Obli gations Indenture.

"lnteLest Fund" shall rnean the fund by that name established pursuant to
Section 5.01

4
4t62-2872-2726.5

Page 159

10/13/2020 Item No.12.



"lnterest Payment Date" shall mean March I and Septernber 1 in each year,
commencing on March 7,2021.

"lnvestment Securities" shall mean and include any of the following securities, to
the extent perrnitted by the laws of the State and the City's Investment Policy, for and on behalf
of the Community Facilities District as it rnay be amended from time to time:

(i) Cash (insured at all times by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation or
fully collaterahzed by Investment Securities described in clause (ii) hereof);

(ii) Obligations of, or obligations guaranteed as to principal and interest by, the
United States of America or any agency or instrumentality thereof, when such obligations are

backed by the full faith and credit of the United States of America including:

(A) All direct or fully guaranteed U.S. Treasury obligations;

(B) Farmers Home Administration;

(C) GeneralServicesAdministration;

(D) Guaranteed Title XI financing;

(E) Government National Mortgage Association (GNMA); and

(F) U.S. Treasury - State and Local Government Series;

(iii) Obligations of any of the following federal agencies which obligations
represent the full faith and credit of the United States of America, including:

(A) Export-Import Bank;

(B) RuralEconomicCommunityDevelopmentAdministration;

(C) U.S. Maritime Administration;

(D) SmallBusinessAdministration;

(E) U.S. Department of Housing & Urban Development (PHAs);

(F) Federal Hor,rsing Administration; and

(G) Federal Financing Bank;

(iv) Direct obligations of any of the following federal agencies wliich
obligations are not fully guaranteed by the full faith and credit of the United States of America:

(A) Senior debt obligations issued by the Federal National Mortgage
Association (FNMA) or Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation (FHLMC);

5
4162-2872-2726.5

Page 160

10/13/2020 Item No.12.



(B)

(c)

Obligations of the Resolution Funding Corporation (REFCORP);

Senior debt obligations of the Federal Home Loan Bank Systern;
and

(D) Senior debt obligations of other Government Sponsored Agencies;

(v) U.S. Dollar-denominated deposit accounts, federal funds and bankers'
acceptances with domestic commercial banks which have a rating on their short term certificates
of deposit on the date of purchase of "P-1" by Moody's and 

((A-1" 
or "A-1*" by S&P and maturing

not more than 360 calendar days after the date of purchase (provided that ratings on holding
companies shall not be considered the rating of the bank) or fully collateralized by Investment
Securities described in clause (ii) hereof for amounts in excess of deposit insurance;

(vi) Commercial paper which is rated at the time of purchase in the single
highest classification, "P-1" by Moody's and "A-1*" by S&P and which matures not more than
270 calendar days after the date ofpurchase;

(vii) Investments in a money market fund rated "AAAm" or "AAAm-G" or
better by S&P, including funds for which the Trustee or an affiliate provides investment
management or other services but excluding funds with a floating net asset value;

(viii) "Pre-refunded Municipal Obligations," defined as fbllows: any bonds or
other obligations of any state of the United States of America or of any agency, instrumentality or
local governmental unit of any such state which are not callable at the option of the obligor prior
to maturity or as to which irrevocable instructions have been given by the obligor to call on the
date specified in the notice and (A) which are rated, based on an irrevocable escrow account or
fund (the "escrow"), in the highest rating category of Moody's or S&P or any successors thereto;
or (B) (1) which are fully secured as to principal and interest and redemption prernium, if any, by
an escrow consisting only of cash or obligations described in clause (ii) of this definition, which
escrow may be applied only to the payment of such principal of and interest and redemption
premium, if any, on such bonds or other obligations on the maturity date or dates thereof or the
specified redemption date or dates pursuant to such irrevocable instructions, as appropriate, and
(2) which escrow is sufficient, as verified by a nationally recognized independent certified public
accountant, to pay principal of and interest and redemption premium, if any, on the bonds or other
obligations described in this paragraph on the maturity date or dates specified in the irrevocable
instructions leferred to above, as appropriate;

(ix) Any bonds or other obligations of any agency, instrumentality or local
governmental unit of any state of the United States of America which are rated "AaalAAA" or
general obligations of any such state with ratings of "A2" or higher by Moody's and 'oA" or higher
by S&P.

(x) The Local Agency Investment Fund (established under Sections 53600-
53609 of the California Government Code, as amended or supplen-rer.rted fiorn time to time).

6
4 t62-2872-2726.5

Page 161

10/13/2020 Item No.12.



"Law" shall mean the Marks-Roos Local Bond Pooling Act of 1985, being Article 4

of Chapter 5 of Division 7 of Title 1 of the Califomia Government Code, and all laws amendatory
thereof or supplemental thereto.

"Letter of Representation" shall rnean the letter of the Authority delivered to and

accepted by the Depository on or prior to the issuance of the Authority Bonds setting forth the

basis on which the Depository serves as depository for such Authority Bonds as originally
executed or as it may be supplemented or revised or replaced by a letter to a substitute depository.

"Local Obligations Fund" shall mean the fund by that name established pursuant to
Section 5.01

"Local Obligations Indenture" shall mean the indenture authorizing and securing
the Local Obligations and pursuant to which the Local Obligations were issued.

"Local Obligation Purchase Contract" shall mean the purchase contract entered into
between the Authority and the Community Facilities District providing for the purchase of the

Local Obligations by the Authority with the proceeds of the Authority Bonds.

"Local Obligations" shall mean the Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom
Ranch) Improvement Area No. 1 Special Tax Bonds, Series 2020 to be issued by the Community
Facilities District pursuant to the Act and to be purchased by the Authority pursuant to the Law.

"Mayor" shall rnean the Mayor of the City.

"Minimum Sinking Fund Payments" shall mean the payments required by
Section 2.01 to be deposited in the Sinking Fund Account.

"Moody's" shall mean Moody's Investors Service Inc., a corporation duly
organized and existing under and by virtue of the laws of the State of Delaware, and its successors

or assigns, except that if such entity shall be dissolved or liquidated or shall no longer perform the
functions of a municipal securities rating agency, then the term "Moody's" shall be deemed to
refer to any other nationally recognized municipal securities rating agency selected by the
Authority (which shall be under no liability by reason of such selection).

"Officer's Certificate" shall mean a certificate signed by an Authorized Officer

"Opinion of Bond Counsel" shall mean a legal opinion signed by a Bond Counsel
selected by the Authority.

"Outstanding" shall mean, with respect to the Authority Bonds and as of any date,

all Authority Bonds authorized, issued. authenticated and deliveled hereunder, except:

(a) Authority Bonds canceled or surrender"ed to the Trustee for cancellation
pursuant to Section 2.08;

(b) Authority Borids deerned to have been paid pursuant to Section 12.02;

7
4 t 62-2872-2726.5

Page 162

10/13/2020 Item No.12.



(c) Authority Bonds in lieu of or in substitution for which other Authority
Bonds slrall have been authenticated and delivered pursuant to Section 2.03; and

(d) Authority Bonds paid pursuant to Section2.O3

"Owner" shall mean, as of any date, the Person or Persons in whose name or names

a particr-rlar'Bond shall be registered on the Bond Register as of such date.

"Person" shall mean an individual, a corporation, a partnership, an association, a

joint stock company, a trust, any unincorporated organization or a government or political
subdivision thereof.

"Principal Fund" shall mean the fund by that name established pursuant to
Section 5.01

"Principal Installment," when used with respect to any Principal Payment Date,

shall mean the principal amount of Outstanding Authority Bonds due on such date.

"Principal Payment Date," when used with reference to an Authority Bond, shall
lnean the rnaturity date or the Minimum Sinking Fund Payrnent date for such Authority Bond.

"Proceeds Fund" shall mean the fund by that name established pursuant to
Section 5.01

"Rebate Fund" shall mean the fund by that name established pursuant to
Section 5.01

"Rebate Instructions" shall mean the calculations and directions required to be

delivered to the Trustee by the Authority pursuant to the Tax Certificate.

"Rebate Requirement" shall mean the Rebate Requirement defined in the Tax
Certificate

"Record Date" shall mean the fifteenth (15th) day of the month preceding any

Interest Payrnent Date, whethel or not such day is a Business Day.

"Redemption Fund" shall rnean the fund by that name established pursuant to
Section 5.01

"Responsible Officer of the Trustee" means any officer within the corporate trust
division (or ar-ry successor group or department of the Trustee) including any vice president,
assistant vice president, assistant secretary or any other officer or assistant officer of the Trustee
custornarily performing functions similal to those performed by the persons who at the tirne shall
be such of1lcers, respectively, with responsibility for the administration of this Trust Agreement.

"Revenue Fund" shall mean the fund by that name established pursuant to
Section 5.01

8
1 162-2872-2726.5

Page 163

10/13/2020 Item No.12.



"Revenues" shall mean all amounts received by the Trustee as the payment of
interest on, or the equivalent thereof, and the payment or return of principal of, or redernption
premiums, if any, on, or the equivalent thereof, all Local Obligations, whether as a result of
scheduled payments, or redemption premiums, Special Tax Plepayments or remedial ploceedings
taken in the event of a default thereon, and all investment earnings on any money held in the Funds
held hereunder (except the Rebate Fund).

"S&P" shall mean S&P Global Ratings, a business of Standard & Poor's Financial
Services LLC, and its successors or assigns, except that if such entity shall be dissolved or
liquidated or shall no longer perform the functions of a municipal secur'ities rating agency, then
the term "S&P" shall be deemed to refer to any other nationally recognized municipal securities
rating agency selected by the Authority (which shall be under no liability by reason of such

selection).

"Secretary" shall mean the Secretary of the Authority

"sinking Fund Account" shall mean the account within the Principal Fund by that
name established pursuant to Section 2.01.

"special Tax" shall mean the special tax authorized to be levied and collected
annually on all Taxable Property in the Improvement Area under and pursuant to the Act at the

special election held in the Community Facilities District.

"special Tax Prepayments" shall mean all payments to the Community Facilities
District by or on behalf of the owner of a parcel within the Improvement Area subject to a Special

Tax to accomplish a pay-off of the Special Tax obligation pertaining to such parcel and the
discharge of the Special Tax lien with respect to such parcel (except the portion thereof, if any,

which represents accrued interest on the Local Obligations).

"special Tax Revenues" shall mean all money collected and received by the
Comrnunity Facilities District on account of unpaid Special Tax obligations within the
Improvement Area, including all amounts collected in the normal course by the Community
Facilities District, all Special Tax Prepayments and all amounts received by the Community
Facilities District as a result of superior court foreclosure proceedings brought to enforce payment
of delinquent Special Taxes within the Improvement Atea, but excluding therefrom any amounts

explicitly included therein on account of collection charges, administrative cost charges, or
attorneys' fees and costs paid as a result offoreclosure actions.

"Special Record Date" shall mean the date established by the Trustee pursuant to
Section 2.01 as a record date for the payment of defaulted interest on the Autholity Bonds.

"State" shall mean the State of California.

"supplemental Trust Agreement" shall mean any trust agreement supplemental to
or amendatory of this Trust Agreement which is duly executed and delivered in accordance with
the provisions of Article XI.

9
4 t 62-2872-2726.5

Page 164

10/13/2020 Item No.12.



"Term Authority Bonds" shall mean the Authority Bonds which are payable on or
before their specified maturity date fiom Minirnum Siriking Fund Payments established fol that
purpose and calculated to retire such Authority Bonds on or before their specified maturity date.

"Tax Certificate" shall mean each certificate for the Authority Bonds relating to
various federal tax requirements, including the lequirements of Section 148 of the Code, signed

by the Autholity and the Community Facilities District on the Dated Date, as the same may be

amended or supplemented in accordance with its terrns.

"TLeasurer" shall mean the Treasurer of the Authority.

"Taxable Property" shall mean all property within the Improvement Area taxable
under the Act in accordance with the proceedings for the authorization of the issuance of the Local
Obligations and the levy and collection of the Special Tax.

"Trust Agreement" shall mean this Trust Agreement dated as ofNovember 7,2020,
by and among the Authority, the Community Facilities District and the Trustee pursuant to which
the Authority Bonds are to be issued, as amended or supplemented from time to time in accordance
with its terms.

"Trust Estate" shall have the meaning ascribed thereto in the granting clause hereof,

"Trustee" shall mean MUFG Union Bank, N.A., a national banking association
duly organized and existing under the laws of the United States of America, in its capacity as

Trustee hereunder, and any successol as Trustee heleunder.

"Written Order" shall mean, when used with reference to the Authority, a written
direction of the Authority to the Trustee signed by an Authorized Officer, and when used with
reference to the Community Facilities District, an instrument in writing signed by the City
Manager or the Finance Director, or by any other officer of the City duly authorized by the City
Council, as legislative body of the Community Facilities District, for that purpose.

SECTION 1.02. Rules of Construction. Except where the context otherwise requires,
all words imparting the singular number shall include the plural number and vice versa, and all
prollouns inferring the masculine gendel shall include the ferninine gender and vice versa. The
headings or titles of the several alticles and sections hereof and the table of contents appended
hereto shall be solely for convenience of ref-erence and shall not affect the meaning, construction
or effect hereof. All references herein to "Articles," "Sections" and other subdivisions or clauses

are to the corresponding articles, sections, subdivisions or clauses hereof; and the words "hereby,"
"herein," "hel'eof," "hereto," "herewith," "hereunder" and other words of similar irnport lef-er to

this Trust Agreement as a whole and not to any particular article, section, subdivision or clause
tlrereof.

ARTICLE II

TERMS OF AUTHORITY BONDS

SECTION 2.01. The Autholity Bonds. The Authority Bonds shall be issued under
and secured by this Trust Agreement and shall be in the forrn of fully registered bonds in

l0
4162-2872-2726.5

Page 165

10/13/2020 Item No.12.



denominations of five thousand dollars ($5,000) or any integral multiple of five thousand dollars
($5,000) in excess thereof designated the "Folsom Ranch Financing Authority City of Folsom
Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch) Improvement Area No. I Special Tax
Revenue Bonds, Series 2020" and shall be in the aggregate principal amount of [PAR IN WORDS]
dollars ($[PAR]). The Authority Bonds shall be dated the Dated Date and shall bear interest at the
rates specified in the table below, such interest being payable semiannually on each Interest
Payment Date, and shall mature on the Principal Payment Dates in tlie following years in the

following principal amounts, namely:

Principal
Payment Date
(September 1)

Principal
Amount

Interest
Rate

%

- 
Ternr Bonds

Minimum Sinking Fund Payments are hereby established for the mandatory
redemption and payment of the Term Authority Bonds, whicli payments shall become due duling
the years ending on the dates and in the amounts set forlh in the following schedule (except that if
any Term Authority Bonds have been redeemed pursuant to Section 4.02 or 4.03, the amounts of
such Minimum Sinking Fund Payments shall be reduced proportionately by the principal amount
of all such Term Authority Bonds so redeemed), namely:

Term Authority Bond Maturing September 1,201 I

$

Year
Ending

September 1

Minimum
Sinking Fund

Account Payment
$

4162-2812-2726.5

1l

Page 166

10/13/2020 Item No.12.



- 
Maturity

A Bond Ma ber I 20

Year
Ending

September 1

Minimum
Sinking Fund

Account Payment
$

Manrrity.

All such Minimum Sinking Fund Payments for the Term Authority Bonds shall be

deposited in a separate account in the Principal Fund, which account is hereby established and

shall be known as the Sinking Fund Account and which account the Authority hereby agrees and

covenants to cause to be maintained by the Trustee so long as any Term Authority Bonds are

Outstanding. All money in the Sinking Fund Account on September I of each year during the
period beginning on Septemb er 1,201 ], and ending on September 1, 20f ], both years inclusive,
shall be used and withdrawn by the Authority on each such September I for the mandatory
redemption or payment of the Term Authority Bonds maturing on September 1, 20Ll; and all
money in the Sinking Fund Account on September I of each year during the period beginning on
September 1,201 f, and ending on September 1, 201_], both years inclusive, shall be used and

withdrawn by the Authority on each such September 1 for the mandatory redemption or payment
of the Term Authority Bonds maturing on September 1, 20L), and the Authority hereby agrees

and covenants with the Owners of the respective Term Authority Bonds to call and redeem in
accordance with Section 4.04 or pay the Term Authority Bonds from Minimum Sinking Fund
Payments deposited in the Sinking Fund Account pursuant to this paragraph whenever on
September I of any year there is money in the Sinking Fund Account available for such purpose.

The interest on and principal of and redemption premiums, if any, on the Authority
Bonds shall be payable in lawful money of the United States of America. The Authority Bonds
shall be issued as fully registered bonds and shall be numbered from one (l) upward. The
Autholity Bonds shall bear interest frorn the Dated Date. Payment of the interest on any Authority
Bond shall be made to the Person whose name appears on the Bond Register as the Owner tliereof
as of the close of business on the Record Date, such interest to be paid by check mailed by first
class mail on each Interest Payment Date to the Owner at the address which appears on the Bond
Register as of the Record Date for that purpose; except tliat in the case of an Owner of one million
dollars ($1,000,000) or rnole in aggregate principal amount of Authority Bonds, ttpon written
request of such Owner to the Trustee received not later than such Record Date, such interest shall
be paid on such Interest Payrnent Date in irnmediately available furrds by wire transfer to an

account in a bank or trust company or savings bar-rk that is a rnember of the Feder"al Reserve System

and that is located in the continental United States of Arnerica. The principal of and redemption
premiums, if any, on the Ar-rthority Bonds sliall be payable by the Trustee at its Corporate Tlust
Office upon presentation and surrender of such Authority Bonds. Interest shall be calculated on

4162-2872-2126 s

12

Page 167

10/13/2020 Item No.12.



the basis of a 360-day year corrsisting of twelve (12) 30-day calendar months; provided, that
notwithstanding any other provision herein contained, any interest not punctually paid or duly
plovided for, as a result of an Event of Default or otherwise, shall forthwith cease to be payable to
the Owner on the Record Date and shall be paid to the Owner in whose name the Authority Bond
is registered at the close of business on a Special Record Date for the payment of such defaulted
interest to be fixed by the Trustee, notice of which shall be given to the Owner not less than ten
(10) Business Days prior to such Special Record Date.

SECTION 2.02. Folm of Authorit)' Bonds. The Authority Bonds and the forms of
the certificate of authentication, the assignment and the DTC endorsement to appear thereon shall
be substantially as set forth in Exhibit A hereto, with such variations, insertions or omissions as

are appropriate and not inconsistent herewith.

SECTION 2.03. Authorit)z Bonds Mutilated. Destroyed. Stolen or Lost. In the event

any Authority Bond is mutilated, lost, stolen or destroyed, the Authority may execute and, upon
its request in writing, the Trustee shall authenticate and deliver a substitute Authority Bond of the

same principal amount and maturity as the mutilated, lost, stolen or destroyed Authority Bond in
exchange and substitution for such mutilated Authority Bond, or in lieu of and substitution for
such lost, stolen or destroyed Authority Bond.

Application for exchange and substitution of mutilated, lost, stolen or destroyed
Authority Bonds shall be made to the Trustee at its Corporate Trust Office. In every case the

applicant for a substitute Authority Bond shall furnish to the Trustee indemnification to its
satisfaction, and in every case of loss, theft or destruction of an Authority Bond, the applicant shall
also furnish to the Authority and the Trustee evidence to theil satisfaction of such loss, theft or
destruction and of the identity of the applicant, and in every case of mutilation of an Authority
Bond, the applicant shall surrender the mutilated Authority Bond to the Trustee.

Notwithstanding the foregoirig provisions of this Section, in the event any such
Authority Bond shall have matured, and no default has occurred which is then continuing in the
payment of the interest on or principal of or redemption premiums, if any, on the Authority Bonds,
the Trustee shall, upon written direction from the Authority, pay the same (without surrender
thereof except in the case of a mutilated Autl-ror'ity Bond) instead of issuing a substitute Authority
Bond so long as indemnification is furnished as above provided.

Upon the issuance of any substitute Authority Bond, the Trustee may charge the

Owner of such Authority Bond 1br its reasonable fees and expenses in connection therewith. Every
substitute Authority Bond issued pursuant to the provisions of this Section by virtue of the fact
that any Authority Bond is lost, stolen or destroyed shall constitute an original additional
contractual obligation of the Authority, whethel or not the lost, stolen or destroyed Authority Bond
shall be found at any time, or be enfbrceable by anyone, and shall be entitled to all the benefits
hereof equally and proportionally with any and all othel Authority Bonds duly issued hereunder
to the same extent as the Authority Bor-rds in substitution for which such substitute Authority Bonds
were issued.

4162-2872-2726 5

13

Page 168

10/13/2020 Item No.12.



SECTION 2.04. Execution of Authority Bonds. All Authority Bonds shall, fi'om
time to time, be executed on behalf of the Authority by the manual ol facsimile signature of tlie
Treasurer and attested by the manual ol facsimile signature of the Secretary.

If any of the officers who shall have signed any Authority Bond shall cease to be

such officer of the Authority before the Authority Bond so signed shall have been actually
authenticated by the Trustee or delivered, such Authority Bond nevertheless may be authenticated,
issued and delivered with the same force and effect as though the person or persons who signed
such Authority Bond had not ceased to be such officer of the Authority, and any such Authority
Bond rnay be signed on behalf of the Authority by those persons who, at the actual date of the
execution of such Authority Bond, shall be the proper officers of the Authority, although on the
date of such Authority Bond any such person shall not have been such officer of the Authority.

SECTION 2.05. Transfer and Registration olAuthorrtv Baldt The Authority Bonds
shall be transferred or exchanged and title thereto shall pass only in the manner provided herein,
and the Trustee shall keep books constituting the Bond Register for the registration and transfer of
the Authority Bonds as provided herein. All Authority Bonds presented for transfer or exchange
shall be accompanied by a written instrument or instruments of transfer or authorization for
exchange, in fonn and with guaranty of signature satisfactory to the Trustee, duly executed by the
Owner or by his or her attorney duly authorized in writing, and all such Authority Bonds shall be

surrendered to the Trustee and canceled by the Trustee pursuant to Section 2.08. The Authority
and the Trustee shall be entitled to conclusively treat the Owner as the absolute owner of such
Authority Bond for the purpose of receiving any payment of the interest on or principal of or
redemption premium, if any, on such Authority Bond and for all other purposes hereof, whether
such Autholity Bond shall be overdue or not, and neither the Authority nor the Trustee shall be

affected by any notice to the contrary. All such payments shall be valid and effectual to satisfy
and discharge the liability upon such Authority Bond to the extent of the sum or sums so paid.

SECTION 2.06. Regulations with Respect to Exchange or Transfer of Authority
Bonds

In all cases in which the privilege of exchanging or registering the transfer of
Authority Bonds is exercised, the Authority shall execute and the Trustee shall authenticate and

deliver Authority Bonds in accordance with the provisions hereof. There shall be no charge to the
Owner fbr any such exchange or registration of transfer of Authority Bonds, but the Authority rnay
require the payment of a sum sufficient to pay any tax or other governmental charge required to
be paid with respect to any such exchange or registration of transfer. Neither the Authority nor
the Trustee shall be required to register the transfer or exchange of any Authority Bond during the
period established by the Trustee for selection of Authority Bonds for redemption or to register
tl.re transfer or exchange of any Authority Bond selected for redemption.

Upon surrender for exchange or transfer of any Authority Bond at the Corporate
Trust Office of the Trustee, the Autholity shall execute and the Trustee shall authenticate and

deliver in the name of the Owner (in the case of transfers) a new Authority Bond or Authority
Bonds, of Authorized Denominations, in the aggregate principal amount which the registered

Owner is entitled to receive.

4l(t2-2872-2726.5

14

Page 169

10/13/2020 Item No.12.



All new Authority Bonds delivered upon any transfer or exchange shall be valid
obligations of the Authority, evidencing the same debt as the Authority Bonds surrendered, shall
be secured hereby and shall be entitled to all of the security and benefits hereof to the same extent
as the Authority Bonds surlendered

SECTION 2.07. Authentication of AuthoriW Bonds. No Authority Bond shall be

secured hereby or entitled to the benefits hereof ol shall be valid or obligatory for any purpose

unless there shall be endorsed on such Authority Bond the Trustee's certificate of authentication,
substantially in the form prescribed helein, executed by the manual signature of a duly authorized
signatory of the Trustee; and such certificate on any Authority Bond issued by the Authority
hereundel shall be conclusive evidence and the only competent evidence that such Authority Bond
has been duly authenticated and delivered hereunder.

SECTION 2.08. Cancellation of Authoritv Bonds. Upon the surrender to the Trustee

of any mutilated Authority Bond, or any Authority Bond surrendered for transfer or exchange, or
any Authority Bond redeemed or paid at maturity, the same shall forthwith be canceled and the

Trustee shall destroy such Authority Bonds and the Trustee shall deliver a certificate of destruction
with respect thereto to the Authority.

SECTION 2.09. Authority Bonds as Special Obligations. The Authori ty Bonds are

special, limited obligations of the Authority, payable from the Trust Estate and secured as to the
payment of the interest on and principal of and redemption premiums, if any, thereon in accordance

with their terms and the terms hereof, solely by the Trust Estate. The Authority Bonds do not
constitute a charge against the general credit of the Authority or any of its members, and under no

circumstances shall the Authority be obligated to pay the interest on or principal of or redemption
premiums, if any, on the Authority Bonds except from the Trust Estate. None of the Community
Facilities District, the City, the State, any public agency (other than the Authority) or any member
of the Community Facilities District or the Authority is obligated to pay the interest on or principal
of ol redemption premiums, if any, on the Authority Bonds, and neither the faith and credit nor the

taxing power of the Community Facilities District, the City, the State or any public agency thereof
or any member of the Authority or the Community Facilities District is pledged to the payrnent of
the interest on or plincipal of or redemption premiums, if any, on the Authority Bonds. The
payment of the interest on or principal of or redemption premiums, if any, on the Authority Bonds
does not constitute a debt, liability or obligation of the Community Facilities District, the City, the

State or any public agency (other than the Authority) or any member of the Authority.

No agreement or covenant contained in any Authority Bond or herein shall be

deemed to be an agreement or covenant of any officer, rnember, agent or ernployee ofthe Authority
in his or her individual capacity, and neither the members of the Autholity nor any officer or
ernployee thereof executing the Authority Bonds shall be liable pelsonally on any Autliority Bond
or be subject to any personal liability or accountability by reason of the issuance of the Authority
Bonds.

4 t62-2812-2726.5

15

Page 170

10/13/2020 Item No.12.



SECTION 2.10. Special Covenants as to Book-Entry Only System for Authority
Bonds.

(a) Except as otherwise plovided in subsections (b) and (c) of this Section, all of the

Authority Bonds initially issued shall be registeled in the name of Cede & Co., as notninee for The
Depository Trust Company, New York, New York ("DTC"), or such other nominee as DTC shall
request pursuant to the Letter of Representation. Payment of the interest on any Authority Bond
registered in the name of Cede & Co. shall be made on each Interest Payment Date for such

Authority Bonds to the account, in the manner and at the address indicated in or pursuant to the
Letter of Representation.

(b) The Authority Bonds initially shall be issued in the form of a single authenticated
fully registered Authority Bond for each stated maturity of such Authority Bonds, representing the

aggregate principal amount of the Authority Bonds of such maturity. Upon initial issuance, the

ownership of all such Authority Bonds shall be registered in the registration records maintained
by the Trustee pursuant to Section 2.05 in the name of Cede & Co., as nominee of DTC, or such
other nominee as DTC shall request pursuant to the Letter of Representation. The Trustee and any
paying agent may conclusively treat DTC (or its nominee) as the sole and exclusive owner of the

Authority Bonds registered in its name for the purposes of payment of the principal or redemption
price of and interest on such Authority Bonds, selecting the Authority Bonds or portions thereof
to be redeemed, giving any notice permitted or required to be given to Owners hereunder,
registering the transfer of Authority Bonds, obtaining any consent or other action to be taken by
Owners of the Authority Bonds and for all other purposes whatsoever; and neither the Trustee nor
the Trustee or any paying agent shall be affected by any notice to the contrary. Neither the Trustee
nor any paying agent shall have any responsibility or obligation to any Participant (which shall
mean, for purposes of this Section, securities brokers and dealers, banks, trust companies, clearing
corporations and other entities, some of whom directly or indirectly own DTC), any person

claiming a beneficial ownership interest in the Authority Bonds under or through DTC or any

Participant, or any other person which is not shown on the registration recolds as being an Owner,
with respect to (i) the accuracy of any records maintained by DTC or any Participant, (ii) the
payment by DTC or any Participant of any amount in respect of the principal or redemption price
of ol interest on the Authority Bonds, (iii) any notice which is permitted or required to be given to
Owners of Authority Bonds hereunder, (iv) the selection by DTC or any Participant of any person

to receive payment in the event of a partial redemption of the Authority Bonds, or (v) any consent
given or other action taken by DTC as Owner of Authority Bonds. The Trustee sliall pay all
principal of and premium, if any, and interest on the Authority Bonds only at the times, to the

accounts, at the addresses and otherwise in accordance with the Letter of Representation, and all
such payments shall be valid and effective to satisfy fully and discharge the Trustee's obligations
with respect to the principal of ar-rd pLenium, if any, and interest on the Authority Bonds to the

extent of the sllm or sums so paid. Upon delivery by DTC to the Trustee of written notice to the
effect that DTC has determined to substitute a new nominee in place of its then existing nominee,
the Authority Bonds will be tr"ansferable to such new nominee in accordance with subsection (f)
of this Section.

(c) In the event that the Authority determines that the beneficial owners of the
Authority Bonds shall be able to obtain Autholity Bond certificates, the Trustee shall, upon the
written instruction fiorn tl-re Authority, so notify DJ'C, whereupon DTC shall rrotify the

4 162-2872-2126.5

16

Page 171

10/13/2020 Item No.12.



Participants of the availability through DTC of Authority Bond certificates. In such event, the
Authority Bonds will be transferable in accordance with subsection (f) of this Section. DTC may
determine to discontinue providing its selvices with respect to the Authority Bonds at any tirne by
giving written notice of such discontinuance to the Trustee and discharging its responsibilities with
respect thereto under applicable law. In such event, the Authority Bonds will be transferable in
accordance with subsection (f) of this Section. Whenever DTC requests the Trustee to do so, the
Trustee will cooperate with DTC in taking appropriate action after reasonable notice to arrange for
another securities depository to maintain custody of all certificates evidencing the Authority Bonds
then Outstanding. In such event, the Authority Bonds will be transferable to such securities
depositor'y in accordance with subsection (f) of this Section, and thereafter, all references in this
Trust Agreement to DTC or its nominee shall be deemed to refer to such successor securities
depository and its nominee, as applopriate.

(d) Notwithstanding any other provision of this Trust Agreement to the contrary, so

long as all Authority Bonds Outstanding are registered in the name of any nominee of DTC, all
payments with respect to the principal of and premium, if any, and interest on each such Authority
Bond and all notices with respect to each such Authority Bond shall be made and given,
respectively, to DTC as provided in the Letter of Representation.

(e) In the event that any transfer or exchange of Authority Bonds is authorized under
subsection (b) or (c) of this Section, such transfer or exchange shall be accomplished upon receipt
by the Trustee from the registered owner thereof of the Authority Bonds to be transferred or
exchanged and appropriate instruments of transfer to the permitted transferee, all in accordance
with the applicable provisions of Sections 2.05 and 2.06. In the event Authority Bond certificates
are issued to Owners other than Cede & Co., its successor as norninee for DTC as Owner of all the
Authority Bonds, another securities depository as Owner of all the Authority Bonds, or the
nominee of such successor securities depository, the provisions of Sections 2.05 and 2.06 shall
also apply to, among other things, the registration, exchange and transfer of the Authority Bonds
and the method of payment of principal of, premium, if any, and interest on the Authority Bonds.

SECTION2.l1. CUSIP Numbers . The Authority in issuing the Authority Bonds
may use "CUSIP" numbers (if then generally in use), and, if so, the Trustee shall use "CUSIP"
numbers in notices of redemption as a convenience to Owners; provided that the Trustee shall liave
no liability fbr any defect in the "CUSIP" numbers as they appear on any Autliority Bond, notice
or elsewhere, and, provided further that any such notice may state that r-ro representatior-r is made
as to the correctness of such numbers either as printed on the Authority Bonds or as contained in
any notice of a redemption and that leliance may be placed only on the other identification numbers
printed on the securities, and any such redemption shall not be affected by any defect in or omission
of such numbers. The Authority shall promptly notify the Trustee in writing of any change in
CUSIP numbers.

ARTICLE III

ISSUANCE OF AUTHORITY BONDS

SECTION 3.01. Provisions for the Issuance of Authority Bonds. The Authori ty
Bonds shall be executed by the Authority and delivered to the Trustee for authenticatior.r, together

4t62-2872-2726 5

17

Page 172

10/13/2020 Item No.12.



with a Written Order authorizing and dilecting the Trustee to authenticate the Authority Bonds
and containing instructions as to the delivery of the Authority Bonds. The Trustee shall
autlienticate and deliver the Authority Bonds upon receipt of such Written Order and upon the
following having been made available to it:

(a) A copy of the resolution adopted by the Authority approving this Trust Agreement
and the execution and delivery by the Authority hereof, duly certified by the Secretary to have
been duly adopted by the Authority and to be in full force and effect on the date of such
certification;

(b) The proceeds of sale of the Authority Bonds;

(c) An Officer's Certificate stating that all conditions precedent to the authorization of
the Authority Bonds have been satisfied and that the Authority is not in default in the performance
of any of the agreements, conditions, covenants or terms contained herein;

(d) An original executed counterpart hereof;

(e) The Local Obligations to be purchased with the proceeds of the Authority Bonds,
registered in the name of the Trustee; and

(0 An Opinion or Opinions of Bond Counsel addressing the validity and, if applicable,
the tax-exempt status of the Authority Bonds and the validity of the Local Obligations, subject to
such exceptions as may be reasonable and appropriate.

SECTION 3.02. Parity and Subordinate Bonds. So long as any of the Authority
Bonds remain Outstanding, the Authority shall not issue any bonds or obligations payable from
Revenues.

ARTICLE IV

REDEMPTION OF AUTHORITY BONDS

SECTION4.01. Gener'al Redemption Plovisions. The Authority Bonds that are

subject to redemption prior to maturity pursuant to this Trust Agreement shall be redeemable, upon
rnailed notice as provided in this Article, at such times and upon such terms as are contained in
this Article.

SECTION 4.02. Optional Redemption. The Authority Bonds are subject to optional
ledemption by the Authority pr"ior to their respective maturity dates as a whole or in part on any
date on or after [September 1], 20L1, frorn any source of available funds other than Minimum
Sinking Fund Payments and Special Tax Prepayments, upon mailed notice as plovided herein, at
the following redemption prices (cornputed upon the principal amount of the Authority Bonds or
portions thereof called for redemption) together with accrued interest thereon to the date fixed for
redemption:

11031% if redeemed on any date on or afier [Septernber' 1], 20[_]
through [August 31],20[ ];

4t62-2872-2726.5

18

Page 173

10/13/2020 Item No.12.



U02l% if redeemed on any date fiorn fSeptember 1],20L-l through

[August 3l],20f1;

U}ll% if ledeemed on any date fi'om [September 1],20Llthrough
[August 3l], 20[_]; and

U00l% if redeemed on [September l], 20L) and any date

thereafter.

SECTION 4.03. Extraordinary Redemptian. The Authority Bonds are subject to
extraordinary redemption by the Authority prior to their respective maturity dates, as a whole or

in part on any Interest Payment Date on or after fMarch l], 20L_], solely from funds derived from
extraordinary redemption of Local Obligations from Special Tax Prepayments, at the following
redemption prices (computed upon the principal amount of the Authority Bonds or portions thereof
called for redemption) together with accrued interest thereon to the date fixed for redemption:

11031% if redeemed on an Interest Payment Date on or after

fMarch 1],20L1 through fMarch l],2011;

ll02l% if redeemed on an Interest Payment Date on fSeptember 1],

20L_l and [March l], 20[_];

ll0ll% if redeemed on an Interest Payment Date on fSeptember 1],

20Ll and [March l], 20ll; and

[00]% if redeemed on fSeptember l], 20L_l and any Interest
Payment Date thereafter.

SECTION 4.04. Mandatory Redemption. The Term Authority Bonds maturing on

September 1,201 l, are subject to mandatory redemption by the Authority prior to their maturity
date in palt on September I of each year on and after September 1, 201 l, to and including
September I,20ll; and the Term Authority Bonds maturing on September 7,201 ], are subject
to mandatory ledemption by the Authority prior to their maturity date in part on September 1 of
each year on and after Septernber I ,201 l, to and including September 1,20L] from (and in the

amount of the Minimum Sinking Fund Payments due and payable for the Term Authority Bonds

on each such date, at a redemption price equal to the principal amount thereof plus accrued interest
thereon to the date of redemption, without premium.

SECTION 4.05. Redemption Instructions. Upon any prepayment of a Local
Obligation, the Autholity shall deliver to the Trustee at least forty-five (45) days plior to the

redemption date a Written Order of the Authority designating the amounts and maturities of the

Authority Bonds to be redeemed, which sliall be in the manner necessary to enable tlie Authority
to deliver a Cash Flow Certificate satisfying the requirements described below. In the event only
a poltion of the Outstanding Authority Bonds of any rnaturity are to be redeemed at any one titne,
the Trustee shall select the particular Authority Bonds of each maturity date to be redeemed in
accordance with DTC procedures or, if the Authority Bonds are not then in book-entry, in a manneL

that it deerns appropriate and fair. The Trustee shall redeem Authority Bonds in Authorized
Denominations. The Trustee shall proniptly rrotify the Authority in writing of the numbers of the

4t62-28i2-2i26, 
t n

Page 174

10/13/2020 Item No.12.



Authority Bonds so selected for redemption on any date. Upon any ledemption of a portion but
not all of the Outstanding Authority Bonds, the Authority shall delivel to the Trustee a Cash Flow
Celtificate to the effect that, assuming all payments are made with respect to the Local Obligations,
(i) the Revenues, togethel with moneys on deposit in other funds and account held under this Trust
Agreement, will be sufficient to pay all Principal Installments, Minimum Sinking Fund Payments
and interest payments on the Authority Bonds when due; and (ii) the redernption plemiums, if any,

on the Local Obligations, together with other Revenues available to the Trustee for such purpose,

are sufficient to offset any difference between the interest to accrue on the Authority Bonds to be

paid or redeemed with the proceeds of prepayment of such Local Obligations (plus any redemption
premium payable upon redemption of such Authority Bonds) and the income to be earned on any

investment of such proceeds (assured as of the date of payment thereof), in each case until the date

of payment or redemption of Authority Bonds, such that in no event will the prepayment of Local
Obligations cause the Trustee to have insufficient funds to pay debt service on the Authority Bonds
when due. In no event shall Authority Bonds be redeemed if upon such redemption the principal
amount of the Local Obligations remaining outstanding will be less than the total principal amount
of Outstanding Autholity Bonds. Such Written Order of the Authority may specify that optional
redemption of the Authority Bonds will be conditioned upon receipt of funds or other events.

SECTION 4.06. Notice of Redemption. Subject to receipt of the Written Order of
the Authority delivered pursuant to Section 4.05, the Trustee shall, at the sole cost and expense of
the Authority, give notice of redemption as hereinafter provided in this Section; provided, that
Authority Bonds, identified by CUSIP numbers, serial numbers and maturity date, have been

called for redemption and, in the case of Authority Bonds to be redeerned in part only, the portion
of the principal amount thereof that has been called for redemption (or if all the Outstanding
Authority Bonds are to be redeemed, so stating, in which event such serial numbers may be

omitted), that they will be due and payable on the date fixed for redemption (specifying such date)

Llpon suffender thereof to the Trustee at its Corporate Trust Office, subject to any conditions to
such redemption specified in the Written Order of the Authority, at the redemption price
(specifying such price), together with any accrued interest to such date, and that all interest on the

Authority Bonds (or portions thereof) so to be redeemed will cease to accrue on and after such
date and that from and after such date such Authority Bond (or such portion thereof) shall no longer
be entitled to any lien, benefit or security hereunder, and the Owner thereof shall have no rights in
respect of such redeemed Authority Bond or such portion except to receive payment frorn such
money of such redernption price plus accrued interest to the date fixed for redemption. If sufficient
monies lbr the payment of the redemption price of all Authority Bonds to be redeemed are not then
on deposit with the Trustee, such notice shall also state that redemption is conditioned upon the

timely deposit of sufficient funds therefor with the Trustee.

Such notice shall be mailed by first class mail, in a sealed envelope, postage

prepaid, at least thirty (30) but not more than sixty (60) days before the date fixed for redemption,
to the Owners of such Authority Bonds (or portions thereol) so called for ledemption, at their
respective addresses as the same shall last appear on the Bond Register; provided, that neither the

failure of an Owner to receive notice of redemption of Authority Bonds hereunder nor any error
in such notice shall affect the validity of the proceedings for the redernption of Authority Bonds.

Any notice of optional redemption hereunder n-ray be rescinded by written notice
given by the Authority to the Trustee no later than three (3) Business Day prior to the date specified

4t62-2872-21)6 5

20

Page 175

10/13/2020 Item No.12.



for redemption, instructing the Trustee to send such notice of rescission. The Trustee shall give
notice of rescission of the notice of optional redemption or non-satisfaction of any conditions
specified in the notice of optional redernption as soon as practicable to the same parties and in the

same lnanner as the notice of redemption was given pursuant to this Section.

SECTION 4.07. Payment of Redeemed Autholity Bonds. If notice of redemption
has been given and not rescinded and if the conditions to such redemption specified therein, if any,

have been satisfied, each as provided in Section 4.06,the Authority Bonds (or the portions thereof)
called for redemption shall become irrevocably due and payable on the date fixed for redemption
at the redemption price thereof, together with accrued interest to the date fixed for redemption,
upon presentation and surrender of the Authority Bonds to be redeemed at the Corporate Trust
Office of the Trustee specified in the notice of redemption. If there shall be called for redemption
less than the full principal amount of an Authority Bond, the Authority shall execute and deliver
and the Trustee shall authenticate, upon surrender of such Authority Bond, and without charge to
the Owner thereof, Authority Bonds of like interest rate and maturity in an aggregate principal
amount equal to the unredeemed portion of the principal amount of the Authority Bonds so

sunendered in such Authorized Denominations as shall be specified by the Owner thereof.

If any Authority Bond or any portion thereof shall have been duly called for
redemption and payment of the redemption price, together with unpaid interest accrued to the date

fixed for redemption, shall have been made or provided for by the Authority, then interest on such

Authority Bond or such portion thereof shall cease to accrue from such date, and from and after
such date such Authority Bond or such portion thereof shall no longer be entitled to any lien,
benefit or security hereunder, and the Owner thereof shall have no rights in respect of such

Authority Bond or such portion except to receive payment of such redemption price and unpaid
interest accrued to the date fixed for redemption.

SECTION 4.08. Purchase in Lieu of Redemption. In lieu of redemption of any

Authority Bond pursuant to the plovisions of Section 4.02 or Section 4.03, and after complying
with Section 4.05, amounts on deposit in the Proceeds Fund, the Principal Fund or in the

Redemption Fund rnay be used and withdrawn by the Trustee at any time prior to a notice of
redemption having been delivered, upon a Written Order for the purchase of such Authority Bonds
at public or private sale as and when and at such prices as the Authority may in its discretion
determine, but not in excess of the lower of the highest or then current redemption price thereof
plus acclued interest to the purchase date; and all Authority Bonds so purchased shall be delivered
to the Trustee for cancellation.

ARTICLE V

REVENUES AND FT]NDS FOR AUTHORITY BONDS

SECTION 5.01. Establishment of Funds. There is heleby established with the

Trustee, and the Trustee hereby agrees to maintain, the following special trust funds lbr the

Authority Bonds, which the Trustee shall keep separate and apart from all other funds and moneys
held by it: the Revenue Fund, the Interest Fund, the Pr'incipal Fund, the Redemption Fund, the

Proceeds Fund, the Local Obligations Fund and the Rebate Fund.

4162-2872-2726.5

21

Page 176

10/13/2020 Item No.12.



SECTION 5.02. Deposit of Proceeds of Authorit)'Bonds. The net proceeds received
from the sale of the Authority Bonds (in the amount of $ , consisting of the principal
amount thereof, fplus/less] the [net] original issue fprernium/discount] of $ and less an

underwriter's discount of $ ) shall be deposited by the Trustee in the Proceeds Fund

SECTION 5.03. Proceeds Fund. The amounts in the Proceeds Fund shall be applied
forthwith by the Trustee for the purchase of the Local Obligations pursuant to the Local Obligation
Purchase Contract whereupon the Proceeds Fund shall be closed. If any amount shall remain in
the Proceeds Fund following such purchase, such amount shall be transferred to the Revenue Fund.

SECTION 5.04. Local Obligations Fund. All Local Obligations acquired by the
Trustee pursuant to Section 5.03 shall be deposited in the Local Obligations Fund, which the
Trustee shall establish and maintain.

SECTION 5.05. Revenue Fund. All Revenues received by the Trustee, other than
Revenues derived from the early redemption of Local Obligations from Special Tax Prepayments
(which shall be administered in accordance with Section 5.06), shall be deposited by the Trustee
in the Revenue Fund. On each Interest Payment Date and Principal Payment Date, the Trustee
shall transfer Revenues (to the extent that Revenues are available therein) from the Revenue Fund,
in the amounts specified in Sections 5.07 and 5.08, for deposit into the respective Funds specified
therein in the order of priority herein set forth, the requirements of each Fund to be fully satisfied,
leaving no deficiencies therein, prior to any deposit into any Fund later in priority. On each Interest
Payment Date and Principal Payment Date, after making the deposits required by Sections 5.07
and 5.08, the Trustee shall transfer all remaining money in the Revenue Fund on a pro rata basis
to the Indenture Trustee for deposit pursuant to the Local Obligations Indenture.

SECTION 5.06. Revenues Derived from SpecialTax Prepayments. The Communt ty
Facilities District and the Authority acknowledge that amounts received by the Community
Facilities District on account of Special Tax Prepayrnents are to be utilized for the sole purpose of
the prior redemption of Local Obligations pursuant to Section 4.03, and not to pay current,
scheduled debt service payments on the Local Obligations. Correspondingly, in order to maintain
a proper ratio between debt service payments on the Local Obligations and debt service payments
on the Authority Bonds, all Revenues received by the Trustee which are derived from the eally
redemption of Local Obligations from Special Tax Prepayrnents when received by the Cornmunity
Facilities District shall be deposited in the Redernption Fund and used to redeem the Authority
Bonds pursuant to Section 4.03, in accordance with a Written Order of the Authority delivered
pursuant to Section 4.05.

SECTION 5.07. Interest Fund. The Trustee shall deposit in the Interest Fund on each

Interest Payment Date fiom the Revenue Fund an amount of Revenues which, together with any
amounts then on deposit in the Interest Fund, is equal to the interest due on the Authority Bonds
due on such date. On each Interest Payment Date, the Trustee shall pay the interest due and payable

on the Authority Bonds on such date fiom the Interest Fund.

SECTION 5.08. Principal Fund. After" satisfying the requirements of the foregoing
Section 5.07 respecting deposits in the Interest Fund, the Trustee shall deposit in the Principal
Fund (i) on each Principal Payment Date fiom the Revenue Fund an amount of Revenues which,

4162-2872-2726.5

22

Page 177

10/13/2020 Item No.12.



together with any amounts then on deposit in the Principal Fund (other than amounts previously
deposited on account of any Authority Bonds which have matured but which have not been

presented for"payment) is sufficient to pay the Principal Installments on the Authority Bonds due

on such Principal Payment Date and (ii) on each September 1 on which a Minimurn Sinking Fund
Payment is requiled to be made (for deposit in the Sinking Fund Account) from the Revenue Fund
an amount of Revenues which is equal to the Minimum Sinking Fund Payment due and payable
on such date. On each Principal Payment Date, the Trustee shall pay the principal or redemption
price due and payable on the Authority Bonds on such date from the Principal Fund.

SECTION 5.09. Redemption Fund. All money held in or transferred to the
Redemption Fund pursuant to Section 5.06 shall be used for the purpose of redeeming or
purchasing all or a portion of the Outstanding Authority Bonds pursuant to Section 4.03, and the
Trustee shall use other moneys in the Redemption Fund for the payment of the redemption price
of Authority Bonds called for redemption pursuant to Section 4.02, together with accrued interest
to the redemption date.

SECTION 5.10. Rebate Fund. The Trustee agrees to establish and maintain when
needed a fund separate from any other fund established and maintained hereunder designated the
Rebate Fund. The Trustee shall deposit in the Rebate Fund, from funds made available by the
Authority, the Rebate Requirement, all in accordance with the Rebate Instructions received from
the Author"ity. The Trustee will apply money held in the Rebate Fund as provided in Section 7.04
and according to instructions provided by the Authority. Subject to the provisions of Section 7.04,
all money held in the Rebate Fund is hereby pledged to secure payments to the United States of
America, and the Authority and the Community Facilities District and the Owners will have no
rights in or claim to such money. The Trustee will invest all money held in the Rebate Fund in
Investment Securities as directed in writing by the Authority, such written direction to specify
which Investment Securities are to be invested in, and all investment earnings with respect thereto
shall be deposited in the Rebate Fund.

Upon receipt of the Rebate Instructions required by the Tax Certificate to be

delivered to the Trustee, the Trustee will remit part or all of the balance held in the Rebate Fund
to the United States of America as so directed. In addition, if the Rebate Instructions so direct, the
Trustee will deposit money into or transfer money out of the Rebate Fund from or into such Funds
as the Rebate Instructions shall direct. The Trustee shall be deerned conclusively to liave complied
with such provisions if it follows the written directions of the Authority including sr"rpplying all
necessary information in the manner provided in the Tax Cer'tificate to the extent such information
is reasonably available to the Trustee, and shall have no liability or responsibility to monitol or
enforce compliance by the Authority witli the terms of the Tax Certificate.

The Trustee shall have no obligation to rebate any amounts required to be rebated
pursllant to this Section, other than fi'om money held in the Rebate Fund or from other money
provided to it by the Authority. The Trustee shall not be responsible for cornputing the Rebate
Requilement, and computations of the Rebate Requirement shall be furnished to the Trustee or on
behalf of the Authority in accordance with the Tax Certificate.

Notwithstanding any other provision hereof, including in particular Article XII
pertaining to defeasance, the obligation to remit the rebate amounts to the lJnited States of America

4t62-2872-2126.5

23

Page 178

10/13/2020 Item No.12.



and to comply with all other requirements of this Section and the Tax Certificate shall survive the
defeasance or payment in full of the Authority Bonds.

ARTICLE VI

SECURITY FOR AND INVESTMENT OF MONEY

SECTION 6.01. Security. All rnoney required to be deposited with or paid to the
Trustee in any of the Funds (other than the Rebate Fund) r'ef-erred to in any provision hereof shall
be held by the Trustee in trust, and except for money held for the payment or redemption of
Authority Bonds or the payment of interest on Authority Bonds pursuant to Section 12.03, shall,
while held by the Trustee, constitute part of the Trust Estate and shall be subject to the lien and
pledge created hereby.

SECTION 6.02. Investment of Money. So long as the Authority Bonds are

Outstanding and there is no default hereunder, all money on deposit to the cledit of the Revenue
Fund, the Interest Fund, the Principal Fund and the Redemption Fund and all accounts within such
Funds shall, at the written request of an Authorized Officer specifuing and directing that such
investment of such money be made, be invested by the Trustee in Investment Securities having
maturities not later than the date necessary to provide the availability of money when needed for
purposes hereof, and all money held in the Rebate Fund shall, at the written request of an

Authorized Officer specifying and directing that such investment of such money be made, be

invested by the Trustee in Government Obligations having maturities not later than the date
necessary to provide the availability of money when needed for purposes hereof, and the Trustee
shall be entitled to conclusively rely on such instructions for purposes of this Section. The Trustee
shall notify the Authority in writing prior to the date money held hereunder will be available for
investment, requesting that the Authority deliver to the Trustee written instructions specifying the
Investment Securities to be acquired by the Trustee with such money. The Authority, in issuing
such written instructions, shall comply with the provisions of the Tax Certificate. In the absence

of written instructions from the Authority regarding investment, such money shall be held
uninvested. The Trustee (or any affiliate thereof) may act as principal or agent in the acquisition
or disposition of any investments.

Money on deposit in the Proceeds Fund, if any, shall be invested in Investment
Securities pllrsuant to a Written Order specifying which lnvestment Securities to be invested in,
and such money may not be reinvested in any other Investment Securities unless the Trustee
receives, at the time of such reinvestrnent, a further written certification to the effect that, after
such reinvestment, the Revenues will be sufficient to pay principal and interest on the Authority
Bonds when due.

Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained herein, an amount of interest
received with respect to any Investment Security equal to the amount of accrued interest, if any,
paid as part of the purchase price of such Investment Security shall be credited to the Fund fi'om
which such accrued intelest was paid. The Trustee shall not be responsible for any losses, taxes,
fees, charges or conseqllences of any investment, reinvestment or liquidation of investment if it
fbllows such instructions. Notwithstanding anytliing to tlie contrary contained herein, the Tlustee
sliall have no obligation or responsibility to determine w'hether investrnent in a security is

4 162-2872-2726.5

24

Page 179

10/13/2020 Item No.12.



permitted by the laws of the State and the City's Investment Policy, for and on behalf of the

Community Facilities District, and shall be entitled to conclusively assume that any investment it
is directed to make is so permitted.

The securities purchased with the money in each Fund shall be deemed a part of
such Fund. If at any time it shall become necessary or appropriate that some or all of the securities
purchased with the money in any Fund be redeemed or sold in order to raise money necessary to

comply with the provisions hereof, the Trustee shall effect such redemption or sale, employing, in
the case of a sale, any commercially reasonable method of effecting the same. The Trustee shall

not be liable or responsible for any consequences, fees, taxes or other charges resulting fi'om any

such investment or resulting from the redemption, sale or maturity of any such investment as

authorized pursuant to this Section.

Investments in the Revenue Fund, the Intelest Fund, the Principal Fund and the

Redemption Fund may be cornmingled for purposes of making, holding and disposing of
investments, notwithstanding provisions herein for transfer to or holding in particular Funds

amounts received or held by the Trustee; plovided, that the Trustee shall at all times account for
such investments strictly in accordance with the Funds to which they are credited and otherwise
as provided herein.

All earnings on the investment of the money on deposit in any Fund shall remain a

part of such Fund.

ARTICLE VII

COVENANTS OF THE AUTFIO RTTY AND THE COMMIINITY FACILITIES DISTRICT

SECTION 7.01 Pavment of Authority : No Encumbrances. The Authority
shall cause the Trustee to promptly pay, from Revenues and other funds derived from the Trust

Estate pledged hereunder, the interest on and principal of and redemption premium, if any, on

every Authority Bond issued under and secured hereby at the place, on the dates and in the manner

specified herein and in such Authority Bonds according to the true intent and meaning thereof.

The Authority shall not issue any bonds, notes or other evidences of indebtedness or incur any

obligations payable fi"om or secured by the Trust Estate, other than the Authority Bonds.

SECTION 7.02. Enforcernent and Amendment of Local Obligations. The Authority,
the Comrnunity Facilities District and the Trustee (subject to Article IX hereof) shall enforce all
of their rights with respect to the Local Obligations to the fullest extent necessary to preserve the

lights and protect the security of the Owners hereunder.

The Authority, the Community Facilities District and the Trustee may, without the

consent of or notice to the Owners of the Authority Bonds, consent to any amendment, change or
modification of any Local Obligation that rnay be required (a) to confonn to the provisions hereof
(including any modifications or changes contained in any Supplemental Trust Agreement, (b) for
the purpose of curing any ambiguity or inconsistency or formal defect or omission, (c) to add

additional rights acquired in accordance with the provisions of such Local Obligation, (d) in
connection with any other change therein that is not to the material prejudice of the Owners of the

4162-2812-2726.5

25

Page 180

10/13/2020 Item No.12.



Authority Bonds, or (e) in the Opinion of Bond Counsel, to preserve or assure the exemption of
interest on the Local Obligations or Authority Bonds from federal income taxes or the exemption
of such interest from State personal income taxes.

Except for the amendments, changes or rnodifications provided for in the preceding
paragraph, neither the Authority, the Community Facilities District nor the Trustee shall consent

to any amendment, change or modification of any Local Obligation without the written approval

or consent of the Owners of not less than a majority in aggregate principal amount of Authority
Bonds at the time Outstanding given and procured as provided in this Section. If at any time the

Authority and the Community Facilities District, as the case may be, shall request the consent of
the Trustee to any such proposed amendment, change or modification of aLocal Obligation, the

Trustee shall, upon being satisfactorily indemnified with respect to expenses, cause notice,
prepared by the Authority, of such proposed amendment, change or modification to be mailed in
the same manner as provided by Section 13.03. Such notice shall briefly set for"th the nature of
such proposed amendment, change or modification and shall state that copies of the instrument
embodying the same are on file with the Trustee for inspection by all Owners.

SECTION 7.03. Fufiher Documents. The Authority covenants that it will from time
to time execute and deliver such further instruments and take such further action as may be

reasonable and as may be required to carry out the purpose hereof; provided, that no such

instruments or actions shall pledge the faith and credit or the taxing power of the State or any

political subdivision of the State.

SECTION 7.04 for the Authori

(a) The Authority and the Community Facilities District will not take any action, or
fail to take any action, if any such action or failure to take action would adversely affect the

exclusion from gloss income of interest on the Authority Bonds under Section 103 of the Code.

The Authority and the Cornmunity Facilities District will not directly or indirectly use or permit
the use of any proceeds of the Authority Bonds or any other funds of the Authority or take or omit
to take any action that would cause the Authority Bonds to be "private activity bonds" within the

meaning of Section 14I(a) of the Code or obligations which are "federally guaranteed" within the

meaning of Section 149(b) of the Code. The Authority will not allow ten percent (10%) or more
of the proceeds of the Authority Bonds to be used in the trade or business of any nongovernmental
units and will not lend five percent (5%) or more of the proceeds of the Authority Bonds to any

nongovernmental units.

(b) The Authority and the Community Facilities District will not directly or indirectly
Llse or perrnit the use of any proceeds of the Authority Bonds or any other funds of the Authority
or take or omit to take any action that would cause the Author'ity Bonds to be "arbitrage bonds"
w'ithin the meaning of Section 148 of the Code. To that end, the Authority and the Comrnunity
Facilities District will conrply with all requirements of Section 148 of the Code to the extent
applicable to the Autholity Bonds. In the event that at any time the Authority is of the opinion that
for purposes of this Section it is necessary to restrict or to limit the yield on the investment of any

money held by the Trustee hereunder, the Authority will so instruct the Trustee in writing, and the

Trustee will take such actions as directed by such instructions.

1t62-2812-2726.5

26

Page 181

10/13/2020 Item No.12.



(c) The Authority will pay or cause to be paid the Rebate Requirement as provided in
the Tax Certificate. This covenant shall survive payment in full or defeasance of the Authority
Bonds. The Authority will callse the Rebate Requirement to be deposited in the Rebate Fund as

provided in the Tax Certificate (which is incorporated herein by leference).

(d) The Trustee will conclusively be deemed to have complied with the provisions of
this Section and the provisions of the Tax Certificate and shall incur no liability if it follows the

directions of the Authority set forth in the Tax Certificate and the Rebate Instructions and shall not
be required to take any actions hereunder in the absence of Rebate Instructions from the Authority.

(e) Notwithstanding any provision of this Section, if the Authority shall provide to the

Trustee an Opinion of Bond Counsel that any specified action required under this Section is no

longer required or that some further or different action is required to maintain the exclusion from
gross income for federal income tax purposes of interest with respect to the Authority Bonds, the

Trustee and the Authority and the Community Facilities District may conclusively rely on such

opinion in complying with the requirements of this Section, and the covenants hereunder shall be

deemed to be modified to that extent.

(D The provisions of this Section shall survive the defeasance of the Authority Bonds.

SECTION 7.05. Maintenance of Existence. The Authority shall maintain the
existence, powers and authority of the Authority as a joint exercise of powers authority under the

laws of the State.

SECTION 7.06. Continuing Disclosure. The Community Facilities District has

undertaken all responsibility for compliance with continuing disclosure requirements, and the
Authority shall have no liability to the Owners of the Authority Bonds or any other person with
respect to S.E.C. Rule l5c2-I2. Notwithstanding any other provision hereof, failure of the

Community Facilities District to comply with any continuing disclosure obligation shall not be

considered an Event of Default; provided, that any Owners of the Autholity Bonds or beneficial
owner may take such actions as may be necessary and appropriate, including seeking mandate or
specific performance by court order, to cause the Community Facilities District to comply with its
continuing disclosure obli gations.

SECTION 7.07. Redernption Fund for the LsqalQblleatians

(a) The Community Facilities District expressly acknowledges that, pursuant to the

Local Obligations Indenture, the Community Facilities District is to establish and maintain a
separate redemption fund for the Local Obligations (the "Local Obligations Redemption Fund")
and, so long as the Local Obligations remain outstanding, to deposit into such Local Obligations
Redemption Fund, upon receipt, any and all Special Tax Revenues received by the Community
Facilities District in connection with the Local Obligations. The Community Facilities District
further acknowledges that no temporary loan or other use whatsoever may be made of Special Tax
Revenues, and that the Local Obligations Redemption Fund constitutes a trust fund for the benefit
of the owners of the Local Obligations.

(b) The Cornmunity Facilities District hereby covenants for the benefit of the

Authority, as owner of the Local Obligations, the Trustee, as assignee of the Authority with lespect

4162-2f172-2726 
' 

"
Page 182

10/13/2020 Item No.12.



to the Revenues, and the Owners from time to tirne of the Authority Bonds, that it will establish,
maintain and adrninister the Local Obligations Redemption Fund and the Special Tax Revenues in
accordance with their status as trust funds as plescribed by the Act, the Local Obligations Indenture
and this Trust Agreement.

(c) The Community Facilities District further covenants that, no latel than one (l)
Business Day prior to each Interest Payment Date and Principal Payment Date of the Authority
Bonds, the Community Facilities District will advance to the Trustee against payment on the Local
Obligations, as assignee of the Authority with respect to the Local Obligations, the interest due on
the Local Obligations on such Interest Payment Date and the principal of all Local Obligations
maturing on such Principal Payment Date, respectively, and upon receipt by the Trustee, such
amounts shall constitute Revenues. For so long as Authority Bonds remain Outstanding, the
Trustee shall provide written notice to the Authority no later than fifteen (15) days prior to each

Interest Payment Date specifying the amount required to be paid to the Trustee pursuant to this
subsection in the month subsequent thereto.

SECTION 7.08. Concelnins the Trust Estate The Authority hereby represents and

warrants as follows

(a) This Trust Agreement creates a valid and binding pledge of and security interest in
the Trust Estate in favor of the Trustee in order to secure the payment of the interest on and
principal of and redemption premiums, if any, on all Authority Bonds Outstanding hereunder,
enforceable by the Trustee in accordance with the terms hereof.

(b) Under the laws of the State of California, (1) such pledge of and security interest in
the Trust Estate and (2) each pledge, assignment, lien, or other security interest made to secure any
prior obligations of Authority which, by the terms hereof, ranks on parity with or prior to the
pledge ofand security interest granted hereby, are and shall be prior to anyjudicial lien hereafter
imposed on such collateral to enfolce a judgment against the Authority on a simple contract.

(c) The Authority has not heretofore made a pledge of,, granted a lien on or security
interest in, oL made an assignment or sale of the Trust Estate that ranks on parity with or prior to
the pledge and security interest granted hereby, except for the pledge and security interest granted

to secure the Authority Borids. The Authority shall not hereafter make or suffer to exist any pledge
or assignment of, lien on, ol security interest in such collateral that ranks prior to or on parity with
the pledge and security interest granted hereby, or file any financing statement describing any such
pledge, assignment, lien or security interest, except as expressly permitted hereby.

ARTICLE VIII

DEFAULTS AND REMEDIES

SECTION 8.OI

Default" hereunder:
Events of Default. The following sliall constitute "Events of

(a) if payrnent of interest orr the Authority Bonds shall not be made when due; or

4 t 62-2872-2126.s

28

Page 183

10/13/2020 Item No.12.



(b) if payment of any Principal Installment or Minimum Sinking Fund Payment shall
not be made when due and payable, whether at maturity, by proceedings for redemption, or
otherwise; or

(c) if the Authority or the Community Facilities District shall fail to observe or perform
in any material way any other agreement, condition, covenant or term contained herein on its part
to be observed or performed, and such failure shall continue for thirty (30) days after written notice
specifying such failure and requiring the same to be remedied shall have been given to the
Authority or the Community Facilities District, as the case may be, by the Trustee or by the Owners
of not less than fifty percenl (50%) in aggregate principal amount of the Authority Bonds,
provided, that if such default be such that it cannot be corrected within the applicable period, it
shall not constitute an Event of Default if corrective action is instituted by the Authority or the
Community Facilities District within the applicable period and diligently pursued until the default
is corrected; or

(d) if there is an event of default under the Local Obligations Indenture

SECTION 8.02. Proceedings by Trustee; No Acceleration. Upon the happening and
continuance of any Event of Default the Trustee may, or at the written lequest of the Owners of
not less than fifty percent (50%) in aggregate principal amount of Authority Bonds Outstanding,
shall (but only if indemnified to its satisfaction from any liability, expense or cost), do the
following:

(a) by mandamus, or other suit, action or proceeding at law or in equity, enforce all
rights of the Owners, including the right to receive and collect the Revenues;

(b) bring suit upon or otherwise enforce any defaulting Local Obligation;

(c) by action or suit in equity enjoin any acts or things which may be unlawful or in
violation of the rights of the Owners;

(d) as a matter of right, have a receiver or receivers appointed for the Trust Estate and

of the earnings, income, issues, ploducts, profits and revenues thereof pending such proceedings,
with such powers as the court making such appointment shall confer; and

(e) take such action with respect to any and all Local Obligations or Investment
Securities as shall be necessary and appropriate, subject to Section 8.04 and to the terms of such
Local Obligations or Investment Securities.

The Trustee shall have no right to declare the principal of all of the Authority Bonds
then Outstanding, or the interest accrued thereon, to be due and payable irnmediately.

SECTION 8.03. Effect of Discontinuance or Abandonrnent. In case any proceeding
taken by the Trustee on account of any Event of Default shall have been discontinued or abandoned
for any leason, or shall have been determined adversely to the Trustee, then and in every such case

the Trustee and the Owners shall be restored to their former positions and rights hereunder,
respectively, and all rights, remedies and powers of the Trustee shall continue as though no such
proceeding had been taken.

4 t 62-2812-2126 .5

29

Page 184

10/13/2020 Item No.12.



SECTION 8.04. Rishts of Ownels. Anything herein to the contrary notwithstanding,
but subject to the limitations and restrictions as to the rights of the Owner contained in Sections
8.01, 8.02, and 8.05, upon the happening and continuance of any Event of Default, the Ownels of
not less than fifty percent (50%) in aggregate principal amount of the Authority Bonds then
Outstanding shall have the right, upon providing the Trustee security and indemnity reasonably
satisfactory to it against the costs, expenses and liabilities to be incurred therein or thereby, by an

instrument in writing executed and delivered to the Trustee, have the right to direct the method
and place of conducting all remedial proceedings to be taken by the Trustee hereunder.

The Trustee may refuse to follow any direction that conflicts with law or herewith
or that the Trustee determines would subject the Trustee to personal liability without adequate

indemnifi cation therefor.

SECTION 8.05. Restriction on Owner's Action. In addition to the other restrictions
on the rights of Owners to request action upon the occurrence of an Event of Default and to enforce
remedies set forth in this Article, no Owner shall have any right to institute any suit, action or
proceeding in equity or at law for the enforcernent of any trust hereunder, or any other remedy
hereunder or in the Authority Bonds, unless such Owner previously shall have given to the Trustee
written notice of an Event of Default as hereinabove provided and unless the Owners of not less

than fifty percent (50%) in aggregate principal amount of the Authority Bonds then Outstanding
shall have made written request of the Trustee to institute any such suit, action, proceeding or other
remedy, after the right to exercise such powers or rights of action, as the case may be, shall have
accrued, and shall have afforded the Trustee a reasonable opportunity either to proceed to exercise
the powers granted herein, or to institute such action, suit or proceeding in its or their name; nor
unless there also shall have been offered to the Trustee security and indemnity reasonably
satisfactory to it against the costs, expenses and liabilities to be incurred therein or thereby, and
the Trustee shall not have complied with such request within a reasonable time; and such
notification, request and offer of indemnity are hereby declared in every such case to be conditions
precedent to the execution of the trusts heleof or for any other remedy hereunder, it being
understood and intended that no one or more Owners of Authority Bonds secured hereby shall
have any right in any manner whatever by his, her or their action to affect, disturb or prejudice the
security hereof, or to enforce any rights hereunder or under the Authority Bonds, except in the
manner provided herein, and that all proceedings at law or in equity shall be instituted, had and
maintained in the manner provided herein, and for the equal benefit of all Owners of Outstanding
Authority Bonds; subject, however, to the provisions of this Section. Notwithstanding the
foregoing provisions of this Section or any other provision hereof, the obligation of the Authority
shall be absolute and unconditional to pay, but solely from the Trust Estate, the interest on and
principal of and redemption premiums, if any, on the Autholity Bonds to the respective Owners
thereof at the respective due dates theleof, and nothing herein shall affect ol irnpair the right of
action, which is absolute and unconditional. of such Owners to enforce such payment.

SECTION 8.06. Power of Trustee to Enforce. All lights of action hereunder or under
any of the Authority Bonds secured hereby which are enforceable by the Trustee may be enforced
by it without the possession of any of the Autholity Bonds, or the production thereof at the trial or
other proceedings relative thereto, and any such suit, action or proceedings instituted by the
Trustee shall be brought in its own name, as Trustee, fbr the equal and ratable benefit of the Owners
subject to the provisior.rs hereof.

4 162-2872-2726.5

30

Page 185

10/13/2020 Item No.12.



SECTION 8.07. Remedies Not Exclusive. No lemedy herein conferred upon or
reserved to the Trustee or to the Owners is intended to be exclusive of any other remedy or
remedies, and each and every such remedy shall be cumulative, and shall be in addition to every
other remedy given hereunder or now or hereafter existing at law or in equity ol by statute.

SECTION 8.08. Waiver of Events of Default: Effect of Waiver. Upon the written
request of the Owners of at least a majority in aggregate principal amount of all Outstanding
Authority Bonds, the Trustee shall waive any Event of Default hereunder and its consequences. If
any Event of Default shall have been waived as herein provided, the Trustee shall promptly give

written notice of such waiver to the Authority and the Community Facilities District and shall give
notice theleof by first class mail, postage prepaid, to all Owners of Outstanding Authority Bonds
if such Owners had not previously been given notice of such Event of Default; but no such waiver,
rescission and annulment shall extend to or affect any subsequent Event of Default, or impair any

right or remedy consequent thereon.

No delay or omission of the Trustee or of any Owner to exercise any right or power
accruing upon any Event of Default shall impair any such right or power or shall be construed to
be a waiver of any such Event of Default, or an acquiescence therein; and every power and remedy
given by this Article to the Trustee and to the Owners may be exercised from time to time and as

often as may be deemed expedient.

SECTION 8.09. Application of Money unon Event of Default Any money received
by the Trustee pursuant to this Article shall, after payment of all fees and expenses of the Tntstee,
and the fees and expenses of its counsel incurred in representing the Owners, be applied as follows:

(a) unless the principal of all of the Outstanding Authority Bonds shall be due and

payable,

FIRST - To the payment of the Owners entitled thereto of all installments
of interest then due on the Authority Bonds, in the order of the maturity of the

installments of such interest, and if the amount available shall not be sufficient to
pay in full any particular installment, then to the payment ratably, according to the

amounts due on such installment, to the Persons entitled thereto, without any

discrimination or privilege;

SECOND - To the payment of the Owners entitled thereto of the unpaid
principal of and redernption premiums, if any, on any of the Authority Bonds which
shall have become due (other than Authority Bonds matured or called for
reden-rption for the payment of which money is held pursuant to the provisions
hereof) in tlie order of tlieir due dates, and if the amount available shall not be

sufficient to pay in full the principal of and redemption premiums, if any, on such
Authority Bonds due on any particular date, then to the payment ratably, according
to the amount due on such date, to the Owners entitled thereto without any

discrimination or privilege; and

TIIIRD - To be lield fol the payment to the Owners entitled thereto as the

same shall become due of the interest on and principal of and redernption

4162-2872-212(t.5

31

Page 186

10/13/2020 Item No.12.



premiums, if any, on the Authority Bonds which may thereafter become due, either
at rnaturity or upon call for redemption prior to maturity, and if the amount available
shall not be sufficient to pay in full such interest and principal and redernption
premiums, if any, due on any particular date, payment shall be made in accordance

with the FIRST and SECOND paragraphs hereof.

(b) if the principal of all of the Outstanding Authority Bonds shall be due and payable,

to the payment of the interest on and principal of and redemption premiums, if any, due on all
Outstanding Authority Bonds without preference or priority of or of any interest on any

Outstanding Authority Bond over any other Outstanding Authority Bond, any principal of or the

redemption premium, if any, on any Outstanding Authority Bond or of any other Outstanding
Authority Bond, rctably, according to the amounts due respectively for interest and principal and

redemption premiums, if any, to the Owners entitled thereto without any discrimination or
preference except as to any difference in the respective amounts of interest specified in the

Outstanding Authority Bonds.

ARTICLE IX

THE TRUSTEE

SECTION 9.01 Aooointment and of Duties. The Trustee hereby accepts

and agrees to the trusts hereby created to all of which the Authority agrees and the respective
Owners of the Authority Bonds, by purchase and acceptance thereof, agrees.

SECTION 9.02. Duties.Immuniti es and Liabilitv of Trustee. The Trustee shall , pnor
to an Event of Default, and after the curing of all Events of Default which may have occurred,
perform such duties and only such duties as are specifically set forth herein, and no implied duties
ol obligations shall be read herein against the Trustee. The Trustee shall, during the existence of
any Event of Default (which has not been cured), exercise such of the rights and powers vested in
it heleby and use the same degree of care and skill in their exercise as a prudent person would
exercise under the circumstances in the conduct of his or her own affairs.

In the absence of an Event of Default, the Authority may relnove the Trustee. The
Authority shall remove the Trustee if (A) it receives an instrument or concurrent instruments in
writing signed by the Owners of not less than a majority in aggregate principal amount of the

Authority Bonds then Outstanding (or their attorneys duly autholizedin writing) or (B) at any time
the Trustee shall cease to be eligible in accordance with this Section, or (C) the Trustee shall
become incapable of acting, or (D) the Trustee shall commence a case under any bankruptcy,
insolvency or sirnilar law, or (E) a receiver of the Trustee or of its property shall be appointed, or
(F) any public officel shall take control or charge of the Trustee or its property 01' affairs for the

put"pose of rehabilitation, conservation ol liquidation. To effect any such tentoval, the Autholity
shall give written notice thereof to the Trustee, and thereupon the Autliority (with the concllrrence
of the Community Facilities District) shall prornptly appoint a successor Trustee by an iustrument
in writing.

Tl-re Trustee lnay, subject to the next following paragraph of this Section, resign by
giving written notice of such resignation by niail, first class postage prepaid, to the Ar"rthority, the

1 t 62-2872-2726.5

)L

Page 187

10/13/2020 Item No.12.



Cornmunity Facilities District and the Owners at the respective addresses listed in the Bond
Register. Upon receiving such notice of resignation, the Authority (with the concurrence of the

Cornmunity Facilities District) shall promptly appoint, by an instrument in writing, a successor
Trustee.

Any removal or lesignation of the Trustee and appointment of a successor Trustee

shall become effective only upon acceptance of the successor Trustee by the Authority and the

Community Facilities District and acceptance of appointment by the successor Trustee. If no

successor Trustee shall have been appointed and shall have accepted appointment within thirty
(30) days of giving notice of removal ornotice of resignation as aforesaid, the resigning Trustee

or any Owner (on behalf of himself and all other Owners) may petition, at the expense of the

Community Facilities District, any court of competent jurisdiction for the appointment of a

successor Trustee, and such court may thereupon, after such notice (if any) as it may deem proper,
appoint such successor Trustee. Any successor Trustee appointed under this Trust Agreement
shall signify its acceptance of such appointment by executing and delivering to the Authority and

the Community Facilities District and to its predecessor Trustee a written acceptance thereof, and

thereupon such successor Trustee, without any further act, deed or conveyance, shall become

vested with all the money, estates, properties, rights, powers, trusts, duties and obligations of such
predecessor Trustee, with like effect as if it were originally named Trustee herein; but,
nevertheless, at the written request of the Authority or the Cornmunity Facilities District or the
successor Trustee, such predecessor Trustee shall execute and deliver any and all instruments of
conveyance or further assurance and do such other things as may reasonably be required for more
fully and certainly vesting in and confirming to such successor Trustee all the right, title and

interest ofsuch predecessor Trustee in and to any property held by it hereunder and shall pay over,
transfer, assign and deliver to the successor Trustee any money or other property subject to the
trusts and conditions herein set forth. Upon request of the successor Trustee, the Authority and

the Community Facilities District shall execute and deliver any and all instruments as may be

reasonably required for more fully and certainly vesting in and confirming to such successor
Trustee all such money, estates, properties, rights, powers, trusts, duties and obligations. Upon
acceptance of appointment by a successor Trustee as provided in this subsection, such successor

Trustee shall mail a notice of the succession of such successor Trustee to the trusts hereunder by
first class mail, postage prepaid, to the Owners at their respective addresses listed in the Bond
Register.

Any successor Trustee appointed under the provisions of this Section shall be a
trust company or bank having the powers of a trust company, having a designated corporate trust
office in California, and with a combined capital and surplus of at least one hundred million dollars
($100,000,000) and being subject to supervision or examination by federal or state authority; and

if such bank or trust company publishes a report of condition at least annually, pursuant to law or
to the requirements of any supelvising or examining authority above referred to, then for the
pllrpose of this subsection the cornbined capital and surplus of such bank or trust company shall
be deemed to be its combined capital and surplus as set forth in its most recent report of condition
so published. In case at any time the Trustee sl-rall cease to be eligible in accordance with the
provisions of this subsection, the Trustee shall resign proniptly in the rlanner and with the effect
specified in this Section.

4 t 62-2.9',72-2726.5

l)

Page 188

10/13/2020 Item No.12.



No provision herein shall require the Trustee to risk or expend its own funds or
otherwise incur any financial liability in the perfbrmance of any of its duties hereunder unless the
Owners shall have offered to the Trustee indemnity it deems reasonable, against the costs,
expenses and liabilities that may be incurred. The Trustee shall be entitled to interest on all money
advanced by it hereunder at its prirne rate then in effect plus two percent (2%), but not to exceed
the maximum interest rate permitted by the laws of the State.

In accepting the trust hereby created, the Trustee is acting solely as Trustee for tlie
Owners and not in its individual capacity, and under no circumstances shall the Trustee be liable
in its individual capacity for the obligations evidenced by the Authority Bonds.

The Trustee makes no representation or wamanty, express or implied, as to the
compliance with legal lequirements of the use contemplated by the Authority or the Community
Facilities District of the funds hereunder including, without limitation, the purchase of the Local
Obligations hereunder; rovided that the Trustee shall not acquire Local Obligations other than
pursuant to the provisions of Sections 5.03 and 5.04.

In no event shall the Trustee be responsible or liable for special, indirect, punitive
or consequential loss or damage of any kind whatsoever (including, but not limited to, loss of
profit) irrespective of whether the Tlustee has been advised of the likelihood of such loss or
damage and regardless of the folm of action.

The Trustee shall not be responsible for the validity or effectiveness or value of any
collateral or security securing any Local Obligation. The Trustee shall not be responsible for the
recording or filing of any document relating hereto or any Local Obligation or of financing
statements (or amendments or continuation statements in connection therewith) or mortgage or of
any supplemental instruments or documents of further assurance as may be required by law in
order to perfect the security interests or lien on or in any collateral or security securing any Local
Obligation. The Trustee shall not be deerned to have made representations as to the security
afforded thereby or as to the validity or sufficiency of any such document, collateral or security.

The Trustee shall not be deemed to have knowledge of any Event of Default
hereunder unless and until a Responsible Officer of the Trustee shall have actual knowledge
thereof at its Corporate Trust Office.

The Tlustee shall not be accountable fbr the use or application by the Authority or
the Community Facilities District or any other party of any funds which the Trustee has released
hereunder.

The Trustee shall provide a monthly accounting of all funds held purslrant hereto
(and all funds held by the Indenture Trustee) to the Authority within fifteen (15) Business Days
after the end of such month and shall provide statements of account for each annual period
beginning July I and ending June 30, witliin ninety (90) days after the end of such per'iod. Such
accounting shall show in reasonable detail all financial transactions during the accounting period
and the balance in any accounts and funds (including the Local Obligations Fund) created
hereunder as of the beginning and the close of such acconnting period.

4162-2872-2726.5

34

Page 189

10/13/2020 Item No.12.



The Trustee shall furnish the Authority periodic cash transaction statements which
include detail fol all investment transactions effected by the Trustee or brokers selected by the

Authority. Upon the Authority's election, such statements will be delivered via the Trustee's online
service and upon electing such service, paper statements will be provided only upon request. The

Authority waives the right to leceive brokerage confirmations of security transactions effected by
the Trustee as they occur, to the extent permitted by law. The Authority further understands that
trade confirmations for securities transactions effected by the Tlustee will be available upon
request and at no additional cost and other trade confirmations may be obtained fi'om the applicable
broker.

SECTION 9.03. Merger or Consolidation. Any company into which the Trustee may
be rnerged or converted or with which it may be consolidated or any company resulting from any

merger, conversion or consolidation to which it shall be a party or any company to which the

Trustee may sell or transfer all or substantially all of its corporate trust business shall succeed to
the rights and obligations of the Trustee without the execution or filing of any paper or any further
act, anything herein to the contrary notwithstanding; provided, that such company shall be eligible
under Section 9.02.

SECTION 9.04. Compensation and Indemnification. The Authority shall pay or
cause the Community Facilities District to pay the Trustee such compensation, as shall be agreed
in writing, for its services rendered hereunder and reimburse the Trustee for reasonable expenses,

disbursements and advances, including attorneys' fees and expenses, incurred by the Trustee in
the performance of its obligations hereunder and with respect to the Local Obligations.

The Authority agrees, to the extent permitted by law, to indemnify the Trustee and

its officers, directors, employees, attorneys and agents for, and to hold it harmless against, any
loss, liability, claim or expense incurred without negligence or willful misconduct on its part
arising out of or in connection with (i) the acceptance or administration of the trusts imposed
hereby, including performance of its duties hereunder, including the costs and expenses of
deferiding itself against any claims (whether asserted by the City or any other Person) or liability
in connection with the exercise or performance of any of its powers or duties hereunder (including
this Section 9.04), (ii) the projects to be financed with the purchase of the Local Obligations; (iii)
the sale of any Authority Bonds orthe purchase of the Local Obligations and the carrying out of
any of the transactions contemplated by the Authority Bonds or the Local Obligations; or (iv) any
untrue statement of any material fact or omission to state a material fact necessary to make the

statements made, in light of the circumstances under which they were made, not rnisleading in any

official statement or other disclosure document utilized by the Authority or the Community
Facilities District in connection with the sale of the Authority Bonds or the Local Obligations. The

Autholity's obligations hereunder with respect to indemnity of the Trustee and the provision for
its compensation set forth in this Article shall survive and rernain valid and binding
notwithstanding the maturity and payment of the Authority Bonds, or the resignation or removal
of tlie Trustee.

The Trustee shall have no responsibility for or liability in connection with assuring
that all of the procedures or conditions to closing set forth in the contract of purchase for the sale

of the Author'ity Bonds, that all documents required to be delivered on the closir-rg date to the
parties are actually delivered, except its own responsibility to receive or deliver the proceeds of

4162-2,\72-2726.5

35

Page 190

10/13/2020 Item No.12.



the sale, deliver the Authority Bonds and other'certiflcates expressly required to be delivered by it
and its counsel.

The Trustee shall not be responsible for deterrnining or investigating whether any
Local Obligation purchased pursuant to Section 5.03 is a Local Obligation, as defined herein, and
the Trustee may conclusively rely on the Autl-rority's determination and direction in this regard;
provided, that the Trustee shall not acquire the Local Obligations other than pursuant to the
provisions of Section 5.03. The Trustee shall be entitled to rely conclusively on the covenants,
representations and warranties of each obligor on any Local Obligation and in the documents and
certificates deliveled in connection therewith and each Written Order.

SECTION 9.05. Liability of Trustee. The recitals of facts herein and in the Authority
Bonds contained shall be taken as statements of the Authority or the Community Facilities District,
and the Trustee does not assume any responsibility for the correctness of the same, and does not
make any representations as to the validity or sufficiency hereof or of the Authority Bonds, and
shall not incur any responsibility in respect thereof, other than in connection with the duties or
obligations herein or in the Authority Bonds assigned to or imposed upon it; provided, that the
Trustee shall be responsible for its representations contained in its certificate of authentication on
the Authority Bonds. The Trustee shall not be liable in connection with the performance of its
duties hereunder except for its own negligence or willful misconduct. The Trustee (in its individual
or any other capacity) may become the Owrel of Authority Bonds with the same rights it would
have if it were not Trustee hereunder, and, to the extent permitted by law, may act as depositary
for and permit any of its officers, directors and employees to act as a member of, or in any other
capacity with respect to, any committee fornred to protect the rights of Owners, whether or not
such committee shall represent the Ownels of a rnajority in principal amount of the Authority
Bonds then Outstanding. The Trustee shall not be liable with respect to any action taken or omitted
to be taken by it in good faith in accordance with the direction of the Owners of a majority in
principal amount of the Outstanding Authority Bonds relating to the time, method and place of
conducting any proceeding for any remedy available to the Trustee, or exercising any trust or
power conferred upon the Trustee hereunder. Whether or not therein expressly so provided, every
provision hereof ol related documents relating to the conduct or affecting the liability of or
affording protection to the Trustee shall be subject to the provisions of this Article.

SECTION 9.06. Right to Relli on Docurnents; Adverse Effect Determinations. The
Trustee may conclusively rely on and shall be plotected in acting or refraining from acting upon
any notice, resolution, requisition, request, consent, oLder, certificate, repofi, opinion, bond or
other paper or document believed by it to be genuine and to have been signed or presented by the
proper party or parties. The Trustee may consult with counsel of its selection, who may be counsel
of or to the Authority, with regard to legal questions, and the opinion of such counsel shall be full
and complete authorization and plotection in respect of any action taken or suffered or omitted by
it hereundel in good faith and in accordance therewith.

Whenever in the administration of the trusts irnposed upon it hereby the Trustee
shall deem it necessary or desirable that a matter be proved or established prior to taking or
suff-ering or omitting any action heleunder, such matter (unless other evidence in respect thereof
be herein specifically prescribed) may be deemed to be conclusively proved and established by an

Officer's Certificate, and such Officer's Certificate shall be ftill warrant to the Trustee for any

4t62-2872-2726 5

36

Page 191

10/13/2020 Item No.12.



action taken ol suffered or omitted in good faith under the provisions hereof in reliance upon such

Officer's Certificate, but the Trustee may, in lieu thereof, accept othel evidence of such matter or
may require snch additional evidence as to it may seem reasonable.

The Trustee shall be entitled to advice of counsel of its selection and other
professionals or agents concerning all matters of trust and its duty hereunder, but the Trustee shall
not be answerable or liable for the acts or omissions of any agent, attorney-at-law, certified public
accountant, or other professional if such agent, attorney-at-law, certified public accountant or other
professional was selected by the Trustee with due care.

SECTION 9.07. Pleservation and Inspection of Documents. All documents received
by the Trustee under the provisions hereof shall be retained in its possession in accordance with
its record retention policies and shall be subject at all reasonable times upon prior written notice
to the inspection of the Authority, the Owners of not less than a majority of the aggregale principal
amount of the Outstanding Authority Bonds, and their agents and representatives duly authorized
in writing, at reasonable hours and under reasonable conditions.

SECTION 9.08. Indemnity for Trustee. Before taking any action or exercising any

rights or powers hereunder, the Trustee may require that satisfactory indemnity be furnished to it
for the reimbursement of any and all costs, claims and expenses which it may incur and to
indemnify it against any and all liability, except liability which may result from its negligence or
willful misconduct, by reason of any action so taken.

ARTICLE X

EXECUTION OF INSTRUMENTS BY OWNERS AND
PROOF OF OWNERSHIP OF AUTHORITY BONDS

SECTION 10.01. Execution of Instruments; Proof of OwnershiB. Any request,

direction, consent or other instrument in writing required or permitted hereby to be signed or
executed by Owners may be in any number of concurrent instruments of similar tenor by different
parties and may be signed or executed by such Owners in person or by agent appointed by an

instrument in writing. Proof of the execution of any such instrument and of the ownership of
Authority Bonds shall be sufficient for any puryose hereof and shall be conclusive in favor of the
Trustee with legard to any action taken, suffered or omitted by either of them under such

instrument if made in the following manner:

(a) The fact and date of the execution by any Person of any such instrument may be

proved by the certificate of any officer in any jurisdiction who, by the laws thereof, has power to
take acknowledgments within such jurisdiction, to the effect that the Person signing such

instrument acknowledged befbre him or her the execution theleof, or by an affidavit of a witness
to such execution.

(b) The fact of the ownership of Autholity Bonds hereunder by any Owner and the

serial numbers of such Authority Bonds and the date of his ownership of the sarne shall be proved
by the Bond Register.

Nothing contained in this Article shall be construed as limiting the Trustee to such
proof, it being intended that the Trustee may accept any other evidence of the matters in this Article

4162-2872-2726 5

a1)t

Page 192

10/13/2020 Item No.12.



stated which shall be sufficient. Any request or" consent of the Owner shall bind every future
Owner of such Authority Bond and any Authority Bond or Authority Bonds issued in exchange or
substitution therefor or upon the registration of transfer thereof in respect of anything done by the
Trustee in pursuance ofsuch request or consent.

ARTICLE XI

SUPPLEMENTAL TRUST AGREEMENTS

SECTION 11.01. Suoolemental Trust with Consent of Owners. Any
modification or alteration hereof or of the rights and obligations of the Authority, the Community
Facilities District or the Owners may be made with the consent of the Owners of not less than a
majority in aggregate principal amount of the Authority Bonds then Outstanding; provided, that
no such modification or alteration shall be made which will reduce the percentage of aggregate
principal amount of Authority Bonds the consent of the Owners of which is required for any such

modification or alteration or permit the creation by the Authority or the Community Facilities
District of any lien prior to or on parity with the lien hereof upon the Trust Estate ol which will
affect the times, amounts and cun'ency of payment of the interest on or principal of or redemption
prem'iums, if any, on the Authority Bonds or affect the rights, duties or obligations of the Trustee

without the consent of the party affected thereby.

SECTION 11.02. Supplemental Trust Agreements Without Consent of Owners. The
Authority and the Community Facilities District may, without the consent of the Owners, enter

into a Supplemental Trust Agreement or Supplemental Trust Agreements, which thereafter shall
form a part of this Trust Agreement, for any one or more of the following purposes:

(a) to add to the agreements and covenants of the Authority or the Community
Facilities District contained herein other agreements and covenants thereafter to be observed, or
to surrender any right or power herein reserved to or conferred upon the Authority or the

Community Facilities District; provided, that no such agreement, covenant or surrender shall
materially adversely affect the rights of any Owner;

(b) to cure any ambiguity, to supply any omission or to cure, correct or supplement any

defect or inconsistent provisions contained herein or in any Supplemental Tlust Agreement;

(c) to make any change which does not materially adversely affect tlie rights of any

Owner;

(d) to grant to the Trustee for the benefit of the Owners additional rights, remedies,
powers or authority;

(e) to subject hereto additional collateral orto add other agreements of the Authority
ol the Community Facilities District;

(0 to modify this Trust Agreement or the Authority Bonds to perrnit qualification
hereof under the Trust Indenture Act of 7939, as amended, or any similar statute at the tirne in
effect, or to permit the qualification of the Authority Bonds for sale under the securities laws of
any state of the United States of America;

38
4 t62-28'72-2726.5

Page 193

10/13/2020 Item No.12.



(g) to make any amendments ol supplements necessary or appropriate to preserve or
protect the exclusion from gross income for federal incotne tax purposes under the Code of the
interest on the Authority Bonds or the exemption of interest on the Authority Bonds fi'om State

personal income taxes; or

(h) to evidence the succession ofa successor Trustee.

For all purposes of this Section, the Trustee shall be entitled to conclusively rely
upon and shall be fully protected in relying upon an Opinion of Bond Counsel with respect to the

extent, if any, to which any action affects the rights hereunder of any Owner.

SECTION 11.03. Trustee Authorized to Enter into Supplemental Trust Agreements.
The Trustee is hereby authorized to enter into any Supplemental Trust Agreement with the
Authority and the Community Facilities District authorized or permitted by the terms hereof, and
to make the further agreements and stipulations which may be therein contained, and for all
purposes of this Section the Trustee shall be entitled to conclusively rely upon and shall be fully
protected in relying upon an Opinion of Bond Counsel to the effect that such Supplemental Trust
Agreement is authorized or permitted by the provisions hereof.

ARTICLE XII

DEFEASANCE

SECTION 12.01. Defeasance. If and when the Authority Bonds secured hereby shall
become due and payable in accordance with their terms or through redemption proceedings as

provided herein, or otherwise, and the whole amount of the interest on and principal of redemption
premiums, if any, so due and payable upon all of the Authority Bonds shall have been paid, or
provision shall have been made for the payment of the same, together with all other sums payable

hereunder by the Authority, including all fees and expenses of the Trustee, then and in that case,

this Trust Agreement and the lien created hereby shall be completely discharged and satisfied and
the Authority and the Community Facilities District shall be released flom the respective

agreements, conditions, covenants and terms of the Authority and the Community Facilities
District contained herein, and the Trustee shall assign and transfer all property (in excess of the

amounts required for the foregoing) then held by the Trustee free and clear of any encumbrances
as provided in Section 12.04 and shall execute such documents as may be reasonably required by
the Authority or the Community Facilities District in this regard.

Notwithstanding the satisfaction and dischalge hereof, those provisions of this
Trust Agreement relating to the maturity of tlie Authority Bonds, interest payments and dates

thereof, exchange and transfer of Authority Bonds, replacement of mutilated, destroyed, lost or
stolen Authority Bonds, the safekeeping and cancellation of Authority Bonds, nonpresentment of
Authority Bonds, and the duties of the Trustee in connection with all of the foregoing, shallremain
in effect and shall be binding upon the Trustee and the Owner, and the Trustee shall, subject to
Section 13.06, continue to be obligated to hold in trust any money or investments then held by the
Trustee for the payment of the interest on and principal of and redernption premiums, if any, on
the Authority Bonds, to pay to the Owner of Authority Bonds the funds so held by the Trustee as

and when such payments become due, and those provisions hereof contained in Section 9.04

4162-2872-2726.5

39

Page 194

10/13/2020 Item No.12.



relating to the compensation and indernnification of the Trustee and in Section 7.04 rcIating to the

tax covenants of the Authority and the Comrnunity Facilities District shall remain in effect and

shall be binding upon the Trustee, the Authority and the Community Facilities District.

SECTION 12.02. Authorit), Bonds Deemed to Have Been Paid. If any money shall
have been set aside and held by the Trustee for the payment or redemption of any Authority Bonds
and the interest installments therefor at the maturity thereof or date fixed for redemption, such

Authority Bonds shall be deemed to be paid within the meaning and with the effect provided in
Section 12.01. Any Outstanding Bond shall prior to the maturity or redemption date thereof be

deemed to have been paid within the meaning and with the effect expressed in Section 12.01 if (a)

in case any Authority Bonds are to be redeemed on any date prior to their maturity, the Authority
shall have given to the Trustee irrevocable instructions to mail notice of redemption of such

Authority Bonds on such redemption date, such notice to be given in accordance with the
provisions of Article IV, (b) there shall have been deposited with the Trustee in escrow either (i)
money in an amount which shall be sufficient to pay when due the interest on and principal of and

redemption premiums, if any, due and to become due on such Authority Bonds on and prior to the

date scheduled for redemption or maturity date thereof, as the case may be, ot (ii) noncallable
Government Obligations the principal of and the interest on which when due, and without any

reinvestment thereof, will provide money which, together with the money, if any, deposited with
or held by the Trustee at the same time, shall be sufficient as verified by a report of a nationally
recognized independent certified public accountant to pay when due the interest on and principal
of and redemption premiums, if any, due and to become due on such Authority Bonds on and prior
to the date fixed for redemption or maturity date thereof, as the case may be, and (c) in the event

any of such Authority Bonds are not to be redeemed within the next succeeding sixty (60) days,

the Authority shall have given the Trustee irrevocable instructions to mail, as soon as practicable
in the same manner as a notice of redemption is mailed pursuant to Article IV, a notice to the

Owners of such Authority Bonds that the deposit required by (b) above has been made with the

Trustee and that such Authority Bonds are deemed to have been paid in accordance with this
Section and stating the rnaturity dates or redemption dates upon which money is to be available
for the payment of the interest on and principal of and redemption premiums, if any, on such

Authority Bonds. Neither the securities nor money deposited with the Trustee pursuant to this
Section nor interest or principal payments on any such securities shall be withdrawn or used for
any purpose other than, and shall be held in trust for, the payment of the interest on and principal
of and redemption premiums, if any, on such Authority Bonds; provided, that any cash received
from such interest or principal or interest payments on such obligations deposited with the Trustee,

if not then needed for such purpose, shall, to the extent practicable and at the written direction of
the Autholity, be reinvested in Government Obligations, such written direction to specify which
Government Obligations are to be invested in, maturing at times and in amounts, together with the

other money and payrnents with respect to Government Obligations then held by the Trustee
pursuant to this Section, sufficient to pay when due the interest on and principal of and redernptiort
premiums, if any, to become due on such Authority Bonds on and priol to such redemption date

or maturity date tl-rereof, as the case may be, and interest earned fiom such reinvestments shall,
upon receipt by the Trustee of a Written Order so directing, be paid over to the Authority as

received by the Trustee fi'ee and clear of any trust, lien or pledge.

4162-2872-2726.5

40

Page 195

10/13/2020 Item No.12.



SECTION 12.03. Money Held for Particular Authority Bonds. Except as otherwise
provided in Section 12.02 or 13.06, the amounts held by the Trustee for the payment of the interest
on or principal of the redemption premiums, if any, or the interest due on any date with respect to
particular Authority Bonds shall, on and after such date and pending such payment, be set aside
on its books and held in trust by it solely for the Owners entitled thereto.

SECTION 12.04. Effect of Defeasance of Authorit)' Bonds. Notwithstanding any
other provision hereof, in the event that the Authority Bonds are defeased and the obligations
hereunder are discharged pursuant to this Article, the Trustee shall transfer all property and money
held by the Trustee (including, without limitation, the Local Obligations), to or upon the written
order of the Authority.

ARTICLE XIII

MISCELLANEOUS

SECTION 13.01. Dissolution of Authority. In the event of the dissolution of the
Authority, all the agreements, conditions, covenants and terms contained herein by or on behalf
of, or for the benefit of, the Authority shall bind or inure to the benefit of the successors of the
Authority from time to time and any officer, board, commission, agency or instrumentality to
whom or to which any power or duty of the Authority shall be transferred.

SECTION 13.02. Parties Interested Herein. Except as otherwise specifically provided
herein, nothing contained herein, expressed or implied, is intended or shall be construed to confer
upon any Person other than the Authority, the Community Facilities District, the Trustee and the
Owners any right, remedy or claim under or by reason hereof, this Trust Agreement being intended
to be for the sole and exclusive benefit of the Authority, the Community Facilities District, the
Trustee and the Owners.

SECTION 13.03. Notice. All written notices to be given hereunder to the Authority
or the Community Facilities District or the Trustee shall be given by mail or electronic means to
the party entitled thereto at its address set forth below, or at such other address as such party may
provide to the other parties in writing from time to time, namely:

If to the Authority: Folsom Ranch Financing Authority
50 Natoma Street
Folsom, CA 95630
Attention: Treasurer
Fax: 9 I 6-985-0870
Email : fi nancetreasury@,fol sorn. ca.us

4 t 62-2872-2726 .5

41

Page 196

10/13/2020 Item No.12.



If to the Community Facilities District:
City of Folsom Community Facilities District No. 23

(Folsorn Ranch)
c/o City of Folsorn
City Hall
50 Natoma Street
Folsom, CA 95630
Attention: Finance Director
Fax: 9 I 6-985-0870
Email: fi nancetreasury@folsom.ca.us

If to the
Trustee:

MUFG Union Bank, N.A.
445 South Figueroa, 20tl'Floor
Los Angeles, CA 90071
Attention: Corporate Trust
Fax 213-972-5694
Email : LACT@unionbank.com
with a copy to: keith.sevigny@unionbank.com

Each such notice, statement, demand, consent, approval, authorization, offer,
designation, request or other communication hereunder shall be deemed delivered to the party to
whom it is addressed (a) if personally served or delivered, upon delivery, (b) if given by electronic
communication, upon the sender's receipt of an appropriate answer back or other written
acknowledgment or confirmation of receipt of the entire notice, approval, demand, report or other
communication, (c) if given by first class mail deposited with the United States mail postage

prepaid, seventy-two (72) hours after such notice is deposited with the United States mail, (d) if
given by overnight courier, with courier charges prepaid, twenty-four Q\ hours after delivery to
said overnight courier, or (e) if given by any other means, upon delivery at the address specif,red

in this Section.

In case, by reason of the suspension of or irregularities in regular mail service, it
shall be impractical to mail to the Owners notice of any event when such notice is required to be

given pursuant to any provision hereof, then any manner of giving such notice as the Authority
shall direct and not objected to by the Trustee shall be deemed to be a sufficient giving of such
notice.

The Trustee shall have the riglit to accept and act upon instructions, including funds
transfer instructions ("Instructions") given pursuant to this Trust Agreement and delivered using
Electronic Means ("Electronic Means" shall mean the followillg communications methods: e-

mail, facsimile transmission, secure electronic transmission containing applicable authorization
codes, passwords and/or authentication keys issued by the Trustee, or another method or system
specified by the Trustee as available for use in connection with its services hereunder); provided,
however, tliat the Authority shall provide to the Trustee an incumbency certificate listing officers
with the Authority to pr"ovide such lnstructions and containing specimen signatures of such
officers, which incumbency certificate shall be amended by the Authority whenever a person is to
be added or deleted from the listing. If the Authority elects to give the Trustee Instructions using
Electronic Means and the Trustee in its reasonable judgment elects to act upon such Instructions,

4162-2872-2726 5

42

Page 197

10/13/2020 Item No.12.



the Trustee's understanding of such instructions shall be deemed controlling. The Community
Facilities District understands and agrees that the Trustee cannot detennine the identity of the
actual sender of such lnstructions and that the Trustee shall be entitled to conclusively presume

without liability that directions that purport to have been sent by an officer listed on the
incumbency certificate provided to the Trustee have been sent by such officer. The Authority shall
be responsible for ensuring that only officers transmit such Instructions to the Trustee and that the
Authority and all officers are solely responsible to safeguard the use and confidentiality of
applicable user and authorization codes, passwords and/or authentication keys upon receipt by the
Authority. The Trustee shall not be liable for any losses, costs claims, or expenses arising directly
or indirectly fi'om the Trustee's reliance upon and compliance with such Instructions
notwithstanding the fact that such directions conflict or are inconsistent with a subsequent written
instruction. The Authority agrees: (i) to assume all risks arising out of the use of Electronic Means
to submit Instructions to the Tr'ustee, including without limitation the risk of the Trustee acting on
unauthorized Instructions, and the risk of interception and misuse by third parties; (ii) that it is
fully informed of the protections and risks associated with the various methods of tlansmitting
Instructions to the Trustee and that there may be more secure methods of transmitting Instructions
than the method(s) selected by the Authority; (iii) that the security procedures (if any) to be

followed in connection with its transmission of Instructions provide to it a commercially
reasonable degree of protection in light of its particular needs and circumstances; and (iv) to notify
the Trustee in writing immediately upon learning of any compromise or unauthorized use of the
security procedures.

SECTION 13.04. Holidays. If the date for making any payment or the last date for
performance of any act or the exercising of any right, as provided herein, shall not be a Business
Day, such payment rnay be made or act performed or right exercised on the next succeeding
Business Day with the same force and effect as if done on the nominal date provided in this Trust
Agreement, and no interest shall accrue for the period from and after such nominal date.

SECTION 13.05. Limitation of Liabilitv. The Authority shall not be obligated to
make any payments required hereunder or under any Bond, or be deemed to incur any liability
hereunder or by reason hereof or arising out of any of the transactions contemplated hereby,
payable frorn any funds or assets other than the Trust Estate as provided herein.

SECTION 13.06. Unclaimed Money. Anything contained herein to the contrary
notwithstanding, any money held by the Trustee in trust for the payment and discharge of the
interest on or principal of or redemption premiums, if any, on any Bond which remains unclaimed
for two (2) years after the date when such amounts have become payable, if such money was held
by the Trustee on such date, or for two (2) years after the date of deposit of such money if deposited
witli the Trustee afier the date such amounts have become payable, shall be paid by the Trustee to
the Authority as its absolute property free from trust, and the Trustee shall thereupon be released
and dischalged witli respect thereto and the Owners shall look only to the Authority for the
payment of such amounts; provided, that before being required to make any such payment to the
Author'ity, the Trustee shall, at the expense and written direction of the Authority, give notice by
first class mail to tl-re Owners that such money remains unclaimed and that after a date named in
such notice, which date shall not be less than sixty (60) days after the date of giving such notice,
the balance of such money then unclaimed will be returned to the Author"ity.

4 162-287 2-2726.i

43

Page 198

10/13/2020 Item No.12.



SECTION I3.07 Law. This Trust Agreement shall be governed as to
validity, construction and performance by the laws of the State

SECTION 13.08. Severability of Invalid Provisions. If any clause, provision or
section hereof is held illegal or invalid by any court, the invalidity of such clause, provision or
section shall not affect any of the remaining clauses, provisions or sections heleof, and this Trust
Agreement shall be construed and enforced as if such illegal or invalid clause, provision or section
had not been contained herein.

SECTION 13.09. Counterparts and Electronic Execution. This Trust Agreement may
be executed in any number of counterparts, each of which, when so executed and delivered, shall
be an original; but all of which such counterparts shall together constitute but one and the same

instrument. The exchange of copies of this Trust Agreement and of signature pages by facsimile
or PDF transmission shall constitute effective execution and delivery of this Trust Agreement as

to the parties hereto and may be used in lieu of the original Trust Agreement and signature pages

for all putposes. Each party agrees that the electronic signatures, whether digital or encrypted, of
the parties included in this Trust Agreement are intended to authenticate this writing and to have

the same force and effect as manual signatures. Electronic signature means any electronic sound,

symbol, or process attached to or logically associated with a record and executed and adopted by
a party with the intent to sign such record, including facsimile or email electronic signatures.

SECTION 13.10. U.S.A. Patriot Act. The parties hereto acknowledge that in
accordance with Section326 of the U.S.A. Patriot Act, the Trustee, like all financial institutions
and in order to help fight the funding of terrorism and money laundering, is required to obtain,
veriff, and record information that identifies each person or legal entity that establishes a

relationship or opens an account with the Trustee. The parties to this Trust Agreement agree that
they will provide the Trustee with such information as it may request in order for the Trustee to
satisfy the requirements of the U.S.A. Patriot Act.

SECTION 1 3 . I 1 . Force Maieure. In no event shall the Trustee be responsible or liable
for any failure or delay in the performance of its obligations hereunder arising out of or caused by,
directly or indirectly, forces beyond its control, including, without limitation, strikes, work
stoppages, accidents, acts of war or terrotism, pandemics, epidemics, quarantine restrictions,
recognized public emergencies, civil or military disturbances, nuclear or natural catastrophes or
acts of God, and interruptions, loss or malfunctions of utilities, communications or computer
(software and hardware) services; it being understood that the Trustee shall use reasonable efforts
which are consistent with accepted practices in the banking industry to resume performance as

soon as practicable under the circumstances.

IREMAINDER OF PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK]

4 t 62-2872-2726.5

44

Page 199

10/13/2020 Item No.12.



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Authority has caused this Trust Agreement to be

executed by the Treasurer, the Community Facilities District has caused this Trust Agreement to
be executed in its name by the Finance Director of the City of Folsom, and the Trustee has caused

this Trust Agreement to be executed by its authorized signatory, all as of the day and year first
above written.

FOLSOM RANCH FINANCING AUTHORITY

By
Treasurer

CITY OF FOLSOM COMMTINITY FACILITIES
DrsrRrcr No. 23 (FoLSoM RANCH)

By
Finance Director of the City of Folsom

MUFG UNION BANK, N.A.,
as Trustee

By
Authorized Signatory

4162-2872-2726.5

Signature Page to Trust Agreenrent

Page 200

10/13/2020 Item No.12.



EXHIBIT A

FORM OF AUTHORITY BONDS

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA
STATE OF CALIFORNIA

Unless this Authority Bond is presented by an authorized representative of The Depository Trust
Company, a New York corporation ("DTC"), to the Trustee for registration of transfer, exchange,
or payment, and any Authority Bond issued is registered in the name of Cede & Co. or in such

other name as is requested by an authorized representative of DTC (and any payment is rnade to
Cede & Co. or to such other entity as is requested by an authorized representative of DTC), ANY
TRANSFER, PLEDGE, OR OTFIER USE HEREOF FOR VALUE OR OTHERWISE BY OR TO
ANY PERSON IS WRONGFUL inasmuch as the registered owner hereof, Cede & Co., has an

interest herein.

FOLSOM RANCH FINANCING AUTHORITY
CITY OF FOLSOM COMMLINITY FACILITIES DISTRICT

NO. 23 (FOLSOM RANCH) TMPROVEMENT AREA NO. 1 SPECTAL TAX REVENUE
BOND, SERIES 2O2O

No. R- $

INTEREST
RATE

MATURITY
DATE

DATED
DATE CUSIP

% September 1,20_ fNovember _\2020 344414L]

Registered Owner: CEDE & CO

Principal Sum DOLLARS

The Folsom Ranch Financing Authority, a joint exercise of powers agency
established pursuant to the laws of the State of California (the "Authority"), for value received
hereby promises to pay to the registered owner specified above, or registered assigns. on the
maturity date set forth above (subject to any right of prior redemption hereinafier rnentioned) tlie
principal sum set fbrth above and to pay interest thereon at the interest rate per annuln set folth
above. The interest on tliis Authority Bond will be calculated on the basis of a 360-day year
consisting of twelve (12) 30-day calendar months and will be payable on March I and September'

1 in each year (each an "lnterest Payment Date"), commencing on March 1,2021, and is payable

4 162-28'72-2726.5

A-1

Page 201

10/13/2020 Item No.12.



by check, mailed by first class mail, on each lnterest Payment Date to the registered owner whose
name appears on the bond register maintained by the Corporate Trust Office of MUFG Union
Bank, N.A. (together with any successor as Trustee under the Trust Agreement hereinafter
mentioned, the "Trustee") as of the close of business on the fifteenth (15th) day of the month
preceding such lnterest Payment Date (the "Record Date"), except with respect to defaulted
interest for which a special record date will be established; provided, that in the case of a registered
owner of one million dollars ($1,000,000) or more in aggregate principal amount of Authority
Bonds, upon written request of such registered owner to the Trustee received not later than the
Record Date, such interest shall be paid on the Interest Payment Date in imrnediately available
funds by wire transfer to an account in a bank or trust company or savings bank that is a member
of the Federal Reserve System and that is located in the continental United States of America. The
principal hereof and the redemption premium hereon, if any, are payable upon presentation and
surrender hereof at the Corporate Trust Office of the Trustee. Both the interest on and principal
of and redemption premium, if any, hereon are payable in lawful money of the United States of
America. All capitalized terms used herein but not otherwise defined shall have the meanings
contained in the hereinafter mentioned Trust Agreement.

The Authority and the Trustee shall be entitled to conclusively treat the registered
owner of this Authority Bond as the absolute owner hereof for the purpose of receiving payment
as herein provided and for all other purposes, and the Authority and the Trustee shall not be

affected by notice to the contrary.

This Authority Bond is one of a duly authorized issue of bonds of the Authority
designated as the "Folsom Ranch Financing Authority City of Folsom Community Facilities
District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch) Improvement Area No. 1 Special Tax Revenue Bonds, Series

2020" (the "Authority Bonds") issued in the aggregate principal amount of [PAR IN WORDS]
dollars ($[PAR]) pursuant to the provisions relating to the joint exercise of powers found in
Chapter 5 of Division 7 of Title 1 of the California Government Code, including the Marks-Roos
Local Bond Pooling Act of 1985 (being California Government Code Sections 6584-6594) as

amended and supplemented (the "Act"), and pursuant to a trust agreement executed and entered
into as of November 1, 2020, by and among the Authority, the City of Folsom Community
Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch) (the "Community Facilities District") and the Trustee
(the "Trust Agreement"). The Authority Bonds are issued for the purpose of purchasing Local
Obligations, and reference is hereby made to the Trust Agreement (a copy of which is on file at

the Corporate Trust Office of the Trustee) and all trust agreements supplemental thereto and to the
Act for a description of the purposes thereof, of the rights thereunder of the registered owner, of
the nature and extent of the security for the Autholity Bonds and of the rights, duties and

irnmunities of the Trustee, of the obligations of the Community Facilities District, and of the rights
and obligations of the Authority thereunder, to all the provisions of which Trust Agreement the
registered owner of this Authority Bond, by acceptance hereof, assents and agrees.

The Autholity Bonds and the interest theleon and any r"edemption premiums
thereon are special, limited obligations of tl-re Authority payable solely fiorn the Trust Estate and

are secured by the Trust Estate, including amounts held in the accounts and funds (other than the
Rebate Fund) established pursuant to the Trust Agreement (including proceeds of the sale of the
Autholity Bonds), subject only to the provisions of the Trust Agreement perrnitting the application
thereof for the purposes and on the terms and conditions set forth in the Trust Agreement. No

4 t 62-?.872-2726.5

A-2

Page 202

10/13/2020 Item No.12.



member or officer of the Authority, nor any person executing this Authority Bond, shall in any

event be subject to any personal liability or accountability by reason of the issuance of tliis
Authority Bond.

THE AUTHORITY BONDS ARE SPECIAL, LIMITED OBLIGATIONS OF

THE AUTHORITY, PAYABLE FROM, AND SECURED AS TO THE PAYMENT OF THE
PRINCIPAL OF AND ANY REDEMPTION PREMIUMS ON OR INTEREST ON THE
AUTHORITY BONDS IN ACCORDANCE WITH THEIR TERMS AND THE TERMS OF THE
TRUST AGREEMENT, SOLELY FROM THE TRUST ESTATE. THE AUTHORITY BONDS
DO NOT CONSTITUTE A CHARGE AGAINST THE GENERAL CREDIT OF THE
AUTHORITY OR ITS MEMBERS, AND LINDER NO CIRCUMSTANCES SHALL THE
AUTHORITY BE OBLIGATED TO PAY PRINCIPAL OF OR ANY REDEMPTION
PREMIUMS ON OR INTEREST ON THE AUTHORITY BONDS EXCEPT FROM THE
TRUST ESTATE. NONE OF THE COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT, THE CITY OF
FOLSOM (THE "CITY"), THE STATE OF CALIFORNIA NOR ANY PUBLIC AGENCY
(OTHER THAN THE AUTHORITY) NOR ANY MEMBER OF THE COMMIINITY
FACILITIES DISTRICT OR THE AUTHORITY IS OBLIGATED TO PAY THE PRINCIPAL
OF OR ANY REDEMPTION PREMIUMS ON OR INTEREST ON THE AUTHORITY BONDS,
AND NEITHER THE FAITH AND CREDIT NOR THE TAXING POWER OF THE
COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT, THE CITY, THE STATE OF CALIFORNIA OR ANY
PUBLIC AGENCY THEREOF OR ANY MEMBER OF THE AUTHORITY (INCLUDING THE
CITY) IS PLEDGED TO THE PAYMENT OF THE PRINCIPAL OF OR ANY REDEMPTION
PREMIUMS ON OR INTEREST ON THE AUTHORITY BONDS, AND NEITHER THE
PRINCIPAL OF OR ANY REDEMPTION PREMIUMS ON OR INTEREST ON THE
AUTHORITY BONDS CONSTITUTES A DEBT, LIABILITY OR OBLIGATION OF THE
COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT, THE CITY, THE STATE OF CALIFORNIA OR ANY
PUBLIC AGENCY (OTHER TI]AN THE AUTHORITY) OR ANY MEMBER OF THE
AUTHORITY.

The Authority Bonds are subject to optional redemption by the Authority prior to
their respective maturity dates as a whole or in part on any date on or after fSeptember Il,20L_],
from any source of available funds other than Minimum Sinking Fund Payments and Special Tax
Prepayments, upon mailed notice as hereinafter plovided, at the following redemption prices
(computed upon the principal amount of the Authority Bonds or portions thereof called for
redemption) together with accrued interest thereon to the date fixed for redemption:

ll03l% if redeemed on any date on or after [September 1], 20L_l
through fAugust 3 1], 20[_];

U02)% ifledeemed on any date frorn fSeptembel l],20[_] through

fAugust 3l],20f1;

U}ll% if ledeemed on any date fi'om [September l],20L1through
[August 3l],20f1; and

[100]% if redeemed on [September 1], 201_l and any date

thereafter.

4 162-2972-2726.5

A-3

Page 203

10/13/2020 Item No.12.



The Authority Bonds are subject to extraordinary redemption by the Authority prior
to their respective maturity dates, as a whole or in part on any Interest Payment Date on or after

fMarch l],201_1, solely from funds derived fiom extraordinary redemption of Local Obligations
from Special Tax Prepayments, at the following redemption prices (computed upon the principal
amount of the Authority Bonds or portions thereof called for redemption) together with accrued

interest thereon to the date fixed for redemption:

11031% if redeemed on an Interest Payment Date on or after

fMarch l],20L1 through fMarch 11,201_];

11021% if redeemed on an Interest Payment Date on fSeptember 1],
201_l and fMarch l],2011;

U}ll% if redeemed on an Interest Payment Date on [September 1],
20Ll and fMarch 1], 20ll; and

[00]% if redeemed on [September 1], 20Ll and any Interest
Payment Date thereafter.

The Authority Bonds maturing on September 1, 20L1, are subject to mandatory
redemption by the Authority prior to their stated maturity date in paft on September 1 of each year
on and after September 1 ,201 l, to and including September 1,2011; and the Authority Bonds
maturing on September 1, 20L_1, are subject to mandatory redemption by the Authority prior to
their stated maturity date in part on September 1 of each year on and after September 7,201 l,to
and including September 1, 20L), upon mailed notice as hereinafter provided, from (and in the

amount ofl the Minimum Sinking Fund Payment due and payable for the Authority Bonds on each

such date, at a redemption price equal to the principal amount thereof plus accrued interest thereon

to the date of redemption, without premium.

Notice of redemption of any Authority Bonds shall be mailed by first class mail, in
a sealed envelope, postage prepaid, at least thirty (30) but not more than sixty (60) days before the

date fixed lor redemption, to the registered owners of such Authority Bonds (or portions thereof)
so called for redemption, at their respective addresses as the same shall last appear on the Bond
Register maintained by the Trustee; provided, that neither the failure of a registered owner to
receive notice of redernption of Authority Bonds nor any error in such notice shall affect the

validity of the proceedings for the redemption of Authority Bonds; and pfqvided further, that no

notice of redemption need be given to the registeled owner of an Authority Bond to be called for
redemption if such registered owner waives notice thereof in writing, and such waiver is filed with
the Trustee prior to the redemption date.

Any notice of optional redemption under the Trust Agreement may be rescinded by

written notice given by the Authority to the Trustee no later than one ( 1) Business Day prior to the

date specified for redemption. The Trustee shall give notice of rescission of the notice of optional
redernption or non-satisfaction of any conditions specified in the notice of optional redemption as

soon as practicable to the same parties and in the same manner as the notice of redernption was
given.

4 t62-2872-2126.5

A-4

Page 204

10/13/2020 Item No.12.



The Authority Bonds are issuable as fully registered bonds in denon-rinations of five
thousand dollars ($5,000) or any integral multiple in excess thereof. This Authority Bond may be

transferred or exchanged by the registered owner hereof, in person or by an attorney duly
authorized in writing, but only in the manner, subject to the limitations and upon payment of the

charges, if any, provided in the Trust Agreement, and upon surrender and cancellation of this
Authority Bond. Upon such transfer or exchange, a new Authority Bond or Authority Bonds, of
authorized denominations, for the same aggregate principal amount, interest rate and maturity will
be issued to the transferee in accordance with the provisions of the Trust Agreement. The Tlustee

is not required to register the transfer of, or to exchange, any Authority Bond during the period

established by the Trustee for selection of Authority Bonds for redemption or to register the

transfer of, or to exchange, any Authority Bond which has been selected for redemption pursuant

to the Trust Agreement.

The Trust Agreement and the rights and obligations of the Authority and of the

registered owners of the Authority Bonds may be modified or amended from time to time and at

any time (and in certain cases without the consent of such registered owners) in the manner, to the

extent and upon the terms provided in the Trust Agreement.

The Trust Agreement contains provisions permitting the Authority to make

provisions for the payment of the interest on, and the principal and premium, if any, of, any of the

Authority Bonds so that such Authority Bonds shall no longer be deemed to be Outstanding under
the terms of the Trust Agreement.

It is hereby certified and recited that any and all conditions, things and acts required
to exist, to have happened and to have been performed precedent to and in the issuance of this
Authority Bond do exist, have happened and have been performed in due time, form and manner
as required by the Constitution and laws of the State of California, including the Act, and that the

amount of this Authority Bond, together with all other indebtedness of the Authority, does not
exceed any limit prescribed by the Constitution and laws of the State of California, including the

Act, and is not in excess of the amount of Authority Bonds permitted to be issued under the Trust
Agreement.

This Authority Bond shall not be entitled to any benefit under the Trust Agreement,
or become valid or obligatory for any purpose, until the certificate of authentication hereon

endorsed shall have been rnanually signed by an authorized signatory of the Trustee.

4t62-2872-2726.5

A-5

Page 205

10/13/2020 Item No.12.



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Folsom Ranch Financing Authority has caused this
Authority Bond to be executed in its name and on its behalf by the manual or facsimile signature
of its Treasurer and attested by the facsimile signature of its Secretary,all as of November | ],
2020.

FOLSOM RANCH FINANCING AUTHORITY

By:
Treasurer

Attest:

Secretary

4t62-2872-2726.5

A-6

Page 206

10/13/2020 Item No.12.



FORM OF CERTIFICATE OF AUTHENTICATION

This is one of the Authority Bonds described in the within-mentioned Trust
Agreement, which has been authenticated on the date below.

Dated: November l_\ 2020

MUFG LINION BANK, N.A.
as Trustee

By:
Authorized Signatory

4t62-2872-2726.s

A-7

Page 207

10/13/2020 Item No.12.



FORM OF ASSIGNMENT

For value received, the undersigned sells, assigns and transfers unto
this registered Authority Bond and irrevocably constitutes

attorney to transfer the same on the books of the
Trustee, with full power of substitution in the premises
and appoints

Dated:

NOTE:

SIGNATURE GUARANTEED BY

Signatures must be guaranteed by an "eligible guarantor institution" meeting the
requirements of membership or participation in the Security Transfer Agent
Medallion Program ("STAMP") or such other "signature guarantee program" as

may be determined in substitution for STAMP, all in accordance with the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934, as amended.

Social Security Number, Taxpayer Identification Number or other Identifuing
Number of Assignee

4t62-2872-2726.5
A-8

Page 208

10/13/2020 Item No.12.



Section 1.01.

Section 1.02.

TABLE OF CONTENTS
Page

ARTICLE I
DEFINITIONS

Definitions
Rules of Construction

ARTICLE II
TERMS OF AUTHORITY BONDS

The Authority Bonds......
Form of Authority Bonds
Authority Bonds Mutilated, Destroyed, Stolen or Lost
Execution of Authority Bonds....
Transfer and Registration of Authority Bonds
Regulations with Respect to Exchange or Transfer of Authority Bonds
Authentication of Authority Bonds
Cancellation of Authority Bonds.
Authority Bonds as Special Obligations
Special Covenants as to Book-Entry Only System for Authority Bonds...........
CUSIP Numbers

ARTICLE III
ISSUANCE OF AUTHORITY BONDS

2

10

l0
13

l3
14

t4
14

15

15

15

16

tl

18

..11

..18

Section
Section
Section
Section
Section
Section
Section
Section
Section
Section
Section

2.0r.
2.02.
2.03.
2.04.
2.05.
2.06.
2.07.
2.08.
2.09.
2.t0.
2.11.

Section 3.01

Section 3.02

Section 4.01.
Section 4.02.
Section 4.03.
Section 4.04.
Section 4.05.
Section 4.06.
Section 4.07.
Section 4.08.

Section
Section
Section
Section
Section
Section

5.01.
5.02.
5.03.
5.04.
5.05.
5.06.

Provisions for the Issuance of Autholity Bonds...........,
Parity and Subordinate Bonds................

ARTICLE IV
REDEMPTION OF AUTHORITY BONDS

General Redemption Provisions..........
Optional Redemption ...............
Extraordinary Redemption .........
Mandatory Redemption.......................
Redemption Instructions .....................
Notice of Redernption
Payment of Redeemed Authority Bonds
Purchase in Lieu of Redemption...........

ARTICLE V
REVENUES AND FUNDS FOR AUTHORITY BONDS

Establisliment of Funds ................
Deposit of Proceeds of Authority Bonds..
Proceeds Fund .........
Local Obligations Fund
Revenue Fund..,......
Revenues Derived fi'om Special Tax Prepayments

....19

....19

....19

....20

....21

....21

.21

.22

.22

.22

.22

.22

-1-
4 t 62-2872-2726 .5

Page 209

10/13/2020 Item No.12.



TABLE OF CONTENTS
(continued)

Interest Fund.....,........
Principal Fund ...........
Redemption Fund......
Rebate Fund...............

ARTICLE VI
SECURITY FOR AND INVESTMENT OF MONEY

Security....
Investment of Money

ARTICLE VII
COVENANTS OF THE AUTHORITY AND CFD NO. 2I

Payment of Authority Bonds; No Encumbrances.....
Enforcement and Amendment of Local Obligations.
Further Documents
Tax Covenants for the Authority Bonds
Maintenance of Existence ..........
Continuing Disclosure
Redemption Fund for the Local Obligations
Concerning the Trust Estate

ARTICLE VIII
DEFAULTS AND REMEDIES

Events of Default.
Proceedings by Trustee; No Acceleration ....................
Effect of Discontinuance or Abandonment.........
Rights of Owners.
Restriction on Owner's Action.......
Power of Trustee to Enforce.
Remedies Not Exclusive ............
Waiver of Events of Default; Effect of Waiver.
Application of Money upon Event of Default..............

ARTICLE IX ,

THE TRUSTEE

Page

Section 5.07
Section 5.08
Section 5.09
Section 5.10

Section 6.01

Section 6.02

.22

.22

.23

.23

Section
Section
Section
Section
Section
Section
Section
Section

7 .01.
7.02.
7.03.
7.04.
7 .05.
7.06.
7.07.
7.08.

...,....,'..24

.,.,'...,',.24

.25

.25

.26

.26

.27

.27

.21

.28

.......32

..,...,32

.......35

.......35

.,.,...36

.......36

.......37

Section
Section
Section
Section
Section
Section
Section
Section
Section

8.01

8.02
8.03
8.04
8.05
8.06
8.07
8.08
8.09

Section 9.01

Section 9.02
Section 9.03
Section 9.04
Section 9.05
Section 9.06
Section 9.07

28

Appointrnent and Acceptance of Duties...
Duties, Immunities and Liability of Trustee .............
Merger or Consolidation .........
Compensation and Indemnification .........
Liability of Trustee
Right to Rely on Documents; Adverse Effect Determinations.
Preservation and Inspection of Documents.............

1 t 62-2872-2726.5

-ll-

Page 210

10/13/2020 Item No.12.



TABLE OF CONTENTS
(continued)

Section 9.08. Indemnity for Trustee

Page

J/

a-
..J ISection 10.01. Execution of Instruments; Proof of Ownership

ARTICLE XI

ARTICLE X
EXECUTION OF INSTRUMENTS BY OWNERS AND
PROOF OF OWNERSHIP OF AUTHORITY BONDS

Section 1 1.01.

Section 11.02.
Section 1 1.03.

Section 12.01.
Section 12.02.
Section 12.03.
Section 12.04.

SUPPLEMENTAL TRUST AGREEMENTS

Supplemental Trust Agreements with Consent of Owners
Supplemental Trust Agreements Without Consent of Owners
Trustee Authorized to Enter into Supplemental Trust Agreements

ARTICLE XII
DEFEASANCE

Defeasance
Authority Bonds Deemed to Have Been Paid.
Money Held for Particular Authority Bonds...
Effect of Defeasance of Authority Bonds.......

ARTICLE XIII
MISCELLANEOUS

Dissolution of Authority......
Parties Interested Herein .....
Notice
Holidays
Limitation of Liability
Unclaimed Money
Governing Law..........
Severability of Invalid Provisions
Counterparts ..............
U.S.A. Patriot Act ...........
Force Majeule

EXHIBIT A FORM OF AUTHORITY BONDS

38

38

.39

.39

.40

.4t

.41

Section
Section
Section
Section
Section
Section
Section
Section
Section
Section
Section

13.01.
13.02.
13.03.
13.04.
13.05.
13.06.
13.07 .

13.08.
l3.09.
13.10.
13.1 1.

.41

41

41

43
43

43
44
44
44
44
44

A-l

4 t 62-2872-2726.5

- 111-

Page 211

10/13/2020 Item No.12.



ATTACHMENT 4

Page 212

10/13/2020 Item No.12.



OH&S DRAFT
09t30t20

CITY OF FOLSOM COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT NO. 23
(FOLSOM RANCH)

MUFG UNION BANK, N.A.,

as Trustee

INDENTURE

Dated as of November 1,2020

Relating to the

City of Folsom
Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

Improvement Area No. 1

Special Tax Bonds

and

4146-0139-83 10.5
Page 213

10/13/2020 Item No.12.



TABLE OF CONTENTS

ARTICLE I

DEFINITIONS; EQUAL SECURITY
Section 1.01

Section 1.02

Definitions

Equal Security

ARTICLE II

AUTHORIZATION AND ISSUANCE OF BONDS
Section 2.01. Authorization and Purpose of Bonds

Section 2.02. Additional Bonds; Subordinate Bonds

Section 2.03. Procedure for the Issuance of Additional Bonds.

Section 2.04. Date and Maturitv Dates of and Interest Rates on and Minimum Sinkine
Fund Account Payments for Bonds

Page

2

l5

15

t6

l8

Section 2

Section 2

Section 2

Section 2

Section 2

05. Interest Payment Dates of Bonds

06 Form of Bonds

07. Pa)'ment of Bonds

08. Execution of Bonds....

09. Transfer and Exchange ofBonds

Section 2.10. Mutilated, Destroyed. Stolen or Lost Bonds

Section 2. I I . Registration of the Bonds

Section 2.12. CUSIP Numbers

Section 2.13. Application of Proc

Section 2.14. Capitalized Interest Account....

Section 2.15. Acquisition and Construction Fund

Section 2.16. Costs of Issuance Fund

ARTICLE III

REDEMPTION OR EXCHANGE OF BONDS
Section 3.01. Redemption Prices and Terms of Bonds

Section 3.02. Selection of Bonds for Redemption.......

Section 3.03. Notice of Redemption of Bonds

Section 3.04. Partial Redernption of Bonds...

Section 3.05. Effect of Redemption of Bonds

ARTICLE IV

,19

.21

.21

.21

.22

.22

.23

.23

.23

.24

.24

.24

.25

4146-0t39-8110 5

SPECIAL TAX

Page 214

10/13/2020 Item No.12.



TABLE OF CONTENTS
(continued)

Section 4.01. Deposit of Proceeds of the Special Tax in the Communitv Facilities Fund
and Transfer to the Special Tax Furrd

Section 4.02. Allocation of Money in the Special Tax Fund

ARTICLE V

Section 5.01
COVENANTS OF THE COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT
Prrncfrrnl Pawmenf nnd Perfnrmnnce

Section 5.02. Against Indebtedness and Encumbrances..

Section 5.03. Against Federal Income Taxation

Section 5.04. Payment of Claims...

Section 5.05. Expense Budgets

Section 5.06. Accountins Records; Financial Statements and Other Reports

Section 5.07. Protection of Security and Rights of Holders

Section 5.08. Payment of Governmental Charges and Compliance with Governmental
Regulations

Section 5.09 T.erzv nnd Cnllecfinn nf the Sneciql Tnv

Section 5.10. Foreclosure of Special Tax Liens

Section 5.11. Further Assurances

ARTICLE VI

section 6.01. rhe rrustee L:t::t:l::
Section 6.02. Liabiliry of the Trustee

Section 6.03. Compensation and Indemnification of the Trustee

Section 6.04. Notice to the Trustee

Section 8.01. Events of Default and Remedies of Holders

Section 8.02. Non-Waiver..............

Page

28

28

31

31

31

32

.32

.32

.34

..34

..34

..34

..35

ARTICLE VII

AMENDMENT OF OR SUPPLEMENT TO THE INDENTURE
Section 7.01. Procedure for Arnendment of or Supplement to the Indenture..... 38

Section 7.02, Disqualified Bonds .....................40

Section 7.03. Endorsement or Replacement of Bonds After Amendment ol Supplement......40

Section 7.04. 4fnendment or Supplement by Mutual Consent .....40

ARTICLE VIII

EVENTS OF DEFAULT AND REMEDIES OF HOLDERS

35

36

38

38

.41

1r16-0rl9-81l0 5

lt

42

Page 215

10/13/2020 Item No.12.



TABLE OF CONTENTS
(continued)

Section 8.03. Remedies Not Exclusive

ARTICLE IX

DEFEASANCE
Section 9.01 . Discharee of the Bonds

Section 9.02. Unclaimed Money

ARTICLE X

MISCELLANEOUS
Section 10.01. Liability of Communib, Facilities District Limited to Proceeds of the

Special Tax and Cerlain Other Funds

Section 10.02. Benefits of the Indenture Limited to Certain Parties

Section 10.03. Successor Is Deemed Included in All References to Predecessor

Section 10.04 Execution of Documents by Holders

Section 10.05. Deposit and Investment of Money in Accounts and Funds ....

Section 10.06. Waiver of Personal Liability.......

Section 10.07. uisition of Bonds Communi Facilities District..

Section 10.08. Content of Certificates and Reports..

Section 10.09. Maintenance of Accounts and Funds

Section 10.10. Article and Section Headings. Gender and References.....

Section 10.1 1. Partial Invalidity ...

Section I0.12. Execution in Counterpart s and Electronic Execution

Section 10.13. Governing Law

Section 10.14. Notices

Section 10.15. U.S.A. atriot Act

Section 10.16. Force Maieure

Section 10.17. Effective Date of the Indenture

EXHIBIT A FORM OF BONDS

Page
...42

.42

.43

......44

......45

......4s

',...,45

,.,...45

......46

......46

......46

......47

.,.,..47

......47

......48

......48

......48

..,'.,49

......50

......50

A-1

4146-0r39-83t0.5
lll

Page 216

10/13/2020 Item No.12.



INDENTURE

This Indenture (the "Indenture"), dated as of November 1,2020, by and between
the City of Folsom Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch), organized and existing
under and by virtue of the laws of the State of California (the "Community Facilities District"),
and MUFG Union Bank, N.A., a national banking association duly organized and existing under
and by virtue of the laws of the United States of America and authorized to accept and execute
trusts of the character herein set forth, as trustee (the "Trustee");

WITNESSETH:

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Folsom (the "City") on May 26,2020,
duly adopted its Resolution No. 10435 establishing the Community Facilities District and
designating various improvement areas therein, including Improvement Area No. 1 (the
"Improvement Area"), for the purpose of providing for the financing of certain public facilities
and certain public services in and for such Community Facilities District; and

WHEREAS , at an election held in the Community Facilities District on May 26,
2020, the qualified electors within the Improvement Area duly authorized the issuance of seventy-
six million dollars ($76,000,000) principal amount of special tax bonds for the Improvement Area
for the purpose of financing such public facilities and services; and

WHEREAS, the qualified electors in the Improvement Area at such election
additionally authorized the levy and collection of a special tax to be used for the purpose, among
others, of paying the interest on and principal of and redemption premiums, if any, on such special
tax bonds; and

WHEREAS, the Community Facilities District has determined to issue IPAR IN
WORDS] dollars ($[PAR]) principal amount of such special tax bonds for the Improvement Area
(the "2020 Bonds" and, together with any Additional Bonds (defined herein), the "Bonds")
pursuant hereto and to secure the Bonds in the manner provided herein, and for the purpose of
paying for such public facilities; and

WHEREAS, the Folsom Ranch Financing Authority (the "Authority") has agreed
to purchase the Bonds pursuant to a Local Obligation Purchase Contract between the Authority
and the Community Facilities District dated , 2020, with a portion of the
proceeds of the Authority's City of Folsom Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)
Improvement Area No. I Special Tax Revenue Bonds, Series 2020 (the "Authority Bonds"); and

WHEREAS, all things necessary to cause the Bonds, when executed by the
Comrnunity Facilities District and authenticated by the Trustee and delivered as provided herein,
to be legal and valid special tax obligations of the Community Facilities District enforceable in
accordance with their'tenns, and to constitute the Indenture a valid agreement for the uses and
purposes herein set forth in accordance with its terms, have been done and taken, and the execution
and delivery hereof and the execution and delivery of the Bonds, subject to the terms hereof, have
in all respects been duly authorized;

1t46-0t39-u3I0.5
Page 217

10/13/2020 Item No.12.



NOW, THEREFORE, THE INDENTURE WITNESSETH, that in order to secure

the payment of the interest on and principal of and redemption plemiums, if any, on all Bonds at

any time issued and Outstanding hereunder according to their tenor, and to secure the observance

ani performance of all the agreements, conditions, covenants and terms therein and herein set

forth, and to declare the conditions and tenns upon and subject to which the Bonds are to be issued

and received, and in consideration of the premises and of the mutual agreements and covenants

contained herein and of the purchase and acceptance of the Bonds by the respective Holders thereof
from time to time, and for other valuable consideration, the receipt whereof is hereby

acknowledged, the Community Facilities District does hereby agree and covenant with the Trustee,

for the benefit of the respective Holders from time to time of the Bonds, as follows:

ARTICLE I

DEFINITIONS; EQUAL SECURITY

Section I .01. Definitions. Unless the context otherwise requires, all terms defined
in this Section shall for all purposes hereof and of any Supplemental Indenture and of the Bonds

and of any certificate, opinion, report, request or other document mentioned herein or therein have

the meanings defined herein, the following definitions to be equally applicable to both the singular
and plural forms of any of the terms defined herein:

2020 Bonds

*2020 Bonds" means the IPAR IN WORDS] dollars ($[PAR]) aggregate principal
amount of City of Folsom Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch) Improvement
Area No. 1 Special Tax Bonds, Series 2020, at any time Outstanding hereunder that are executed,

authenticated and delivered in accordance with the provisions hereof.

Accountant's Report

"Accountant's Report" means a report signed by an Independent Certified Public
Accountant

Acquisition and Fund

"Acquisition and Construction Fund" means the City of Folsom Community
Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch) Improvement Area No. 1 Special Tax Bonds Acquisition
and Construction Fund established pursuant to Section 2.15.

Additional Bonds

"Additional Bonds" mean Bonds othel than rhe 2020 Bonds issued hereunder in
accordance with the provisions of Sections 2.02 and 2.03.

Annual Debt Service

"Annual Debt Service" means for each Bond Year, the sum of (a) the interest due

on the Outstanding Bonds in such Bond Year, assuming that the Bonds are retired as scheduled

2
4 l4(r-0 I 39-83 I 0.5

Page 218

10/13/2020 Item No.12.



(iricluding by reason of Minimum Sinking Fund Account Payments), and (b) the principal of the
Bonds due in such Bond Year (including by reason of Minirnum Sinking Fund Account Payments).

Authori

"Authority" means the Folsom Ranch Financing Authority and its successors and

asslgns.

Autholitv Bonds

"Authority Bonds" means the Folsom Ranch Financing Authority City of Folsom
Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch) Improvement Area No. 1 Special Tax
Revenue Bonds, Series 2020.

Authority Trustee

"Authority Trustee" means MUFG Union Bank, N.A., as trustee under the Trust
Agreement.

Average Annual Debt Service

"Average Annual Debt Service" means the average Debt Service on the Bonds
payable in the curuent Bond Year and in all future Bond Years during which any Bonds are

scheduled to be Outstanding, all as deterrnined by the Community Facilities District under the
Code and specified in writing to the Trustee.

Bond Reserve Account

"Bond Reserve Account" means each such account within the Bond Reserve Fund
referred to by that name, including the Series 2020 Bond Reserve Account.

Bond Reserve Fund

"Bond Reserve Fund" means the fund within the Special Tax Fund referred to by
that name established pursuant to Section 4.02.The Bond Reserve Fund will be made up solely of
the Bond Reserve Account(s) established therein.

Bonds. Serial Bonds. Term Bonds

"Bonds" means 2020 Bonds and any Additional Bonds.

"Serial Bonds" rneans the Bonds for which no Minimurn Sinking Fund Account
Payments are established.

'Term Bonds" means the Bonds which are redeemable or payable on or before their
specified maturity dates from Minimum Sinking Fund Account Payments established for the
purpose of redeeming ol paying such Bonds on or before their specified matulity dates.

a
-)

4r46-0t39-8310.5
Page 219

10/13/2020 Item No.12.



Bond Year

"Bond Year" means the twelve-month period terminating on September' I of each
year; provided, that the first Bond Year shall commence on the date of the execution and initial
delivery of the Bonds.

Business Dav

"Business Day" means any day other than (i) a Saturday ot a Sunday or (ii) a day
on which commercial banks in New York, New York, or the city in which the Corporate Trust
Office of the Trustee is located, are closed.

Capitalized Interest Account

"Capitalized Interest Account" means the City of Folsom Community Facilities
District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch) Improvement Area No. I Special Tax Bonds Capitalized Interest
Account established pursuant to Section 2.14.

Certificate of the Citv

"Certificate of the City" means an instrument in writing signed by the City Manager
or the Finance Director, or by any other officer of the City duly authorized by the City Council for
that purpose.

erU

"City" means the City of Folsom, a chafter city and municipal corporation duly
organized and existing under and by virtue of its charter and the Constitution and laws of the State

of California.

City Clerk

"City Clerk" means the City Clerk of the City.

Citlr Council

"City Council" means the City Council of the City

Cit), Manager

"City Manager" means the City Manager of the City

Code

"Code" means the Internal Revenue Code of 1986 and the regulations issued
thereunder from time to time, and in this regard reference to any particular section of the Code
shall include reference to any sllccessor to such section of the Code.

4
4r46-0r39-83r0s

Page 220

10/13/2020 Item No.12.



Community Facilities District

"Community Facilities District" means the City of Folsom Community Facilities
Distlict No. 23 (Folsom Ranch), a community facilities district duly organized and existing in the
City under and by virtue of the Law.

Community Facilities Fund

"Community Facilities Fund" means the City of Folsorn Community Facilities
District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch) Improvement Area No. I Community Facilities Fund established
pursuant to Section 4.02.

Corporate Trust Office

"Corporate Trust Office" means the office of the Trustee in California designated
in Section 6.01 at which at any particular time its corporate trust business shall be administered.

Costs of Issuance

"Costs of Issuance" means all costs and expenses payable by or reimbursable to the
City or the Community Facilities District that are related to the authorization, sale, execution and
initial delivery of the Bonds, including, but not limited to, costs of preparation and reproduction
of documents, rating agency fees, filing fees, initial fees and charges of the Trustee (including fees
and expenses ofits counsel), legal fees and charges and fees and charges ofother consultants and
professionals, together with all costs for preparation of the Bonds, and any other cost or expense
in connection with the authorization, sale, execution and initial delivery of the Bonds.

Costs of Issuance Fund

"Costs of Issuance Fund" means the City of Folsom Community Facilities District
No. 23 (Folsom Ranch) Improvement Area No. 1 Special Tax Bonds Costs of Issuance Fund
established pursuant to Section 2.16.

Debt Service

"Debt Service" lneans, for any Bond Year, the sum of (l) the interest payable
during such Bond Year on all Outstanding Bonds, assuming that all Outstanding Serial Bonds are
retired as scheduled and that all Outstanding Term Bonds are redeemed or paid as scheduled at the
times of and in amounts equal to the sum of all Minin'rurn Sinking Fund Account Payments, plus
(2) Ihe principal amount of all Outstanding Serial Bonds maturing by their terms in such Bond
Year, plus (3) the Minimum Sinking Fund Account Payment required to be deposited in the
Sinking Fund Subaccount in such Bond Year.

Event of Default

"Event of Default" rreans an event described as such in Section 8.01

5
4146-0r39-8310 5

Page 221

10/13/2020 Item No.12.



Expense Account

"Expense Account" lneans the account within the Special Tax Fund referred to by
that name established pursuant to Section 4.02.

Expenses

"Expenses" means all expenses paid or incurred by the City or the Community
Facilities District for the cost of planning and designing the Facilities, including the cost of
environmental evaluations of the Facilities and the costs associated with the creation of the
Community Facilities District, the designation of the improvement areas therein, the issuance of
the Bonds, the determination of the arnount of the Special Tax, the collection of the Special Tax
and the payment of the Special Tax, or costs otherwise incurred in order to carry out the authorized
purposes of the Community Facilities District, and any other expenses incidental to the acquisition,
construction, completion and inspection of the Facilities; all as determined in accordance with
Generally Accepted Accounting Principles.

Facilities

"Facilities" means those certain public facilities authorized to be acquired and
constructed in and for the Community Facilities District under and pursuant to the Law at the
special election held in the Community Facilities District on May 26,2020.

Facilities Special Tax

"Facilities Special Tax" means the annual Special Tax to be levied in each Fiscal
Year on each Assessor's Parcel of Taxable Property to fund the Facilities Special Tax Requirement
in accordance with the Rate and Method (each as defined in the Rate and Method).

Federal Securities

"Federal Securities" means (a) any securities now or hereafter authorized both the
interest on and principal of which are guaranteed by the full faith and credit of the United States

of America, and (b) any of the following obligations of federal agencies not guaranteed by the
United States of America: (1) participation certificates or senior debt obligations of the Federal
Home Loan Moltgage Corporation, (2) bonds or debentures ofthe Federal Home Loan Bank Board
established under the Federal Horne Loan Bank Act and bonds of any federal home loan bank
established under such act, and (3) stocks, bonds, debentures, parlicipations and other obligations
of or issued by the Federal National Moltgage Association, the Student Loan Marketing
Association, the Government National Mortgage Association and the Federal Home Loan
Mortgage Corporation, as and to the extent that such securities or obligations are eligible for the
legal investment of City or Community Facilities District funds.

Finance Director'

"Finance Director" means the Finance Director of the City

6
4146-0139-8310.5

Page 222

10/13/2020 Item No.12.



Fiscal Year

"Fiscal Year" means the twelve-month period terminating on June 30 of each year,
or any other annual accounting period hereafter selected and designated by the Community
Facilities District as its Fiscal Year in accordance with applicable law.

Fitch

"Fitch" means Fitch Ratings, Inc., a corporation duly organized and existing under
and by virtue of the laws of the State of New York, and its successors or assigns, except that if
such entity shall be dissolved or liquidated or shall no longer perform the functions of a securities
rating agency, then the term "Fitch" shall be deemed to refer to any other nationally recognrzed
securities rating agency selected by the Community Facilities District.

Genelally Accepted Accounting Principles

"Genelally Accepted Accounting Principles" means the uniform accounting and
reporting procedures set forth in publications of the American Institute of Certified Public
Accountants or its successor, or by any other generally accepted authority on such procedures, and
includes, as applicable, the standards set forth by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board
or its successor.

Holder

"Holder" means any person who shall be the registered owner of any Outstanding
Bond, as shown on the registration books maintained by the Trustee pursuant to Section 2.09.

Improvement Area

"lmprovement Area" means City of Folsom Community Facilities District No. 23
(Folsom Ranch) Improvement Area No. 1, a designated improvement area within the Community
Facilities District.

Indenture

"lndenture" means this Indenture and all Supplemental Indentures

Independent Certified Public Accountant

"lndependent Certified Public Accountant" means any cer"tified public accountant
or firm of such accountants duly licensed and entitled to practice and practicing as such under the
laws of the State of California, appointed and paid by the Community Facilities District, and who,
or each of whom:

(1) is in fact independent and not under the domination of the Cornrnunity
Facilities District;

7
1r46-0t39-83r0.5

Page 223

10/13/2020 Item No.12.



(2) does not have a substantial financial interest, direct or indirect, in the
operations of the Community Facilities District; and

(3) is not connected with the Community Facilities District as an officer or
employee of the Community Facilities District, but who may be regularly retained to audit
the accounting records of and make reports thereon to the Community Facilities District.

I ndependent Consultant

"lndependent Consultant" means any consultant or firm of consultants selected by
the Community Facilities District who, or each of whom, (a) is generally recognized to be qualified
in the field of special tax or financial consulting, (b) is in fact independent and not under the control
of the Community Facilities District, (c) does not have any substantial interest, direct or indirect,
in the Community Facilities District, or any owner of real property in the Community Facilities
District, and (d) is not an officer or employee of the Community Facilities District, but who may
be regularly retained to make reports to the Community Facilities District.

Law

"Law" means the Mello-Roos Community Facilities Act of 1982, as amended
(being Sections 53311 et seq. of the Government Code of the State of California), and all laws
amendatory thereof or supplemental thereto.

Lien

"Lien" means the aggregate principal amount of all overlapping debt and bonds
(including the Bonds) outstanding that are secured by a special tax levied pursuant to the Law or
a special assessment levied on property within the Improvement Area, including any overlapping
debt or bonds for community facilities districts or special assessment districts that is reasonably
allocated to property within the Improvement Area.

Local Oblieation Purchase Contract

"Local Obligation Purchase Contract" means the Local Obligation Purchase
Contract between the Community Facilities District and the Authority providing for the sale of the
2020 Bonds.

Mayor

"Mayor" means the Mayor of the City

Maximum Annual Debt Service

"Maximum Annual Debt Service" means, as of any date of calculation, the largest
Debt Service in any Bond Year during the period fiom the date of such calculation through the
final maturity date of any Outstanding Bonds.

8
414(r-0139-8310.5

Page 224

10/13/2020 Item No.12.



Maximum Facilities Special Tax

"Maximum Facilities Special Tax" means the total maximum annual Facilities
Special Tax, determined in accordance with the provisions of Section C of the Rate and Method,
which rnay be levied in any Fiscal Year on any Assessor's Parcel of Taxable Property (each as

defined in the Rate and Method).

Minimum Sinkine Furrd Account Payments

"Minimum Sinking Fund Account Payments" means the payments required
hereunder and under all Supplemental Indentures to be deposited in the Sinking Fund Subaccount
for the payment of the Term Bonds.

Mood ,S

'oMoody's" means Moody's Investors Service Inc., a corporation duly organized
and existing under and by virtue of the laws of the State of Delaware, and its successols or assigns,
except that if such entity shall be dissolved or liquidated or shall no longer perform the functions
of a securities rating agency, then the term "Moody's" shall be deemed to refer to any other
nationally recognized securities rating agency selected by the Community Facilities District.

Opinion of Counsel

"Opinion of Counsel" means a written opinion of counsel (including, without
limitation, the City Attorney of the City) retained by the Community Facilities District.

Outstanding

"Outstanding," when used as of any particular time with reference to Bonds, means
(sub.ject to the provisions of Section 7 .02) all Bonds except:

(a) Bonds delivered to the Trustee for cancellation and destruction pursuant to
Section 10.01;

(b) Bonds paid or deemed to have been paid pursuant to Section 9.01;

(c) Bonds in lieu of ol in substitution for which other Bonds shall have been

executed by the Community Facilities District and authenticated and delivered by the Trustee
pursuant to Section 2.10; and

(d) Bonds paid in accordance with the second to last paragraph Section 2.10.

Permitted Investments

"Permitted investments" means any of the following investments, as authorizedby
applicable law at the time of making such investment, namely:

9
4146-0139-8310.5

(1) Federal Securities;

Page 225

10/13/2020 Item No.12.



(2) Participation certificates (excluding stripped mortgage securities which are

purchased at prices exceeding their principal amounts) and senior debt obligations of the Federal
Home Loan Mortgage Corporation; consolidated system-wide bonds and notes of the Farm Credit
System; senior debt obligations and mortgage-backed securities (excluding stripped mofigage-
backed securities which are purchased at prices exceeding their principal amounts) of the Federal
National Mortgage Association; senior debt obligations (excluding securities that have no fixed
par value and/or whose terrns do not promise a fixed dollar amount at maturity or call date) of the
Student Loan Marketing Association; debt obligations of the Resolution Funding Corp.; and
REFCORP STRIPS (stripped by the Federal Reserve Bank of New York) (collectively, the
"Agency Obli gations");

(3) Direct obligations of any state of the United States of America or any
subdivision or agency thereof whose long-term unsecured general obligation debt is rated "A3" or
better by Moody's and "A-" or better by Standard & Poor's or any obligation fully and

unconditionally guaranteed by any state or subdivision or agency thereof whose long-term,
unsecured general obligation debt is rated "A3" or better by Moody's and "A-" or better by
Standard & Poor's;

(4) Commercial paper (that matures in not more than three hundred sixty-five
(365) days) rated "Prime-l" or better by Moody's and "A-1" or better by Standard & Poor''s;

(5) Deposits, Federal funds or bankers acceptances (that mature in not more
than three hundred sixty-five (365) days) of any domestic bank (including a branch office of a
foreign bank which branch office is located in the United States of America, if the Trustee shall
have received a legal opinion or opinions to the effect that full and timely payment of such deposit
or similar obligation is enforceable against the principal offrce or any branch of such bank), which:

(a) has an unsecured, uninsured and unguaranteed obligation rated
"Prime-1" or "A3" or better by Moody's and "A-1" or "A-" or better by Standard & Poor's,
or

(b) is the lead bank of a parent bank holdirrg company with an

uninsured, unsecured and unguaranteed obligation rneeting the rating requirements in
paragraph (a) above;

(6) Deposits in any bank or savings and loan association which has a combined
capital, surplus and undivided profits of not less than ten n-rillion dollar"s ($ 1 0,000,000); provided,
that if such deposits ale fully insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation, the Banking
Insurance Fund or the Savings Association Insurance Fund, or are fully collateralized by Federal
Securities;

(l) Investments in a money-market fund rated "Am" or""Am-G" or better by
Standard & Poor's, including any such fund managed, advised or sponsored by the Trustee or any
of its affiliates but excluding any such fund with a floating net asset value;

(8) Repurchase agreements with a term of six (6) months or less with any
institution having long-term, unsecured debt rated at least "AA" or commercialpaper rated "A-1*"
by Standard & Poor's;

4146-0139-8310.5
10

Page 226

10/13/2020 Item No.12.



(9) Repurchase agreements collateralized by Federal Securities ("Collateral
Securities") with any registered broker-dealer which is under the jurisdiction of the Securities
Investors Protection Corporation or any commercial bank, if such broker-dealer or bank has

uninsured, unsecured and unguaranteed debt rated "Prime-1" or "A3" or better by Moody's and
"A-1" or "A-" or better by Standard & Pool's; provided, that:

(a) a master repurchase agreement or other specific written repurchase
agreement governs the transaction;

(b) the Collateral Securities are held free and clear of any other lien by
the Trustee or an independent third party acting solely as agent for the Trustee, so long as

any such third party (A) is (1) a Federal Reserve Bank or (2) a bank which is a member of
the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation and which has combined capital, surplus and
undivided profits of not less than twenty-five million dollars ($25,000,000), and (B)
certifies in writing to the Trustee (or delivers to the Trustee a written opinion of counsel to
such third party) that such third party holds the Collateral Securities free and clear of any
lien, as agent for the Trustee;

(c) a perfected first security interest under the Uniform Commercial
Code is created in, or book-entry procedures plescribed at 31 C.F.R. 306.1 et seq. or 31

C.F.R. 350.0 et seq. are followed with respect to, the Collateral Securities for the benefit
of the Trustee;

(d) such repurchase agreement has a term of thirty (30) days or less;

(e) such repurchase agreement matures at least ten (10) days (or other
appropriate liquidation period) prior to each interest payment date on the Bonds'

(0 the fair market value of the Collateral Securities in relation to the
amount of the repurchase obligation, including principal and interest, is equal to at least
one hundred three percent (103%); and

(g) the Trustee obtains an opinion of counsel to such broker-dealer or
bank (which opinion sliall be addressed to the Community Facilities District) to the effect
that such repurchase agreement is a legal, valid, binding and enforceable agreement of such
broker-dealer or bank (and, in the case of a bank which is a branch of a foreign bank, of
such foreign bank) in accordance with its terms;

(10) Shares in the California Asset Management Program (established pursuant
to Title l, Division 7, Chapter 5 of the Government Code of the State of California) that invests
exclusively in investments pennitted by Section 53635 of the Government Code of the State of
California, as now existing and as it may be amended fiom time to time; and

(11) Investments in the Local Agency Investment Fund maintained by the
California State Treasurer, which such investments shall only be invested in the special portion of
the Local Agency Investment Fund for bond proceeds that are not subject to arbitrage restrictions.

4 l4(r-0139-83 10.5

t1

Page 227

10/13/2020 Item No.12.



Prioritly Admini strative Expenses

"Priority Administrative Expenses" means an amount equal to (a) for Fiscal Year
2021-22, $20,000, and (b) for any subsequent Fiscal Year, the amount resulting from increasing
the Priority Administrative Expenses on each July 1, from and including the July 1 immediately
following the end of the then current Fiscal Year to and including the July 1 in such Fiscal Year
by 2% of the amount in effect for the previous Fiscal Year.

Proceeds Fund

"Proceeds Fund" means the temporary account referred to by that name established
pursuant to Section 2.13.

Rate and Method

"Rate and Method" means the rate and method of apportionment of special tax for
the Improvement Area.

Rebate Fund

"Rebate Fund" means the City of Folsom Community Facilities District No. 23

(Folsom Ranch) Improvement Area No. 1 Special Tax Bonds Rebate Fund established pursuant to
Section 5.03.

Redemption Account

"Redemption Account" means the account within the Special Tax Fund referred to
by that name established pursuant to Section 4.02.

Required Bond Reserve

"Required Bond Reserve" means, for each applicable series of Bonds, as of any
date of calculation, the least ofi (a) Maximum Annual Debt Service, (b) one hundred twenty-five
percent (125%) of the Average Annual Debt Service or (c) ten percent (10%) of the original
proceeds of such series of Bonds; provided, that the Required Bond Reserve shall be calculated on
the date ofissuance ofeach series ofBonds and shall not increase thereafter; and provided further,
that such requirement (or any portion thereof) may be satisfied by the provision of one or more
policies of municipal bond insurance or surety bonds issued by a municipal bond insurer or by a
letter of credit issued by a bank, the obligations insured by which insurer or issued by which bank,
as the case may be, have ratings at the time of issuance of such policy or surety bond or letter of
credit equal to "AA" or higher (without regard to qualifier) assigned by Fitch or "Aa" or higher
(without r"egard to qualifier) assigned by Moody's or "AA" or higher (without regard to qualifier)
assigned by Standard & Poor's.

Responsible Officer of the Tnrstee

"Responsible Officer" of the Trustee" means any officer within the corporate trust
division (or any sllccessor group or department of the Trustee) including any vice president,

414(r-0139-8310.5
12

Page 228

10/13/2020 Item No.12.



assistant vice president, assistant secretary or any other officer ol assistant officer ofthe Trustee
custornalily performing functions similar to those performed by the persons who at the time shall
be such officers, respectively, with responsibility for the administration of this Indentule.

Series 2020 Bond Reserve Account

"Series 2020 Bond Reserve Account" means the account within the Bond Reserve
Fund referred to by that name established pursuant to Section 2.13(a).

Services

"Services" means the public services authorized to be financed in and for the
Community Facilities District under and pursuant to the Law at the special election held in the
Cornmunity Facilities District on May 26,2020.

Selvices Account

"Services Account" means the account within the Special Tax Fund referred to by
that name established pursuant to Section 4.02.

Services Special Tax

"Services Special Tax" means the annual Special Tax to be levied in each Fiscal
Year on each Assessor's Parcel of Taxable Property to fund the Services Special Tax Requirement
(each as defined in the Rate and Method).

Sinking Fund Subaccount

"Sinking Fund Subaccount" means the subaccount in the Redemption Account
referred to by that name established pursuant to Section 2.04.

Special Tax

"Special Tax" means the special tax authorizedto be levied and collected annually
on all Taxable Property in the Improvement Area under and pursuant to the Law at the special
election held in the Improvement Area on May 26,2020, including the Services Special Tax.

Special Tax Fund

"Special Tax Fund" means the City of Folsom Community Facilities District No.
23 (Folsom Ranch) Improvement Area No. I Special Tax Fund established pursuant to Section
4.01.

Standard & Poor's

"Standard & Poor's" means S&P Global Ratings, a business of Standard & Poor's
Financial Services LLC, and its successors or assigns, except that if such entity shall be dissolved
or liquidated or shall no longer perform the functions of a securities rating agency, then the term

4t46-0r39-83t0.5
13

Page 229

10/13/2020 Item No.12.



"Standard & Poor's" shall be deemed to refer to any other nationally recognized securities rating
agency selected by the Community Facilities District.

Supplemental Indenture

"Supplemental Indenture" means any indenture then in full folce and effect that has

been made and entered into by the Community Facilities District and the Trustee, amendatory of
or supplemental hereto; but only to the extent that such Supplemental Indenture is specifically
authorized hereunder.

Tax Certificate

"Tax Certificate" means the certificate or certificates delivered upon the issuance
of any series of the Bonds relating to Section 148 of the Code, or any functionally similar
replacement certifi cate.

Taxable Property

"Taxable Property" means all property within the Improvement Area taxable under
the Law in accordance with the proceedings for the authorization of the issuance of the Bonds and
the levy and collection of the Special Tax.

Trust Agreement

"Trust Agreement" means that certain Trust Agreement, dated as of November 1,

2020, among the Folsom Ranch Financing Authority, the Community Facilities District and the
Trustee, as Authority Trustee for the Authority Bonds.

Trustee

"Trustee" means MUFG Union Bank, N.A., a national banking association duly
organized and existing under and by virtue of the laws of the United States of America and
authorized to accept and execute trusts of the character herein set forth, at its Corporate Trust
Office, and its successors or assigns, or any other bank or trust company having a designated
corporate trust office in California which may at any time be substituted in its place as provided in
Section 6.01 .

Value

"Value" means the current assessed valuation of the Taxable Ploperty and/or the
appraised value of the Taxable Property determined by an MAI appraiser.

Written Request of the Cornmunity Facilities District

"Written Request of the Community Facilities District" means an instrument in
writing signed by the City Manager or the Finance Director, or by any other officer of the City
dtrly authorizedby the City Council, as legislative body of the Community Facilities District, for
that purpose.

4146-0139-83r0.5
14

Page 230

10/13/2020 Item No.12.



Section 1.02. Equal Seculit)'. In consideration of the acceptance of the Bonds by
the Holders thereof, the Indenture shall be deerned to be and shall constitute a contract between
the Community Facilities District and the Holders from time to time to secure the full and final
payment of the interest on and principal of and redemption prerniums, if any, on all Bonds which
may fiom time to time be authorized, sold, executed, authenticated and delivered hereunder,

subject to the agreements, conditions, covenants and terms contained herein; and all agreements,
conditions, covenants and terms contained herein required to be observed or performed by or on

behalf of the Community Facilities District shall be for the equal and proportionate benefit,
security and protection of all Holders without distinction, preference or priority as to security or
otherwise of any Bonds over any other Bonds by reason of the number thereof or the time of
execution, authentication or delivery thereof or otherwise for any cause whatsoever, except as

expressly provided herein or therein.

ARTICLE II

AUTHORIZATION AND ISSUANCE OF BONDS

Section 2.01. Authorization and Purpose of Bonds.

(a) The City Council, as legislative body of the Community Facilities
District, has reviewed all proceedings heretofore taken relative to the authorization of the
Bonds and has found, as a result of such review, and hereby finds and determines that all
acts, conditions and things required by law to exist, happen and be performed precedent to
and in the issuance of the Bonds do exist, have happened and have been performed in due

time, form and manner as required by the Law, and the Community Facilities District is
now authorized, pursuant to each and every requirement of the Law and hereof, to issue
the Bonds in one or more series as from time to time shall be authorized and established
by the Community Facilities Distlict pursuant to the Law and pursuant hereto and pursuant

to one or more Supplemental Indentures, which series shall be entitled to the benefit,
protection and security of the provisions hereof, shall be designated the "City of Folsom
Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch) Improvement Area No. I Special
Tax Bonds," together with such further appropriate particular designation added to or
incorporated in the title of the Bonds of each series as the Community Facilities District
may determine or as shall be required by the Law, and each Bond shall bear upon its face

the designation so determined for the series to which it belongs. Additionally, the Bonds

may contain or have endorsed thereon such descriptive provisions, specifications and

words not inconsistent with the provisions hereof as may be desirable or necessary to
comply with custom or the rules of any securities exchange or comlnission or brokerage
board or otherwise as may be determined by the Community Facilities District prior to the
delivery thereof. An initial series of Bonds shall be issued hereunderto be designated the

"City of Folsom Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch) Improvement Area
No. 1 Special Tax Bonds, Ser'ies 2020."

(b) The purpose for which the Bonds are to be issued is to provide funds
to pay costs of the acquisition and construction of the Facilities, including the repayment
of funds advanced by the City fol the Community Facilities District and the repayment
under any agreement of advances of funds or reimbursement for the lesser of the value or

4 146-0139-83 10.5

15

Page 231

10/13/2020 Item No.12.



cost of work in-kind provided by any person for the Community Facilities District, and

including the payment of costs incidental to or connected with such acquisition and

construction.

(c) From and after the issuance of any series of the Bonds, the findings
and determinations of the City Council, as legislative body of the Community Facilities
District, respecting such series of the Bonds shall be conclusive evidence of the existence
of the facts so found and determined in any action or proceeding in any court in which the
validity of any Bonds of such series is at issue, and no bona fide purchaser of any of the
Bonds of such series shall be required to see to the existence of any fact or to the
performance of any condition or to the taking of any proceeding required prior to such
issuance or to the application of the purchase price paid for such series of the Bonds. The
validity of the issuance of the Bonds of any series shall not be dependent on or affected in
any way bV (i) any proceedings taken by the City for the acquisition and construction of
any Facilities, or (ii) any contracts made by the City or the Community Facilities District
in connection therewith, or (iii) the failure to complete the acquisition and construction of
any Facilities. The recital contained in the Bonds that the Bonds are issued under and

pursuant to the Law and under and pursuant hereto and under and pursuant to a

Supplemental Indenture shall be conclusive evidence of their validity and of the regularity
of their issuance and all Bonds shall be incontestable from and after their issuance. The
Bonds shall be deemed to be issued, within the meaning hereof, whenever the definitive
Bonds (or any temporary Bonds exchangeable therefor) have been delivered to the
purchaser thereof and the purchase price thereof received.

Section 2.02. Additional Bonds: Subordinate Bonds. The Community Facilities
District may at any time issue Additional Bonds payable from the proceeds of the Special Tax net
of Priority Administrative Expenses as provided herein on a parity with all othel Bonds and
Additional Bonds theretofore issued or to be issued hereunder, but only subject to the following
conditions, which are hereby made conditions precedent to the issuance of such Additional Bonds:

(a) The issuance of Additional Bonds shall have been authorized
pursuant to the Law and pursuant hereto and shall have been provided for by a

Supplemental Indenture which shall speci$, the following:

(i) The purpose for which the Additional Bonds are to be issued;
provided, that the proceeds of sale of such Additional Bonds shall be applied
solely for the purpose of financing the acquisition and construction of the
Facilities, including the repayment of funds advanced by the City for the
Community Facilities District and the repayment under any agreement of
advances of funds or reimbursements for tlie lesser of the value or cost of
work in-kind provided by any persoll for the Community Facilities District,
and including the payment of costs incidental to or connected with such

acquisition, construction and payment, and payment of the Costs of
Issuance, or for the refunding of Outstanding Bonds;

(ii) The principal amount and designation of the Additional
Bonds and the denomination or denominations of the Additional Bonds;

414(r-0139-8310.5
16

Page 232

10/13/2020 Item No.12.



(iii) The date, the matulity date or dates, the interest payment
dates and the dates on which Minimum Sinking Fund Account Payments
are due, if any, for such Additional Bonds; provided, that (i) the Serial
Bonds of such Additional Bonds shall be payable as to principal on
September 1 of each year in which principal of such Additional Bonds falls
due, and the Term Bonds of such Additional Bonds shall be subject to
mandatory redernption on September I of each year in which Minimum
Sinking Fund Account Payments for such Additional Bonds are due; (ii) the

Additional Bonds shall be payable as to interest semiannually on March I
and September 1 of each year, except that the first installment of interest
may be payable on either March I or September 1 and shall be for a period
of not longer than twelve (12) months and the interest shall be payable
thereafter semiannually on March 1 and September 1, (iii) all the Additional
Bonds of a series of like maturity shall be identical in all respects, except as

to number or denomination, and (iv) serial maturities of Serial Bonds of
such Additional Bonds or Minimum Sinking Fund Account Payments for
Term Bonds of such Additional Bonds, or any combination thereof, shall be

established to provide fol the redemption or payment of the Additional
Bonds on or before their respective maturity dates;

(iv) The redemption premiums and redemption terms, if any, for
such Additional Bonds;

(v) The form of the Additional Bonds;

(vi) The amount, if any, to be deposited from the proceeds of sale

of such Additional Bonds in the Redemption Account, and its use to pay
interest on such Additional Bonds;

(vii) The amount to be deposited from the proceeds of sale of such
Additional Bonds in the applicable Bond Reserve Account; provided, that
the applicable Bond Reserve Account shall equal, at the time that such

Additional Bonds become Outstanding, the Required Bond Reserve for
such Additional Bonds, and an amount at least equal to the Required Bond
Reserve for such Additional Bonds shall thereafter be maintained in the

applicable Bond Reserve Account;

(viii) The amounts to be deposited from the proceeds of sale of
such Additional Bonds in the separate accounts for each series of Additional
Bonds to be established in the Acquisition and Construction Fund and in the

Costs of Issuance Fund; and

(ix) Such other provisiorts that are appropriate or necessary and

are not inconsistent with the provisions hereof;

(b) The Cornmunity Facilities District shall be in compliance with all
agreements, conditions, covenants and terms contained herein and in all Supplernental

4146-0139-8310.5
17

Page 233

10/13/2020 Item No.12.



Indentures required to be observed or performed by it, and no Event of Default hereunder

or under any Supplemental Indenture shall have occurred and shall be then continuing; and

(c) In each year until the maturity date for the Additional Bonds, the

Maximum Facilities Special Tax less Priority Administrative Expenses is estimated to
equal at least one hundred ten percent (lI0%) of the sum of the Annual Debt Service for
each year on the Bonds, including such Additional Bonds, and the Value of all Taxable
Property, in aggregate, is at least three (3) times the aggregate Lien on such Taxable
Property.

(d) The Community Facilities District may issue one or more series of
Bonds (the "Refunding Bonds") without complying with this Section 2.02(c) if, after the

issuance and delivery of such Refunding Bonds, either (i) none of the Bonds theretofore
issued hereunder will be Outstanding or (ii) the Debt Service in each Bond Year that begins
after the issuance of such Refunding Bonds is not increased by reason of the issuance of
such Refunding Bonds.

(e) The Community Facilities District may issue bonds or other
obligations payable from the proceeds of the Special Tax on a basis subordinate to the

Bonds without complying with this Section 2.02(a), (b) and (c).

Section 2.03. Procedure for the Issuance of Additional Bonds. At any time after
the sale of any Additional Bonds in accordance with the Law, the Additional Bonds shall be

executed by the Community Facilities District and shall be delivered to the Trustee and thereupon
shall be authenticated and delivered by the Trustee, but only upon receipt by the Trustee of the
following documents:

(a) An executed copy of the Supplemental Indenture authorizing the

issuance of such Additional Bonds;

(b) A Written Request of the Community Facilities District as to the

delivery of the Additional Bonds;

(c) One or more Opinions of Counsel to the effect that (i) the

Community Facilities District has the right and power under the Law to execute the

Indenture and the Supplemental Indenture, and the Indenture and Supplemental Indenture
have each been duly and lawfully executed and delivered by the Community Facilities
District and are in full force and effect and are valid and binding upon the Community
Facilities District and enforceable in accordance with their terms (except as enforcement
n'ray be lirnited by bankruptcy, insolvency, reorganization, arrangement, fiaudulent
conveyance, moratorium and other laws relating to or affecting creditors' dghts, by the

application of equitable principles, by the exercise of judicial discretion in applopriate
cases and by the limitations on legal remedies against cities in the State of California) and

no other autl-rorization for the execution thereof is required; and (ii) the Additional Bonds
are valid and binding special tax obligations of the Community Facilities District payable

fl"om the proceeds of the Special Tax net of Priority Administrative Expenses and the other
funds provided herein for sucl.r payment as provided herein and are enforceable in
accordance with their terms (except as enforcement may be lirnited by bankruptcy,

4l,I(r-0I39-ft3I0 5

18

Page 234

10/13/2020 Item No.12.



insolvency, reotganization, arrangement, fiaudulent conveyance, moratorium and other
laws relating to or affecting creditors' rights, by the application of equitable plinciples, by
the exelcise of judicial discretion in appropriate cases and by the limitations on legal
remedies against cities in the State of California) and the terms of the Law and of the
Indenture and the Supplemental Indenture and the Additional Bonds have been duly and

validly authorized, sold, executed, authenticated and delivered in accordance with the Law
and with the Indenture and the Supplemental Indenture;

(d) A Certificate of an Independent Consultant containing such
statements as may be reasonably necessary to show compliance with the requirements of
Section 2.02(c);

(e) A Certificate of the Community Facilities District containing such

statements as may be reasonably necessary to show compliance with the requirements of
Section 2.02; and

(0 The proceeds of the sale of such Additional Bonds.

Section 2.04. Date and Maturity Dates of and Interest Rates on and Minimum
Sinking Fund Account Payments for Bonds. The Bonds shall be issued in fully registered form
and shall be numbered consecutively from one (1) upward in order of issuance. The dates, maturity
dates, interest rates, and Minimum Sinking Fund Account Payments for any Additional Bonds
shall be set forth in the Supplemental Indenture relating thereto. The 2020 Bonds shall be dated
the date of the delivery thereof, and shall mature on the dates and in the principal amounts and
shall bear interest at the rates per annum as set forth in the following schedule:

Principal
Payment Date
(September 1)

Principal
Amount

Interest
Rate

%

- 'lernr Bonds

Minimum Sinking Fund Account Payments are hereby established fol the
rnandatory redemption and payment of the Term Bonds of the 2020 Bonds, which payrnents shall
become due durir-rg the years ending on the dates and in the amounts as set forth in the following

$

4146-0r39-8310.5
l9

Page 235

10/13/2020 Item No.12.



schedule (except that if any of the Term Bonds of the 2020 Bonds shall have been redeemed
pursuant to Section 3.01, the amounts of the Minimum Sinking Fund Account Payments shall be
reduced propoltionately by the principal amount of all such Term Bonds of the 2020 Bonds so

redeemed), namely:

Term Authoritv Bond Maturing September 1. 201 I

Year
Ending

September I

Minimum
Sinking Fund

Account Payment
$

Maturity

Term Authoritv Bond Maturins September 1^201 I

Year
Ending

September I

Minimum
Sinking Fund

Account Payment
$

Maturity

All such Minimum Sinking Fund Account Payments shall be deposited in the
Sinking Fund Subaccount, which subaccount is hereby established and which subaccount the
Community Facilities District hereby agrees and covenants to cause to be maintained by the
Trustee so long as any of the Term Bonds are Outstanding. All money in the Sinking Fund
Subaccount shall be used and withdrawn by the Tlustee (upon receipt of a Written Request of the
Community Facilities District) at any time for the purchase of the Term Bonds at public or private
sales as and when and at such prices (including brokerage and other charges) as the Community
Facilities District may in its discretion determine, but not to exceed the principal amount of such
Term Bonds. All money in the Sinking Fund Subaccount on September 1 of each year during the
period beginning on September 1,201_1, and ending on September 1,201 ], both dates inclusive,
shall be used and withdrawn by the Trustee on such September 1 for the mandatory redemption or
payment of the Term Bonds of the 2020 Bonds maturing on September 1, 201-j; and all money
in the Sinking Fund Subaccount on September I of each year during the period beginning on
September 1,201 l, and ending on September 1,20[_1, both dates inclusive, shall be used and
withdrawn by the Trustee on such September 1 for the mandatory redemption or payment of the
Term Bonds of the 2020 Bonds maturing on September 1,20L], and the Community Facilities
District hereby agrees and covenants with the Holders of the Term Bonds to call and redeem in
accordance with Article III or pay the Tenn Bonds fiorn the Minirnum Sinking Fund Account

4146-0139-8310.5
20

Page 236

10/13/2020 Item No.12.



Payments deposited in the Sinking Fund Subaccount pursuant to this paragraph whenever on
September 1 of any year there is money in the Sinking Fund Subaccount available for such

pLllpose.

Section 2.05. Interest Payment Dates of Bonds. Interest on the Bonds shall be

computed on the basis of a 360-day year of twelve (12) 30-day calendar months, and shall be

payable on March 1,2021, and semiannually thereafter on September I and Malch 1 in each year
until the principal sum of the Bonds has been paid. The Bonds shall bear interest from the interest
payment date next preceding the date of registration thereof, unless they are registered on a day
during the period from the sixteenth (16th) day of the month next preceding an interest payment
date to such interest payment date, both inclusive, in which event they shall bear interest from such
interest payment date, or unless they are registeled on a day on or before the fifteenth (15th) day
of the month next preceding the first (1't) interest payment date, in which event they shall bear
interest from their dated date; provided, that if at the time of registration of any Bond interest is
then in default on the Outstanding Bonds, such Bond shall bear interest from the interest payment
date to which interest has previously been paid or made available for payment on the Outstanding
Bonds.

Section 2.06. Form of Bonds. The Bonds and the authentication and registration
endorsement and assignment to appear thereon shall be substantially in the form appearing in
Exhibit A.

Section 2.07. Pavment of Bonds. The interest on and principal of and redemption
premiums, if any, on the Bonds shall be payable in lawful money of the United States of America
at the Corporate Trust Office of the Trustee, and the Community Facilities District and the Trustee
shall be entitled to conclusively treat the registered owner of any Bond as the absolute owner of
such Bond for all purposes hereof, whether such Bond shall be overdue or not, and neither the
Community Facilities District nor the Trustee shall be affected by any notice or knowledge to the
contrary. Payment of interest on the Bonds due on or before the maturity or prior redemption
thereof shall be made only to the person whose name appears in the registration books required to
be kept by the Trustee pursuant to Section 2.09 as the registered owner thereof at the close of
business as of the fifteenth (15th) day of the month next preceding each interest payment date,

such interest to be paid by check mailed by first class mail on each such interest payment date to
such registered owner at his or her address as it appears on such books, except that in the case of
a Holder of one million dollars ($1,000,000) or more in principal amount of Bonds then
Outstanding, payment shall be made at such Holder's option by wire transfer on each such interest
payment date of irnmediately available funds to an account in a bank or trust company or savings
bank that is a member of the Federal Reserve System and is located in the continental United States

of Arnerica according to written instructions provided by such Holder to the Trustee at least fifteen
(15) days before such interest payrnent date. Payment of the principal of and redemption
premiums, if any, on the Bonds shall be made only to the person whose narle appears in the
registration books required to be kept by the Trustee pursuant to Section 2.09 as the registeled
owner thereof, such principal and redernption premiums, if any, to be paid only on the surrender
of the Bonds at the Corporate Trust Office of the Trustee at maturity or on redemption prior to
maturity. All such payments of interest and principal ar-rd redemption premiums, if any, on any
Bond shall be valid and effectual to satisfy and discharge the liability on such Bond to the extent
of the surn or surns so paid.

4r46-0139-8310.5
21

Page 237

10/13/2020 Item No.12.



Notwithstanding the foregoing, a Holder of any Bond may, in lieu of surrendering the same for a

new Bond, endorse on such Bond a lecord of partial payment of the principal of such Bond in the
form set forth below (which shall be typed or printed on such Bond):

PAYMENTS ON ACCOUNT OF PRINCIPAL

Principal
Amount Paid

Balance of Principal
Amount Unpaid

Signature
of Registered FlolderPavment Date

The Trustee shall maintain a record of each such partial payment made in
accordance with the foregoing agreement and such record of the Trustee shall be conclusive. Such
partial payment shall be valid upon payment of the amount thereof to the Registered Holder of
such Bond, and the Community Facilities District and the Trustee shall be fully released and
discharged from all liability to the extent of such payment regardless of whether such endorsement
shall or shall not have been made upon such Bond by the Holder thereof and regardless of any
error or omission in such endorsement.

Section 2.08. Execution of Bonds. The Bonds shall be signed on behalf of the
Community Facilities District by the manual or facsimile signature of the Mayor and countersigned
by the manual or facsimile signature of the City Clerk, and any Bond may be signed on behalf of
the Community Facilities District by any person who, on the actual date of the execution of such
Bond, shall be the proper officer of the City and member of the City Council, as legislative body
of the Community Facilities District, although on the nominal date of such Bond such person shall
not have been such officer of the City. In case any such officer, who shall have signed any of the
Bonds, shall cease to be such officer before the Bonds so signed shall have been delivered to the
purchaser by the Trustee, such Bonds may nevertheless be delivered and issued and, upon such
delivery and issuance, shall be as binding upon the Community facilities District as though such
officer who signed the same had continued to be such officer until such delivery and issuance.
Only those Bonds that bear thereon a certificate of authentication executed by the Trustee shall be
entitled to any benefit, protection or security hereunder or be valid ol obligatory for any purpose,
and such certificate of the Trustee shall be conclusive evidence that the Bonds so authenticated
have been duly authoized, sold, executed, authenticated and delivered hereunder and are entitled
to the benefits hereof.

Section 2.09. Transfer and Exchange of Bonds. The Trustee shall keep at its
Corporate Trust Office sufficient books for the transfer and exchange of the Bonds, which books
shall at all times during normal business hours with reasonable prior written notice be open to
inspection by the Community Facilities Distlict or by any Holder (or his representative authorized
in writing). Any Bond may, in accordance with its terms, be transfened or exchanged on such
books by the person in whose name it is registered, in persor-r or by his or lier duly authorized
attorney, upon payment by the Holder requesting such transfer or exchange of any tax or other
governmental charge required to be paid with respect to such transfer or exchange and upon

414(r-0139-83 10.5

22

Page 238

10/13/2020 Item No.12.



surrender of such Bond for cancellation accompanied by delivery of a duly executed written
instrument of transfer or exchange in a form approved by the Trustee. Whenever any Bond or
Bonds shall be surrendered for transfer or exchange, the Community Facilities District shall
execute and the Trustee shall authenticate and deliver a new Bond or Bonds of the same series and
maturity date for the same aggregate principal amount, except that neither the Community
Facilities District nor the Trustee shall be requir'ed (i) to transfer or exchange any Bonds during
the fifteen-day period prior to the selection of any Bonds for redemption under Article III, or (ii)
to transfer or exchange any Bond which has been selected for redemption in whole or in part,
except the unredeemed poltion of such Bond selected for redemption in part, from and after the
day that such Bond has been selected for redemption in whole or in part under Article III.

Section 2.10. Mutilated. Destroyed. Stolen or Lost Bonds. In case any Bond shall
become mutilated in respect of the body of such Bond or shall be believed by the Community
Facilities District to have been destroyed, stolen or lost, upon proof of ownership satisfactory to
the Community Facilities District and the Trustee and upon the surrender of such mutilated Bond
at the Corporate Trust Office of the Trustee, or upon the receipt of evidence satisfactory to the
Comrnunity Facilities District and the Trustee of such destruction, theft or loss and upon receipt
of indemnity satisfactoly to the Community Facilities District and the Trustee, and also upon
payment of all expenses incurred by the Community Facilities District and the Trustee in the
premises and receipt of each of indemnity satisfactory to them, the Community Facilities District
shall execute and the Trustee shall authenticate and deliver at the Corporate Trust Office a new
Bond or Bonds of the same series and maturity date for the same aggregate principal amount of
like tenor and date and bearing such numbers and notations as shall be appropriate in exchange
and substitution for and upon cancellation of the mutilated Bond or in lieu of and in substitution
for the Bond so destroyed, stolen or lost.

If any such destroyed, stolen or lost Bond shall have matured or shall have been
called for redemption, payment of the amount due thereon shall be made by the Trustee, at the
written direction of the Community Facilities District, upon receipt of like proof, indemnity and
payment of expenses.

Any replacement Bonds issued pursuant to this Section shall be entitled to equal
and proportionate benefits with all other Bonds issued hereunder, and the Community Facilities
District and the Trustee shall not be required to treat both the original Bond and any replacement
Bond as being Outstanding for the purpose of determining the principal amount of Bonds which
rnay be issued hereunder or for the purpose of determining any percentage of Bonds Outstanding
hereunder, but both the original and the replacement Bond shall be treated as one and the same.

Section 2.11. Reeistration of the Bonds. The Bonds shall be registered in the
name of the Authority and delivered to the Authority Trustee upon the issuance thereof in
accordance with the provisions of the Local Obligation Purchase Contract.

Section 2.12. CUSIP Numbers. The Community Facilities District in issuing the
Bonds may, but shall not be required to, use "CUSIP" numbers (if then generally in use), and, if
used, the Trustee sliall use "CUSIP" numbers in notices of redemption as a convenience to Holders;
provided that the Trustee shall have no liability for ar.ry defect in the "CUSIP" numbers as they
appear on any Bond, notice or elsewhere, and, provided further that any such notice may state that

4146-0139-83r0.5
L-)

Page 239

10/13/2020 Item No.12.



no representation is made as to the correctness of such numbels eithel as printed on the Bonds or
as contained in any notice of a redemption and that reliance may be placed only on the other
identification numbers printed on the Bonds, and any such redemption shall not be affected by any
defect in or omission of such numbers. The Community Facilities District shall promptly notify
the Trustee in writing of any change in "CUSIP" numbers, if any. The Community Facilities
District does not expect to use "CUSIP" numbers for the 2020 Bonds.

Section 2.13. Application of Proceeds of Sale of 2020 Bonds. Upon the receipt of
payment of the purchase price of the 2020 Bonds when the 2020 Bonds shall have been duly sold
by the Cornmunity Facilities District, the Trustee shall deposit such proceeds of sale of the 2020
Bonds into a temporary account called the Proceeds Fund which the Trustee shall establish,
maintain and hold in trust, and which shall be disbursed in full on the date of receipt (whereupon
said temporary account shall be closed) in the following order:

(a) The Trustee shall deposit in the Series 2020 Bond Reserve Account
the amount of $ , being a sum equal to the Required Bond Reserve, which
such account is hereby created in the Bond Reserve Fund;

(b) The Trustee shall deposit in the Acquisition and Construction Fund
the amount of $

(c) The Trustee shall deposit in the Capitalized Interest Account the
amount of $ ; and

(d) The Trustee shall deposit in the Costs of Issuance Fund the amount
of$

Section 2.14. Capitalized Interest Account. There is hereby established a fund to
be known as the City of Folsom Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)
Improvement Area No. I Special Tax Bonds Capitalized Interest Account. On each of the
following dates, the Trustee shall transfer the respective amounts from the Capitalized Interest
Account to the Redemption Account for the payment of interest due on the 2020 Bonds:

Date of Transfer Amount

If at any time the Trustee is required by a Supplemental Indenture to deposit any
amount of funds therein, the Trustee shall reestablish and maintain a fund to be known as the City
of Folsom Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch) Improvement Area No. 1 Special
Tax Bonds Capitalized Interest Account. On each of the dates set forth in any table set forth in a
Supplernental Indenture, the amount set forth shall be transferred from the Capitalized Interest
Account to the Redemption Account for the payment of interest due on the Bonds. The Capitalized
Interest Account will be closed following the last date of transfer.

Section 2.15. Acquisition and Construction Fund. There is hereby established a

fund to be known as the City of Folsom Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

$

4r46-0r39-83r0.5
24

Page 240

10/13/2020 Item No.12.



Improvement Area No. I Special Tax Bonds Acquisition and Construction Fund, to be lield and

administered by the Trustee. All money in the Acquisition and Construction Fund shall be used

by the Trustee for payment of the costs of the acquisition and construction of the Facilities,
including the repayment of funds advanced by the City for the Community Facilities District and
the repayment under any agreement of advances of funds or reimbursement for the lesser of the
value or cost of work in-kind provided by any person for the Community Facilities District, upon
receipt of a Written Request of the Community Facilities District filed with the Trustee, each of
which shall be sequentially numbered and shall state the person to whom payment is to be made,
the amount to be paid, the purpose for which the obligation was incurred and that such payment is

a proper charge against such fund; provided, that any remaining arnount therein after the
completion of such purpose (as set forth in a Certificate of the Community Facilities District so

determining filed with the Trustee) shall be transferred by the Trustee to the Redemption Account.
The Acquisition and Construction Fund will be closed following the last date of transfer.

Section 2.16. Costs of Issuance Fund. There is hereby established a fund to be

known as the City of Folsom Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch) Improvement
Area No. 1 Special Tax Bonds Costs of Issuance Fund, to be held and administered by the Trustee.
All money in the Costs of Issuance Fund shall be used and withdrawn by the Trustee to pay the
Costs of Issuance upon receipt of a Written Request of the Community Facilities District filed with
the Trustee, each of which shall be sequentially numbered and shall state the person to whom
payment is to be made, the amount to be paid, the purpose for which the obligation was incurred
and that such payment is a proper charge against such fund; provided, that on [April _],2027, or
upon a prior determination by the Community Facilities District that all Costs of Issuance have
been paid (as set forth in a Certificate of the Community Facilities District so determining filed
with the Trustee), any balance of money remaining in the Costs of Issuance Fund shall be

withdrawn from the Costs of Issuance Fund by the Trustee and transfened to the Acquisition and

Construction Fund. The Costs of Issuance Fund will be closed following the last date of transfer.

ARTICLE III

REDEMPTION OR EXCHANGE OF BONDS

Section3.01. Redemption Prices and Terms of Bonds. Any Supplemental
Indenture may set forth the provisions for redemption of any Additional Bonds.

(a) Mandatorv Sinkine Fund Account Redemntion of the 2020 Bonds
The2020 Bonds maturing on September l, 201_], are subject to mandatory redemption
by the Comrnunity Facilities District prior to their matulity date in part on September 1 in
each of the year"s 20[_] through 20L_| both years inclusive; and the 2020 Bonds maturing
on September 1,201 ], are subject to mandatory redemption by the Community Facilities
District priol to their maturity date in part on September 1 in each of the years 20L)
through 20L], both years inclusive, in each case solely from Minirnurn Sinking Fund
Account Payments deposited in the Sinking Fund Subaccollnt, upon mailed notice as

provided herein, at a redemption price equal to one hundred percent ( 100%) of the principal
amount thereof called for redemption together with accrued interest thereon to the date

fixed for redemption.

4r46-0139-83r0.5
25

Page 241

10/13/2020 Item No.12.



(b) Optional Redemption of the 2020 Bonds. The 2020 Bonds are

subject to optional redernption by the Community Facilities District prior to their respective
maturity dates as a whole or in part on any date on or after fSeptember 1], 201 ], fiom
funds derived by the Community Facilities District from any source other than such
Minimum Sinking Fund Account Payments deposited in the Sinking Fund Subaccount or
such prepayments of the Special Tax, upon mailed notice as provided herein, at the
following redemption prices (computed upon the principal amount of the 2020 Bonds or
portions thereof called for redemption) together with accrued interest thereon to the date
fixed for redemption:

11031% if redeemed on any date on or after fSeptember l], 20L_l
through fAugust 3ll, 201_];

ll02l% if redeemed on any date from fSeptember 1], 20f I
through fAugust 311, 201_];

ll0ll% if redeemed on any date from [September 1],20L1
through fAugust 31], 20[_]; and

U00l% if redeemed on fSeptember 1], 20Ll and any date
thereafter.

(c) Extraordinary Redemption of the 2020 Bonds. The 2020 Bonds are

subject to extraordinary redemption by the Community Facilities District prior to their
respective maturity dates, as a whole or in part on any interest payment date on and after

fMarch ll, 20L_], from funds derived by the Community Facilities District from
prepayments of the Special Tax, upon mailed notice as provided herein, at the following
redemption prices (computed upon the principal amount of the 2020 Bonds or portions
thereof called for redemption) together with accrued interest thereon to the date fixed for
redemption, to wit:

ll03l% if redeerned on an interest payment date on or after

[March l],20L1 through fMarch 1],2011;

11021% if redeemed on an interest payment date on fSeptember 1],
20Ll or fMalch 1], 20[_];

ll0ll% if redeemed on an intelest payment date on fSeptember 1],
20L) or fMarch l],20[_]; and

[00]% if redeemed on fSepternber 1],201_l or any interest
payment date thereafter.

Section 3.02. Selection of Bonds for Redernption. If less than all tlie Outstanding
Bonds are to be redeemed as a result of prepayments of the Special Tax at any one time, the Bonds
shall be redeemed pro rata by maturity. If less than all the Outstanding Bonds are to be redeerned
at the option of the Community Facilities District at any one time, the Bonds of the latest maturity
date or dates shall be redeemed prior to or simultaneously with the redemption of the Bonds

4146-0139-83r0.5
26

Page 242

10/13/2020 Item No.12.



maturing prior thereto, and if less than all the Outstanding Bonds of any one maturity date are to

be redeemed at any one time, the Trustee shall select the Bonds or the portions thereof of such

maturity date to be redeemed in integral multiples of five thousand dollars ($5,000) in a tnanner
that it deems appropriate and fair.

Section 3.03. Notice of Redemntion of Bonds. At the Written Request of and at

the sole cost and expense of the Community Facilities District, received by the Trustee at least ten

(10) days in advance of so sending, such Written Request to contain the information to be

contained in the notice of redemption to be sent to Holders, as set forth below, the Trustee shall
mail at least twenty (20) and not more than sixty (60) days prior to the date fixed for redemption,
notice of redemption pursuant to Section 10.14 to the respective Holders of all Bonds selected for
redemption in whole or in part and to all securities depositories and securities information services

selected by the Community Facilities District to comply with custom or the rules of any securities
exchange or commission or brokerage board or otherwise as may be determined by the Community
Facilities District in its sole discretion, but neither failure to receive any such mailed notice nor

any immaterial defect contained therein shall affect the sufficiency or the validity of such

proceedings for redemption; provided, that no notice of redemption need be given to the Authority
for any Bonds for which the Authority is the Holder. Such notice shall state the date of such notice,

the Bonds to be redeemed, the date of issue of such Bonds, the redemption date, the redemption
price, the place of redemption (including the name and appropriate address of the Trustee), and, if
less than all of any such maturity, the numbers of the Bonds of such maturity to be redeemed and,

in the case of Bonds to be redeemed in part only, the respective portions of the principal amount
thereof to be redeemed, and shall give notice that further interest on such Bonds or the portions

thereof to be redeemed will not accrue from and after the redemption date, and shall require that
such Bonds be then surrendered for redemption at the address of the Trustee so designated. If any

Bond so chosen for redemption shall not be redeemable in whole, such notice shall also state that
such Bond is to be redeemed in part only and that upon presentation of such Bond for redemption
there will be issued in lieu of the unredeemed portion of principal thereof a new Bond or Bonds of
the same series and maturity date equal in aggregate principal amount to such unredeemed portion.

In the event of an optional redemption of Bonds, the Trustee shall mail a notice of
redemption, in the same lnanner as aforesaid, only after receipt of a Written Request of the

Community Facilities District at least l0 days prior to the date on which the Trustee must send

notice to the Holders of the Bonds; provided, however, if sufficient monies for the payment of the

redemption price of all Bonds to be redeemed are not then on deposit with the Trustee, such notice

shall state that such redemption shall be conditioned upon the timely deposit of sufficient funds

therefor with the Trustee.

Any notice of optional redernption may be rescinded by written notice given by the

Authority to the Trustee no later than three (3) Business Days prior to the date specified for
redemption. The Trustee shall give notice of rescission of the notice of optional redernption or
non-satisfaction of any conditions specified in the notice of optional redemption as soon as

practicable to the same parties and in the same rrannel as the notice of redentption was given

pursuant to this Section.

Section 3.04. Partial Redernption of Bou<ls. Upon surrender of ar-ry Bond
redeemed in part only, the Comrnunity Facilities District shall execute and tl-re Trustee shall

27
4146-0139-8310.5 Page 243

10/13/2020 Item No.12.



authenticate and deliver to the registered owner thereof at the expense of the Community Facilities
District a new Bond or Bonds of the same series and maturity date equal in aggregate principal
amount to the unredeemed portion of the Bond surrendered.

Section 3.05. Effect of Redemption of Bonds. If notice of redemption has been

duly given and not rescinded as aforesaid and money sufficient for the payment of the principal of
and redemption premiums, if any, on, together with interest to the redemption date on, the Bonds
or portions thereof so called for redemption has been irrevocably deposited with the Trustee, then
on the redemption date designated in such notice such Bonds or such portions thereof shall become
irrevocably due and payable, and from and after the date so designated interest on the Bonds or
such portions thereof so called for redemption shall cease to accrlle and the Holders of such Bonds
shall have no rights in respect thereof except to receive payment of the principal of such Bonds or
such portions thereof and the redemption premiums, if any, thereon and the interest accrued

thereon to the redemption date; provided, that redemption of Bonds other than from Minimum
Sinking Fund Account Payments shall be made only from and to the extent of funds on deposit
with the Trustee and available for such putpose on the date of redemption.

ARTICLE IV

SPECIAL TAX

Section 4.01. Deposit of Proceeds of the Special Tax in the Communitv Facilities
Fund and Transfer to the Special Tax Fund. The Community Facilities District agrees and
covenants that it will deposit the Special Tax proceeds in the City of Folsom Community Facilities
District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch) Improvement Area No. I Community Facilities Fund, which fund
is hereby established in the treasury of the City, for and on behalf of the Community Facilities
District, and which fund the Community Facilities District hereby agrees and covenants to
maintain so long as any Bonds are Outstanding hereunder'. All money in the Community Facilities
Fund shall be used and withdrawn by the Community Facilities District solely for the benefit of
the Community Facilities District in accordance with the Law, including payment of Expenses.
The Community Facilities District agrees and covenants that, after payment of its Priority
Administrative Expenses, it will transfer to the Trustee fiom the Community Facilities Fund
amounts sufficient and in sufficient time for the Trustee to make the transfers required by Section
4.02 (less any amounts to be transferred pursuant to Section 2.14), and the Trustee shall deposit
such proceeds as and when received in the City of Folsom Community Facilities District No. 23

(Folsom Ranch) Improvement Area No. I Special Tax Fund, which fund the Trustee shall establish
and maintain so long as Bonds remain Outstanding heleundeL, and all money in such fund shall be

held by the Trustee in trust hereunder and shall be disbursed, allocated and applied solely to the
uses and purposes hereinafter set forth in this Article.

Section 4.02. Allocation of Money in the Special Tax Fund. All money in the

Special Tax Fund shall be set aside by the Trustee in the following respective special accounts and
fund within the Special Tax Fund (each of which accounts and fund is hereby created) in the

following order of priority, and all money in each of such accounts and fund shall be applied, used

and withdrawn only for the purposes hereinafter authorized in this Section, namely:

414(r-0139-8310.5

(l) RedemptionAccount;

28

Page 244

10/13/2020 Item No.12.



(2)

(3)

(4)

Bond Reserve Fund;

Expense Account; and

Services Account.

(a) Redemption Account. On or before March 1 and September I in
each year, beginning on fSepternber l], 20L1, the Trustee shall, fiom the money in the
Special Tax Fund, transfer to and deposit in the Redemption Account an amount of money
equal to the aggregate amount of interest becoming due and payable on all Outstanding
Bonds on such March I or Septernber 1, as the case may be, and on or before September 1

in each year, beginning on September 1,201 l, the Trustee shall, from the then remaining
money in the Special Tax Fund, transfer to and deposit in the Redemption Account an

amount of money equal to the aggregate amount of principal becoming due and payable on
all Outstanding Serial Bonds on such September 1 plus all Minimum Sinking Fund
Account Payments required to be made on such September 1 into the Sinking Fund
Subaccount; provided, that all of the aforesaid payments shall be made without priority of
any payment over any other payment, and in the event that money in the Special Tax Fund
on any March I or September I is not equal to the amount of interest becoming due on all
Bonds on such date, or in the event that the money in the Special Tax Fund on any
September I is not equal to the amount of principal of the Bonds becoming due on such
date, as the case may be, then such money shall be applied pro rata in such proportion as

such interest and principal and Minimum Sinking Fund Account Payments bear to each
other.

No deposit need be made into the Redemption Account if the amount of money
contained therein is at least equal to the amount required by the terms of the preceding
paragraph to be deposited therein at the times and in the amounts herein provided.

All money in the Redernption Account shall be used and withdrawn by the Trustee
to pay the interest on the Bonds as it shall become due and payable (including accrued
interest on any Bonds purchased or redeemed prior to maturity) plus the principal of and

redemption premiums, if any, on the Bonds as they shall mature or upon the prior
redernption thereof, except tliat any money in the Sinking Fund Subaccount shall be used

only to purchase or redeem or retire the Term Bonds as provided herein.

(b) Bond Reser've Fund. On or before March I and September 1 in each
year, beginning on September 1,201-], the Trustee shall, from the then remaining money
in the Special Tax Fund, transfer to and deposit in each Bond Reserve Account within the
Bond Reserve Fund such amount of money as shall be requiled to restore each such Bond
Reserve Account to a sum equal to the Required Bond Reserve for the applicable series of
Bonds, pro rata, to the extent that amounts are available in the Special Tax Fund for such
purpose; and fol this purpose all investments in each Bond Reserve Account shall
(beginning on September 1,20t_]) be valued on March 1 and September I of eachyear
at the face value thereof if such investments mature within twelve (12) months from the
date of valuation, or if such investrnents mature more than twelve (12) months after the
date of valuation, at the price at which such investments are redeemable by the Holder at

414(r-0139-8310.5
29

Page 245

10/13/2020 Item No.12.



his or her option, if so redeemable, or if not so redeemable, at the lesser of (i) tlie cost of
such investments plus the amortization of any premium or minus the amor'tization of any
discount, or (ii) the market value of such investments. For pulposes of allocating rernaining
money in the Special Tax Fund between more than one Bond Reserve Account, any such
transfers to and deposits in each Bond Reserve Account shall be made equally and ratably
in proportion to the Required Bond Reserve for each series of Bonds.

No deposit need be made into a Bond Reserve Account if the value of the
investments contained therein is at least equal to the Required Bond Reserve for the
applicable series of Bonds.

All money in each Bond Reserve Account shall be used and withdrawn by the
Trustee solely for the purpose of paying the interest on or principal of the corresponding
series of Bonds in the event there is insufficient money in the Redemption Account
available for this purpose; provided, that if as a result of any of the foregoing valuations or
as a result of any property owner prepayment it is determined that the amount of money in
a Bond Reserve Account exceeds or will exceed the Required Bond Reserve for the
applicable series of Bonds, the Trustee shall withdraw the amount of money representing
such excess from such fund and shall deposit such amount of money in the Redemption
Account as provided in the last paragraph of Section 10.05. For the avoidance of doubt,
amounts in a Bond Reserve Account are not available to make up a deficiency for the
payment of principal and interest on any Bonds other than the specific series of Bonds to
which the Bond Reserve Account relates.

(c) Expense Account. On or before March 1 and September I in each
year, beginning on September 1,201 l, the Trustee shall, from the then remaining money
in the Special Tax Fund, transfer to and deposit in the Expense Account a sum equal to the
amount required by the Community Facilities District (as specified in a Written Request of
the Community Facilities District filed with the Trustee) for the payment of budgeted
Expenses during the six-month period beginning on such date, or to reimburse the City or
the Community Facilities District for the payment of unbudgeted Expenses during the prior'
six-month period. All rnoney in the Expense Account shall be used and withdrawn by the
Trustee only for transfer to or for the account of the Community Facilities District (as

specified in a Written Request of the Community Facilities District filed with the Trustee)
to pay budgeted Expenses as herein provided, or to reimburse the Community Facilities
District for the payment of unbudgeted Expenses as herein provided, or to pay interest on
or principal of or redemption premiums, if any, on the Bonds in the event that no other
money is available therefor.

(d) Services Account. On or before March I and September I in each
year, beginning on September 1,201_1, the Trustee shall, fi'om the then remaining money
in the Special Tax Fund, tlansfer to and deposit in the Services Account a sum equal to the
Seryices Special Tax (as specified in a Written Request of the Community Facilities
District filed with the Trustee). All rnoney in the Services Account shall be used and

withdrawn by the Trustee only for transfer to or for the account of the Community Facilities
District (as specified in a Written Request of the Community Facilities District filed with
the Trustee) to pay budgeted Services as herein provided, or to reimburse the Community

1146-0139-83r0.5
30

Page 246

10/13/2020 Item No.12.



Facilities District for the payment of unbudgeted Services as herein provided, or to pay
interest on or principal of or redemption premiums, if any, on the Bonds in the event that
no other money is available therefor.

ARTICLE V

COVENANTS OF THE COMMTINITY FACILITIES DISTRICT

Section 5.01. Punctual Payment and Performance. The Community Facilities
District will punctually pay the interest on and principal of and redemption premium, if any, to
become due on every Bond issued hereunder in strict conformity with the terms of the Law and
hereof and of the Bonds, and will faithfully observe and perform all the agreements, conditions,
covenants and terms contained herein and in the Bonds required to be observed and performed by
it.

Section 5.02. Against Indebtedness and Encumbrances. The Community
Facilities District will not issue any evidences of indebtedness payable from the proceeds of the
Special Tax except as provided herein, and will not create, nor permit the creation of, any pledge,
lien, charge or other encumbrance upon any money in the Special Tax Fund other than as provided
herein; provided, that the Community Facilities District may at any time, or from time to time,
issue evidences of indebtedness for any lawful purpose of the Community Facilities District which
are payable from any money in the Community Facilities Fund as may from time to time be

deposited therein so long as any payments due thereunder shall be subordinate in all respects to
the use of the proceeds of the Special Tax as provided herein.

Section 5.03. Against Federal Income Taxation.

(a) If the Community Facilities District has obtained an opinion of Bond
Counsel that interest on the Bonds is excluded from gross income for federal income tax
purposes, the Community Facilities District will not take any action, or fail to take any
action, if such action or failure to take such action would adversely affect the exclusion
from gross income of the interest on the Bonds pursuant to Section 103 of the Code, and
specifically the Community Facilities District will not directly or indirectly use or make
any use of the proceeds of the Bonds or any other funds of the Community Facilities
District or take or omit to take any action that would cause the Bonds to be "arbitrage
bonds" subject to federal income taxation by reason of Section 148 of the Code or "private
activity bonds" subject to federal income taxation by reason of Section 141(a) of the Code
or obligations subject to federal income taxation because they are "federally guaranteed"
as provided in Section 1a9(b) of the Code; and to that end the Community Facilities
District, with respect to the proceeds of the Bonds and such other funds, will comply with
all requirements of such sections of the Code and all regulations of the United States

Department of the Treasury issued thereunder to the extent that such regulations are, at the
time, applicable and in effect; provided, that if the Cornmunity Facilities District shall
obtain an opinion of nationally recognized bond counsel to the effect that any action
required under this Section is no longer required, or to the effect that some further action
is requiled, to maintain the exclusion from gross income of the interest on the Bonds
pursuant to Section 103 of the Code, the Community Facilities District may rely

4116-0139-8310.5

31

Page 247

10/13/2020 Item No.12.



conclusively on such opinion in complying with the provisions hereof. In the event that at

any time the Community Facilities District is of the opinion that for purposes of this Section
it is necessary to restrict or limit the yield on the investment of any money held by the
Finance Director, for and on behalf of the Community Facilities District, hereunder or
otherwise the Community Facilities District shall so instruct the Finance Director in
writing, and the Finance Director shall take such action as may be necessary in accordance
with such instructions.

(b) Without lirniting the generality of the foregoing, the Community
Facilities District will pay fi'om time to tirne all amounts required to be rebated to the

United States of America pursuant to Section 148(0 of the Code and all regulations of the

United States Department of the Treasury issued thereunder to the extent that such

regulations are,atthe time, applicable and in effect, which obligation shall survive payment
in full or defeasance of the Bonds, and to that end, there is hereby established in the treasury
of the City, for and on behalf of the Community Facilities District, a fund to be known as

the City of Folsom Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch) Improvement
Area No. 1 Special Tax Bonds Rebate Fund to be held in trust and administered by the

Finance Director for and on behalf of the Community Facilities District. The Community
Facilities District will comply with the provisions of the Tax Certificate with respect to
making deposits in the Rebate Fund, and all money held in the Rebate Fund is pledged to
provide payments to the United States of America as provided herein and in the Tax
Certificate and no other person shall have claim to such money except as provided in the

Tax Cerlificate.

Section 5.04. Payment of Claims. The Community Facilities District will pay and

discharge any and all lawful claims which, if unpaid, might become payable from the proceeds of
the Special Tax or any part thereof or upon any funds in the hands of the Community Facilities
District or the Trustee allocated to the payment of the interest on or principal of or redemption
premiums, if any, on the Bonds, or which might impair the security of the Bonds.

Section 5.05. Expense Budeets. The City Council, as legislative body of the

Community Facilities District, will, on or before July 1 in each year, adopt a budget setting forth
the costs of the estimated Expenses for the period from such July I through the next succeeding
June 30; provided, that any budget adopted in accoldance with this Section may be amended by
the City Council at any time.

Section 5.06. Accountins Records; Financial Statements and Other Renorts

(a) The Community Facilities District will keep, or in the case of
transactions made by the Trustee it will cause the Trustee to keep, appropriate accounting
records in which complete and correct entries shall be made of all transactions relating to
the receipt, investment, disbursement, allocation and application of the ploceeds of tlie
Special Tax and of the proceeds of the Bonds, which accounting records shall at all times
during business hours with reasonable prior written notice be subject to the inspection of
any Holder (or his or hel representative authori zed in writing). The Trustee sliall furnish
the Community Facilities District periodic cash transaction statements which include detail
for all investment transactions effected by the Trustee or brokers selected by the

4146-0139-8310.5

JZ

Page 248

10/13/2020 Item No.12.



Community Facilities District. Upon the Community Facilities District's election, such

statements will be delivered via the Trustee's online service and upon electing such service,
paper statements will be provided only upon request. The Community Facilities District
waives the right to receive brokerage confirmations of security transactions effected by the

Trustee as they occur, to the extent permitted by law. The Community Facilities District
further understands that trade confirmations for securities transactions effected by the

Trustee will be available upon written request and at no additional cost and other trade

confirmations may be obtained from the applicable broker.

(b) The Community Facilities District will prepare annually not more
than two hundred seventy (270) days after the close of each Fiscal Year (commencing with
tlre Fiscal Year ending June 30,2020) a summary report showing in reasonable detail the
proceeds of the Special Tax levied and collected and the costs of the Expenses for the
preceding Fiscal Year and containing a general statement of the physical condition of the

Facilities. The Community Facilities District will furnish a copy of such summary report
without charge to any Holder (or his or her representative authorized in writing) and to any

investment banker, security dealer or other person interested in the Bonds requesting a copy
thereof.

(c) The Community Facilities District will prepare annually not later
than October 30 of each year (beginning in 202I) and file with the California Debt and

Investment Advisory Commission by mail, postage prepaid, all necessary information
required to be filed under the Law, including:

(1) The principal amount of the Bonds Outstanding;

(2) The balance in each Bond Reserve Account;

(3) The balance in the Redemption Account constituting capitalized interest, if
any;

(4) The number of parcels securing the Bonds which are delinquent with respect

to their Special Tax payments, the amount that each delinquent parcel is delinquent, the

length of time that each delinquent parcel has been delinquent and when foreclosure was

colnmenced for each delinquent parcel; and

(5) The assessed value of all parcels subject to the levy of the Special Tax to
repay the Bonds, as shown on the most equalized assessment roll of the County of
Sacramento.

Additionally, the Community Facilities District will notify the California Debt and

Investment Advisory Commission by mail, postage plepaid, within ten (10) days if the Community
Facilities District or the Trustee fails to pay any interest on or principal of any of the Bonds on any

scheduled payment date, or if funds are withdrawn fiom a Bond Reserve Account to pay any

interest on or principal of a series of the Bonds.

414(r-0139-8310.5

aa
JJ

Page 249

10/13/2020 Item No.12.



Section 5.07. Protection of Securitv and Rights of Holders. The Community
Facilities District will preserve and protect the security of the Bonds and the rights of the Holdels
and will warrant and defend their rights against all claims and demands of all persons.

Section 5.08. Payment of Governmental Charses and Comnliance with
Governmental Regulations. The Community Facilities District will pay and discharge all taxes or
payments in lieu of taxes, assessments and other governmental charges or liens that may be levied,
assessed or charged upon the Facilities or any part thereof promptly as and when the same shall
become due and payable, except that the Community Facilities District shall not be required to pay
any such governmental charges so long as the application or validity thereof shall be contested in
good faith and the Community Facilities District shall have set aside reserves to cover such
charges. The Community Facilities District will duly observe and conform with all valid
regulations and requirements of any governmental authority relative to the operation of the
Facilities or any part thereof, except that the Community Facilities District shall not be required to
comply with any such regulations or requirements so long as the application or validity thereof
shall be contested in good faith.

Section 5.09. Levy and Collection of the Special Tax. The Community Facilities
District, so long as any Bonds are Outstanding, will annually levy the Special Tax against all
Taxable Property in the Improvement Area and make provision for the collection of the Special
Tax in amounts which will be sufficient, together with the money then on deposit in the
Redemption Account, after making reasonable allowances for contingencies and errors in the
estimates, to yield proceeds equal to the amounts required for compliance with the agreements,
conditions, covenants and terms contained herein, and which in any event will be sufficient to pay
the interest on and principal of and Minimum Sinking Fund Account Payments for and redemption
premiums, if any, on the Bonds as they become due and payable and to replenish each Bond
Reserve Account and to pay all current Expenses as they become due and payable in accordance
with the provisions and terms hereof. The Special Tax shall be collected in the same manner as

ordinary ad valorem property taxes are collected and, except as otherwise provided in Section 5. 10

or by the Law, shall be subject to the same penalties and the same collection procedure, sale, and
lien priority in case of delinquency as is provided for ad valorem property taxes.

Section 5.10. Foreclosure of Special Tax Liens The Community Facilities
District shall annually on or before September I of each year review the public records of the
County of Sacramento relating to the collection of the Special Tax in order to determine the amount
of the Special Tax collected in the prior Fiscal Year, and if the Community Facilities District
determines on the basis of such review that the amount so collected is deficient by more than five
percent (5%) of the total amount of the Special Tax levied in such Fiscal Year, it will within sixty
(60) days thereafter institute foleclosure proceedings as authorizedby the Law in order to enforce
the lien of the delinquent installments of the Special Tax against each lot or parcel of land in the
Improvement Area, and will diligently prosecute and pursue such foreclosure proceedings to
judgment and sale; provided, that irrespective of the fbr'egoing if the Community Facilities District
determines on the basis of such review that property owned by any single property owner in the
Improvement Area is delinquent by more than fbur thousand dollars ($4,000) with respect to the
Special Tax due and payable by such property omer by such delinquency date, then the
Community Facilities District will institute, prosecute and pllrsue such foreclosure proceedings in
the time and mannel provided herein against such property owner; provided further, that any

4 r46-0139-ti3 10.5

34

Page 250

10/13/2020 Item No.12.



actions taken to enforce delinquent Special Tax liens shall be taken only consistent with Sections
53356.1 through 53356.7, both inclusive, of the Government Code of the State of California; and
provided further, that the Community Facilities District shall not be obligated to enforce the lien
of any delinquent installment of the Special Tax for any Fiscal Year in which the Community
Facilities District shall have received one hundred percent (100%) of the amount of such
installment from the County of Sacrarnento pursuant to the so-called "Teeter Plan."

Section 5.11. Further Assurances. The Community Facilities District will adopt,
deliver, execute, make and file any and all further assurances, instruments and resolutions as may
be reasonably necessary or proper to carry out the intention or to facilitate the performance hereof
and for the better assuring and confirming unto the Holders of the rights and benefits provided
herein, including without limitation the filing of all financing statements, agreements, instruments
or other documents in the forms and in the locations necessary to perfect and protect, and to
continue the perfection of, the pledge of the Special Taxes provided herein to the fullest extent
possible under applicable law of the State of California.

ARTICLE VI

THE TRUSTEE

Section 6.01. The Trustee. MUFG Union Bank, N.A. at its Corporate Trust Office
in San Francisco, California, is hereby appointed Trustee for the purpose of receiving all money
which the Community Facilities District is required to transfer to it hereunder and for applying and

using such money as provided herein for the purpose of paying the interest on and principal of and
redemption premiums, if any, on the Bonds. The Community Facilities District agrees that it will
at all times maintain a Trustee having a designated corporate trust office in Los Angeles or San

Francisco, California.

The Trustee and the Community Facilities District shall, prior to an Event of
Default, and after the curing or waiver of all Events of Default v/hich may have occuned, perform
such duties and only such duties as are specifically set forth in this Indenture. The Trustee shall,
during the existence of any Event of Default (which has not been cured or waived), exercise such
of the rights and powers vested in it by this Indenture, and use the same degree of care and skill in
their exercise as a prudent person would exercise or use under the circumstances in the conduct of
his or her own affairs.

The Community Facilities District may remove the Trustee initially appointed and

any successor thereto and may appoint a successor or successors thereto by an instrument in
writing; pr"ovided, that any such successor shall be a bank or trust company doing business and

having a designated corporate trust office in Los Angeles or San Francisco, California, having a

cornbined capital (exclusive of borrowed capital) and surplus of at least one hundred million
dollars ($100,000,000) and subject to supervision or examination by a federal or state banking
authority. If such bank or trust company publishes a report of condition at least annually, pursuant
to law or to the requirements of any supervising or examining authority above referred to, then for
the purpose of this Section the cornbined capital and surplus of such bank ortrust company shall
be deemed to be its combined capital and surplus as set forth in its most recent report of condition
so published. The Trustee rray at any time lesign by giving written notice of such resignation to

4146-0r39-83r0.5
35

Page 251

10/13/2020 Item No.12.



the Community Facilities District and by giving notice of such resignation by mail pursuant to
Section 10.14 to the Holders, and upon leceiving such notice of resignation, the Comrnunity
Facilities District shall promptly appoint a successor Trustee by an instrument in writing having
the qualifications required hereby. Any resignation or removal of a Trustee and appointment of a
sllccessor Trustee shall become effective only upon the acceptance of appointment by the
successor Trustee. If within thirty (30) days after notice of the removal or resignation of the
Trustee no successor Trustee shall have been appointed by the Cornmunity Facilities District and

shall have accepted such appointment, the removed or resigning Trustee may petition, at the

expense of the Community Facilities District, any court of competent jurisdiction for the

appointment of a successor Trustee, which court may thereupon, after such notice, if any, as it rnay

deem proper and plescribe and as may be required by law, appoint a successor Trustee having the
qualifi cations required hereby.

Any company into which the Trustee shall be merged or convefted or with which
it may be consolidated or any company resulting from any merger, conversation or consolidation
to which it shall be a party or any company to which the Trustee may sell or transfer all or
substantially all of its corporate trust business, so long as such company shall meet the

requirements set forth in this Section, shall be the successor to the Trustee and shall be vested with
all of the trusts, powers, discretions, immunities, privileges and all other matters as was its
predecessor, without the execution or filing of any paper or further act, anything herein to the
contrary notwithstanding.

Section 6.02. Liabilitv of the Trustee. The recitals of facts, agreements and

covenants contained herein and in the Bonds shall be taken as statements, agreements and

covenants of the Community Facilities District, and the Trustee shall not assume any responsibility
for the correctness of the same and does not make any representation as to the sufficiency or
validity hereof or of the Bonds or of the Special Tax, or as to the financial or technical feasibility
of the acquisition and construction of any of the Facilities, and shall not incur any responsibility
in respect thereof other than in connection with the rights and obligations expressly assigned to or
imposed upon it herein or in the Bonds, and shall not be liable in connection with the performance

of its duties hereunder except for its own negligence or willful misconduct. The Trustee shall not
be liable for any error of judgment made in good faith, unless it shall be proved that the Trustee

was negligent in ascertaining the pertinent facts, and no provision hereof shall require the Trustee
to expend or risk its own funds or otherwise incur any liability for the performance of its duties
hereunder, or in the exercise of any of its rights or powers hereunder.

The Trustee shall not be liable for any enor of judgment rnade in good faith by a

Responsible Officer unless it shall be proved that the Trustee was negligent in ascertaining the

pertinent facts, and the Trustee shall be entitled to advice of counsel of its selection concerning all
matters of trust and its duties hereunder and the advice of such counsel or any Opinion of Counsel

shall be full and complete authorization and protection in respect of any action taken, suffered or
ornitted by it hereunder in good faith and in reliance thereon. The Trustee may execute any of the

trusts or powers set forth herein and perform the duties required of it hereunder by ol through
attorneys. agents or attorneys, and the Trustee shall not be liable for the negligence or misconduct
of any agent. attorney ol certified public accountant selected by it with due care.

4r46-0r3g-tilr0.5
36

Page 252

10/13/2020 Item No.12.



The Trustee shall, at all tirnes, perfbrm such duties and only such duties as are

specifically set forth herein, and no implied duties or obligations shall be read herein against the

Trustee. At no time shall the Trustee be a fiduciary or have fiduciary duties hereunder.

The Trustee shall not be bound to recognize any person as the Holder of a Bond

unless and until such Bond is submitted for inspection, if required, and such Holder's title thereto
is certified to the Trustee in a written instrument, upon which the Trustee shall be entitled to

conclusively rely.

The Trustee shall not be liable with respect to any action taken or omitted to be

taken by it in good faith in accordance with the direction of the Holders of not less than a majority
in aggregate principal amount of the Bonds exercising any trust or power conferred upon the

Trustee hereunder.

The Trustee has no obligation to the Holders and shall incur no liability for the
payment of the interest on, principal of or redemption premiums, if any, with respect to the Bonds
from its own funds. The duties and obligations of the Trustee shall be determined solely by the

express provisions of this Indenture, and the Trustee shall perform such duties and obligations as

are specifically set forth in this Indenture and shall not be liable except for its negligence or willful
misconduct, and no implied covenants or obligations shall be read into this Indenture against the

Trustee.

The Trustee shall not be deemed to have knowledge of any Event of Default
hereunder unless and until a Responsible Officer at the Trustee's Corporate Trust Office
responsible for the administration of the Trustee's duties and obligations hereunder shall have

actual knowledge thereof or the Trustee shall have received written notice thereof at its Corporate
Trust Office. The Trustee shall not be bound to ascertain or to inquire as to the performance or
observance of any of the agreements, conditions, covenants or terms herein or of any of the

documents executed in connection with the Bonds, or as to the existence of an Event of Default
hereunder.

No provision hereof shall require the Trustee to expend or risk its own funds or
otherwise incur any financial liability in the performance or exercise of any of its duties hereunder,

or in the exercise of its rights or powers. The Trustee shall be entitled to interest on all amounts

advanced to it hereunder at its prime rate plus two percenl" (2oA), but not greater than twelve pelcent
(12%) per annum.

The Trustee shall have no responsibility, opinion or liability with respect to any

information, statement or recital in any offering memorandllm or other disclosure matedal
prepared or distributed with respect to the issuance of the Bonds.

All rights, privileges, immunities, indemnifications and releases from liability
granted herein to the Trustee shall extend to the directors, employees, ofllcers and agents thereof.

In no event shall the Trustee be responsible or liable for special, indirect, punitive
or conseqllential loss or damage of any kind whatsoever (including, but not limited to, loss of
profit) irrespective of whether the Trustee has been advised of the likelihood of such loss or
darnage and regaldless of the form of action.

37
414(r-0139-83 10.5

Page 253

10/13/2020 Item No.12.



Section 6.03. Compensation and Indemnification of the Trustee. The Community
Facilities District agrees to pay to the Trustee from time to time, and the Trustee shall receive

compensation for all services rendered by it in the exercise and performance of any of the duties

and obligations of the Trustee hereunder, as mutually and previously agreed upon in writing, and

the Community Facilities District will pay or reimburse the Trustee upon its request for all
expenses, disbulsements and advances incurred or made by the Trustee and its affiliates, directors,

employees or agents in accordance with any of the provisions hereof (including the reasonable

compensation and the expenses and disbursements of its counsel and of all persons not regularly
in its employ) except any such expense, disbursement or advance as may arise from its negligence

or willful misconduct. The Community Facilities District, to the extent permitted by law, agrees

to indemnify, defend and hold harmless the Trustee against any and all loss, damages, claims,

liability or expense incurred without negligence or willful misconduct on the part of the Trustee

arising out of or in connection with (i) the exercise or performance of any of its duties or

obligations hereunder, or (ii) any untrue statement or alleged untrue statement of any material fact

or omission or alleged omission to state a material fact necessary to make the statements made, in
the light of the circumstances under which they were made, not misleading in any official statement

or other offering circular utilized in connection with the sale of any of the Bonds, including costs

and expenses (including attorneys' fees and expenses) of defending itself against any claim or

liability in connection with the exercise or performance of any of its duties and obligations

hereunder. The rights of the Trustee and the obligations of the Community Facilities District under

this Section shall survive the discharge of the Bonds and the resignation or removal of the Trustee.

Section 6.04. Notice to the Trustee. The Trustee shall be protected in acting upon

any Bond, certificate, consent, notice, opinion, report, request, resolution or other document or

paper believed by it to be genuine and to have been signed or presented by the proper party or
parties. The Trustee may consult with counsel of its selection, including, without limitation,
counsel to the Community Facilities District, with regard to legal questions, and the opinion of
such counsel shall be full and complete authorization and protection with respect to any action

taken or suffered hereunder in good faith and in accordance therewith.

Whenever in the administration of its rights and obligations hereunder the Trustee

shall deem it necessary or desirable that a matter be established or proved prior to taking or
suffering any action hereunder, such matter (unless other evidence in respect thereof be herein

specifically prescribed) may, in the absence of negligence or willful misconduct on the part of the

Trustee, be deemed to be conclusively established or proved by a Certificate of the Community
Facilities District or an Accountant's Report, which shall be full warrant to the Trustee for any

action taken or suffered under the provisions hereof upon the faith thereof, and on which the

Trustee may conclusively rely, but in its reasonable judgment the Trustee may, in lieu thereof,

accept other evidence of such matter or may require such additional evidence as it may deem

reasonable.

ARTICLE VII

AMENDMENT OF OR SUPPLEMENT TO THE INDENTURE

fbr Amendment of or S

4146-0139-8310.5

Section 7.01 I)rnnerlrrr"e

38

rrnnlomenf +L- T-.1--+"-o

Page 254

10/13/2020 Item No.12.



(a) Amendment or Sunnlement With Consent of Flolders. The

Indenture and the rights and obligations of the Community Facilities District and of the

Holders may be amended or supplemented at any time by the execution and delivery of a
Supplemental Indenture by the Community Facilities District and the Trustee, which
Supplemental Indenture shall become binding when the written consents of the Holders of
sixty percent (60%) or more in aggregate principal amount of the Bonds then Outstanding,
exclusive of Bonds disqualified as provided in Section 7.02, shall have been filed with the

Trustee; provided, that no such amendment or supplement shall (1) extend the maturity of
or reduce the interest rate on or otherwise alter or impair the obligation of the Community
Facilities District to pay the interest on or principal of or Minimum Sinking Fund Account
Payment for or redemption premium, if any, on any Bond at the time and place and at the

rate and in the currency and from the funds provided herein without the express written
consent of the Holder of such Bond, or (2) permit the issuance by the Community Facilities
District of any obligations payable from the proceeds of the Special Tax othel thaq the

Bonds as provided herein, or jeopardizethe ability of the Community Facilities District to
levy and collect the Special Tax, or (3) reduce the percentage of Bonds required for the

written consent to any such amendment or supplement, or (a) modify any rights or
obligations of the Trustee without its prior written assent thereto.

(b) Amendment or Sunolement Without Consent of Holders. The

Indenture and the rights and obligations of the Community Facilities District and of the

Holders may also be amended or supplemented at any time by the execution and delivery
of a Supplemental Indenture by the Community Facilities District and the Trustee, which
Supplemental Indenture shall become binding upon execution without the prior written
consent of any Holders, but only to the extent permitted by law and after receiving an

Opinion of Counsel, stating that the Supplemental Indenture is the valid and binding
obligation of the Community Facilities District, and only for any one or more of the

following purposes:

(i) To add to the agreements and covenants required herein to
be performed by the Community Facilities District other agreements and

covenants thereafter to be performed by the Community Facilities District
which shall not (in the opinion of the Community Facilities District)
adversely affect the interests of the Holders, or to surrender any right or
power reserved herein to or conferred herein upon the Community Facilities
District which shall not (in the opinion of the Cornrnunity Facilities District)
adversely affect the interests of the Holders;

(ii) To make such provisions for the purpose of curing any

ambiguity or of curing, correcting or supplementing any defective provision
contained herein or in regard to questions arising hereunder which the

Community Facilities District may deem desirable or necessary and not
inconsistent helewith and which shall not (in the opinion of the Community
Facilities District) adversely affect the interests of the Holders;

4t46-0139-8310.5
39

Page 255

10/13/2020 Item No.12.



(iii) To authorize the issuance of Additional Bonds and to
provide the conditions and terms under which the Additional Bonds may be

issued;

(iv) To authorize lhe issuance under and subject to the Law of
any refunding bonds for any of the Bonds and to plovide the conditions and

terms under which such refunding bonds may be issued;

(v) To make such additions, deletions or modifications as may
be necessary or appropriate to ensure compliance with Section 148(f) of the
Code relating to the required rebate of excess investment earnings to the
United States of America, or otherwise as may be necessary to ensure the
exclusion from gross income for purposes of federal income taxation of the
interest on the Bonds or the exemption of such interest from State of
California personal income taxes; or

(vi) To make such additions, deletions or modifications as may
be necessary or appropriate to maintain any then current rating on the
Bonds.

Section 7.02. Disqualified Bonds. Bonds owned or held for the account of the
Community Facilities District shall not be deemed Outstanding for the purpose of any consent or
other action or any calculation of Outstanding Bonds provided for in this Article or in Article VIII,
and shall not be entitled to consent to or take any other action provided for in this Article or in
Article VIII.

Section 7.03. Endorsement or Replacement f Bonds After Amendment or
Supplement. After the effective date of any action taken as hereinabove provided, the Community
Facilities District may determine that the Bonds may bear a notation by endorsement in form
approved by it as to such action, and in that case upon demand of the Holder of any Bond
Outstanding on such effective date and presentation of his or her Bond for such purpose at the

Corporate Trust Office of the Trustee a suitable notation as to such action shall be made on such
Bond. If the Community Facilities District shall so determine, new Bonds so modified as, in the

opinion of the Community Facilities District, shall be necessary to conform to such action shall be
prepared and executed, and in that case Llpon demand of the Holder of any Bond Outstanding on
such effective date such new Bonds shall, upon surrender of such Outstanding Bonds, be

exchanged at the Corporate Trust Office of the Trustee, without cost to each Holder, for Bonds
then Outstanding.

Section 7.04. Amendment or Supplement by Mutual Consent. The provisions of
this Article shall not prevent any Holder from accepting any amendment or supplement as to any
particular Bonds held by him or her; pr'ovided, that due notation thereof is made on such Bonds.

4146-0139-8310.5

40

Page 256

10/13/2020 Item No.12.



ARTICLE VIII

EVENTS OF DEF'AULT AND REMEDIES OF HOLDERS

Section 8.01. Events of Default and Remedies of Holders. If one or more of the

following events (herein "Events of Default") shall happen, that is to say:

(a) if default shall be made by the Community Facilities District in the

due and punctual payment of any interest on or principal of or Minimum Sinking Fund
Account Payment for any of the Bonds when and as the same shall become due and

payable;

(b) if default shall be made by the Community Facilities District in the
observance or performance of any of the other agreements or covenants contained herein
required to be observed or performed by it, and such default shall have continued for a

period of thirty (30) days after the Community Facilities District shall have been given
notice in writing of such default by the Trustee;

(c) if default shall be made by the Community Facilities District in the

due and punctual payment of any indebtedness on a parity with or senior to the Bonds; or

(d) if the Community Facilities District shall file a petition or answer

seeking arrangement or reorganization under the federal bankruptcy laws or any other
applicable law of the United States of America or any state therein, or if a court of
competent jurisdiction shall approve a petition filed with or without the consent of the

Community Facilities District seeking arrangement or reorganization under the federal
bankruptcy laws or any other applicable law of the United States of America or any state

therein, or if under the provisions of any other law for the relief or aid of debtors any coutt
of competent jurisdiction shall assume custody or control of the Community Facilities
District or of the whole or any substantial part of its property;

then in each and every such case during the continuance of such Event of Default any Holder shall
have the right for the equal benefit and protection of all Holders similarly situated:

(a) by mandamus or other suit or proceeding at law or in equity to
enforce his rights against the City Council or the Community Facilities District or any of
the officers or employees of the Community Facilities District, and to compel the City
Council or the Community Facilities District or any such officers or employees to perform
and carry out theil duties under the Law and the agreements and covenants with the Holdels
contained herein;

(b) by suit in equity to enjoin any acts or things which are unlawful or
violate the rights of the Holders; or

(c) 
. by suit in equity upon the nonpayment of the Bonds to require the

City Council ol the Comruunity Facilities District or its officers and employees to account

as the trustee of an express trust.

4 l4(r-0139-83 I 0.5

41

Page 257

10/13/2020 Item No.12.



Section 8.02. Non-Waiver. Nothing in this Article or in any other provision herein
or in the Bonds shall affect or impair the obligation of the Community Facilities District, which is
absolute and unconditional, to pay the interest on and principal of and redemption premiums, if
any, on the Bonds to the respective Holders of the Bonds at the respective dates of maturity or
upon redemption prior to maturity as provided herein fi'om the proceeds of the Special Tax and the
other funds as provided herein, or shall affect ol impair the right of such Holders, which is also

absolute and unconditional, to institute suit to enforce such payment by vit'tue of the contract
embodied herein and in the Bonds.

A waiver of any Event of Default or breach of duty or contract by any Holder shall
not affect any subsequent Event of Default or breach of duty or contract and shall not impair any

rights or remedies on any such subsequent Event of Default or breach of duty or contract. No
delay ol omission by any Holder to exercise any right or remedy accruing upon any Event of
Default or breach of duty or contract shall impair any such right or remedy or shall be construed

to be a waiver of any such Event of Default or breach of duty or contract or an acquiescence

therein, and every right and remedy conferred upon the Holders by the Law or hereby may be

enforced and exercised from time to time and as often as shall be deemed expedient by the Holders.

If any action, proceeding or suit to enforce any right or exercise any remedy is
abandoned or determined adversely to any Holder, the Community Facilities District and such

Holdel shall be restored to their former positions, rights and remedies as if such action, proceeding

or suit had not been brought or taken.

Section 8.03. Remedies Not Exclusive. No remedy herein conferued upon or
reserved to the Holders is intended to be exclusive of any other remedy, and every such remedy
shall be cumulative and shall be in addition to every other remedy given hereunder or now or
hereafter existing at law or in equity or by statute or otherwise, and may be exercised without
exhausting and without regard to any other remedy conferred by the Law or any other law.

ARTICLE IX

DEFEASANCE

Section 9.01. Discharge of the Bonds.

(a) If the Community Facilities District shall pay or cause to be paid or
there shall otherwise be paid to the Holders of all Outstanding Bonds the interest thereon
and the principal thereof and the redemption premiums, if any, thereon at the times and in
the manner stipulated therein and herein, then all agreements, covenants and other
obligations of the Community Facilities District to the Holders of such Bonds hereunder

shall tl-rereupon cease, terminate and become void and be discharged and satisfied. In such

event, the Trustee shall execute and deliver to the Community Facilities District all such

instruments as may be necessary or desirable to evidence such discharge and satisfaction,
and the Trustee shall pay over or deliver to the Community Facilities District for deposit
in the Community Facilities Fund all money or securities held by it pursuant hereto which
are not required for the payment of the interest on and principal of and redemption
premiurns, if any, on such Bonds.

4116-0r39-8310.5

42

Page 258

10/13/2020 Item No.12.



(b) Any Outstanding Bonds shall on the maturity date or redemption

date thereof be deerned to have been paid within the meaning of and with the effect

expressed in subsection (a) of tliis Section if there shall have been irrevocably deposited

with the Trustee money which is sufficient to pay the interest due on such Bonds on such

date and the principal and redemption premiums, if any, due on such Bonds on such date.

(c) Any Outstanding Bonds shall prior to the maturity date or
redemption date thereof be deemed to have been paid within the meaning and with the

effect expressed in subsection (a) of this Section if (l) in case any of such Bonds are to be

redeemed on any date prior to their maturity date, the Community Facilities District shall

have agreed to mail a notice of redemption pursuant to Section 10.14 to the respective

Holders of all such Outstanding Bonds and to the securities depositories or securities

information services selected by it pursuant to Section 3.03, (2) there shall have been filed
with the Community Facilities District and the Trustee an Opinion of Counsel to the effect

that the payment of such Bonds has been provided for in the manner set forth herein and

that all obligations of the Community Facilities District with respect to such Bonds have

been discharged and satisfied and there shall have been deposited with an escrow agent

meeting the requirements of a successor trustee set forth in Section 6.01 or the Trustee

either (i) money in an amount which shall be sufficient to pay when due the interest on and

principal of and redemption premiums, if any, due and to become due on such Bonds on

and prior to the date scheduled for redemption or maturity date thereof, as the case may be

andlor (ii) Federal Securities which are not subject to redemption except by the holder
thereof prior to maturity (including any Federal Securities issued or held in book-entry

form on the books of the Department of the Treasury of the United States of America), the

interest on and principal of which when paid will provide money which, together with the

money, if any, deposited with such escrow agent meeting the requirements of a successor

trustee set forth in Section 6.01 or the Trustee at the same time, shall be sufficient to pay

when due the interest on and principal of and redemption premiums, if any, due and to

become due on such Bonds on and prior to the date scheduled for redemption or maturity
date thereof, as the case may be, as evidenced by an Accountant's Report on file with the

Community Facilities District and the Trustee, and (3) in the event such Bonds are not by

their terms subject to redemption within the next succeeding sixty (60) days, the

Community Facilities District shall have agreed to mail pursuant to Section 10.14 anotice
to the Holders of such Bonds and to the securities depositories and securities information
services selected by it pursuant to Section 3.03 that the deposit required by clause (2) above

has been made with such escrow agent meeting the requirements of a successor trustee set

forth in Section 6.01 or the Trustee and that such Bonds are deemed to have been paid in
accordance with this Section and stating the maturity dates or redemption dates, as the case

may be, upon which money will be available for the payment of the principal of and

redemption premiums, if any, on such Bonds.

Section 9.02. Unclaimed Money. Anything contained herein to the contrary

notwithstanding, any money held by the Trustee in trust for the payment and discharge of any of
the Bonds or any interest thereon which remains unclaimed for two (2) years after the date when

such Bonds or interest thereon have become due and payable, eithel at their stated rnaturity dates

or by call for redemption prior to maturity, if such money was held by the Trustee on such date, or
for two (2) years after the date of deposit of such money if deposited with the Trustee after the

4 l4(r-01 39-83 I 0.5

43

Page 259

10/13/2020 Item No.12.



date when such Bonds or interest thereon became due and payable, shall be repaid by the Trustee
to the Community Facilities District as its absolute property free from trust for deposit in the

Community Facilities Fund and for use in accordance with the Law, and the Trustee shall
thereupon be released and discharged with respect thereto and the Holders shall look only to the
Community Facilities District for the payment of such Bonds and interest thereon; provided, that
before the Trustee shall be required to make any such repayment the Community Facilities District
shall mail pursuant to Section 10.14 a notice to the Holders of all Outstanding Bonds and to such
securities depositories and securities information services selected by it pursuant to Section 3.03

that such money remains unclaimed and that after a date named in such notice, which date shall
not be less than thirty (30) days after the date of the mailing of such notice, the balance of such

money then unclaimed will be returned to the Community Facilities District for deposit in the

Community Facilities Fund.

ARTICLE X

MISCELLANEOUS

Section 10.01. of Facilities District Limited to
the Special Tax and Certain Other Funds Notwithstanding anything contained herein, the

Community Facilities District shall not be required to advance any money derived from any source

of income other than the proceeds of the Special Tax net of Priority Administrative Expenses and

the other funds provided herein for the payment of the interest on or principal of or redemption
premiums, if any, on the Bonds.

The Bonds are special tax obligations of the Community Facilities District and the

interest on and principal of and redemption premiums, if any, on the Bonds are payable solely
from the proceeds of the Special Tax (including any prepayments thereof and proceeds from the

sale of property collected pursuant to the foreclosure provisions of the Indenture for the

delinquency of the Special Tax), net of Priority Administrative Expenses, and amounts in certain
funds and accounts established in the Indenture, and the Community Facilities District is not
obligated to pay the Bonds except fiom such funds. The General Fund of the City and the funds
of the Community Facilities District are not liable, and neither the full faith and cledit of the

Community Facilities District nor the City are pledged for the payment of the interest on or
principal of or redemption premiums, if any, on the Bonds, and no tax or assessment other than
the Special Tax shall ever be levied or collected to pay the interest on or principal of or redemption
premiums, if any, on the Bonds. The Bonds are not secured by a legal or equitable pledge of or
charge, lien or encumbrance upon any property of the Community Facilities District or any of its
income or receipts except the proceeds of the Special Tax (including any prepayments thereof and

proceeds from the sale ofproperty collected pursuant to the foreclosure provisions ofthe Indenture
for the delinquency of the Special Tax), net of Priority Administrative Expenses, and amounts in
certain funds and accounts established in the Indenture, and neither the payment of the interest on

or principal of or redemption premiums, if any, on the Bonds is a general debt, liability or
obligation of the Community Facilities District. The Bonds do not constitute an indebtedness of
the Community Facilities District within the meaning of any constitutional or statutory debt
lirnitation or restriction, and neither the City Council nor the Community Facilities District nor
any officer' or employee thereof shall be liable for the payment of the intelest on or principal of or

4 l4(r-0139-83 I 0.5

44

Page 260

10/13/2020 Item No.12.



redemption prerniums, if any, on the Bonds otherwise than from the proceeds of the Special Tax,
net of Priority Administrative Expenses, and such other funds as provided in the Indenture.

Section 10.02. Benefits of the Indenture Limited to Certain Parties. Nothing
contained herein, express or irnplied, is intended to give to any entity or person other than tlie City
Council, the Community Facilities District, the Trustee, and the Holders any right, remedy or claim
under or by reason hereof, and any agreement or covenant required her'ein to be performed by or
on behalf of the City Council or the Community Facilities District or any officel or employee

thereof shall be for the sole and exclusive benefit of the Trustee and the Holders.

Section 10.03 Qrrnneccnr Tc Deemed Included in All References fn Drpr{enccsnr

Whenever either the City Council or the Community Facilities District or any officer or employee

thereof or of the City is named or refened to herein, such reference shall be deemed to include the

successor to the powers, duties and functions with respect to the administration, control and

management of the Community Facilities District that are presently vested in the City Council or
the Community Facilities District or such officer or employee, and all agreements and covenants

required herein to be performed by or on behalf of the City Council or the Community Facilities
District or any officer or employee thereof shall bind and inure to the benefit of the respective

successors thereofwhether so expressed or not.

Section 10.04. Execution of Documents by Holders. Any declaration, request or
other instrument which is permitted or required herein to be executed by Holders may be in one or
more instruments of similar tenor, and may be executed by Holders in person or by their attorneys

duly authorized in writing. The fact and date of the execution by any Holder or his attorney of any

declaration, request or other instrument or of any writing appointing such attorney may be proved

by the certificate of any notary public or other officer authorized to take acknowledgments of deeds

to be recorded in the state or territory in which he or she purports to act that the person signing
such declaration, request or other instrument or writing acknowledged to hirn or"her the execution
thereof, or by an affidavit of a witness to such execution duly sworn to before such notary public
or other officer. The ownership of Bonds and the amount, maturity, number and date of holding
the same shall be provided by the registration books required to be kept by the Trustee pursuant to

Section 2.09.

Any declaration, request or other instrument or writing of the Holder of any Bond
sliall bind all future Holder's of such Bond with respect to anything done or suffered to be done by
the Community Facilities District in good faith and in accordance therewith.

Section 10.05. Denosit and Investment of onev in Accounts and Funds. All
money held by the Trustee in any accounts and funds established herein shall be deposited in time
or demand deposits in any state or nationally chartered bank or trust company, including the

Trustee, or any state or federal savings and loan association, and shall be secured at all times by
such obligations as are required by law and to the fullest extent required by law, except such money
that is at the time invested in accor'dance with this Section. Any money in the Acquisition and

Construction Fund and in the Special Tax Fund and in the Redernption Account and in the Expense

Account and in the Selvices Account shall be invested by the Trustee pursuant to a Written Request

of the Community Facilities District received by the Trustee at least three (3) days before making
any such investment in those Permitted Investments specified in such Written Request of the

4 l4(;-01 39-83 I 0.5

45

Page 261

10/13/2020 Item No.12.



Community Facilities District that mature not later than the date on which it is estimated that such
money will be required to be paid out heleunder, and any money in a Bond Reserve Account shall
be invested by the Trustee pursuant to a Written Request of the Community Facilities District
received by the Trustee at least three (3) days before making any such investment in those
Permitted Investments specified in such Written Request of the Community Facilities District that
mature not more than five (5) years from the date of purchase by the Trustee, or the final maturity
date of any Outstanding Bonds, whichever is earlier; and the Trustee may conclusively rely and
determine that any investment specified in any such Written Request of the Community Facilities
District is a Permitted Investment or a Federal Security, as the case may be, hereunder; plovldgd,
that in the absence of written instructions from the Community Facilities District regarding such
investments, such money shall be held uninvested. The Trustee (or any affiliate thereof) may act
as principal or agent in the making of any investment hereunder and may impose its customary
charges therefor, and shall not be responsible for any losses, taxes, fees or other charge suffered in
connection with any investment, reinvestment or liquidation of investments made in accordance
herewith. Notwithstanding anything in the Indenture to the contrary, for purposes of any time
limitation on the maturity of an investment of moneys in the funds and accounts held thereunder,
such investment shall be deemed to satisff such time limitation if, by its terms and within such
time limitation, the Community Facilities District or the Trustee has the right, for any purpose
permitted or required under the Indenture, to demand the repurchase, redemption, withdrawal or
termination of such investment and to receive at least the outstanding par amount thereof plus
accrued interest, without penalty.

All interest received on any such money so deposited or invested which exceeds

the requirements of the account or fund from which such money was deposited or invested shall
(as specified in a Written Request of the Community Facilities District filed with the Trustee)
(subject to the requirements of Section 5.03) be deposited in the Redemption Account, and all
losses on any such money so deposited or invested shall be borne by the account or fund from
which the deposit or investment was made.

Section 10.06. Waiver of Personal Liabilitv No member of the City Council or
officer or employee of the City, acting for and on behalf of the Community Facilities District, shall
be individually or personally liable for the payment of the interest on or principal of or redemption
premiums, if any, on the Bonds, but nothing herein contained shall relieve any member of the City
Council or officer or employee of the City fiorn the performance of any official duty provided
hereby or by the Law or by any other applicable provisions of law.

Section 10.07. Acquisition of Bonds by Communitv Faqilities lrstrieI. All Bonds
acquired by the Community Facilities District, whether by purchase or gift or otherwise, shall be

surrendered to the Trustee for cancellation and destruction by it, and the Trustee shall send the
Community Facilities District a certificate of such destruction.

Section 10.08. Content of Certificates and Reports. Every certificate or report with
respect to compliance with an agreement, condition, covenant or term provided herein shall include
(a) a statement that the person or persorls making or giving such certificate or report have read
such agreement, condition, covenant or tenn and the definitions herein relating thereto; (b) a brief
statement as to the nature and scope of the exarnination or investigation upon which the opinion
contained in such certificate orreport is based; (c) a statement that, in the opinion of the signers,

4146-0139-8310.5
46

Page 262

10/13/2020 Item No.12.



they have made or caused to be made such examination or investigation as is necessary to enable

them to express an informed opinion as to whether or not such agreement, condition, covettant or
term has been complied with; and (d) a statement as to whether, in the opinion of the signers, such

agreement, condition, covenant or term has been complied with.

Any such certificate made or given by an officer of the City, for and on behalf of
the Community Facilities District, may be based, insofar as it relates to legal matteLs, upon a
representation made in an Opinion of Counsel unless such officer knows that the representation
with respect to the matters upon which his certificate may be based, as aforesaid, is erroneous, or
in the exercise of reasonable care should have known that the same was erroneous. Any such

Opinion of Counsel may be based, insofar as it relates to factual matters information with respect

to which is in the possession of the Community Facilities District, upon a representation by an

officer or officers of the City unless the counsel giving such Opinion of Counsel knows that the

representation with respect to the matters upon which his representation may be based, as

aforesaid, is erroneous, or in the exercise of reasonable care should have known that the same was

erroneous.

Section 10.09. Maintenance of Accounts and Funds. Any account or fund required
herein to be established and maintained by the Trustee may be maintained by the Trustee in its
accounting records in its customary manner either as an account or a fund, and may, for the
purposes of such accounting records, any audits thereof and any financial reports or statements

with respect thereto, be treated either as an account or as a fund; but all such accounting records
with respect to all such accounts and funds shall at all times be maintained by the Trustee in
accordance with trust industry standards.

Section 10.10. Article and Section Gender and References. The
headings or titles of the several articles and sections hereof and the table of contents appended

hereto shall be solely for convenience ofreference and shall not affect the construction, effect or
meaning hereof, and words of any gender shall be deemed and construed to include all genders.

All references herein to "Articles," "sections" and other subdivisions are to the cor:responding

articles, sections or subdivisions hereof; and the words "hereby," "herein," "hereof," "hereto,"
"herewith" and "hereunder" and other words of similar irnport refer to the Indenture as a whole
and not to any particular article, section ol subdivision hereof.

Section 10.11. Paltial Invalidity. If any one or more of the agreements, conditions,
covenants or tenns or portions thereof required hereby to be observed or performed by the

Community Facilities District or tl-re Trustee should be contrary to law, then such agreement or
agreements, such condition or conditions, such covenant or covenants or such term or terms or
such portions thereof shall be null and void and shall be deerned separable fiorn the remaining
agreements, conditions, covenants or terms or portions thereof and shall in no way affect the

validity hereof or of the Bonds; and the Holders shall retain all the rights and benefits accorded to
them under the Law or any other applicable provisions of law. The Community Facilities District
hereby declares that it would have executed the Indenture and each and every other article, section,
par"agraph, subdivision, sentence, clause and phrase heleof and would have authorized the issuance

of the Bonds pursuant hereto irrespective of the fact that any one or more of the articles, sections,
paragraphs, subdivisiorls, sentences, clauses or phrases hereof or the application thereof to any
person or circumstance may be held to be unconstitutional, unenforceable or invalid.

4r46-0139-83r0.5
4l

Page 263

10/13/2020 Item No.12.



Section 10.12. Execution in Counterparts and Electrourc Exesutian. The Indenture
may be executed in several counterparts, each of which shall be deemed an original, and all of
which shall constitute but one and the same instrument. The exchange of copies of the Indenture
and of signature pages by facsimile or PDF transmission shall constitute effective execution and

delively of the Indenture as to the parties hereto and may be used in lieu of the original Indenture
and signature pages for all purposes. Each party agrees that the electronic signatures, whether
digital or encrypted, of the parties included in this Indenture are intended to authenticate this
writing and to have the same force and effect as manual signatures. Electronic signature means

any electronic sound, symbol, or process attached to or logically associated with a record and
executed and adopted by a party with the intent to sign such record, including facsimile or email
electronic si gnatures.

Section 10.13. GoverningLaw. The Indenture shall be governed by and construed
and interpreted in accordance with the laws of the State of California.

Section 10.14. Notices. All written notices to be given hereunder shall be given by
mail or electronic means to the party entitled thereto at its address set forth below, or at such other
address as such party may provide to the other parties in writing from time to time, namely:

If to the Community Facilities District:

Community Facilities District No. 23
(Folsom Ranch)

City of Folsom, City Hall
50 Natoma Street
Folsom, California 95630
Attention: Finance Director
Fax: 916-985-0870
Email : financetreasury@folsom.ca.us

If to the Trustee:

MUFG Union Bank, N.A.
445 South Figueroa Street, 20th Floor
Los Angeles, California 9007I
Attention: Corporate Trust
Fax: 415-273-2492
Email: LACT@unionbank.com

Each such notice, statement, demand, consent, approval, authorization,
offer, designation, request or other communication hereunder shall be deerned delivered to
the party to whom it is addressed (a) if personally served or delivered, upon delivery, (b)
if given by electronic communication, upon the sender's leceipt of an appropriate answer
back or other written acknowledgment or confirmation of receipt of the entire notice,
approval, demand, report or other communication, (c) if given by first class mail deposited
with the United States mail postage prepaid, seventy-two (72) hours after such notice is

deposited with the United States mail, (d) if given by overnight courier, with courier'

4r16-0r39-83r0.5
48

Page 264

10/13/2020 Item No.12.



charges prepaid, twenty-four Q\ hours after delively to said overnight courier, or (e) if
given by any other means, upon delivery at the address specified in this Section.

The Trustee shall have the right to accept and act upon instructions,
including funds transfer instructions ("Instructions") given pursuant to this Indenture and

delivered using Electronic Means ("Electronic Means" shall mean the following
communications methods: e-mail, facsimile transmission, secure electronic transmission
containing applicable authorization codes, passwords and/or authentication keys issued by
the Trustee, or another method or system specified by the Trustee as available for use in
connection with its services hereunder); provided, however, that the Community Facilities
District shall provide to the Trustee an incumbency certificate listing officers with the

Community Facilities District to provide such Instructions and containing specimen

signatures of such officers, which incumbency certificate shall be amended by the

Community Facilities District whenever a person is to be added or deleted from the listing.
If the Community Facilities District elects to give the Trustee Instructions using Electronic
Means and the Trustee in its reasonable judgment elects to act upon such Instructions, the

Trustee's understanding of such Instructions shall be deemed controlling. The Community
Facilities District understands and agrees that the Trustee cannot determine the identity of
the actual sender of such Instructions and that the Trustee shall be entitled to conclusively
presume without liability that directions that purport to have been sent by an officer listed
on the incumbency certificate provided to the Trustee have been sent by such officer. The
Community Facilities District shall be responsible for ensuring that only officers transmit
such Instructions to the Trustee and that the Community Facilities District and all officers
are solely responsible to safeguard the use and confidentiality of applicable user and

authorization codes, passwords and/or authentication keys upon receipt by the Community
Facilities District. The Trustee shall not be liable for any losses, costs claims, or expenses

arising directly or indirectly from the Trustee's reliance upon and compliance with such

Instructions notwithstanding the fact that such directions conflict or are inconsistent with
a subsequent written instruction. The Community Facilities District agrees: (i) to assume

all risks arising out of the use of Electronic Means to submit Instructions to the Trustee,

including without limitation the risk of the Trustee acting on unauthorized Instructions, and

the risk of interception and misuse by third parties; (ii) that it is fully informed of the
protections and risks associated with the various methods of transmitting Instructions to
the Trustee and that there may be more secure methods of transmitting Instructions than
the method(s) selected by the Community Facilities District; (iii) that the security
procedures (if any) to be followed in connection with its transmission of Instructions
provide to it a commercially reasonable degree of protection in light of its particular needs

and circumstances; and (iv) to notify the Trustee in writing immediately uporl learning of
any compromise or unauthorized use of the security procedures.

Section 10.15. U.S.A. Patriot Act. The parties hereto acknowledge that rn

accordance with Section326 of the U.S.A. Patriot Act, the Trustee, like all financial institutions
and in order to help fight the funding of terrorism and money laundering, is required to obtain,
velify, and record information that identifies each person or legal entity that establishes a

relationship or opens an account with the Trustee. The palties to this Indenture agree that they
will provide the Tlustee with such information as it may request in order for the Trustee to satisfy
the requirements of the U.S.A. Patriot Act.

4 l4(r-0139-83 10.5

49

Page 265

10/13/2020 Item No.12.



Section 10.16. Force Maieure. In no event shall the Trustee be responsible or liable
for any failure or delay in the performance of its obligations hereunder arising out of or caused by,
directly or indirectly, folces beyond its contlol, including, without limitation, strikes, work
stoppages, accidents, acts of war or terrorism, pandemics, epidemics, quarantine restrictions,
recognized public emergencies, civil or military disturbances, nuclear or natural catastrophes or
acts of God, and interruptions, loss or malfunctions of utilities, communications or computer
(software and hardware) services; it being understood that the Trustee shall use reasonable efforts
which are consistent with accepted practices in the banking industry to resume performance as

soon as practicable under the circumstances.

Section 10.17. Effective Date of the Indenture. The Indenture shall take effect from
and after its execution and delivery.

4146-0r39-8310.5

50

Page 266

10/13/2020 Item No.12.



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the City of Folsom Community Facilities District
No. 23 (Folsom Ranch) has caused the Indenture to be signed in its name by the Finance Director
of the City of Folsom and MUFG Union Bank, N.A., as Trustee, in token of its acceptance of the

trusts created hereunder, has caused the Indenture to be signed in its corporate name by its officer
thereunto duly authorized, all as of the date and year first above written.

CITY OF FOLSOM COMMUNITY FACILITIES
DrsrRrcr No. 23 (FoLSoM RANCH)

Finance Director of the City of Folsom

MUFG TINION BANK, N.A.,
as Trustee

By
Authorized Officer

4146-0139-83t0.5

Signature Page to Indenture

Page 267

10/13/2020 Item No.12.



No.

EXHIBIT A

IFORM OF BONDSI

LINITED STATES OF AMERICA

STATE OF CALIFORNIA

COUNTY OF SACRAMENTO

CITY OF FOLSOM
COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT NO. 23

(FOLSOM RANCH) IMPROVEMENT AREA NO
SPECIAL TAX BOND, SERIES 2O2O

$

Interest Maturity
Date

Bond
DateRate

% September l, _ November [_],2020

REGISTERED OWNER: MUFG TINION BANK, N.A., AS TRUSTEE FOR THE FOLSOM
RANCH FINANCING AUTHORITY

PRINCIPAL AMOUNT DOLLARS

The City of Folsom Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch),

organrzed and existing under and pursuant to the laws of the State of California (the "Community
Facilities District"), for value received hereby promises to pay (but only out of the proceeds of the

Special Tax hereinaftel referred to, net of Priority Administrative Expenses (as defined in the
Indenture hereinafter referred to), and certain other funds as described herein) to the registered
owner set forth above on the maturity date set forth above (subject to any right of prior redemption
hereinafter provided for) the principal amount set forth above, together with interest thereon
computed on the basis of a360-day year of twelve (12) 30-day calendar months from the interest
payment date next preceding the date of registration of this Bond (unless this Bond is registered

on a day during the period fi'om the sixteenth (16'n) day of the month next preceding an intelest
payment date to such interest payment date, both inclusive, in which event it shall bear interest
from such interest payment date, or unless this Bond is registered on a day on or before the
fifteenth (l5tn) day of the month next preceding the f'rrst interest payment date, in which event it
shall bear interest from its dated date) until the principal hereof shall have been paid, at the interest
rate per annum set forth above, payable on March l, 2021, and semiannually thereafter on
September 1 and March 1 in each year. The interest on and principal of and redemption ptemium,

4146-0r39-8310.5

A-l
Page 268

10/13/2020 Item No.12.



if any, on this Bond are payable in lawful money of the United States of America at the Corporate

Trust Office (as that term is defined in the Indenture hereinafter leferred to, and herein the

"Corporate Trust Office") of MUFG Union Bank, N.A., or any other bank or trust company at its

Corporate Trust Office, which may at any time be substituted in its place as provided in the

Indenture heleinafter described, the Trustee of the Community Facilities District for the Bonds
(the "Trustee"). The interest on this Bond due on or before the maturity or prior redemption hereof
shall be payable only to the person whose name appears in the registration books required to be

kept by the Trustee as the registered owner hereof at the close of business as of the fifteenth (15th)

day of the rnonth next preceding each interest payment date, such interest to be paid by check

mailed by first class mail on each such interest payment date to such registered owner at his address

as it appears on such books, except that in the case of a registered owner of one million dollars
($1,000,000) or more in principal amount of Bonds then Outstanding, payment shall be made at

such owner's option by wire transfer on each such interest payment date of immediately available

funds to an account in a bank or trust company or savings bank that is a member of the Federal

Reserve System and that is located in the continental United States of America according to written
instructions provided by such ownerto the Trustee at least fifteen (15) days before such interest
payment date. The principal of and redemption premium, if any, on this Bond shall be payable

only to the person whose name appears in such registration books as the registered owner hereof,

such principal and redemption premium, if any, to be paid only on the surrender of this Bond at

the Corporate Trust Office of the Trustee at maturity or on redemption prior to maturity.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Trustee may agree with the Holder of this Bond

that such Holder may, in lieu of surrendering the same for a new Bond, endorse on this Bond a

record of partial payment of the principal of this Bond as follows:

PAYMENTS ON ACCOUNT OF PRINCIPAL

Principal
Amount Paid

Balance of Principal
Amount Unpaid

Signature
of HolderPayment Date

This Bond is one of a duly authorized issue of Bonds in the aggregate principal
amount of IPAR IN WORDS] dollars ($tPARl) issued by the Community Facilities Distlict
located in the City of Folsorn (the "City"), designated the "City of Folsom Community Facilities
District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch) Improvement Area No. 1 Special Tax Bonds, Series 2020" (the
"Bonds"), which Bonds are issued under and pursuant to the Mello-Roos Community Facilities
Act of 1982, as arnended (being Sections 53311 et seq. of the Government Code of the State of
California), and all laws amendatory theleof or supplemental thereto (the "Law") and under and

pursuant to the provisions of an Indenture dated as of November 1, 2020 (the "lndenture") between

4146-0139-83r0 5

A-2
Page 269

10/13/2020 Item No.12.



the Community Facilities District and MUFG Union Bank, N.A., as trustee, all of like tenor and

date (except for such variations, if any, as may be required to designate varying numbers,

maturities, interest rates or redemption provisions), and all capitalized terms used herein not
otherwise defined shall have the meanings contained in the Indenture. All the Bonds are equally
and ratably secured in accordance with the terms and conditions of the Indenture (copies of which
are on file at the office of the City Clerk of the City and at the Corporate Trust Office of the

Trustee), and reference is hereby made to the Law and to the Indenture and any and all amendments

thereof and supplements thereto for a description of the terms on which the Bonds are issued and

for the rights of the registered owners of the Bonds; and all the terms of the Law and the Indenture
are hereby incorporated herein and constitute a contract between the Community Facilities District
and the registered owner from time to time of this Bond, to all the provisions of which the

registered owner ofthis Bond, by his or her acceptance hereof, agrees and consents; and each taker
and subsequent registered owner hereof shall have recourse to all the provisions of the Law and

the Indenture and shall be bound by all the terms and conditions thereof.

The Bonds are issued to provide funds to pay costs of the acquisition and

construction of the Facilities. The Bonds are special tax obligations of the Community Facilities
District and the interest on and principal of and redemption premiums, if any, on the Bonds are

payable solely from the proceeds of the Special Tax, net of Priority Administrative Expenses, and

certain other funds, as provided in the Indenture, and the Community Facilities District is not
obligated to pay them except from the proceeds of the Special Tax, net of Priority Administrative
Expenses, and such other funds. The General Fund of the City and the funds of the Community
Facilities District are not liable and neither the full faith and credit of the Community Facilities
District nor the City are pledged for the payment of the interest on or principal of or redemption
premiums, if any, on the Bonds, and no tax or assessment other than the Special Tax shall ever be

levied or collected to pay the interest on or principal of or redemption premiums, if any, on the

Bonds. The Bonds are not secured by a legal or equitable pledge of or charge, lien or encumbrance

upon any property of the Cdmmunity Facilities District or any of its income or receipts except the

proceeds of the Special Tax, net of Priority Administrative Expenses, and such other funds, and

neither the payment of the interest on or principal of or redemption premiums, if any, on the Bonds
is a general debt, liability or obligation of the Community Facilities District.

The Bonds maturing on September l, 20L1, are subject to mandatory redemption
by the Community Facilities District prior to their maturity date in part on September 1 in each of
the years 20Ll through 20L1, both years inclusive; and the Bonds matudng on September l,
20L1, are subject to mandatory redemption by the Community Facilities District prior to their
maturity date in part on September 1 in each of the years 20[_] through 201_1, both years

inclusive, in each case solely fi'om Minimum Sinking Fund Account Payments deposited in the

Sinking Fund Subaccount, upon mailed notice as hereinafter provided, at a redemption price of
one hundred percent (100%) of the principal amount thereof called for redemption together with
accrued intelest thereon to the date of redemption.

The Bonds are subject to optional redemption by the Community Facilities District
prior to their respective maturity dates as a whole or in part on any date on or after [September l],
201_], fi'om funds derived by the Community Facilities District fiom any source other than such

Minimurn Sinking Fund Account Payments deposited in the Sinking Fund Subaccount or such
prepayments of the Special Tax, upon mailed notice as hereinafter provided, at the following

414(r-0139-8310.5

A-3

Page 270

10/13/2020 Item No.12.



redernption prices (computed upon the principal amount of the Bonds or portions thereof called

for redemption) together with accrued interest thereon to the date fixed for redemption, to wit:

ll03l% if redeemed on any date on or after lSeptember ll, 20L-l
through fAugust 3ll, 201--];

U02l% if redeemed on any date fiom fSeptember 1],20L-lthrough
fAugust 31],201_l;

fl}ll% if redeemed on any date from fSeptember 1],20Llthrough
fAugust 31],20[_]; and

[100]% if redeemed on fSeptember 1], 20Ll and any date

thereafter.

The Bonds are subject to extraordinary redemption by the Community Facilities
District prior to their respective maturity dates, as a whole or in part on any interest payment date

on and after fMarch 1], 20L], from funds derived by the Community Facilities District from
prepayments of the Special Tax, upon mailed notice as hereinafter provided, at the following
redemption prices (computed upon the principal amount of the Bonds or portions thereof called

for redemption) together with accrued interest thereon to the date fixed for redemption, to wit:

ll03l% if redeemed on an interest payment date on or after

fMarch 1],2}Llthrough fMarch 1],20f l;

U02l% if redeemed on an interest payment date on fSeptember 1],

20Ll or [March 1],20[_];

ll0ll% if redeemed on an interest payment date on [September 1],

201) or [March 1],20[_]; and

[100]% if redeemed on fSeptember l], 20L-l or any interest
payment date thereafter.

If less than all the Bonds are to be redeemed as a result of prepayments of the

Special Tax at any one time, the Bonds shall be redeemed pro rata by maturity. If less than all the

Bonds are to be redeemed at the option of the Community Facilities District at any one time, the

Bonds of the latest maturity date or dates shall be redeemed prior to or simultaneously with the

redemption of the Bonds maturing prior thereto, and if less than all the Bonds of any one maturity
date are to be redeemed at any one time, the Trustee shall select the Bonds or the portions thereof
of such maturity date to be redeemed in integral multiples of five thousand dollars ($5,000) in a
manner that it deems appropriate and fair.

Notice of redemption of this Bond or any portion hereof shall be mailed by the

Trustee to the registered owner hereof and to those securities depositolies and securities

information services selected by the Community Facilities District in accordance with the

Indenture, but neither failure to receive any such rnailed notice nor any immaterial defect contained

therein shall affect the sufficiency or validity of such proceedings for redemption. If notice of

414(r-0139-8310.5

A-4

Page 271

10/13/2020 Item No.12.



redemption has been duly given as aforesaid, then this Bond or the portion thereof to be redeemed

shall, on the redernption date designated in such notice, become due and payable at the above-

described redemption price; and fiom and after the date so designated interest on this Bond or the

portion thereof to be redeemed shall cease to accrue and the registered owner of this Bond shall
have no rights in respect hereof except to receive payment of the redemption price of this Bond or
the portion thereof to be redeemed, and upon surender of this Bond if redeemed in part only, the

Community Facilities District shall execute and the Trustee shall authenticate and deliver to the

registered owner hereof at the expense of the Community Facilities District a new Bond or Bonds

equal in aggregate principal amount to the unredeemed portion of this Bond so surrendered.

The Community Facilities District has covenanted that, so long as any Bonds are

Outstanding, it will annually levy against all Taxable Property in the Improvement Area and make

provision for the collection of the Special Tax in amounts which will be sufficient, after making
reasonable allowances for contingencies and errors in the estimates, to yield proceeds equal to the

amounts required for compliance with the agreements, conditions, covenants and terms contained
in the Indenture, and which in any event will be sufficient to pay the interest on and principal of
and Minimum Sinking Fund Account Payments for and redemption premiums, if any, on the

Bonds as they become due and payable and to replenish each Bond Reserve Account established

under the Indenture and to pay all current Expenses as they become due and payable in accordance

with the provisions and terms of the Indenture.

The Bonds are issuable in the form of fully registered bonds. The registered owner
of any Bond or Bonds may suffender the same (together with a written instrument of transfer
satisfactory to the Trustee duly executed by the registered owner or his duly authorized attorney)
in exchange for an equal aggregate principal amount of Bonds of the same series and maturity date

in the manner, sub.ject to the conditions and upon payment of the charges provided in the Indenture.

The registration of this Bond is transferable on the registration books kept by the

Trustee by the registered owner hereof or by his or her duly authorized attorney upon surrender of
this Bond together with a written instrument of transfer satisfactory to the Trustee duly executed

by the registered owner or his duly authorized attorney, and thereupon a new Bond or Bonds of
the same series and maturity date in the same aggregate principal amount will be issued to the

transferee in exchange therefor in the manner, subject to the conditions and terms and upon
payment of the charges provided in the Indenture. The Community Facilities District and the

Trustee shall be entitled to conclusively treat the person in whose name this Bond is registered as

the absolute owner hereof for the purpose of receiving payment of, or on account of, the principal
hereof and redemption premiutn, if any, hereon and for all other purposes.

The rights and obligations of the Comrnunity Facilities District and of the registered

owners of the Bonds rnay be amended at any time in the manner, to the extent and upon the terms

provided in the Indenture, and in certain circumstances without the consent of such registered

owners, but no such amendment sliall (l) extend the maturity of this Bond or reduce the interest
rate hereon or otherwise alter or impair the obligation of the Community Facilities District to pay

the interest hereon or principal hereof or Minimum Sinking Fund Account Payment herefor or
redemption premium, if any, hereon at the time and place and at the rate and in the currency and

fiom the funds provided herein without the express written consent of the registered owner of this
Bond, or (2) permit the issuance by the Community Facilities District of any obligations payable

4146-0t39-8110.5
A-5

Page 272

10/13/2020 Item No.12.



from the proceeds of the Special Tax othel than as provided in the Indenture, or jeopardize Ihe
ability of the Community Facilities District to levy and collect the Special Tax, or (3) reduce the
percentage of Bonds required for the written consent to an amendrnent of the Indenture, or (4)
modify any rights or obligations of the Trustee without its prior written assent thereto; all as more
fully set forth in the Indenture.

The Bonds do not constitute an indebtedness of the Community Facilities District
within the meaning of any constitutional or statutory debt limitation or restriction, and neither the

City Council of the City nor the Community Facilities District nor any officer or employee thereof
or of the City shall be liable for the payment of the interest on or principal of or redemption
premiums, if any, on the Bonds otherwise than from the proceeds of the Special Tax, net of Priority
Administrative Expenses, and such other funds, as provided in the Indenture.

This Bond shall not be entitled to any benefits under the Indenture or become valid
or obligatory for any purpose until the certificate of authentication and registration hereon

endorsed shall have been manually signed by an authorized signatory of the Trustee.

It is hereby certified that all acts, conditions and things required by law to exist, to
have happened and to have been performed precedent to and in the issuance of this Bond do exist,
have happened and have been performed in due time, form and manner as required by law and that
the amount of this Bond, together with all other obligations of the Community Facilities District,
does not exceed any limitprescribed by the laws of the State of California and is not in excess of
the principal amount of the Bonds permitted to be issued under the Indenture.

4r46-0r39-8310.5
A-6

Page 273

10/13/2020 Item No.12.



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the City of Folsom Community Facilities District
No. 23 (Folsom Ranch) t has caused this Bond to be executed in its name and on its behalf by the
manual or facsimile signature of the Mayor of the City and countersigned by the manual or
facsimile signature of the City Clerk of the City, and has caused this Bond to be dated November

| I2020.

CITY OF FOLSOM COMMUNITY FACILITIES
DrsrRrcr No. 23 (FoLSoM RANCH)

By
Mayor of the City of Folsom

Countersigned:

City Clerk of the City of Folsom

414(r-0139-8310.5
A-7

Page 274

10/13/2020 Item No.12.



IFORM OF TRUSTEE'S CERTIFICATE OF AUTHENTICATION
TO APPEAR ON BONDSI

This is one of the Bonds described in the within-mentioned Indenture which has

been authenticated on November I ], 2020.

MUFG TINION BANK, N.A.,
as Trustee

By
Authorized Signatory

IFORM OF ASSTGNMENT TO APPEAR ON BONDS]

For value received the undersigned do(es) hereby sell, assign and transfer unto
the within Bond and do(es) hereby inevocably constitute and appoint

attorney to transfer the same on the bond register of the Trustee, with full power
of substitution in the premises.

Dated:

SIGNATURE GUARANTEED BY

Note: Signatures must be guaranteed by an "eligible guarantor institution" meeting
the requirements of membership or participation in the Security Transfer Agent
Medallion Program ("STAMP") or such other "signature guarantee program" as

rnay be determined in substitution for STAMP, all in accordance with the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934, as amended.

Social Security Number, Taxpayer Identification Number or other identifying
number of Assignee

4146-0139-83r0.5

A-8

Page 275

10/13/2020 Item No.12.



ATTACHMENT 5

Page 276

10/13/2020 Item No.12.



PR ELT M I NARY OFFtCtA L STATEM ENT DATED l_L 2020

NEW ISSUE-BOOK-ENTRY ONLY

OH&S DRAFT
l012l20

NOT RATED

Itr tlrc opittiott of'On'icl;, I-lerrington & &ilcli[fe I-],1', Bond Counsel to the Authority, based upon an anabtsis of existing

compliance witlt certain covenorlt.s, interesl on the Bonds is excluded.fi'om gross income for federal inconte tax purposes under
Sectiott 103 o/ the lnternal Revenue Code of ]986 ancl is exentpt .fi'om State of California personal income laxes. In lhe ./itrtlrcr

tax. Bond Counsel erpresses no opinion regctrding any other tni consequences related to the ovvnership or disposilion of or the

antount, accnnl or receipt of interest ott, the llonds. See "TAX A4ATTERS."

$ 12,925,000'
FOLSOM RANCH FINANCING AUTHORITY

CITY OF FOLSOM COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT NO.23
(FOLSOM RANCH) IMPROVEMENT AREA NO. r

SPECIAL TAX REVENUE BONDS
SERIES 2O2O

Dated: Date of Delivery Due: September I, as shown on inside front cover

-lhc Folsom Rancl.r Financing Authority City of Folsorn Conmunity Facilities Distlict No. 23 (Folsorn Ranch)

Irnprovement AreaNo. I Special Tax Revenue Bonds, Series 2020 (the "Bonds") are being issued by the Folsom Ranch Financing
Authority (the "Autholity") to provide funds to finance the purchase of limited obligation special tax bonds (the "Local
Obligations"), issued by the City of Folsom Comrnunity Facilities Distlict No. 23 (Folsom Ranch) (the "District"). The purchase

price of the Local Obligations will be used to llnance the acquisition and construction of certain public facilities, f'und a debt service

reserve l'und, lund capitalized interest to September 1,2021, and pay certain costs of issuance ofthe Local Obligations and Bonds.

The Bonds are being issued by the Authority pul'suant to a Trust Agreement (the "Trust Agreenient") among the District,
the Authority and MUFG Union Bank, N.A., as tl'ustee (the "Trustee") and will be secured by a pledge of the Trust Estate, as

defined here in. See "SECURITY AND SOURCES OF PAYMENT FOR TIIE BONDS."

The Bonds are special, limited obligations of the Authority. The Bonds are payable solely flom and secured by the Trust
Estate of the Authority pledged under the Trust Agreernent, consisting primarily of payments received by the Authority fi'om the

District under the Local Obligations, which payments aLe secured by a lien of the Special Taxes (defined herein) levied upon
property within Improvement Al'ea No. 1 of the District (the "Improvement Area"), as more fully described herein. Paynrents under

the Local Obligations are calculated to be sufficient to permit the Authority to pay the principal of, and intelest on, the Boncls rvhen

due.

The Local Obligations Indenture (defined herein) lor the Local Obligations establishes a debt service reserve f'und (the

"Local Obligations Reserve Fund") with a debt service reserve account therein for the Local Obligations (the "Local Obligations
Reserve Account"). Amounts available from the Local Obligations Reserve Account are not available to make up a

deficiency for the payment of principal and interest on the Bonds. See "SECURITY AND SOURCES OF PAYMENT FOR

TFIE BONDS-Terms of the Local Obligations-Local Obligations Reserve Account."

The Bonds are being issued only as I'ully registered bonds registered in the name of'Cede & Co., as nominee o1'-lhe
Depository Trust Conrpany. Nerv York, Neiv York ("DTC") and interest thereon is payable on Marcl.r I and September I ol'cach
year. commcltcing March 1,2021, by the Trustee to DTC. DTC will in turn remit principal or redemption plice and interest to the

DTC participants- rvhich will in turn remit such plincipal or redenrption price and intelest to the Benellcial Orvners olthe Ilonds. as

described herein. DTC rvill act as securities depository for the Bonds. Individual purclrases will be made in book-entry only lbrm
in the principal amount of $5.000 or integral nrultiple thereof-. Purchasers of the Bonds will not leceive instruments rcpresenling
tlreir interest in the Bonds purchased. See APPENDIX F-"DTC AND THE BOOK-ENTRY ONLY SYSTEM."

The Bonds are su[.r.ject to optional. extraorclinary and nrandatory redenrption as described herein.* See "TI IE BONDS-
Redemption Plovisions."

NI]ITI.IER'IIIE FAITIJ AND CREDII'NOR THE TAXING POWER OF ]I-IE CII'Y OF FOLSOM (1-IIE "C]II-Y").
TI-IE AUTIIORII-Y. I-I'IE S]"A]'E OF CALIFORNIA OR ANY O'fIIER POLITICAL SUBDIVISION TIIEREOII IS PI-EDCED
l-O TIIE PAYMENT OIIrl.lE UONDS. TIIE AUTI'IORI'fY I-IAS NO TAXING POWER. EXCEPT FOR-fllLl I'RUST
ESTA-fE. NO O]-FIER REVI]NUF]S OR'TAXES AI{E PLI]DGI]D'fO ]-I-IE PAYMENT OF TIIE BONDS. TIIE I]ONDS AI{E
NOT GI]NERAL OBLIGAI'IONS OIT THE NUTFIORIl'Y, "I'IIE DISTRICT OR TIIE CITY. BTJT ARI] I,IMII-ED
OBI.ICAI'IONS OIT TI]E NUTIIOI{II-Y PAYAT]LE SOLELY FROM I-IIE TRUST I1S1'AI'I], DEIIIVED PITIMAI{II-Y ITROM

PAYMIINI'ON l'llE LOCAI- OBLICATIONS IjROM TIIE PAYMENT OF l'l'llr SPECIAI- TAXES LEVIED WlTIllN-ll'lll
IMPI{OVI]MI]NI- AREA AS MORI] ITULL,Y DESCRIBED FIEREIN,

* 
Itrelintinary. sub.ject to changc Page 277

10/13/2020 Item No.12.



The Bonds are not rated by any rating agency. Investment in the Bonds involves a substantial degree of risk that
may not be appropriate for some investors. See "CERTAIN RISKS TO BONDIIOI-DIIRS" fbr a discussion of special risk
factors that should be considered, in addition to the other matters set forth herein. in evaluating the investment quality ofthe Bonds.

This covel page contains information for general ref'erence only and it is not a complete sllmnrary of the Bonds. Investors
should read the entire Oflcial Staternent to obtain information essential to the making of an infbrmed investment decision.

Maturity Schedule, Interest Rates, Prices or Yields and CUSIPS
(See inside front cover)

The Bonds are offered when, as and ifissued, subject to the approval as to their legality by Orrick, Herlington & Sutcliffe
LLP, Bond Counsel to the Authority, and certain other conditions. Certain legal matters will be passed on for the Authority and the

District by the City Attorney. Certain legal matters will be passed upon for the Underwriter by Stradling, Yocca, Carlson & Rauth,

a Professional Corporation. It is anticipated that the Bonds in book-entry form will be available for delivery through the facilities of
The Depositoly Trust Company in New York, New York on or about 2020.

Piper Sandler & Co.

The date of this Official Statement is 2020.

Page 278

10/13/2020 Item No.12.



$12,925,000.
FOLSOM RANCH FINANCING AUTHORITY

CITY OF FOLSOM COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT NO.23
(FOLSOM RANCH) TMPROVEMENT AREA NO. I

SPECIAL TAX RBVENUE BONDS
SBRIES 2O2O

MATURITY SCHEDULE, INTEREST RATES, PRICES OR YIELDS AND CUSPS

Maturity Principal Interest
(Septernber 1) Amount Rate Price

CUSIPNo.t
(344414)

%$

$_ _% Term Bond maturing Septernber 1,20_Price to Yield _% (CUSP No.t 344414J
$_ _% Term Bond maturing September 7,20_Price to Yield _Yo (CUSIP No.t 344414J

Prelim'inary. sub.ject to change.

Page 279

10/13/2020 Item No.12.



No dealer, broker, salesperson or other person has been authorized by the Authority, the Distlict or the

Underwriter to give any infornration or to make any representations other than as contained in this Official
Statement, and if given or rnade, such other information or representations tnust not be relied upon as having beert

authorized by any of the foregoing. This Official Statement does not constitute an offer to sell or the solicitation of
an offer to buy, nor shall there be any sale of the Bonds by any person, in any jLrrisdiction in which it is unlawful for
such person to make such offer, solicitation or sale. This Official Staternent is not to be construed as a contract with
the purchasers of the Bonds. Statements contained in this Official Staternent which involve estimates, fot'ecasts or
matters of opinion, whether or not expressly so described herein, are intended solely as such atrd are not to be

construed as l'epresentations of fact.

The infonnation set forth herein has been obtained fi'om sources which are believed to be reliable, but such

information is neither guaranteed as to accuracy or completeness, nor is it to be construed as a representation of such

by the Authority, the District or the Underwriter. The infonnation and expressions of opinion stated herein are

subject to change without notice; and neither the delivery of this Official Statement nor any sale lnade hereunder

shall, under any circurnstances, create any irnplication that there has been tro change in the affairs of the Authority,
the Distlict or the property owners in the Improvement Area, or in the condition of the property in the Improvement
Area, since the date hereof.

The surnrnaries and references to the Trust Agreement, the Mello-Roos Act, the Local Obligations
Indenture and to other statutes and docurnents referred to herein do not purport to be cornprehensive ol definitive
and are qualified in their entireties by reference to each such statute and doculnent. This Official Statement

including any arnendment or supplement hereto is intended to be deposited with one or more depositories.

The Underwriter has provided the following sentence for inclusion in this Official Statelnent. The

Underwriter has leviewed the infonnation in this Offrcial Staternent in accordance with, and as part of, their
responsibilities to investors under the federal securities laws as applied to the facts and circumstances of this

transaction, but the Underwriter does not guarantee the accuracy or completeness of such infonnation.

IN CONNECTION WITH THIS OFFERING, THE UNDERWRITER MAY OVERALLOT OR EFFECT
TRANSACT]ONS WHICH STABILIZE OR MAINTAIN THE MARKET PRICE OF THE BONDS AT A LEVEL
ABOVE THAT WHICH MIGHT OTHERWISE PREVAIL IN THE OPEN MARKET. SUCH STABILIZING, IF
COMMENCED, MAY BE DISCONTINUED AT ANY TIME. THE UNDERWRITER MAY OFFER AND SELL
THE BONDS TO CERTAIN DEALERS AND OTHERS AT PRICES LOWER THAN THE PUBLIC OFFER]NG
PRICES SET FORTH ON THE INSIDE FRONT COVER PAGE HEREOF AND SUCH PUBLIC OFFERING
PRICES MAY BE CHANGED FROM TIME TO TIME BY THE UNDERWRITER.

THE BONDS HAVE NOT BEEN REGISTERED UNDER THE SECURITIES ACT OF 1933, AS

AMENDED, IN RELIANCE UPON AN EXEMPTION FROM THE REGISTRATION REQUIREMENTS
CONTAINED IN SUCH ACT. THE BONDS HAVE NOT BEEN REGISTERED OR QUALIFIED UNDER THE
SECIJRITIES LAWS OF ANY STATE.

Certain statements included or incorporated by reference in this Official Statement constitute forward-
looking staterxents. Such statements are generally identifiable by the tenninology used such as "plan," "expect,"

"estirnate," "budget" or similar words. The achievement of cerlain results or other expectations contained itr such

folwald-looking staternents involve known and unknown risks, uncertainties and other factors which may cause

actual results, perforrnarlce ol achievernents described to be materially different fi'om any future results,

perforrnance or achievernents expressed or implied by such forward-looking statements.

Page 280

10/13/2020 Item No.12.



flnsert vicinity and state map o[Folsom Plan Area]

Page 281

10/13/2020 Item No.12.



CITY OF FOLSOM
COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT NO. 23

(FOLSOM RANCH)

BOUNDARY MAP

Page 282

10/13/2020 Item No.12.



CITY OF FOLSOM
COMMUNITY FACILITIBS DISTRICT NO. 23

(FOLSOM RANCH)
IMPROVEMENT AREA NO. T

Page 283

10/13/2020 Item No.12.



AUTHORITY GOVERNING BOARD/CITY COUNCIL

Saralr Aquin o, Chair / Mayor
Ernie Sheldon, Vice Chair / Vice Mayor
Kerri Howell, Member / Councilmember

Mike Kozlowski, Member / Councilntember
Andy Morin, Member / Councilmember

AUTHORITY/CITY STAFF

Elaine Andersen, Executive Director / City Manager
Stacey Tamagni, Treasurer / Finance Director

Steven Wang, Esq., General Counsel / City Attorney
Christa Freemantle, Secretary / City Clerk

SPECIAL SBRVICES

BOND AND DISCLOSURE COUNSEL MUNICIPAL ADVISOR

Orick, Henington & Sutcliffe LLP Fieldman, Rolapp & Associates, Inc

TRUSTEB SPECIAL TAX CONSULTANT

MUFG Union Bank, N.A. NBS

APPRAISER MARKET ABSORPTION ANALYST

Integra Realty Resources The Gregory Group

Page 284

10/13/2020 Item No.12.



TABLE OF CONTENTS

Page Page

INTRODUCTION..........
General
Authority for Issuance
Purpose......
Security for the Bonds...............
The Lnprovement Area .............
Property Ownership and

Development Status .....

Property Values........
Market Absorption Study..........
Bondholders Risks
Continuing Disclosure..
Summaries Not Defi nitive.........

FOLSOM PLAN AREA
General Folsom Plan Area Plan

of Finance..
Public Facilities Financing Plan

PLAN OF FINANCE...............,
Facilities to be Financed............

THE BONDS ................
General
Description of the Bonds...........
Redemption Provisions

ESTIMATED SOURCES AND USES
OF FUNDS

DEBT SERVICE SCHEDULE
SECURITY AND SOURCES OF

PAYMENT FOR THE BONDS......
General
Flow of Funds .............
Description of Local

Obligations
Issuance of Local Obligations...
Payment of the Local

Obligations
Local Obligations Flow of

Funds ... .... ..

Special Tax Authorization.........
Covenant for ForeclosLlre..........
No Required Advances fi'om

Available Surplus
Funds.........

Terms of the Local Obligations.
Special Tax Ana1ysis.................
Special Tax CalcLrlation ......,.....
The Teeter Plan ...........

THE AUTHORITY.......
THE CITY.
THE IMPROVEMENT AREA

General Description and
Location

Property Values........
Value-to-Lien Analysis
Estiniated Tax Burden on Sirrgle

Farnily Home
Overlapping Debt...........
Market Absorption Study............

PROPOSED PROPERTY
DEVELOPMENT ..........

Developlnent Entitlernents..........
Property Ownership
Development Plan and Status of

DeveIopment..................
Development Plans of Finance...

CERTAIN RISKS TO
BONDHOLDERS

Risks of Real Estate Secured
lnvestrnents Generally ...

Levy of the Special Tax..............
Collection of Special Tax ...........
Shapiro v. San Diego
Concentration of Ownership.......
Payment of the Special Tax is

Not a Personal
Obligation of a Property
Owner..

Potential Early Redernption of
Bonds frorn Prepaid
Special Taxes

Special Tax Delinquencies.........
Teeter Plan Termination ............
l,and Values .................
Appraisal Risks..........
Zot"tit"tg and Land Use Decisions
Exempt Properties...
Maximum Special Tax...............
Ballot Initiatives and Measures..
Recent Changes to Federal

Incorne Tax Law
Disclosures to Future

Purchasers
Parity Taxes and Special

Assessments..................
Bankruptcy
Geologic, Topograph ic and

Clinratic Conditions ......
COVID-I9 AND IMPACT OF THE

NOVEL CORONAVIRUS...............

.. l5

.. l6

17

17

IB

r8
19

.1
,8
l0
t0
l0
l0
l0
l1

24
24
2l
35

39
40
40
40

..40

..41

..41

..43

..44

..45

..46

..46

..54

14
75

51

61

...1 4

I

I

I

I

2

3

J

5

6

6

6

6

1

6"/

61
61
68
69
70

70

76

Page 285

10/13/2020 Item No.12.



TABLE OF CONTENTS

(continued)

Page

POTENTIAL IMPACT OF GLOBAL
HEALTH CONCERNS ....................

Failure to Develop.
Future Private Indebtedness .......
No Independent Review of

Valuation or Viability
of Completed Projects...

Endangered Species
Hazardous Substances.
Naturally Occurring Asbestos ....

Natr.rrally Occurring Arsenic ......
FDIC/Federal Government

Interests in Properties....

APPENDIX A - RATE, METHOD OF APPORTIONMENT AND MANNER OF COLLECTION OF
SPECIAL TAX

APPENDIX B - ECONOMIC AND DEMOGRAPHIC INFORMATION RELATING TO THE CITY
OF FOLSOM

APPENDIX C - SUMMARY OF PRINCIPAL DOCUMENTS
APPENDIX D - FORMS OF CONTINUING DISCLOSURE UNDERTAKINGS
APPENDIX E - PROPOSED FORM OF OPINION OF BOND COUNSEL
APPENDIX F - DTC AND THE BOOK-ENTRY ONLY SYSTEM
APPENDIX G - APPRAISAL
APPENDIX H - MARKET ABSORPTION STUDY

18

....79

....79

....79

.... 80

....8l

No Acceleration Provision......
Loss of Tax Exemption.

LEGAL MATTERS.
TAX MATTERS............
NO LITIGATION .........
NO RATING................
MUNICIPAL ADVISOR
LINDERWRITING
CONTINUING DISCLOSURE...........

The District
ECIC, KB Horne Sacranrento

and Sigrrature Hornes.
MISCELLANEOUS

86
87

llPage 286

10/13/2020 Item No.12.



$12,925,000.
FOLSOM RANCH FINANCING AUTHORITY

CITY OF FOLSOM COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT NO. 23
(FOLSOM RANCH) IMPROVEMENT AREA NO. I

SPECIAL TAX REVENUB BONDS
SERIES 2O2O

INTRODUCTION

The description and surnrraries of various documents lrereinafter set forth do not purport to be

comprehensive or definitive, and reference is made to each docurnent for the complete details of allterrns
and conditions. All statements herein are qualified in their entirety by reference to each document. All
capitalized terms used in this Official Statement and not otherwise defined herein have the same meaning
as in the Trust Agreement (defined below) or the Local Obligations Indenture (defined below), as

applicable.

General

This Official Statement, including the cover page, the inside cover page and the Appendices
hereto, is provided to furnish ceftain information iu connectiou with the issuance and sale by the Folsorn
Ranch Financing Authority (the "Authority") of $12,925,000* aggregate principal arnount of Folsom
Ranch Financing Authority City of Folsoni Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)
Improvement Area No. I Special Tax Revenue Bonds, Series 2020 (the "Bonds").

Authority for Issuance

The Bonds will be issued pursuant to the provisions of the Trust Agreement (the "Trust
Agreement") among the Authorify, the City of Folsom Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom

Rancli) (the "District"), and MUFG Union Bank, N.A., as trustee (the "Trustee"), as authorized pursuant
to a resolution of the Authority. The Bonds will be issued pursuant to the Marks-Roos Local Bond
Pooling Act of 1985, as arrended, constituting Article 4 of Chapter 5, Division 7, Title I of the

Government Code of the State of California. The Bonds will be issued as fully registered bonds in book-
entry fomr, in denominations of $5,000 each or any integral multiple thereof and will be dated the date of
delivery thereof and bear interest at the rates set forlh on the inside front cover page hereof. See "THE
BONDS-Description of the Bonds."

Purpose

The Bonds are being issued to finance the purchase of the limited obligation special tax bonds
(the "Local Obligations"), issued by the District pursnant to an Indenture (the "Local Obligations
Indenture") between the District and MUFG Union Bank, N.A., as trustee (the "Local Obligations
Trustee"). The purchase price of the Local Obligations will be used to finauce the acquisition and

construction of certain public facilities, fund a debt service reserve fund, fund capitalized interest to
Septenrber 1,2021, and pay certain costs of issuance of the Local Obligations and Bonds. See "PLAN
OF FINANCE" and "THE IMPROVEMENT AREA."

Tlre Local Obligations are authorized pursuant to (i) the provisions of the Mello-Roos
Conrnrunity Facilities Act of 1982, as anrended, constituting Section 53311, eI seq. of the California
Governurent Code (the "Mello-Roos Act"), (ii) a resolLrtion of the City Council of the City of Folsom (the

* 
Prelinrinary, sub.ject to change

Page 287

10/13/2020 Item No.12.



"City") as legislative body of the District adopted on October 13,2020, and (iii) the Local Obligations
Indenture. The Local Obligations are payable from the special taxes authorized to be levied and collected
annually upon taxable real propefty withirr Improvemerrt Area No. 1 of the District (the "lmproveureltt
Area"). See "SECURITY AND SOURCES OF PAYMENT FOR THE BOND$-Qsnsral."

Security for the Bonds

The Bonds are special, limited obligations of the Authority, payable from and secured by the

Trust Estate (as defined herein) received by the Authority consisting prirnarily of payments received from
the District as debt service payments on the Local Obligations.

The Local Obligations will be issued with an annual scheduled debt service schedule that results
in at least 1 000% annual debt service coverage from Special Tax revenues expected to be generated in

Villages 4,7,8 and l0 net of Priority Administrative Expenses (each as defined below). Although the

scheduled payments under the Local Obligations are sufficient, in the aggregate, to provide the Authority
with moneys to pay the principal of, premium, if any, and interest on the Bonds when due (see

"SECURITY AND SOURCES OF PAYMENT FOR THE BONDS"), investment in the Bonds involves a

substantial degree of risk that rnay not be appropriate for sorne investors. See "CERTAIN RISKS TO
BONDHOLDERS" below.

The Local Obligations are secured by a pledge of special taxes received by the District (the

"special Tax" or the "special Taxes," as the context requires) (including any prepaylnent thereof and

proceeds from foreclosure sales pursuant to the Local Obligations Indenture), net of Priority
Administrative Expenses, and the Local Obligations Reserve Account established under the Local
Obligations Indenture. See "SECURITY AND SOURCES OF PAYMENT FOR THE BONDS." The
Special Taxes are included on the regular property tax bill sent to the record owners of taxable properties

within the Improvernent Area. The District has covenanted in tlie Local Obligations Indenture to
corunence judicial foreclosure proceedings against property with delinquent Special Taxes and to
diligently pursue such proceedings to completion; provided, however, that the District is not obligated
under the Local Obligations Indenture to comr.nence such judicial foreclosure proceedings on any

delinquent installment of the Special Tax for any Fiscal Year in which the District has received one

hundred percent (100%) of the amount of such installnient from the County of Sacramento (the "Cour.tty")
pursuant to the Teeter Plan (described below). See "SECURITY AND SOURCES OF PAYMENT FOR

THE BONDS-Payrnent of the Local Obligations," "-Special Tax Authorizatiot't," ((-Cevsl1nn{ 
fst"

Foreclosure" and 
('-The 

Teeter Plan."

The Special Taxes secure only the Local Obligations. For this reason, a delinquency or default in

the payment of SpecialTaxes could cause a default in the payments of principaland interest on the Bonds
if rnoneys in the Local Obligations Reserve Account are insufficient to make up the deficit in debt service
for tlie Local Obligations caused by suclr deliriqLrency or nonpayment.

NEITHER THE FULL FAITH AND CREDIT NOR THE TAXING POWER OF THE CITY,
THE DISTRICT, THE AUTHORITY, THE STATE OF CALIFORNIA (THE "STATE") OR ANY
OTHER POLITICAL SUBDIVISION THEREOF IS PLEDGED TO THE PAYMENT OF THE
BONDS. THE AUTHORITY FIAS NO TAXING POWER. EXCEPT FOR THE TRUST ESTATE, NO
OTHER REVENUES OR TAXES ARE PLEDGED TO THE PAYMENT OF THE BONDS. THE
BONDS ARE NOT GENERAL OBLIGATIONS OF THE AUTHORITY, THE DISTRICT OR THE
CITY, BUT ARE LIMITED OBLIGATIONS OF THE AUTHORITY PAYABLE SOLELY FROM TIIE
TRUST ESTATE, DERIVED PRIMAR]LY FROM DEBT SERVICE PAYMENTS ON THE LOCAL
OBLIGATIONS FROM THE PAYMENT OF THE SPECIAL TAXES LEVIED WITH]N THE
IMPROVEMENT AREA AS MORE FULLY DESCRIBED HEREIN.

2
Page 288

10/13/2020 Item No.12.



The Improvement Area

Generul. The hnprovement Area is located in the southern portion of the City, east of East

Bidwell Street, west of Placerville Road, nofth of Mangini Parkway and south of U.S. Highway 50 and

consists of over 205 total gross acres, of which approximately 109 acres are expected to be sLrbject to the

Special Tax. Presently, the Improvernent Area includes properties in varying stages of early

developrnent, inclr"rding parlially improved lots, unimproved lots and uninrproved land, and a 10.6J-acre

parcel is in the process of seeking a rezoning to allow for the developmenL of 265 mLrlti-family high

density units, which are expected to be constructed as apartments.

Formntiort Proceetlittgs. The District was fonned by the City pursuant to the Mello-Roos Act.
The Mello-Roos Act was enacted by the California legislature to provide an alternative method of
financing certain pLrblic capital facilities and services, especially in developing areas of the State. Any
local agency (as defined in the Mello-Roos Act) rnay establish a community facilities district to provide

for and finance the cost of eligible public facilities, development-related fees, and services. Subject to

approval by two-thirds of the votes cast at an election and compliance with the other provisions of the

Mello-Roos Act, a legislative body of a local agency may issue bonds for a comr.r-runity facilities district
and rnay levy and collect a special tax within such district to repay such indebtedness.

Pursuant to the Mello-Roos Act, the City Council undertook proceedings to fornr the District,
designating six separate improvement areas therein, including the Improvetnent Area, and called an

election to authorize the incurring of bonded indebtedness and authorize the levy of special taxes within
the District. On May 26,2020, elections were held witliin the District for each improvement area therein

at which the eligible voters in each improvement area approved the levy of special taxes in accordarrce

with the respective Rate and Method of Apportionment of Special Tax for such improvetlent area. In
addition, the eligible voters in the Improvernent Area authorized the issuance of bonds in an amount trot

to exceed $76,000,000 for the Improvemerrt Area. The Rate and Method of Apportionment for
Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch) Improvement Area No. I (the "Rate and Method of
Apportionrnent") is included as APPENDIX A hereto and summarized herein under'SECURITY AND
SOURCES OF PAYMENT FOR THE BONDS - Special Tax Analysis."

Property Ownership and Development Status

The development planned within the Improvement Area is comprised of eiglrt sequentially

numbered "Villages" and three additional lots referred to as "Village 10," "Lot C" attd "Lot D."
Development within the Improvement Area is planned to ultimately include 441 single-family high

density units,222 multi-farnily low density units and 265 rnLrlti-family high density units (pending the

successful completion of the plan amendment for and rezoning of Lot C, as discussed trore below), for an

aggregate total of 928 residential units. Both the single-family lrigh density units attd the multi-family
low derrsity units, representing 663 total residences, are expected to be developed as detaclred single-
fanrily hornes. The265 multi-farnily high density units are expected to be constructed as apartntents. See

"PROPOSED PROPERTY DEVELOPMENT-Development Entitlements-Tentative and Final
Mapping" for a discLrssion of these zoning entitlements within the lmprovetletrt Area. At full
developnrent, the Improver.nent Area is also planned to include an elerretrtary scltool, a police substation,
a fire station, parks and trails.

Property within the Improvement Area is in the early stages of developnrent aud is anticipated to

be initially completed in three main phases (referred to lrerein as "PItase 2A," "Phase 2B" zrnd "Pltase
2C"). Phase2AofdevelopnrentwithintheImproveurentAreaincludesVillages4,J,8andl0andLots
C and D and is entitled for a total of 560 units at the tirne of full build-out, cornprised of 73 single-fanrily
high density ut'rits,222 multi-family low density units and 265 mLrlti-family high density units (perrding

-)Page 289

10/13/2020 Item No.12.



the successful completiou of the plan arnendrlent for and rezoning of Lot C, as discussed more below).
PIrase 2B of developrnent includes Villages I and 2 and is entitled for a total of 162 single-family high
density units at the time of firll build-out. Phase 2C of developrrent includes Villages 3, 5 and 6 and is
errtitled for a total of 206 single-farnily high density urrits at the time of full build-out. "PROPOSED
PROPERTY DEVELOPMENT-Development Entitlements-Tentative and FinalMapping."

As of October 7,2020, the majority of the property within the Improvement Areawas owned by
East Carpenterlmprovement Company,LLC ("ECIC") (Villages 3,5,6 and 10 and Lots C and D) and

Folsom RealEstate South, LLC ("Folsom Real Estate South") (Villages l and2). Both ECIC and Folsonl
Real Estate South are managed by the same three individuals, and ECIC has been engaged by Folsorn
Real Estate South to perform the initial development of Folsonr Real Estate South's properties in Villages
I and 2. See "PROPOSED PROPERTY DEVELOPMENT-Propefiy Ownership." ECIC and Folsom
Real Estate South liave been marketing certain portions of their propefties in the Improvernent Area to
merchant builders for furlher development, and ECIC has already sold and is in the process of selling
portions of its property.

ECIC sold portions of its property in the Improvemeut Area to KB Home Sacramento, Inc. ("KB
Home Sacramento") and FR 68 Lots LLC ("FR 68 Lots"). KB Home Sacramento owns 109 lots within
the Improvement Area, which represents Villages 4 and 8 of the Improvement Area. FR 68 Lots owus 68
lots, which represents Village 7 of the Improvement Area. FR 6B Lots is managed by SignatLlre Homes,
Inc., a California corporation, and is owned by three separate members, eaclr of which is affiliated with a
mernber of the executive team of Signature Homes, Inc. Due to their affiliation, FR 68 Lots and

Signature Homes, Inc. are each referred to hereirr as "Signature Hornes." ECIC's sale of the propefties in
Villages 4 and 8 to KB Home Sacramento and its sale of the properties in Village 7 to Signature Homes
closed in Septernber 2019 and Februaty 2020, respectively, although KB Home Sacramento and

Signature Homes each have a post-closing obligatiori to fund ceftain remaining development costs.

ECIC is currently in the process of selling cefiain of its properties in the Improvement Area to
merchant builders. ECIC has entered into a purchase and sale agreement with Lennar Homes of
California, Inc. ("Lennar") for the sale of l1B lots, which represents Village 10. ECIC's sale of the
properlies in Village 10 to Lennarwill close upon ECIC's delivery of the lots in finished condition, the
final map being ready for City Council approval and Lennar executing a subdivision improvement
agreement and posting bonds, all of which is expected to occur prior to or during Decernber 2020.
Additionally, ECIC has assumed a purchase and sale agreerrent with A.G. Spanos Company ("Spanos")
fortlre sale and delivery of a finished building pad and utilities for Lots C and D, the 10.67-acre rnulti-
family site that is anticipated to inclLrde, at the tirne of full build-otrt, 265 apartments (pending the
successful completion of the plan amendrnerrt for and rezoning of Lot C).

ECIC has rnade significant progress in its initial grading and improvement of the properties
located within Phase 2A and currently anticipates cornpleting this initial development by the end of 2020.
Specifically, the initial grading and improvenrent of Village 7 is substantially complete, including paved

streets, and Village 7 is currently available for model home pennits to be issued. Villages 4 and 8 and 10

are under construction and scheduled to be paved in mid-October and November 2020, respectively. Lots
C and D will be delivered as a finished bLrilding pad with all street frontages cornpleted and Lrtilities
stubbed to the site. Lots C and D have been graded and the renraining frontage improvenrents will be

completed in conjunction with the improverrents for Villages 4 and 8 described above.

ECIC and Folsom Real Estate South expect to sell their remaining taxable properties in the

lmprovement Area, representing Phases 2B and2C,ro r.nerchant bLrilders. The occurreuce aud tirning of
these sales and the condition iu which these properties will be delivered has not yet been determined and

4Page 290

10/13/2020 Item No.12.



is sr"rbject to change. Phase 28 is planned for development in 2021 and development for Phase 2C is
expected to begin in2022. See "PROPOSED PROPERTY DEVELOPMENT."

To date, final maps have been approved and recorded for Villages 4,7 and 8, and tentative n-laps

have been approved for Villages 1,2,3,5,6 and 10. Final rnap approval for Village l0 is expected irr

Novenrber 2020, for Villages I and 2 in Septernber 2021 and for Villages 3, 5 and 6 ir"t luly 2022. A
Specific Plan Amendrlent, Planned Development and Design Review Permit has been submitted in
connection witlr the proposed rezoning of Lot C to allow for the development of the 265 nrulti-faniily
high density units on Lots C and D. The final environmental review and conditions of approval for this
proposed change to Lot C are near completion, and it is expected that public hearings will be held for this
project later in 2020. ECIC is not aware of any requirements for a final map to be approved for the 265

multi-farnily high density units on Lots C and D and is not aware of any plans by Spanos to propose a

final map for these properties.

The following table summarizes the current landowners, the anticipated merchant builders, if
known, tlre phase for development (2A, 2B or 2C), the status of the final maps and the nurnber of units

expected at full build-out.

Property Current 0wner Builder
Development

Phase Map Status
Total
Units

Village I

Village 2

Village 3

Village 4

Village 5

Village 6

Village 7

Village 8

Village l0

Lots C and D

Folsom Real Estate
South

Folsom Real Estate
South

EC]C

KB Flome Sacramento

ECIC

ECIC

FR 68 Lots

KB Flome Sacramento

ECIC(I)

ECIC(2)

to be determined

to be determined

to be determined

KB l-lome Sacramento

to be determined

to be detemrined

Signature IJomes

KB IIorne Sacramento

Lennar

Spanos

28

2B

2C

2A

2C

2C

2A

2A

2A

2A

tentative small lot 88

tentative small lot

tentative srnall lot

final small lot

tentative small lot

tentative small lot

final srnall lot

final small lot

tentative small lot

no final map required

74

53

IJ

83

70

68

36

I t8

265Q)

(1 Lennarhas contracted to pr.rrchase the Village 10 properties, howeverthe closing of the sale of these properties to

Lennar lemains sLrb.ject to certain conditions. See "PROPOSED PROPERTY DEVELOPMENT-Property
Ownership-Lennar Purchase and Sale Agteetttent."
(2) Spanos has contracted to pulchase the Lot C and Lot D properties, however the closing of the sale of these

properties to Spanos is conditioned upon the successful completion of the plan atnendment for and rezoning of Lot
C. See "PROPOSED PROPERTY DEVELOPMENT-Development Entitlements-Tentative and Final Mapping."

Property Values

An appraisal of the property within the Inrprovernent Area dated Septerlber 23,2020 (the

"Appraisal") was prepared by lntegra Realty Resources, Sacramento, California (the "Appraiser"). Tlre
purpose of the appraisal was to estimate the aggregate value of the fee simple interest, sLrbject to the

special tax and based upon a hypothetical condition, for all of the taxable propefty within the

Improvement Area. SLrbject to the assurlptions, hypothetical condition and Iimiting conditiotts contained
in the Appraisal, the Appraiser estinrated that the taxable property within the Improvenrent Area had an

5
Page 291

10/13/2020 Item No.12.



estirrated aggregate value of $69,121,745 as of August 14,2020. See "THE IMPROVEMENT AREA-
Property Values."

Market Absorption Study

A nrarket absorption study with respect to the development of tlre property within tlre
Improvement Area dated August2020 (the "Market Absorption Study") was prepared by The Gregory
Group, of Folsom, California (the "Absorption Analyst"). The Market Absorption Study estimated the

probable absorption schedules for the residential units proposed to be developed in the Improvement
Area. See "THE IMPROVEMENT AREA-Market Absorption Study."

Bontlholders Risks

Investnrent in the Bonds involves a substantial degree of risk that may not be appropriate for
solne investors. For a discussion of cefiain considerations relevant to an investment in the Bonds, in
addition to the other matters set forth herein, see "CERTAIN RISKS TO BONDHOLDERS." Investors
shor"rld read the entire Official Statement to obtain information essential to the rnaking of an informed
investment decision.

Continuing Disclosure

Tlre District will agree to provide ceftain annual financial information and operating data by not
later than April I in each year, cornmencing April 1,2021 (the "Annual Repoft"), and to provide notices
of the occurrence of cefiain enumerated events. The Annual Report and notices will be filed with the

Municipal Securities Rulernaking Board's Electronic Municipal Market Access database ("EMMA").
The specific nature of the information to be contained in tlie Annual Report or the notices of enurnerated

events is set forth in APPENDIX D-"FORMS OF CONTINUING DISCLOSURE UNDERTAKINGS."
These covenants have been made in order to assist the Underwriter in complying with S.E.C. Rule l5c2-
12.

ECIC, KB Home Sacramento and Signature Homes will each covenaut for tlre benefit of the

Bondholders to provide ceftain infonnation relating to it, its development plan and its financing plan no

later tlran March 3l and September 30 in each year, cornmencing March 31,202l (collectively, the

"Disclosure Repofts"), and to provide notices of the occurrence of certain enumerated eveuts. The
Disclosure Reports and notices will be filed with EMMA. The specific nature of the infonnation to be

contained in the Disclosure Reports or the notices of enumerated events is set forth in APPENDIX D-
"FORMS OF CONTINUING DISCLOSURE UNDERTAKINGS." The obligations of ECIC will
terminate upon the occurrence of ceftain events set forth in ECIC's Continuing Disclosure Ceftificate,
inclLrding when the property within the Improvement Area owned by ECIC is developed to the planned
development stage or until the obligation to provide such information and notices is otherwise terminated
in accordance with the provisions of its Continuing Disclosure Certificate. The obligations of KB Horne
Sacrat.nerrto and Signature Hornes will each tenninate upon the occurrence of certain events as set forth in

the applicable Continuing Disclosure Certificate for KB Home Sacratreuto and Signature Homes,
including when the property owned by KB Home Sacramento and Signature Hotles within the

Inrprovernent Area, respectively, is no longer obligated to pay 20Yo or more of the Special Taxes within
the Improvenrent Area.

Summaries Not Defi nitive

Brief descriptions of the Bonds; the Local Obligations; the security for the Borrds, the City, the

lrnproverlent Area and the status of development within the Improvernerrt Area are included in this

6Page 292

10/13/2020 Item No.12.



Official Statement together with summaries of ceftain provisions of the Bonds, the Trust Agreement and

the Local Obligations Indenture. Such descriptions do not purport to be comprehensive or definitive. All
references herein to the Trust Agreement and the Local Obligations Indenture are qualified in their
entirety by reference to such docurlents, copies of which are available for inspection at the office of
Trustee.

FOLSOM PLAN ARBA

General Folsom Plan Area Plan of Finance

In 2001, the City commenced plans to expand its sphere of influence area to include an area south

of US Route 50. The area, knowu as tlre Folsom Plan Area is bordered to the west by Prairie City Road,

the east by the Sacramento/El Dorado County boundary line, the north by US Route 50, and the south by

White Rock Road. In November 2004, the citizens of the City adopted Measure W ("Measure W"),
which specified ceftain requirements for annexing the Folsom Plan Area into the City. In June 201 1, the

City adopted its Folsom Plan Area Specific Plan (the "Specific Plan"). The Local Agency Forrnation

Comnrission approved the City's plan to anllex tlie Folsorn Plan Area on Januaty 18,2012.

As described below, the Folsom Plan Area is an area of approximately 3,500 acres in the southern

portion of the City that has been approved for development of approximately 11,461units of residential

development, plus 2J4.5 acres of comrnercial/industrial development (including mixed use development).

Over the build out of the property, the City anticipates using community facilities districts under the

Mello-Roos Act to finance a large portion of the public iufrastructure required for the development, plus

certain maintenance obligations of public improvements and facilities.

The City has previously issued a series of bonds for its Comrnunity Facilities District No. l7
(Willow Hill Pipeline) ("CFD 17") to finance ceftain public capital improvements for the benefit of the

Folsom Plan Area in the principal amount of $6,675,000, of which $6,015,000 are currently outstanding.

The Cify does not expect to issue any additional bonds for CFD 17. The City has also formed its

Community Facilities District No. 18 (Folsorn Plan Area - Area-Wide Improvements and Services)
("CFD 18") to finance certain water and sewer improvemerrts and a regional aquatic cetlter along with
maintenance and certain services. CFD 18 encompasses all of the propefiy within the Folsom Plan Area,

which is the CFD l7 property plus approximately 190 acres bordering El Dorado County in the eastern

portion of the City south of US Route 50. The City lias authorized the issuance of up to $200,000,000 in

bonds for CFD 18. The timing of issuance of bonds for CFD I 8 is dependent upon market conditions and

development witliin tlie Folsom Plan Area. The boundaries of CFD l7 and CFD 1B encompass nearly all
of the property in the Folsom PIan Area, including the properly irr tlie Improvement Area. The

Irnprovement Area represents approximately 6.1% by acres of CFD 17 and approximately 5.9% by acres

of CFD 18. The allocable porlion of bonds previously issued for CFD lJ and any bonds to be issued for
CFD 1B constitute overlapping debt. See "THE IMPROVEMENT AREA-Overlapping Debt."

The City does not expect to fonn any additional comrnunity facilities district coternrinous with
CFD l7 or CFD I B. However, the City has received a reqLlest fi'orn various developers within the Folsom

Plan Area to create an additional cornr.nunity facilities district with boundaries covering all the

undeveloped propefty tlrerein ("CFD 24")to supplementthe CFD lB facilities specialtax, which is levied

on a parcel once it.has been issued a building permit or Lrpon issuance of a final srnall lot subdivision map

(when CFD lB bond are outstanding). The request for CFD 24 is still prelirninary but currently proposes

irnposing a separate special tax ou each undeveloped property in the Folsonr Plan Area to help finance tlte

reqLrired Phase 2 water pipeline. Under the current proposal, the CFD 24 special tax would be levied on

each of the undeveloped properlies in the Folsom Plan Area until a building perntit was issued, at which
tinre that property would no longer be subject to the CFD 24 special tax but would be subject to the CFD

1Page 293

10/13/2020 Item No.12.



1B special tax. As proposed, a CFD 24 bond sale would plovide gap financing for any Phase 2 water

facilities not funded through CFD 1B bond proceeds. The City has notyet determined whether CFD24
will be formed or, if fornred, to what extent it will confonn to the current request from the developers. See

"PROPOSED PROPERTY DEVELOPMENT-Developnrent E,ntitlements-Water Supply

Infraslructm'e."

Public Facilities Financing Plan

Measure W, adopted by City of Folsorn residents in November 2004, required, among other

things, tliat residents nofth of US Route 50 not bearthe cost for infrastructure and public facilities serving
the Folsorl Plan Area. The City adopted a Public Facilities Financing Plan ("PFFP") for the Folsom Plan

Area on January 14,2014. The PFFP provides an overview of how the infi'astructure required for the

development of the Folsom Plan Area will be financed and constructed and how various pLrblic facilities
will be financed and maintained to ensure that public facilities and infrastructure will be available for the

orderly development of the Folsom Plan Area without cost to tlie residents of the City north of US Route

50 and without an adverse irnpact on the service levels provided to future residents of the Folsonr Plan

Area.

The PFFP contemplates that the primary sources of funding for the construction of the public
infrastructure and facilities in the Folsom Plan Area are comrlunity facilities districts, development

impact fees collected upon perrnit issuance (including development impact fees of the Folsom Cordova

Unified School District), direct developer financing, and matching state school grants and other school
funding (including the school facilities improvement district described under "THE COMMUNITY
FACILITIES DISTRICT-Overlapping Debt"). Subdivision improvements are not included as part of
the PFFP.

On Septernber 8, 2015, the City approved Resolution No. 9641, in which the City Council
adopted a Nexus Study to collect certain impact fees for the Specific Plan to be collected in accordance

with City Ordinance No. 1234. In addition, on the same date, the City approved Resolution No. 9642, in
which the City Council adopted a Nexus Study for the Specific Plan Infrastructure Fees (the "SPIF") to be

collected for the Specific Plan and in accordance with Ordinance No. 1235 and Chapter 3.130 of tlre
Folsom MunicipalCode. Most recently, on January 9,2018, tlie City of Folsom approved Resolution No.
10040, amending Resolution No. 9641, to adjust the initial Folsom Plan Area Development Impact Fees.

On the sanre date, the City approved Resolution No. 10059, adopting the Nexus Study Fiscal Y ear 20ll -

1 8 Update for the SPIF, and setting tlre updated infrastructure fees. On July 28, 2020, the City approved

Resolution No. 10491, in which the City adopted the Nexus Study Fiscal Year 2020-21 Update for the

Folsom Plan Area SPIF. On this date, the City also introduced and had the first reading for City
Ordinance No. 1307, in wliich the City amended sections 3.130.010(JJ) and 3.130.030(E)(l)(c) of the

Folsom Murricipal Code pertaining to the SPIF Set-Aside Component of the SPIF. The SPIF Set-Aside
was arnended to include a new SPIF Off-Site Water Set-Aside Component to repay the City for water

treatment plant costs the City lrad previously incurred. On Ar-lgust 25,2020, the City conducted the

second reading and approved Ordinance No. 1307.

Phasing of Det,elopntent. For plrrposes of setting the PFFP costs, the City projected single fanrily
units would be sold and occupied within 13 years, rnulti-family low density units within 15 years, and

rnLrlti-fanrily medium and lrigh density units within 18 years.

Backbone Infrastructure. The PFFP provides for the financing or collection of impact fees for
and the construction of the backbone infrastructure required before constructiotr in the Folsom Plan Area
can proceed. Specifically, the PFFP recognizes the need for roadway improvements, ou-site water systelr
irnproverneuts, off-site water system irrrprovernents, recycled water system improvemetrts, saltitary sewer

8Page 294

10/13/2020 Item No.12.



system intprovements, storur drainage systenr improvements, lrabitat mitigation, and coustruction of two
fi'eeway interchanges and improvements to an existing freeway intercltange.

Public Facilities - the Folsont Plan Area. Tl^te PFFP describes plans for the financing of public
schools, parks, transit services, trails, police and fire facilities and equipnient, municipal service center, a

corporation yard, solid waste facilities, a libraly, general capital improvements, transpoltation, and a

community and aquatic center. The PFFP anticipates tlrat the land for the pLrblic facilities will be

dedicated to the City without cost to the City.

The Folsoni Plan Area is currerrtly being served bythe existing fire resources of the City as well
as other Sacramento County, El Dorado County and Placer County fire agencies through mutual aid

agreements with the City. The City is currently undertaking general planning for the type and staffing
needs of the first fire station. As noted in the PFFP, the City's goal is to maintain a level of service that
represents a rate of 1 station per 12,000 population, which the City expects to resolve by commencing
construction on the first fire station servicing the Folsom Plan Area when there are approximately 1,400

residential units occr.rpied within the Folsorn Plan Area.

The estirnated total cost of the backbone infrastructure and public facilities for the Folsorn Plan

Area at build-out is $876,669,484 (in 2017 dollars), of which the City anticipates that a porlion will be

financed thror.rgh the Folsom Plan Area SPIF and the issuance of bonds for CFD I B, the Improvement
Area or other community facilities districts and improver.nent areas. This estinlate is subject to a variety
of construction and market risks. The City and the District can provide no assurances that the overall
costs will not increase, even significantly, in the future. The following table shows tlre breakdown of
overall estimated costs for each category of improvemeut within the Folsom Plan Area as a whole.

Table I
City of Folsom

Folsom Plan Area Public Facilities Financing Plan
Estimated Budget (2017$)

Infrastructure Estimated Cost Public Improvements Estimated Cost

Public Schools(rx2)
Parks
Transit Services
Housing Trust(2)
Trails
Fire Facilities and Equipment
Police Facilities and Equiprrent
Municipal Service Center
Corporation Yard
Solid Waste
Branch Library
Comrnunity and Aquatic Center(3)
General Capital
Transportationt2)

Total;

Roadways
Dry Utility
On-Site Water
Off-Site Potable Water
Recycled Water
Wastewater (Sewer)
Stonn Drainage
Habitat Mitigation

Total:

$270,335,001
32,416,718
54,966,951
41,655,691
10,931,440
21,434,147
6s,461,614

$ 134,250,000
74,116,000
17,129,000
39,680,000
14,420,000
12,736,582
5,943,000
5,434,000
8,020,000
5,542,000
2,833,000

37,860,000
13,800,000

760,000

6,91 8.281

$504,245,902

s372,423,582

Source: Folsonr Specific Plan Infrastructure Fee Nexus Study Fiscal Year' 2017 -201tl tJpdate ("Nexus Stud1, Update''):
City of Folsonr: E,PS.

al€ expected to include active-adult units.(2) Based on estimated f'ee revenue genelated I'r'onr existing fbe proglams.
(r) Contntunity and Aquatic Center rvas not inchrded in the Nexus Study Update. Ilstinrated cost bascd on oliginal PI]FP costs in 2013

dollars ino'caseclby 3.02%. similar to the cost increases lbr tlre Folsom Plan Area Spccilic Plan Stand Alone Fee f-acilities inclLrded

in the Nexus Study Update.

9Page 295

10/13/2020 Item No.12.



Development within the Folsorn Plan Area, including within the Improvement Area, is dependent

upon completion of ceftain of the above described infi'astructure. For r.nore information on status of
construction of improvements and development necessary for development to occur within the
Improvement Area, see "PROPOSED PROPERTY DEVELOPMENT." See also "THE
IMPROVEMENT AREA-Overlapping Debt."

PLAN OF FINANCE

Facilities to be Financed

The Bonds are issued for the purpose of providing funds to purchase the Local Obligations. The
Local Obligations are being issued to finance the acquisition and construction of ceftain public capital
improvements more particularly described in tlre Resolution of Formation adopted by the City Council of
the City on May 26,2020. The City entered into an acquisition and shortfall agreement (the "Acquisition
Agreement") with ECIC on June 25, 2020, wherein the City agrees to use a portion of the proceeds of the
Local Obligations to finance the acquisition from ECIC of those facilities set forth in the Acquisition
Agreement. Such facilities consist of certain transpofiation improvemeuts, water system improvements,
recycled water systeln improvements, drainage system inrprovernents, wastewater system improvements,
park, parkway and open space improvements, Specific Plan Infrastructure Fee program improvements and
ceftain Specific Plan Infrastructure Fee obligations (collectively, the "Facilities"). Construction of the

Facilities is required for development within the hnprovernent Area and the District to be completed.

Proceeds from the Local Obligations are expected to finance some, but not all, of the Facilities
eligible to be financed within the District, and the District expects to issue one or more series of bonds to
finance the acquisition of additional facilities in the future. See "PROPOSED PROPERTY
DEVELOPMENT - Development Plans of Finance."

THB BONDS

General

The Bonds are secured by a pledge of anrounts paid with respect to the Local Obligations. The
Local Obligations are secured by a pledge of Special Taxes (net of Priority Adrninistrative Expenses)
levied against taxable property within the Improvernent Area. See "DEBT SERVICE SCHEDULE" and
"SECURITY AND SOURCES OF PAYMENT FOR THE BONDS." The Local Obligations are secured
by a pledge of Special Taxes (riet of Priority Administrative Expenses) on parity with any Additional
Local Obligations (defined below).

The Local Obligations Indenture establishes a Local Obligation Reserve Fund and a Local
Obligations Reserve Account therein with respect to the Local Ob.ligations. Amounts available from the

Local Obligations Reserve Accor-rnt are available to pay debt service on the Local Obligations. There is
no reserve fund with respect to the Bonds. Arnounts available fi'onr the Local Obligations Reserve

Account are not available to cure a deficiency generally in the Tnrst Estate to make debt service payments
on the Bonds.

Description of the Bonds

General. The Bonds will be dated their date of delivery arrd rrratule on Septenrber 1, as set forlh
on the inside fror.rt cover page lrereof (each, a "Principal Paynrent Date"). Interest is payable
senrianrrually on March I and September I of each year, commencing March 1,2021 (each, an "lnterest
Payment Date").

l0Page 296

10/13/2020 Item No.12.



The Bonds will be issued as fully registered borrds, without coupons, in denominations of $5,000,
or any integral rlultiple thereof. The Bonds will be issued in book-entry only form and will be registered
in the narre of Cede & Co., as norninee of The Depository Trust Company, New York, New York
("DTC"). DTC will act as securities depository for the Borids. So long as the Bonds are in book-entry
only form, principal of and redemption prernium, if any, on the Bonds will be payable to DTC or its
norniuee, who will in turn remit such payments to DTC Participants for subsequent disbursement to the

Beneficial Owners. See APPENDIX F-"DTC AND THE BOOK-ENTRY ONLY SYSTEM."

Principal of, and redemption premium, if any, on the Bonds is payable at the corporate trust office
of the Trustee. Interest on the Bonds will be paid only to the registered owners as showu on the Trustee's
books as of the fifteenth day of the calendar rnonth next preceding each lnterest Payment Date, except
that in the case of an owner"of $1,000,000 or lnore in aggregate principal atnount of Bonds outstanding,
payment will be rnade at the owner's option by wire transfer of irnrnediately available funds to art account
in a bank or trust col.npany or savings bank that is a member of the Federal Reserve System and that is

located in the continental United States of America according to instructions provided by such owner to
the Trustee and received no later than the Record Date for such lnterest Payrnent Date.

The Bonds are special, lirnited obligations of the Authority. The Bonds are payable solely from
and secured by the TrLrst Estate of the Autliority pledged under the Trust Agreement, consisting primarily
of payments received by the Authority from the District under the Local Obligations, which payments are

secured by a lien of the Special Taxes (defined herein) (net of Priority Administrative Expenses) levied
upon property within the hnprovenrent Area, as more fully described herein. See "SECURITY AND
SOURCES OF PAYMENT FOR THE BONDS."

Payments under the Local Obligations are calculated to be sufficient to permit the Authority to
pay the principal of, and interest on, tlre Bonds when due. Pursuant to tlie Local Obligations Indenture, a

Local Obligations Reserve Account is established for the Local Obligations. Amounts available from the

Local Obligations Reserve Account are not available to cure a deficiency in the Trust Estate available to
pay debt service of the Bonds. See "SECURITY AND SOURCES OF PAYMENT FOR THE BONDS-
Terms of the Local Obligations-Local Obligations Reserve Accoltttt."

No Additionql Bonds under the Trust Agreentent. The Trust Agreement does not perrnit the

Authority to issue any additional bonds on parity with the Bonds. However, subject to ceftain conditions
contained in the Local Obligations Indenture, the District may at any time issue bonds (tlre "Additional
Local Obligations") payable from the net proceeds of the Special Tax (after payment of Priority
Administrative Expenses) on parity with tlre Local Obligations. See "SECURITY AND SOURCES OF
PAYMENT FOR THE BONDS - Terrrs of the Local Obligations - Additional Local Obligations;'

Redemption Provisions.

Optional Redentptiott The Bonds are subject to optional redemption by the Authority prior to
their respective maturity dates as a whole or in pafi on any date on or after September 7,20_, from any
source of available funds other than Minimum Sinking Fund Payments and Special Tax Prepayrreltts, at

the following redenrption prices (computed upon the principal amouut of the Bonds or portions thereof
called for redenrption) together with accrued interest tlrereon to the date fixed for redemption:

103% if redeemed on any date on or after September 1,20- through
ArrgLrst 31,20-;

* 
Itleliminarl,. sub.iect to changc.

il
Page 297

10/13/2020 Item No.12.



102% if redeemed on any date fronr Septerrrber 1,20- through Augttst
31,20_;

101% if redeenred on any date frorn Septeniber 1,2}_througlr Augttst
31, 20_; and

100% if redeemed on Septernber 1,20-and any date thereafter.

Extraordinary Redemption front Prepayntent of Special Taxes. The Bonds are subject to
extraordinar"y redeniption by the Authority prior to their respective maturity dates, as a whole or in paft on

any Interest Payment Date on or after March 1,20-, solely from funds derived from extraordinary
redemption of Local Obligations frorn Special Tax Prepayrneuts, at the following redemption prices

(computed upon the principal amount of the Bonds or poftions thereof called for redemption) together

with accrued interest thereon to the date fixed for redemption:

103% if redeemed on an Interest Payment Date on or after March 1,20-
through March 1,20-;

102% if redeemed on an Interest Payment Date on September 7,20-
and March 1,20_;

101% if redeemed on an Interest Payment Date on September 7,20-
and Marclr 1,20_;and

100% if redeemed on September 7,20_and any Interest Payment Date
thereafter.

Prepayments from prepaid Special Taxes could be made by any of the owners of any of the

property within tlie Improvement Area, including ECIC, Folsom Real Estate South, KB Home

Sacramento, Signature Flomes, any other developers or homebuilders owning Taxable Propefiy in tlie
Improvement Area or any individual owner; and they could also be made from the proceeds of bonds

issued by or on behalf of an overlapping special assessntent district or community facilities district. The

resulting redemption of Bonds that were purchased at a price greater than the applicable redemptiori price

could reduce the otherwise expected yield on such Bonds. See "CERTAIN RISKS TO
BONDHOLDERS-Potential Early Redernption of Bonds from Prepaid Special Taxes."

Mandatory Sinking Fund Redentption of Bonds. The Bonds maturing on September 1,20_ are

sLrbject to mandatory redemption in pafi by lot on September I of each year commencing

Septenrber 1,20-, at a redemption price equal to one hundred percent (100%) of the principal amottltt

thereof called for redeniption together with accrued interest thereon to the date fixed for redemption:

Minirlum Sinking Fund
Payment Date Bonds

Mininrum Sinking Fr:nd Payment(Septern ber 1)

$

'r Maturity

12Page 298

10/13/2020 Item No.12.



The Bonds rnaturing on September 1,20_are subject to mandatory redemption in pafi by lot on

Septernber I of eacli year col.l-llnencing September I , 20-, at a redenrption price equal to one ltundred
percent (100%) of the principal an-lount thereof called for redemption together with accrued interest
thereon to the date fixed for redemption:

Minimunr Sinking Fund
Payment Date Bonds

Minimum Sinking Fund Payment(Septern ber l)
$

t

T Maturity

If the Bonds subject to mandatory redeniption are redeemed in part prior to their stated maturity
date other than from Minimum sinking Fund Payrnents, the Minimum Sinking Fund Payrnents for such

Bonds shall be reduced proportionately by the principal amount of such Bonds so redeemed.

Redemption Instructions. Upon any prepayment of a Local Obligation, the Authority shall

deliver to the Trustee a Written Order of the Authority designating the arnounts and maturities of the

Bonds to be redeemed, which shall be in the manner necessaly to enable the Authority to deliver a Cash

Flow Cerlificate satisfuing the requirements described below. In tlre event only a portion of the

Outstanding Bonds of any rnaturity are to be redeerned at any otre time, the Trustee shall select the
particular Bonds of each maturity date to be redeemed in accordance with DTC procedures or, if the
Bonds are not then in book-entry, randornly. The Trustee shall redeem Bonds in Autliorized
Denominations.

Upon any redemption of a porlion but not all of the Outstanding Bonds, the Authority shall
deliver to the Trustee a Cash Flow Certificate to the effect that, assuming all paynrents are made with
respect to the Local Obligatior.rs, (i) the Revenues, together with moneys on deposit in other funds and

accounts held under the Trust Agreement, will be sufficient to pay all Principal Installments, Minimum
Sinking Fund Payrnents and interest payments on the Bonds when due; and (ii) the redemption premiums,

if any, on the Local Obligations, together witlr other Revenues available to the Trustee for such purpose,

are sufficient to offset any difference between the interest to accrue on the Bonds to be paid or redeemed

with the proceeds of prepayment of such Local Obligations (plus any redemption premium payable upon
redemption of such Bonds) and the income to be earned on any investrnent of such proceeds (assured as

of the date of payment tliereof), in each case untilthe date of payment or redemption of Bonds, such that
in no event will the prepayment of Local Obligations cause the Trustee to have insufficient funds to pay

debt service on the Bonds when due.

In no event shall Bonds be redeemed if upon such redemption the principal aurount of the Local
Obligations rernaining outstanding will be less than tlre total principal amouut of Outstanding Bonds.

Such Written Order of the Authority may specify tlrat optional redenrption of the Bonds will be

conditioned upon receipt of funds or otlrer everlts.

Notice of Redentption. Subject to receipt of the Writterr Order of the ALrthority described under
"-Redeulption Instructions", if sufficient mor.)ey is anticipated to be available for redenrption of Bonds
identified in such Written Order, the Trustee shall give notice of redernption; p1avid-qd, tltat Bonds,
identified by CUSIP numbers, serial numbers and maturity date, have been called for redenrption and, in
the case of Bonds to be redeerned in part only, the portion of the principal arroul.tt thereof that has been

l3Page 299

10/13/2020 Item No.12.



called for redernption (or if allthe Outstandirrg Bonds are to be redeemed, so stating, in which eveut suclr

serial numbers lnay be ornitted), that they will be due and payable on the date fixed for redemption
(specifying such date) uporl surrender thereof to tlre Trustee at its Corporate Trust Office, subject to any

conditions to such redemption specified in the Written Order of the Authority, at the redemption price

(specifying such price), together with any accrued interest to such date, and that all interest on tlte Bonds
(or portions thereof) so to be redeemed will cease to accrue on and after such date and that from and after

such date such Bond (or such portion thereof) shall no longer be entitled to any lien, benefit or security

hereunder, and the Owner thereof shall have no rigltts in respect of such redeemed Bond or such porlion
except to receive payment from such money of such redemption price plus accrued interest to the date

fixed for redemption.

Such notice shall be mailed by first class mail, in a sealed envelope, postage prepaid, at least

thirty (30) but not more than sixty (60) days before the date fixed for redemption, to the Owners of such

Bonds (or portions thereof) so called for redemption, at their respective addresses as the same shall last

appear on the Bond Register; provided, that neither the failure of an Owner to receive notice of
redemption of Bonds hereunder nor alty error in such notice shall affect the validity of the proceedings for
tlie redernption of Bonds; and provided fufther, that no notice of redernption need be given to the Owner
of a Bond to be called for redemption if such Owner waives notice thereof in writing, and such waiver is

filed with the Trustee prior to the redemption date.

Any notice of optiorral redemption may be rescinded by written notice given by the Authority to

the Trustee no later than three Business Days prior to the date specified for redemption. The Trustee shall

give notice of rescission of the notice of optional redemption or non-satisfaction of any conditions
specified in the notice of optional redemption as soou as practicable to the same parties and in the same

rnanner as the notice of redeniption was given.

So long as the Bonds are in book-entry only form, notices of redemption will be given directly by

the Trustee to DTC and not to the Beneficial Owners of the Bonds. See APPENDIX F-"DTC AND
THE BOOK-ENTRY ONLY SYSTEM.''

Purchase in Lieu of Redemption. ln lieu of redemption of any Bond, atnounts on deposit irl the

Proceeds Fund, the Principal Fund or in the Redernption Fund may be used and withdrawn by the Trustee

at any time prior to a notice of redenrption having been delivered, upon a Written Order for the purchase

of such Bonds at public or private sale as and when and at such prices as the Autlrority nray in its
discretion determine, but not in excess of tlie lower of the highest or then curreut redemption price thereof
plus accrued interest to the purchase date, and all Bonds so purchased shall be delivered to the Trustee for
cancellatiou.

Payment of Redeemed Bonds. If notice of redemption has been given or waived as provided irt
the Trust Agreement, the Bonds or portions thereof called for redemption will be due and payable on the

date fixed for redemption at the redernption price thereof, together with accrued interest to the date fixed
for redernption, upon presentation and surrender of the Bonds to be redeerred at the office specified in tlre

notice of redemption. If less than the full principal amount of a Bond is called for redemption, the

Authority is required to execute and deliver and the Trustee is required to authenticate, upon surrender of
such Bond, and witlrout charge to the Owner thereof, Bonds of like interest rate and maturity in an

aggregate principal aluour.rt equal to the unredeerned portion of the principal atxoultt of the Bonds so

surrendered in suclt ALrthorized Denominations as specified by the Owner.

If any Bond or any portion thereof has been duly called for redemption and paynlent of the

redemption price, together with r-rnpaid interest accrued to the date fixed for redemptiott, has been llade or

provided for by the Authority, then interest ou such Bond or such portion will cease to accrue from such

14Page 300

10/13/2020 Item No.12.



date, and from and after such date such Bond or such portion will no longer be eutitled to any lien, benefit
or security under the Trust Agreer.nent, arrd the Owner thereof will have no rights in respect of sLrch Bond

or such porlion except to receive payment of such redemption price, and unpaid interest accrued to the

date fixed for redemption.

BSTIMATED SOURCES AND USES OF FUNDS

The proceeds from the sale of the Bonds will be used to purchase the Local Obligations. The
proceeds of the Local Obligations in turn will be used to finance construction and acqLrisition of the

Facilities and pay costs of issuance of the Local Obligations and Bonds. The following table sets forlh
the estimated sources and uses of the funds as allocated to the Bonds:

Sources ofFunds
Principal Amount
[Plus/Less].' [Net] Original Issue fPremiurn/Discount]

Total Sources

Uses of Funds
Acquisition and Construction Fund
Underwriter's Discount
Deposit to Local Obligations Reserve Account(r)
Deposit to Local Obligations Capitalized Interest Account(2)
Deposit to Costs of Issuance Fund(3)

Total Uses

$

$

$

(t) A portion of the purchase price of the Local Obligations will be deposited into the Local Obligations Reserve Account
for the Local Obligations. See "SECURITY AND SOURCES OF PAYMENT FOR TFIE BONDS."
To pay interest on the Local Obligations and, in turn, the Bonds, to September 1,2021 .

A portion of the purchase price of the Local Obligations will be used to pay costs of issuance including fees of Bond
Counsel and the Municipal Advisor', the initial fees of the Trustee, noncontingent fees of the Appraiser and

Absorption Analyst, printing costs and other miscellaneous expenses.

(2)

(3)

IREMAINDER OF PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANI(]

$

l5Page 301

10/13/2020 Item No.12.



DEBT SERVICE SCHEDULE

The annual scheduled debt service schedLrle for tlre Bonds, assumirrg no early redemption, is set

forth in tlre followingtable. The Local Obligations are sized to provide 100% of the debt service on the

Bonds when due and have the same principal amortization as tlre Bonds. The Local Obligations will be

issued with an annual scheduled debt service schedule that results in at least 1000% annual debt service
coverage fiom Special Tax revenues expected to be generated in Villages 4,7,8 and 10 net of Priority
Administrative Expenses (defined below). The District expects that Additional Local Obligations will be

issued on parity with the Local Obligations as the Improvement Area develops. See "SECURITY AND
SOURCES OF PAYMENT FOR THE BONDS - Terms of the Local Obligations - Additional Local
Obligations."

Table 2
Folsom Ranch Financing Authority

City of Folsom Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)
Improvement Area No. I

Special Tax Revenue Bonds, Series 2020
Debt Service Schedule

Period Ending
(September l) Principal Interest Total

$ $ $

TOTAL

(r) Local Obligations debt service capitalizecl thlough Septcmbel 1.202 I

Source: Piper Sandler & Co.

$ $$

16Page 302

10/13/2020 Item No.12.



SBCURITY AND SOURCBS OF PAYMENT FOR THE BONDS

The Bonds are secured by a lien on and pledge of the Trust Estate, consisting primarily of
payments received by the Authority from the District under the Local Obligatior.rs, which payments are

secured by Special Taxes (net of Priority Adniinistrative Expenses) levied Lrpon propefty within the

Improvement Area and received by the District.

. NEITHER TFIE FAITH AND CREDIT NOR THE TAXING POWER OF THE CITY, TFIE
DISTRICT, TI-IE AUTHORITY, THE STATE OF CALIFORNIA OR ANY OTHER POLITICAL
SUBDIVISION THEREOF IS PLEDGED TO THE PAYMENT OF THE BONDS. THE AUTHORITY
HAS NO TAXING POWER. EXCEPT FOR THE TRUST ESTATE, NO OTHER REVENUES OR
TAXES ARE PLEDGED TO THE PAYMENT OF THE BONDS. THE BONDS ARE NOT GENERAL
OBLIGATIONS OF THE AUTHORITY, THE DISTRICT OR CITY, BUT ARE LIMITED
OBLIGATIONS OF THE AUTHORITY PAYABLE SOLELY FROM THE TRUST ESTATE,
DERIVED PRIMARILY FROM PAYMENTS ON THE, LOCAL OBLIGATIONS FROM THE
PAYMENT OF THE SPECIAL TAXES LEVIED WITHIN THE IMPROVEMENT AREA AS MORE
FULLY DESCRIBED FIEREIN.

General

The Trust Estate consists of the Revenues, the amounts in certain of the funds established and

held under the Trust Agreement, and the Local Obligations. The Revenues consist of amounts received
by the Trustee as the payment of interest ou, or the equivalent thereof, and the payment or return of
principal of, or redemption prerniums, if any, on, or the equivalent thereof, tlie Local Obligations, whether
as a result of scheduled payments, or redernption premiums, Special Tax Prepayments or remedial
proceedings talcen in the event of a defaultthereon, and all investrnent earnings on any money held in the

Funds held Lrnder the Trust Agreement (except the Rebate Fund).

The principal of and the interest on the Local Obligations are payable from the annual Special
Taxes levied and to be collected on all real propefty within the Improvement Area subject to the Special

Taxes and the proceeds, if any, from the sale of such property for delinquency of such Special Taxes,

after payment of Priority Administrative Expenses. The Local Obligations are secured by a pledge on the

Special Taxes (net of Priority Adrrinistrative Expenses) on parity with the pledge of such Special Taxes
for any Additional Local Obligations issued under the Local Obligations Indenture. See "-Payment of
the Local Obligations" n1161 

c(-Jsrms of the Local Obligatiotts."

The District may not issue indebtedness payable fi'om the Special Taxes except as provided in the

Local Obligations Indenture. See APPENDIX C-"SUMMARY OF PRINCIPAL DOCUMENTS-
SUMMARY OF THE LOCAL OBLIGATIONS INDENTURE-Authorization and Issuance of Bonds-
Additional Bonds; Sribordinute Boncl,s." The City has, however, fonned CFD 17, which has issued bonds

secured by special taxes with a co-equal lien on propefty within the Improvement Area and has formed
CFD 18, which is authorized to issue bonds secured by special taxes with a co-equal lien on property
within the Inproverlent Area. Additionally, the City has received a request from various developers of
the Folsom Plan Area to create CFD24, which, if fonned, could impose an additional co-equal lien on the

undeveloped property in the lmprovelnent Area. See "FOLSOM PLAN AREA." The Authority, the

District and the City have no control over the amount of additional debt payable fi'orn taxes or
assesstrents on all or any portion of the propefty within the Inrprovetnent Area that may be issued in the

future by other govenmental eutities or districts having jurisdiction over all or a portiotr of the land
within the Intproveurent Area. To the extent such debt is payable fronr other assessrnents or special taxes

levied pursuaut to the applicable law, such assessrnents or special taxes may have a lien on the property
within the Inrprovement Area on parity with the lien of the Special Taxes.

t1Page 303

10/13/2020 Item No.12.



Flow of Funds

Receipt and Deposit of Revenues. As noted above, Reverrues consist of arrounts received by the

Trustee as the payment of interest on, or the equivalent thereol; and the payment or t'eturn of principal of,

or redernption premiums, if any, ou, or the equivalent thereof, all Local Obligations, whether as a result of
scheduled payments, or redemption premiums, Special Tax Prepayrrents or remedial proceedings taken in

the event of a default thereon, and all investment earnings on any r"r'loney held under the Trust Agreement
(except the Rebate Fund). All Revenues, other than Revenues derived from the early redemption of Local
Obligations from Special Tax Prepayments received by the Trustee from the Authority, will be deposited
into the Revenue Fund. On each lnterest Payrnent Date and each Principal Payrnent Date, the Trustee
will transfer Revenues from the Revenue Fund, in the amounts required in the order of priority as set forllt
below, with the requirements of each fund being fully satisfied, leaving no deficiencies therein, prior to
any deposit into any fund later in priority:

Fit,st: To the Interest Fund, an amount of Revenues which together with amounts on

deposit therein, is equal to the interest due and payable on the Bonds due on such

Interest Payrnent Date;

Second: To the Principal Fund (i) otr each Principal Payment Date fi'om the Revenue
Fund an amourrt of Revenues which, together with any an-lounts then on deposit
in the Principal Fund (other than amounts previously deposited on acconnt of any
Bonds which have matured but which have not been presented for payment) is

sufficient to pay the Principal Installments on the Bonds due on such Principal
Payment Date and (ii) on eacli September I on which a Minimurn Sinking Fund
Payment is required to be made (for deposit in the Sinking Fund Account) from
the Revenue Fund an amount of Revenues which is equal to the Minimum
Sinking Fund Payment due and payable on such date. On each Priricipal
Payment Date, the Trustee shall pay the principal or redemption price due and

payable on the Bonds on such date from the Principal Fund.

Followilig such deposits, any remaining money in the Revenue Fund is required to be transferred
to the Local Obligations Trustee for application under the Local Obligations Indenture. For additional
information regarding the Flow of Funds, sss'(-l6ssl Obligations Flow of Funds."

Revenues Derived front Special Tax Prepayntents. All Revenues derived frorn early redemption
of Local Obligations from special Tax Prepayments received by the Trustee will be immediately
deposited into the Redemption Fund to be applied to the extraordinary redemption of Bonds. See "THE
BONDS-Redernption Provisions-Extraordinary Redemption fi'ont Prepayment of Special Taxes."

Description of Local Obligations

The District will issue the Local Obligations in tlre principal amount of $12,925,000-. The Local
Obligations are secured solely by the SpecialTaxes (net of Priority Adrninistrative Expertses) levied upon

certain real properly within the Improvement Area and proceeds of foreclosure sales in the Improvetneut
Area.

The pledge of Special Taxes (net of Priority Administrative Experrses) levied withirr the

Improvernent Area is on parity with the pledge thereof securing any Additional Local Obligations issued

underthe Local Obligations Indenture. The District may issue Additional Local Obligations secttred on

* 
I'rclintinarl,. sLrb-ject to change.

l8Page 304

10/13/2020 Item No.12.



parity with the pledge of the Special Taxes (net of Priority Administrative Expettses) within the

Improvernent Area only in accordance with the Local Obligations Indenture. See APPENDIX C-
..SUMMARY OF PRINCIPAL DOCUMENTS-SUMMARY OF THE LOCAL OBLIGATIONS
INDENTURE-Authorizatiot'r and Issuance of Bonds-lclditional Bonds; Subordinate Bonds."

A description of the Improverrent Area is set forlh under the caption, "THE IMPROVEMENT
AREA."

Issuance of Local Obligations

The Local Obligations are authorized pursuant to the Mello-Roos Act and are issued under a

resolution of the City Council of the City, as legislative body of the District and the Local Obligations
Indenture. The Mello-Roos Act was enacted by the State Legislature to provide an alternate method of
financing certain essential public capital facilities and services, especially in developing areas of the State.

Subject to approval by a two-thirds vote of qualified electors and compliance with the provisions of the

Mello-Roos Act, a legislative body of a local agency may issue bonds for a community facilities district
and rnay levy and collect a special tax within such district to repay such indebtedness.

The Local Obligations constitute special tax obligations of the District payable as to both
principal and interest from the annual Special Tax (after payment of the District's Priority Administrative
Expenses) to be levied by the District on land within the Improvement Area, including proceeds from the

sale of property witliin the Improvement Area collected as result of foreclosure of tlie lien of the Special
Taxes and ceftain funds and accounts held under the Local Obligations Indenture. The District's sole

recourse in the event of a delinqr.rency or failure to pay Special Taxes on a pafticular parcel is to institute
foreclosure proceedings with respect to tliat parcel. However, the District is not obligated under the Local
Obligations Indenture to enforce the lien of any delinquent installment of the Special Tax for any Fiscal

Year in which the District has received one hundred percent (100%) of the amount of such installment
from the County pursuant to the Teeter Plan. See 

('-Covenant for Foreclosure" altd '(-The Teeter Plan"
herein.

Payment of the Local Obligations

The Local Obligations constitute the limited obligations of the District payable as to both
principal and interest frorn the annual Special Tax (net of Priority Administrative Expenses) levied by the

District on land within the Improvement Area, including proceeds from the sale of property within the

Improvement Area collected as a result of foreclosure of the lien on the Special Taxes and ceftain funds
and accounts held under the Local Obligations Indenture. The District's sole recourse in the event of a

delinquency or failure to pay Special Taxes on a pafiicular parcel is to institute foreclosure proceedings

with respect to that parcel.

Tlre term "Priority Administrative Expenses" rreans an amount equal to (a) for Fiscal
Year2021-22, $20,000, and (b) for any subsequent Fiscal Year, the ar.noLrr.rt resulting from increasing the

Priority Administrative Expenses on each July l, fr"om arrd including the July 1 immediately following the

errd of the then current Fiscal Year to and including the JLrly I in such Fiscal Year by 2% of the amount in

effect for the previous Fiscal Year.

THE LOCAL OBLIGATIONS ARE SPECIAL TAX OBLIGATIONS OF THE DISTRICT,
AND THE INTEREST ON AND PRINCIPAL OF AND REDEMPTION PREMIUMS, IF ANY, ON
THE LOCAL OBLIGATIONS ARE PAYABLE SOLELY FROM THE PROCEEDS OF THE SPECIAL
TAX (INCLUDING ANY PREPAYMENTS THEREOF AND PROCEEDS FROM THE SALE OF
PROPERTY COLLECTED PURSUANT TO THE FORECLOSURE PROVISIONS OF THE LOCAL

19
Page 305

10/13/2020 Item No.12.



OBLICATIONS INDENTURE FOR THE DELINQUENCY OF THE SPECIAL TAX), NET OF
PRIORITY ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES, AND AMOUNTS IN CERTAIN FUNDS AND
ACCOUNTS ESTABLISFIED IN THE LOCAL OBLIGATIONS INDENTURE, AND THE DISTRICT
IS NOT OBLIGATED TO PAY TI_IE LOCAL OBLIGATIONS EXCEPT FROM SUCH FUNDS. THE
GENERAL FUND OF THE CITY AND THE FUNDS OF THE DISTRICT ARE NOT LIABLE, AND
NEITHER THE FULL FAITH AND CREDIT OF THE DISTRICT NOR THE CITY ARE PLEDGED
FOR THE PAYMENT OF THE INTE,REST ON OR PRINCIPAL OF OR REDEMPTION PREMIUMS,
IF ANY, ON THE LOCAL OBLIGATIONS. NO TAX OR ASSE,SSMENT OTHER THAN THE
SPECIAL TAX SHALL EVER BE LEVIED OR COLLECTED TO PAY THE INTEREST ON OR
PRINCIPAL OF OR REDEMPTION PREMIUMS, IF ANY, ON THE LOCAL OBLIGATIONS. THE
LOCAL OBLIGATIONS ARE NOT SECURED BY A LEGAL OR EQUITABLE PLEDGE OF OR
CHARGE, LIEN OR ENCUMBRANCE UPON ANY PROPERTY OF THE DISTRICT OR ANY OF
ITS INCOME OR RECEIPTS EXCEPT TIIE PROCEEDS OF THE SPECIAL TAX (INCLUDING
ANY PREPAYMENTS THEREOF AND PROCEEDS FROM THE SALE OF PROPERTY
COLLECTED PURSUANT TO THE FORECLOSURE PROVISIONS OF THE LOCAL
OBLIGATIONS INDENTURE FOR THE DELINQUENCY OF THE SPECIAL TAX), NET OF
PRIORITY ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES, AND AMOUNTS IN CERTAIN FUNDS AND
ACCOUNTS ESTABLISHED IN THE LOCAL OBLIGATIONS INDENTURE, AND NEITHER THE
PAYMENT OF THE INTEREST ON OR PRINCIPAL OF OR REDEMPTION PREMIUMS, IF ANY,
ON THE LOCAL OBLIGATIONS IS A GE,NERAL DEBT, LIABILITY OR OBLIGATION OF THE
DISTRICT. THE LOCAL OBLIGATIONS DO NOT CONSTITUTE AN INDEBTEDNESS OF THE
DISTRICT WITHIN THE MEANING OF ANY CONSTITUTIONAL OR STATUTORY DEBT
LIMITATION OR RESTRICTION, AND NEITHER THE CITY COUNCIL NOR THE DISTRICT
NOR ANY OFFICER OR EMPLOYEE THEREOF SHALL BE LIABLE FOR THE PAYMENT OF
THE INTEREST ON OR PRINCIPAL OF OR REDEMPTION PREMIUMS, IF ANY, ON THE LOCAL
OBLIGAT]ONS OTHERWISE THAN FROM THE PROCEEDS OF THE SPECIAL TAX
(INCLUDING ANY PREPAYMENTS THEREOF AND PROCEEDS FROM THE SALE OF
PROPERTY COLLECTED PURSUANT TO THE FORECLOSURE PROVISIONS OF THE LOCAL
OBLIGATIONS INDENTURE FOR THE DELINQUENCY OF THE SPECIAL TAX), NET OF
PRIORITY ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES, AND AMOUNTS IN CERTAIN FUNDS AND
ACCOLINTS ESTABLISHED IN THE LOCAL OBLIGATIONS INDENTURE,

Although the Special Tax will constitute a lien on property subject to taxation in the Improvement
Area, it will not constitute a personal indebtedness of the owners of such property. There is no assurauce

that the owners will be financially able to pay the annual Special Tax or that they will pay such tax even if
financially able to do so. The risk of noupayment by property owners is more fully described in

"CERTAIN RISKS TO BONDHOLDERS-CoIlection of Special Tax."

Local Obligations Flow of Funds

Application of Special Tax Ftmd. Pursuant to the Local Obligations Indetrture, the District agrees

and covenants that it will deposit the Special Tax proceeds in the Community Facilities Fund, which fund
is established in the treasury of the City. All nroney in the Comrrunity Facilities Furrd slrall be used and

withdrawn by the District solely for the benefit of the District in accordance with the Mello-Roos Act,
including payment of Expenses. Pursuant to the Local Obligations Indentnre, the District further agrees

and covenants that, after payrlent of Pliority Administrative Expenses, it will transfer to the Local
Obligations Trustee fr"onr the Comnrunity Facilities Furrd anronnts sufficient and in sLrfficient tinre for the

Local Obligations Trustee to make the transfers required by it, and the Local Obligations TrLrstee shall
deposit such proceeds as and when received in the Special Tax Fund. All rloney in the Special Tax Fund

is required to be set aside by the Local Obligations Trustee in the following respective special accounts

and fund within the Special Tax Fund in the following order of priority, and all nroney irt each of such

20Page 306

10/13/2020 Item No.12.



accoltnts and fund shall be applied, used and withdrawn only for the purposes specified in the Local
Obl igations Indenture:

( 1) Redernption Account;

(2) Local Obligations Reserve Fund;

(3) Expense Account; and

(4) Services Account.

Redemption Account. On or before March l and Septerrber I in each year, the Local Obligations
Trustee shall, from the money in the Special Tax Fund, transfer to and deposit in the Redemption Account
an amount of money equal to the aggregate amount of interest becoming due and payable on all

Outstanding Local Obligations and any AdditionalLocal Obligations on such March 1 or September 1, as

the case may be, and on or before September 1 in each year, the Local Obligations Trustee shall, fi'om the

then remaining money in the Special Tax Fund, trarrsfer to and deposit in the Redemption Account an

amourrt of money equal to the aggregate amount of principal becoming due and payable on all
Outstanding Local Obligations and any Additional Local Obligations on such September 1 plus all
Minimum Sinking Fund Account Payments required to be rnade on such Septernber I into the Sinking
Fund Subaccount; provided, that all of the aforesaid payments slrall be made without priority of any
payment over any other payment, and in the event that money in the Special Tax Fund on any March 1 or
Septernber I is not equal to the amount of interest becoming due on all Local Obligations and any
Additional Local Obligations on such date, or in the event that the money in the Special Tax Fund on any

September 1 is not equal to the amount of principal of the Local Obligations and Additional Local
Obligations becoming due on such date, as the case may be, then such money shall be applied pro rata in

such proportion as such interest and principal and Minimum Sinking Fund Account Payments bear to

each other.

No deposit need be made into the Redemption Account if the amourtt of money contained therein
is at least equal to the amount required by the terms of the preceding paragraph to be deposited therein at

the times and in the amounts provided in tlie Local Obligations Indenture.

All money in the Redemption Account sliall be used and withdrawn by the Local Obligations
Trustee to pay the interest on the Local Obligations and any Additional Local Obligations as it shall
become due and payable (including accrued interest on any Local Obligations purchased or redeemed

prior to maturity) plus the principal of and redernption premiunrs, if any, on tlte Local Obligations as they
shall mature or upou the prior redemption tlrereof, except that arry money irr the Sinking Fund Subaccount

shall be used only to purchase or redeern or retire the Term Local Obligations as provided in the Local
Obl igations Indenture.

Local Obligations Reserve Fund. On or before March l and September I in each year, the Local
Obligations Trustee shall, from the then remaining nroney in the Special Tax Fund, transfer to and deposit
in each Local Obligations Reserve Account within the Local Obligatioris Reserve Fund such arnount of
lroney as shall be required to restore each such Local Obligations Reserve Account to a sunr equal to the

Reqrrired Bond Reserve for the applicable series of Local Obligations, pt"o rale, to tlte extent that anounts
are available in the Special Tax Fund for such pLlrpose; and for this pLrrpose all investments in eaclt Local
Obligations Reserve Account shall be valued on March l and Septelnber I of each year at the face value
thereof if sr-rch investments rnature within twelve (12) months fi'orr the date of valuatiotr, or if such

investr.neuts rnatnre more than twelve (12) rrionths after the date of valuation, at the price at which suclt

irrvestlnents are redeer.nable by the holder at his option, if so redeemable, or if not so redeenrable, at the

21Page 307

10/13/2020 Item No.12.



lesser of (i) the cost of such investrrents plus the anrortization of any premiurn or rninus the amortization
of any discount, or (ii) the market value of such investrnents. For purposes of allocating remaining
lroney in the Special Tax Fund betweeu nrore than one Bond Reserve Accouut, any such transfers to and

deposits in each Bond Reserve Accor"tnt shall be rnade eqLrally and ratably.

No deposit need be made into a Local Obligations Reserve Account if the value of the

investments contained therein is at least equal to tlre Required Bond Reserve for the applicable series of
Local Obligations and Additional Local Obligations.

All rnoney in each Local Obligations Reserve Account shall be used and withdrawn by the Local
Obligations Trustee solely for the purpose of paying the interest on or principal of the corresponding
series of Local Obligations in the event there is insufficient money in the Redernption Account available
for this purpose; plevid_qd, that if as a result of any of the foregoing valuations or due to redemption as a

result of property owller prepayments it is determined tlrat the arnouut of money in a Local Obligations
Reserve Account exceeds or will exceed the ReqLrired Bond Reserve for the applicable series of Local
Obligations, the Local Obligations Trustee shall withdraw the arnount of money representing such excess

from such fund and shall deposit such amount of rnoney in the Redemptiolt Account. For the avoidance
of doubt, amounts in a Local Obligations Reserve Account are not available to make up a deficiency for
the payment of principal and interest ou any Local Obligations other than the specific series of Local
Obligations and Additional Local Obligations to which that Local Obligations Reserve Account relates.

Expenlse Account. On or before March I and September I in each year, beginning in September

2021, the Local Obligations Trustee shall, from the tlren remaining money in the Special Tax Fund,
transfer to and deposit in the Expense Account a surn equal to the amount required by the District (as

specified in a Written Request of the District filed with the Local Obligations Trustee) for the payment of
budgeted Expenses during the six-month period beginning on such date, or to reimburse the District or the

City for the payrnent of unbudgeted Expenses during the prior six-month period. All money in the

Expense Account shall be used and withdrawn by the Trustee only for transfer to or for the account of the

District or the City (as specified in a Written Request of the District filed with the Trustee) to pay

budgeted Expenses as provided in the Local Obligations Indenture, or to reimburse the District or the City
forthe payment of unbudgeted Expenses as provided in the LocalObligations Indenture, orto pay interest
on or principal of or redemption prenriums, if any, on the Local Obligatiol'ts in the event that no other
money is available therefor.

Services Account. On or before March I and Septenrber I in each year, beginning in September

2027, the Local Obligations Trustee shall, from the tlren remaining money in the Special Tax Fund,
transfer to and deposit in the Services Account a sum equal to the Services Special Tax (as specified in a
Written Request of the District filed with the Local Obligations Trustee). All money in the Services

Account shall be used and withdrawn by the Local Obligations Trustee only for transfer to or for the

account of the District (as specified irr a Written Request of the District filed with the Local Obligations
Trustee) to pay budgeted Services or to reimburse the District for the payment of unbudgeted Services,

each as provided in the Local Obligations Indenture, or to pay interest on or principal of or redemption
prerniurrs, if any, on the Local Obligations and any Additional Local Obligations in the event that no

other money is available therefor.

Special Tax Authorization

The Special Tax is to be levied and collected against all Taxable Property within the

Improverrent Area in accordance witlr the rate and metlrod of apportionment (the "Rate and Method of
Apportionment"). See APPENDIX A-"RATE, METHOD OF APPORTIONMENT AND MANNER
OF COLLECTION OF SPECIAL TAX." The Special Tax is to be collected in the same manner as

22Page 308

10/13/2020 Item No.12.



ordirrary ad yalorent property taxes are collected, and, except as otherwise provided in tlte covenant for
foreclosure and in the Mello-Roos Act, is to be subject to the same penalties and the same procedure, sale

and lien priority in case of delinquency as is provided for ad valorem propefty taxes. See "SECURITY
AND SOURCES OF PAYMENT FOR THE BONDS-Covenant for Foreclosnre" and "CERTAIN
RISKS TO BONDHOLDERS-CoIlection of Special Tax."

The Rate and Method of Apportionment of the Special Tax, subject to the maximum rates set

forlh therein, apportions the total debt service requirement (principal, interest, and mandatory sinking
fund payrnents), restoration of the Required Bond Reserve, current annual expenses, pay as yolr go

improvenrent costs and other costs each year arnong the taxable land in the Improveurent Area. See

APPENDIX A-"RATE, METHOD OF APPORTIONMENT AND MANNE,R OF COLLECTION OF
SPECIAL TAX.''

Pursuant to the Local Obligations Indenture, so long as any Local Obligations or Additional
Local Obligations are Outstanding, the District is required annually to levy the Special Tax against all
Taxable Property in the Irrprovernent Area and rnake provision for the collection of such Special Tax in
amonnts which will be sufficient, after rnaking reasonable allowances for contingencies and errors in the

estirnates, to yield proceeds equal to the amounts required for compliance with the agreements,

conditions, covenants arrd tenns contained in tlie Local Obligations Indenture, and which in any event
will be sufficient to pay the interest on and principal of and Minirnurn Sinking Fund Accor"rnt Payments
for and redemption prerniurns, if any, on the Local Obligations as they become due and payable, to
replenish the Local Obligations Reserve Fund to the Required Bond Reserve and to pay all current
Expenses as they become due and payable.

Under the Mello-Roos Act, the Special Tax levied in any fiscal year against private residential
property may not be increased as a consequence of delinquency or default by the owner ol'owners of any
other parcel or parcels within the Improvement Area by more than 10Yo above the amount that would
have been levied in that fiscal year had there never been any such delinquencies or defaults. Under the

Rate and Method of Apportionrnent, property is considered "Residential Property" aud is subject to the

aforementioned lirnitatior.r oltce a building permit could be issued for the purposes of constructing one or
more residential units. See "CERTAIN RISKS TO BONDHOLDERS-Maximum Special Tax."

Covenant for Foreclosure

The Local Obligations Indenture provides that the Special Tax is to be collected in the same
rlanner as ordinary ad yalorent propefty taxes are collected and, except as provided in the special

covenant for foreclosure described below and in the Mello-Roos Act, is subject to the same penalties and

tlre sarne procedure, sale, and lien priority in case of delinquency as is provided for ad valorem propefiy
taxes.

Pursuant to Section 53356.1 of the Mello-Roos Act, in the event of any delinquency in the
payrnent of the Special Tax, the District may order the institution of a Superior Court action to foreclose
tlre lien therefor within specified tirne limits. In such arr action, the real propeffy subject to the unpaid
arnoullt rnay be sold at a judicial foreclosure sale. Such judicial foreclosure action is not mandatory.
However, the District has covenanted in the Local Obligations Indenture that it will annually on or before
Septentber I of each year review the pLrblic records of the County relating to the collection of the Special
Tax in order to determine the arnount of the Special Tax collected in the prior Fiscal Year, and if it
deterrniues on the basis of such review that the amount so collected is deficient by more tltan five percent
(5%) of the total arroLlnt of the Special Tax levied in such Fiscal Year within the Improvemerrt Area, it
will within sixty (60) days thereafter institute foreclosure proceedings as authorized by the Mello-Roos
Act in orderto errforce the Iien of the delinquent installments of the SpecialTax against each lot or parcel

23Page 309

10/13/2020 Item No.12.



of land in the Improvement Area, and will diligently prosecute and pursue sr.rch foreclosure proceedings
to jLrdgrnent and sale;p_tev_ld_gd, that irrespective of the foregoing if the District determines on the basis of
such review that property owned by any single property owner in the Lnproverlent Area is delinquent by
more than four thousand dollars ($4,000) with respect to the Special Tax due and payable by sLrch

property owner by such delinquency date, then the District will institute, prosecute and pursue such

foreclosure proceedings in the time and rnanner provided in the Local Obligations Indenture agaittst such

property owner; provided fufther, that any actions taken to enforce delinquent Special Tax liens shall be

taken only consistent with sections 53356.1 through 53356.1, both inclusive, of the Governmertt Code of
the State of California; and provided fufther, that the District is not obligated under the Local Obligations
Indenture to enforce the lien of any delinquent installment of the Special Tax for any Fiscal Year in which
the District has received one hundred percent (100%) of tlie amount of such installment from the County
pnrsuant to the Teeter Plan (described herein).

In the event that sales or foreclosures of propefty are necessary, there could be a delay in
payments to Owners of the Bonds (if the Local Obligations Reserve Account has been depleted) pending

such sales or the prosecution of such foreclosure proceedings and receipt by the District of the proceeds

of sale. However, within the limits of the Special Tax, the District may adjust the Special Tax levied on

Taxable Property in the Improvement Area (subject to the limitation on the Maximum Special Tax,
defined herein), to provide an amount required to pay interest on and principal of the Local Obligations
and any additiorial obligations payable from the Special Tax, and the arnount, if any, necessary to
replenish each subaccount of the Local Obligations Reserve Fund to an arnount equal to the Required
Bond Reserve and to pay all current Expenses for the Improvement Area. There is, however, no

assuraltce that the total amount of the Special Tax that could be levied and collected against Taxable
Property (as defined in the Rate and Method of Apportionment) in the Improvement Area will be at all
times sufficient to pay the amounts required to be paid by the Local Obligations Indenture, even if the

Special Tax is levied at the Maximum Special Tax rates. See "CERTAIN RISKS TO
BONDHOLDERS-Maximum Special Tax."

No assurance can be given that the real property subject to sale or foreclosure will be sold, or if
sold, tlrat the proceeds of sale will be sufficient to pay any delinquent installrnents of the Special Tax.
The Mello-Roos Act does not require the District to purchase or otherwise acquire ariy lot or parcel of
property to be sold if there is no other purchaser at such sale. The Mello-Roos Act and the Local
Obligations Indenture do specify that the Special Tax will have the same lien priority as for ad valorent
property taxes in the case of delinquency. Section 53356.6 of the Mello-Roos Act requires that property
within the Improvement Area that is sold pursuant to foreclosure nnder the Mello-Roos Act be sold for
not less than the arnount ofjudgment in the foreclosure action, plus post judgment interest and authorized
costs, urrless the consent of the owners of at leastl5o/o of the Local Obligations and any Additional Local
Obligations issued under the Local Obligations Indenture is obtained.

No Required Advances from Available Surplus Funds

Neither the City nor the District is obligated to advance available surplus funds available frorl the

City treasury to pay debt service on the Local Obligations or to replenish the Local Obligations Reserve

Accor.rrrt; plev.!_d_gd, tliat nothing shall affect the right of the District under the Mello-Roos Act to rnake

advances to cure any deficiencies.

Terms of the Local Obligations

General. The City Council of the City established the District and designated the Improvement
Area therein on May 26,2020. On that sarre date, tlre eligible voters of the District in the Improvement
Area authorized the issuance of bonds in an arnount not to exceed $76,000,000 for the Improvetlent Area.

24Page 310

10/13/2020 Item No.12.



The Local Obligations will be the first issuance of bonds for the Improvement Area. The Local
Obligations will be issued in the aggregate principal arrount of $12,925,000* pursuant to the Mello-Roos
Act and the Local Obligations Indenture. The Local Obligations will be dated the date of delivery of the

Bonds. The Local Obligations are secured by a pledge of the Special Tax (net of Priority Adniinistrative
Expenses) levied within the Improvenrent Area.

Local Obligations Reserve Account. The Local Obligations Indenture establishes a Local
Obligations Reserve Account within the Local Obligations Reserve Fund to be held by the Local
Obligations Trustee and requires that there be maintained in the Local Obligations Reserve Account an

amount equal to the Required Bond Reserve. "Required Bond Reserve" is defined to nteatt, for the Local
Obligations, as of any date of calculation, the least of: (a) the Maxirnum Annual Debt Service, (b) one

hurrdred twenty-five percent (125%) of tlre Average Annual Debt Service or (c) ten (10%) percent of the

original proceeds of the Local Obligations; provided that the Required Bond Reserve shall be calculated

on the date of issuance of the Local Obligations issued under the Local Obligations Indenture and shall
not increase thereafter; and provided fufther that such requirement (or any porlion thereof) may be

satisfied by the provision of one or rnore policies of municipal bond insurance or surety bonds issued by a
municipal bond insurer or by a letter of credit issued by a bank, the obligations insured by which insurer

or issued by which bank, as the case rnay be, have ratings at the tirne of issuance of such policy or surety
bond or letter of credit equalto "AA" or higher (without regard to qualifier) assigned by Fitch or "Aa" or
higher (without regard to qualifier) assigned by Moody's or "AA" or higher (without regard to qualifier)
assigned by S&P.

The Local Obligations Reserve Account is established specifically for the Local Obligations, and

arnounts in the Local Obligations Reserve Account are not available to make up a deficiency for the

payment of principal and interest on any Additional Local Obligations. Pursuant to the Local Obligations
Indenture, each reserve acconnt within the Local Obligations Reserve Fund is only available for paying
the interest on or principal of the corresponding series of Local Obligations or Additional Lobal
Obligations for which it was created.

The Required Bond Reserve with respect to the Local Obligations upon their date of issuance will
be$

All money in the Local Obligations Reserve Account will be used and witlidrawn by the Local

Obligations Trustee solely for tlie purpose of paying the interest on and principal of the Local Obligations
in the event there is irrsufficient money available for the purpose; p_lov_id_gd, that if as a result of any of the

valuation of a Required Bond Reserve it is deternrined that the amount of Iloney in the Local Obligations
Reserve Account exceeds the Required Bond Reserve, the Local Obligations Trustee shall withdraw the

amount of money representing such excess from such fund and shalldeposit such amount of money in the

Redemption Account. Amounts on deposit in tlre Local Obligations Reserve Account are uot available to

cure a deficiency in Revenues available to pay debt service on the Bonds.

Additional Local Obligation,s. The District rnay at any time, by a supplement to the Local
Obligations Indenture, issue Additional Local Obligations that are payable from the proceeds of the

Special Tax (after paynrent of Priority Administrative Expenses) on parity with the Local Obligations,
subject to the following conditions, which conditions are precedent to the issuance of such Additional
Local Obligations:

(i) Tlre District shall be irr compliance witlr all agreements, conditions, coveuants and terms
contained in the Local Obligations Indenture and in all Supplemental Indentures required to be observed

* 
I'relinrinary, sub.ject to changc.

25Page 311

10/13/2020 Item No.12.



or performed by it, and no Event of Default under the Local Obligations Indenture or under any

Supplemental Indenture shall have occurred and shall be thert continuing;

(ii) The District shall establish a separate subacconr.rt of tlie Local Obligations Reserve Fund

for the paynrent of such Additional Local Obligations in an amonnt equal to the Required Bond Reserve;

and

(iii) (a) In each year until the maturity date for tlie Additional Local Obligations, the

Maximum Facilities Special Tax less Priority Administrative Expenses is estimated to cover at least one

hundred ten percent (110%) of the sum of the Annual Debt Service on the Local Obligations and all

Additional Local Obligatior.rs, including such Additional Local Obligations to be issued, and (b) the Value
of all Taxable Property, in aggregate, is at least three (3) tirnes the aggregate Lien ol.t such Taxable

Property.

"Facilities Special Tax" is the annual Special Tax to be levied in each Fiscal Year on each

Assessor's Parcel of Taxable Property to fund the Facilities Special Tax Requirement in accordance with
tlie Rate and Method (each as defined in the Rate arid Method of Apportionment).

"Maxirnuln Facilities Special Tax" is the total maximum annual Facilities Special Tax,

determined in accordance with the provisions of Section C of tlre Rate and Method, which may be levied

in any Fiscal Year on any Assessor's Parcel of Taxable Property (each as defined in the Rate and Method
of Apporlionnrent).

"Vallle" is defined as the current assessed valuation of the Taxable Propefty and/orthe appraised

value of the Taxable Propefty determined by a MAI appraiser. "Lien" is defined in the Local Obligations
Indenture as the allocable or proportional (as applicable) aggregate principal amount of all overlapping
debt and bonds (including the Local Obligations) outstanding that are secured by a special tax levied
pursuant to the Mello-Roos Act or a special assessment levied on property within the Improvement Area,
including any overlapping debt or bonds for community facilities districts or special assessment districts
that is allocated to propefiy within the Improvement Area.

Notwithstanding the foregoirrg, the District may issue one or more series of Additional Local '

Obligations (the "Refunding Local Obligations") without meeting the requirements sumtnarized in

paragraph (iii) above if, after the issuance and delivery of such Refunding Local Obligations, either (i)
none of the Local Obligations or Additional Local Obligations theretofore issued under the Local
Obligations Indenture will be Outstanding or (ii) the Debt Service in each Bond Year that begins after the

issuance of such Refunding Local Obligations is not increased by reason of the issuance of such

Refunding Local Obl igations.

Redemption of the Local Obligations.* The Local Obligations are subject to extraordinary
redemption by the District from funds derived by the District from prepaynrerlts of the Special Tax. The

Local Obligations are also subject to optional and mandatory redernption by the District. A description of
the redemption prices and terms of the Local Obligations is set forlh under APPENDIX C-"SUMMARY
OF PRINCIPAL DOCUMENTS-SUMMARY OF THE LOCAL OBLIGATIONS INDENTURE-
Redemption of Bonds."

Selection of Local Obligationsfor Redenrption. lf less than all the outstarrding Local Obligations
and any Additional Local Obligations are to be redeenred as a result of prepayrnents of the Special Tax at

any one time, the Local Obligations and any Additional Local Obligations shall be redeemed pro rata by

- 
Prelinrinar';,. sLrb.jcct to change

26
Page 312

10/13/2020 Item No.12.



maturity. If less than all the outstanding Local Obligations and any Additional Local Obligations are to
be redeerned at the option of the District at any one time, the Local Obligations and any Additional Local
Obligations of the latest maturity date or dates shall be redeemed prior to or sinrultaneously with the
redemption of the Local Obligations and any Additional Local Obligations nraturing priorthereto, and if
less tharr allthe outstanding Local Obligations and any Additional Local Obligations of any one rnaturity
date are to be redeerned at any one time, the Trustee shall select the Local Obligations and any Additional
Local Obligations or the portions thereof of such maturity date to be redeemed in integral multiples of
five thousand dollars ($5,000) in a manner that it deerns appropriate and fair.

Special Tax Analysis

The following is a synopsis of the provisions of the Rate and Method of Apportiottment, which
should be read in conjunction with the cornplete text of the Rate and Method of Apporlionment which is

attached as APPENDIX A. The definitions of the capitalized tenns used under this caption "-Special
Tax Analysis" are as set forth in APPENDIX A. This section provides only a sulxrnary of the Rate and

Method of Apportionment, and is qualified by more complete and detailed information contained in the

entire Rate and Method of Apportionment attached as APPENDIX A.

The Special Tax is to be levied and collected against all Taxable Property within the

Improvement Area in accordance with the Rate and Method of Apportionment approved by the

landowner electors of the Improvement Area. The total annual levy of the Special Tax is calculated to
satisfu the annual debt service during the ensuing Fiscal Year, to replenish the reserve fund for the Local
Obligations, the allocable portion of administrative expenses, the arnount necessary to cure any
delinquencies or to fund any deficiency of the arnount to be available for the payment of principal or
interest on bonds which are expected to occur in the ensuing fiscal year, to fund authorized facilities
funded on a pay-as-you-go basis, to fund authorized services expenses and to pay amounts required to
establish or replenish ceftain funds related to authorized services, less any available capitalized interest
and earnings on the funds that may be used to fund the aforementioned costs.

Assignntent to Land Use Categories. Each Fiscal Year, all Assessor's Parcels within the

Improvement Area will be classified by the CFD No. 23 lA1 Administrator as either Taxable Properly or
Exernpt Propefty. Taxable Propefty will be furtlier classified as Developed Properly, Srnall Lot Final
Map Property, Perrnit Ready Multi-FamilyA.,lon-Residential Propefty, Large Lot Property, or
Undeveloped Property and shall be subject to the levy of the annual Special Tax.

"Developed Property" meaus, for each Fiscal Year, all Taxable Property for wlrich a building
permit for new construction was issued prior to JLrne 30 of the previous Fiscal Year.

"Small Lol Final Map Properly" rneans, for each Fiscal Year, all Taxable Property for which a

SrnallLot Final Subdivision Map was recorded priorto June 30 of the previous FiscalYear.

"Perntil Ready Multi-Family/Non-Residential Proper$' r.lreans an Assessor''s Parcel of Taxable
Property zoned for multi-farnily or non-residential land use for which all discretionary entitletlents have

been obtained, including without limitation, developnrent plan review and improvelxent plan approval,
such that building permits may be issued without further approvals for the construction of multi-family
Residential Units or non-residential buildings witlrin suclr Assessor's Parcel. The City shall have sole

discretion, based upon available development information, in classifl,ing an Assessor's Parcel as Permit
Ready Mu lti -Fani i lyAJon-Res idential Property.

"Large Lol Property" rreans, for each Fiscal Year, all Taxable Property for which a Large Lot
Map was recorded prior to June 30 of tlre previoLrs Fiscal Year, excludirrg any pofiion(s) thereof classified

21Page 313

10/13/2020 Item No.12.



as Developed Property, Sniall Lot Final Map Property or Perrnit Ready Multi-FarnilyA',lon-Residential
Property. Large Lot Property also means, for each Fiscal Year, all Taxable Property classified as Small
Lot Final Map Remainder Property as of June 30 of the previous Fiscal Year.

"Small Lot Final Map Remainder Properly" rreans an Assessor's Parcel that is created from the

subdivision of Large Lot Property by the recordation of a Small Lot Final Subdivision Map that has not
yet been rnapped for final development approval. Small Lot Final Map Remainder Property is that
portion of property for which the Small Lot Final Subdivision Map definition does not apply (i.e., does
not contain individual lots for which building permits may be issued for Residential Units without furlher
subdivision of such properfy). Each Fiscal Year, all Taxable Property classified as Small Lot Final Map
Rernainder Propefty, as of June 30 of the previous FiscalYear, will be considered Large Lot Property.

"Undeveloped Properly" rreans, for each Fiscal Year, all Taxable Property not classified as

Developed Propefty, Small Lot Final Map Propefty, Permit Ready Multi-FamilyArlon-Residential
Property or Large Lot Propefty.

"Single-Fantily Detached Property - MLD Zoning" lreans, for each Fiscal Year, all Taxable
Properfy for which a building pennit could be issued for purposes of constructing one or more detached
or attached Residential Units with a permitted density range of 7-12 ResidentialUnits per Acre, which is

more fully described in the Folsom Plan Area Specific Plan adopted on June 28,2011 and as arnended by
the City Council.

"Single-Family Detached Properly - SF/SFHD Zoning" lneans, for each Fiscal Year, all Taxable
Property for whicli a building pemrit could be issued for purposes of constructing one or more Residential
Units. Single-Family Detached Property - SF/SFHD Zoning shall consist of either single-family properly
with a pern-ritted density range of 1-4 Residential Units per Acre or single-family high density propefty
with a permitted density range of 4-7 Residential Units per Acre, which is more fully described in the
Folsom Plan Area Specific Plan adopted on June 28,2011 and as amended by the City Council.

"MMD Multi-Family Attached Property" means all Assessor's Parcels for whicli a building
pennit could be issued for purposes of constructing one or more attaclied Residential Units per Assessor's
Parcel with a permitted density range of 12-20 Residential Units per Acre, which is more fully described
in tlre Folsom Plan Area Specific Plan adopted on June 28,2011 and as amended by the City Council.

"MHD Multi-Family Attached Property" lreans all Assessor's Parcels for which a building
permit could be issued for purposes of constructirrg one or nrore attached Residential Units per Assessor's
Parcel with a perrnitted density rarrge of greater than 20 Residential Units per Acre, which is more fully
described in the Folsom Plan Area Specific Plan adopted on Jnne 28,2011 and as amended by the City
Council. MHD Multi-Faniily Attached Property shall also include an Assessor's Parcel or that portion of
an Assessor''s Parcel designated as a Mixed Use Residerrtial Parcel.

"Mixed Use Residential Parcel" rreaus a mixed use Assessor's Parcel that is designated for
residential land use. If the mixed use Assessol's Parcel contains a combination of residential land use and
non-residential land use, only that poftion of an Assessor's Parcel designated for residential larid use shall
be classified as a Mixed Use Residential Parcel and the remaining non-residential land use of the
Assessor's Parcel shall be classified as Non-Residential Properly.

"Non-Resiclential Properly" rueans, for each Fiscal Year, all Taxable Property for which a

building perrnit coLrld be issued for purposes of constructing non-residential buildings.

Maxintum Special Tax. The Rate and Method of Apportiorrment is used to allocate the amount of

28
Page 314

10/13/2020 Item No.12.



the Special Tax required among the Taxable Propeffy, based upon land use categories, subject to the

Maximunr Special Tax Rate that rnay be levied against each land use category.

Tlie following table shows the Maximurn Special Tax Rates within the Irnprovement Area for all
anticipated allocable land use categories in fiscal year 2021-22, which is the first year in which the

Special Tax is anticipated to be levied.
Table 3

City of Folsom
Communities Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

Improvement Area No. I
Maximum Special Tax Rate Categories

Fiscal Year 2021-22

Tax Category
Residential
Floor Area

Effective Tax
Rate

Evaluation
Maximum
Facilities

Special Tax
Rate(r)

Maximum
Services Special

Tax Rate(2)

Maximum
Annual Special

Tax
Developed Property ($ amounts per residential unit)

Single-Family Detached Property - SF/SFHD Zoning
Single-Farnily Detached Property - SF/SFHD Zoning
Single-Farnily Detached Property - SF/SFHD Zoning
Single-Family Detached Propefty - SF/SFHD Zoning
Single-Family Detached Property - SF/SFHD Zoning
Single-Family Detached Propefty - SF/SFHD Zoning
Single-Family Detached Properly - MLD Zoning
Single-Family Detached Property - MLD Zoning
Single-Family Detached Property - MLD Zoning
Single-Family Detached Property - MLD Zoning
Single-Farnily Detached Property - MLD Zoning
Single-Farnily Detached Property - MLD Zoning

Developed Property ($ amounts per acre)
MMD Multi-Family Attached Property
MHD Multi-Family Attached Property
Non-Residential Property

Small Lot Final Map Property
($ amounts per residential lot)
Single-Family Detached Property - SF/SFHD Zoning
Single-Farnily Detached Ploperty - MLD Zoning

Perm it Ready Multi-Fam ily/Non-Residential
Property ($ amounts per acre)

Large Lot Property ($ amounts per acre)

Undeveloped Property ($ amounts per acre)

$2,384
2,384
2,384
2,294
2,150
1,937
2,584
2,584
2,584
2,584
2,404
2,241

$214
214
214
214
214
214
ls9
159
1s9
159
159
159

$2,598
2,598
2,598
2,508
2,364
2,151
2,',743

2,',743

2,743
2,743
2,563
2,400

> 3,600
3,200 - 3,599
2,800 - 3,199
2,400 - 2,799
2,000 - 2,399

< 2,000
> 3,600

3,200 - 3,599
2,800 - 3,199
2,400 - 2,799
2,000 - 2,399

< 2,000

N/A
N/A
N/A

N/A
N/A

N/A

N/A

$30,600
11,934
11,934

$31,110
12,954
12,954

$5 l0
1,020
1,020

N/A $ I 1,934

$2,316
2,615

$22,950

$22,950

$214
t59

$2,531
2,174

$12,9s4

s24,378

$24,318

$ r,020

$ 1,428

$ I ,428

(l) Increases by 2oh each Fiscal Year.
(2) Increases by the anrrual June consurnerprice index change forthe San Francisco-Oakland-San Jose area, l.lotto

exceed 4o/o each Fiscal Year.
Source: NBS and the District.

29
Page 315

10/13/2020 Item No.12.



The total special tax generated by the Improvement Area may change frorn time to time if there
are amendrrents or niodificatious to the developnrent plan. The District coveuants in the Local
Obligations Indenture to not approve any arnendments, chauges or modifications relatirrg to developmettt
of the propefty within the Improvement Area tlrat woLrld reduce the amount of the Maxinrum Special Tax
less Priority Adrninistrative Expenses to equal less than one hundred ten percent (l l0%) of the sum of the

Aunual Debt Service on the Local Obligations in any year until the maturity date for the Local
Obligations.

The following table and Tables 5, 6 and 7 under "-Special Tax Calculation" collectively show
the estimated minimum, projected actual and estimated maximum aurourtts of Special Tax reventte during
variotrs stages of tlie Improvement Area's development using Fiscal Year 2021-22 Special Tax rates and

current development status and expectations. Tables 4 and 5 each show for Fiscal Year 2021-22 the
minimum arnourrt of Maximum Facilities Special Tax revenue to be generated in the Improvement Area
(referred to herein as "Effective Tax Rate Evaluatiou Minimum Facilities Revenue" and fufiher defined
below), with Table 4 showing this amount based on the anticipated development at full build-out and

Table 5 showing this amount based on the actual, current development status of the properlies. The
Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Minimum Facilities Revenue is used because the Effective Tax Rate

Evaluation has occuned and the Facilities Special Tax rates have now been set.

Table 6 shows the estimated total Special Tax levy for Fiscal Year 2021-22 based on the

properties' current map status as Small Lot Final Map Property for Villages 4,7 and 8 and as Large Lot
Property for the remainder of the Improvement Area. Table 6 shows both the estimated Facilities Special
Tax levy and the estimated Services Special Tax levy for Fiscal Year 2021-22 based on current
development status and the percentage of the estimated Special Tax levy allocable to each of the current
propeffy owners.

Table 1 shows the projected Maximum Facilities Special Tax, Maximum Services Special Tax
and total Maximum Special Tax at the tirne of full build-out of the Improvement Area, based on the

current development plans. If changes are made to development plans for the Improvement Area, the

projected Maximum Facilities Special Tax, the projected Maximum Services Special Tax and the

projected total Maximum Special Tax may decrease fronr the arnounts shown in the above table, but in no

event will the Maxirnum Facilities Special Tax decrease below the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation
Minirnum Facilities Revenue.

Included below are additional relevant defined terms used in the Rate arid Method of
Apportionment.

"Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Minimunt Facilities Revenlte" rleaus, following the Effective Tax
Rate Evaluation, the total minimurn arnount of CFD No. 23 IAI Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximunl
Facilities Special Tax, as adjusted annually by the Facilities Special Tax Escalation Factor after the Fiscal
Year in which the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation occurs, less any Effective Tax Rate EvalLration

Maximum Facilities Special Tax arnounts prepaid and perrnanently satisfied pursuant to Section K. The
Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Minimum Facilities Reveuue, based on Plauned Development, is set fofih
in Attaclrment D of the Rate and Method of Apportiontnent.

"Effeclive Tax Rate Evaluation Maximunt Facilities Special Zajr" rreans the total maximurt.t

annual Facilities Special Tax, as detennined during the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation, which may be

levied in any Fiscal Year on any Assessor's Parcel of Taxable Properly.

"Effective Tax Rate Evalualion" rreans an evaluation of the Total Effective Tax Rate of
Residential Property at the tirne of such evaluation. The Effective Tax Rate Evaluation will be based

30Page 316

10/13/2020 Item No.12.



upon a prepared Price Point Study to determine the Total Effective Tax Rate for Residential Property,
based upon the calculated Total Estimated Tax Burden.

"Total Effective Tax Rate" rleans the percentage of the Total Estimated Tax Burden as compared

to the estimated average sales price identified in the Price Point Study for each land use category of
Residential Propefty.

"Total Estimated Tax Burden" rreaus the total amount of overlapping property taxes anticipated
to be levied upon a Residential Unit, based upon the estimated average sales price identified in the Price
Point Study and existing property tax rates for the current Fiscal Year. Existing property tax rates shall
reflect the actual property tax rates levied upon Taxable Property in the Fiscal Year that the Effective Tax
Rate Evaluation is completed.

IREMAINDER OF PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK]

31Page 317

10/13/2020 Item No.12.



Property

Table 4
City of Folsom

Communities Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)
Improvement Area No. I

Minimum Revenue Amounts
Fiscal Year 2021-22

Projected Number
of Units

trffective Tax Rate Evaluation
Minimum Facilities Revenue( r)

Village 4
Single-Family Detached Property - SF/SFHD Zoning
Single-Family Detached Property - MLD Zoning

Village 4 Total

Village 7

Single-Family Detached Properfy - SF/SFHD Zoning

Single-Family Detached Propefty - MLD Zoning

Village 7 Total

Village 8

Single-Farnily Detached Property - SF/SFHD Zoning

Single-Farnily Detached Properfy - MLD Zoning

Village 8 Total

Village 10

Single-Family Detached Property - SF/SFHD Zoning

Single-Family Detached Property - MLD Zoning

Village l0 Total

Remaining Villages and Lots

Single-Family Detached Property - SF/SFHD Zoning

Single-Farnily Detached Property - MLD Zoning

MHD Multi-Farnily Attached Property(2)

Total Remaining Villages and Lots

t3
0

73

$ 141,400

$l4l,400

$0

152.384

$152,384

$0

80.674

$80,674

$0

264.431

s264,431

$712,809

0

r 16.953

s829,762

0

68

68

0

36

36

0

118

118

368

0

265

633

Total Minimum Revenue 928 $1,468,650

(l) Increases by 2% each Fiscal Year.
(2) The Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximurn Facilities Special Tax Rate is based upon 9.80 acres.

Source: NBS and the District.

As shown in the table irrrrnediately above, the Improvement Area's Effective Tax Rate EvalLration

Mininrunr Facilities Revenue for Fiscal Year202l-22,based on the anticipated types of lesidences at full
bLrild-oLrt, is $1,468,650. Table 7 below shows the projected Maximum Facilities Special Tax, Maxirlutn
Services Special Tax and total Maxirnurn Special Tax at the tirle of full bLrild-oLrt of the Improvemettt
Area, based on the current development plans. The projected Maximum Facilities Special Tax, as slrowrt

in Table 7, is $1,468,650, which equals the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Mininrum Facilities Revenue

JL
Page 318

10/13/2020 Item No.12.



shown in Table 4. These two arnour.rts are currently equal because the Maximuni Facilities Special Tax
for developed residential property is calculated based on the square footage of the residential floor area.

Because no hontes have been constructed within the Improver.nent Area, the projected Maximum
Facilities Special Tax shown in Table 7 was calculated assunring the smallest residential floor area (and,

correspondingly, the lowest Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rate) for
each ofthe types ofresidences expected at full build-out.

If changes are made to development plans for the Improvernent Area, tlre projected Maximum
Facilities Special Tax, the projected Maximum Services Special Tax and the projected total Maximum
Special Tax may decrease frorn the amonnts shown in Table 7, but in no event will the Maximum
Facilities Special Tax decrease below the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Minirnurn Facilities Revenue

shown in Table 4. See "-Special Tax Analysis" above.

Future Assessor's Parcel Changes. The Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximurr Facilities
Special Tax shall be assigned to all future Assessor's Parcel(s) created frorn a subdivision, lot line
adjustment, or merger of one or lnore Assessor's Parcels so that tlie revised total Effective Tax Rate

Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax revenue is not less than the total Effective Tax Rate

Evaluation Minimum Facilities Revenue amount described in the Rate and Method of Appoftiontnent.

Method of Apportionment - Facilities Special Tax. The CFD No. 23 lA1 Administrator shall
determine the Facilities Special Tax Requirement and levy the Facilities Special Tax until the amount of
Facilities Special Taxes equals the Facilities Special Tax Requirement. The Facilities Special Tax shall
be levied each Fiscal Year as follows:

Firsl: The Facilities Special Tax shall be levied Propofiionately on all Developed
Property at a rute up to 100% of tlre Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum
Facilities Special Tax in order to satisfo the Facilities Special Tax Requirement.

Second: If additional monies are needed to satisfy the Facilities Special Tax Requirernent
after the first step has been completed, the Facilities Special Tax shall be levied
Proportionately on all Small Lot Final Map Propefty atarate up to 100% of the

Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maxinum Facilities Special Tax. The Facilities
Special Tax shall be levied on Small Lot Final Map Property for the entire
portion of the Facilities Special Tax ReqLrirentertt, excluding only Pay As You
Go Costs.

Third: If additional monies are needed to satisfy tlre Facilities Special Tax Requirernent
after the first two steps have been completed, the Facilities Special Tax shall be

levied Proportionately on all Permit Ready Multi-FaniilyA.,lon-Residential
Property at a rate up to 100% of the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximurn
Facilities Special Tax. The Facilities Special Tax shall be levied on Permit
Ready Multi-FamilyA'.lon-Residential Propefty for the entire portion of the

Facilities Special Tax Requiremerrt, excluding only Pay As You Go Costs.

Fourth: If additional monies are needed to satisfy the Facilities Special Tax Requirement
after the first three steps have been completed, the Facilities Special Tax shall be

levied Proportionately on all Large Lot Property al a rate up to 100% of the

Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximunr Facilities Special Tax. The Facilities
Special Tax shall be levied on Large Lot Property for the entire portion of the

Facilities Special Tax Requirertreut, excluding only Pay As Yor-r Go Costs.

JJPage 319

10/13/2020 Item No.12.



Fifth: If additional nronies are needed to satisfy the Facilities Special Tax Requirement
after the first four steps have been completed, the Facilities Special Tax shall be

levied Proportionately on all Undeveloped Property ala rate up to 100% of the

Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax. The Facilities
Special Tax shall be levied on Undeveloped Property for the entire portion of the

Facilities Special Tax Requirement, excluding only Pay As You Go Costs.

Method of Apportionment - Services Special Tax. The CFD No. 23 IAI Administrator shall
detemrine the Services Special Tax Requirement and levy the Services Special Tax until the amount of
Services Special Taxes equals the Services Special Tax Requirement. The Services Special Tax shall be

levied each Fiscal Year as follows:

First: The Services Special Tax sliall be levied Proportionately on all Developed
Property at a rate up to 100% of the Maximum Services Special Tax in order to
satisfy the Services Special Tax Requirement.

Second:

Third:

If additional monies are needed to satisfy the Services Special Tax Requirernent
after the first step has been completed, the Services Special Tax shall be levied
Proportionately on all Sniall Lot Final Map Property atarate up to 100% of the

Maximurn Services Special Tax in order to satisfr the Services Special Tax
Requ irernent.

If additional monies are needed to satisff the Services Special Tax Requirement
after the first two steps have been completed, the Services Special Tax shall be
levied Propoftionately or.r all Permit Ready Multi-FamilyA{on-Residential
Property at a rate up to 100Yo of the Maximum Services Special Tax in order to
satisfli the Services Special Tax Requirement.

Fourth: If additional monies are needed to satisf,i the Services Special Tax Requirement
after the first three steps have been completed, tlie Services Special Tax shall be

levied Proportionately on all Large Lot Property at a rate up to 100% of the

Maximurn Services Special Tax in order to satisfy the Services Special Tax
Requirement.

"Special Tax" tneans the annual Facilities Special Tax and Services Special Tax to be levied in
each Fiscal Year on each Assessor's Parcel of Taxable Property to fund the Facilities Special Tax
Requirement and the Services Special Tax Requirenrent.

"Facilities Special Tax Requirenlenl" means that amount of Special Tax revenue required in any
Fiscal Year for the Improver.nent Area to: (i) Pay Facilities Adninistrative Expenses in an amouut
designated by the City; (ii) pay annual debt service on all Outstanding Bonds due in the Bond Year
beginning in such Fiscal Year; (iii) pay othel periodic costs on Outstanding Bonds, inclr.rding but not
limited to, credit enhancerrent and rebate paynrents on Outstanding Bonds; (iv) pay any arnounts required
to establish or replenish any reserve funds for all Outstanding Bonds in accordance with the Indenture;(v)
pay for reasonably anticipated delinquent Special Taxes based on tlie delinquency rate for Special
Taxes levied in the previous Fiscal Year and kuowrr upcoming delinquencies; and (vi) pay for Pay As
You Go Costs; less (vii) a credit for funds available to reduce the annual Facilities Special Tax
levy as determined by the CFD No. 23lAl Admirristrator pnrsuant to the Indenture.

"Services Special Tax llecluiremenl" nleans the arrlount of Services Special Tax revenne reqLrired

in any Fiscal Year for the Improverlent Area to: (i) Pay Services Adrninistrative Expeuses iu an amount

34
Page 320

10/13/2020 Item No.12.



designated by the City; (ii) pay Authorized Services experlses; (iii) pay any amounts required to
establish or replenish any repair and contingency funds, capital improvement funds, or reserve funds
related to the Authorized Services expenses; (iv) cover any shortfalls that exist if, in any Fiscal Year, the
levy of the Facilities Special Tax on each Assessor's Parcel of Taxable Property is irrsufficient to pay

the Facilities Special Tax Requirement in that Fiscal Year (Facilities Special Tax Requirenrent shortfalls
shall not include Pay As You Go Costs), and (v) pay for reasonably anticipated delinquent Services

Special Taxes based on the delinquency rate for Services Special Taxes levied in the previous Fiscal
Year; less (vi) a credit for funds available to reduce the annual Services Special Tax levy as determined
by the CFD No. 23lAl Administrator.

Iu accordance with the flow of Special Tax proceeds under the Local Obligatioris Indenture, in
the event of a shortfall in the Facilities Special Tax to pay the Facilities Special Tax Requiremertt, the
proceeds of the Services Special Tax will be applied to help cover the Facilities Special Tax shortfall
before being applied to fund Authorized Services. See "SECURITY AND SOURCES OF PAYMENT
FOR THE BONDS-Local Obligations Flow of Funds."

Residential Property Limilation. Under no circumstances will tlie Facilities Special Tax levied in
any fiscal year against Residential Property be increased as a consequence of delinquency or default by
tlre owner or owners of any other parcel or parcels within tlie Improvement Area by more than l}Yo above
the amount tlrat would have been levied in that fiscal year had there never been any such delinquencies or
defaults. Pursuant to tlie Rate and Method of Apporlionrnent, propefty is coltsidered "Residential
Propefty" once a building pennit could be issued for the purposes of constructing one or more Residential
Units. See "CERTAIN RISKS TO BONDHOLDERS-Maximum Special Tax."

Special Tax Calculation

The following tables reflect the estimated Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Minimum Facilities
Revenue for Fiscal Year 2021-22 based on the development status as of October 1,2020 (see Table 5);
the estinrated total Special Tax levy for Fiscal Year 2021-22 based on the properties' current map status

as Srnall Lot Final Map Property for Villages 4,7 and 8 and as Large Lot Property for the remainder of
the Improvement Area (see Table 6); and the projected Maximum Facilities Special Tax, Maximum
Services Special Tax and total Maxirnum Special Tax assuming full build-out of the Improvement Area
and assuming no fufiher changes to the development plans (see Table 7). The following tables do not
necessarily reflect the Special Tax that will be actually levied in any year. See "PROPOSED
PROPERTY DEVELOPMENT-Development Entitlernents" for a discussion of the anticipated timing
of tlre final map approval for Villages 7,2,3,5,6 and 10.

IREMAINDER OF PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK]

35Page 321

10/13/2020 Item No.12.



Table 5
City of Folsom

Community Facilities District No.23 (Folsom Ranch)
Improvement Area No. I

Estimated 2021-22 Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Minimum Facilities Revenue
Development Status as of October 1,2020 (unless otherwise noted)

Estimated 2021-22
Effective Tax Rate

Evaluation Minimum
Facilities Revenue(2)Development Status

Village 4 - Small Lot Final Map Propefty

Village 7 - Small Lot Final Map Propefty

Village 8 - Small Lot Final Map Propefty

Village 10 - Srnall Lot Final Map Plopery(3)

Remaining Villages and Lots - Large Lot Propeffy
Totals:

Planned
Units

73

68

36

118

Appraised
Value(r)

$14,967,520

12,851,305

6,836,921

14,896,010

20.163.989

$ 14 I ,400

152,384

80,614

264,431

829.762
$1,468,650

Percentage of
Estimated 2021-22

Effective Tax
Rate Evaluation

Minimum
Facilities Revenue

9.6%

10/%

55%

18.0%

s6.s%
1000h

OJJ

n8 $69,721,745

(r) These amounts leflect an estimated allocation of value within the Improvemetrt Area and have not been independently verified by the

Appraiser. See "THE IMPROVEMENT AREA-Property Values."
(2) Increases by 2%;o each Fiscal Year.
(3) Scheduled to record during the 4tl'quarter of2020.
Source: Except as otherwise noted, NBS.

36
Page 322

10/13/2020 Item No.12.



Table 6
City of Folsom

Community Facilities District No.23 (Folsom Ranch)
Improvement Area No. I

Estimated 2021-22 Special Tax Levy
Development Status as of October 1,2020

Owner

ECIC/Lennar Homes(r)

KB Home Sacramento
KB Horne Sacramento

Subtotal KB Home Sacramento

Signature Homes

ECIC
ECIC
ECIC
ECIC

Subtotal ECIC

Folsom Real Estate South
Folsom Real Estate South

Subtotal Folsom Real Estate South

7 Small Lot Final Map Properly 68

Development Status

Small Lot Final Map Property

Small Lot Final Map Properfy
Small Lot FinalMap Property

Large Lot Map Properly
Large Lot Map Properly
Large Lot Map Properly
Large Lot Map Properry

Village

l0

3

5

6

Lots C&D

Planned
Units

Estimated
Facilities
Special

Tax Levy

Percent of
Facilities
Special

Tax Levy

22.1%
12.6

34.8o/o

0.0%
0.0
0.0
0.0
0.00

0.0%
0.0
0.0'

Estimated
Services
Special

Tax Levy

$ 1s,637
5,128

s21,365

$22,148
17,235

$39,383

Estimated
Total

Special
Tax Levy

$ I 56,1 87
8s,911

s242,104

$22,148
17,235

s39,383

Percent of
Estimated

Total
Special Tax

Levy

19.9%
r 0.9
30.8

1.7%
2.4
1.8

1.9

7.8o/r

2.8%
2.2
5.IYr

118 5262,842 41.4% $18,776 $281,618 35.8%

4

8

73

36
r09

53

108
45

26s
471

$ r 40,s50
80,1 89

s220,739

$ 15 1,468

$0

23.9% $ 10,820 162,289 20.6

0

0

0

$0

s0
0
0

$ 13,093

18,635
14,093
15,235

$61,057

s r 3,093
18,635
14,093
15,235

$61,057

I

2
Large Lot Map Properry
Large Lot Map Property

162
162
162

Grand Total

(t) Village l0 is currently owned by ECIC but is anticipated to transfer ownership to Lennar Homes.
Source: NBS.

928 $635,050 $151,401 $786,451 100.0%

31Page 323

10/13/2020 Item No.12.



Table 7

City of Folsom
Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)
Estimated Maximum Special Tax Revenue Amounts

Fiscal Year 2021-22
Assuming Full Build-Out

Projected
Maximum

Projected Facilities
Number of Special

Units Tax(r)(2)

Projected
Maximum

Services
Special

Tax(rX2)(3)

Projected
Total

Maximum
Special TaxProperty

Village 4

Single-Family Detached Property - SF/SFHD Zoning
Single-Farnily Detached Property - MLD Zoning

Village 4 Total

Village 7

Single-Family Detached Property - SF/SFHD Zoning

Single-Family Detached Property - MLD Zoning

Village 7 Total

Village 8

Single-Farnily Detached Property - SF/SFHD Zoning

Single-Farnily Detached Property - MLD Zoning

Village 8 Total

Village 10

Single-Farnily Detached Propeffy - SF/SFHD Zoning

Single-Farnily Detached Properfy - MLD Zoning

Village l0 Total

Remaining Villages and Lots

Single-Farnily Detached Property - SF/SFHD Zoning

Single-Farnily Detached Property - MLD Zoning

MHD Multi-Farnily Attached Property

Total Remaining Villages and Lots

73
0

73

0

68

68

0

36

36

0

118

lt8

$141,400 $15,637

$ 1 41 ,400
0

$0

152384

$152,384

$0

80.614

$80,674

$0

264.431

s264,431

$712,809

0

I 16.953

$829,762

$ 15,637
0

$0

10,820

$10,820

$o

5.728

$5,728

$0

18.116

$18,776

$78,826

0

9^996

$88,822

$ 157,036
0

$157,036

$0

163.204

$163,204

$0

86.402

$86,402

$0

283.201

s283,207

s791,634

0

126.949

$918,583

368

0

265

633

Total Estimated Maximum Special Tax Revenue 928 $1,468,650 $139,783 $1,608,433

(r) Incrcases by 2"/o eacl't Fiscal Year.
(2) The maxir.nurn lacilities special tax rate ancl rnaxirnum services special tax rate is based upon the building square lbotage of
the property and is detern.rined at the tirne of building permit issuance. lt is estimated that the building square lbolage lbr all units
fall rvithin the Single-Fantily Detachecl Property - SF/SFI-ID Z<tning or Single-Farnily Detached Property - MLD Zoning Iess than

2. 000 lloor alca catcgorics.
(r) Incleases by the anrrual .lulte consumer price index change lbr the San F'rancisco-Oakland-San .lose area. Ilot to exceed 40%

each Fiscal Y ear.2021-22 increase estirrated at 2o%.
(4) The Efi'ective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rate is based upon 9.80 acres.

Source: NBS.

3BPage 324

10/13/2020 Item No.12.



The Teeter Plan

h"t 1949, the State Legislature enacted an alternative method for the distribution of secured

property taxes to local agencies. This method, knowr.r as the Teeter Plan, is now set forth in Sections

4101-4717 of the California Revenue and Taxation Code. Upon adoption and implementation of tlie
Teeter Plan by a county board of supervisors, local agencies for which the county acts .as "bank" attd

cefiain other public agencies and taxing areas located in the county receive annually the full amount of
their share of property taxes on the secured roll, inch"rding delinquent propeffy taxes which have yet to be

collected. While a county benefits from the penalties associated with these delinquent taxes when they
are paid, the Teeter Plan provides parlicipating local agencies with stable cash flow and the elimination of
collection risk.

To implernent a Teeter Plan, the board of supervisors of a county generally must elect to do so by
July 15 of the fiscal year in which it is to apply. The Sacramento County Board of Supervisors has

adopted the Teeter Plan. Once adopted, a county's Teeter Plan will rernain in effect in perpetuity unless

tlre board of supervisors orders its discontinuance or unless prior to the commencentent of a fiscal year a

petition for discontinllauce is received and joined in by resolutions of the governing bodies of not less

than two-thirds of the parlicipating districts in the county. An electing county tnay, however, opt to
discontinue the Teeter Plan with respect to any levying agency in the county if the board of supervisors,
by action taken not later than July 15 of a fiscal year, elects to discontinue the procedure with respect to
such levying agency and the rate of secured tax delinquencies in that agency in any year exceeds 3% of
the total of all taxes and assessments levied on the secured roll by that agency. See "CERTAIN RISKS
TO BONDHOLDERS-Teeter Plan Termination."

Upon rnaking a Teeter Plan election, a county must initially provide a participating local agency

with 95Yo of the estimated amount of the then accumulated tax delinquencies (excluding penalties) for
that agency. In the case of the initial year distribution of special taxes and assessmeuts (if a county has

elected to include assesslnents), 100yo of the special tax delinquencies (excluding penalties) are to be

apporlioned to the parlicipating local agency which levied the special tax. After the initial distribution,
each participating local agency receives annually 100% of the secured propefiy tax levies to which it is
otherwise entitled, regardless of whether the county has actually collected tlie levies.

If any tax or assessment whicli was distributed to a Teeter Plan participant is subsequently
changed by corection, cancellation or refund, a pro rata adjustment for the amourrt of the change is made

on the records of the treasurer and auditor of the county. SLrch adjustment for a decrease in the tax or
assessment is treated by the County as an interest-free offset against future advances of tax levies under
the Teeter Plan.

The Special Tax for the District will be submitted to the County for direct levy. By subrnitting
the Special Tax to the County, the City has agreed to allow the District to participate in the County's
Teeter Plan. The County annually determines whether to include a pafticular direct levy and may make
that determination on a district by district basis or a parcel by parcel basis. In addition, the County may
rrot decide to include a parlicular parcel or district that had been included in its Teeter Plan in the previous
year. The District can provide no assurance that the County will continLte to include the District or any
improvement area therein, including the Irlproverrent Area, itt the Teeter Plarr.

To the extent tlrat the County's Teeter Plan continues in existence and is carried out as adopted,

the County's Teeter Plan rnay help protect the Owners of the Bonds lronr the risk of delinqr,rencies in
Special Taxes.

39
Page 325

10/13/2020 Item No.12.



THB AUTHORITY

Tlre Authority was created by a Joint Exercise of Powers Agreement, effective April 20,2015
(the "JPA Agreer.nent"), between the City and the City of Folsom South of 50 Parking Authorify. The

JPA Agreernent was entered into pursuant to the Joint Exercise of Powers Act, Chapter 5 of Division 7 of
Title 1 of tlie Government Code of the State. The Authority was created for the purpose of facilitating
financing of public improvement facilities within the City south of US Ror"rte 50.

THE CITY

The Improvement Area is located in tlre City, which is located in the easterly section of the

Sacramento metropolitau area approximately 22 miles east of the central business district of the City of
Sacramento

Certain economic and demographic information witli respect to the City is contained in
APPENDIX B. This infonnation is presented solely as background information. The Local Obligations
are not general obligations of the City but, rather, are special tax obligations of the District secured solely
by the Special Taxes to be paid by the owners of property in the Improvement Area and funds held
pursuant to the Local Obligations Indenture.

THE IMPROVEMtrNT AREA

General Description and Location

The District is a commLrnity facilities district organized by the City Council as the legislative
body of the District under the Mello-Roos Act for the purpose of providing for the acquisition and

construction of certain public irnprovements and the financing of certain services to serve property within
the District. The City established the District on May 26,2020, and designated six separate improvement
areas therein, including the Inrprovement Area. On May 26, 2020, elections were held within the

Improvement Area and the other improvement areas within the District at which the eligible voters in
each improvernent area approved the levy of special taxes in accordance with the respective Rate and

Method of Apportionment of Special Tax for suclr improvement area. In addition, the eligible voters in
the Improvement Area authorized the issuance of bonds in an amount not to exceed $76,000,000 for the

Improvement Area. The District expects that such bonds and any bonds issued for the other improvemeut
areas within the District from tinre to time will be issued to finance the authorized public facilities for the

benefit of the District. With respect to the Improvement Area, such borids will be issued only in

accordance with the provisions of the Local Obligations Indenture. The total bonded indebtedness

authorized in the Improvement Area will be limited by the requirements of the Local Obligations
Indenture, includirrg a 3:l overlapping value to lierr ratio on all land projected to be subject to the levy of
the Special Tax and I 100% annual coverage fi"om the Maximunr Special Tax less Priority Adrninistrative
Expenses. See "SECURITY AND SOURCES OF PAYMENT FOR THE, BONDS- Tenns of the Local
Obl i gations 

-Ad 
cl i t i on o I Loc a I O b I i ga t i on s."

The Inrprovement Area is located in the southern portion of the City, east of East Bidwell Street,
west of Placerville Road, north of Mangirri Parkway and south of U.S. Highway 50 and consists of over
205 total gross acres, of which approximately 109 acres are expected to constitute Taxable Property
sLrbject to the Special Tax. The remainder of the property will include an elementary school, a fire
station, a police substation, parks and additional acreage planned for open space. Developmeut within the

Improverrent Area is planned to include, at the time of full build-out, 441 single-family high density
urrits,222 multi-fanrily low density r-rnits and 265 nrulti-family high density units (pending the successful

contpletion of the plau amendrnent for and rezoning of Lot C, as discussed tlore below), for a total of 928

40Page 326

10/13/2020 Item No.12.



units. Both the sirrgle-farnily high density units and the multi-family low density units, representing 663

total residences, are expected to be developed as detached single-family hornes, and the 265 rnulti-family
high density r-rnits are expected to be constructed as apartrnents. The maps appearing on the inside cover
pages show the general location of the District and the Improvement Area.

Presently, the lmprovement Area includes properlies in varying stages of early developrnent,
inclLrding partially improved lots, unimproved lots and unimproved land. Construction of public
improvements and backbone infrastructure in the Improvement Area is currently underway, as more
particularly described "PROPOSED PROPERTY DEVELOPMENT-Properfy Ownership and Plans for
Development-Development Plan."

The Improvement Area is located southwest of a residential community ttnder current
developrnent know as RussellRanch that is expected to include over 1,000 single faniily dwellings at full
build-out, is inrrnediately nofth of Mangini Ranch, a parlially developed residential comrnunity that is

also expected to inch"rde over 1,000 sirigle family dwelling units at full build-out, and is nofthwest of an

additional residential community known as White Rock Springs tlrat is also under development and

expected to include over 420 single family dwellings.

Property Values

An appraisal of tlie land within the hnprovement Area has been prepared by the Appraiser in
connection with the issuance of the Bonds. The appraisal estimates the land value as of August 14,2020
(the "Appraisal"). The Appraisal is attached to this Official Statement as APPENDIX G.

As of the date of inspection, the Appraiser notes that development of the property is underway.
The subject propefiy was valubd based on the hypothetical condition that the improvements to be

financed by proceeds of the Bonds have been completed. The Appraisal is based on land values at the

time of inspection. The Appraisal is also based on ceftain extraordinary and general assumptions
expressed therein, including ECIC's estimated rernaining development costs of $582,646 pursuant to a

cost sharing agreernent with the property owuer of an adjacent project for shared backbone
inrprovernents; an effective ad valorem property tax rate of 1.1Bl1yo, which may vary depending on

cefiain general obligation tax levies; and incurred site development costs of 522.54 million for the Phase

24 properlies and remaining total site development costs of $63.37 niillion forthe Phase 24, 2B and2C
properties.

Subject to the assumptions and hypothetical conditiorrs, the Appraiser estimated that the value of
tlre larrd within the Improvement Area, as of August 14,2020, irr aggregate, is 569,J21,745. See

"PROPOSED PROPERTY DEVELOPMENT-Development Plan and Status of Developrnent" below
and APPENDIX G - "APPRAISAL."

Value-to-Lien Analysis

The following tables set forth the ratios of the appraised bulk value of the land to the total liens
on the property in the Improvement Area based on the developnrent status as of October 1,2020. See

"PROPOSED PROPERTY DEVELOPMENT-Development Entitlenrents." Tlre value-to-lien ratio for
the Irnprover.nent Area based solely on the Local Obligations and the appraised aggregate value of the

landwithinthelntprovementAreais5.4:1.0.. Theoverallvaluetooverlappingdebtratioincludingdirect
and overlapping assessrrrent and special tax debt is 4.7:1.0- (see "-Overlapping Debt"). Any bonds

secured by special assessrnents or special taxes issued frorn time to time, whether by the District or

* 
I'r'eliminaly. sLrb.lect to changc.

41Page 327

10/13/2020 Item No.12.



another govenlnentalentity, may have the effect of reducing the value to lien ratio on property witlrin the

Improvement Area.

Table 8
City of Folsom

Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)
Improvement Area No. I

Appraised Value-to-Lien Ratios

Development Status(r)
Planned

Units

Estimated
2021-22
Effective
Tax Rate

Evaluation
Minimum
Facilities

Revenue(2)

$ 141,400
1s2,384
80,674

264,431
829.762

$1,468,650

Appraised
Value(3)

Local
Obligationsta)'

Overlapping
p.61rs)

Appraised
Value To

Lien'

Appraised
and

Overlapping
Debt Value

to Lien
Ratio(6)-

Village 4 - Small Lot Final Map Property
Village 7 - Small Lot Final Map Property
Village 8 - Srnatl Lot Final Map Property
Village l0 - Srnall Lot Final Map Property(7)
Other Villages/Lots - Large Lot Property
Total

IJ
68
36

I l8
633
928

$14,967,s20
12,857,30s
6,836,921

I 4,896,01 0
20.1 63.989

$69,721,745

$2,860,s77
3,082,796
1,632,069

5,349,5 s8

$12,925,000

$27t,726
233,858
r 26,803

229,829
996.213

$l,858,429

5.2
4.2
4.2

2.8
N/A
5.4

4.8
3.9
3.9

2.7
20.2

4.1

* Preliminary, sub.ject to change.
(l) As of October 1,2020.
(2) Increases by 2o/o each Fiscal Year.
(3) These amounts reflect an estimated allocation of valne within the Improvement Area and have not been independently verified by the Appraiser. See "-

Propefty Values."
(a) The Local Obligations will be issued with an annual debt service schedule that results in at least l00o% annual debt service coverage from Special Tax

revenues expected to be generated in Villages 4, 7, 8 and l0 net of Priority Administrative Expenses.
(5) 

See "-overlapping Debt" herein.
(6) Value to lien ratio is for the Local Obligations. Local Obligations are issued in the sarne principal amount of the Bonds.
(7) Scheduled to record during the 4'l'quarter of2020.

Source: Except as otherwise noted, NBS.

IREMAINDER OF PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK]

42
Page 328

10/13/2020 Item No.12.



Estimatetl Tax Burden on Single Family Home

The following table sets fofth the estimated total tax burden on single-family high density
residential property (SFHD) and multi-farnily low density residential property (MLD) within the

Improvement Area, presented as an estimate of the majority of proposed homes to be constructed iri the

Improvement Area, based on estirnated tax rates for Fiscal Year 2020-21.

Table 9
City of Folsom

Community Facilities District No.23 (Folsom Ranch)
Improvement Area No. 1

Single Family Residential Property Sample Property Tax Bill
Estimated Charges for Fiscal Year 2020-2I

SFHD MLD
Assessed Value(r)
Less: Homeowner Exemption
Net Assessed Value

Ad Valorem(2)
General Purpose Ad Valorem Tax (Proposition l3)
Los Rios College General Obligation
Folsom-Cordova Unified School District Itnprovement Dist. 2

Folsom-Cordova Unified School District Improvement Dist. 3

Total Ad Valorem Taxes

Special/Direct Assessments and Taxes
Folsom Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch) - Facilities(3)
Folsom Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch) - Services(a)

Folsom Community Facilities District No. 17 (Willow Hill Pipeline)t5)
Folsom Community Facilities District No. l8 (Folsom Plan Area)(5)

Sacramento Area Flood Control(6)
Total Special/Direct Assessments and Taxes

Total Estimated Annual Property Taxes
Effective Tax Rate(7)

1.25420 $6,283.54 $6,283.54

$5o8,ooo
(7,000)

$5o8,ooo
(7,000)

Tax Rate

1.0000%
0.0223%
0.02540
0.206s%

$5,010.00
111.12
127.25

1,034.57

$ 1,899.00
210.00

73.97
991.46

1.53

$2, 197.00
156.00
45.86

732.04
3.00

$501,000 $501,000

$5,010.00
1t1.'72
127.25

1,034.51

$3,175.96 $3,133.90

$9,459.50 59,417.44
l.86210 1.8538%

(r) Estirnated based upon the minirnum sales price for a sample single-family high density unit and a sample rnulti-farnily low
density unit, per the Market Absorption Study prepaled by the Gregory Group.

(2) Based upon 2020-21 Sacramento County ad valorern propefty tax I'ates for TRA 04-035 and 04-036.
(3) Estirnated Maximurn Annual Facilities Special Tax for Fiscal Year 2020-21 . The Maximum Annual Facilities Special Tax

escaf ates annually at 2%o.
(4) Estimated Maxirnum Annual Services Special Tax for Fiscal Year 2020-21. The Maximum Annual Facilities Special Tax

escalates annually based upon the annual June consumer price index change, for the San Francisco-Oakland-San Jose area,

not to exceed 4o%.
(5) 2020-21 Maximum Annual Special Tax. The Maximum Annual Special Tax excludes the Willow Hill Pipeline Special Tax,

which is culrently reflected under Folsorn Cornmunity Facilities District No. l7 (Willow Hill Pipeline). The Area-Wide
Special Tax escalates annually aI 2oh and the Maintenance Special Tax and TDM Services Special Tax escalate annually
based upon the annual June consumer price index change, for the San Francisco-Oakland-San Jose area, not to exceed 4%0.

(6) Approximate assesslrent for residential lots, based on size.
(7) Estimate of annual property taxes does not include any new special financing district fees, assessments, and/or special taxes

imposed by the state, county, or local agencies that are yet to be established or any future annexation into existittg special
financing districts required by conditions for approval of development or any other imposed requirement. Information
contained within is based upon records and official docurnents provided by various govemlxental agencies and third-party
sources.

43Page 329

10/13/2020 Item No.12.



Overlapping Debt

Set forth below is an overlapping debt table showing the existing authorized indebtedness payable
with respect to property within the Improvement Area. Additional indebtedness could be authorized by
other public agencies at any time. Further, a poftion of the overlapping debt shown in the table below is
based on the assessed value of the underlying property, which can be expected to increase over time as

development occurs and the assessed value grows. This table has been prepared by California Municipal
Statistics, Inc. as of August 31,2020, and is included for general infomration purposes only. Other than

with respect to CFD 17, the table below allocates overlapping debt based on the assessed value of
property and not on taxes paid. The District and the Autlrority have not reviewed the data for
completeness or acclrracy and make no represeutations iu connection therewith.

CFD l7 authorized up to $8,000,000 of bonds. The City does not expect to issue any additional
obligations for CFD 11. In addition to CFD 17 and the District, the City has fonned CFD 18, which the

District overlaps, and the City Council of the City has authorized the issuance of $200,000,000 in bonds
to be secured by a special tax on property within CFD 18 on parity with the Special Tax in the

Improvement Area. The City does not currently have a schedule for when such bonds will be issued. A
portion of any bonds issued for CFD 1B will constitute overlapping debt. Other community facilities
districts formed in the Folsom Ranch area will overlap CFD 18 and potentially CFD 17 but are not
expected to overlap the District.

Direct assessments and levies payable with respect to property witliin the Improvement Area
could potentially include up to $750 million of general obligation bonds for tlre School Facilities
Improvernent District No. 3 of the Folsom Cordova Unified School District ("SFID 3"), approved by
voters on March 27,2001. SFID 3 encompasses approximately 52.6 square miles of land including the
District and additional territory outside of the District, including territory in the City of Rancho Cordova
and unincorporated Sacramento County. As of the date of the overlapping debt report, general obligation
bonds irr the aggregate principal amount of approxirnately $195.6 million had been issued and
approximately $192.3 niillion were outstanding for SFID 3. This amount does not include general

obligation bonds issued for SFID 3 in February 2017 that were cross-over refunding bonds. California
Municipal Statistics Inc. handles cross-over refunding bonds by including the bonds to be refunded in the
overfapping debt repofi until the crossover date, at which time the bonds to be refunded are treated as

defeased and the crossover refunding bonds are treated as outstanding. At the tinie of the election
approving the SFID 3 general obligation bonds, the ballot summary indicated the average tax rate per

$ 1 00,000 assessed valuation would be $73.61 . F or 2020-21, the actual SFID 3 tax rate per $ 100,000 was
approximately $206.50. The following table sets forth the ad valorem tax rates for SFID 3 over the past

five years. The future tax levy per property owner in SFID 3 rnay vary depending on future bond

issuance and/or changes in assessed value.
Table 10

City of Folsom
Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

Improvement Area No. I
SFID 3 Ad Valorem Rates

Year Rate(l)

0.2065%
0.1366%
0.t4s1%
0.1878%
0.1259%

(r) TRAs 04-035 and 04-036
Source: NBS.

2020-21
2019-20
2018-19
2017-18
2016-17

44
Page 330

10/13/2020 Item No.12.



Table I I
City of Folsom

Community Facilities District No.23 (Folsom Ranch)
lmprovement Area No. I

Overlapping Debt

2019-20 Local Secured Assessed Valuation: $ I5,939,459 (Land and Inplovements)

DIRECT AND OVERLAPPING TAX AND ASSI]SSMENT DEBT:
Los Rios Community College Distlict
Folsom-Cordova Unified School Distlict School Facilities Improvement District No. 2

Folsom-Cordova Unified School District School Facilities Lrprovernent District No. 3
City of Folsom Community Facilities District No. I 7

City of Folsom Community Facilities District No. 23, l.A. I
TOTAL DIRECT AND OVERLAPPING TAX AND ASSESSMENT DEBT

OVERLAPPING GENERAL FLTND DEBT:
Saclamento County Genelal Fund Obligations
Sacramento County Pension Obligation Bonds
Sacramento County Board of Education Certificates o1'Participation
Folsom-Coldova Unified School District Certificates of Participation
City of Folsom General Fund Obligations
TOTAL OVERLAPPING GENERAL F'UND DEBT

% Applicable
0.008%
0.1 l3
0.734
6.587

100.

0.009%
0.009
0.009
0.07 r

0.r09

Debt 9lll20
$ 31,848

t8,942
1,411,422

396,217
_(t)

$ 1,858,429

$ 1 4,843
66,189

329
2,355
1.771

s85,487

COMBINED TOTAL DEBT $ 1,943,916(2)

( 1) Excludes Mello-Roos Bonds to be sold.
(2) Excludes tax and revenue anticipation notes, enterprise revenue. nlortgage revenue and non-bonded capital lease obligations.

Ratios to 2019-20 Local Secured Assessed Valuation:
Direct Debt ($0)................
Total Direct and Overlapping Tax and Assessment Debt.......................
Combined Total Debt......

0.00'
I I .66o/n

12.20%

Market Absorption Study

In connection with the issuance of the Bonds, the Absorption Analyst prepared the Market
Absorption Study for property in the Improven-lent Area. Based on an analysis of the housing market
dernand-supply conditions in tlie general vicinity of the Improvement Area as well as other
lnacroeconomic and microeconomic factors that are expected to influence the absorption of the
fofihcoming products, in general, and the competitiveness of the proposed housing products in the
marketplace, in pafticular, the Absorption Analyst estimated the dates when the propefiy will be sold to
production hornebuilders and prepared an estimate of the schedule, by product type (including price
range), at which the products will be absorbed in the marketplace. Information concerning the proposed
housing rnix supplied to the Absorption Analyst was provided by ECIC, and by reference to the
requirements of the Specific Plan.

Based on the assunrptions and Iinriting conditions set forth in tlre Market Absorption Study, the
Absorption Analyst has estimated the calendar year absorption schedules for the residential projects,
excluding those multi-family high density units to be included irr Lots C and D, as follows:

45
Page 331

10/13/2020 Item No.12.



Table 12

City of Folsom
Communities Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

Improvement Area No. I
Market Absorption

Units Sold per Year

Property Current Owner
Lot Size
(sq. feet)

4,000

4,050

4,12s

4,000

4,000

4,000

3,07s

3,01 5

llome Sales
Expected to

Begin

Estimated
Weekly

Absorption

1.00

1.00

1.00

1.00

1.00

1.00

1.25

1.25

2020 202t
Total
Units 2022 2023 2024

Village I

Village 2

Village 3

Villages 4 and 8

Village 5

Village 6

Village 7

Village l0

Folsom Real Estate South

Folsom Real Estate South

ECIC

KB Irlonre Sacramento

ECIC

ECIC

FR 68 Lots

ECIC(I)

November 2021

Novenrber'2021

February 2022

December 2020

Septenrber 2022

September 2022

Deoember 2020

January 2021

88

74

53

t09

83

70

68

118

0

0

0

4

0

0

5

0

0

0

0

0

9

9

0

52

52

48

52

l'7

17

0

53

27

l3

5

l

52

52

0

0

0

0

52

63

65

l4

0

Totals/Averages: 663 1.06 9 198 291 150 ls

(r) Lennarhas contlacted to purchase the Village 10 propefties, howeverthe closing of the sale of these properties
to Lennar remains subject to certain conditions. See "PROPOSED PROPERTY DEVELOPMENT-Propefty
Ownership-Lennar Purchase and Sale Agleement."

Source: Absorption Analyst

A copy of the Market Absorption Study prepared by the Absorption Analyst appears in
APPENDIX H to this Official Statement. Tlie Market Absorption Study should be read in detail for an

analysis of the proposed housing rnix for the hnprovement Area and for an explanation of the Absorption
Analyst's methodology and the assumptions underlying and tlie conditions limiting the conclusions
contained therein. The District rnakes no representation as to the accuracy or completeness of the Market
Absorption Study.

PROPOSBD PROPBRTY DEVELOPMENT

Development Entitlements

Specific Plan. On June 28,2011, the City Council approved the Specific Plan for the
development of 10,210 residential homes along with commercial, industrial/office park, open space,
public schools, parks, infi'astructur"e and other land uses on the 3,513.4 acre site of the Folsom Plan Area.
At build out, projected to occur over a 2)-year time frame, the Folsom Plan Area is projected to have a

popLrlation of approxintately 24,362 persons. Along with the 1,455.6 acres of residential developnrent,
the adopted Specific Plan called for 5l I .3 acres of cornmercial, office/industrial and mixed-use, 309.5
acres of public and qLrasi-public use (public and private schools, parks and infrastructure);173.6 acres of
major roads and 1,063 acres of open space.

Various property owners have subrnitted and received approvals of Specific Plan Amendrnents
("SPA's") since the 20ll City Council adoption. These approved SPA's have resulted in various land use

changes compared to tlre Specific PIan that was originally approved in 2011, including an increase in the

46
Page 332

10/13/2020 Item No.12.



total entitled unit count to I I ,461 dwelling un its and reduction to approxirn ately 2.8 m illion sqllare feet of
corn nr ercial, offi celindustrial and m ixed use.

Througlr a Minor Administrative Modification for the Improvement Area, the Specific Plan was
modified to allow for the adjustment of a common lot line between an elementary school site and seven

residential lots in order to accolnlnodate a wider street path that provides irlproved emergency access.

The mirror rnodification was approved by the City Council on April 20,2020.

The Specific Plan is designed to guide and regulate the developrnent for the area within the City
soutlr olUS Route 50.

Tentative and Final Mapping. On February 13, 2018, the City Cor,rncil approved a large lot
vesting tentative map and a small lot vesting tentative map for the subject property krrown as "Mangini
Ranch Phase 2," wliich corresponds to the Improvelnent Area. The large lot final map was recorded on
July 2,2019 and consisted of 26 large lot parcels corresponding to the approved land use plan for
residential and non-residential parcels, including future City-owned parcels offered for dedication.
Subsequent to the large lot final rnap recording, a small lot final map was recorded for Village 7 on
Decenrber 11 , 2019. The small lot final maps for Villages 4 and B were approved by the City Council on
July 28, 2020 and were recorded on August 6,2020. The small lot vesting tentative map, which was
approved on February 13,2018, provided forthe approval of all of the single-farnily high density parcels
and nulti-farnily low density parcels in the hnprovement Area, except for those in Village 10, wlrich was
deferred to a future date. On July 14, 2020,the City Councilapproved the small lot vesting tentative map
and design review permit for Village 10.

To date, finalmaps have been approved and recorded for Villages 4,7 and B, and tentative maps
lrave been approved for Villages 7, 2, 3, 5, 6 and 10. Final map approval for Village l0 is expected in
Novernber 2020, for Villages I and 2 in September 2021 and for Villages 3, 5 and 6 in July 2022. F,CIC
and Folsom Real Estate South believe that all of the tentative rnap conditions, other than adrninistrative
arrd inrrnaterial items, have been satisfied for Villages 1,2, 3, 5, 6, and 10 (which represent the remaining
taxable parcels in the Improvemeut Area, other than Lots C and D). The original small lot tentative map
approval did not include specific design review permits for each of the planned subdivisions, and each of
the builders are responsible for obtaining design review pennits for each of their respective subdivisions.
ECIC is not aware of any requirements for a final map to be approved for the 265 rnulti-family high
density units on Lots C and D and is not aware of any plans by Spanos to propose a final map for these
properties.

Tlre prirnary outstanding entitlement request in the Improvement Area is a Specific Plan
Arnendr.nent, Planned Development and Design Review Permit that has been subnritted in connectiorr
with the proposed rezoning of Lot C to allow for tlie development of the 265 multi-farnily high density
tunits on Lots C and D. The final environmental review and conditions of approval for this proposed

change to Lot C are near completion, and it is expected that pLrblic hearings will be held for this project
later in 2020.

The only rernaining discretionary entitlements within the Improvement Area are design review
permits reqLrired for future builders and the recordation of srnall lot final rnaps for the rernaining single-
famify high density and niulti-family low density subdivisions (Villages 7,2,3,5,6, l0 arrd Lots C and
D).

Based on the current tentative and final subdivision maps and zoning entitlements, the propefty
within the Irnprovement Area is entitled to be developed into 441 single-fanrily high density units (in
Villages I thror"rgh 6),222 mLrlti-family low density units (in Villages 7, 8 and l0) and 265 nrLrlti-farnily

4l
Page 333

10/13/2020 Item No.12.



high density r.urits (in Lots C and D, pending the successful completion of the plan amendnrent for and
rezoning of Lot C, as discnssed above). The single-family high density zoned properties can include 4 to
7 dwelling units per gross acre and can inclLrde either single-family dwellings or two-family dwellings.
Tlre multi-farnily low density zoned propefties can include I to 12 dwelling units per gross acre, and the
multi-family high density zoned propefty can include 20 to 30 dwelling units per gross acre. ECIC
anticipates that the portions of the Improvemerrt Area zoned for single-family liigh density propefties and
multi-farnily low density properlies will be developed exclusively with single family detached units.

The following table describes the status of final maps for the Villages 1 through B and 10 and
Lots C and D within the Improvement Area:

Table 13

City of Folsom
Communities Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

Improvement Area No. I
Final Map Status

Village
I

2

J

4
5

6

7

8

10

LotS C/D
TOTAL

Zoning
SFHD
SFHD
SFHD
SFHD
SFHD
SFHD
MLD
MLD
MI,D
MHD

Number
of Units

88
14
53

13

83

70
68
Jb
I l8
265
928

Lot Sizes
4,000
4,050
4,125
4,000
4,000
4,000
3,015
4,000
3,01 5

N/A

Owner
Folsom Real Estate South
Folsorn Real Estate South

ECIC
KB Home Sacramento

EC]C
ECIC

FR 68 Lots
KB Home Sacramento

Lennar(l)
SPanos(2)

Status of Maps
Tentative Small Lot
Tentative Small Lot
Tentative Small Lot

Recorded
Tentative Srnall Lot
Tentative Small Lot

Recorded
Recorded

Tentative Small Lot
No Final Map Required

Expected Date
September 2021

September 2021

Iuly 2022

Iuly 2022
Iuly 2022

November 2020
N/A

(r) LennarhascontractedtopurchasetheVillage l0properties,howevertheclosingofthesaleoftheseproperties
to Lennar remains subject to ceftain conditions. See "PROPOSED PROPERTY DEVELOPMENT-Property
Ownership-Lennar Purchase and Sale Agreement."

(2) Spanos has contracted to purchase the Lot C and Lot D properlies, however the closing of the sale of these
properties to Spanos is conditioned upon the successful cornpletion of the plan amendment for and rezoning of
Lot C.

Source: ECIC.

Development Conditions/Building Permit Limitations. Certain provisions of the PFFP for the
Folsom Plan Area, as inrplemented through the tentative subdivision lrap conditions, place Iimits on tlre
number of ,building pennits that can be issued before certain facilities and/or backbone infrastructure is in
place. Thdse provisions/conditions could, but are not expected to, affect build-out of the Improvement
Area.

For exarnple, tentative map conditions require a fire station to be operational prior to the
occupancy of the l,500tr'home in the Folsonr Plan Area. See "FOLSOM PLAN AREA-Public Facilities
Financing Plan-Public Facilities-the Folsom Plan Area" for details on the City's plans for construction
of the fire station. The City is responsible for building and operating this fire station and would expect to
waive or modify this condition as it deems necessary to balance development witlrin the Folsoni PIan
Area and the increasing fire service needs of the Folsom Plan Area as development progresses.

Also, it is currently anticipated that "Phase 2" water backbone facilities will be needed prior to
approxirnately 2,800 br"rilding pennits being issued in the Folson Plan Area. This estirlate is based on

4B
Page 334

10/13/2020 Item No.12.



projections regarding assulned daily water demarrd, the expected land use mix within the Folsom Plan
Area and other factors. To the extent the actual water demand amounts, land use mix within the Folsom
Plan Area and other factors vary fronr these expectations and assumptions, the "Plrase 2" water backbone
facilities may be needed sooner or later tlrarr the issuance of the 2,B00th building permit.

As of July 31,2020, final maps had been approved and recorded for 1,889 dwelling units. There
are currently 2 additional final maps submitted to the City for review with approximately 189 dwelling
urrits. It is anticipated that all of these final maps will be recorded by December 2020, including the 118

dwelling units in Village l0 of the Improvenrent Area. See "-Development Entitlernents-Water Supply
Infrastructure" below for details on the status of the Phase 2 water pipeline and the current plan for its
financing.

Also as of July 31,2020,606 building permits had been issued in the Folsom Plan Area for other
projects underway, including the City of Folsom Community Facilities DistrictNo. 19 (Mangini Ranch)
("CFD 19"), the City of Folsom Community Facilities DistrictNo.20 (Russell Ranch) ("CFD 20") and

the City of Folsom Community Facilities District No. 21 (White Rock Springs Ranch) ("CFD 21").
Collectively, CFD 19, CFD 20, CFD 21 and the hnprovement Area are expected to include 4,195
dwelling units,606 of which have been issued building pennits and 1,889 of wliich have received final
map approval. ECIC and the District do not believe that these conditions will materially irnpede
development of the Improvement Area. However, multiple other development projects are underway in
the Folsom Plan Area, and if there were an unforeseen and significant delay in constructiolr in the
Improvement Area it is possible that otlier development within the Folsorn Plan Area will overtake
development of the Improvement Area, resulting in the need for construction of the fire station and Phase

2 water backbone facilities before all building pennits could be issued for the Improvement Area.

External access to the project site will be provided via East Bidwell Road to the west, Alder
Creek Parkway to the north and Placerville Road to the east. Internal vehicular circulation is accessed

from Westwood Drive and Old Ranch Way. Pedestrian circulation is provided by a combination of street
separated sidewalks, open space trails, park trails and pathway connections. Proposed on-site
improvements include: underground utilities, drainage improvemerrts, retaining walls, driveways, ou-
street parking, curbs/gntters, sidewalks, pathways, trails, fencing, site lighting, site landscaping, and park
enhancernents.

Tlie Folsom Ranch Central District Design Guidelines (of which the Improvement Area is a part)
were approved by the City concurrent with the Tentative Map approvals on June 23,2015. The design
guidelines provide for the orderly developnrent of the proposed single farnily residential subdivision. The
primary purpose of these design guidelines is to articnlate the general architectural and design
expectations for the proposed residential neighborhood, the landscapes, hardscapes, open spaces, ferrcing,
entry features and site lighting. The goal of the design guidelines is to establish a regulatory frameworl<
for the design of individual homes on the residential lots. The final design details of the homes are

subject to review and approval by the City's Planning Commissiorl as paft of a future Design Review
application.

Arnry Corps of Engineers Welland Perntitting, Biological Opiniott, Sn'eambed Ahercttion
Ag"eentents and Section 106 Contpliance. On May 22,2074, the U.S. Anny Corps of Engineers (the
"USACOE") issued a Record of Decision ("ROD") for the Folsorn South of U.S. Highway 50 Specific
Plan Project - City of Folsonr Backbone Infrastructure. This wetland perniit covered the wetland
perniitting requirements for the entire backbone infrastructure necessary to serve the Folsom Plan Area.
To the extent backbone infrastructure was required witlrin a propefty owner's land, the backbone wetland
pernrit authorized the filling of waters of the U.S. necessary for such construction. Each landowner
thereafter is required to obtain their own wetland permit for the fill ofjurisdictional wetlands not included

49
Page 335

10/13/2020 Item No.12.



irr the footprint of tlre backbone wetland permit. As discussed irr greater details below, the Folsom Plan

Area has received all required environntental pemiits.

Deyelopntent Agreement. Through City Ordinance No. 1149, the City approved a Tier I

Development Agreement between the City and the property owners within the Folsom Plan Area on

July 12, 2011. The effective date of the ordinance was August 11, 2011. The Tier 1 Developrnent
Agreement vests ceftain rights of the propefiy owners and of the City, commits eaclr party to the

agreernerrts to subsequent actions before development may proceed within the Folsorn Plan Area.
Separate First Amended and Restated Tier I Development Agreements (the "ARDAs") were entered into
among ceftain property owners and the City for their applicable properties, as approved by the City
thror"rgh City Ordinance No. 121 1 . The ARDAs for the property owlrers comprisirrg the propefiy within
the Improvernent Area were recorded in the official records of the County of Sacramento in July 2014.
The City entered into Amendrnent No. I to the ARDA with Carpenter East, which was recorded in the

official records of the County of Sacramento in January 2016. The City also entered into Amendment
Nos. I and 2 to the ARDA with Folsom Real Estate South, which were each recorded in tlre official
records of the County of Sacramento in January 2016. See 'c-Property Ownership."

Article 2.5 (cornmencing with Section 65864), of Chapter 4, Division 1, Title 7 of the State

Govenrment Code, peftaining to developrnent agreements, has the general effect of authorizing
development to continue in accordance with then existing General Plan, Specific Plan, zoning and

subdivision regulations notwithstanding any subsequently enacted conflicting regulations, except for
regulatior"rs the failure of which to enact would place the residents in a condition whiclt is dangerous to
their health or safety or both.

Environmental Permits and Approvals. The Califomia Environrnental Quality Act ("CEQA"),
constituting Division 13 of the State Public Resonrces Code (comrnencing with Section 21000) requires
that an Environmental Impact Report (an "EIR"), detailing the significant environrnental effects of the
project and proposed mitigation lneasures, be prepared, considered and certified as complete by a public
agency prior to its taking discretionary action on any project which may have a significant effect on the

environment.

In June 2017, after statutorily required public notice, hearing and cornrnent, the City Council
certified as adequate and complete a final EIR/EIS for the Specific Plan for the development of the

Folsorn Plan Area. The EIR/EIS satisfied both CEQA and the National Environnrental Policy Act for the

entirety of the Folsorn Plan Area. In February2015, the City Council adopted the South of Highway 50

Backbone Infi'astructure Project Initial Study/Mitigated Negative Declaration (Backbone Infrastructure
MND), dated Deceniber 9,2014. This CEQA project level document satisfied the required environmental
review for the construction of backbone infrastructure for the entire Folsonr Plan Area, inclLrding the

Inrprovement Area. However, a Specific Plan and General Plan Amendnrertt is required in connection
with the development of Lots C and D for the multi-family high density Lrnits.

The Folsom Plan Area has received all required environmental pernrits, inclLrding a Section 404

Pernrit for the entire Folsorn Plan Area pursuant to Section 404 of the federal Clean Water Act. This
pernrit allows for any necessary fill of jurisdictional wetlands and streanrbed alterations for the

construction of backbone infi'astructure to serve the entire Folsom Plan Area at bLrild-out. In addition, a

Biological Opinion has been obtained from the US Fish and Wildlife Service for the entire Folsom Plan

Area, together with a California Department of Esh and Wildlife Master Strearnbed Alteration Permit
with conditions for the whole of the Folsonr Plan Area. All of the property in the lmprovemeut Area
subject to the Special Tax has received its Section 404 Permit and a subnotification approval frorn the

California Depaftment of Fish and Wildlife.

50Page 336

10/13/2020 Item No.12.



Water Supply. The City entered into an agreement (the "Water" Supply Agreement") with the

property owuers in the Folsom Plan Area providing for a water supply for new development soutli of
US Route 50. The Water Supply Agreenrerrt was supported by an addendurn to the EIR. The Water
Supply Agreement provides adequate water supply for fLrll build out of the Improvelxent Area arrd the rest

of tlre Folsom Plan Area (except the porliorr of the Folsonr Plan Area serviced by the El Dorado Irrigation
District). The arnount of water provided in the Water Supply Agreement to meet the build-out demands

of the Folsom Plan Area project is projected to be 5,600 acre-feet annually.

Water Supply in Folsom Generally. The prirnary water supply source for the City of Folsom is

Folsom Reservoir, which provides the water sLrpply for all of the City south of the American River. The
City has water rights and contracts for up to 34,000 acre-feet annually ("afa") through three different
contracts with the Uriited States Bureau of Reclamation ("Reclarnation"). The surface water supplies
were developed through different circumstances and, as such, are subject to unique conditions arid

lirnitations. These attributes and issues affect the volume of water available under cefiain conditions.
Surface water supply for the portions of the City north of the American River is obtained through a
contract with the San Juan Water District, and therefore is not a directly owned City supply. The surface

water supplies for the City's water service area are listed below.

A pre- 1914 appropriative water right for 22,000 acre-feet per year (Agreement with
Reclamation)

A pre-1914 appropriative water right for 5,000 acre-feet per year (Co-Tenancy agreement

with Golden State Water Company)

. A Central Valley Project ("CVP") water service contract for 7,000 acre-feet per year
(Parlial Assignrnent from Sacrarnento Courrty Water Agency to the City of Folsom and

used in the Cify's East Area)

The City's 22,000 acre-foot entitlement is based on a pre-1914 appropriative right from the South

Fork of the American River established by tlre Natoma Water Conipany ("Natoma") in 1851. Natoma's
original pre-1914 water right established a maxirrum diversion rate "to fill a Canal Eight feet wide and

Four feet deep witli a cltrrent running Ten m iles per hour." This correlates to a diversion rate of 60 cubic
feet per second and a maxirnum allocation of 32,000 afa. This riglit is held with Golden State Water
Company pursuant to a co-tenancy agreement. The City's 5,000 acre-foot entitlement is also based on

Natorna's pre-1914 appropriative right from the South Fork of the American River. In November 1994,
the City executed a contract with Southern California Water Conrpany-Folsom Division ("SCWC") under
which the City acquired the rightto lease 5,000 afa (of SCWC's remaining 10,000 afa underthe original
Natoma purchase) for an indefinite period. Tlris right is held witlr Golden State Water Company pursuant
to a co-tenancy agreement. This water riglrt was also fbnnally recognized in the settlement agreement

between Reclamation and the Cify. As authorized by Public Law No. 101-514, the City was a

subcontractor under Sacramento County Water Agency's (SCWA) CVP water-service contract for 7,000
afa. Irr 2016,the United States, the City and SCWA conrpleted an assignment of this pofiion of SCWA's
CVP water-service contract from SCWA to the City.

Urrder the agreements with Reclamation for 22,000 afa and 5,000 afa, Reclamation delivers this
entire water supply without reduction olr a penr-lauent basis. Under the agreement with Reclamation for
7,000 afa of CVP water, this water supply faces possible reductious pursuaut to Reclan-ration's Municipal
and Industrial Water Slrorlage Policy. lt't 1994, the City entered into an agreement with Golden State

Water Corrpany (f/k/a Southern Califomia Water Cornpany, hereirt "GSWC") to acquire the right to
divert up to 5,000 acre feet of pre-1914 water rights annually (the "CSWC Agreelnent"), subject to the

terms and conditions of that agreel.nent. Under the CSWC Agreernent, the City is reqLrired to pay for the

5l
Page 337

10/13/2020 Item No.12.



entire 5,000 acre-feet annual water supply regardless of whetlrer the City is able to divert and use that
quantity of water. The City has been using the sr,rpplies provided in the GSWC Agreement to serve the
existirrg portion of the City known as the "East Area." The cost of water under the GSWC Agreement
has, in the past, been paid for by East Area landowners and water customers.

Source of Water for the Folsom Plan Area. The City has detennined that its Water Systems
Optimization Review Program and implementation of metered rates will provide additionalwater supplies
in an estimated anrount of 6,450 acre-feet per year, which is in addition to the present and forecasted
denrands of the City's existing water users. The City intends to nse a poftion of this 6,450 acre-feet per
year of available water to meet present and future water demand in the East Area in order to make the
5,000 acre-feet per year of GSWC Agreement water supply available for use in tlie Folsom Plan Area, on
the tenns and conditions of that Agreement. To meet this intent, the City has convefted the East Area
water supply from the GSWC Agreement to the less expensive CVP water service contract. The City
would meet the additional bLrild-out water demand of the Folsom Plan Area with approxirnately 600 acre-
feet per year of water produced by the Water Systerns Optimization Review Program that is in excess of
the water demand in the East Area. The water made available under the GSWC Agreement and Water
Systems Optimization Review Program will be sufficient to supply the projected water demand in the
Folsom Plan Area. Pursnant to the provisions of Sections 860 et seq. of the State Code of Civil Procedure
and Government Code Sections 53511 and 53589.5, the City filed a complaint in the Superior Court of
the State for the County of Sacramento to validate the agreement. The Superior Court detennined that the
agreement: (a) is lawful, valid, enforceable and in the best interests of the City and all persons in any way
interested therein and (b) is consistent with all applicable laws and obligations, including the Measure W
water supply requirement.

The City's Community Facilities District No. 2013-l (Water Facilities and Supply) (the "Water
CFD"), was formed by the City in 2014. The cost of the GSWC Agreement water will initially be paid
for by the Folsonr Plan Area through special taxes collected for the Water CFD on certain property in the
Folsom Plan Area, including the Improvernent Area. When a building permit has been issued and a

custorner billing accourrt has been established, the developed parcel is no longer subject to the levy of the
special tax for tlre Water CFD and thereafter pays for water through water rates.

Ilater Con.servation. The City adopted Ordinance 1llB, Chapter 13.26 of the Folsom Municipal
Code ("FMC"), Water Conservation. Chapter 13.26 establishes a five stage water conservation progran
with conservation goals and water use restrictions. The City Manager is authorized to implement and

enforce whatever couservation measures are deemed necessary to achieve the water reduction
requirements of the declared conservation stage.

Woter Supply Infi'aslructta'e. Existing water infrastructure and pipelines run to the north side of
US Route 50. For the fir'st phase of infrastructnre, the developers of the Folsom Plan Area constructed
improvements to connect this water supply and extend water infi'astructure pipelines to serve the initial
phases of developrlent in the Folsonr Plan Area. In a second phase, the Folsorn Plan Area developers
will be required to construlct irrproverrents at the existing City water treatment plant to include a water
booster pump station and constr"Lrct a uew water pipeline transmission main frorn the water treatrrlent plant
site into the Folsont Plan Area to serve the area-wide development with potable water. In order for each

individual parcel to access that water supply, the developers of those parcels will need to extend
infi'astructure to theil sites.

The extension of the water supply line fi"on-r lron Point Road to the Folsom Plan Area boundary at
US Route 50 was corrpleted in March 20l8. The Phase 2 water pipeline is required to be constructed to
provide for expanded water transmission conveyance capabilities to deliver water frorn tlte water
treatrrent plaut to tlre Folsorn Plan Area once dernand reaches tlre equivalent of approxirnately 2,800

52
Page 338

10/13/2020 Item No.12.



dwelling units in tlre Folsom Plan Area. As of July 31,2020, final maps had been approved and recorded
for approxinrately 1,889 dwelling units. There are currently 2 additional final maps submitted to the City
for review with approxirnately 189 dwelling units. It is anticipated that all of these final maps will be

recorded by Deceniber2020, includingthe 1lB dwelling units in Village 10 of the ImprovementArea.

The Phase 2 water pipeline is expected to be initially funded by developers within the Folsorn
Plan Area, SPIF and proceeds from bonds issued for CFD l8 and frorn a proposed CFD 24. Issuance of
CFD l8 bonds is anticipated to occur in tirne to cou'lmence construction ol'l the Phase 2 pipeline and

booster pump with enough time to complete constructiort before cumulative water demand in the FPASP
reaches a maxirnnm of 2 million gallons per day. Depending on the pace of absorption, recent estimates

assurre CFD 1 8 bonds may be issued when approximately 1,500 - 2,000 residential buildirig pennits have

been issued. As documented in the CFD No. 18 CFD Hearing Reporl prepared in connection with the
fonnation of CFD 18, up to $10.2 million in proceeds from the first CFD 1B bond sale could be available
to firnd Phase 1 water and sewer facilities (approxirnately $3.5 rnillion) and Phase 2 water facilities
(approximately $6.7 million). As described below, the City has considered use of CFD 1B bond proceeds

in excess of $6.7 million for Phase 2 water facilities. In February 2018, the first round of developers
within the Folsom Plan Area began conducting alignment studies. As of December 13,2018, developers
within the Folsorn Plan Area engaged Hydroscience Engineers for design of the Phase 2 water pipeline.
City has commenced environmental review of the proposals. Construction on the Phase 2 pipeline is

expected to be completed in three to five years. The Pliase 2 water pipeline is projected to cost

approximately $25.5 million, with approximately $19.5 million funded frorn CFD 18 proceeds, but may
be more or less depending on the market factors, costs of supplies, cost of labor and other factors at the
time construction commences. The rernaining costs of the Phase 2 water pipeline are expected to be

funded through the proposed financing strategy described below, subject to subsequent actions by the

City and property owners.

The City has received a request from various developers within the Folsonr Plan Area to create
CFD 24 to supplement the CFD 18 special tax and help fund the Phase 2water pipeline. Because the
CFD 18 facilities special tax is levied on a parcel once it has been issued a building perrnit or upon
issuance of a final small lot subdivision map (when CFD 18 bond are outstanding), there rnay not be
sLrfficient CFD 18 bond proceeds to fully fund Phase 2water facilities when construction would need to
cornmence. Accordingly, the developers have preliminary requested forming CFD 24 that would impose
a separate special tax on each undeveloped property in the Folsom Plan Area. Under the current proposal,
the CFD 24 special tax would be levied on each of the undeveloped properties in the Folsom Plan Area
until a building permit was issued, at which tirne that property would no longer be sLrbject to the CFD 24

special tax but would be subject to the CFD 18 special tax. As proposed, a CFD 24 bond sale would
provide gap financing for any Phase 2 water facilities not funded through CFD l8 bond proceeds. The
City has not yet determined whether CFD 24 will be fonned or, if formed, to what extent it will conform
to the current request from the developers.

Waslewater Trealment. The Sacramento Regional County Sanitation District has an existing
wastewater treatnent plant with its ongoing and perrnitted improvement projects projected to
accolrrrodate all wastewater from development in the Folsom Plarr Area. Existing sewer transmission
rurains are capable of conveying wastewater fi"om the Folsom Plan Area and initial development sites
(including the Inprovernent Area) to the existing treatment plant.

Flood Zones. According to the Federal Emergency Management Agency flood map, the
Irnprovenrent Area is in Zone X, whiclr consists of areas deternrined to be outside of the 500-year flood
plain.

53
Page 339

10/13/2020 Item No.12.



Fire Zones. The Improvenleut Area is located within an area identified as a moderate fire hazard
severity zone. More infonration regarding Fire Hazard Severity Zones can be found at the California
Deparlment of Forestry and Fire Protection website at https://frap.fire.ca.gov, though such website is not
incorporated herein by reference. The developrnent within the Improvement Area is subject to mitigation
measures set forth in a fuel modification plan approved by the City Fire Department. The mitigation
lneasures include, among others, Iiniitations on the type of vegetation that nray be planted within fuel
modification zones established in open space areas along ceftain pofiions of the perimeter of the

Improvement Area, minimum setback of structures and irrigation requirements of the fuel modification
zones. Maintenance of such zones is expected to initially be the responsibility of tlie propeffy owners but
upon build-out of the Improvement Area and dedication of the open space to the City will be maintained
by the City from funds provided through CFD I B. Honreowner's insurance is expected to be available to
propefty owners within the hnprovement Area, and the coverage provided by such insurance typically
insures against fire darnage, althougli there is no assurance that horneowners within the Improvement
Area will purchase or maintain such insurance.

Affordable Housing. The City and ECIC entered into an Inclusionary Housing Agreement for the
single-family high density and rnulti-farnily low density properties in the Improvement Area, which is

recorded in the official records of the County of Sacramento and provides for ECIC's compliance with the
Cify's inclusionary housing requirement by paynient of an in-lieu fee to the City. Any inclusionary
housing plan for Lots C and D would be a separate entitlement and would be conditioned for that project

specifically, if required. ECIC is not aware of any proposed inclusionary housing for Lots C and D.

Utilities. All typical urban utility services for finished lots will be extended to the lots. These

utilities include electric power, natural gas, telephone, cable television, water, refuse, and sanitary sewer

and storm water facilities. The City provides water, sewer, refuse and storm water facilities, and police
and fire services. Pacific Gas & Electric provides natural gas and the Sacramento Municipal Utility
District (SMUD) provides electric service. Comcast provides cable service.

Property Ownership

The information in this section has been provided by ECIC, Folsom Real Estate South, KB
Home Sacramento and Signature Homes. The District and the Underwriter believe this
information to be reliable, but can give no assurances that it is accurate or complete.

Information in this section is included because it may be considered relevant to some
investors to an informed evaluation and analysis of the taxable property within the Improvement
Area and any existing or future improvements thereon as security for the Bonds. The information
contained in this section does not guarantee that property ownership will not change or that the
current or any subsequent property owners will pay the Special Tax when due. In fact, as

described herein, ownership of much of the taxable property in the Improvement Area will change
prior to development thereof. The Special Tax will constitute a lien on parcels subject to taxation
within the Improvement Area and not a personal indebtedness of the owners of property within the
Improvement Area. There is no assurance that the present property owners or any subsequent
owners will have the ability to pay the Special Taxes or that, even if they have the ability, they will
choose to pay the Special Taxes. An owner may elect to not pay the Special Taxes when due and
cannot be legally compelled to clo so. Neither the District nor any Bond Owner rvill have the ability
at any time to seek payment directly from the owners of property within the Improvement Area of
the Special Tax or the principal or interest on the Local Obligations, or the ability to control who
becomes a subsequent owner of any property within the Improvement Area.

54
Page 340

10/13/2020 Item No.12.



The proposed development plan within the District is known as "Improvement Area No. 1."

ECIC and Folsom Real Estate South currently own a majority of the Improvement Area, wlrich is

r.rltimately expected to be developed into 928 residential units (pending the successful completion of the

plan amendment for and rezoning of Lot C, as described above). In Septeuiber 2019, ECIC sold 73

single-family lrigh density lots and 36 multi-family low density lots to KB Honie Sacramento,

representing tlre properties in Villages 4 and 8, respectively. In February 2020,ECIC also sold 68 multi-
faniily low density lots to Signature Homes, representing the properties in Village 7. Although ECIC's
sale of the Village 4 and 8 properties and Village 7 properties to KB Home Sacramento and Signature
Homes, respectively, have closed, both KB Home Sacramento and Signature Homes have a post-closing

obligation to fund ceftain development costs.

ECIC is currerrtly under contract to sell an additional 118 multi-family low density final mapped

lots to Lennar (the "Lennar Purchase and Sale Agreement"), representing the properties in Village 10.

Also, ECIC is under contract with Spanos to sell Lots C and D as a finished building pad and utilities for
tlre eventual development" of 265 multi-family high density housing units. ECIC's sale of Lots C and D to
Spanos is conditioned upon the successful completion of the plan amendment for and rezoning of Lot C,

as discussed above.

ECIC and Folsom Real Estate South are each currently in negotiation, or expect to be in
negotiation in the future, with other merchant builders to sell the remaining property in the Improvement
Area. Folsom Real Estate South has entered into a signed letter of intent for the parcels in Villages 1 and

2. The related purchase and sale agreernent for Villages I and2 is in the process of being finalized, and

initial deposits are expected in late November 2020. ECIC has received written offers for each of
Villages 3, 5 and 6 but not letters of intent for these properties have been signed. See "PROPOSED
PROPERTY DEVELOPMENT-Development Plan and Status of Development" for a discussion of the

anticipated sales of the remaining Improvement Area properties to merchant builders.

Lennar Purchose ancl Sale Agreement. ECIC and Lenuar entered into an Agreenrent of
Purclrase and Sale dated June 20,2019. The Village 10 property proposed to consist of I lB rnulti-family
low density residential lots is trnder contract for sale to Lennar and is expected to close when the lots

reach finished lot condition, the final subdivision map is ready to be placed on the City Council agenda,

and Lennar has executed the Subdivision Improvement Agreement and posted bonds.

Pursuant to the Lennar Purchase and Sale Agreement, Lennar paid ECIC an "lnitial Deposit" of
$400,000. Lennar also made payments of $2,015,000 and $3,450,000 representing the "Feasibility
Approval Deposit" and the "Blue Top Lot Deposit," respectively.

The balance of the pr"rrchase price will be paid in connection with the closing. ECIC expects that

the Village l0 lots will be in a position to close by Deceniber 2020.

If the conditions precedent set forth in the Lennar Purchase and Sale Agreement are llot satisfied
prior to December 31 ,2020, then Lennar is entitled to a "Delivery Delay Credit" equal to 12%o per annurll

on tlre sum of the Initial Deposit, the Feasibility Approval Deposit and the Blue Top Lot Deposit ($58,650

per nionth) if ECIC fails to deliver the finished lots by that date. Further, commencing on Jutre 30,2021,
if ECIC has still not delivered the finished lots, Lennar would have the right to terminate the agreernent,

in which case Lennar would be entitled to the return of all deposits. In tlre alternative, Lennar could
proceed to close on the Village l0 lots, in wlrich case Lennat'would be entitled to a holdback in the

arrount of 1100/o of the estirlated cost to corlplete the finished lots.

55Page 341

10/13/2020 Item No.12.



There are several conditions in the Lennar Purchase and Sale Agreement that rnust be met before
the Village l0 lots may close escrow, and ECIC cannot guarantee that it will close the sales of the Village
l0 lots to Lennar at the time anticipated and described in this Official Statement, or at all.

ECIC. The main developer of the property in the Improvemeut Area is ECIC, a Califomia
limited liability company formed in August 2019. ECIC is coniprised of three parlnership interests: Class
A, Class B and Class C. The Class A participants are comprised of seven difTerent individuals with
varying participating membership interests. The Class B member, also the nranaging member, is HBT
ECIC, LLC ("HBT ECIC"). The Class C member is Cargini Investors, wliich is the land seller and
promissory note holder. The members of HBT ECIC include GTFG Mangini, LLC (an affiliate of
Goodfellow Bros. California, LLC), Williarn Bunce, Jolin Hagenbuch and John Telischak whom are also
principals in projects adjacent to the Improvement Area where they liave significant land holdings and
control nrore than 2,000 acres with the potential for more than 8,000 residential units and non-residential
land uses.

All decisions of ECIC are made by the appointed officers who are Messers. Bunce (President),
Hagenbuch (Vice President) and Telischak (Vice President). Messers. Bunce, Hagenbucli and Telischak
also serve as the president, Chainnan and Managing Director of Westland Capital Partners, L.P.
("Westland"), respectively. The three managers are suppofied by other staff and consultants of
Westland including Project Managers Rob Aragon and Rick Jordan and CFO Kim Harrns. In addition,
ECIC retained Development Consulting Services, Inc., a professional constructior-r rranagement company,
to oversee the project on a full-time basis. Mr. Bunce, as President, is responsible for all operating
decisions but consults regularly with the other officers on most operating decisions and all strategic
decisions.

Folsom Real Estate South: Folsorn Real Estate South, a California limited liability aompany,
currently owns Villages 1 and 2 along witli other propefties in the Improvement Area not currently
expected to be subject to the Special Tax. lolsom Real Estate South is a land investment cornpany that
expects to ultimately sell Villages I and 2 to merchant builders. Folsorn Real Estate South, like ECIC, is
managed by Messers. Bunce, Hagenbuch and Telischak.

KB Honte Sacramento: KB Honie Sacramento is a California corporation and a wholly owned
subsidiary of KB Home, a Delaware corporation tlrat is traded on the New York Stock Exchange as

"KBH." KB Home's principal executive offices are located in Los Angeles, Califorrria. KB Home is one
of the largest and most recognized homebuilding companies in the U.S. and has been building homes for
over 60 years, with more than 600,000 homes delivered since its founding in 1951. According to KB
Horne, duririg the year ended November 30, 2019, it had operations located in eight states and closed
1l,B7l homes, an increase of approximately 4.9Yo compared to 2018. Additional infontration on KB
Home, including Annual Reports and related financial statements, prepared in accordance with generally
accepted accounting standards, can be found on the investors relations tab of www.kbhome.con. This
internet address is includedfor reference only andthe inforntalion on lhe Internel sile is not a parl oJ'this
Official Slalement and is not incorporated by reference into this OlJicial Stulemenl. No representalion is
ntade in this Official Statement as to lhe accuracy or adequacy of the inJit"ntnlion conlained on the
inlernel site.

Signature Homes: FR 68 Lots is a California limited liability conpany and the owner of the
parcels in Village 7 of the Inrprovement Area. FR 68 Lots is managed by SignatLrre Hor.ues, Inc., a

California corporation, and is owned by three separate rnenrbers, eaclr of which is affiliated witlr a

rnernber of the executive team of Signature Horles, Inc. Due to their affiliation, FR 68 Lots and
Signature Hornes, Inc. are referred to herein collectively herein as "Siguature Hor.nes." Signature Homes,
Inc. is responsible for making the decisions relating to the developrrent of Village 7. SignatLrre Honres,

56
Page 342

10/13/2020 Item No.12.



Inc. is based in Pleasanton, California, has been constructing honres in nofthern California since 1983

arrd, as of September 1,2020, has successfully delivered 13,500 homes. Key decisions for Signature
Holnes, Inc. are principally rlade by its executive team, which consists of Jirn Ghielrnetti, Chairman of
the Board and Chief Executive Officer; Gary Galindo, President; Steve Miller, Executive Vice President
of Land Acquisition & Forward Planning; Juliann Cretsinger, Vice President of Sales and Marketing; and

Rob Buck, Vice President of Operations. Additional infornratiou on Signatut'e Homes Inc., including
ceftain biographical infonnation for the executive tealn, can be foLrnd on the "onr culture" tab of
www.siglromes.com. This internet address is included for reference only and the information on the
Internet site is not a part of this Official Statement and is not incorporated by reference into this Official
Statement. No representation is made in this Official Statement as to the accuracy or adequacy of the
information conlained on the internet sile.

Development Plan and Status of Development

Unless otherwise indicated, the information provided in this section has been provided by
ECIC, X'olsom Real Bstate South, KB Home Sacramento and Signature Homes and has been
included because it may be considered relevant to an informed evaluation and analysis of the Bonds
and the Improvement Area. No assurance can be giveno however, that the proposed development of
the property within the Improvement Area will occur in a timely manner or in the configuration or
to the density described herein, or that BCIC, Folsom Real Estate Southo KB Home Sacramento
and Signature Homes, any owners or affiliates thereof, or any other current or subsequent property
owners, will or will not retain ownership of its respective property within the Improvement Area.
The City, the District ancl the Underwriter can provide no assurances as to the accuracy of the
information in this section.

ECIC and Folsom Real Estate South have collectively secured entitlements for the development
of up to 663 residential lots and 10.67 acres of land proposed for multifamily use in the Improvement
Area. At the time of full development, it is anticipated that the Improvement Area will include 441

single-family high density units,222 multi-family low density units and 265 rnulti-farnily high density
units (pending the successful completion of the plan amendment for and rezoning of Lot C, as discussed
below), for a total of 928 residential units. The Improvement Area is also planned to include an

elementary school, a police substation, a fire station, parks and trails. The development plans take
advantage of the site's topography with single-loaded streets thror"rgh rnr.rch of the site to maximize scenic
vistas of the valley to the west, and open space areas on the property.

The Lnprovernent Area is comprised of eight seqLrentially numbered "Villages" and three
additional lots referred to as "Village l0," "Lot C" and "Lot D," respectively. Property within the
Improvement Area is in the early stages of developrnent and is anticipated to be completed in three main
phases: Pliase 24, Phase 2B and Phase 2C. Phase 2A of development within the Inrprovement Area
includes Villages 4,7, 8 and 10 and Lots C and D and is entitled for a total of 560 units at the time of full
buifd-oLrt, cornprised of 73 single-family high density ur-rits,222 multi-fanrily low density units and 265
rnulti-faniily high density units (pending the successful completion of the plan arnendrlent for and

rezoning of Lot C, as discussed below). Phase 28 of development includes Villages 1 and 2 and is

entitled for a total of 162 single-family high density units at the tirne of full build-out. Phase 2C of
devefopment includes Villages 3, 5 and 6 and is entitled for a total of 206 single-family high density units
at the time of fLrll bLrild-out.

There is a pending application for a Specific Plan Anrendment, Planned Development and Design
Review Permit for the 265 multi-fanrily higlr clensity project to be located in Lots C and D. This
amendment would rezone Lot C from 58 residential Lrnits to 120 residential units. The final

51
Page 343

10/13/2020 Item No.12.



envirol'lrrelltal review and conditions of approval are nearing completion, and this project is expected to
be sclreduled for pLrblic hearings in later in2020.

To date, final maps have been approved and recorded for Villages 4,7 and 8, and tentative maps
have been approved for Villages 1,2,3,5, 6 and 10. For the propefties located in Villages I through 8

and 10, which are expected to include single-family high density and multi-farnily low density units, the
only remaining discretionary entitlernents are design review permits required for future builders and the
recordation of sniall lot final maps (for Villages 1, 2, 3, 5, 6 and l0). ECIC is uot aware of any
requirements for a final nrap to be approved for the 265 multi-farnily high density units on Lots C and D
and is not aware of any plans by Spanos to propose a final map for these properties.

KB Home Sacrantento: Construction of homes on the 109 residential lots within Villages 4 and 8

is anticipated to be completed by KB Horne Sacramento as homebuilder. The 109 homes proposed to be
constructed within Villages 4 and B are expected to be constructed as single-farnily residential hornes with
a single product type with 4 different floorplans ranging in square footage from 1,429 to2,689 and witli
base prices from $500,000 to $630,000. KB Home Sacramento's design review package for the 109

proposed homes was approved by the City on May 6,2020. l<B Home Sacramento subniitted its rnodel
lrome architectural plans to the City in JLrly 2020 and expects to obtain building permits and begin
construction for the rnodel homes in December 2020 and begin delivering completed homes in Septernber
2021.

Signature Hontes: Constructiou of homes on the 68 residential lots within Village 7 is anticipated
to be completed by Signature Homes as homebuilder. Signature Homes anticipates that the 68 homes in
Village 7 will range in size frorn 1,940 to 2,417 square feet and will be priced from $515,900 to
$545,900. Signature Homes' design review package for the 68 proposed homes was approved by the City
on June 17 ,2020. SignatLrre Homes submitted its model home architectural plans to the City in July 2020
and expects to obtain building pennits and begin construction for the model homes in October 2020 and
begin delivering completed homes tn May 2021.

ECIC expects to develop the property in Villages 1,2,3,5, 6 and 10 and Lots C and D to finished
lot condition. ECIC comr.nenced rough grading and improvements on the Phase 2,{ lots in Septernber
2019 and expects to be completed by the end of 2020. Specifically, the initial grading and improvement
of Village 7 is substantially complete, including paved streets, and Village 7 is curuently available for
rnodel home permits to be issued. Villages 4 and B and 10 are under construction arid scheduled to be
paved irr nrid-October and November 2020, respectively. ECIC and Folsom Real Estate Soutli anticipate
sellirrg their rernaining properties, representing Phases 2B and 2C of the development within the
Improvement Area, to rnerchant builders. The occurrence and timing of these sales and the condition in
which these properlies will be delivered by ECIC or Folsom Real Estate South, as applicable, has not yet
been determined and is sLrbject to change. Phase 28 is planned for developrnent in 2021 and Phase 2C is
expected to begin developmenl in 2022. The following table is a snmmary of product types by project
phase:

58
Page 344

10/13/2020 Item No.12.



Phase

Table 14

City of Folsom
Communities Facilities District No.23 (Folsom Ranch)

Improvement Area No. I
Summary of Product Types by Project Phase

Typical Lot
Size/DensityBuilder

Horne Size
(Estimated Average)

Total
Units

Phase 2,i\
Village 4

Village 7

Village 8

Village l0
r Lots C and D

KB Home Sacramento
Signature FIomes

KB Home Sacramento
Lennar(l)
SPan65(2)

To be deterrnined
To be determined

To be determined
To be determined
To be determined

4,000 square feet
3,075 square feet
4,000 square l-eet

3,015 squale feet
26 units/acle

4,000 square f'eet

4,050 square f'eet

4,125 square feet
4,000 square feet
4,000 square feet

2,256 square feet
2,000 square feet
2,000 square feet
2,000 square feet
1,000 square feet
Phose 24 Subtottl

2,256 square feet
2,256 square t-eet

Phase 2B Subtotal

73

68
36

lr8
265
560

Phase 28
Village I

Village 2

Phase 2C
Village 3

Village 5

Village 6

88
74

162

53

87
66

206

2,256 square f-eet

2.256 square feet
2,256 square feet
Phose 2C Subtotnl

Total 928

(r) Lennar has contracted to purchase the Village l0 properties, however the closing of the sale of these properties
to Lennar remains subject to certain conditions. See "PROPOSED PROPERTY DEVELOPMENT-Propefty
Ownership-Lennar Purchase and Sale Agreement."

(2) Spanos has contracted to purchase the Lot C and Lot D properties, however the closing of the sale of these
properties to Spanos is conditioned upon the successful completion of the plan amendment for and rezoning of
Lot C.

Source: ECIC.

Public project amenities include a future 5.6-acre neighborhood park, a26-acre community park,
an elementary school, a fire station, a police substation and additional acreage for open space. The
community will also feature a network of several miles of on- and off-street bicycle and pedestrian trails.
While the open space, trails and comlnon area landscaping will be developed by ECIC, the park, fire
station, police substation and school sites will be transferred to the City arid the Folsorn-Cordova Unified
School District, respectively, for future developnient. Additionally, undisturbed natural preserve areas

have been set aside to protect sensitive biological habitat and provide passive open spaces throughout the
community.

The nrap on the following page reflects the lot mix and the zoning of developrnent within the
Inrprovement Area reflecting planned development of 928 total units.

IREMAINDER OF PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK]

59
Page 345

10/13/2020 Item No.12.



City of Folsom
Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

Improvement Area No. I
Master Plan

ILLUSTRAT.IVN MASTER PLAN AXHIBIT

Mangini Ra4gh
h iryt., tiFiffil {*. Llll
*i'-u l'&ti- {iild

a'&.*dlF*gd.
iis

{i1:s

IREMAINDER OF PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK]

!ini:.-..!

mfffrfif*$nn}

60
Page 346

10/13/2020 Item No.12.



Development Plans of Finance

ECIC Plan of Finance. The infi'astructure and development of the Improvement Area will be

funded through a combination of the following sources:

(1) ECIC equity
(2) Proceeds from sale of bonds, including the possible sale of Additional Local Obligatiotts

for the Irnproverrrent Area
(3) Proceeds from sales of lots to homebuilders
(4) Proceeds from school site sale
(5) Reimbursement of eligible SPIF facilities from the City of Folsom

In addition to residential lot sales, ECIC will receive proceeds from the sale of an approximately
lO-acre elementary school site. The Folsom Cordova Unified School District (FCUSD) intends to
purchase the 10-acre elementary school site at a time to be determined by the FCUSD. There are no

agreements in place with respect to the FCUSD's acquisition of the school site at this time.

ECIC entered into a Cost Sharing Agreement with the propefty owner of an adjacent project
known as the Enclave ("Enclave") for common backbone improvements serving both the Enclave and

ECIC's properlies. Under the Cost Sharing Agreement, ECIC and Enclave retained Goodfellow
Construction as the general contractor for the public improvements associated with East Bidwell Street,

Aldei Creek Parkway, Westwood Drive, Old Ranch Way and Hydromod Basin #19, each located within
the Improvement Area. Goodfellow Construction provided construction financing for tliis work under a

tri-party loan agreement with ECIC and Enclave. Construction of the $ 19.3 million of improventents, of
which ECIC is responsible for $8.5 million, began in May 2019 with final inspections conducted in July
2020.

The construction loan frorn Goodfellow Construction was secured by a Deed of Trust on certain
parcels owned by ECIC and Enclave. ECIC's Deed of Trust secured a loan facility of up to $5.5 million
for ECIC's portion of the comnloll infrastructure. In September 2019, ECIC also retained Goodfellow
Construction to act as general contractor to develop other public infrastructure required for the

development of the balance of ECIC's properly. Goodfellow Construction also provided construction
financing for these additional improvements, and the original $5.5 rnillion Deed of Trust was anrended

and increased to corresporrd to a rnaximum loan facility of $20 million for the delivery of the Phase 2,A

development.

Another source of funds will come frorn reimbursemeut of eligible SPIF iniprover.nents or fee

credits. ECIC will provide fee credits to future builders within the Improvement Area. However, it is

anticipated that ECIC will have outstanding reimbursements of approxitnately $2.3 million after all
available fee credits have been applied to builders within the Improvement Area. ECIC would receive
reimbursement from the City on a priority based upon when the eligible improvements were constructed.
Additionally, ECIC intends to sell fee credits to other builders within the Folsom Plan Alea as provided in

the Development Agreement.

As of June 30, ECIC had incurred total development costs of $12.6 million for the Phase 24
work. Wlren cornbined with its share of the Enclave offsite improvenrents, ECIC's Phase 2,A total
construction budget is $40.1 rrrillion, of which $20.5 nrillion has been incurred through June 30,2020.
Tlre remaining $19.6 nrillion is expected to be incurred through tlie end of 2020 to ensure delivery of the

265 single-family residential lots in Phase 2A and tlie 10.67-acre multifamily parcel (Lots C and D).

61
Page 347

10/13/2020 Item No.12.



As of June 30, ECIC had initiated civil inrprovernent plan design for Phase 28, which includes
the extension of Savannah Parkway to the eastern boundary of Village 1 and the completion of Westwood
Drive forthe portion between the CFD 19 tenninus and the Enclave offsite linrits of work. The grading
and improvement costs forthese roadways are estimated at $12.3 nrillion, plus $2.0 million of estimated

soft costs. Phase 2C includes the completion of Savannah Parkway to Grand Prairie Drive and the Alder
Creek Parkway and Westwood Drive frontage improvernents adjacent to Villages 5 and 6. The Phase 2C
backbone costs are estimated at $7.1 million, plus $1.2 million of soft costs. In total, there are $23.2
milliorr of remaining grading and backbone costs for Phases 2B and 2C.

The following tables describe ECIC's plan of finance, including its estimated sources and uses of
funds for Phase 2A (Table 15) and a detailed listing of the estimated overall and remaining construction
hard costs for Phase 2,A (Table 16) and the estimated grading and backbone and subdivision
irnprovernents for Phases 28 and 2C, including both hard costs and soft costs (Table 17).

Table 15

City of Folsom
Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

Improvement Area No. I - Phase 2A
ECIC Plan of Finance - Sources and Uses of Funds

(amounts in thousands)

CaBh Sourasg

pertne rehlp f nterElt Contributlon

Lst Sole fiersnilE

{on!trHrtf on Progress PsVm€n tE

CFD #!3 Procaads

Sclrool 5ite Sela

F€a Credlts

Construclion Lsan

Tptrl crsh rcurcEs

2019 2010 lo2t 2.472 2s2il Total

j,800 17,521

91867 ?7,79A 2,764 7,2.20

26,24{ 72,8}L 8n05i ?i1,845 16,611 1r18,6:i6

3,57:1

10,s39

1,85 t

18,632

13,4.5t1

1t,000 8,538

$,6il4

2.373

!$71

53,01!

13,3S1

21,638

5i880

2,371

47,1$l:

Ca3h U!.e5

Land Acquirttlon

lntarost Crn Sellor Flnanclng

Censtruclion C{!sts

lnt€reit on {cnstrbction Loen

RPpr?ment of Con5t|.rjrtion Lsan

Ssles Comrnissions

Lot Cloilflg Costg

Solt/M iscatfa neoue C6it5

TBtel ce3h uieg

lncraa5e {De<r€asEl for ptrlod

{ash st b€ginfiing of year

Cash avelleble for Fertnershlp lntErest Dlslrlbutlons

aat

27,958

bll

-31,948

288

183

5,5',17

7.llcl

215

175

7,401

3,O00

9jf

10,598

142

1,70S

8t

3g

:,981

1.t00

827

t,\73

2,264

v3

58

1,2:18

3,500 8,000

807 ilo4

\,7zfi

7t

56

137

18,St!0

2,439

d3,641

7S{

47,14f

t!!
512

!7,6&4

20,5i$ 71,29f 7p27 23,043 8,718 130,923

s$9s 1,582

5,659

?,893

9"820

lt,7L3?37 1,802

?.?s1 8,018

5,699 7,281 3,018 9,820 L7,7L3

62

!7,7L!

Page 348

10/13/2020 Item No.12.



Note: "Construction Plogress Payments'' refcr to the paynents macle by KB l-lomc Sacranrento and Signature Ilornes to ECIC
r"rnder the lespective purchase and sale agrcerrenls and post-closing liccnsc agleements in connection rvith the dclivery of
flnished lots.

Source: E,CIC.

Table 16

City of Folsom
Community Facilities District No.23 (Folsom Ranch)

Improvement Area No. 1 - Phase 2A
ECIC Plan of Finance - Construction Hard Costs

Ravlred ProJecl
Sudgd

U3€ BF FUhIBS
Congtrucllon ll srd Coalt
GBSA. E.nclav{ Cost Sharlng
GBneral Conditiofis
tdas€ Grzdc [Onsiis, Wcst#ood & Old Ranch]
Sld Ranch Road
W*shaood Brive
Ald€r CrRBk Parkway
Ea$[ Sldrnell

flydromDd Aasin #19
Joinl Tr€llch
Dalta 1 Ch*nge Order
Dalia 2 ChangE grdsr
Rstsnlien
RsHnding

Eub-lot:l GSCA * Encl.vr Cost Sharlng

GECA. Manglnl R,f,nch Phass 2

Village C

Villaga I
VillaSB 7

Old Ranch Way
AA Driv6
Wsst Savsfinsh
Villape 10
Earlhwo{k
Gensral Condiiiofls
Conslrucfion ContingEfi sy
0v*rhoad/Markup
Rctsnlien

gub-total SACA . Henglnl Ranch Ph,as. 2

Othnr Su:b-C6nlrectfi r*
gTl-ldass Grading
BTI-Wst utiliti*s
Rock Crushing
Eoundrrralls
Rataining Tfallf
Lands.ceping

3ilb-total OthBr 8ub-C onl16ctora

23S,359,85
157,541.0r
81S,t34.50
37s,304.59

t.345,462.84
1.464,439.36

633,907.S0
1,163,882.81
2,056,S65.S5

503,613.56
0.00

{0.0'*}

232,fiofi.84
158,G1S"74
s13,488.17
374,718.44

1.342,887,43
1.+30,254_42

633,9$7.60
1,163,882_80
2,S56,S6.5.O6

416,$65.68

{5S0,33,*.66}
{0-34}

7.353.01

{478 73)
5.648.33

586.15
2,975.41

34,584.S.f
0.00
0-01

i0.o1)
87,5.48.18

560,334,66
0.30

6.560311.43 7.8S1,861-18

2.409,957.44
t,161.621.0S
2,976.563.77
I,000.463.18

594.452.25
.t.582.713.84

4,t21,833.53
6.235.276.S8
t.464,1fi8.55
.i.726.386.35

2.582.664.59
D.OO

1.070,72$-3?
54:t,871 .00

1"272,1*3.00
3S7,381-0n
15p,870-[0
327,840-50
37,500.00

5,141,429-4D
854,984.92

0_00

1_253,781-81

{431,44s.80)

698.55035

I ,33S.2?S.12
819.750.0S

1,704,460.77
603,082.18
441.582.28

1,254.873.34
4,184.333.&3
1,093,847.28

60s,120.33
r,726.386.35
r,328.88S.78

431.,t4*.&0
25,356,041.38 10.819,043.4S 15,336.357.S3

1,036,261 .78
922370.00
227.500.0r)
850.000.00

t,033,240.00
! ,432,400.00

1,036.261 .78
735.085-82
204.43S-1S

0-*0
o.*0
o.*0

0.00
1 87,38[.18

23,0S1.8'1
850.0$0.{}0

'1,033.240.00
-t,432;{00.00

5,501,871 .78 1,975,789.?g 3,526.081.SS

Totat Conslructlon Herd 0osts

63

,i0,018.324.5S 2fi.456,69.{.42 1S,561.63[.17

Page 349

10/13/2020 Item No.12.



Table l7
City of Folsom

Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)
fmprovement Area No. I - Phases 2B and 2C

ECIC Plan of Finance - Grading and Backbone and Subdivision Improvement Costs

Phase 23 Phase 2C

Gradlng & Backbone lmprovements

Mass Grading

Erosion Control/ SWPPP

Hydromod Basin 23
Westwood Drive

Savannah Parkway

General Conditions

Subtotal Grading & Backbone

Slbdivis ion lrno rovemenls
Village 1

Village 2

Srrbtotal Subdivisions 762

Total lmprovement Costs

Soft Costs {Allowance}

lotal Development Costs

)
s

5

$

s

$

5

5

$

s

Est, C6t

2,400,000

600,coo
896,CSo

2,962,L25
4,2!O,&75

5 1,250,000

12,319,000

4,532,625
500,o00

3,849,750

350,O00

5 g,zge,:rs

21,551,375
3,232,7&6

I z+,78a,o8t

Gradlng & Backhone lmtrovements

Mass Grading

Erosion Control / SWPPP

Alder Creek Parkway
Westwaod 0rive {1i
Savannah Park\,vay

Generai Conditions

Subtotal €r:ding & Backbone

Subdivision I mprovements
Village 3

Ret Walls
Village 5 & 6

Ret Walls

Subtotal Subdivisians 206

Total lmprovement Costs

Soft Costs (Allowance)

tst. Cost

500,o00
150,0@

1,250,000

850,000

4,138,875

$ 75o,0oo

S 7,638.87s

2,835,000

250,000
7,500,000

250,000

S 1o,83s,ooo

78,473,875
2,77LA81

Ret Walls

Ret Walls

Lots

53

153

Lots

88 )
5

)
s

5

s

5

5

Ls% ) 15%
s
s

Total Development Costs I 21,244,956

{1} Costs are for landscaping and concre:€ frontage irnprovernents only. Assumes

Westwood Drive is constructed by others,

64
Page 350

10/13/2020 Item No.12.



KB Honte Sacramento Plan of Finance. I(B Home Sacramento expects to use home sales

revenue and internally generated funds to complete its site development and home construction of its
property within the Improvement Area. Through August 31, 2020, KB Home Sacrarnento estimates that
it has irrcurred approximately $14.2 million on developing its propeffy in the Improvement Area,
including land acquisition and site development costs. KB Home Sacramento anticipates expending an

additional approximately $41 million to cornplete the acquisition and development of its property within
the Irnprovement Area, including, without lirnitation, the costs to complete site development and

construction of all 109 proposed homes and market and sell all such homes to individual homebuyers.

Although KB Home Sacramento expects to have sufficient funds available to coniplete its
planned development in the Improvement Area as described in this Official Statement, there can be no
assurauce that amounts necessary to finance the remaining land acquisition, development and home
construction costs will be available frorn KB Home Sacramento or any other source when needed. While
KB Home Sacramento has made such internal financing available in the past, there can be no assurance
whatsoever of its willingness or ability to do so in the future. Neither KB Home Sacrarnento, nor any of
its related entities are under any legal obligation of any kind to expend funds or obtain loans for land
acquisition or the development of and construction of homes on its property in the Improvement Area.
Any contributions by KB Home Sacramento to fund the costs of such land acquisition or development are
entirely voluntary.

If and to the extent that internal funding, including but not limited to home sales revenues, are

inadequate to pay the costs to complete the planned developrnent by KB Home Sacramento within the
Improvement Area and other financing by KB Home Sacramento is not put into place, there could be a
shortfall in the funds required to complete the planned development by KB Home Sacramento of its
property in the Improvement Area.

Signature Hontes Plan of Finance. Signatrlre Homes expects to use internally generated funds to
complete its site development and home construction of its property within the Improvement Area.
Signature Homes has also secured a loan from Housing and Capital Cornpany sufficient to fund the
development costs of its property in tlie Improvement Area. Through July 22,2020, Signature Homes
estimates that it has incurred approximately $6.73 million on developing its propefty in the Improvement
Area, including land acquisition and site development costs. Signature Homes anticipates expending an

additional approximately $3.56 million to complete the development and anticipates spending an

additional $25.7 rnillion to complete construction of all 68 proposed homes and market and sell all such
homes to individual liomebuyers.

Although Signature Homes expects to have sufficient funds available to complete its planned
development in tlre Improvement Area as described in this Official Statement, there can be no assnrance
that amounts necessary to finance the remaining land acquisition, developnrent and lrome construction
costs will be available frorn Signature Homes or any other source when needed. While Signature Homes
has made such internal financing available in the past, there can be no assurance whatsoever of its
willingness or ability to do so in the future. Neither Signature Honres, nor any of its related entities are

under arry legal obligation of any kind to expend funds or obtain loans for land acquisition or the
development of and construction of homes on its property in the Improvement Area. Any contributions
by Signature Homes to fund the costs of such land acquisition or developnrent are entirely voluntary.

If and to the extent that internal funding, inclLrding but not linrited to home sales revenues, are

inadequate to pay the costs to complete the planrred development by Signature Homes withiu the
Irrprovement Area and other financing by Signatr"rre Honres is rrot put into place, there coLrld be a
shortfall in the funds required to complete the planned development by Signature Hornes of its property in
the lmprovement Area.

65
Page 351

10/13/2020 Item No.12.



Backbone and Common Infrastruclure. As described above, ECIC is underway on completing
the onsite backbone and comrnon infrastructure for developnrent Phase 24. As of July 3l,2020,ECIC
had spent a total of $23.1 million on these improvemerrts, including its share of the Enclave corrmou
backbone and infrastmcture improvemerrts, and anticipates spending an additional $17.3 rnillion before
the end of the year to finalize the development of the Phase 2A propefties. See "-Development Plan and
Status of Development."

As of June 30, 2020, ECIC had initiated civil improvement plan design for Phase 28, which
includes the extension of Savannah Parkway to the eastern boundary of Village 1 and the cornpletion of
Westwood Drive for the portion between the CFD 19 tenninus and tlie Enclave offsite limits of work.
The grading and improvement costs for these roadways are estimated at $12.3 rnillion plus $2.0 million of
estimated soft costs. Phase 2C includes the completion of Savannah Parkway to Grand Prairie Drive and
the Alder Creek Parkway and Westwood Drive frontage improvements adjacent to Villages 5 and 6. The
Phase 2C backbone costs are estimated at$1.1 million plus $1.2 rnillion of soft costs. In total, there are

$23.2 nrillion of remaining grading and backbone costs for Phases 2B and 2C.

Subdivision Improvements. Remaining infrastructure for development of the Improvement Area
includes intract infrastructure such as underground utilities, subdivision roadways, street Iighting,
soundwalls and landscaping iniprovements. Such intract improvements are being constructed by ECIC.

The total subdivision improvements in the Improvement Area are estimated at $23.0 million,
including all design, construction staking, plan check, inspection, habitat rnitigation and other project
related soft costs.

Specific Plan Infrastrlrcture Fee Credits and Improventents. The SPIF is administered by tlie
City for tlie purposes of collecting irnpact fees for plan area wide improvements for the construction of
roadways, water, sewer, drainage, dry utilities, recycled water and habitat rnitigation in the Folsom Plan
Area. The purpose of the SPIF is to require each landowner to pay its fair share of Folsom Plan Area
area-wide improvements and to be reimbursed for any amount expended in excess of a landowner's fair
share requirernent. Under the terms of the SPIF Ordinance adopted by the City, property owners in the
Folsom Plan Area will be eligible to enter into an agreement with the City and receive future
reimbursements (that are conveftible to fee credits for use within the owner's property) in exchange for
the construction of eligible SPIF improvements. Based on the amourrt of improvernents eligible for SPIF
reimbursement, all of the properlies within the Improvement Area are anticipated to fully cover their SPIF
obligations through the conversion of these SPIF reimbursernents to SPIF fee credits. After applying the
SPIF reimbursel.nents as SPIF fee credits to all properlies in the Improvement Area, all arnounts expended
in excess of the project's SPIF obligation are expected to be reimbursed from the City as other SPIF fees
are collected in the Folsom Plan Area.

Within tlie Folsom Plan Area, initial development will be required to pay a "SPIF Set-Aside"
component to address initial water and sewer facility costs. This is a loan of SPIF collections to help the
cash flow forthe initial water and sewer costs. It will be repaid or equalized to all properlies throLrgh the
SPIF program as well as through CFD 18. The SPIF Set-Aside will apply to the first 2,500 Folsom Plan
Area dwelling units that would be subject to the SPIF. A portion of the SPIF will be required to be paid
regardless of whether a developel/propefty owner has advance-fLrnded eligible SPIF infrastructure and has
executed a Fee ReimbLrrsement Agreemerrt through the City. An exception to this rule is that a ploperly
owl.ler who constructs cefiain water or sewer infrastrllcture for which the SPIF Set-Aside is being
collected nray take a credit against the SPIF Set-Aside. This is applicable to ECIC in relationship to prior
entities controlled by Westland having advance-funded Phase I water and sewer costs for which the
SPIF Set-Aside was created to partially fund.

66
Page 352

10/13/2020 Item No.12.



ECIC has purchased SPIF Set-Aside credits from Mangini Improvement Company ("MIC"),
which retains the rights to the SPIF Set-Aside reimbLrrsemeuts frorn facilities that were constructed in
CFD 19. The transfer or sale of the SPIF Set-Aside credits is allowed under tlre terms of the
Development Agreement(s) affecting tlie Improvernent Area. MIC and ECIC have entered into a separate
agreer.nent to sell SPIF Set-Aside credits to ECIC, which in turn, will transfer the SPIF Set-Aside credit to
its honrebuilders.

In addition, in August 2020, the City approved an ordinance amending certain provisions of the
SPIF ordinance to irrclude a new SPIF - Offsite Water Set-Aside. This new SPIF - Offsite Water Set-

Aside will be payable at the building permit stage and will not be eligible to be offset by fee credits.

CERTAIN RISKS TO BONDHOLDERS

This section provides a general overview of ceftain risk factors which should be considered, in
addition to the other matters set forth in this Official Statement, in evaluating an investment in the Bonds.
This section is not meant to be a comprehensive or definitive discussion of the risks associated with an

investrnent in the Bonds, and the order in which this information is presented does uot necessarily reflect
the relative irlpoftance of various risks. Potential investors in the Bonds are advised to consider the
following factors, among others, and to review this entire Official Statement to obtain inforrnation
essential to making of an infonned investment decision. Any one or more of the risk factors discussed
below, alnong others, could lead to a decrease in the market value and/or in the rnarketability of the
Bonds. There can be l1o assurance that other risk factors not discussed herein will not become material in
the future.

Risks of Real Estate Secured Investments Generally

The owners of the Bonds will be subject to the risks generally incident to an investment secured
by real estate, including, without limitation, (i) adverse changes in local market conditions, such as

changes in the market value of real property in the vicinity of Improvement Area, the supply of or
demand for competitive propefties in such area, and the market value of residential property or buildings
and/or sites in the event of sale or foreclosure, including as a result of tax reforrn; (ii) changes in real
estate tax rates and other operating expenses, governlnental rules (including, without lirnitation, zoning
laws and laws relating to endangered species andhazardous materials) and fiscal policies; and (iii) natural
disasters (including, without lirnitation, earlhquakes, fires and floods), which may result in uninsured
losses.

No assurance cau be given that ECIC, Folsom Real Estate South, KB Horne Sacramento,
Signature Homes, any of the other propeffy owners or any future homeowners within the Improvernent
Area will pay the Special Tax in the future or that they will be able to pay such Special Tax on a timely
basis. $ss "- Bankruptcy" below, for a discnssion of certain limitations on the District's ability to
pursue judicial proceedings with respect to delinquent parcels. Further, many homes within the
Improvement Area will have a higher-than-average price point as compared to other horles in the region,
which may impact the absorption of the residential irnits witlrin the Improvement Area.

Levy of the Special Tax

The principal source of payment of debt service on the Local Obligations, fi"orn which funds for
the payment of the Bonds are derived, is the proceeds of the annual levy and collection of the Special Tax
against property in the Improvement Area. The annual levy of the Special Tax is subject to the Maxinrum
Special Tax rates ar.rthorized within the Improvenrent Area. The levies cannot be nrade at higher rates

even if the failure to do so means tlrat the pstimated proceeds of the levy and collection of the Special

61
Page 353

10/13/2020 Item No.12.



Tax, together witlr other available moneys, will not be sufficierrt to pay debt service on the Local
Obligations. Other funds which rnight be available include funds derived from the payment of delinquent
Special Tax and funds derived frorn the tax sale or foreclosure and sale of related Taxable Property on
wlrich levies of the Special Tax are delinquent.

The levy of the Special Tax willrarely, if ever, result in a unifonn relationship between the value
of parlicular Taxable Property and the amount of the levy of the Sfecial Tax against such parcels. Thus,
there will rarely, if ever, be a uniform relationship between the value of such parcels and the
proportionate share of debt service on tlie Local Obligations, and certainly not a direct relationship.

The Special Tax levied in any pafticular tax year on a Taxable Property is based upon the reveulle
needs and application of the Rate and Method of Apportionment. Application of the Rate and Method of
Apportionment will, in turn, be dependent upou certain development factors with respect to each Taxable
Propefty by cornparison witli sirnilar development factors with respect to the other Taxable Propefty in
the Improvement Area. Thus, in addition to annual variations of the revenue needs frorn the Special Tax,
the following are some of the factors which might cause the levy of the Special Tax on any parlicular
Taxable Property to vary from the Special Tax that might otherwise be expected:

Reduction in the number of Taxable Property for such reasorrs as acquisition of Taxable
Property by the federal government or an agency tlrereof, assefting imrnunity (however,
see "Exempt Properlies" below) from taxation, tlrereby resulting in an increased tax
burden on the remaining Taxable Property.

Failure of the related owners of Taxable Property to pay the Special Tax and delays in the
collection of or inability to collect the Special Tax by tax sale or foreclosure and sale of
the delinquent parcels, thereby resulting in an increased tax burden on the remaining
parcels, subject to the related Maximum Special Tax.

Collection of Special Tax

In order for the District to pay debt service on the Local Obligations, from which funds for the
payment of the Bonds are derived, it is necessary that the Special Tax levied against land in the
Improvement Area be paid in a timely rranner. The District has established the Local Obligations
Reserve Account under the Local Obligations Indentr:re in the amourrt of the Required Bond Reserve to
pay debt service on the Local Obligations, in the event that a poftion of the Special Taxes for the Local
Obligations are not paid on time.

The Local Obligations Indenture provides that the Special Tax is to be collected in the same

manner as ordinary ad valorent property taxes are collected and, except as provided in the special
covenant for foreclosure described below and in the Mello-Roos Act, is to be subject to the same penalties
and tlre same procedure, sale and lien priority in case of delinquency as is provided for ad valorent
property taxes. Pursuant to these procednres, if taxes are unpaid for a period of five years or more, the
propefty is deeded to the State and then is subject to sale by the County.

Pursuant to the Mello-Roos Act, in the event of any delinqueucy irr tlre payment of the Special
Tax, the District may order the institution of a Superior Court action to foreclose the lien therefor within
specified tirne lirnits. In such an actior.r, the real property subject to the Lrrrpaid amount rnay be sold at
judicial foreclosure sale. Such judicial foreclosure action is not nrandatory. However, the District has

covenanted that it will annually on or before Septernber I of each year review the public records of the
County of Sacranreuto relating to the collection of the Special Tax in orderto determine the amount of the
Special Tax collected in tlie prior Fiscal Year, and if it determines or.r the basis of such review that tlre

a

68
Page 354

10/13/2020 Item No.12.



arnount so collected is deficient by more tl"tan 5Yo of the total ar.nount of the Special Tax levied in such
Fiscal Year, it will witlriu 60 days thereafter institute foreclosure proceedings as authorized by the Mello-
Roos Act in order to enforce the lien of the delinquent installments of the Special Tax against each lot or
parcel of land in the Improvemerrt Area, and will diligently prosecute and pursue such foreclosure
proceedings to judgment and sale; plev_rd_qd, that irrespective of the foregoing if the District detennines on
the basis of such review that properly owned by any single propefiy owner in the Iniprovement Area is
delinquent by rnore than $4,000 with respect to the Special Tax due and payable by such property owner
by such delinquency date, then the District will institute, prosecute and pursue such foreclosure
proceedings in the tinie and rnanner provided herein against such property owner; and provided further,
tliat any actions taken to enforce delinquent Special Tax liens shall be taken only consistent with Sections
53356.1through 53356.1, both inclusive, of the Mello-Roos Act.

In the event that sales or foreclosures of property are necessary, there could be a delay in
payments to Owners of the Bonds pending such sales or the prosecution of foreclosure proceedittgs and
receipt by the District of the proceeds of sale if the Local Obligations Reserve Account with respect to the
Local Obligations is depleted. See "SECURITY AND SOURCES OF PAYMENT FOR THE BONDS-
Covenant for Foreclosure."

The District rnay be unable to make full or timely payment of debt service on the Local
Obligations if property owners in the Improvement Area fail to pay installments of the Special Tax when
due, if the Local Obligations Reserve Account is depleted, or if the District is unable to sell related
foreclosed parcels for amounts sufficierrt to cover the delirrquent installments of the Special Tax.

Shapiro v. San Diego

On August 1, 2014, the California Court of Appeal, Fourth Appellate District, Division One,
issued its opinion tn Shapiro v. San Diego City Council, lll Cal. Rptr. 2d 631, 96 Cal. App. 4'r' 904
(2002). The case involved a Convention Center Facilities District (the "CCFD") established by the City
of San Diego, rnuch like a comnrunity facilities district established under the provisions of the Mello-
Roos Act. The CCFD is comprised of all of tlre real property in all of the City of San Diego. However,
the special tax to be levied within the CCFD was to be levied only on hotel properties.

At the election to authorize such special tax, the electorate was limited to owners of hotel
properties and lessees of certain of such hotel propefties. Thus, the election was a landowner election
limited to owners and lessees of properlies on which the specialtax would be levied, and not a registered
voter election. Such approach to detennining wlro would constitute the qualified electors of the CCFD
was based on Section 53326(c) of the Mello-Roos Act, which generally provides that, if a special tax will
not be appoftioned in any tax year on residential property, the legislative body may provide that tlie vote
shall be by the landowners of the proposed district whose propefty would be subject to the special tax.
The Courl held that the CCFD special tax election was invalid under the California Constitntion because
Arlicle XIII A, Section 4 thereof and Anicle XIII C, Section 2 thereof require that the electors in such an

election be the registered voters within the district.

In the case of the CCFD, at the time of the election there were mauy, many registered voters
within the CCFD (viz., all of the registered voters in the City of San Diego). There were no registered
voters within the Improverlent Area at the time of the election to autlrorize the Special Tax. In City of
San Diego, the Couft expressly stated that it was not addressing the validity of landowner voting to
irrpose special taxes pursuant to the Mello-Roos Act in situations where there are fewer than 12

registered voters. Thus, by its terrns, the Court's holding does not apply to the Special Tax election in the
Irnprovement Area. Moreover, Section 53341 of the Mello-Roos Act provides that any "action or
proceeding to attack, review, set aside, void or annul the levy of a special tax...shall be comrnenced

69
Page 355

10/13/2020 Item No.12.



within 30 days after the special tax is approved by the voters." The Special Tax with respect to the
Improvenrent Area was approved by the voters on May 26,2020. Based on Section 53341 of the Mello-
Roos Act and its analysis of existing laws, regulations, rulings and court decisions, the District does not
believe that a challenge to the Special Tax may now be brought.

Concentration of Ownership

Currently, a large porlion of the Taxable Propefty in the hnprovement Area is owned by ECIC,
and consequently, a large portion of the Special Tax within the Improvement Area will be paid by ECIC
until the land is developed and sold. Additional land within the Improvement Area is owned by Folsorn
Real Estate Soutlr. ECIC and Folsom Real Estate South are managed by the sarne three individuals. See

"PROPOSED PROPERTY DEVELOPMENT-Property Ownership."

ECIC has entered into purchase and sale agreements to sell a pofiion of the Improvernent Area to
merchant builders, and both ECIC and Folsom Real Estate South expect to enter into agreements with
merchant builders in the future to sell ceftain of their properties within the Improvement Area. No
assurance can be given that the properly sales will close when anticipated. See "PROPOSED
PROPERTY DEVELOPMENT-Property Ownership." Generally, the risk of delinquency or
nonpayment of Special Taxes at levels which do not pennit the tirnely payment of principal of and

interest on the Bonds is inversely correlated to the diversity of ownership of Taxable Property within the

Improvement Area. The fact that a substantial portion of the property providing the ultirnate security for
the payment of Local Obligations is controlled by only one owuer lneaus that tirnely payment of the

respective Special Tax and, therefore, the Bonds, will depend initially upon the willingness and ability of
this single owner to pay the Special Tax when due. The only assets of ECIC that constitute securify for
the Local Obligations are ECIC's real propefty holdings located within the Improvement Area.

There can be no assurauce that the undeveloped property will be fully developed and that
property ownership will be further diversified as a result. See "CERTAIN RISKS TO
BONDHOLDERS-Failure to Develop."

Payment of the Special Tax is Not a Personal Obligation of a Property Owner

A PROPERTY OWNER IS NOT PERSONALLY OBLIGATED TO PAY THE SPECIAL TAX.
RATHER, THE SPECIAL TAXES ARE OBLIGATIONS ONLY AGAINST THE PROPERTY. IF THE
VALUE OF THE PARCELS OF PROPERTY IS NOT SUFFICIENT, TAKING INTO ACCOUNT
OTHER OBLIGATIONS ALSO PAYABLE THEREBY, TO FULLY DISCHARGE THE SPECIAL
TAX, THE DISTRICT WILL HAVE NO RECOURSE, AGAINST THE PROPERTY OWNER.

Potential Early Redemption of Bonds from Prepaid Special Taxes

Property owners within the lnprovement Area are pemritted to prepay their Special Taxes at any

time. Such prepayments could also be rnade from the proceeds of bonds issued by or on behalf of an

overlapping special assessrrent district or comrnuuity facilities district. Such payrnents will result in a
redentption of the Bonds on the Interest Payment Date for which tirnely notice may be given under the

Trust Agreernent followingthe receipt of the prepayment. The resulting redemption of Borrds purchased

at a price greater than par could reduce the otherwise expected yield otr such Bonds. See "THE
BONDs-Rederrrption Provisions-Extraordinary redernption fror.n Prepayment of Special Taxes."

10
Page 356

10/13/2020 Item No.12.



Special Tax Delinquencies

The Special Taxes are billed to the properties within the Improvenrent Area on the ad valorent
property tax bills sent to owners of such properlies. Such Special Tax installments are due and payable,
and bear the same penalties and interest for non-paymeut, as do ad valorent property tax installments. In
each year the County includes the Improvenrent Area in the Teeter Plan, the County will be obligated to
pay the District 100% of the amount of the Special Taxes actually levied in the Improvement Area,
regardless of any delinquencies. However, the County is required to tenninate the Teeter Plan if two-
thirds of the participants so petition the Board of Supervisors and may discontinue the Teeter Plan as to
the Improvement Area if the delinquency rate in the Improverlent Area exceeds 3o%. Moreover, the

Counfy detennines annually whether to include a pafticular district in the Teeter Plan. See 
((-Teeter

Plan Termination" and "SECURITY AND SOURCE,S OF PAYMENT FOR THE BONDS-The Teeter
Plan." Significant delinquencies in the payment of annual Special Tax irrstalhnents, or delays in the

prosecution of foreclosure proceedings to collect such Special Taxes, could result in a default in the

payment of the debt service on the Bonds. See 
('-Bankruptcy" and "-FDIC/Federal Government

Interests in Properties" below, for a discussion of the limitations on the District's ability to foreclose on

the lien of the Special Taxes in ceftain circumstances and the policy of the Federal Deposit Insurance
Corporation regarding the payment of special taxes.

Teeter Plan Termination

The County has irnplernented its Teeter Plan as an alternate procedure for the distribution of
ceftain property tax and assessment levies on tlie secured roll. The County determines annually which
special taxes and assessment levies to include in tlie Teeter Plan. Pursuant to its Teeter Plan, once the
County determines to include special taxes and assessment levies in the Teeter Plan, the County provides
the local agency and taxing area with full tax and assessrnent levies instead of actual tax and assessment

colleotions. In return, the County is entitled to retain all delinquent tax and assessment payments,
penalties and interest. Thus, the County's Teeter Plan may help protect Owners frorn the risk of
delinquencies in the payment of Special Taxes. However, the County is entitled, and under ceftain
circnmstances could be required, to terminate its Teeter Plan with respect to all or part of the local
agencies and taxing areas covered thereby. In addition, the County rnay decide not to include ceftain
special taxes and assessment levies, including the Improvement Area, in the Teeter Plan in any fiscal
year. Any termination of tlie Teeter Plan with respect to the Improvement Area would eliminate such
protection from delinquent Special Taxes. See "SECURITY AND SOURCES OF PAYMENT FOR THE
BONDS-The Teeter Plan."

Land Values

If a properly owner defaults in the paynient of the Special Tax, from which funds for the payrnent
of the Bonds are derived, the District's only remedy is to foreclose on the delinquent property in an

atternpt to obtain funds with which to pay the delinquent Special Tax. The value of taxable propefty in
the Improvement Area is therefore an important consideration in evaluating the security for the Bonds.
Land values could be adversely affected by economic factors beyond the District's control, such as

relocation of employers out of the area, stricter land use regulations, the absence of water, or destruction
of propeffy caused by, among other eventualities, earthquake, flood or other natural disaster, or by
environmental pollution or contamination.

Appraisal Risks

The Appraiser has estinrated the market value of the propefiy in the Inrprovemeut Area on the

basis of certain assumptiorrs which the Appraiser believes to be reasouable under the circumstances. See

7lPage 357

10/13/2020 Item No.12.



the Appraisal inclLrded in APPENDIX G hereto. However, certain of the assumptions niade by the
Appraiser may prove to be untrue.

Althotrgh the District believes that the Appraiser's methodology and assumptions are reasonable
under the circurnstances, the Appraiser's aggregate value conclusions are expressions of professional
opinion only. No asslrrance can be given that the aggregate values of propefty in the Lnprovement Area
are equal to or greater than the Appraiser's estinrated values, nor cau ally assLrrance be given that such
aggregate values will not decline during the period of tirne the Bonds are Outstanding. The values of the
property in the Improvement Area can be adversely affected by a variety of factors, including, but not
limited to, the occurrence of one or more of the special risk events discussed herein. A decline in the
value of a parcel in the Inprovement Area could lower the ability or willingness of the owner of such
parcel to pay Special Taxes when due and would decrease the amount recoverable at a foreclosure sale of
such parcel.

See "THE IMPROVEMENT AREA-Property Values" for a furlher discussion of estirnated
property values in the Improvement Area.

Zoning and Land Use Decisions

The Special Taxes, from which funds for the payment of the Bonds are derived, are to be levied
annually based upon the land use categories in effect for the property. Decisions made by the City
Council, which has control over zoning and land use decisiotts for property in the City, will affect tlie
prospective use of the property and, therefore, the tax base for the Special Tax. The Rate and Method
does not perniit land use changes to reduce the tax base to below the Special Tax Requirement.

Exempt Properties

Certain properties within the Improvement Area are or may become exempt from the Special Tax
in accordance with the Rate and Method of Apporlionment. In addition, the Mello-Roos Act provides
that properties or entities of the state, federalor local government are exempt frorn SpecialTax; provided,
however, that property acquired by a public entity through a negotiated transaction or by gift or devise,
which is not otherwise exempt frorn the Special Tax, will continue to be subject to the Special Tax. In
addition, the Mello-Roos Act provides that if property subject to Special Tax is acquired by a public
entity through eminent domain proceedings, tlre obligatiori to pay Special Tax with respect to that
properfy is to be treated as if it were a special assessment. Further, properties receiving a welfare
exemption under subsection (g) of Section 214 of the California Revenue and Taxation Code are exempt
from the Special Tax unless debt is or,rtstanding and the and the property was subject to the Special Tax
prior to receiving the exemption. Neither the District or ECIC are aware of any propefty within the
Improvement Area currently receiving a welfare exemption. The constitutionality and operation of these
provisiorrs of the Mello-Roos Act have not been tested.

In particLrlar, insofar as the Mello-Roos Act requires payment of a special tax by a federal entity
acquiring propefty within the conrmunity facilities district, it niay be unconstitntional. If for any reason
property within the Improvement Area becomes exempt from taxation, tlrerr, sr-rbject to the Rate and
Method of Apporliourrent, inch,rding the liniitatiou on the maximurl special tax rates set out in the Rate
and Method of Apportionrnent, the special tax will be reallocated to the remaining taxable properlies
within the Improvement Area. This would result irr the owners of such properly paying a greater anronnt
of the Special Tax and could have an adverse inrpact upon the tiniely payment of the Special Tax.
Moreover, if a substantial potion of land within the Improvement Area becomes exempt fi"om tlre Special
Tax because of public owuership, or otherwise, the rnaxirnurn rate that could be levied upon the
remaining property might not be sufficient to pay principal of and interest on the related Local

12
Page 358

10/13/2020 Item No.12.



Obligations and could adversely affect the ability of the District to pay principal of and interest on the
Bonds when due.

Maximum Special Tax

Within the limits of the Special Tax, the District rnay adjust the Special Tax on all property in the
Improvement Area to provide an arnount required to pay interest on, principal of, Mininiurn Sinking Fund
Payments for and redemption premiurns, if any, on the Local Obligations, and the allount, if any,
llecessary to cure delinquencies and replenish the Local Obligations Reserve Account to an ar.r.rount equal

to the Required Bond Reserve, and to pay all curuent Expenses.

Although the Maximuni Special Tax is designed to provide Special Tax revenues on an annual

basis, there is no assurance that the Maximum Special Tax on the property in the Improvernent Area will
be sufficient to pay the amounts required to be paid by the Local Obligations Indenture at all times, from
which funds for the payment of the Bonds are derived. See "SECURITY AND SOURCES OF
PAYMENT FOR THE BONDS-Special Tax Authorization" and APPENDIX A-"RATE, METHOD
OF APPORTIONMENT AND MANNER OF COLLECTION OF SPECIAL TAX."

Pursuant to Section 53321of the Mello-Roos Act as applied to the Improvement Area, nnder no
circumstances will the special tax levied in any fiscal year against any parcel used for private residential
purposes be increased as a consequence of delinquency or default by the owner or owrlers of any other
parcel or parcels within the Improvement Area by more than 10%o above the amount that would have been

levied in that fiscal year had there never been any such delinquencies or defaults. Under the Rate and
Method of Apporlionment, property is considered "Residential Propefty" and is sLrbject to the
aforementioned limitation once a building pennit could be issued for the purposes of constructing one or
more residential units.

Ballot Initiatives and Measures

From time to time constitutional initiatives or other initiative lneaslrres may be adopted by State

voters or voters of the City. For exarnple, Measure W, adopted by City residents in November 2004,
required, among other things, that residents north of State Highway 50 not bear the cost for infrastructure
arid public facilities serving the Folsom Plan Area. The adoption of any such initiative in the future might
place lirnitations on the ability of the State or any political subdivisions thereof, including the Authority
or the City, to increase revenues or to increase appropriations, the ability of the landowners to complete
their developments, or the ability of the District to collect the Special Tax.

Recent Changes to Federal Income Tax Law

FI.R. I of the 115th U.S. Congress was enacted into law on December22,2017 (the "Tax Act").
The Tax Act makes significant changes to many aspects of the Code. The District, the City, the
Authority, ECIC and the other property owners within the Improvement Area cannot predict the effect
tliat the Tax Act may have on the cost of home ownership, the price of homes in the Irnprovement Area,
the rate at which honres in the Improvement Area are sold to individLral honreowners by ECIC or
merchant builders, the ability or willingness of homeowners to pay Special Tax or property taxes on
Taxable Property witlrin the Inrprovement Area, or the values contained in tlris Official Statement or in
the Appraisal.

13
Page 359

10/13/2020 Item No.12.



Disclosures to Future Purchasers

The District has recorded notice of the Special Tax Lien in the Office of the County Recorder of
the County of Sacramento. While title companies norrnally refer to such notices in title repolts, there can

be no guarantee that such reference will be made or, if made, that a prospective purchaser or lender will
consider such special Tax obligation in the purchase of a parcel of land, a home or a comrnercial or
industrial facility in the Improvement Area or the lerrding of money tlrereon. The Mello-Roos Act
requires the subdivider (or its agent or representative) of a subdivision to notify a prospective purchaser or
long-tenn lessor of any lot, parcel, or unit subject to a Mello-Roos special tax of the existence and

luaxirnum amount of such special tax using a statutorily prescribed forrn. State Civil Code Section

1102.6b requires that in the case of transfers other than tlrose covered by the above requirement, the seller
must at least make a good faith efforl to notify the prospective purchaser of the specialtax lien in a format
prescribed by statute. Failure by an owner of the propefty to comply with the above requirements, or
failure by a purchaser or lessor to consider or understand the nature and existence of the Special Tax,
could adversely affect the willingness and ability of the purchaser or lessor to pay the Special Tax, from
which funds for the payment of the Bonds are derived, when due.

Parity Taxes and Special Assessments

The ability or willingness of a property owner in the Irlprovernent Area to pay the Special Tax,
frorn which funds for the payment of the Bonds are derived, could be affected by the existence of other
taxes and assessments imposed upon the property either currerrtly existing or imposed in the future. The
assessrnents and any penalties thereon constitute a lien against the lots and parcels of land on which they
have been levied until they are paid. Such lien is on parity with all special taxes and special assessmeuts

levied by otlier agencies and is co-equal to and independent of the lien for general property taxes and

other special assessments regardless of when they are irnposed upon the same propefty. The SpecialTax
has priority over all existing and future private liens imposed on the propefty. In addition, other public
agencies whose boundaries overlap those of the Improvement Area could, with or in some circumstances
without the consent of the owners of the land in the Improvement Area, impose additional taxes or
assessment liens on the property in the Irnprover.nent Area in order to finance pLrblic improvements to be

located inside or outside of the hnprovement Area.

Although the District has covenanted not to irnpose additional special taxes or assessments on

propefty within the Improvement Area except in accordance with the Local Obligations Indenture, the

Authority and the District have no control over the ability of other entities and districts to issue

indebtedness secured by special taxes or assessments payable from all or a portiou of tlre propeffy in the

Improvement Area. The inrposition of additional liens on parity with the assessments could reduce the

ability or willingness of the owners of parcels in the Improvemeut Area to pay the Special Tax and

increases the possibility that foreclosr-lre proceeds will not be adequate to pay delinquent Special Taxes or
tlre principal of and interest on the Local Obligations when due. As described under "FOLSOM PLAN
AREA-Public Facilities Financing Plan," and "TI-lE IMPROVEMENT AREA-Overlapping Debt" the

City plans to issue additional obligations secured by special taxes fi'om time to time to fitrance backbone
infrastructure and public improvements withirr the Folsom Plarr Area and the boundaries of the

Improvement Area. For example, CFD l8 authorized the issuance of up to $200,000,000 in obligations.
The special taxes securing such additional obligations would be payable on parity with the Special Taxes.

In addition, property owners rnay choose to participate in a residential PACE prograrn (a mechanism for
financing energy efficiency and renewable energy irlprovernents on private property), consenting to
assesslrerlts on their parcels that would be on a parity with the Special Taxes. The District does not
currently have a timeline as to when any such obligations woLrld be issLred.

14
Page 360

10/13/2020 Item No.12.



Bankruptcy

The payment of the Special Tax and the ability of the District to foreclose the lien of a delinquent
unpaid tax, as discussed in "SECURITY AND SOURCES OF PAYMENT FOR THE BONDS," rnay be

linrited by bankruptcy, insolvency or other laws generally affecting creditors' rights or by the laws of the

State relating to-iudicial foreclosure. In addition, the prosecution of a foreclosure action cotrld be delayed
due to crowded local court calendars or delays in the legal process. The various legal opinions to be

delivered concurrently with the delivery of the Bonds (including Bond Counsel's approving legal
opinion) will be qualified as to the enforceability of the various legal instruments by bankruptcy,
insolvency, reorganization, rroratoriurn and other sinrilar laws affecting creditors' rights, by the

application of equitable principles and by the exercise ofjudicial discretion in appropriate cases.

Although bankruptcy proceedings would not cause the lien of the Special Tax to become
extinguished, bankruptcy of a propefty owner could result in a delay in prosecuting superior court
foreclosure proceedings. The federal bankruptcy laws provide for an automatic stay of foreclosure and

sale oftax sale proceedings, thereby delaying such proceedings perhaps for an extended period. Any such

delays would increase the likelihood of a delay or default in payment of the principal of and interest on

the Bonds and the possibility of delinquent tax installments not being paid in full. To the extent that
property in the Improvement Area continues to be owned by a limited number of property owners, the

chances are increased that the Local Obligations Reserve Fund could be fully depleted during any such
delay in obtaining payment of delirrquent Special Taxes. As a result, sufficient moneys would not be

available in the Local Obligations Reserve Account to make up shortfalls resulting from delinquent
payments of the Special Tax and thereby to pay principal of and interest on the Local Obligations on a

timely basis. The payrnent of the Special Tax and the ability of the District to foreclose the lien of a

delinquent unpaid tax could be delayed by bankruptcy, reorganization, insolvency, moratorium or other
sirnilar laws affecting rights of creditors generally or by the laws of the State relating to judicial
foreclosure. Further, should remedies be exercised under the federal bankruptcy laws against parcels in
the Improvement Area, payment of the Special Tax rnay be subordinated to bankruptcy law priorities.
Thus, certain claims may lrave priority over the Special Tax in a bankruptcy proceeding even though they
would not outside of a bankruptcy proceeding.

Geologic, Topographic and Climatic Conditions

The value of the propefty in the Improvernent Area in the future can be adversely affected by a
variety of additional factors, particularly those which may affect infrastructure and other public
improvements and private improvements on property and the continued habitability and enjoyment of
such private improvements. Such additional f-actors include, without limitation, geologic conditions such
as eafthquakes, topographic conditions such as eartlr movements, landslides and floods and cliniatic
conditions such as droughts and wildfire.

The occurrence of seismic activity in the Inrprovement Area could result in substantial damage to
properties in the Improver.nent Area wlrich, in turn, could substantially reduce the value of such properties
and could affect the ability or willingness of the property owners to pay the Special Tax on their property.
The Improverrent Area is not located in any existing special study zone delineated by the Chief of the
Division of Mines and Geology of the State of California as an area of known active faults and is not
otherwise known to be located within an area of any significant seisrnic activity. However, it may be

expected that one or more of such conditions lray occur and may result in damage to improvements of
varying seriousness, that the darrage may errtail significant repair or replacement costs and that repair or
replacement ruay never occur eitlrer because of the cost or because repair or replacement will not facilitate
habitability or other use, or because other considerations preclude such repair or replacement. Under any
of these circurnstarrces, the valr.re of the propefty may decline.

75
Page 361

10/13/2020 Item No.12.



In recent years, wildfires have caused extensive danrage throughout the State. IIr some instances,

errtire neighborhoods have been destroyed. Several ofthe fires that occurred in recent years damaged or

destroyed property in areas that were not previously cousidered to be at risk frorn such events. Some

cornrnentators believe that clirnate change will lead to even more frequent and more damaging wildfires
in tlre future. In general, property damage due to wildfire could result irr a significaut decrease in the

market value of property in the hnprovement Area and in the ability or willingness of property owners to
pay Special Taxes.

The Improvement Area is located within an area identified as a rnoderate fire hazard severity
zone. More information regarding Fire Hazard Severity Zones can be found at the California Departrnent

of Forestry and Fire Protection website athttps:llfrap.fire.ca.gov, though such website is not incorporated
herein by reference. The development within the Improvement Area is subject to rnitigation uteasures set

forlh in a fuel nrodification plan approved by the City Fire Deparlment. The mitigation measures include,

among others, limitations on the type of vegetation that may be planted within fuel nrodification zones

established in open space areas along ceftain portions of the perimeter of the Improvement Area,
minimum setback of structures and irrigation requirements of the fuel modification zoltes. Maintenance
of such zones is expected to initially be the responsibility of the property owners but upon build-out of the

Irnprovement Area and dedication of the open space to the City will be maintained by the City from funds
provided through CFD lB. Homeowner's insurance is expected to be available to property owuers within
the lmprovement Area, and the coverage provided by such insurance typically insures against fire
damage, although there is no assurauce that homeowners within the Improvement Area will purchase or

maintain such irtsurance.

In the event of a wildfire, flood or other natural disaster, there may be significant damage to both
property and infrastructure in the Improvement Area. As a result, a substantial portion of the propefty
owlters may be unable or unwilling to pay the Special Taxes when due. In addition, the value of land in
the Improvement Area could be diminished in the aftermath of such a natural disaster, reducing the

resulting proceeds of foreclosure sales in the event of delinquencies in the payrnent of the SpecialTaxes.

Folsom Darn, located on the American River within the jurisdictional boundaries of the City, was

built in 1955 by the United States Army Corps of Erigineers and is owned by the United States Bureau of
Reclamation. An auxiliary spillway to enable the darn to more easily release water as it nears capacity
was conrpleted by the Anny Corps of Engineers in October 2011. The Cify, together with the County and

other local agencies, have established a ltazard rnitigation plan in the event of a dani failure. Geologic,

topographic and climatic conditions, if severe, could result in damage to the dam which could further
cause damage to the surrounding region and may limit water supply for the City and the Improvement
Area.

COVID-I9 and Impact of the Novel Coronavirus

Tlre outbreak of COVID-19, a respiratory disease caused by a novel corortavirus, has been

declared a pandemic by the World Health Organization. In additiot-I, Goveruor Gavin Newsorl declared a

State of Emergency on Marclr 4, 2020, and President Donald Trump declared a national elxergeltcy on

Marclr 13,2020, each relating to the coronavirus. Governor Newsom has issued an order for all
individLrals living in the State of California to stay home or at their place of residence except in certain
circuurstances, with no stated end date. Multiple counties, including the County, have issued sirnilar stay-

at-honre orders. Although the State and many cor-rnties, including the County, have begun phasing out
restrictions, a resurgence of the prevalence of COVID-19lras resulted in a reversal of the phase-outs attd

postponements to reopening businesses. According to ECIC, KB Home Sacrarnento and Signature
Horrres, residential construrction workers are exempt fronr the stay-at-honre orders and development of the

propefty within tlre Improvernent Area has continued. As of September 15, 2020, neither ECIC, KB

16
Page 362

10/13/2020 Item No.12.



Home Sacramento or Signature Hor.nes have experienced any delays with obtaining the ltecessary

approvals from the City for development to proceed, but neithel'ECIC, I(B Horne Sacrauretrto, Signature
Holnes, the City nor the District can guarantee that the spread of COVID-19 will not cause delays in the

future.

The current spread of COVID-19 is altering the belravior of businesses and people in a manner
tlrat has had significant negative effects on global, national and local ecouotnies. Additionally, stock

markets in tlie U.S. and globally have seen significant recent volatility attributed to concerns about
COVID-19. There can be no assurances that the spread of COVID-19 or other highly contagious or

epidemic disease, will not materially affect the state and national economies nor otherwise materially
adversely irnpact the ability of ECIC to develop the property in the Improvetnent Area in accordance with
the schedule specified herein or otherwise adversely impact the Lnprovement Area or the ability or

willingness of property owners to pay the Special Tax. See "SPECIAL RISK FACTORS - Potential
Impact of Global Health Concerns."

Potential Impact of Global Health Concerns

The ability or willingness of property owners to develop property in the Improvement Area, the

speed at which property owllers develop property in the Improvetnent Area, the ability or willingness of
property owrters to sell property in the hnprovement Area, the speed at which property owners are able

sell property in the Improvement Area, the ability or willingness of property owners to pay the Special
Tax on property in the Improvement Area when due, the value of the propefty in the hnprovement Area,

or the ability of the District to collect delinquent Special Taxes through judicial foreclosure could be

adversely affected by a global, national or localized outbreak of an infectious disease, such as COVID-19,
a new strain of coronavirus, or by the fear of such an outbreak. The construction industry in tlie United
States relies heavily on international trade for myriad construction materials. A global, national or
localized outbreak could irnpactthe availability of workers in countries producing construction materials,
potentially resulting in supply chain shutdowns, which may result in substantial construction delays and

project cost overruns. Fufiher, the spread of COVID-I9 arid the response to its spread has altered the

behavior of businesses and people in a manner that is having a rtegative impact on global and local

econornies, and which has resulted in a volatile stock market response. These events and other factors

resulting from such an outbreak, particularly if prolonged, could result in, or increase the likelihood of,

the occurrence of certain of the other potential adverse effects described in this Official Statement,

including those relating to declines in the value of property, the failure to complete the development of
property, the inability to sell propefty, the inability or unwillingness to pay the Special Tax, arrd delays in
(or insufficient funds received from) the collection of delinquent Special Taxes through judicial
foreclosure. A future outbreak of COVID-19 or another infectious disease or the fear of any such

outbreak could have sirnilar or additional adverse effects. The Ar.rthority cannot predict the ultirnate

effects of the COVID-19 outbreak or auy future outbreak or potential future outbreak of an infectiotts
disease, or whether any such effects would have a material adverse effect on the ability to develop the

Improvement Area as planned, the ability or willingness of property owners to pay Special Taxes when

dne, or the ability of the Authority to pay debt service on the Bonds when due.

Failure to Develop

Land development operations are subject to comprehensive federal, State and local regulations.

Approval is required from various agencies in connection with the layout and design of developrnents, the

natnre aud extent of improvernents, constructiorr activity, land Lrse, zot'tit'tg, school and health

requirements, as well as nunlerous otlrer matters. It is possible that the approvals necessary to complete
development of all taxable property within the Inrprovement Area are not obtained ott a tinrely basis or
tlrat litigation could be filed regarding approvals. Failure to obtain any such agency approval or satisfy

Page 363

10/13/2020 Item No.12.



any such goventnlent requirenlent or auy litigation concerning such agency approval or governnlent
requirement could adversely affect land development operations. In addition, current and future
governmental restrictions, including, but not lirnited to, governmental policies restricting or controlling
development within the Improvement Area, could be euacted, and future land use initiatives approved by
the voters in the City could add more restrictions and requiremeuts on developnient within the

Improvenrent Area, which restrictions may increase the cost to develop the Improvement Area. One such

governtnental restriction is the requirernent to install rooftop photovoltaic solar systems for residential
buildings under three stories constructed starting in 2020. Costs associated with the installation of solar
to the homebuilders may reduce the willingness of homebuilders to construct homes and increased costs

of those homes may decrease the willingness of homeowners to buy such homes.

Moreover, there can be no assurance that the rneans and incentive to conduct land development
operations within the Improvement Area will not be adversely affected by a deterioration of tlie realestate
market or economic conditions generally, future local, State and federal governmental policies relating to
real estate development, the income tax treatment of real property ownership, acts of war orterrorism, or
other factors.

The Taxable Property in the Improvement Area is presently undeveloped or undergoing
development. Undeveloped property is less valuable per acrethan developed property, especially if there
are no plans to develop such propefiy or if there are severe restrictions on the development of suclt

property, and therefore provides less security to the owners of the Bonds should it be necessary for tlie
District to foreclose due to the nonpayrnent of the Special Taxes. Delays in any property owner's ability
to obtain discretionary approvals (including any delays caused by litigation) would in tum delay the

construction of improvements and development of the Taxable Properly within the Improvement Area.
Furthermore, an inability to develop the land withiri the Improvement Area as currently proposed would
result in slower rates of diversification of propefty ownership within the Lnprovement Area.

Concentration of ownership increases the risk of a failure to collect sufficient Special Taxes to pay debt
service on the Bonds, all other things being equal. The tirnely payment of Special Taxes levied on

undeveloped property depends primarily upon the ability and willingness of owners of such property to
pay such taxes when due. Certain infrastructure improvements are required before development in tlre
Improvement Area can progress intract. The Phase 2 water infrastructure described under the lieading
"PROPOSED PROPERTY DEVELOPMENT-Development Entitlements-Water Supply" is required
to be developed before tlie approxirnately 2,B00tr' building permit rnay be pulled in the Folsom Plan Area.
A slowdown in or cessation of the development of land within the Improvement Area could reduce the

ability and willingness of such owners to rnake Special Tax payments, and could greatly reduce the value
of such property in the event it lras to be foreclosed upon to collect delinquent special taxes. $sg ('-
Bankruptcy" above for a discLrssion of ceftain lirnitations on the ability of the District to pursue judicial
foreclosure proceedings with respect to taxpayers with delinquent Special Taxes.

Future Private Indebtedness

At the present time, all of the propefty in the Improvement Area is undeveloped or undergoing
development. In order to develop any improvements on that land, the propefty owners will need to
construct private improvements, the cost of which may increase tlre private debt for which the land in the

Improvemeut Area or other land or collateral owned by the property owners is security over that

contemplated by the Local Obligatior.rs, and such increased debt could reduce the ability or desire of the

property owners to pay the Special Tax secured by tlre land in the Improvement Area. It should be noted

however, that the lien of any private financing secured by the land within the Irnprovement Area woLrld be

subordinate to the lien of the Special Tax.

1B
Page 364

10/13/2020 Item No.12.



No Indepentlent Revierv of Valuation or Viability of Completed Projects

Property within the Improvement Area is cornprised of separate and distinct projects as described

above. Payment of Special Taxes are inherently dependent upon the development within tlte
Improvement Area, and, with respect to residential properties, the ability of the buyers of completed

homes to pay. The Authority, the District, and the Underwriter have not reviewed any business plan for
continued ownership, development and/or operation of the property within the Improvement Area.

Sinilarly, tlre Authority, the District and the Underwriter have not conducted any independent evaluation

of the existing or projected economic viability or profitability of any of the plans for development,
including review and/or evaluation of financial statements of any owner or developer of any parcel

subject to tlre Special Tax. The infonnation contained herein regarding the proposed development and the

owners of the parcels within the Lnprovement Area has been supplied by such owners and the

Underwriter has not independently verified, makes no representation regarding, arrd does not accept any

responsibility for the acclrracy or completeness of such informatiott.

In the event au owner or developer experiences financial difficulties, including difficulties
resulting from construction or operation of the development witliin the Improvelnent Area, the value of
the affected parcel within the Improvement Area may decline and/or such owner or developer nray elect

to refrain from payment of future Special Taxes for such parcel. See also "-Failure to Develop."

Endangered Species

During recent years, there has been an increase in activity at the State of California and federal

level related to tlie possible listing of certain plant and animal species found in California as endangered

species. An increase in the number of endangered species is expected to curtail development in a number

of areas. The property within the Improvement Area contains protected habitat and species, including but

not limited to Swainson's hawk and tri-colored blackbird foraging habitats and wetlands regulated by

state and federal agencies. Foraging habitat mitigation credits have been satisfied by ECIC or Folsom

Real Estate Soutli for all backbone projects and all Improvemetrt Area No. 1 project phases. At present,

the propefty within the Improvement Area is not known to be inhabited by ariy other plant or animal

species listed as threatened or endangered under either the State or federal endangered species acts or
which eitlier the California Fish and Game Commission or the United States Fish and Wildlife Service
has proposed for addition to the respective endangered species list. Notwithstanding this fact, new

species are proposed to be added to the State and federal protected lists on a regular basis. Any action by

the State or federal governrnents to protect species located on or adjacent to undeveloped properly could
negatively affect the developer's ability to complete development as planned. This, iu turu, could reduce

the likelihood of timely payment of the Special Tax, from which funds for the payment of the Bonds is
derived, and would likely reduce the value of the land and the potential revenlres available at a foreclosure

sale for delinquent Special Taxes. See "CERTAIN RISKS TO BONDHOLDERS-Land Values."

Hazardous Substances

While governmental taxes, assessrnents, and charges are a comrlon clainr against the value of a

parcel, other less colnllou claims may be relevant. One of the nrost serious in tertls of the potential

reduction in the value of a parcel irr the Improvement Area is a claim with regard to a hazardous

substance. In general, the owners and operators of a parcel may be reqLrired by law to rentedy conditions
of the parcel relating to releases or threatened releases of hazardous substatrces. Tlre f'ederal

Comprehensive Environmental Response, Compensation and Liability Act of 1980, sometinres referred to

as "CERCLA" orthe "superfund Act," is the most well-known and widely applicable of these laws, but
laws with regard to lrazardous substances are also stringent and sirnilar. Under many of these laws, tlte
owner (or operator) is obligated to rentedy a hazardous substance condition ol'property whether or not the

19
Page 365

10/13/2020 Item No.12.



owner (or operator) has anything to do with creating or handlirrg the hazardous substance. The effect,
tlrerefore, should any of the parcels in the Improvenreut Area be affected by a hazardous substance is to
reduce the marketability and value of the parcel by the costs of remedying the condition, because the
purchaser, upon becoming owner, will become obligated to remedy the condition just as is the seller.
Fufther, such liabilities rnay arise not sinrply from the existence of a hazardous substance but from the

rnethod of handling it. All of these possibilities could significantly affect the financial and legal liability
of a properly owner to develop the affected parcel or other parcels, as well as the value of the property
tlrat is realizable upon a delinquency and foreclosure.

The appraised value of property in the Improvelt-lent Area does not take into account the possible

reduction in marketability and value of any of the parcels by reason of the possible liability of the owner
(or operator) for the remedy of a hazardous substance condition of the parcel. While the District is not
aware that the owner (or operator) of any of parcels has such a current liability with respect to any of the
parcels, it is possible that such liabilities do currently exist and that the District is not aware of them.

Further, it is possible that liabilities may arise in the future with respect to any of the parcels

resulting from the existence, currently, on the parcel of a substance presently classified as hazardous but
which has not been released orthe release of whiclr is not presently threatened, or may arise in the future
resulting frorn the existence, currently, on the parcel of a substance not presently classified as hazardous

but which may in the future be so classified. Further, such liabilities may arise not simply from the
existence of ahazardous substance but from the method of handling it. All of these possibilities could
significantly affect the value of a parcel within the Improvemeut Area that is realizable upon a

delinquency.

Naturally Occurring Asbestos

California Air Resource Board ("CARB") adopted the Airborne Toxic Control Measure
("ATCM") for Construction, Grading, Quarrying and Surface Mining Operations. This statewide
regulatiorr is applicable to grading or any other projects disturbing soil in areas of California where
asbestos may exist, as determined by the California Geological Survey ("CGS"). The ATCM applies to
any size construction project although there are additional notification requirements for projects that
exceed one acre. Areas and parcels moderately likely to contain naturally occurring asbestos are located
in the eastern parts of Sacramento County, including in the City.

Natural weathering or human disturbance can break the asbestifonn minerals down to
microscopic fibers, which are easily suspended in air. Ther"e is no health tlrreat if asbestos fibers in soil
remain undisturbed and do not become airborne. When inhaled, these thin fibers irritate tissues and resist
the body's natural defenses. Asbestos causes cancers of the lLrng (such as mesothelioma) and the lining of
internal organs, asbestosis, and other diseases that inhibit Iung function. Scientists consider cerlain types
of asbestos fibers (i.e., tremolite fibers and sirriilarly structured arrphibole asbestos parlicles) that are

frequeritly identified in the City to be more potent than other types irr causing mesothelioma.

The EIR for the Folsom Plan Area required all new development to undeftake a site investigation
to determine the presence of naturally occurring asbestos and, if uecessary, prepare and irrplemetrt an

asbestos dust control plan. ECIC has undefial<en arr asbestos dust control plan with respect to
development within the Irlprovement Area and the costs of developmerrt in this Official Statement reflect
the costs associated with asbestos mitigation.

The health coltcerns associated with the presence of naturally occurring asbestos in the

Improvenrent Area may adversely affect the rrarketability of property in the area.

80
Page 366

10/13/2020 Item No.12.



Naturally Occurring Arsenic

Arsenic is a naturally occurring element that is commonly found in soil, among other locations,
and is considered to be a cancer-causing. Arsenic traces, in elevated concentrations as compared to
naturally occurring background levels, were identified in open space areas adjacent to Village l. No
grading has occurred, nor is any planned in tlris potliori of the Improvement Area. Additionally, ECIC
has implemented nronitoring protocols and identified mitigation n-leasures should naturally occurring
arsenic be found during any grading activities nearby.

The health coucems associated with the presence of naturally occurring arsenic in the
Improvement Area may adversely affect the marketability of property in the area.

FDIC/Federal Government Interests in Properties

The ability of the District to foreclose the lien of delinquent unpaid Special Tax installments may
be limited with regard to properlies in which the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (the "FDIC"), the

Drug Enforcement Agency, the Internal Revenue Service, or other federal agency has or obtains an

interest.

Under the Supremacy Clause of tlie United States Constitution, unless Congress has otherwise
provided, if a federal govemmental entity owns a parcel that is subject to Special Taxes within the

Improvement Area but does not pay taxes and assessments levied on the parcel (including Special Taxes),
the applicable state and local governrnents cannot foreclose on the parcel to collect the delinquent taxes

and assessments. Moreover, unless Congress has otherwise provided, if the federal government has a
moftgage interest in the parcel and the District wishes to foreclose on the parcel as a result of delinquent
Special Taxes, the propefty cannot be sold at a foreclosure sale unless it can be sold for an amount
sufficient to pay delinquent taxes and assessments on parity with the Special Taxes and preserve the

federal government's mofigage interest. ln Rust v. Johnson,597 F.2d 174 (1979), the United States Court
of Appeal, Ninth Circuit held that the Federal National Mortgage Association ("FNMA") is a federal
instrumentality for purposes of this doctrine, and not a private entity, and tlrat, as a result, an exercise of
state power over a mortgage interest held by FNMA constitutes an exercise of state power over property
of the United States.

Neither the Authority nor the District have undeftaken to deterrnine whether any federal
governmental entity currently has, or is likely to acquire, any interest (including a mortgage interest) in
any of the parcels subject to the Special Taxes within the Improvement Area, and therefore expresses no

view concerning the likelihood that the risks described above will rnaterialize while the Bonds are

outstanding.

In the event that any financial institution rnaking any loan which is secured by real property
within the Inrprovernerrt Area is taken over by the FDIC, and prior thereto or thereafter the loan or loans

go into default, then the ability of the Authority to collect interest and penalties specified by State law and

to foreclose the Iien of delinqLrerrt r.rnpaid Special Taxes may be lirnited.

The FDIC's policy statenrent regarding the payment of state and local real propefty taxes (the
"Policy Statement") provides that property owned by the FDIC is subject to state and local real propefty
taxes only if those taxes are assessed according to the propefty's value, and that the FDIC is inrmune from
real property taxes assessed on any basis other than property value. According to the Policy Statement,

the FDIC will pay its property tax obligations when they become due and payable and will pay claims for
deliuquent propefty taxes as pronrptly as is corrsistent with sound business practice and the orderly
adnrinistration of the irrstitutiorr's affairs, unless abandonment of the FDIC's interest in the property is

8l
Page 367

10/13/2020 Item No.12.



appropriate. The FDIC will pay clainrs for interest on delinquent property taxes owed at the rate provided
under state law, to the extent the interest payrnent obligation is secured by a valid lien. The FDIC will not
pay any amounts in the nature of fines or penalties and will not pay nor recognize liens for suclr amottttts.
If any propefiy taxes (including interest) on FDIC-owned property are secured by a valid lien (in effect
before the property became owned by the FDIC), the FDIC will pay those claims. The Policy Statement
fufther provides that no property of the FDIC is subject to levy, attachment, garnislrment, foreclosure or
sale without the FDIC's consent. In addition, the FDIC will not permit a lien or security interest held by
the FDIC to be elirninated by foreclosure without the FDIC's consent.

The Policy Statement states that the FDIC generally will not pay non-ad valorem taxes, including
special assesstreuts, on propeffy in which it has a fee interest unless the arnount of tax is fixed at the time
that the FDIC acquires its fee interest in the propefty, nor will it recognize the validity of any lien to the
extent it purpofts to secure the payment of any such amounts. Special taxes imposed under the Mello-
Roos Act and a special tax fonnula which determines the special tax due each year are specifically
identified in the Policy Statement as being iniposed each year and therefore covered by the FDIC's
federal immunify. The Ninth Circuit has issued a ruling on August 28,2001, in which it detennined that
the FDIC, as a federal agency, is exempt from Mello-Roos special taxes. According to infonnation
available fi'om the Sacramento County assessment roll, the FDIC does not currently own any of the
property in the Iniprovement Area.

The Authority and the District are unable to predict what effect the application of the Policy
Statement would have in the event of a delinquency in the payment of Special Taxes on a parcel within
the Improvernent Area in which the FDIC has or obtains an interest, although prohibiting the lien of the
FDIC to be foreclosed out at a judicial foreclosure sale could reduce or eliminate the number of persons

willing to purchase a parcel at foreclosure sale. Such an outcome could cause a draw on the reserve

accourrt for the Local Obligations and perhaps, ultimately, if enough propeffy were to become owned by
the FDIC, a default in payment on the Local Obligations and the Bonds.

No Acceleration Provision

Tlre Local Obligations Indenture does not contain a provision allowing for the acceleration of the

Bonds in the event of a payment default or other default under the terms thereof.

Loss of Tax Exemption

As discussed under "TAX MATTERS," interest on the Bonds could become inch"rdable in gross

il.rcorne for purposes of federal income taxation retroactive to the date of issuance, as a result of acts or
omissions of the District subsequent to the issuance of the Bonds in violation of the District's covenants
with respect to the Bonds. Should interest become includable in gross incorne, the Bonds are uot subject
to redentption by reason thereof and will remain outstanding until maturity or unless earlier redeerned

pursuant to optional or mandatory reden-rption.

LEGAL MATTERS

The validity of the Bonds, the Local Obligations and certain other legal rnatters are sLrbject to the

approving legal opinion of Orrick, Herington & Sutcliffe LLP, Bond Counsel to the Authority ("Bond
Counsel"). Bond Counsel has not undeftaken any responsibility for the accuracy, conrpleteness or
lairness of this Official Statenrent and expresses no opinion as to the matters set forth herein. Certain
legal mattels will be passed upon for the District and the Authority by the City Attorney. Certain legal

matters relating to the Local Obligations will be passed upon by Orrick, Herrington & SLrtcliffe LLP, as

82Page 368

10/13/2020 Item No.12.



bond counsel to the District. The fees of Bond Counsel and Disclosure Counsel are contingent upon the
issuance ofthe Bonds.

TAX MATTERS

In the opinion of Bond Counsel, based upon an analysis of existing laws, regulations, rulings and

court decisions, and assuming, allol-lg other matters, the accuracy of ceftain representations and

compliance with certain coveuauts, interest on the Bonds is excluded from gross income for federal
irrcome tax purposes under Section 103 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986 (the "Code") and is exempt
from State of California personal income taxes. Bond Counsel is of the further opinion that interest on

the Bonds is not a specific preference item for purposes of the federal alternative minimum tax. A
complete copy of the proposed form of opinion of Bond Counsel is set forth as APPENDIX E hereto.

To the extent the issue price of any rnaturity of the Bonds is less than the amount to be paid at

maturity of such Bonds (excluding amounts stated to be interest and payable at least annually over the
term of such Bonds), the difference constitutes "original issue discount," the accrual of which, to the
extent properly allocable to each Beneficial Owner thereof, is treated as interest on the Bonds which is

excluded from gross income for federal income tax purposes and State of California personal income
taxes. For this purpose, the issue price of a particular maturity of the Bonds is the first price at which a
substantialamount of such maturity of the Bonds is sold to the public (excluding bond houses, brokers, or
sinrilar persons or organizalions acting in the capacity of underwriters, placement agents or wholesalers).
The original issue discount with respect to any niaturity of the Bonds accrues daily over the term to
rnaturity of such Bonds on the basis of a constant interest rate compounded semiannually (with straight-
line interpolations between compounding dates). The accruing original issue discount is added to the
adjusted basis of such Bonds to determine taxable gain or loss upon disposition (including sale,

redemption, or payment on maturity) of such Bonds. Beneficial Owners of the Bonds should consult their
own tax advisors with respect to the tax consequences of ownership of Bonds with original issue discount,
including the treatrnent of Beneficial Owners who do not purchase such Bonds in the original offering to
the public at tlie first price at which a substantial amount of such Bonds is sold to the public.

Bonds purchased, whether at original issuance or otherwise, for an arnount higher than their
principal amourrt payable at rnaturity (or, in solne cases, at their earlier call date) ("Premium Bonds") will
be treated as having amortizable bond premium. No deduction is allowable for the arnortizable bond
premium in the case of bonds, like the Premium Bonds, the interest on which is excluded from gross

income for federal income tax purposes. However, the amount of tax-exempt interest received, and a

Beneficial Owner's basis in a Premium Bond, will be reduced by the arnount of amortizable bond
prernium properly allocable to such Beneficial Owner. Beneficial Owners of Premium Bonds should
consult their own tax advisors with respect to the proper treatrnent of amoftizable bond premiurn in their
particular circumstances.

The Code imposes various restrictions, conditions and requirernents relating to the exclusion from
gross income for federal income tax purposes of interest on obligations such as the Bonds. The
Authority, the City and the District have made ceftain representations and covenanted to comply witlr
ceftain restrictions, conditions and requirements designed to ensure that interest on the Bonds will not be

inclr-rded in federal gross income. Inaccuracy of tlrese representations or failure to comply with these
covenants may result in interest on the Bonds being inclLrded in gross iltcome for federal incorne tax
purposes, possibly from the date of original issuance of the Bonds. The opinion of Bond Counsel
assltrnes the accuracy of these representations and compliance with these covenants. Bond Counsel has

not undertaken to determine (or to inforrn any person) whether any actions taken (or not taken), or events

occurring (or not occurring), or any other matters conring to Bond Couusel's attention after the date of
issuance of the Bonds nray adversely affect the value of, or the tax status of interest otr, the Bonds.

83
Page 369

10/13/2020 Item No.12.



Accordingly, the opinion of Borrd Couusel is not intended to, and tnay I.tot, be relied upon in contrectiou
with any such actions, eveuts or matters.

Although Bond Counsel is of the opiriion that interest on the Bonds is excluded from gross

incorle for federal income tax purposes and is exempt from State of California personal income taxes, the

ownership or disposition of, or the accrual or receipt of amounts treated as interest on, the Bonds may
otherwise affect a Berieficial Owner's fedelal, state or local tax liability. The nature and extent of these

other tax cousequences depends upon the parlicular tax status of the Beneficial Owner or the Beneficial
Owner's otlier items of income or deduction. Bond Counsel expresses no opinion regarding any such

other tax consequences.

Current and future legislative proposals, if enacted into law, clarification of the Code or court
decisions may cause interest on the Bonds to be subject, directly or indirectly, in whole or in part, to
federal income taxation or to be subject to or exempted from state income taxation, or otherwise prevent

Beneficial Owners from realizing the full current benefit of the tax status of such interest. The
introduction or enactment of any such legislative proposals or clarification of the Code or court decisions
may also affect, perhaps significantly, the market price for, or marketability of, the Bonds. Prospective
purchasers of the Bonds should consult their own tax advisors regarding the potential impact of any
pending or proposed federal or state tax legislation, regulations or litigation, as to which Bond Counsel is

expected to express no opinion.

The opinion of Bond Counsel is based on current legal authority, covers ceftain matters not

directly addressed by such authorities, and represents Bond Counsel's judgrnent as to the proper treatment
of the Bonds for federal income tax purposes. It is not binding on the Internal Revenue Service ("IRS")
or the courts. Fufthermore, Bond Counsel cannot give and has not givert any opinion or assurance about
the future activities of the Authority, the City or the District, or about the effect of future changes in the
Code, the applicable regulations, the interpretation thereof or the enforcement thereof by the IRS. The

Authority, the City and the District have covenanted, however, to comply with the requirements of the
Code.

Bond Counsel's engagement with respect to the Bonds ends with the issuance of the Bonds, and,

unless separately engaged, Bond Counsel is not obligated to defend the Authority, the City, the District or
the Beneficial Owners regarding the tax-exempt status of tlie Bonds in the event of an audit examination
by the IRS. Under current procedures, parlies other than the Authority, the District and their appointed
counsel, including the Beneficial Owners, would'have little, if any, riglit to participate in the audit

examination process. Moreover, because achieving judicial review in connection with an audit
examinatiorr of tax-exernpt borrds is difficult, obtaining an independent review of IRS positions with
which tlie Authority, tlie City or the District legitimately disagrees, rnay not be practicable. Any action of
the IRS, including but not limited to selection of the Bonds for audit, or the course or result of such audit,
or an audit of bonds presenting sinlilar tax issues rnay affect the niarket price for, or the marketability of,
the Bonds, and may cause the Authority, the City, the District or the Beneficial Owners to incur
significant expense.

NO LITIGATION

At the tirne of delivery of and payment for the Bonds and the Local Obligatiotrs, the ALrthority
and/or the District, as applicable, will certify that there is rro actiou, suit, pt'oceeding, inqLriry or

investigation, at law or in equity, before or by any court or regulatory agency, public board or body
pending or threatened against the Authority or the District affecting their existence, or tlre titles of their
respective officers, or seeking to restrain or to enjoin the issuance, sale or delivery of the Bonds or tlte
Local Obligatiorrs, the application of the proceeds thereof in accordance with the Trust Agreement, or the

84Page 370

10/13/2020 Item No.12.



collection or levy of the Special Taxes to pay the principal of and irrterest on the Local Obligatious, or in
any way contesting or affecting the validity or enforceability of the Local Obligations and the Bonds, tlte
Trust Agreernent, the Local Obligations Indenture, the Bond Purchase Contract entered into arlong the

Authority, the District and the Underwriter or ally other applicable agreements or any action of the

ALrthority or tlre District contemplated by any of said documents, or in arry way contesting the

completeness or accuracy of this Official Statement or any amendment or supplement thereto, or
contesting the powers of the ALrthority or the District or their authority with respect to the Bonds or the

Local Obligations or any action of tlre Authority or the District contemplated by any of said docurnents,

luor, to tlie knowledge of tlie Authority, is there any basis therefor.

NO RATING

The Authority has not made, and does not contemplate making, application to any rating agency

for the assignment of a rating to the Bonds. The absence of a rating may significantly adversely affect the

ability of the owner of Bonds to sell such Bonds.

MUNICIPAL ADVISOR

The District has retained Fieldrnan, Rolapp & Associates, Inc. as municipal advisor (the
"Municipal Advisor") with respect to the issuance of the Bonds. The Municipal Advisor is not obligated
to undeftake, and has not underlaken to make, an independent verification or assume responsibility for the

accuracy, completeness, or fairness of the information contained in tlris Official Statement.

Compensation of the Municipal Advisor relating to the issuance of the Bonds is corttittgent upott

the issuance ofthe Bonds.

UNDERWRITING

The Bonds are being purchased by Piper Sandler & Co. (the "Underwriter") pursuant to a Bond
Purchase Contract (the "Purchase Contract"), by and among the Authority, the District and the

Underwriter. Pursuant to the Purchase Contract, the Underwriter has agreed to purchase all of the Bonds
from the Authority at a purchase price of $ being the aggregate principal amount of the

Bonds of $ [plus/less] fanl a net] original issue [premium/discount] of $_ and less

an Underwriter's disconnt of $ The Underwriter may offer and sell the Bonds to certain
dealers and others at prices lower than the public offering prices set forlh on the inside fi'ont cover page

hereof.

CONTINUING DISCLOSURE

The District

The District has covenanted forthe benefit of the Owners to provide ceftain financial infornration
and operating data relating to the Bonds by not laterthan nine months following the end of the District's
fiscal year (which fiscal year currently ends June 30) commencing with the reporl for the 2019-20 Fiscal
Year (the "Annual Report"), which is due April 1 , 2021, and to provide notices of tlie occurrence of
ceftain enunterated events. The Annual Reporl and the notices of ennrnerated events will be filed witlr
EMMA, and the first Annual Reporl may include the filing of or refereuce to tltis Official Statement. The
specific nature of the infornration to be contained irr the Annual Report or the notices of enumerated

events is contained within APPENDIX D-"FORMS OF CONTINUING DISCLOSURE
UNDERTAKINCS." These covenants have been made in order to assist the Underwriter in conrplying
with S.E.C. Rule l5c2-12(b)(5).

85Page 371

10/13/2020 Item No.12.



The District is committed to cornplete and accurate corrtinuing disclosure in accordance with its

continuing disclosure obligations under the federal securities laws, including rules and regulations

prornulgated by the SEC and the MSRB, as those rules Inay be amended from tinre to time. However,
during the past five years, there were specific instances where complete and accurate disclosure was not

achieved by the City or its related agencies, including, (1) the City failed to include revenue fund balances

for ceftain of the Folsom Public Financing Authority's revenue bonds issued in200l in the annual reports

for Fiscal Years 2015 through 2017, and (2) a notice of listed event for a ratings upgrade on October 12,

2018, was not timely filed for ceftain of tlre Folsonr Public Financing Autlrority's water revenue bonds.

The description of these instances of non-compliance in this Official Statement is not al'l

acknowledgement that any such non-cornpliance was material. fFurther, the City has made rernedial

filings to address these instances of non-compliance for those issues that are still outstanding, and has

policies and procedures in place in order to achieve compliance with its continuing disclosure

undertakings.]

ECIC, KB Home Sacramento and Signature Homes

Pursuant to separate ceftificates, ECIC, KB Horne Sacramento and Signature Homes have each

covenanted for the benefit of the Bondholders to provide ceftain information relating to it, its

development plan and its financing plan (the "Disclosure Repofts"), and to provide notices of the

occurrence of certain enumerated events until tlie obligation to so provide such information, data and

notices is otherwise terminated in accordance with the provisions of such cerlificate. A fom of the

Continuing Disclosure Ceftificate for ECIC and a form of the Continuing Disclosure Cerlificate for KB
Home Sacramento and Signature Homes is included in APPENDIX D-"FORMS OF CONTINUING
DISCLOSURE UNDERTAKINGS." Such infornration is to be provided semiannually not later than

March 31 and September 30 of each year, corrmencing with tlie Disclosure Report due March 31,202l.
The Disclosure Reports are to be filed with EMMA.

The Authority and tlie District have not considered, or reached any conclusion as to, whether or

not ECIC, KB Home Sacramento or Signature Homes are an obligated person under the Rule. The

Authority takes no responsibility for the fomr or content or for the adequacy of the respective Continuing
Disclosure Certificates for ECIC, KB Home Sacramento of Signature Homes for their intended purpose.

ECIC. The obligations of ECIC under its Continuing Disclosure Cefiificate will terminate when

upon the occurrence of certain events set forth in ECIC's Continuing Disclosure Certificate, including
when tlie property within the Lnprovernent Area owned by ECIC is developed to the planned

development stage. Other than as set forth in the following sentence, ECIC represents that, to the actual

knowledge of ECIC, ECIC has not failed in any nraterial respect to cornply with any previous undeftaking
by it to provide periodic continuing disclosure repofis or notices of rnaterial events with within the past

five years. ECIC has reported that in connection with a continuing disclosure undertaking dated August
23,2017 executed in connection with the Folsom Ranch Financing ALrtlrority Special Tax Revenue

Bonds, Series 2017,MIC, an affiliate of ECIC, filed its semiannual report that was due by December 31,

2018 orr March 15,2019.

KB Home Sacrantento and Signalure Hontes. The obligations of KB Home Sacramento and

Signatures Homes under the respective Continuing Disclosr-rre Ceftificate will ternrinate when the

property within the Improvement Area owned by KB Home Sacramento and Signature Homes,

respectively, is no louger obligated to pay 20oh or rrrore of tlre Special Taxes within the Improvemetrt

Area.

KB Horne Sacrarnento and Signature Hornes each represent that, to the actual knowledge of KB
Home Sacrarnento or Signatr,rres Hornes, respectively, neither KB Horne Sacrametrto or Signature Homes

B6Page 372

10/13/2020 Item No.12.



lras failed in any material respect to comply with any previous undertaking by it to provide periodic
continuing disclosure reports or notices of nraterial events within the past five years.

MISCELLANEOUS

This Official Statement is not to be construed as a contract or agreement arlong the Authority, the

District and the purchasers of the Bonds. Any statements made in this Official Statement involving
matters of opinion or of estinrates, whether or not so expressly stated, are set forlh as such and not as

representations of fact, and no represeutation is made that any of the estimates will be realtzed. The
infonnation and expressious of opinion herein are subject to change without notice and neither the

delivery of the Official Statement nor any sale made hereunder shall, under any circurnstances, create any
irnplication tliat there has been no change in the affairs of the Authority, the City or the District since the
date hereof.

References are made herein to ceftain documents and reports which are brief summaries thereof
which do not purport to be cornplete or definitive and reference is made to such documents and reports for
full and complete statements of the contents thereof. Copies of such documents and repofts are available
for inspection at the office of the Finance Director, City of Folsom, City Hall, 50 Natoma Street, Folsom,
California 95630.

81
Page 373

10/13/2020 Item No.12.



The execution and delivery of the Official Statement by the Authority and the District has been

duly authorizedby the Board of Directors of the Authority and the City Council, respectively.

FOLSOM RANCH FINANCING AUTHORITY

Treasurer

CITY OF FOLSOM COMMUNITY FACILITIES
DrsTRrcr No. 23 (FOLSOM RANCTT)

By:
City of Folsom Finance Director

By

Signature Page to Official Statement
Page 374

10/13/2020 Item No.12.



APPENDIX A

RATE, METHOD OF APPORTIONMENT AND MANNER OF
COLLBCTION OF SPECIAL TAX

A-l
Page 375

10/13/2020 Item No.12.



APPBNDIX B

ECONOMIC AND DBMOGRAPHIC INFORMATION RELATING TO THE CITY OF FOLSOM

B-lPage 376

10/13/2020 Item No.12.



APPENDIX C

SUMMARY OF PRINCIPAL DOCUMENTS

c-rPage 377

10/13/2020 Item No.12.



APPENDIX D

FORMS OF CONTINUING DISCLOSURB UNDERTAKINGS

DISTRICT CONTINUING DISCLOSURB CERTIFICATE

THIS DISTRICT CONTINUING DISCLOSURE CE,RTIFICATE (this "Disclosure Certificate"),
dated as of 2020, is executed and delivered by the City of Folsom Community Facilities
District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch) (the "District") relative to the Folsom Ranch Financing Authority (the

"Authority") in connection with the issuance by the Authority of the Folsom Ranch Financing Authority
City of Folsom Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch) Improvement Area No. 1 Special
Tax Revenue Bonds, Series 2020 (the "Bouds"). The Bonds are being issued pursuant to a Trust
Agreement (the "Trust Agreernent"), among the District, the Authority and MUFG Union Bank, N.A. (the

"Trustee"). The City covenants and agrees as follows.

SECTION 1. Purpose of the Disclosure Cerlificate. The Disclosure Ceftificate'is being executed

and delivered by the City of Folsom (the "City") for tlre benefit of the Holders and Beneficial Owners of
the Bonds and in order to assist the Parlicipating Underwriter in cornplying with S.E.C. Rule 15c2-

12(bX5).

SECTION 2. Definitions. In addition to the definitions set forth in the Trust Agreement, which
apply to any capitalized term used in this Disclosure Certificate unless otherwise defined in this Section,
the following capitalized terrns shall have the following meanings:

"Annual Repoft" rneans any Annual Report provided by the City pursuant to, and as described in,
Sections 3 and4 hereof.

"Annual ReportDate" means the date in each yearthat is nine months afterthe end of the City's
fiscalyear, which date, as of the date of this Disclosure Certificate, is April 1.

"Dissemination Agent" shall mean NBS, or any successor Dissemiltation Agent designated in
writing by the City and which has filed with the City a written acceptance of such designation.

"EMMA System" means the MSRB's Electronic Municipal Market Access system, or such other
electronic system designated by the MSRB.

"Financial Obligation" lneans, for purposes of the Listed Events set out in Section 5(a)(10) and

Section 5(bX7), a (i) debt obligation; (ii) derivative instrument entered into in connection with, or pledged
as security or a source of payment for, au existirrg or planned debt obligation; or (iii) guarantee of (i) or
(ii). The term "Financial Obligation" shall not include Municipal Securities (as defined in the Securities
Exclrange Act of 1934, as amended) as to which a final official statement (as defined in the Rule) lras

been provided to the MSRB consistent with the Rule.

"Listed Events" means any of the events listed in subsectiorr (a) of Section 5 lrereof.

"MSRB" n-reans the Municipal Securities RLrlemaking Board, or any successor thereto.

"Official Staternent" means the Official Statement, dated

Bonds

D-l

2020, relating to the

Page 378

10/13/2020 Item No.12.



"Participating Underwriter" means the original underwriter of the Bonds required to cornply with
the Rule in connection with the offering of the Bonds.

"Rule" rlleans Rule I 5c2-12(b)(5) adopted by the Securities and Exchange Commission under the

Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as the same may be amended from time to tirne.

SECTION 3. Provision of Annual Reports.

(a) The City shall, or slrall cause the Dissernination Agent to, provide to the MSRB through
the EMMA System, in an electronic format and accompanied by identifying infonnation all as prescribed

by the MSRB, an Annual Report which is consistent with tlie requirements of Section 4 hereof, not later
tlran tlre Annual Report Date, commerrcing with the repoft for the 2019-20 Fiscal Year. The Annual
Report nray be submitted as a single docurnent or as separate documents cornprising a package, and may
include by reference other infonnation as provided in Section 4 hereof; provided, however, that the
audited financial statements of the City may be submitted separately frorn the balance of the Annual
Repoft, and later than the date required above for the filing of the Annual Report if not available by that
date. If the City's fiscal year changes, it shall, or shall instruct the Dissemination Agent to, give notice of
such change in the same manner as for a Listed Event under subsection (e) of Section 5 hereof. The first
Annual Repoft may include the filing of or reference to the Official Statement.

(b) Not later than 15 business days prior to the date specified in subsection (a) of this Section
for the providing of the Annual Report to the MSRB, the City shall provide the Annual Report to the

Dissern i rration Agent.

(c) If the Dissemination Agent is other than the City, then not later than fifteen (15) Business
Days prior to said date, the City shall provide the Annual Report to the Dissemination Agent. If the City
is unable to provide the Annual Report to the MSRB by the Annual Report Date, the City shall send a
notice to the MSRB in substantially the forrn attached as Exhibit A to the Disclosure Cerlificate.

(d) The Dissemination Agent shall

(i) provide any Annual Report received by it to the MSRB, as provided herein; and

(ii) file a report with the City cerlifying that the Annual Report has been provided
pursuant to this Disclosr:re Certificate and stating the date it was so provided.

SECTION 4. Content of Annual Reporls. The C iflz's Annual Report shall contain or incorporate
by reference the following:

(a) The District's audited financial statements, if any, prepared in accordance with generally

accepted accounting principles as promulgated to apply to governmental entities from time to time by the

Governrnental Accouuting Standards Board. If the District's audited financial statements, if any, are uot
available by the time the Anrrual Reporl is required to be filed pursnant to subsection (a) of Section 3

hereof, the Annual Report shall contain unaudited financial statements, and the audited financial
statet.l-lents, if any, shall be filed in the same manller as the Annual Reporl when they become available. If
the District's financial statemerlt is included or consolidated with the financial staternent for the City of
Folsonr, tlren tl-re District shall file the City's audited financial statelnents as its own.

(b) The following infornration:

D-2Page 379

10/13/2020 Item No.12.



(i) The principal arnount of Bonds Outstanding as of the December 31 next
preceding the Annual Report Date along with a debt service schedule for tlre Bonds Outstanding
as ofsuch date;

(ii) The balance in each reserve accourrt for the Local Obligations, and a statement of
the required bond reserue arnoLlnt, as of the December 31 rrext preceding the Annual Report Date;

(iii) The total assessed vah.re of all parcels within the Improvement Area on which the

Special Taxes are levied, as shown on the assessment roll of the Sacramento County Assessor last

equalized prior to the Decernber 31 next preceding the Annual Report Date, and a statement of
assessed value-to-lien ratios therefor based on special tax and assessment debt, either by
iridividual parcel or by categories (e.g., "below 3i7," "3:1 to 4:1" etc.);

(iv) The Special Tax delinquency rate forthe Improvement Area as of the December
31 next preceding the Annual Report Date; the number of parcels within the Improvement Area
delinquent in payment of special taxes as of the December 31 next preceding the Annual Repoft
Date; the amount of each delinquency; the length of tirne delinquent and the date on which
foreclosure was colnlnenced, or similar infonnation pertaining to delinquencies deemed

appropriate by the City; provided, however, that parcels with aggregate delinquencies of $1,000
or less (excluding penalties and interest) may be grouped together and such infonnation may be
provided by category;

(v) The status of foreclosure proceedings and a sllmmary of tlie results of any
foreclosure sales in the Improvement Area as of the December 31 next preceding the Annual
Report Date;

(vi) The identity of any property owner, representing more than 5o/o of the Special

Tax levy, delinquent in payment of special taxes as of tlie December 3l next preceding the
Annual Reporl Date;

(vii) All tentative and final maps approved and/or recorded within the Improvement
Area, describing the gross acres, the planned commercial acres and the number and type of
planned residential dwelling units;

(viii) The number of new building permits issued and a description of the purpose of
such permits (e.g., new single-family, new multi-farnily, new comrrercial, new industrial);

(ix) A land ownership summary listing the top ten Special Tax payers for the
Improvement Area, as shown on the assessment roll of the Sacramento County Assessor last

eqLralized prior to the Decernber 31 next preceding the Annual Repoft Date; and

(x) For each immediately preceding Fiscal Year, the amount of the Maxinum
Special Tax and the actual Special Tax levied within the Improvement Area, with sucli amounts
reported separately for Developed Propefty, Small Lot Final Map Property and Large Lot
Property; provided, however, that once all Taxable Property within tlre Improvernent Area is
Developed Properfy, the Maximum Special Tax and the actual Special Tax levied may each be

shown on an aggregate basis in the AnnualReporl. Forthe purposes of this subparagraph (x), all
capitalized terms used but not otherwise defined herein shall have the meanings ascribed thereto
in the Rate and Method of Apportionrnent for the Improvement Area.

D-3Page 380

10/13/2020 Item No.12.



In addition to any of the information expressly required to be provided under this Section, as set

fofth above, the City shall provide such further inforrnation, if any, ?s may be necessaly to rnake the

specifically required statetrents, in the light of the circumstances urrder which they are tuade, not

misleading.

Any or all of tlie iterns listed above rnay be included by specific reference to other docurneltts,
including official statements of debt issues of the City or related public entities, which have been

submitted to the MSRB through the EMMA Systern. The City shall clearly identify each such other

document so included by reference.

SECTION 5. Reportineof Si ant Events

(a) Pursuant to the provisions of this Section, the City shall give notice, or cause notice to be

given, not less than ten Business Days after the occurrence of any of the following events with respect to

the Bonds:

(i) Principal and interest payment delinquencies.

(ii) Unscheduled draws on debt service reserves reflecting financial difficulties.

(iii) Unscheduled draws on credit enhancements reflecting financial difficulties.

(iv) Substitution of credit or liquidity providers, or their failure to perform.

(v) Adverse tax opinions, the issuance by the Interual Revenue Service of proposed

or final determinations of taxability, Notices of Proposed Issue IRS Form 5701 TEB) or other

material notices or detenninations with respect to the tax status of the Bonds, or other rnaterial

events affecting the tax-exempt status of the security.

(vi) Defeasances.

(vii) Tender offers.

(viii) Bankruptcy, insolvency, receivership or similar event of the obligated person.

Note: For the purposes of the event identified in subparagraph (ix), the event is

considered to occur when any of the following occur: the appointment of a

receiver, trustee or similar officer for an obligated person in a proceeding under

the U.S. BankrLrptcy Code or in any other proceeding under state or federal law
in which a courl or governmental authority has assumed jurisdiction over
substantially all of the assets or business of the obligated person, or if such
jurisdiction has been assurned by leaving the existing governmeutal body and

officials or officers in possession bLrt subject to the supervision and orders of a

conft or govenrmental authority, or the entry of an order confirming a plan of
reorganizatiou, arrangement or liqLridation by a court or governmental authority
having supervision or jurisdiction over substantially all of the assets or business

of the obligated person.

(ix) Rating changes

D-4
Page 381

10/13/2020 Item No.12.



(x) Default, event of acceleration, terrnirration evert, modification of terms or other
sinrilar events r:nder the terms of a financial Obligation of the District, any of which reflect
financial difficulties.

(b) The City shall give notice, or cause notice to be given, not less than ten Business Days

after the occurreltce of any of the following events with respect to the Bonds, if material:

(i) Modifications to riglits of Bond holders.

(ii) Borid calls.

(iii) Release, substitution or sale of property securing repayment of the Bonds

(iv) Non-paymentrelateddefaults.

(v) The consurnmation of a merger, consolidation, or acquisition involving an

obligated person or the sale of all or substantially all of the assets of the obligated person, other
than in the ordinary course of business, the entry into adefinitive agreementto undeftake such an

action or the termination of a definitive agreement relating to any such actions, other than

pursuant to its terms.

(vi) Appointrnent of a successor or additional trustee or the change of narne of a

trustee.

(vii) Incurrence of a Financial Obligation of the District, or agreement to covenants,

events of default, remedies, priority rights, or similar terms of a Financial Obligation of the District, any

of which affect Bondholders.

(c) Whenever the City obtains knowledge of the occurrence of a Listed Event described in

subsection (b) above, the City shall deterrnine if such event would be niaterial under applicable federal

securities laws.

(d) If the City learns of the occurrence of a Listed Event described in subsection (a) of this
Section, or determines that knowledge of a Listed Event described in subsection (b) of this Sectiott would
be material urrder applicable federal securities laws, the City shall notiff the Dissemination Agent thereof
in writing and instruct the Disseniination Agent to report the occurrence pursuant to subsection (e) of this
Section. If in response to a request under subsection (b) of this Section, the City detennines that the

Listed Event would not be material under applicable Federal securities law, the City shall so notify the

Disseurination Agent in writing and instruct the Dissernination Agent not to report the occurrence
pursuant to subsection (e) ofthis Section.

(e) If the Dissemination Agent has been instructed by the City to report the occurrence of a
Listed Event, the Dissemination Agent shall file a notice of such occurrence with the MSRB through the

EMMA System. Notwithstanding the foregoing, notice of Listed Events described in paragraplr (vii) of
subsection (a) of this Section and paragraph (ii) of subsection (b) of this Section need not be given under

this subsection any earlier than the notice (if any) of the underlying evertt is given to holders of affected

Bonds pursuant to the Trust Agreement.

SECTION 6. Termination of Reporting Oblisation The City's obligations under this Disclosure
Certificate shall terrninate upon the legal defeasance, prior redemption or payment in fLrll of all of the

D-5Page 382

10/13/2020 Item No.12.



Bonds. If such termination occurs prior to the final maturity of the Bonds, the City shall give notice of
such termination in the same rnauuer as for a Listed Event under subsection (e) of Section 5 hereof.

SECTION 7. Dissernination Agent. The City niay, from tinre to time, appoint or engage a

Dissemination Agent to assist it in carrying out its obligations under this Disclosure Ceftificate, and may

discharge any such Dissemination Agent, with or without appointing a successor Dissemination Agent.
The Dissemination Agent shall not be responsible in any rranner for the content of any notice or report
prepared by the City pursuant to the Disclosure Certificate.

SECTION 8. Amendmentl Waiver. Notwithstanding any other provision of this Disclosure
Certificate, the City may amend this Disclosure Certificate, and any provision of this Disclosure

Certificate may be waived, provided that the following conditions are satisfied:

(a) if the amendment or waiver relates to the provisions of subsection (a) of Section 3 hereof,

Section 4 hereof or subsections (a) and (b) of Section 5 hereof, it rnay only be made in connection with a

change in circumstances that arises from a change in legal requirements, change in law, or change in the

identity, nature or status of an obligated person with respect to the Bonds, or type of business conducted;

(b) the undertakings herein, as proposed to be amended or waived, would, in the opinion of
nationally recognized bond counsel, have complied with the requirenrents of the Rule at the time of the

primary offering of the Bonds, after taking into account any amendments or interpretations of the Rule, as

well as any change in circumstances; and

(c) the proposed amendment or waiver (i) is approved by Owners of the Bonds in the manner
provided in the Trust Agreement for amendments to the Trust Agreement with the consent of Owners, or
(ii) does not, in the opinion of nationally recognized bond counsel, materially irnpair the interests of
Owners or Beneficial Owners of the Bonds.

If tlie annual financial information or operating data to be provided in the Annual Report is
amended pursuant to the provisions hereof, the annual financial infonnation containing the amended

operating data or financial infonnation shall explain, in narrative fonn, the reasons for the amendment
arid the impact of the change in the type of operating data or financial infonnation being provided.

If an amendment is made to the undertaking specifying the accounting principles to be followed
in preparing financial statemeuts, the annual financial infonnation for the year in which the change is

made shall present a comparison between the financial statements or infonnation prepared olt the basis of
the new accounting principles and those prepared on the basis of the former accounting principles. The
comparison shall include a qualitative discussion of tlie differences in the accounting principles and the

intpact of the change in the accounting principles on the presentation of the financial statements or
informatiolt, in orderto provide inforrnation to investors to enable thenr to evaluate the ability of the City
to meet its obligations. To the extent reasonably feasible, the comparison shall be quantitative. A notice

of the change in the accounting principles shall be given in the sanre manner as for a Listed Event under

subsection (e) of Section 5 hereof.

SECTION 9. Additional Information. Nothing in this Disclosure Certificate shall be deemed to
prevent the City fronr disseminating any other information, usirrg tlre rreaus of dissernination set forth in

this Disclosure Certificate or any other means of cornnrunication, or including any otlrer inforrnation in

any Annual Repoft or notice of occnrrence of a Listed Everrt, in addition to that which is required by this
Disclosure Certificate. If the City chooses to include any infbrnration in any Annual Reporl or notice of
occltrrence of a Listed Event in addition to that which is specifically required by this Disclosure

D-6Page 383

10/13/2020 Item No.12.



Certificate, the City shall have no obligatiorr nnder this Disclosure Certificate to update such infomation
or include it in any future Annual Report or notice of occurrence of a Listed Event.

SECTION 10. Default. In the event of a failure of the City or the Disseniination Agent to
comply with any provision of this Disclosure Certificate, any Holder or Beneficial Owner of outstanding
Bonds may take such actions as may be necessary and appropriate, including seeking mandate or specific
performance by court order, to cause the City to conrply with its obligations under the Disclosure

Certificate. A default under the Disclosure Cerlificate shall not be deemed an Event of Default under the

Trust Agreement, and the sole remedy under the Disclosure Cerlificate in the event of any failure of the

City to comply with the Disclosure Cerlificate shall be an action to compel perfonnance.

SECTION 11 T)r rf ies Imrnunities and Liahi litieq nf f)isqeminqfinrr Aoenf The Dissemination
Agent shall be entitled to the protections and limitations from liability afforded to the Trustee under the

Trust Agreement. The Dissemination Agent shall not be responsible for the form or content of any

Annual Report or notice of Listed Event. The Dissernination Agent shall receive reasonable

compensation for its services provided under this Disclosure Ceftificate. The Dissemination Agent shall

have only such duties as are specifically set forlh in this Disclosure Certificate, and the City agrees to
indernnifo and save the Dissemination Agent, its officers, directors, employees and agents, harmless

against any loss, expense and liabilities which it may incur arising out of or in the exercise or
performance of its powers and duties hereunder, inclLrding the costs and expenses (including attorneys'
fees) of defending against any clairn of liability, but excluding liabilities due to the Dissemination Agent's
negligence or willful misconduct. The obligations of the City under this Section shall survive resignation

or removal of the Dissemination Agent and payment of the Bonds.

SECTION 12. Beneficiaries. This Disclosure Cefiificate shall inure solely to the benefit of the

Cify, the Dissemination Agent, tlie Pafiicipating Underwriter and Owners and Beneficial Owners from
time to tirne of the Bonds, and shall create no rights in any other person or entity.

SECTION 13. Counterparts. This Disclosure Cefiificate may be executed in several

counterpafts, each of whicli shall be an original and all of wlrich shall constitute but one and the same

instrument.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the District has executed tliis Disclosure Certificate as of the date first
above written.

CITY OF FOLSOM COMMUNITY
FACILITIES DISTRICT NO. 23
(FOLSOM RANCH)

D-1Page 384

10/13/2020 Item No.12.



EXHIBIT A

NOTICE OF FAILURB TO FILE ANNUAL REPORT

Name of Issuer:

Name of Issue:

Folsom Ranch Financing Authority

Folsom Ranch Financing Authority City of Folsom Community Facilities
District No. 23 (Folsorn Ranch) Improvement Area No. 1 Special Tax
Revenue Bonds, Series 2020

Date of Issuance 2020

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the City of Folsom Community Facilities District No. 23

(Folsom Ranch) (the "District") has not provided an Annual Report with respect to the above-named
Bonds as required by Section 3 of the Continuing Disclosure Certificate, dated 2020,

executed by the District for the benefit of the Holders and Beneficial Owners of the above-referenced
bonds. [The District anticipates that the Annual Report will be filed by

Dated:

CITY OF FOLSOM COMMUNITY
FACILITIES DISTRICT NO. 23
(FOLSOM RANCH)

By
Finance Director

D-8
Page 385

10/13/2020 Item No.12.



CONTINUING DISCLOSURB CERTIFICATE - DBVELOPBR

This Continuing Disclosure Certificate - Developer (tlre "Disclosure Certificate") dated as of
2020, is executed and delivered by East Carpenter Improvenrent Company, LLC (the

"Developer") in connection with the issuance of $ aggregate principal amount of Folsom

Ranch Financing Authority City of Folsom Comrnunity Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)
Inrprovernent Area No. 1 Special Tax Revenue Bonds, Series 2020 (the "Bouds"). The Bonds are being
issued pursuant to a Trust Agreement, dated as of November 1,2020 (the "Trust Agreement"), among the

Folsom Ranch Financing Authority (the "lssuer"), the City of Folsom Community Facilities District No.
23 (Folsom Ranch) (the "District") and MUFG Union Bank, N.A., as trustee (the "Trustee").

SECTION l. Purpose of the Disclosure Certificate. This Disclosure Certificate is being
executed and delivered by the Developer for the benefit of the holders and beneficial owners of the
Bonds. The Developer acknowledges that the Issuer and the District have undertaken no responsibility
with respect to any repofts, notices or disclosures provided or required under this Disclosure Cerlificate,
and has no liability to any person, including any holder or beneficial owner of the Bonds, with respect to
this Disclosure Certifi cate.

SECTION 2. Definitions. In addition to the definitions set forth in the Trust Agreement, which
apply to any capitalized term used in this Disclosure Certificate unless otherwise defined herein, the

followirrg capitalized tenns shall have the following meanings:

"Affiliate" of another Person tneans (a) any Person directly or indirectly owning, controlling, or
lrofding with power to vote, 50oh or more of the outstanding voting securities of such other Person, (b)
any Person 50Yo or more of whose outstanding voting securities are directly or indirectly owned,
controlled, or held with power to vote, by such other Person, and (c) any Person directly or indirectly
controlling, controlled by, or under common control with, such other Person; for purposes hereof, control
mealts the power to exercise a controlling influence over the management or policies of a Person, unless

such power is solely the result of an official position with such Person.

"Assumption Agreement" lneans an agreement containing terms substantially similar to this
Disclosure Certificate, whereby a Major Developer agrees to provide Semi-Annual Reports and notices of
significant events with respect to the portion of the Property owned by such Major Developer and its
Affiliates, and with respect to the improvements or payments uecessary to cause the Planned

Development Stage to be reached that such Major Developer, or an Affiliate thereof, intends or is
obligated (contractually or otherwise) to make or cause to be made.

"Bonds" lneans the $ Folsom Ranch Financing Autlrority City of Folsom
Conrmunity Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch) Improvement Area No. I Special Tax Revenue
Bonds, Series 2020.

"DeveIoper" rneans East Carpenter Improvement Company, LLC.

"Developrnent Plan" tneans with respect to a Major Developer, the specific improvements such

Major Developer intends to rnake, or cause to be made, in order for the Planned Developmetrt Stage to be

reached, tlre time frame in which such improvemellts are intended to be made arrd the estimated costs of
such improvements; the Developer's Development Plan, as of the date hereof, is described in the Official
Statement under the captions "PLAN OF FINANCE," "FOLSOM PLAN AREA" and "PROPOSED
PROPERTY DEVELOPM ENT."

D-9Page 386

10/13/2020 Item No.12.



"Disclosure Certificate" mealts this Disclosure Certificate as the salre may be arnended from time
to time

"Dissemination Agent" means the Developer, aud auy successor Dissemination Agent designated

in writing by the Developer and which has filed with the District a written acceptance of such designation.

"District" means City of Folsonr Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch), as the

same may be rnodified by the City Council of the City from time to tiure.

"Event of Barikruptcy" lneans, with respect to a Person, that such Person files a petition or
institutes a proceeding under any act or acts, state or federal, dealing with or relating to the subject or
subjects ofbankruptcy or insolvency, or under any amendment ofsuch act or acts, either as a bankrupt or

as an insolvent, or as a debtor, or in any sirnilar capacity, wherein or whereby such Person asks or seeks

or prays to be adjLrdicated a bankrupt, or is to be discharged from any or all of such Person's debts or

obligations, or offers to such Person's creditors to effect a composition or extension of time to pay such

Person's debts or asks, seeks or prays for reorganizatiou or to effect a plan of reorganization, or for a

readjustment of such Person's debts, or for any other similar relief, or if any such petition or any such

proceedings of the same or similar kind or character is filed or instituted ortaken against such Person, or
if a receiver of the business or of the property or assets of such Person is appointed by any cout1, or if
such Person makes a general assignment for the benefit of such Person's creditors.

"Financing Plan" means, with respect to a Major Developer, the method by which such Major
Developer intends to finance its Development Plan, including specific sources of funding for such

Development Plan; the Developer's Financing Plan, as of the date hereof, is described in the Official
Statement under the captions "PLAN OF FINANCE" and "PROPOSED PROPERTY
DEVELOPMENT."

"Improvement Area" means Improvement Area No. I of the District.

"Listed Event" means any of the events listed in Section 5 hereof.

"Major Developer" lneans any property owner, which owns (itself or through Affiliates) Taxable

Property that represents20o/o or more of the Special Tax levy on all of the Taxable Property for the then

current Fiscal Year.

"MSRB" shall mean the Municipal Securities Rulemaking Board or any other entity designated

or authorized by the Securities and Exchange Commission to receive repoffs pursuant to the Rule. Until
otherwise designated by the MSRB or the Securities and Exchange Commission, filings with the MSRB
are to be made through the E,lectronic Municipal Market Access (EMMA) website of the MSRB,
currently located at http: I I emtna.m srb.org.

"Official Statement" rneans the final, executed Official Statement relating to tlie Bonds.

"Pafticipating Underwriter" shall mean Piper Sandler & Co., the original underwriter of the

Bonds

"Person" means an individual, a corporation, a parlnership, an association, a joint stock company,

a trust, any unincorporated organization or a governrnent or political subdivision thereof.

"Planued Developrnent Stage" nreaus, with respect to any porlion of the Property, the stage of
development at which such pofiion of the Property is ready to be presented to the marketplace as a

D-10
Page 387

10/13/2020 Item No.12.



finished residential unit; provided that with respect to the Developer Planned Development Stage shall
mean the stage of development when the Developer is no longer a Major Developer and has conrpleted
all of the facilities described in the Official Statement under the caption "PROPOSED PROPERTY
DEVELOPMENT - Development Plans of Finance."

"Residential Lot" meaus a residential dwelling unit or home lot located witlrin the Improvement
Area for which a final subdivision public repoft was or will be required by the California Department of
Real Estate.

"Rule" rreans Rule I 5c2-12(b)(5) adopted by the Securities and Exchange Commission under the

Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as the same may be amended frorn tilne to tiure.

"Semiannual Repoft" shall mean any Semiannual Report provided by the Developer pursuant to,
and as described in, Sections 3 and 4 of this Disclosure Certificate.

"special Taxes" means the special taxes levied on the Taxable Property within the Improvement
Area.

"State" shall mean the State of California

"Taxable Propefty" means the real property within the boundaries of the Improvement Area that
is not exempt from the Special Taxes authorized to be levied in the Lnprovement Area.

"Tmst Agreement" rneans the Trust Agreement, dated as of November 7,2020, among the Issuer,

the District and the Trustee, and as further amended and supplemented from tirne to time.

"Trustee" rneans MUFG Union Bank, N.A., as trustee under the Trust Agreement, or any
successor as trustee.

SECTION 3. Provision of Serniannual Repofts. So long as the Developer's obligations
hereunder have not been terminated pursuant to Section 7, the Developer shall provide to the MSRB and

the District a Semiannual Report which is consistent with the requirernents of Section 4, not later than

March 31 forthe six-rnonth period ending on the priorDecember3l, and not laterthan September 30 for
the six-month period ending tlre prior June 30, commencing with the Semiannual Report for the six nronth
period ending March 31,2021. The Semiannual Reporl must be subrnitted in electronic format,
accompanied by such identifying infonnation as is prescribed by the MSRB, and may cross-referetrce

other infonnation as provided in Sections 4 or 5 hereof.

SECTION 4. Content of Semiannual Reporls. The Developer's Semiannual Report shall
contain or incorporate by reference the following information:

(a) If information regarding such Major Developer has not previor-rsly been included in a

Semi-Annual Report or in the Official Statement, the Development Plan and Financing Plan of such

Major Developer or, if information regarding such Major Developer has previously been included in a

Semi-Annual Reporl or in the Official Statement, a description of the progress made in the Development
Plan of such Major Developer since the date of such inforniation and a description of any significant
changes in such Development Plan and the Financing Plan arid the causes or rationale for such changes.

(b) Identification of any portion of the Taxable Property owned by the Developer consisting
of 20o/o or lnore of the Special Tax levy on all of the Taxable Propefty within the Improvement Area that

D-11Page 388

10/13/2020 Item No.12.



is conveyed by the Developer to an entity that is not an Affiliate since the date of the most recent

Semiannual Report.

(c) The number of building permits issued with respect to such Major Developer's Property
during the six-month period ending on April 30 and October 3l for the respective Semiannual Report

date.

(d) The number of lots that have not reached the Planned Development Stage sold within the

Taxable Property owned by the Developer since tlie date of tlie Official Statement or a rnore recent
Semiannual Repoft, and, if any such lots were sold to a Major Developer, the identity of the Major
Developer.

(e) The number of finished homes sold and conveyed to individual homeowners by the

Developer in the hnprovernent Area during the six-month period ending on April 30 and October 3l for
the respective Semiannual Report date.

(0 Any material amendments to land use entitlements for Taxable Property of the

Developer, if such amendments would prevent or significantly delay the implementation of the

Developer's Development Plan as described in the Official Statement or in any previous Semiannual
Report.

(g) The infonnation required to be provided under Section 5 hereof during the six-month
period ending on the respective April 30 and October 31 prior to the date by whiclr such Semiannual
Report must be filed in accordance with Section 3.

SECTION 5. Reporting of Significant Events. Pursuant to the provisions of this Section 5, the

Developer shall promptly give, or cause to be given, notice of the occllrrence of any of tlie following
events with respect to the Developer:

(a) Any failure of the Developer, or any Affiliate of the Developer, to pay by the date due

general propeffy taxes or assessmeuts with respect to its Taxable Property.

(b) Any denial or termination of credit, any denial or termination of, or default under, any
line of credit or loan or any other loss of a source of funds that could have a naterial adverse effect on the

Developer's most recently disclosed Financing Plan or Development Plan or on the ability of the

Developer, or any Affiliate of the Developer owning any Taxable Property, to pay any Special Taxes with
respect to its Taxable Property when due.

(c) The occurrence of an Event of Bankruptcy with respect to the Developer, or any Affiliate,
that could have a material adverse effect on the Developer's rnost recently disclosed Financing Plan or
Developrnent Plan or on the ability of the Developer, or any Affiliate of the Developer owning any
Taxable Propefty, to pay Special Taxes with respect to its Taxable Property when due.

(d) Any previonsly undisclosed governmentally-inrposed preconditions to commencement or
cor-rtinuatiolt of developtnent or1 the Developer's Taxable Propefty, if such preconditions would prevent or
significantly delay the Developer's Development PIan as described in the Official Statement or in any
previons Semiannual Report.

(e) Any previously r"rndisclosed legislative, administrative or judicial challenges to
development on the Developer's Taxable Propefty, if such challenges woLrld prevent or significantly

D-12Page 389

10/13/2020 Item No.12.



delay the Developer's Development Plan as described in the Official Statement or in any previotts

Semiannual Reporl.

Whenever the Developer obtains knowledge of the occurrence of a Listed Event, the Developer
shall promptly report tlte occurrence of the Listed Event by filing a notice of such occurrence with the

MSRB in electronic fonnat, acconrpanied by such identifying infonnation as is prescribed by the MSRB.

SECTION 6. Assumption of Oblieations. If any portion of the Taxable Property owned by the
Developer, or any Affiliate of the Developer, is conveyed such that, upon such conveyarlce, such new

owner will be a Major Developer, the obligations of the Developer under this Disclosure Certificate with
respect to the Taxable Property transferred by the Developer shall be assumed by such Major Developer
pursuant to an Assunrption Agreement.

SECTION 7. Termination of Reporting Oblieation. All of the Deve loper's obligations under
this Disclosure Certificate shall terminate upon the legal defeasance, prior redernption or payment in full
of all the Bonds. The Developer's obligations under this Disclosure Certificate shall terminate upon the
earliest to occur of (aX1) the date on which the Planned Development Stage has been reached and (2) the

date on which the Developer is no longer a Major Developer, as defined herein, or (b) the date on which
all of the Developer's obligations are assumed under one or more Assumption Agreements entered into
pursuant to Section 6 hereof, or (c) the date on which all Special Taxes levied on the Taxable Property
owned by the Developer and its Affiliates are paid or prepaid in full. Upon the occurrence of any such

tennination prior to the final maturity of the Bonds, the Developer shall give notice of such termination in
the same rrallner as for a Listed Event under Section 5 hereof.

SECTION 8. Amendmentl Waiver. Notwithstanding any other provision hereof, the
Developer may amend provisions of this Disclosure Certificate and any provision hereof may be waived,
provided that the following conditions are satisfied:

(a) If the amendment or waiver relates to the provisions of Sections 3,4 or 5 hereof, it may
be rnade in connection with a change in circumstances tlrat arises from a change in legal requirements,
change in law, or change in the identity, natlrre, or status of an obligated person (as defined in the Rule)
with respect to the Bonds, or type of business conducted; and

(b) The proposed amendmerrt or waiver either (i) is approved by holders of the Bonds in the
manner provided in the Trust Agreement for anrendments to the Trust Agreement with the consent of
holders, or (ii) does not, in the opinion of bond counsel approved by the District, rnaterially impair the
interests of the holders or beneficial owners of the Bonds.

If the senriannual financial inforniation or operating data to be provided in the Semiannual Report
is amended pursuant to the provisions hereof, the first semiannual financial information filed pursuant
hereto containing the amended operating data or financial infonnation shall explaitt, in narrative forrn, the
reasons for the amendr.nent and the irrpact of the change in the type of operating data or financial
inforrnation being provided.

SECTION 9. Additional lnformation. Nothing in this Disclosure Certificate shall be deemed

to prevent the Developer from dissenrinating any other infonnatiorr, using the ureans of dissemination set

fofth in this Disclosure Certificate or any other lreans of comr.trunication, or including any other
information in any Semiannual Report or notice of occurrence of a Listed Event, in addition to thatwhich
is required by this Disclosure Cerlificate. If the Developer chooses to include any infomration in any

Senriannual Report or notice of occurrence of a Listed Event in addition to that which is specifically
required by this Disclosure Cerlificate, the Developer shall have no obligation under this Disclosure

D-13Page 390

10/13/2020 Item No.12.



Certificate to update such information or include it in any future Semiannual Reporl or notice of
occurreuce of a Listed Evettt.

SECTION 10. Dissemination Agent. The Developer may, from time to time, appoint or engage

a Dissemination Agerrt to assist it in carrying out its obligations under this Disclosure Ceftificate, and

may discharge any such Dissemination Agent, with or without appointing a successor Dissemination
Agent. Tlre Dissemination Agent rnay resign by providing 30 days' written notice to tlre Developer. The
Developer shall be responsible for paying the fees and expenses of the Dissemination Agent.

SECTION 11. Default. In the event of a failure of the Developer to comply with any provision
of this Disclosure Certificate, any holder or beneficial owner of the Bonds may take such actions as may
be necessary and appropriate, including seeking mandate or specific perfonnance by courl order, to cause

the Developer to comply with its obligations under this Disclosure Certificate. A default under this
Disclosure Certificate shall not be deerned an Event of Default under the Trust Agreetnent, and the sole

remedy underthis Disclosure Ceftificate in the event of any failure of the Developerto comply with this
Disclosure Certificate shall be an action to compel performance.

SECTION 12. Beneficiaries. This Disclosure Certificate shall inure solely to the benefit of the
Developer, the Parlicipating Underwriter, the District and holders and beneficial owners frorn time to time
ofthe Bonds, and shall create no rights in any other Person.

SECTION 13. Notices. Any notices or communications to the Developer may be given as set

forlh in Exhibit A hereto or such other address that shall be specified by the Developer to the District
from time to time.

SECTION 14. Governing Law, This Disclosure Certificate and any dispute arising hereunder

shall be governed by and interpreted in accordance with the laws of the State of California.

D-l4
Page 391

10/13/2020 Item No.12.



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the undersigned has executed this Disclosure Cerlificate as of the day
and year written above.

East Carpenter Improvement Company, LLC

By

Name

Title

D-15Page 392

10/13/2020 Item No.12.



EXHIBIT A TO CONTINUING DISCLOSURB CERTIFICATE - DEVELOPER

Any notices or cornmunications to or among any of the parties to this Disclosure Certificate rnay

be given as follows:

To Developer: East Carpenter Improvement Company, LLC

Attn

D-16

Page 393

10/13/2020 Item No.12.



CONTINUING DISCLOSURE CERTIFICATE _ HOMB BUILDER

This Continuing Disclosure Certificate - Home Builder (the "Disclosure Certificate") dated as of
2020, is executed and delivered by IKB Home Sacramento, Inc./Signature Hot.nes, lnc.]

(tlre..Developer,,)incotrlrectiot-twithtlreissttatlceof$-aggregateprincipalamountof
Folsom Ranclr Financing Autliority City of Folsom Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsorr Ranch)

Inrprovemeut Area No. I Special Tax Revenue Bonds, Series 2020 (the "Bonds"). The Bonds are being

issued pursuant to a Trust Agreernent, dated as of November 1,2020 (the "Trust Agreement"), among the

Folsom Ranch Financing Authority (the "Issuer"), the City of Folsom Community Facilities District No.
23 (Folsom Ranch) (the "District") and MUFG Union Bank, N.A., as trustee (the "Trustee").

SECTION 1. Purpose of the Disclosure Ceftificate. This Disclosure Cerlificate is being

executed and delivered by the Developer for the benefit of the holders and beneficial owners of the

Bonds. The Developer acknowledges that the Issuer and the District have undeftaken no responsibility
with respect to any repofts, notices or disclosures provided or required under this Disclosure Ceftificate,
and has no liability to any person, including any holder or beneficial owner of the Bonds, with respect to
this Disclosure Cer1ificate.

SECTION 2. Definitions. In addition to the definitions set forlh in the Trust Agreement, which
apply to any capitalized term used in this Disclosure Certificate unless othetwise defined herein, the

following capitalized tenns shall have the following meanings:

"Affiliate" of another Person means (a) any Person directly or indirectly owning, controlling, or

holding with power to vote, 50oh or more of the outstanding voting securities of such other Person, (b)

any Person 50Yo or more of whose outstanding voting securities are directly or indirectly owned,

controlled, or held with power to vote, by such other Person, attd (c) any Persou directly or indirectly
controlling, controlled by, or under common control with, such other Person; for purposes hereof, control
mealts the power to exercise a controlling influence over the management or policies of a Person, unless

such power is solely the result of an official position with such Person.

"Assumption Agreement" lneans an agreement containing terms substantially siniilar to this
Disclosure Certificate, whereby a Major Developer agrees to provide Semi-Annual Reports and notices of
significant evellts with respect to tlre poftion of the Property owned by such Major Developer and its

Affiliates, and witli respect to the improvements or payments necessary to cause the Planned

Development Stage to be reached that such Major Developer, or an Affiliate thereof, intends or is

obligated (contractually or otherwise) to make or cause to be made.

"Bonds" rnearts tlre $ Folsorn Ranch Financing ALrthority City of Folsorn

Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsoni Ranch) Improvement Area No. 1 Special Tax Reventre

Bonds, Series 2020.

"Developer" n-leaus IKB Home Sacramento, Inc./Signature Homes, Inc.].

"Developnrent Plan" meaus with respect to a Major Developer, the specific inrproventents such

Major Developer intends to make, or cause to be made, in order for tlre Planned Developnteut Stage to be

reached, and the time frame in which suclr improvements are intended to be made, the Developer's
Developnrent Plan, as of the date hereof, is described in the Official Statenrent under the caption [KB
Honre Sacrarnento: "PROPOSED PROPERTY DEVELOPMENT-Development Plan and Status of
Developmerr.-KB Honte Sacramento"/Signature Homes: "PROPOSED PROPERTY

DEVELOPMENT-Developrnent Plan and Status of Developrnent-Signalure Homes."f

D-11Page 394

10/13/2020 Item No.12.



"Disclosnre Certificate" nteaus this Disclosure Ceftificate as the sanre may be amended fi'orn tirne
to trr.ne.

"Disselnination Agent" means initially, the Developer, and any successor Dissemiuation ,,A.gent

designated in writing by the Developer and which has filed with tlre District a written acceptance of suclt

designation.

"District" rneaus City of Folsom Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch), as the

same may be modified by the City Council of the City from tinre to tinre.

"Event of Bankruptcy" rneans, with respect to a Person, that such Person files a petition or
institutes a proceeding under any act or acts, state or federal, dealing with or relating to the subject or
subjects of bankruptcy or insolvency, or under any amendment of such act or acts, either as a bankrupt or
as an insolvent, or as a debtor, or in any similar capacity, wherein or whereby such Person asks or seeks

or prays to be adjudicated a bankrupt, or is to be discharged from any or all of such Person's debts or
obligations, or offers to such Person's creditors to effect a composition or extension of tirne to pay such

Person's debts or asks, seeks or prays for reorganizalion or to effect a plan of reorganization, or for a

readjustrnent of such Person's debts, or for any other similar relief, or if any such petition or any such

proceedings of the same or similar kind or character is filed or instituted or taken against such Person, or
if a receiver of the business or of the property or assets of such Person is appointed by any coutt, or if
such Person makes a general assignment for the benefit of such Persou's creditors.

"Financing Plan" means, with respect to a Major Developer, the method by wliich such Major
Developer intends to finance its Development Plan, including specific sources of funding for such

Development Plan; the Developer's Financing Plan, as of tlie date hereof, is described in the Official
Statement under the caption [KB Home Sacramento: "PROPOSED PROPERTY DEVELOPMENT -
Development Plans of Finance - KB Home Sacramento Plon of Finance"/Signature Homes:
"PROPOSED PROPERTY DEVELOPMENT - Development Plans of Finance - Signature Hontes Plan
of Finance."f

"Improvernent Area" rneans Improvement Area No. I of the District.

"Listed Event" means any of the events listed in Sectiott 5 hereof.

"Major Developer" means any propefty owner, which owns (itself or through Affiliates) Taxable
Property that is responsible in the aggregate for 20Yo or more of the Special Taxes levied on all of the

Taxable Property for the then current Fiscal Year.

"MSRB" shall mean the Municipal Securities Rulemaking Board or any other entity designated

or authorized by the Securities and Exchange Commission as a repository of disclosure infonnation.
Until otlierwise designated by the MSRB or the Securities and Exchange Commission, filings with the

MSRB are to be made through the Electronic Municipal Market Access (EMMA) website of the MSRB,
currently located at http: I I entna.msrb.org.

"Official Statement" lxeans the final, executed Official Statement relating to the Bonds.

"Participatirrg Underwriter" slrall rrean Piper Sandler & Co., the original underwriter of the

Bonds.

"Persol'I" means an individual, a corporation, a partnership, an association, a joint stock conrpany,
a trust, any unincorporated organization or a governmertt or political sLrbdivisiorr tlrereof.

D-18
Page 395

10/13/2020 Item No.12.



"Planned Developntent Stage" means, with respect to any portion of the Property, the stage of
developnrent at which such portion of the Property is ready to be presented to the marketplace as a

fi nished residential unit.

"RLrle" means Rule I 5c2-12(b)(5) adopted by the Securities and Exchange Comrnissiotr under the

Securities Exchange Act of 7934, as the same may be amended from time to time.

"semiannual Report" shall mean any Serniannual Repoft provided by the Developer on or prior to
March 31 and Septernber 30 of each year, comulencing with the Semiannual Report due September 30,

2020, pursuant to, and as described in, Sections 3 and 4 of this Disclosure Cerlificate.

"special Taxes" mealts the special taxes levied on the Taxable Properfy within the Improvement
Area.

"State" shall mean the State of California

"Taxable Property" mealts the real property within the boundaries of the Improvemeut Area tliat
is not exempt from the Special Taxes authorized to be levied in the Improvement Area.

"Trust Agreement" meaus the Trust Agreement, dated as of November 1,2020, among the Issuer,

the District and the Trustee, and as further amended and supplemented from time to time.

"Trustee" lneans MUFG Union Bank, N.A., as tl'ustee under the Trust Agreetnent, or any

successor as trustee.

SECTION 3. Provision of Semiannual Reports. So long as the Developer's obligations
lrereunder have not been tenninated pursuant to Sectiolt T , the Developer shall provide to the MSRB and

the District a Semiannual Reporl which is consistent with the requirements of Section 4, not later than

Marclr3l and Septernber 30 of each year, comlrencing March 31,2021. If, in any year, March 3l or

September 30 falls on a Saturday, Sunday or holiday, such deadline shall be extended to the next

following business day. The Semiannual Report must be submitted in electronic format, accornpanied by

such identifying infomiation as is prescribed by tlre MSRB, and may be submitted as a single document

or as separate documents comprising a package, and may include by reference other infonnation as

provided in Sectiorts 4 or 5 hereof.

SECTION 4. Content of Semiannual Reports. The Developer's Semiannual Repoft shall

contain or incorporate by reference the following informatiott:

(a) If information regarding such Major Developer has not previously been included in a

Semiannual Report or in the Official Statement, the Development Plan and Financing Plan of such Major
Developer or, if inforntation regarding such Major Developer has previously been included in a

Semiannual Report or in the Official Statement, a description of the progress made in tlie Developrnent

Plan of such Major Developer since the date of such information and a description of any significant
changes in such Developmerrt Plan and the Financing Plan and the causes or rationale for such changes.

(b) Identification of the conveyance by the Developer of any porlion of its Taxable Property

tlrat is responsible in the aggregate lor 200/o or more of the Special Taxes levied on all of tlre Taxable

Property within the Improvernent Area to an entity tliat is not an Affiliate since the Official Statement or a

rnore recent Semiannual Report.

D-19Page 396

10/13/2020 Item No.12.



(c) The number of building permits issued with respect to such Major Developer's Taxable
Property during the six-month period ending on December 3l and June 30 for the respective Semiannual
Report date.

(d) The number of lots that have not reached the Planned Developmetrt Stage sold within the

Taxable Properly owned by the Developer since the date of the Official Statement or a lrore recent
Semiannual Repoft, and, if any such lots were sold to a Major Developer, the identity of the Major
Developer.

(e) The number of finished homes sold and conveyed to individual homeowners by the

Developer in the Improvement Area during the six-month period ending on December 31 and June 30 for
the respective Semiannual Report date.

(0 Any material arnendments to land use entitlements for Taxable Property of the

Developer, if such arnendments would prevent or significantly delay the implernentation of the

Developer's Developrnent Plan as described in the Official Statement or in any previous Semiannual
Report.

The Developer's Semiannual Reports required to be provided under Section 4 hereof must be

filed in accordance with Section 3.

SECTION 5. Reporting of Significant Events. Pursuant to the provisions of this Section 5, the

Developer shall promptly give, or cause to be given, notice of the occurreuce of any of the following
events with respect to the Developer:

(a) Any failure of the Developer, or any Affiliate of the Developer, to pay by the date due

general propefty taxes or assessments due with respect to its Taxable Property, to the extent such failure is

not promptly cured by the Developer upon discovery thereof.

(b) Any denial or tennination of credit, any denial or termination of, or default under, any
line of credit or loan or any other loss of a source of funds that could have a material adverse effect on the

Developer's nost recently disclosed Financing Plan or Development Plan or on the ability of the

Developer, or any Affiliate of the Developer owning any Taxable Property, to pay any Special Taxes with
respect to its Taxable Property when due.

(c) The occurrence of an Event of Bankruptcy with respect to the Developer, or any Affiliate,
that could have a nraterial adverse effect on the Developer's tnost recently disclosed Financing Plan or

Developnrent Plan or on the ability of the Developer, or any Affiliate of the Developer owning any
Taxable Propefty, to pay Special Taxes with respect to its Taxable Property when due.

(d) Any previously undisclosed governmentally-imposed preconditions to cotnmencerrerlt or

continuation of development on the Developer's Taxable Propefty, if such preconditions would prevent or
significantly delay tlre Developer's Development Plan as described in the Official Statement or in any
prev ior"rs Sem iannual Report.

(e) Any previously undisclosed legislative, adrninistrative or judicial challenges to
developnent on the Developer's Taxable Propefty, if such challenges would prevent or significantly
delay the Developer's Development Plan as described in the Official Statement or in any previotts

Semiannual Reporl.

D-20
Page 397

10/13/2020 Item No.12.



Whenever the Developer obtains knowledge of the occurrence of a Listed Event, the Developer
shall promptly report the occurrence of the Listed Event by filing a notice of such occurrence with the

MSRB in electronic format, acconrpanied by such identifying infonnation as is prescribed by the MSRB.

SECTION 6. Assurnption of Obligations. If any portion of the Taxable Property owned by the

Developer, or any Affiliate of the Developer, is conveyed such that, upon such conveyance, such new
owner will be a Major Developer, the obligations of the Developer under this Disclosure Certificate with
respect to tlre Taxable Property transferred by the Developer shall be assumed by such Major Developer
pursuant to an Assumption Agreernent.

SECTION 7. Termination of Reporting Obligation. All of the Developer's obligations under
this Disclosure Cerlificate shall tenninate upon the legal defeasance, prior redemption or payment in full
of all the Bonds. The Developer's obligations under tliis Disclosure Certificate shall terminate upon the
earliest to occur of (a) the date on which the Developer is no longer a Major Developer, as defined herein,

or (b) the date on which all of the Developer's obligations are assunted under one or more Assumption
Agreements entered into pursuant to Section 6 hereof, or (c) the date on which all Special Taxes levied on

the Taxable Property owned by the Developer and its Affiliates are paid or prepaid in full. Upon the

occurrence of any such tennination prior to the final maturity of the Bonds, the Developer shall give
notice of such termination in the same manner as for a Listed Event under Section 5 hereof,

SECTION 8. Amendrnent; Waiver Notwithstanding any other provision hereof, the
Developermay amend provisions of this Disclosure Certificate and any provision hereof may bewaived,
provided that the following conditions are satisfied:

(a) If the arnendment or waiver relates to the provisions of Sections 3, 4 or 5 hereof, it may
be made in connection with a change in circumstances that arises from a change in legal requirements,
change in law; and

(b) The proposed amendment or waiver either (i) is approved by holders of the Bonds in the
mauner provided in tlie Trust Agreement for amendments to the Trust Agreement with the consent of
holders, or (ii) does not, in the opinion of bond counsel approved by the District, rnaterially impair the

interests of the holders or beneficial owners of the Bonds.

SECTION 9. Additional Information. Nothing in this Disclosure Certificate shall be deemed

to prevent the Developer from disseminating any other infonnation, using the means of dissernination set

forth in this Disclosure Certificate or any other rreans of comnunication, or including any otlier
information in any Semiannual Reporl or notice of occurrence of a Listed Event, in addition to that which
is required by this Disclosure Certificate. If the Developer chooses to include any infonnation in any
Semiannual Report or notice of occurrence of a Listed Event in addition to that which is specifically
required by this Disclosure Certificate, the Developer shall have no obligation under this Disclosure

Certificate to update such information or include it in any future Semiannual Report or notice of
occurrellce of a Listed Event.

SECTION 10. Dissernination Agent. The Developer may, from time to time, appoint or engage

a Dissemination Agent to assist it in carrying out its obligations under this Disclosure Ceftificate, and

rnay discharge any suclr Disselnination Ageut, with or without appointing a successor Dissemination
Agent. The Disserlination Agent may resigu by providing 30 days' written notice to the Developer. The
Developer shall be responsible for paying the fees and expenses of the Dissenrination Agent.

SECTION 11. Default. Intheeventof afailureof theDevelopertocornplywithanyprovision
of this Disclosure Ceftificate, any holder or beneficial owner of the Bonds may take such actions as may

D-21Page 398

10/13/2020 Item No.12.



be necessary and appropriate, including seeking mandate or specific performance by couft order, to cattse

the Developer to conrply with its obligations under this Disclosure Ceftificate. A default under this
Disclosure Ceftificate shall rrot be deemed an Event of Default under the Trust Agreelnent, aud the sole

remedy underthis Disclosure Cerlificate in the event of any failure of the Developerto cornplywith this
Disclosure Ceftificate shall be an action to compel performance.

SECTION 12. Beneficiaries. This Disclosure Ceftificate shall inure solely to the benefit of the

Developer, the Participating Underwriter, the District and holders and beneficial owners from time to time
of the Bonds, and shall create no rights in any other Person.

SECTION 13. Notices. Any notices or cornnrunications to the Developer and the other parties

described herein may be given as set forth in Exhibit A hereto or such other address that shall be specified
by the Developer or the other parties described herein from time to time.

SECTION 14. Governing Law. This Disclosure Cerlificate and any dispute arising hereunder
shall be governed by and interpreted in accordance with the laws of the State of California.

D-22Page 399

10/13/2020 Item No.12.



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the undersigned has executed this Disclosure Certificate as of the day
and year written above.

[KB Home Sacramento, Inc./Signature Homes, Inc.]

By

D-23Page 400

10/13/2020 Item No.12.



BXHIBIT A TO CONTINUING DISCLOSURtr CERTIFICATE _ HOME BUILDER

Any notices or cornrnuuications to the Developer or the other pafties described in the Continuing
Disclosure Certificate - Home Builder may be given as follows:

To the Developer: IKB Home Sacramento, Inc./Signature Homes, Inc.]

To the Issuer

Attention
Email:
Phone:

To the Dissemination
Agent:

Attention
Email:
Phone:

To the Participating
Underwriter:

Attention:
Email
Phone

D-24
Page 401

10/13/2020 Item No.12.



APPENDIX E

PROPOSBD FORM OF OPINION OF BOND COUNSEL

Folsom Ranch Financing Authority
Folsom, California

Folsom Ranch Financing Authority
City of Folsom Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsorn Ranch)

Improvement Area No. I
Special Tax Revenue Bonds. Series 2020

(FinalOpinion)

Ladies and Gentlemen

We have acted as bond counsel to the Folsom Ranch Financing Authority (the "Issuer") in
connection with the issuance of $_ aggregate principal amount of Folsom Ranch Financing
Authority City of Folsom Cornmnnity Facilities District No. 23 (Folsorn Ranch) Improvement Area No. 1

Special Tax Revenue Bonds, Series 2020 (the "Bonds"), issued pursuant to the provisions of the Marks-
Roos Local Bond Pooling Act of 1985 (constituting Article 4, Chapter 5, Division l, Title 1 of the

California Government Code) and a trust agreement, dated as of November l, 2020 (the "Trust
Agreement"), arnong the Issuer, the City of Folsom Comurunify Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)
(the "Community Facilities District") and MUFG Union Bank, N.A., as trustee (the "Trustee"). The
Trust Agreernent provides that the Bonds are issued for the pllrpose of enabling the Issuer to acquire
certain local obligations to be issued by the Cornrnunity Facilities District and to pay the costs of issuance

of the Bonds. Capitalized terms not otherwise defined herein shall have the meanings ascribed thereto in
the Trust Agreement.

In such connectiolr, we have reviewed the Trust Agreement; the Tax Certificate; opinions of
counsel to the Issuer, the Conrmunity Facilities District and the Trustee; certificates of the Issuer, the

Community Facilities District, the Trustee and others; and such other documents, opinions and matters to
the extent we deenred necessary to render the opinions set forth herein.

The opinions expressed herein are based on an analysis of existing laws, regulations, rulings and

court decisions and cover certain rnatters not directly addressed by such authorities. Sucli opinions may

be affected by actions taken or orrritted or events occurring after original delivery of the Bonds on the date

hereof. We lrave not undertaken to detennine, or to inforrn any person, whether any such actions are

taken or ornitted or eveuts do occur or auy other matters come to our attention after original delivery of
the Bonds on tlre date hereof. Accordingly, this letter speaks only as of its date and is not intended to, and

may r.rot, be relied upolt or otherwise used in connection with any such actions, events or tlatters. Our
engagernent witlr respect to the Bonds has concluded with their issuance, and we disclaim any obligation
to update this Ietter. We have assumed the genuineness of all documents and signatures presented to us

(whether as originals or as copies) and the due and legal execution and delivery thereof by, and validity
against, any parties other than the Issuer. We have assulned, without undertaking to verify, the accuracy
of the factual rnatters represented, warranted or cerlified in the docun-lents, and of the legal conclusions
contained in the opiniorrs, referred to in the second paragraph hereof. Furthennore, we have assumed

compliance with all covenants and agreements contained in the Trust Agreement and the Tax Certificate,
including (withoLrt limitation) covenants and agreements cornpliance with which is necessary to assure

that futr:re actions, onrissious or events will not cause interest on the Bonds to be included in gross

income for federal incor.ne tax purposes.

E-l

Page 402

10/13/2020 Item No.12.



We call attention to the fact that tlie rights and obligations under the Bonds, the Trust Agreentent
and the Tax Certificate and their enforceability may be sLrbject to bankruptcy, insolvency, receivership,
reorganization, arraugeltrent, fraudulent conveyance, moratorium and other laws relating to or affecting
creditors' rights, to the application of equitable principles, to the exercise of judicial discretion irt

appropriate cases and to the lirnitations on legal rernedies against joint powers authorities in the State of
Califorrria. We express no opinion with respect to any indemnification, contribution, liquidated damages,

penalty (including any remedy deemed to constitute a penalty), right of set-off, arbitration, judicial
reference, choice of law, choice of forum, choice of venue, non-exclusivity of reuredies, waiver or
severability provisions contained in the foregoing documents, nor do we express any opinion with respect

to the state or quality of title to or interest in any of the assets described in or as subject to the lien of the

Trust Agreentent or tlre accuracy or sufficiency of the description contained therein of, or the remedies
available to enforce liens on, any such assets. Our services did not include financial or other non-legal

advice. Finally, we undertake no responsibility forthe accuracy, completeness or fairness of the Official
Statement, dated 2020, or other offering material relating to the Bonds and express no

opinion with respect thereto.

Based on and subject to the foregoing, and in reliance thereon, as of the date hereof, we are of the

following opinions:

l. The Bonds constitute the valid and binding limited obligations of the Issuer

2. The Trust Agreement has been duly executed and delivered by, and constitutes the valid
and binding obligation of, the Issuer. The Trust Agreement creates a valid pledge, to secttre the payment

of the principal of and interest on the Bonds, of the Trust Estate, including the Revenues and any other
arnounts (including proceeds of the sale of the Bonds) held by the Trustee in the Funds established
pursuant to the Trust Agreement (except the Rebate Fund), subject to the provisions of the Trust
Agreement pennitting the application thereof for the purposes and on the terms and conditions set forth in
the Trust Agreement.

3. Interest on the Bonds is excluded from gross income for federal income tax purposes

under Section 103 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986 and is exempt frorn State of California personal
income taxes. Interest on the Bonds is not a specific preference itern for purposes of the federal
alternative minimum tax. We express no opinion regarding other tax consequences related to tlie
ownership or disposition of, or the arnount, accrual or receipt of interest on, the Bonds.

Faithfully yours,

ORRICK, FIERRINGTON & SUTCLIFFE LLP

per

E-2

Page 403

10/13/2020 Item No.12.



APPENDIX F

DTC AND THE BOOK-ENTRY ONLY SYSTEM

The description that follows of the procedures and recordkeeping wilh respect to beneficial
ownership interests in the Bonds, payment of principal of, premiunt, if any, and interest on the Bonds to

Parlicipants or Beneficial Owners, confirmalion ond transfer of beneficial ownership interesls in the

Bonds, and other related lransactions by and between DTC, Participants and Beneficial Owners, is based
on informationfurnished by DTC which the Authority believes to be reliable, but the Authority does not
take responsibility for the completeness or accuracy thereof. The Authority cannol and does not give any
asslrrances that DTC, DTC Participants or Indirect Participants will distribute to the Beneficial Owners
either (a) payments of principal, premium, ,f ory, and interest with respect to the Bonds or (b) certificates
representing ownership interests in or other confirmation of ownership interests in the Bonds, or that they
will so do on a timely basis or that DTC, DTC Participants or DTC Indirect Participants will act in the

nlanner described in this Official Statement. The current "Rules" opplicable to DTC are on file with the

Securities and Exchange Commission and the current "Procedures" oJ'DTC to be followed in dealing
with DTC Participants are onfile with DTC.

The Depository Company ("DTC"), New York, New York, will act as securities depository for
the Bonds. The Bonds will be issued as fully-registered securities registered in the name of Cede & Co.
(DTC's partnership nominee) or such other name as may be requested by an authorized representative of
DTC. One fully-registered bond certificate will be issued for each rnaturity of the Bonds in the aggregate
principal amount of such maturify, and will be deposited with DTC. If, however, the aggregate principal
amount of any maturity exceeds $500 million, one certificate will be issued with respect to each $500
million of principal amount, and an additional certificate will be issued with respect to any remaining
principal amount of such rnaturity.

DTC, the world's largest securities depository, is a lirnited-purpose trust company organized
under the New York Banking Law, a "banking organization" within the meaning of the New York
Banking Law, a member of the Federal Reserve System, a "clearing corporation" within the meaning of
the New York Unifonn Commercial Code, and a "clearing agency" registered pursuant to the provisions
of Section l7A of the Securities Exchange Act of 1 934. DTC lrolds and provides asset servicing for over
3.5 million issues of U.S. and non-U.S. equity issues, corporate and municipal debt issues, and money
market instruments (frorn over 100 countries) that DTC's participants ("Direct Participants") deposit with
DTC. DTC also facilitates the post-trade settlement among Direct Participants of sales and other
securities transactions in deposited securities, through electronic computerized book-entry transfers and
pledges between Direct Participants' accounts. This eliminates the need for physical movement of
securities certificates. Direct Parlicipants include both U.S. and non-U.S. securities brokers and dealers,

banks, trust companies, clearing corporations, aud ceftain other organizations. DTC is a wholly-owned
subsidiary of The Depository Trust & Clearing Corporation ("DTCC"). DTCC is the holdirlg company
for DTC, National Securities Clearing Corporation and Fixed Income Clearing Corporation, all of which
are registered clearing agencies. DTCC is owned by the users of its regulated subsidiaries. Access to the
DTC systern is also available to others such as both U.S. and non-U.S. securities brokers and dealers,

banks, trust companies, and clearing corporations that clear through or maintain a custodial relationship
with a Direct Pafticipant, either directly or indirectly ("lndirect Participants"). DTC has a Standard &
Poor's rating of AA+. The DTC Rules applicable to its Participants are on file with the Securities and

Exchange Cornmissiorr. More information about DTC can be found at www.dtcc.cotr.

F-l
Page 404

10/13/2020 Item No.12.



Purchases of the Bonds under the DTC systern must be rnade by or through Direct Pafticipants,
which will receive a credit for the Borrds on DTC's records. The ownership interest of each actual

purchaser of each Bond (the "Beneficial Owner") is in turn to be recorded on the Direct and Indirect
Participants' records. Beneficial Owners will not receive written confinnation from DTC of their
purchase. Beneficial Owners are, however, expected to receive written confirmations providing details of
the transaction, as well as periodic statements of their holdings, from the Direct or Indirect Parlicipant
through which the Beneficial Owner entered into the transaction. Transfers of ownership interests in tlre
Bonds are to be accomplished by entries made on the books of Direct and Indirect Parlicipants acting on

behalf of Beneficial Owners. Beneficial Owners will not receive certificates representing their ownersliip
interests in Bonds, except in the event that use of the book-entry system for the Bonds is discontinued.

To facilitate subsequent transfers, all Bonds deposited by Direct Participants with DTC are

registered in tlie name of DTC's parlnership norninee, Cede & Co., or such other nalre as may be

requested by an autliorized representative of DTC. The deposit of the Bonds with DTC and their
registration in the name of Cede & Co. (or such other DTC norninee) do not effect any change in
beneficial ownership. DTC has no knowledge of the actual Beneficial Owners of the Borrds; DTC's
records reflect only the identity of the Direct Participants to whose acconuts such Bonds are credited,
which may or may not be the Beneficial Owners. Tlie Direct and Indirect Participants will remain
responsible for keeping account of their holdings on behalf of their customers.

Conveyance of notices and other cornrnunications by DTC to Direct Parlicipants, by Direct
Participants to Indirect Participants, and by Direct Participants and Indirect Participants to Beneficial
Owners will be governed by arrangements among them, subject to any statutory or regulatory
requirements as may be in effect from tirne to time. Beneficial Owners of Bonds rnay wish to take certain
steps to augment the transmission to them of notices of significant eveuts with respect to the Bonds, such

as redemptions, tenders, defaults and proposed amendments to the Bond documents. For example,
Beneficial Owners of Bonds may wish to ascertain that the nominee holding the Bonds for their benefit
has agreed to obtain and transmit notices to Beneficial Owners. In the alternative, Beneficial Owners may
wish to provide their names and addresses to the registrar and request that copies of notices be provided
directly to theni.

Redemption notices shall be sent to DTC. If less than all of the Bonds within a maturity are being
redeemed, DTC's practice is to detennine by lot the amount of the interest of each Direct Participant in

such maturify to be redeemed.

Neither DTC nor Cede & Co. (nor any other DTC norninee) will consent or vote with respect to
the Bonds unless authorized by a Direct Participant in accordance with DTC's MMI Procedures. Under
its usual procedures, DTC rnails an Omnibus Proxy to the Authority as soon as possible after the record
date. The Omnibus Proxy assigus Cede & Co.'s consenting or voting rights to those Direct Participants to
whose accounts the Bonds are credited orr the record date (identified in a listing attached to the OmnibLrs

Proxy).

Principal, redemption price, and interest payments with respect to the Bonds will be made to
Cede & Co., or such other nominee as lray be requested by an authorized representative of DTC. DTC's
practice is to credit Direct Pafiicipants'acconnts upon DTC's receipt of funds and corresponding detail
information from the ALrthority on a payable date in accordance with their respective holdings shown ot.t

DTC records. Payments by Participants to Beneficial Owners will be governed by standing instructiotts
and customary practices, as is the case with securities held for the accottnts of custot.ners in bearer fonn or
registered in "street nan-te," and will be the responsibility of such Participant and not of DTC or its
norninee, the Trustee, or the Authority, subject to any statutory or regulatory requirenrents as may be ilt
effect from time to tinre. Paynrent of principal, redenrption price and interest to Cede & Co. (or sLrch

F-2

Page 405

10/13/2020 Item No.12.



other nominee as may be requested by an authorized representative of DTC) is the responsibility of the
ALrthority or the Trustee, disbursenrerrt of such payments to Direct Participants shall be the responsibility
of DTC, and disbursernent of such payments to the Beneficial Owners shall be the responsibility of Direct
and Indirect Participants.

DTC may discontinue providing its services as depository with respect to the Bonds at any time
by giving reasonable notice to the Authority or the Trustee. Under such circumstances, in the event that a

successor depository is not obtained, bond certificates are required to be printed and delivered.

The Authority rnay decide to discontinue use of the system of book-entry-only transfers through
DTC (or a successor securities depository). In that event, bond certificates will be printed and delivered
to DTC.

The information in this section concerning DTC and DTC's book-entry system has been obtained
from sources tliat the Authority deems reliable, but the Authority takes no responsibility for tlre accuracy
thereof.

THE TRUSTEE, AS LONG AS A BOOK-ENTRY ONLY SYSTEM IS USED FOR THE
BONDS, WILL SEND ANY NOTICE OF REDEMPTION OR OTHER NOTICES ONLY TO CEDE &
CO., OR ITS SUCCESSOR AS DTC'S PARTNERSHIP NOMINEE. ANY FAILURE OF CEDE &
CO., OR ITS SUCCESSOR AS DTC'S PARTNERSHIP NOMINEE TO ADVISE ANY
PARTICIPANT, OR OF ANY PARTICIPANT TO NOTIFY ANY BENEFICIAL OWNER OF ANY
NOTICE AND ITS CONTENT OR EFFECT WILL NOT AFFECT THE VALIDITY OR
SUFFICIENCY OF THE PROCEEDINGS RELATING TO THE REDEMPTION OF THE BONDS
CALLED FOR REDEMPTION OR OF ANY OTHER ACTION PREMISED ON SUCH NOTICE.

F-3

Page 406

10/13/2020 Item No.12.



APPITNDIX G

APPRAISAL

G-l
Page 407

10/13/2020 Item No.12.



APPBNDIX H

MARKET ABSORPTION STUDY

FI- ]

Page 408

10/13/2020 Item No.12.



ATTACHMENT 6

Page 409

10/13/2020 Item No.12.



OH&S DRAFT
9125120

CITY OF FOLSOM COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT NO. 23

(FOLSOM RANCH) IMPROVEMENT AREA NO. 1

SPECIAL TAX BONDS, SERIES 2O2O

LOCAL OBLIGATION PURCHASE CONTRACT

,2020

City of Folsom
Community Facilities District No. 23

(Folsom Ranch)
City of Folsom, City Hall
50 Natoma Street
Folsom, California 95630

Ladies and Gentlemen:

The undersigned Folsom Ranch Financing Authority (the "Authority") offers to
enter into this Local Obligation Purchase Contract (the "Local Obligation Purchase Contract")
with you, the City of Folsom Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

(the "Community Facilities District"), which, upon acceptance, will be binding upon the

Community Facilities District and the Authority; and except as otherwise provided herein, all
capitalized terms used herein shall have the meanings attributed to them in the Indenture, dated

as of November 7, 2020 (the "lndenture"), between the Community Facilities District and

MUFG Union Bank, N.A., as trustee (the "Trustee").

1. Purchase. Sale and Delivery of the Obligations.

(a) Subject to the terms and conditions and in reliance upon the

representations and agreements set forth herein, the Authority hereby agrees to purchase from the

Community Facilities District, and the Community Facilities District hereby agrees to sell to the

Authority, all (but not less tlian all) of the $[PAR] aggregate principal amount of the City of
Folsom Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch) Improvement Area No. 1 Special

Tax Bonds, Series 2020 (the "Local Obligations") issued under the Indenture, dated the date of
their initial delivery, bearing interest payable on the dates and at the interest rates, and maturing

on the dates and in the amounts and subject to the foptional, extraordinary and mandatory

redemption] provisions, as set forth in Exhibit A attached hereto and incorporated herein.

The purchase price for the Local Obligations shall be $ , which
purchase price shall be paid fi"om the proceeds of sale of the Folsom Ranch Financing Authority
City of Folsom Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch) Improvement Area No. 1

Special Tax Revenue Bonds, Series 2020, issued under the Trust Agreement, dated as of

4142-9443-t526
Page 410

10/13/2020 Item No.12.



Novenrber 1,2020, by and among the Authority, the Community Facilities District and MUFG
Union Bank, N.A., as Trustee (the "Trust Agreement"), which bonds issued under the Trust
Agreement are referred to herein as the "Authority Bonds."

The Local Obligations shall be substantially in the form described in, shall be

issued and secured under the provisions of, and shall be payable as provided in the Indenture.

(b) At [8:00] a.m., California time, on ,2020, or at such earlier
or later time or date as shall be agreed by the Community Facilities District and the Authority
(such time and date being herein referred to as the "Closing Date"), the Community Facilities
District will deliver to the Authority at the offices of Orrick, Herington & Sutcliffe LLP,
Sacramento, California (or such other location as may be designated by the Authority and

approved by the Community Facilities District) the Local Obligations in definitive forms, duly
executed by the Community Facilities District and authenticated by the Trustee, and will deliver
to the Authority the other documents herein mentioned; and the Authority will accept such

delivery and pay the total purchase price of the Local Obligations as set forth in paragraph (a) of
this section as provided in the Indenture (such delivery and payment being herein leferred to as

the "Closing").

2. Representations and Agreements of the Communitv Facilities District.
The Community Facilities District represents to and agrees with the Authority that

(a) The Community Facilities District is and will be at the Closing Date duly
organized and existing as a community facilities district under and by virtue of the laws of the

State of California, with full power and authority to issue the Local Obligations and to carry out
and consummate the transactions contemplated by the Local Obligations, this Local Obligation
Purchase Contract, the Indenture and the Trust Agreement (collectively, the "Financing
Documents"), and the Financing Documents are and will be at the Closing Date valid and

binding obligations of the Community Facilities District;

(b) When delivered to and paid for by the Authority at the Closing in
accordance with the provisions of this Local Obligation Purchase Contract, the Local Obligations
will have been duly authorized, executed, issued and delivered and will constitute valid and

binding obligations of the Community Facilities District in conformity with, and entitled to the

benefit and security of, the Indenture;

(c) By official action of the Community Facilities District, prior to or
concurrently with the acceptance hereof, the Community Facilities District has authorized and

approved the execution and delivery of the Financing Documents, and authorized and approved
tlie performance by the Community Facilities District of the obligations on its part contained in
the Financing Documents and has authorized and approved the consummation by the

Community Facilities District of all other transactions contemplated by this Local Obligation
Pulchase Contract;

(d) There is no action, suit, proceeding, inquiry or investigation, at law or in
equity, befbre or by any court, governmental agency, public board or body, pending or, to the

knowledge of the Community Facilities District, threatened against the Comrnunity Facilities

2
4t42-9413-1526

Page 411

10/13/2020 Item No.12.



District or its properties or operations (i) seeking to restrain or enjoin the issuance, sale,

execution or delivery of the Local Obligations, (ii) in any way contesting or affecting the validity
or enforceability of any of the Financing Documents, any proceedings of the Community
Facilities District taken concerning the issuance or sale of the Local Obligations, the collection
of the special tax securing the Local Obligations (the "Special Tax") or the existence or powers

of the Community Facilities District relating to the issuance of the Local Obligations or (iii)
which, if determined adversely to the Community Facilities District or its interests, would have a

material and adverse effect on the consummation of the transactions contemplated by or the

validity of the Financing Documents or on the operations of the Community Facilities District
with respect to the Local Obligations;

(e) The execution and delivery of the Financing Documents, and the

consummation of the transactions therein and herein contemplated, and the fulfillment of or
compliance with the terms and conditions thereof and hereof, will not conflict with or constitute
a violation or breach of or default (with due notice or the passage of time or both) under any

applicable law or administrative rule or regulation, or any applicable court or administrative
decree or order, or any indenture, mortgage, deed of trust, loan agreement, lease, contract or
other agreement or instrument to which the Community Facilities District is a party or by which
it or its properties are otherwise subject or bound, or result in the creation or imposition of any

prohibited lien, charge or encumbrance of any nature whatsoever upon any of the property or
assets of the Community Facilities District, which conflict, violation, breach, default, lien, charge

or encumbrance might have consequences that would materially and adversely affect the

consummation of the transactions contemplated by the Financing Documents or the operations of
the Community Facilities District with respect to the Local Obligations;

(0 The Community Facilities District is not in breach of or default under any

applicable law or administrative regulation of the State of California or the United States or any

applicable judgment or decree or any loan agreement, indenture, bond, note, resolution,
agreement or other instrument to which the Community Facilities District is a party or is
otherwise subject, which breach or default may have consequences that would materially and

adversely affect the consummation of the transactions contemplated by the Financing
Documents, and no event has occurred and is continuing which, with the passage of time or the

giving of notice, or both, would constitute such a breach or default under any such instrument;

(g) All approvals, consents, authorizations, certifications and other orders of
any governmental authority, board, agency or commission having jurisdiction, and all filings
with any such entities, which would constitute conditions precedent to or the failule to obtain
which would materially adversely affect the performance by the Community Facilities District of
its obligations under the Financing Documents have been duly obtained, and no further consent,

approval, authorization or other action or filing with or by any governmental or regulatory
authority having jurisdiction over the Community Facilities Distlict is or will be required for the

issue and sale of the Local Obligations or the consummation by the Community Facilities
District of the other transactions described in the Financing Documents;

(h) The Special Tax constituting the security for the Local Obligations has

been duly and lawfully authorized under and pursuant to the Mello-Roos Community Facilities
District Act of 1982 (the "Act") within Improvement Area No. 1 of the Community Facilities

J
4t42-9443-1526

Page 412

10/13/2020 Item No.12.



District (the "hnprovement Area") and such Special Tax is secured by a valid and legally
binding continuing lien on the land subject to the Special Tax as provided in the Act;

(i) The City Council, as legislative body of the Comrnunity Facilities District,
has authorized and will annually levy and collect the Special Tax, in addition to amounts
necessary to pay debt service on the Local Obligations, in an amount sufficient (subject to any
maximum special tax permitted by law) to pay the Expenses arising directly from the

administration or enforcement of the Local Obligations.

The execution and delivery of this Local Obligation Purchase Contract by the

Community Facilities District shall constitute a representation by the Community Facilities
District to the Authority that the representations and agreements contained in this Section 2 are

true as of the date hereof; plovidgd, that as to all matters of law the Community Facilities District
is relying on the advice of counsel to the Community Facilities District; and provided further,
that no member of the City Council, as legislative body of the Community Facilities District,
shall be individually liable for the breach of any representation, warranty or agreement contained
herein.

3. Conditions to the Purchase of the Local Oblieations bv thc Autliaaly. The
obligation of the Authority to accept delivery of and pay for the Local Obligations on the Closing
Date shall be subject, at the option of the Authority, to (i) the accuracy in all material respects of
the representations and agreements on the part of the Community Facilities District contained
herein as of the date hereof and as of the Closing Date, (ii) the accuracy in all material respects

of the statements of the officers and other officials of the City for and on behalf of the
Community Facilities District made in any certificates or other documents, furnished pursuant to
the provisions hereof, and (iii) the performance by the Community Facilities District of its
obligations to be performed hereunder at or prior to the Closing Date and to the following
additional conditions:

(a) At the Closing Date, the Financing Documents shall be in full force and
effect in the form heretofore submitted to the Authority and there shall have been taken in
connection with the issuance of the Local Obligations and with the transactions contemplated
thereby and by this Local Obligation Purchase Contract, all such actions as, in the opinion of
Orrick, Herrington & Sutcliffe LLP ("Bond Counsel"), shall be necessary and appropriate;

(b) At the Closing Date, the Financing Documents shall not have been
amended, modified or supplemented, except as may have been agreed to by the Authority;

(c) At or prior to the Closing Date, the Authority and the Trustee shall have
received the following documents, in each case satisfactory in form and substance to the
Authority:

(l) An executed copy of each of the Financing Documents;

(2) An unqualified approving opinion of Bond Counsel, dated the
Closing Date and addressed to the Community Facilities District, as to the validity of the Local
Obligations, along with a reliance letter to Piper Sandler & Co., as underwriter of the Authority
Bonds;

4t42-s443-1526 
4

Page 413

10/13/2020 Item No.12.



(3) An opinion of the City Attorney, dated the Closing Date and

addressed to the Community Facilities District and the Authority, in substantially the forrn
attached hereto as Exhibit B; and

(4) Such additional legal opinions, certificates, proceedings,

instruments and other documents as the Authority or Bond Counsel may reasonably request to
evidence compliance by the Community Facilities District with legal requirements, the truth and

accuracy, as of the Closing Date, of the representations of the Community Facilities District
contained herein, and the due performance or satisfaction by the Community Facilities District at

or prior to such time of all agreements then to be performed and all conditions then to be

satisfied by the Community Facilities District.

If the Community Facilities District shall be unable to satisfy the conditions to the

Authority's obligations contained in this Local Obligation Purchase Contract, this Local
Obligation Purchase Contract shall terminate and neither the Authority nor the Community
Facilities District shall have any further obligation hereunder.

4. Expenses. All expenses and costs of the Community Facilities District
and the Authority incident to the authorization, issuance and sale of the Local Obligations and

the Authority Bonds, including fees and expenses of consultants, the Trustee, the appraiser, Bond
Counsel and counsel for the Community Facilities District and the underwriting fees and

expenses incurred by the Authority in connection with the sale of the Authority Bonds shall be

paid by the Community Facilities District or the City on its behalf, and the Community Facilities
District agrees that it will pay such expenses and costs from the proceeds of the Local
Obligations.

5. Notices. Any notice or other communication to be given to the

Community Facilities District under this Local Obligation Purchase Contract may be given by
delivering the same in writing at the Community Facilities District's address set forth above,

Attention: Finance Director, and any such notice or other communications required to be given
to the Authority may be given by delivering the same in writing to the Authority at 50 Natoma
Street, Folsom, California 95630, Attention: Treasurer. The approval of the Authority when
required hereunder or the determination of their satisfaction as to any document referred to
herein shall be in writing signed by the Authority and delivered to the Community Facilities
District.

6. Parties In Interest: Governing Law. This Local Obligation Purchase

Contract is made solely for the benefit of the Community Facilities District, the Authority and

the Trustee and no other persons, partnership, association or corporation shall acquire or have

any right hereunder or by virtue hereof. This Local Obligation Purchase Contract shall be

governed by the laws of the State of California.

7. Pledge: Assignment. The Community Facilities District hereby approves

the pledge and assignment of all the Authority's right, title and interest in the Local Obligations
to the Trustee under the Indenture for the benefit of the owners of the Authority Bonds.

5
4t42-9443-t526

Page 414

10/13/2020 Item No.12.



8. Limitation on Liability. The Authority shall incur no liability hereunder or
by reason hereof or arising out of the transactions conternplated hereby, and shall be under no

obligation to purchase the Local Obligations hereunder, except from proceeds of the Authority
Bonds available therefor held by the Trustee under, and subject to the conditions set forth in, the

Indenture. The Community Facilities District shall incur no liability hereunder or by reason

hereof or arising out of the transactions contemplated hereunder, except as otherwise provided in
Sections 4 and 5 hereof, or be obligated to make any payments with respect to the Local
Obligations, except from amounts pledged to the payment of the Local Obligations (including
the Special Tax levied and collected in the Improvement Area) pursuant to the terms thereof.

6
4t42-9443-t526

Page 415

10/13/2020 Item No.12.



9. Counterparts. This Local Obligation Purchase Contract may be signed in
two or more counterparts; all such counterparts, when signed by all parties, shall constitute but
one single agreement.

FOLSOM RANCH FINANCING AUTHORITY

Stacey Tamagni
Treasurer

ACCEPTED AND AGREED TO:

CITY OF FOLSOM
COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT NO. 23
(FOLSOM RANCH)

By
Stacey Tamagni

Finance Director of the City of Folsom

By

7
4t42-9443-t526

Page 416

10/13/2020 Item No.12.



Exhibit A

Local Obligations Maturify Schedule and Redemption Provisions

Maturity Schedule

Maturity Date
September 1 Principal Amount Interest Rate

%

x Term Bonds

Redemption Provisions

Extraordinary Redemption. The Local Obligations are subject to extraordinary redemption by the

Conrmunity Facilities District prior to their respective maturity dates, as a whole or in paff on any interest
payment date on and after [March 1),20[J, frorn funds derived by the Comrnunity Facilities District
frorn prepayments of the Special Tax, upon mailed notice as provided in the Indenture, atthe following
redemption prices (cornputed upon the principal amount of the Local Obligations or portions thereof
called for redemption) together with accrued interest thereon to the date fixed for redemption, to wit:

1103)% if redeemed on an interest payment date on or after fMarch 1], 20L_l tlrrouglt

[March 1],201J;

11021% if redeemed on an interest payment date on [Septernber 1],20[_] or [March l],
20li;

[01]% if redeerned on an interest payment date on [September 1],20[_] or fMarch l],
20[_]; and

[ 00]% if redeerred on [September 1], 20[_] or any interest payment date tlrereafter.

$

4142-9443-t526
A-l

Page 417

10/13/2020 Item No.12.



Optional Redenrption. Tlre Local Obli gations are subject to optional redernption by the

Community Facilities District prior to their respective maturity dates as a whole or in paft on any date ott

or after [September 1],20L], fi'om funds derived by the Community Facilities District frorn any source

other than such Minirnum Sinking Fund Account Payments deposited in the Sinking Fund Subaccount or
sucli prepayrnents of the Special Tax, upon mailed notice as provided in the Indenture, at the following
redernption prices (computed upon the principal amouut of the Local Obligations or poftions thereof
called for redernption) together with accrued interest thereon to the date fixed for redemption:

1103)% if redeenied on any date on or after [September l],20[-] through [August 3l],
201);

1102)% if redeemed on any date from [September l], 20[-] through [August 31],
201);

[101]% if redeerned on any date frorn [September l], 20[-] through [August 3l],
20[l;and

[00]% if redeerned on [Septernber 1],20[_] and any date tliereafter.

Mandatorlz Sinking Fund Account Redemption of the Local Obligations. The Local Obligations
maturing on Septernber 1,20[ l, are subject to mandatory redemption by the Community Facilities
District prior to their maturity date in parl on September 1 in each of the years 201) through 20L),
both years inclusive; and the Local Obligations maturing on September 1,20[ l, are subject to
mandatory redemption by the Comrnunity Facilities District prior to their maturity date in part on

September 1 in each of the years 20[_] through 20l_), both years inclusive, in each case solely from
Minimum Sinking Fund Account Payments deposited in the Sinking Fund Subaccount, upon mailed
notice as provided in the Indenture, at a redemption price equal to one lrundred percent (100%) of the

principal amount thereof called for redemption togetlier with accrued interest thereon to the date fixed for
redemption.

Minimum Sinking Fund Account Payments are established for the mandatory redemption and

payment of the Local Obligations described in the paragraph above, which payments shall becorne due

during the years ending on the dates and in the amounts as set forth in the following schedules (except

that if any of the Local Obligations shall have been optionally redeemed or redeemed from property
owner prepayments, the amonnts of the Minirnurn Sinking Fund Account Payments shall be reduced

proportionately by the principal amount of all sucli Local Obligations so redeemed), namely:

Local Obligation Maturing September 1.201 l

Minimum
Sinking Fund

Account Payment.

$

Year
Ending

Septernber 1

4142-9443-1526

+ Maturity

A-2

Page 418

10/13/2020 Item No.12.



LocalObligation Maturing September 1.20[ -l
Year

Ending
Septeniber I

Minimum
Sinking Fund

Account Payment
$

* Maturity

4t42-9443-t526
A-3

Page 419

10/13/2020 Item No.12.



Exhibit B

fFonn of City Attorney Opinion]

[Closing Date]

Folsom Ranch Financing Authority
Folsom, California

City of Folsom
Community Facilities District No. 23

(Folsom Ranch)
Folsom, California

Piper Sandler & Co. 
.

Sacramento, Californra

MUFG Union Bank, N.A.
San Francisco, California

City of Folsom Community Facilities District No. 23

(Folsom Ranch) Improvement Area No. 1

Special Tax Bonds, Seriel2QlQ

Ladies and Gentlemen

I have served as counsel to the City of Folsom (the "City") in connection with the

issuance, sale and delivery of the above-reference securities (collectively, the "Local
Obligations") by the City of Folsom Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)
(the "Community Facilities District"), and this letter is being delivered pursuant to the Local
Obligation Purchase Contract dated as of ,2020 (the "Local Obligation Purchase

Contract") by and between the Folsom Ranch Financing Authority (the "Authority") and the

Community Facilities District, and all capitalized terms not otherwise defined helein have the

meanings ascribed thereto in the Local Obligation Purchase Contract.

As such counsel, I have examined and am familiar with (i) those documents

relating to the existence, organization and operation of the Community Facilities District,
including Resolution No. 10435, duly adopted by the City on May 26,2020, establishing the

Community Facilities District and designating various improvement areas therein, including
Improvement Area No. I (the "lmprovement Area"); (ii) Resolution No. I ] of the City
Council approving the issuance of the Local Obligations, the issuance of the Authority Bonds,

the Financing Docurnents and the Official Statement (such resolutiot'ts referenced in (i) and (ii),
together the "Resolutions"); (iii) all necessary documentation of the Community Facilities
District relating to the authorization, execution and delivery of the Local Obligations and all of
the Financing Documents; (iv) the Official Statement, dated 2020 (the "Official
Statement") relating to the Authority Bonds; and (v) the Continuing Disclosure Certiflcate of the

Community Facilities Distlict, dated the date hereof (the "Continuing Disclosure Certificate")

4t42-9443-t526 
B- I

Page 420

10/13/2020 Item No.12.



relating to the Authority Bonds

Based on the foregoing, I am of the opinion that:

1. The Community Facilities District is a cornmunity facilities district duly
organized and existing pursuant to the Mello-Roos Community Facilities Act of 1982, as

amended (the "Act"), being Chapter 2.5,Part 1, Division 2,Title 5 of the Government Code of
the State of California.

2. The Resolutions have been duly adopted at meetings of the City Council,
acting as the legislative body of the Community Facilities District, which were called and held
pursuant to law and with all public notice required by law and at which a quorum was present

and acting throughout, and the Resolutions are in full force and effect and have not been

modified, amended, rescinded or repealed since the date of their respective adoption.

3. The Community Facilities District has the full legal right, power and

authority to execute, deliver and perform its obligations and duties under the Financing
Documents and the Continuing Disclosure Certificate, including the right and power under the

Act to execute the Indenture.

4. The Community Facilities District has complied with the provisions of
applicable law in all matters relating to the transactions contemplated by the Financing
Documents and the Continuing Disclosure Certificate.

5. The Financing Documents; the Continuing Disclosure Certificate; the

Letter of Representations of the Community Facilities District, dated ,2020 (rhe

"Community Facilities District Letter of Representations" and, together with the Financing
Documents and the Continuing Disclosure Certificate, the "Community Facilities District
Documents") and the Official Statement have each been duly and lawfully authorized, executed

and delivered by the Community Facilities District, are each in full force and effect and,

assuming due authorization, execution and delivery by the otherparties thereto, each constitutes

alegal, valid and binding agreement of the Community Facilities District enforceable against it
in accordance with its terms, subject to laws relating to bankruptcy, insolvency, reorganization,
an'angement, fraudulent conveyance, moratorium and other similar laws relating to or affecting
the enforcement of creditors' rights generally and to the application of equitable principles if
equitable remedies are sought, to the exercise of judicial discretion in appropriate cases and to

the lirnitations on legal lemedies against community facilities districts in the State of California.

6. The Local Obligations have been duly and validly authorized, sold,
executed, authenticated and delivered, as applicable, in accordance with the Act and with the

Indenture.

7. No approval, consent or authorization of any govelnmental or public
agency, authority or person is required for the execution and delivery by the Community
Facilities District of the Financirrg Documents or the Continuing Disclosure Certificate or the

performance by the Community Facilities District of its r'espective obligations thereundel.

8. The execution and delivery of the Financing Documents and the

R-2
4t42-9443-1526

Page 421

10/13/2020 Item No.12.



Continuing Disclosure Certificate by the Community Facilities District, and compliance with the

provisions thereof, will not conflict with or constitute a breach of, or default under, any

instrument relating to the organization, existence or operation of the Community Facilities
District, or any commitment, agreement or other instrument to which the Cornmunity Facilities
District is a party or by which it or its property is bound or affected, or any ruling, regulation,

ordinance, resolution, judgment, order or decree to which the Community Facilities District (or

any of its officers in their respective capacities as such) is subject or any provision of the laws of
the State of California relating to the Community Facilities District and its affairs.

9. The Local Obligations are valid and binding special tax obligations of the

Community Facilities District payable from proceeds of the Special Tax and the other funds
provided in the Indenture lor such payment and are enforceable in accordance with their terms,

subject to bankruptcy, insolvency, reorganization, anangement, fraudulent conveyance,

moratorium and other similar laws relating to or affecting creditors' rights, to the application of
equitable principles where equitable remedies are sought, to the exercise of judicial discretion in
appropriate cases and to the lirnitations on legal remedies against community facilities districts in
the State of California, and the terms of the Act and of the Indenture;

10. Based upon my review of the Official Statement, and without having

undertaken to determine independently the accuracy, completeness or fairness of the statements

contained in the Official Statement, nothing has come to my attention which would lead me to
believe that the Official Statement (excluding therefrom the financial statements and the

statistical data and the information concerning The Depository Trust ComPanY, the book-entry
system and the appendices thereto, as to which no opinion is expressed) as of its date and the

date hereof contained or contains any untrue statement of a material fact with respect to the

Community Facilities District or omitted or omits to state any material fact with respect to the

Community Facilities District necessary to make the statements therein, in light of the

circumstances under which they were made, not misleading.

I 1. Except as may be stated in the Official Statement, there is no action, suit,
proceeding or investigation before or by any court, public board or body pending (notice of
which has been served on the City or the Community Facilities District) or, to my knowledge,

threatened wherein an unfavorable decision, ruling or finding would: (a) affect the creation,

organization, existence or powers of the City or the Community Facilities District, or the titles of
their members and officers to their respective offices; or (b) affect the validity of the Community
Facilities District Documents or restrain or enjoin the repayment of the Local Obligations or in
any way contest or affect the validity of the Community Facilities District Documents or contest

the authority of the Community Facilities District to enter into or perform its obligations under

any of the Community Facilities District Documents or under which a determination adverse to

the City or the Community Facilities District would have a material adverse effect upon the

financial condition or the revenues of the City or the Community Facilities District, questions the

right of the Community Facilities District to use the Special Tax levied within the Improvement

Area for the repayment of the Local Obligations or affects in any manner the right or ability of
the Community Facilities District to collect or pledge the Special Tax levied within the

Improvement Area for the repayment of the Local Obligations.

Very truly yours,

B-3
4t42-9443-t526

Page 422

10/13/2020 Item No.12.



City Attorney

4 t12-9443-l 526

B-4

Page 423

10/13/2020 Item No.12.



ATTACHMENT 7

Page 424

10/13/2020 Item No.12.



Stradling Yoccu Carlson & Rauth
Dra./i rlated Septentber" 30, 2020

$
FOLSOM RANCH FINANCING AUTHORITY

CITY OF FOLSOM COMMUNITY FACILITIBS DISTRICT NO. 23

(FOLSOM RANCH) IMPROVEMENT AREA NO. I
SPECIAL TAX REVENUE BONDS

SERIBS 2O2O

BOND PURCHASE AGREEMENT

2020

Folsom Ranch Financing Authority
50 Natorna Street,
Folsom, California 95630

Ladies and Gentlemen

Piper Sandler & Co., as underwriter (the "Underwriter"), acting not as a fiduciary or agent for
you, but on behalf of itself, offers to enter into this Bond Purchase Agreement (this 'oPurchase

Agreement") with the Folsom Ranch Financing Authority (the "Authority"), which upon acceptance

will be binding upon the Underwriter and the Authority. The agreement of the Urrderwriter to
purchase the Bonds (as hereinafter defined) is contingent upon the Authority purchasing frorn the

City of Folsom Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch) (the "Comrnunity Facilities
District") the Community Facilities District's Improvement Area No. 1 Special Tax Bonds, Series

2020 (the "special Tax Bonds") in the aggregate principal amount of $ and upon the

Authority and the Comrnunity Facilities District satisfying all of the obligations imposed upon them

under this Purchase Agreement. This offer is made subject to the Authority's acceptance by the

execution of this Purchase Agreement and its delivery to the Underwriter at or before 8:00 P.M.,
California time, on the date hereof, and, if not so accepted, will be subject to withdrawal by the

Underwriter upon notice delivered to the Authority at any time prior to the acceptance hereof by the

Authority. All capitalized terms used herein, which are not otherwise defined, shall have the

rneaning provided for such terms in the Trust Agreement, dated as of Novenrber 1,2020 (tlre "Trust
Agreement"), by and among the Authority, MUFG Union Bank N.A., as trustee (the "Trustee") and

the Community Facilities District. The Special Tax Bonds are being issued pursuant to an Indenture

dated as of November 1,2020 (the "District Indenture"), by and between the Comrnr"rnity Facilities
District and MUFG Union Banl<, N.A., as trustee (the "District Trustee").

1. Purchase. Sale and liverv of the Ronds.

Subject to the terms and conditions and in reliance upon the representations, warranties and

agreements set fofth herein, the Underwriter hereby agrees to purchase frorr the Authority and the

Authority hereby agrees to sell to the Underwriter all (but not less than all) of the $_
aggregate principal amount of the Folsom Ranch Financing Authority City of Folsonr Community
Facilities District No. 23 (Folsorn Ranch) Inrprovement Area No. I Special Tax Revenue Bonds,

Series 2020 (the "Bonds"), dated the Closing Date (as hereirrafter defined), bearing interest at the

Page 425

10/13/2020 Item No.12.



rates and maturing on the dates and in the principal arlolrnts set fofth in Exhibit A hereto. The
purchase price for the Bonds shall be $_ (being 100% of the aggregate principal amount

and less arr ljnderwriter's discount ofthereof plus an original issue prerniurl of $

$ From the proceeds of the Bonds, tlie Ar"rtliority agrees to purcliase the Special Tax
Bonds frorn the Community Facilities District pursuant to the ternrs of the Local Obligation Purchase

Contract (the "Local Obligation Purchase Contract"), dated

Community Facilities District and the Authority.
2020, by and between the

The Bonds shall be substantially in the form described in, shall be issued and secured under
the provisions of, and shall be payable from the Revenues as provided in the Trust Agreement, the

Official Statement (as hereinafter defined), and the Marks-Roos Local Bond Pooling Act of 1985, as

amended, being Article 4, Chapter 5, Division 7, Title I of the Government Code of the State of
California (the "Bond Law"). The issuance of the Bonds has been duly authorizedby the Authority
pursuant to Resolution No. (the "Authority Resolution") adopted by the Board of Directors
of the Authority on
Special Tax Bonds.

2020. The net proceeds of the Bonds will be used to purchase the

The Special Tax Bonds shall be substantially in the fomr described in, sliall be issued and

secured under the provisions of, and shall be payable frorn Special Tax (as defined in the District
Indenture) as provided in the District Indenture.

The Special Tax Bonds are issued under the Mello-Roos Community Facilities Act of 1982,
as amended, being Chapter 2.5,Part l, Division 2,Title 5 of the Government Code of the State of
California (the "Community Facilities District Act"). The issuance of the Special Tax Bonds, the
preparation and distribution of the Prelirninary Official Statement and the Local Obligation Purchase

Contract have been duly authorizedby the City Council of the City of Folsom (the "City Council")
acting as the legislative body for the Community Facilities District, pursuant to Resolution
No. (the "Community Facilities District Resolution"). Tlie net proceeds of the Special Tax
Bonds will be used, as indicated in the District Indenture, for the following purposes: (1) paying
costs of issuance of the Bonds and the Special Tax Bonds; (2) funding the Required Bond Reserve

for the Special Tax Bonds; (3) providing funds for the acqr"risition of certain public facilities; and (4)

fund capitalized interest on the Special Tax Bonds to Septernber 1 ,2021 .

Prior to the acceptance of this Purchase Agreement by the Ar"rthority, the Authority shall have

caused to be delivered to the Underwriter: (i) the Letter of Representations of the District (the
"District Letter of Representations") in substantially the form set forth in Exhibit B hereto; (ii) a

Letter of Representations (the "Developer Letter of Representations") of East Carpenter
Improvement Company, LLC (the "Developer") in substantially the fbnr, set forth in ExhibitC
hereto; and (iii) a letter of representations of each of KB Horne Sacrarnento, Inc. ("KB Home") and

Signature Homes, Inc. ("Signature Homes") in the form set forth irr Exhibit G hereto.

A. The Authority acl<nowledges that the Underwriter is entering into this
Purchase Agreemerrt in reliance on the representations and agreements made by the Authority herein
and by the Cornrnunity Facilities District in the District Letter of Representations, and the Authority
shall take all action necessary to enforce its rights hereunder for the benefit of the Underwriter and

shall immediately notify the Underwriter if it becomes aware that any representation or agreement
rnade by the Ar"rthority herein is incorrect in any rnaterial respect.

2

Page 426

10/13/2020 Item No.12.



The Authority acknowledges and agrees that: (i) the purchase and sale of the Bonds pursuant

to this Purchase Agreement is an arnr's-length commercial transaction between the Authority and the

Underwriter; (ii) in connection therewitlr and with the discussions, undeftakings and procedures

leading up to the consunrmation of such transaction, the Underwriter is and has been acting solely as

principal and is not acting as a Municipal Advisor (as defined in Section l58 of the Securities

Exchange Act of 1934, as arnended); (iii) the Underwriter has not assumed an advisory or fiduciary
responsibility in favor of the Authority, the Community Facilities District orthe City of Folsom (the

"City") with respect to the offering contemplated hereby or the discussions, undertakings and

procedures leading thereto (irrespective of whether the Underwriter has provided other services or is
currently providing other services to the Authority, the Community Facilities District or the City on

other matters); and (iv) the Authority, tlre Cornmunity Facilities District and the City have consulted

their own legal, financial and other advisors to the extent that they have deemed appropriate.

B. Pursuant to the authorization of the Authority, the Underwriter has distributed

copies of the Preliminary Official Statement dated 2020, relating to the Bonds, which,
together with the cover page, inside cover page and appendices thereto is herein called the

"Preliminary Official Statement." By its acceptance of this Purchase Agreement, the Authority
hereby ratifies the use by the Urrderwriter of the Preliminary Official Statement, and the Authority
agrees to execute a final official statement relating to the Bonds (including any supplements andlor

amendments thereto, the "Official Statement") which will consist of the Preliminary Official
Statement with such changes as may be made thereto, with the approval of Orrick Herrington &
Sutcliffe LLP, the Community Facilities District and the Authority's Bond Counsel ("Bond

Counsel") and Disclosure Counsel ("Disclosure Counsel"), and the Underwriter, and to provide

copies thereof to the Underwriter as set forth in Section 3.N hereof. The Authority hereby authorizes

the Underwriter to use and promptly distribute, in connection with the offer and sale of the Bonds,

the Preliminary Official Statement, the Official Statement and any supplement or amendment thereto.

The Authority further authorizes the Underwriter to use and distribute, in connection with the offer
and sale of the Bonds, the Trust Agreement, the Community Facilities District Indenture, this

Purchase Agreement, the Local Obligation Purchase Contract and all information contained herein,

and all other docurrents, certificates and statements furnished by or on behalf of the Authority, the

District or the City to the Underwriter in connection with the transactions contemplated by this
Purchase Agreement.

C. To assist the Underwriter in complying with Securities and Exchange

Commission Rule 15c2-12(b)(5) (the "Rule"), the Community Facilities District will undertake for
and on behalf of the Authority pursuant to the Continuing Disclosure Certificate, in the form attached

to the Official Statement as Appendix D (the "Continuing Disclosure Certificate"), to provide annual

reports and notices of certain enumerated events. A description of this undertaking is set forth in the

Preliminary Official Statement and will also be set forth in the Official Statement.

D, Except as the Underwriter and the Authority rnay otherwise agree, the

Authority will deliver to the Underwriter, at the offices of Bond Counsel in Sacramento, California,
or at such other location as rr,ay be rnutr.rally agreed upon by the Underwriter, the Cornrnunity

Facilities District and the Authority, the documents hereinafter mentioned; and the Authority will
deliver to the Underwriter through the facilities of The Depository Trust Company ("DTC") in New

York, New York, the Bonds, in definitive forrn (all Bonds bearing CUSIP numbers), duly executed

by the Authority and authenticated by tlre Trustee in the manner provided for in the Trust Agreemerrt

and the Bond Law at 8:00 a.nr. Calilornia time, on 2020 (the "Closing Date"), and the

Underwriter will accept such delivery and pay the purchase price of the Bonds as set forth in the first

a
J

Page 427

10/13/2020 Item No.12.



paragraph of this Section by wire transfer, payable in federal or other imniediately available funds
(such delivery and payment being herein referred to as the "Closing"). The Bonds shall be in fully
registered book-entry form (which may be typewritten) and shall be registered in the nanre of Cede &
Co., as nominee of DTC.

2. c ln and Establ

A. The Underwriter agrees to make a bona fide public offering of all of the

Bonds initially at the public offering prices (or yields) set forth in Exhibit A attached hereto and

incorporated herein by reference. Subsequent to the initial public offering, the Underwriter reserves

the right to change the public offering prices (oryields) as it deems necessaly in connection with the

marketing of the Bonds, provided that the Underwriter shall not change the interest rates set forth in
Exhibit A. The Bonds rnay be offered and sold to ceftain dealers at prices lower than such initial
offering prices.

B. The Underwriter agrees to assist the Authority in establishing the issue price
of the Bonds and shall execute and deliver to the Authority at Closing an "issue price" or similar
certificate, together with the supporting pricing wires or equivalent communications, substantially in
the forrn attached hereto as Exhibit I, with such modifications as may be appropriate or necessary, in

the reasonable judgment of the Underwriter, the Authority and Bond Counsel, to accurately reflect,
as applicable, the sales price or prices or the initial offering price or prices to the public of the Bonds.

All actions to be taken by the Authority under this section to establish the issue price of the Bonds

may be taken on behalf of the Authority by Fieldman, Rolapp & Associates, Inc. (the "Municipal
Advisor") and any notice or repoft to be provided to the Authority rnay be provided to the Municipal
Advisor.

C. Except as otherwise set forth in Exhibit A, the Authority will treat the first
price at which l0o/o of each maturity of the Bonds (the "10olo test") is sold to the public as the issue

price of that maturity (if different interest rates apply within a maturity, each separate CUSIP number
within that nraturity will be subject to the 10% test). At or prornptly after the execution of this
Purchase Agreement, the Underwriter shall report to the Authority the price or prices at which it has

sold to the public each rnaturity of the Bonds. If at that time the 10% test has not been satisfied as to

any nraturity of the Bonds, the Underwriter agrees to prornptly report to the Authority the prices at

which it sells the unsold Bonds of that maturity to the public. That reporting obligation shall

continue, whether or not the Closing Date has occuned, until the 10% test has been satisfied as to the

Bonds of that rnaturity or r"rntil all Bonds of that rnaturity have been sold to the public.

D. The Underwriter confirms that it has offered the Bonds to the public on or
before the date of this Purchase Agreement at the offering price or prices (the "initial offering
price"), or at the corresporrding yield or yields, set forth in Exhibit A, except as otherwise set fortlt
therein. Exhibit A also sets forth, identified under the column "Hold tlie Offering Price Rr,rle Used,"

as of tlre date of this Purchase Agreement, the maturities, if any, of the Bonds forwhich the l0% test

has not been satisfied arrd for which the Authority and the Underwriter agree that the restrictions set

forth in the next sentence shall apply, which will allow the Authority to treat the initial offering price

to the public of each such maturity as of the sale date as the issue price of that nraturity (the "hold-
the-offering-price rule"). So long as the hold-the-offering-price rule remains applicable to any

ntaturity of the Bonds, the Underwriter will neither offer nor sell unsold Bonds of that maturity to
any person at a price that is higher than the initial offering price to the public dr"rring the period

startirrg on the sale date and endirig on the earlier of the following:

4
Page 428

10/13/2020 Item No.12.



l. the close of tlie fifth (5th) business day aftertlre sale date;or

2. the date on which the Underwriter has sold at least 10% of that

maturity of the Bonds to the public at a price that is no higher than the initial offering price to the

public.

The Underwriter shall promptly advise the Authority when it has sold l0% of that rnaturity of
the Bonds to the public at a price that is no higher than the initial offering price to the public, if that

occurs prior to the close of the fifth (5th) business day after the sale date.

E. The Underwriter confirms that any selling group agreement and any retail

distribution agreement relating to the initial sale of the Bonds to the public, together with the related

pricing wires, contains or will contain language obligating each dealer who is a ntember of the selling
group and each broker-dealer that is a party to such retail distribution agreemeltt, as applicable, to:
(1) report the prices at which it sells to the public the unsold Bonds of each maturity allotted to it
until it is notified by the Underwriter that either the 10% test has been satisfied as to the Bonds of
that maturity or all Bonds of that maturity have been sold to the public; and (2) comply with the hold-
the-offering-price rule, if applicable, in each case if and for so long as directed by the Underwriter.
The Authority acknowledges that, in making the representation set forth in this subsection, the

Underwriter will rely on: (A) in the event that a selling group has been created in connection with the

initial sale of the Bonds to the public, the agreement of each dealer who is a nrember of the selling

group to cornply with the hold-the-offering-price rule, if applicable, as set forth in a selling group

agreement and the related pricing wires; and (B) in the event that a retail distribution agreement was

employed in connection with the initial sale of the Bonds to the public, the agreement of each broker-

dealer that is a party to such agreement to comply with the hold+he-offering-price rule, if applicable,

as set forth in the retail distribution agreement and the related pricing wires. The Authority further
acknowledges that the Underwriter shall not be liable for the failure of any dealer who is a member

of a selling group, or of any broker-dealer that is a party to a retail distribution agreement, to comply
with its corresponding agreement regarding the hold-the-offering-price rule as applicable to the

Bonds.

F. The Underwriter acknowledges that sales of any Bonds to any person that is a

related party to the Underwriter shall not constitute sales to the public fbr purposes of this section.

Further, for purposes of this section:

1. "public" neans any person otlrer than an underwriter or a related
party;

2. "underwriter" means: (A) any person that agrees pursuant to a written
contract with the Authority (or with the lead underwriter to form an underwriting syndicate) to

participate in the initial sale of the Bonds to the public; and (B) any person tlrat agrees pursuant to a

written contract directly or indirectly witli a person described in clause (A) to participate in the initial
sale of the Bonds to the public (including a member of a selling group or a party to a retail
distribution agreement parlicipating in the initial sale of the Bonds to the public);

3. a purchaser of any of the Bonds is a "related party" to an underwriter
if the underwriter and the purchaser are subject, directly or indirectly, to: (A) at least 50oZ common

ownership of the voting power or the total value of their stock, if both entities are corporations
(including direct ownership by one corporation of another); (ii) more than 50%o colrllron ownership

5

Page 429

10/13/2020 Item No.12.



of their capital interests or profits interests, if both entities are paftnerships (including direct
owrrership by one partnership of another); or (iii) more than 50%o colnrnon ownership of the value of
the outstanding stock of the corporation or the capital interests or profit interests of the partnership,

as applicable, if one entity is a corporation and the other entity is a partnership (including direct

ownership of the applicable stocl< or interests by one entity of the other);and

4. 'osale date" ffreans the date of execution of this Purchase Agreement
by all parties

aJ. ants of the Authoritv The Authority represents and

covenants to the Underwriter that

A. The Authority is a joint exercise of powers authority, duly organized and

existing underthe Constitution and laws of the State of California (the "State"), and formed pursuant

to Articles I through 4 (commencing with Section 6500) of Chapter 5, Division 7, Title 1 of the

Government Code (the "JPA Act"), with full right, power and authority: (i) to enter into this

Purchase Agreement; (ii) to enter into the Trust Agreement; (iii) to adopt the Authority Resolution

authorizing the issuance of the Bonds and entry into this Purchase Agreement and the Trust
Agreement and to take all other actions on the part of the Authority relating thereto (the "Authority
Proceedings"); (iv) to issue, sell and deliver the Bonds to the Underwriter as provided herein; (v) to
purchase the Special Tax Bonds; and (vi) to carry out and consummate the transactions on its part

contemplated by this Purchase Agreernent, the Trust Agreement and the Official Statement.

The Trust Agreement, the Bonds, the Local Obligation Purchase Contract and this Purchase

Agreement are collectively referred to herein as the "Authority Documents."

B. By all necessary official action of the Authority, the Authority has duly
authorized and approved the execution and delivery by the Authority of, and the performance by the

Authority of the obligations on its part contained in, the Authority Documents, and has approved the

use by the Underwriter of the Prelirninary Official Statement and the Official Statement and, as of the

date hereof, such authorizations and approvals are in full force and effect and have not been

amended, modified or rescinded. When executed and delivered by the parties thereto, the Authority
Documents will constitute the legally valid and binding obligations of the Authority enforceable

upon the Authority in accordance with their respective terms, except as enforcement may be limited
by bankruptcy, insolvency, reorganization, moratorium or similar laws or equitable principles
relating to or affecting creditors' rights generally. The Authority has complied, and will at the

Closing Date be in compliance in all respects, with the terms of the Authority Docurnents that are

applicable to the Authority.

C. The inlorrnation in the Preliminary Official Staternent and in the Official
Statement relating to the Authority and the Bonds (other than statements pertaining to the bool<-entry

system, as to which no view is expressed), does not contain any untrue statenrent of a material fact or
omit to state a rnaterial fact necessary to make the statements therein, in light of the circumstances
under which they were made, not rrrisleading; and, upon delivery and up to and including 25 days

afterthe End of the Underwriting Period (as defined in paragraph (D) below), the Official Statenrent

will be amended and supplernented so as to contain no misstatement of any material fact or omission
of any statenrent necessary to make the statements contained therein, in the light of the circumstances
irr which such statements were tnade, not nrisleading.

Renresentations and

6

Page 430

10/13/2020 Item No.12.



D. Up to and irrcluding25 days after the End of the Underwriting Period (as

defined below), the Authority will advise the Und'erwriter promptly of any proposal to amend or

supplernent the Official Statement and will not effect or consent to any such amendment or

supplernent withor"rt the consent of the Underwriter, which consent will not be unreasonably
withheld. The Authority will advise the Underwriter prornptly of the institution of any proceedings

known to it by any governmental agency prohibiting or otherwise materially affecting the use of the

Official Statement in connection with the offering, sale or distribution of the Bonds. As used herein,

the terrn "End of the Underwriting Period" rneans the later of such time as: (i) the Bonds are

delivered to the Underwriter; or (ii) the Underwriter does not retain, directly or as a member of an

underwriting syndicate, an unsold balance of the Bonds for sale to the public. Urrless the

Underwriter gives notice to the contrary, the End of the Underwriting Period shall be deemed to be

the Closing Date. Any notice delivered pursuant to this provision shall be a written notice delivered

to the Authority and the City at or prior to the Closing Date, and shall specify a date (other than the

Closing Date) to be deemed the "End of the Underwriting Period."

E. As of the time of acceptance hereof and as of the Closing Date, except as

otherwise disclosed in the Official Statement, the Authority is not, and as of the Closing Date, will
not be, in breach of or in default under any applicable constitutional provision, law or administrative
rule or regulation of the State or the United States, or any applicable judgnient or decree or any trust

agreement, loan agreement, bond, note, resolution, ordinance, agreernent or other instruntent to

which the Authority is a party or is otherwise subject; and no event has occurred and is continuing
which, with the passage of time or the giving of notice, or both, would constitute a default or event of
default under any such instrument; which breach, default or event could have an adverse effect on the

Author:ity's ability to perform its obligations under the Authority Documents; and, as of such times,

except as disclosed in tlre Official Statement, the authorization, execution and delivery of the

Authority Documents and compliance by the Authority with the provisions of each of sucli

agreements or instruments does not and will not conflict with or constitute a breach of or default
under any applicable constitutional provision, law or administrative rule or regulation of the State or

the United States, or any applicable judgment, decree, license, pennit, trust agreement, loan

agreement, bond, note, resolution, ordinance, agreement or other instrument to which the Authority
(or any of its officers in their respective capacities as such) is subject, or by which it or any of its
properties is bound; nor will any such authorization, execution, delivery or compliance result in the

creation or imposition of any lien, charge or other security interest or encunrbrance of any nature

whatsoever upon any of its assets or propefties or under the tenns of any such law, regulation or

instrument, except as may be provided by the Authority Documents.

F. At the time of acceptance hereof there is, and as of the Closirrg Date, there

will be no action, suit, proceeding, inquiry or investigation, at law or in equity, before or by any

court, government agency, public board or body (collectively and individually, an 'oAction") pending
(notice of which has been served on the Authority) orto the knowledge of the Authority threatened,

in which any such Action: (i) in any way questions the corporate existence of the Authority or the

titles of the officers of the Autlrority to their respective offices; (ii) affects, contests or seel<s to

prohibit, restrain or enjoin the issuance or delivery of any of the Bonds, or the payment or collection
of Revenues (as defined in the Trust Agreernent) or any anrounts pledged or to be pledged to pay the

principal of and interest on the Bonds, or in any way contests or affects the validity of the ALrthority
Docr-u-nents or the consumnration of the transactions on the part of the ALrthority contemplated
thereby; (iii) contests the exclusion of the interest on the Bonds fronr federal or state inconre taxation
or contests the powers of the Authority which rnay result in any material adverse change relating to
the financial condition of the Authority; or (iv) contests the completeness or accuracy of tlre

7
Page 431

10/13/2020 Item No.12.



Preliminary Official Statement or the Official Staternent or any supplemerrt or anrendment thereto or

asserts that the Preliminary Official Statement or the Official Statement contained any untrue

statement of a material fact or ornitted to state any material fact required to be stated therein or

necessary to make the statements therein, in the light of the circumstarrces under which they were

made, not rnisleading; and, as of the time of acceptance hereof, there is, and as of the Closing Date,

there will be no known basis for any action, suit, proceeding, inquiry or investigation of the nature

described in clauses (i) through (iv) of this sentence.

G. The Authority will furnish such information, execute such instruments and

take such other action in cooperation with the Underwriter and at the expense of the Underwriter as

the Underwriter may reasonably request in order: (i) to qualify the Bonds for offer and sale under the

Blue Sky or other securities laws and regulatiorrs of such states and other jurisdictions of the United
States as the Underwriter may designate; and (ii) to detennine the eligibility of the Bonds for
investment under the laws of such states and other jurisdictions, and will use its best efforts to
continue such qualifications in effect so long as required for tlie distribution of the Bonds, provided;

however, that the Authority will not be required to execute a special or general consent to service of
process or qualify as a foreign corporation in connection with any such qualification in any

jurisdiction.

H. The Authority Documents conform as to form and tenor to the descriptions

thereof contained in the Official Statement. The Authority represents that the Bonds, when issued,

executed and delivered in accordance with the Trust Agreement and sold to the Underwriter as

provided herein, will be validly issued and outstanding obligations of the Authority, entitled to the

benefits of the Trust Agreement. The Trust Agreement creates a valid pledge of the moneys in

certain funds and accounts established pursuant to the Trust Agreement, subject in all cases to the

provisions of the Trust Agreement permitting the application thereof for the purposes and on the

terms and conditions set forth therein.

I. The Authority has not been notified of any listing or propoqed listing by the

Internal Revenue Service to the effect that the Ar.rthority is a bond issuer whose arbitrage

certifications may not be relied upon.

J. Any certificate signed by any authorized officer of the Authority and

delivered to the Underwriter in connection with the issr.rance and sale of the Bonds shall be deemed

to be a representation and covenant by the Authority to the Underwriter as to the statements dTade

therein.

K
Trust Agreement.

The Authority will apply the proceeds of the Bonds in accordance with the

L. Betweerr the date of this Purchase Agreernent and the Closing Date, the

Autlrority will not offer or issue any bonds, notes or other obligations for borrowed rnoney not

previously disclosed to the Underwriter.

M. Until such tirne as moneys have been set aside in an arnount sufficient to pay

all then outstanding Bonds at maturity or to the date of redenrption if redeerned prior to maturity,
plus unpaid interest thereon and prernium, if any. to nraturity or to the date of redemption if
redeemed prior to maturity, the Authority will faithfully perfonn and abide by all of the covenants,

urrdertal<ings and provisions contained irr the Trust Agreernent.

B

Page 432

10/13/2020 Item No.12.



N. The Prelirninary Offlcial Statement was deemed final by a duly authorized

officer of the Autlrority prior to its delivery to the Underwriter, except for the omission of such

infornration as is permitted to be omitted in accordance with paragraph (bxl) of the Rule. The

Authority hereby covenants and agrees that, within seven (7) business days from the date hereof, or

upon reasonable written notice from the Underwriter within sufficient tirne to accompany any

confinnation requesting payment from any custonlers of the Underwriter, the Authority shall cause a

final printed forrn of the Official Statement to be delivered to the Underwriter in sufficient quantity

to comply with paragraph (b)(a) of the Rule and Rules G-72, G-15, G-32 and G-36 of the Municipal

Securities Rulernaking Board.

The Authority hereby approves the preparation and distribution of the Official Statement,

consisting of the Preliminary Official Statement with such changes as are noted thereon and as may

be made thereto, with the approval of Bond Counsel, Disclosure Counsel and the Underwriter, from

time to tirne prior to the Closing Date.

The Authority hereby ratifies any prior use of and authorizes the future use by the

Underwriter, in connection with the offering and sale of the Bonds, of the Preliminary Official
Statement, the Official Statement, this Purchase Agreement and all information contained herein, and

all other documents, certificates and written statements furnished by the Authority to the Underwriter
in connection with the transactions contemplated by this Purchase Agreement.

The execution and delivery of this Purchase Agreement by the Authority shall constitute a

representation to the Underwriter that the representations contained in this Section 3 are true as of the

date hereof.

4 Conditions to the Obli of the Underwriter. The ob ligation of the Underwriter
to accept delivery of and pay forthe Bonds on the Closing Date shall be subject, atthe option of the

Underwriter, to the accuracy in all material respects of the representations on the part of the

Authority contained herein and of the Community Facilities District in the District Letter of
Representations, to the accuracy in all material respects of the statements of the officers and other

officials of the Authority made in any certificates or other docutnents furnished pursuant to the

provisions hereof, to the perfornrance by tlie Authority of its obligations to be performed hereunder

at or prior to the Closing Date and, to the following additional conditions:

A. At the Closing Date, the Authority Resolution, the Community Facilities

District Resolution, the Authority Documents and this Purchase Agreement, the District Indenture,

the Local Obligation Purchase Contract, the Special Tax Bonds, the District Letter of Representations

and the Continuing Disclosure Cefiificate shall be in full force and effect, and shall not have been

amended, rnodifled or supplenrented, except as may have been agreed to in writing by the

Underwriter, and there shall have been taken in connection therewith, with the issuance of the Bonds

arrd with the Special Tax Borrds, and with the transactions contemplated thereby, and by this

Purclrase Agreentent, all such actions as, in the opinion of Bond Counsel, shall be necessary and

appropriate. The Trust Agreemellt, tlre District Indenture, the Local Obligation Purchase Corrtract,

the Special Tax Bonds. the District Letter of Representations and the Continuing Disclosure

Certificate are herein referred to collectively as the "District Documents."

B. At the Closing Date, except as was described in the Prelirninary Official
Statement, the Authority shall not be, irr any respect nraterial to the transactions referred to herein or

contenrplated hereby, in breach ol'or in default Ltnder, any law or adrninistrative rule or regr"rlation of

9
Page 433

10/13/2020 Item No.12.



tlre State of California, the United States of America, or of any department, division, agency or
instrumentality of either thereof, or under any applicable court or administrative decree or order, or
under any loan agreement, note, resolution, indenture, contract, agreernent or other irrstrument to

wliich the Authority is a party or is otherwise subject or bound, and the perfbrmarrce by the Autlrority
of its obligations urrder the Authority Docurnents, the Authority Resolution and any other

instruments contemplated by any of such documents, and con,pliance with the provisiorrs of each

thereof, will not conflict with or constitute a breach of or default under any applicable law or
administrative rule or regulation of the State of California, the United States of America, or of any

deparlment, division, agency or instrumentality of either thereof, or under any applicable court or
adnrirristrative decree or order, or under any loan agreement, note, resolution, indenture, contract,

agreement or other instrument to which the Authority is a party or is otherwise subject or bound, in

any manner that would materially and adversely affect the perfonnance by the Authority of its
obligations under the Authority Documents or the Authority Resolution.

C. At the Closing Date, except as described in the Official Statement, the

Community Facilities District shall not be, in any respect material to the transactions referred to in
the District Letter of Representations or contemplated therein, in breach of or in default under, any

law or administrative rule or regulation of the State of California, the United States of America, or of
any depaftnrent, division, agency or instrumentality of either thereof, or under any applicable court or

adrninistrative decree or order, or under any loan agreement, note, resolution, indenture, contract,

agreement or other instrument to which the Cornmunity Facilities District is a parly or is otherwise

subject or bound, and the performance by the Community Facilities District of its obligations under

the Community Facilities District Resolution, the District Documents, and any other instruments
contemplated by any of such documents, and cornpliance with the provisions of each thereof, or the

performance of the conditions precedent to be performed hereunder, will not conflict with or
constitute a breach of or default under any applicable law or administrative rule or regulation of the

State of California, the United States of Arnerica, or of any department, division, agency or
instrumentality of either thereof, or under any applicable court or administrative decree or order, or
urrder any loan agreement, note, resolution, indenture, contract, agreement or other instrument to

which the Cornmunity Facilities District is a party or is otherwise subject or bound, in any manner

that would materially and adversely affect the perfonnance by the Community Facilities District of
its obligations under the Community Facilities District Resolution and the District Documents or the

perfornrance of the conditions precedent to be performed by the Community Facilities District under

the Conrrnunity Facilities District Resolution and the District Documents.

D. The information contained in the Official Statement is, as of tlre Closing Date

and as of the date of any supplernent or amendment thereto pursuant hereto, true and correct in all

rnaterial respects and does not, as of the Closing Date or as of the date of any supplement or
amendment thereto, contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact

required to be stated therein or necessary to rnake the statements therein, in the light of the

circumstances under which tl,ey were made, not misleading.

E. Between the date hereof and the Closing Date, the market price or
marl<etability, at the initial offering prices set forth on the cover page of the Official Staternent, of the

Bonds slrall rrot have been materially adversely affected, in the judgrnent of the Underwriter
(eviderrced by a written notice to the Authority tern-rinating the obligation of the Underwriter to
accept delivery of and pay for the Bonds), by reason of any of the following:

l0
Page 434

10/13/2020 Item No.12.



I . Legislation introduced in or erracted (or resolution passed) by the

Congress of the United States of Arnerica or recofflmerrded to tlre Congress by the President of the

Urrited States, the Departrnent of the Treasury, tlre Internal Revenue Service, or any menrber of
Congress, or favorably reported for passage to either House of Congress by any cornmittee of such

House to which such legislation had been referred for consideration, or a decision rendered by a courl
established underArticlelll of the Constitution of the United States of America orby the Tax Court
of the United States of America, or an order, ruling, regulation (final, temporary or proposed), press

release or other form of notice issued or made by or on'behalf of the Treasury Departtlent of the

United States of Anlerica or the Internal Revenue Service, with the purpose or effect, directly or

indirectly, of imposing federal income taxation upon such interest as would be received by any

owners of the Bonds beyond the extent to which such interest is subject to taxation as of the date

hereof;

2. Legislation introduced in or enacted (or resolution passed) by the

Congress or an order, decree or injunction issued by any court of competent jurisdiction, or an order,

ruling, regulation (final, temporary or proposed), press release or other form of notice issued or made

by or on behalf of the Securities and Exchange Cornrnission, or any other governmental agency

having jurisdiction of the subject matter, to the effect that obligations of the general character of the

Bonds or the Special Tax Bonds, including any or all underlying arrangements, are not exempt from

registration under or other requirements of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, or that the Trust
Agreement or the District Indenture are not exempt froni qualification under or other requirements of
the Trust Agreement Act of 1939, as amended, or that the issuance, offering or sale of obligations of
the general character of the Bonds or the Special Tax Bonds, including any or all underlying
arrangements, as contemplated hereby or by the Official Statement or otherwise is or would be in

violation of the federal securities laws as amended and then in effect;

3. A general suspension of trading in securities on the New York Stock

Exchange, or a general banking moratorium declared by Federal, State of New York or State of
California officials authorized to do so;

4. The introduction, proposal or enactment of any amendment to the

Federal or California Constitution or any action by any Federal or California court, legislative body,

regulatory body or other authority materially adversely affecting the tax status of the Bonds, the

Authority or the Community Facilities District, their property, income, securities (or interest

thereon), the validity or enforceability of the Special Tax, or the ability of the Authority to purchase

any Special Tax Bonds as contemplated by the Official Statement;

5. Any event occurring, or information beconring known which, in the

.judgment of the Underwriter, makes untrue in any rnaterial respect any statement or inforrnation
contained in the Preliminary Official Statement or in the Official Statement, or has the effect that the

Prelirninary Official Statement or the Official Statement contains any untrue statement of a nraterial

tact or onrits to state a material fact required to be stated therein or necessary to make tlre statements

therein, in the light of the circumstances under which they were made, not misleading;

6. Any national securities exchange, the Comptroller of the Currency, or
any other governmental authority, shall irnpose as to the Borrds, the Special Tax Bonds or obligations
of the general character of the Bonds or the Special Tax Borrds, any material restrictions not now irr
force, or increase materially those now in force, with respect to the extension of credit by, or the

charge to the net capital requirernents of, the Underwriter;

ll
Page 435

10/13/2020 Item No.12.



7. There shall have occurred any material outbreak or escalation of
hostilities or other calarnity or crisis the effect of which on the financial markets of the United States

is sucli as to make it irnpracticable, in the jLrdgrrrent of the Underwriter, following consultation with
the Authority, to sell the Bonds;

8. The filirrg or threat of an Action described Section 3.F hereof or
Section M of the District Letter of Representations;or

9. Any proceeding shall have been commenced or be threatened in

writing by the Securities and Exchange Commission against the City or the Authority.

F. At or prior to the Closing Date, the Underwriter shall have received a

counterpaft original or certified copy of the following documents, in each case satisfactory in form
and substance to the Underwriter:

l. The Official Staten,ent, executed on behalf of the Authority by its
Treasurer or other authorized officer;

2. The Authority Documents, duly executed and delivered by all parties

thereto;

3. The Authority Resolution, together with a certificate of the Secretary

of the Authority, dated as of the Closing Date, to the effect that such resolution is a true, correct and

complete copy of the resolution duly adopted by the Board of Directors of the Authority;

4. The Cornrnunity Facilities District Resolution, together with a

certificate dated as of the Closing Date of the City Clerk, acting on behalf of the Community
Facilities District to the effect that the Comrnunity Facilities District Resolution is a true, correct and

complete copy of the one duly adopted by the City Council, acting as the legislative body of the

Community Facil ities District;

5. The District Documents duly executed and delivered by all parties

thereto;

6. An unqualified approving opinion for the Bonds, dated the Closing
Date and addressed to the Authority, of Bond Counsel, in substantially the form included as

Appendix E to the Official Statement, together with a letter addressed to the Trustee to the effect that

such opinion n'lay be relied r"rpon by the Trustee to the same extent as if such opirrion was addressed

to the Trustee;

7. A supplen,ental opinion or opinions, dated the Closing Date and

addressed to tlre Underwriter, of Bond Counsel, in substantially the form attached hereto as

Exhibit E;

8. An opinion, dated tlie Closing Date and addressed to the ALrthority
and the Underwriter, of Hefner, Stark & Marois, LLP as counsel to the Developer, in substantially
the form attached hereto as Exhibit F,

9. A certiflcate, dated the Closing Date and sigrred by the Treasurer of
the Authority or other authorized officer, to the effbct that: (i) the representations of the ALrthority

l2
Page 436

10/13/2020 Item No.12.



contained herein are true and correct in all nTaterial respects on and as of the Closing Date with the

same effect as if rnade on the Closing Date; (ii) to the best knowledge of such officer, no event has

occurred since the date of the Official Statementwhich should be disclosed in the Official Staternent

for the purpose for which it is to be used or which it is necessary to disclose therein in order to make

the statements and informatiorr therein not misleading in arry material respect; and (iii) tlre Authority
has complied with all the agreements and satisfied all the conditions on its part to be perfonned or

satisfied under the Authority Documents and the Authority Resolution at or prior to the Closing Date;

10. A certificate dated the Closing Date and signed by an authorized

representative of the Community Facilities District or an authorized designee, on behalf of the

Comnrunity Facilities District to the effect that: (i) the representations made by the Conrrnunity

Facilities District contained in the District Letter of Representations are true and correct in all

material respects on and as of the Closing Date with the same effect as if made on the Closing Date,

provided that any references as to the Preliminary Official Statement shall be deemed to be to the

Official Staternent; (ii) to the best knowledge of such officer, no event has occurred since the date of
the Official Statement which should be disclosed in the Official Statement for the purpose for which
it is to be used or which it is necessary to disclose therein in order to make the statements and

inforrnation therein not misleading in any material respect; and (iii) the Community Facilities District
has cornplied with all the agreements and satisfied all the conditions on its parl to be satisfied under

the District Documents prior to the Closing Date;

I 1. An opinion of the City Attorney of the City, as counsel to the

Authority, dated the date of Closing and addressed to the Underwriter, the Authority, the Comrnunity
Facilities District, the Trustee and the District Trustee, to the effect that:

(i) The Authority is a public body, corporate and politic, duly
organized and validly existing as a joint powers authority under the laws of the State of California;

(ii) The Authority has full legal power and lawful authority to
enter into the Authority Docurnents and to carry out the transactions contemplated under the

Authority Documents;

(iii) The Authority Resolution was duly adopted at a regular

rneeting of the governing body of the Authority, which was called and held pursuantto law and with
all public notice required by law and at which a quorum was present and acting throughout, and the

ALrthority Resolution is in full force and effect and has not been modified, amended, rescinded or

repealed since the date of its adoption;

(iv) The Authority Documents have been duly authorized,

executed and delivered by the Authority and constitute the legal, valid and binding obligations of the

Authority enforceable against the Authority in accordance with their tenrs, subject to bankruptcy,

insolvency, reorganizalion, moratorium and other similar laws affecting creditors'rigl,ts, to the

application of equitable principles where equitable remedies are sought and to the exercise ofjudicial
discretion in appropriate cases;

(v) To the best knowledge of such counsel, tlre execution and

delivery of the Ar.rthority Docurnents and the Official Statement and compliance with the provisions

thereof under the circumstances contemplated thereby: (a) do not in any material respect conflict
with or constitute orr the part of the Authority a breaclr of or default under any agreement or other

l3
Page 437

10/13/2020 Item No.12.



instrument to whicli the Authority is a party or by which it is boLrnd; and (b) do not and will not in
any material respect or constitute on the part of the Authority a violation, breach of or default under

any court order or consent decree to which the Authority is sr-rbject;

(vi) Tlre Authority Docurrrerrts and the Official Statement have

been duly authorized by the Board of Directors of the Authority and executed on its behalf by an

authorized officer of the Authority;

(vii) Except as may be stated in the Official Statement, there is no

action, suit, proceeding or investigation before or by any court, public board or body pending (notice

of which has been served on the Authority) or, to the City Attorney's knowledge, threatened wherein

an unfavorable decision, ruling or finding would: (a) affect the creation, organization, existence or
powers of the Authority, or the titles of its members and officers to their respective offices; (b) enjoin

or restrain the issuance, sale and delivery of the Bonds, the collection of the Revenues orthe pledge

thereof; (c) in any way question or affect any of the rights, powers, duties or obligations of the

Authority with respect to the Revenues or the moneys arrd assets pledged or to be pledged to pay the
principal of, prernium, if any, or interest on the Bonds; (d) in any way question or affect any

authority for the issuance,of the Bonds, or the validity or enforceability of the Bonds; or (e) in any

way question or affect the Authority Docurnents or the transactions contemplated by the Authority
Documents, the Official Statement, or any activity regarding the Bonds;

12. An opinion of the City Attorney of the City, dated the date of Closing
and addressed to the Underwriter, the Authority, the Comrnunity Facilities District, the Trustee and

the District Trustee to the effect that:

(i) The Cornmunity Facilities District is a community facilities
district organized and existing pursuant to the Mello-Roos Community Facilities Act of 1982, as

amended, being Chapter 2.5, Part 1, Division 2, Title 5 of the Government Code of the State of
California;

(ii) The Comrnunity Facilities District Resolution has been duly
adopted at a meeting of the City Council, acting as the legislative body of the Community Facilities
District, which was called and held pursuant to law and with all public notice required by law and at

which a quorum was present and acting throughout, and the Community Facilities District Resolution

is in full force and effect and has not been modified, amended, rescinded or repealed since the date of
its adoption;

(iii) The District Docunrents and the Official Statement have been

dr"rly and lawfully authorized, executed and deliver"ed by the Comrnunity Facilities District and the

District Documents constitute the legal, valid and binding obligations of the Community Facilities
District enforceable against the Community Facilities District irr accordance with their tenns, subject

to bankruptcy, insolvency, reorganization, arrangement, fi'audulent conveyance, tnoratorium and

other sirnilar laws relating to or affecting creditors' rights, to the application of equitable principles
where eqr"ritable remedies are souglrt, to the exercise ofjirdicial discretiorr in appropriate cases and to

the linritations orr legal remedies against community facilities districts irr the State of California;

(iv) The Conrrnunity Facilities District has the right arrd power
urrder the Conrmunity Facilities District Act to execute the District Indenture and no other

t4
Page 438

10/13/2020 Item No.12.



authorization for the execution tlrereof is required, and the District Indenture is in fr"rll force and

effect;

(v) The Special Tax Bonds are valid and binding special tax

obligations of the Community Facilities District payable frorn proceeds of the Special Tax and the

other funds provided in the District Indenture for such payment and are enforceable in accordance

with their terrns, sub.ject to bankruptcy, insolvency, reorganization, arrangement, fraudulent

conveyance, moratorium and other sirnilar laws relating to or affecting creditors' rights, to the

application of equitable principles where equitable remedies are sought, to the exercise of judicial

discretion in appropriate cases and to the lirnitations on legal remedies against community facilities
districts in the State of California, and the terms of the Community Facilities District Act and of the

District Indenture;

(vi) The District Indenture and the Special Tax Bonds have been

duly and validly authorized, sold, executed, authenticated and delivered in accordance with the

Cornmunity Facilities District Act and with the District Indenture;

(vii) Except as may be stated in the Official Statement, there is no

action, suit, proceeding or investigation before or by any court, public board or body pending (notice

of which has been served on the City or the Cornmunity Facilities District) or, to such counsel's

knowledge, threatened wherein an unfavorable decision, ruling or finding would: (a) affect the

creation, organization, existence or powers of the City or the Community Facilities District, or the

titles of its members and officers to their respective offices; or (b) affect the validity of the District
Documents or restrain or enjoin the repayment of the Special Tax Bonds or in any way contest or

affect the validity of the District Documents or contest the authority of the Community Facilities
District to enter into or perform its obligations under any of the District Documents or under which a
determination adverse to the City or the Community Facilities District would have a material adverse

affect upon the financial condition or the revenues of the City or the Community Facilities District,
questions the right of the Community Facilities District to use the Special Tax levied within the

Improvement Area fbr the repayment of the Special Tax Bonds or affects in any manner the right or

ability of the Community Facilities District to collect or pledge the Special Tax levied within the

Improvement Area for the repayment of the Special Tax Bonds;

13. A transcript of all proceedings relating to the authorization, issuance,

sale and delivery of tlie Bonds and the Special Tax Bonds, including certified copies of the Trust
Agreement, the District Indenture and all resolutions of the City and the Authority relating thereto;

14. A certificate dated the Closing Date from NBS addressed to the

Authority, the Community Facilities District and the Underwriter to the effect that: (i) the Special

Tax (after payment of Priority Administrative Expenses) if collected in the maximum amounts

permitted pursllant to the Rate and Method of Apportionment of Special Taxes would generate at

least 110"/" of the annLral debt service payable with respect to the Special Tax Bonds in each year,

based on such assumptions and qualifications as shall be acceptable to the Underwriter; and (ii) the

statements in the Off-icial Statenrent provided by NBS concerning the Special Tax and the Rate and

Method of Apporlionmer.rt of the Special Taxes and all infonnation supplied by it for use in the

Official Statement as of the date of tlre Official Statenrent and as of the Closing Date did not and do

not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary in order

to nrake the statenrents therein, in liglit of the circumstances under which they were made, not

rnisleading;

l5
Page 439

10/13/2020 Item No.12.



15. Certified copies of the general resolutiorr of the Trustee and District
Trustee authorizing the execution and delivery of certain documents by certain officers of the Trustee

and District Trustee, which resolution authorizes the execution of the Trust Agreement, the District
Indenture and the authentication of the Bonds and the Special Tax Bonds;

16. A certificate of the Trustee, addressed to the Underwriter, the

Autlrority and the Community Facilities District dated the Closing Date, to the effect that: (i) the

Trustee is authorized to carry out corporate trust powers, and have full power and authority to

perform their respective duties under the Trust Agreement and the District Indenture; (ii) the Trustee

is duly ar"rthorized to execute and deliver the Trust Agreement and the District Indenture, to accept

the obligations created by the Trust Agreement and the District Indenture and to authenticate the

Bonds and the Special Tax Bonds pursuant to the terms of the Trust Agreement and the District
Indenture, respectively; (iii) no consent, approval, authorization or other action by any governmental

or regulatory authority having jurisdiction over the Trustee that has not been obtained is or will be

required for the authentication of the Bonds or the Special Tax Bonds or the consuntmation by the

Trustee of the other transactions contemplated to be performed by the Trustee in connection with the

authentication of the Bonds and the Special Tax Bonds and the acceptance and performance of the

obligations created by the Trust Agreement and the District Indenture; and (iv) to the best of its
knowledge, compliance with the terms of the Trust Agreement and the District Indenture will not

conflict with, or result in a violation or breach of, or constitute a default under, any loan agreement,

trust agreement, bond, note, resolution or any other agreement or instrument to which the Trustee is a

party or by which it is bound, or any law or any rule, regulation, order or decree of any court or
governmental agency or body having jurisdiction over the Trustee or any of its activities or
properties;

17. An opinion of counsel to the Trustee, dated the Closing Date,

addressed to the Underwriter, the Authority and the Comrnunity Facilities District to the effect that
tlre Trustee is a national banking association duly organized and validly existing under the laws of
the United States having full power and being qualified to enter into, accept and agree to the

provisions of the Trust Agreement and the District Indenture, and that each of such documents has

been duly authorized, executed and delivered by the Trustee and, assuming due execution and

delivery by the other parties thereto, constitutes the legal, valid and binding obligation of the Trustee

enforceable in accordance with its terms, subject to bankruptcy, insolvency, reorganization,

rnoratorium and other laws affecting the enforcement of creditors' rights in general and except as

such enforceability rnay be limited by the application of equitable principles if equitable remedies are

sought;

18. A certificate of the Authority dated the Closing Date, in a form
acceptable to Bond Counsel and the Underwriter, that the Bonds are not arbitrage bonds within the

nreaning of Section 148 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended;

19. An opinion of Stradling Yocca Carlson & Rauth, counsel to the

Underwriter ("Underwriter's Counsel"), dated the date of Closing and addressed to the Underwriter
in fornr and substance acceptable to the Underwriter;

20. A certificate of the Developer dated the Closing Date, substantially in
the fbrm attached as Exhibit D hereto;

16
Page 440

10/13/2020 Item No.12.



21. A certificate of each of KB Home and Signature Homes dated the

Closing Date, substantially in the fomr attached as part of Exhibit G hereto.

22. Opinions of counsel to each of KB Home and Signature Homes, dated

the Closing Date and addressed to the Ar:thority and the Underwriter, that contain the opinions

attached hereto as Exhibit H.

23. Continuing disclosure certificates of each of the Developer, KB Home

and Signature Homes in the form attached as Appendix D to the Official Statement.

24. A certificate of the Appraiser, substantially in the fonn attached

hereto as Exhibit J;

25. A certificate of the Market Absorption Consultant, substantially in the

form attached hereto as Exhibit K; and

26. Such additional legal opinions, certificates, instruments and other

documents as the Underwriter may reasonably request to evidence the truth and accuracy, as of the

date hereof and as of the Closing Date, of the material representations of the Authority contained

herein, and of the statements and inforn-ration contained in the Official Statement and the due

performance or satisfaction by the Authority and the Community Facilities District at or prior to the

Closing of all agreements then to be performed and all conditions then to be satisfied by the

Cornmunity Facilities District and the Authority in connection with the transactions contemplated

hereby and by the District Indenture, the Trust Agreement, and the Official Statement.

If the Authority shall be unable to satisfy the conditions to the obligations of the Underwriter
to purchase, accept delivery of and pay for the Bonds contained in this Purchase Agreement, or if the

obligations of the Underwriter to purchase, accept delivery of and pay for the Bonds shall be

terrninated for any reason permitted by this Purchase Agreement, this Purchase Agreement shall

terminate and neither the Authority nor the Underwriter shall be under any further obligation
hereunder, except that the respective obligations of the Underwriter and the Authority set forth in

Section 6 hereof shall continue in full force and effect.

5. Conditions to the Obligations of the Authority

A. The obligations of the Autlrority shall be subject to the satisfaction of the

conditions contained in Section 4 of this Purchase Agreernent.

B. If the Authority shall be unable to satisfy the conditions to the obligations of
the Authority to purchase, accept delivery of and pay for the Special Tax Bonds contained in tlie
Local Obligation Purchase Contract, or if the obligations of tlie Authority to purchase, accept

delivery of and pay for the Special Tax Bonds shall be tenninated for any reason pennitted by this

Purchase Agreement, this Purchase Agreernent shall tenninate and neitlier the Authority nor the

Comrnunity Facilities District shall be under any further obligation hereunder, except that the

obligations of the Authority set forth in Section 6 hereof slrall continue in full force and effect.

6. Expenses. Whether or not the transactiorrs contemplated by this Purchase Agreement

are consLlrnmated, the Underwriter shall be under no obligation to pay, and the Authority shall pay

only from the proceeds of the Bonds, or calrse the Conrnrunity Facilities District to pay out of the

17

Page 441

10/13/2020 Item No.12.



proceeds of the Special Tax Bonds or any other legally available funds of the City, the Community
Facilities District or the Authority, but only as the Authority and such other party providirrg such

services may agree, all expenses and costs of the Authority incident to the performarrce of its

obligations in connection with the authorization, execution, sale and delivery of the Bonds to the

Underwriter, includirrg, without lirnitatiorr, pririting costs, irritial fees of the Trustee, including fees

and disbursements of their counsel, if any, fees and disbursernents of Bond Counsel, Disclosure
Counsel and other professional advisors ernployed by the Authority, costs of preparation, printing,
signing, transportation, delivery and safekeeping of the Bonds and for expenses (included in the

expense component of the spread) incurred by the Underwriter on behalf of the Authority's
ernployees which are incidental to irrplernenting this Purchase Agreenrent, including, but not lirnited
to, meals, transportatiorr, lodging, and entertainment of those employees. The Underwriter shall pay

all out-of-pocket expenses of the Underwriter, including, without limitation, advertising expenses,

the California Debt and Investrnent Advisory Commission fee, CUSIP Services Bureau charges,

regulatory fees imposed orr new securities issuers and any and all other expenses incurred by the

Underwriter in connection with the public offering and distribution of the Bonds, including fees of its
counsel.

7 . Notices. Any notice of other communication to be given to the City or the Authority
under this Purchase Agreement may be given by delivering the same in writing to the City of
Folsom, 50 Natoma Street, Folsom, CA, 95630, Attention: Finance Director; any notice or other
communication to be given to the Underwriter under this Purchase Agreement may be given by

delivering the same in writing to Piper Sandler & Co,2321 Rosecrans Avenue, El Segundo,

CA 90245,Attention: Dennis McGuire.

8. Parties In Interest. This Purchase Agreement is made solely for the benefit of the

Authority and Underwriter (including any successors or assignees of the Underwriter) and no other
person shall acquire or have any right hereunder or by virtue hereof.

9. Survival of Representations. The representations of the Authority under this
Purchase Agreement shall not be deemed to have been discharged, satisfied or otherwise rendered

void by reason of the Closing and regardless of any investigations made by or on behalf of the

Underwriter (or statements as to the results of such investigations) concerning such representations

and statements of the Authority and regardless of delivery of and payment for the Bonds.

10. Execution in Counterparts. This Purchase Agreement rnay be executed by the parties

hereto in separate counterparts, each of which when so executed and delivered shall be an original,
but all such counterparts shall together constitute but one and the same instrurnent.

I l. Effective. This Purchase Agreement shall become effective and binding upon the

respective parties hereto upon the execution of the acceptance hereof by the Authority and shall be

valid and enforceable as of the time of such acceptance.

12. No Prior Agreernents. This Purchase Agreement supersedes and replaces all prior
negotiations, agl'eerrerrts and understanding among the parlies hereto in relation to the sale of the

Bonds by the Authority.

13. Governing Law. This Purchase Agreement shall be governed by the laws of the State

of Calilorn ia.

l8
Page 442

10/13/2020 Item No.12.



14. Effective Date. This Purchase Agreement shall become effective and binding upon

the respective parties hereto upon the execution of the acceptance hereof by the Authority and shall
be valid and enforceable as of the time of such acceptance.

Very truly yours,

PIPER SANDLER & CO

By
Its: Authorized Officer

FOLSOM RANCH FINANCING
AUTHORITY

By:
Its: Treasurer

s-r

Page 443

10/13/2020 Item No.12.



EXHIBIT A

FOLSOM RANCH FINANCING AUTHORITY
CITY OF FOLSOM COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT NO. 23

(FOLSOM RANCH) IMPROVEMBNT AREA NO. I
SPECIAL TAX REVENUB BONDS

SBRIES 2O2O

Schedule of Bond Maturities, Principal Amounts, Interest Rates and Initial Offering Prices

Maturity
Date

(September 1)
Principul
Amount Interest Rute

Initial Offering
Price 10% Test Used

Hold the Price
Offiring Rule

Used

Optional Redemption. Tl"te Bonds are subject to optional redemption by the Authority prior to
tlreir respective maturity dates as a whole or in paft on any date on or after September 1,20-, from any

source of available funds other tlran Minirnurn Sinking Fund Payrnents and Special Tax Prepaytnents, at

the following redernption prices (computed upon the principal anrount of the Bonds or poftions thereof
called for redernption) together with accrued interest thereon to the date fixed for redemption:

[103]% if redeenied on any date on or after fSeptember 11,2}-through
[Augtrst 31],20_;

U02l% if redeemed on any date from [Septerlber ll, 20- through

[August 31],20-;

11011% if redeemed on any date fi'orn fSeptenrber 1], 20- through

fAugust 311,20-; and

[100]% if redeenied on fSeptember 11,20- and any date thereafter.

Extrnordinnry Redemption .from Prepnyment o.f' Specinl Toxes. The Bonds are subject to
extraordinary redenrption by the Autlrority prior to their respective nraturity dates, as a whole or in paft on

A-l
Page 444

10/13/2020 Item No.12.



any Interest Payment Date on or after [Marclr l), 20-, solely from funds derived fi'orn extraordinary

redemption of Local Obligations fronr Special Tax Prepaytlents, at the following redemptiotl prices

(computed upon the principal alrourlt of the Bonds or poftions tliereof called for redernption) together

with accrued interest thereott to the date fixed for redemption:

U03)% if redeemed on an Interest Payment Date on or after [March l],
20 through [March 1),20-;

1102)% if redeemed on au lnterest Payrnent Date on fSeptember 1),20-
arrd [Marclr 1],20_;

11011% if redeerned ou an Interest Payment Date on fSeptember 1],20-
and [Marcli 1],20_; and

[100]% if redeemed on [September 1], 20- and any Interest Payment

Date thereafter.

Mandntory Sinking Futrd Redemption of Bonrls. The Bonds maturing on Septemb er 1,20- are

subject to mandatory redemption iu paft by lot on September I of each year commencing

September 7,20-, at a redemption price equal to one hundred percent (100%) of the principal atnount

thereof called for redernption together with accrued interest thereon to the date fixed for redemption:

Bonds
Minimum Sinking Fund Payment

$

J' Maturity.

The Bouds nraturing on September 1,20_are subject to mandatory redemption in part by lot on

September I of each year coutmencing September 1,20-, at a redemption price equal to one hundred

percent (100%) of tlre principal arnount thereof called for redemption together with accrued interest

thereon to the date fixed for redetnption:

Mininrunr Sinking Fund
Payment Date
(September l)

t

Minirnum Sinking Fund
Payment Date Bonds

Minimurn Sinking Fund Payrnent(Septern ber l)
$

t' Maturity

A-2
Page 445

10/13/2020 Item No.12.



EXHIBIT B

FOLSOM RANCH FINANCING AUTHORITY
CITY OF FOLSOM COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT NO. 23

(FOLSOM RANCH) IMPROVEMENT AREA NO. 1

SPECIAL TAX REVENUE BONDS
SBRIES 2O2O

LETTER OF REPRESBNTATIONS OF THB DISTRICT

2020

Piper Sandler & Co.
8880 Cal Center Drive, Suite 400
Sacramento, California 95826

Re: City of Folsom Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch) Improvement
Area No. 1 Special Tax Bonds, Series 2020

Ladies and Gentlemen

In connection with the proposed offer and sale of the above-referenced bonds (the "Special

Tax Bonds"), the City of Folsom Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch) (the

"Community Facilities District") hereby represents and covenants to Piper Sandler & Co., as

underwriter (the "Underwriter") of the Folsom Financing Authority City of Folsom Community
Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch) Improvement Area No. 1 Special Tax Revenue Bonds,

Series 2020 (the "Bonds"), as follows:

A. The City of Folsom (the "City") is duly organized and validly existing as a

municipal corporation and charter city under the Constitution and laws of the State of California and

the Charter and the Community Facilities District is a community facilities district organized and

existing pursuant to the Mello-Roos Community Facilities Act of 1982, as amended, being Chapter'

2.5,Part 1, Division 2,Title 5 of the Government Code of the State of California.

B. The City has duly authorized the formation of the Cornmunity Facilities
District and the establishrnent of Improvement Area No. I therein (the "lnrprovement Area")
pursuarrt to resolutions and an ordinance duly adopted by the City Council (collectively, the

"Cornmunity Facilities District Formation Resolution" and, together with Resolution No.
authorizing the issuance and sale of the Special Tax Bonds, the o'Comrnunity Facilities District
Resolutions") and the Community Facilities District Act. The City Council, acting as the legislative

body of tlie Cornmunity Facilities District has duly adopted the Comnrunity Facilities District
Resolutions, and has caused to be recorded in the real property records of the County of Sacramento,

a rrotice of special tax lien (the "Notice of Special Tax Lien") (the Comrnunity Facilities District
Formation Resolution and Notice of Special Tax Lien being collectively ref'erred to herein as the

"Fornration Documents"). Each of the Formation Documents remains in full fbrce and effect as of
the date hereofand has not been arnended.

B-l
Page 446

10/13/2020 Item No.12.



C. The Corlmunity Facilities District has, and at the Closing Date will have, as

the case may be, full legal right, power and authority: (i) to execute, deliver and perform its

obligations under the District Indenture, the Trust Agreement, the Continuing Disclosure Certificate
and the Local Obligation Purchase Contract, and to carry out all transactions contemplated by each of
such documents; (ii) to issue, sell and deliver its Special Tax Bonds to the Authority; and (iii) to

carry out, give effect to and consunrmate the transactiorrs contemplated by the Formation Documents,

the District Indenture, the Trust Agreemerrt, tlie Local Obligation Purchase Contract, the Special Tax
Bonds, this Letter of Representations, the Continuing Disclosure Certificate and the Official
Statement.

This Letter of Representations, the Trust Agreement, the District Indenture, the Local
Obligation Purchase Contract, the Special Tax Bonds and the Continuing Disclosure Certificate are

collectively referred to herein as the "District Documents."

D. The Cornmunity Facilities District has complied, and will at the Closing Date

be in compliance in all material respects, with the Formation Documents and the District Documents,

and immaterial noncompliance by the Community Facilities District, if any, will not irnpair the

ability of the Cornmunity Facilities District to carry out, give effect to or consummate the

transactions contemplated by the foregoing. From and after the date of issuance of its Special Tax
Bonds, the Community Facilities District will continue to comply with the covenants of the

Community Facilities District contained in the District Documents.

E. Except as described in the Preliminary Official Statement, the Comrnunity
Facilities District is not, in any respect material to the transactions referred to herein or contemplated

hereby, in breach of or in default under, any law or administrative rule or regulation of the State of
California, the United States of America, or of any department, division, agency or instrumentality of
either thereof, or under any applicable court or administrative decree or order, or under any loan

agreement, note, resolution, indenture, contract, agreement or other instrument to which the

Community Facilities District is a party or is otherwise subject or bound, and the perfonnance of its
obligations under the District Documents and compliance with the provisions of each thereof, or the

performance of the conditions precedent to be perforrned by the Community Facilities District
pursuant to the District Documents, will not conflict with or constitute a breach of or default under

any applicable law or administrative rule or regulation of the State, the United States of America, or
of any department, division, agency or instrumentality of either thereof, or under any applicable court

or administrative decree or order, or under any loan agreement, note, resolution, indenture, contract,

agreement or other instrument to wlrich the Conrmunity Facilities District is a party or is otherwise

subject or bound, in any manner that would rrraterially and adversely affect the performance by the

Community Facilities District of its obligations under the District Documerrts or the performance of
the conditions precedent to be performed by the Comnrunity Facilities District pursuant to the

District Documents.

F. Except as may be reqr"rired under the "blue sky" or other securities laws of
any jurisdiction, all approvals, consents, authorizations, elections and orders of, or filings or
registrations with, any governmental authority, board, agency or corlmission liaving jurisdiction
which would constitute a condition precedent to, or the absence of which would materially adversely

affect, the perforrnance by the Conrmunity Facilities District of its obligations under the District
Documents, have been or will be obtained at the Closing Date and are or will be in full force and

effect at the Closing Date.

B-2
Page 447

10/13/2020 Item No.12.



G. The District Documents corrform as to form and tenor to the descriptions
thereof contained in the Prelirninary Official Statement.

H. The Special Tax Bonds are payable frorn the Special Tax, as set fortli in the

District Indenture, tlre levy of which has been duly and validly authorized pursuant to the

Community Facilities District Act and the Special Tax within the Improventent Area will be fixed
and levied in an amount which, together with other available funds, is required for the payment of the

principal of, and interest on, the Special Tax Bonds when due and payable, all as provided in the

District Indenture. The Community Facilities District has covenanted to cause the Special Tax to be

levied arrd collected at the same time and in the same manner as ordinary advalorem propefty taxes.

I. The District Indenture creates a valid pledge of, first lien upon and security
interest in, the Special Tax, and in the moneys in the Special Tax Fund established pursuant to the

District Indenture, on the terms and conditions set forth in the District Indenture.

J. Except as disclosed in the Preliminary Official Statement, there are, to the

best of the Conrmunity Facilities District's knowledge, no entities with outstanding assessment liens

against any of the properlies within the hnprovement Area or which are senior to or on a parity with
the Special Tax referred to in paragraph (H) hereof.

K. The information contained in the Prelirninary Official Statement (other than

statements therein perlaining to the Authority, DTC and its book-entry system and under the caption
"PROPOSED PROPERTY DEVELOPMENT - Property Ownership,)) '(- Development Plan and

Status of Developtnent" sld "- Development Plans of Finance," as to which no view is expressed)

does not and shall not contain any untrue or misleading statement of a material fact or onrit to state

any material fact necessary to rnake the statements therein, in light of the circumstances under which
they were made, not misleading; and, upon delivery and up to and including 25 days afterthe End of
the Underwriting Period (as defined in paragraph (L) below), the Official Statement will be amended

and supplemented so as to contain no misstatement of any material fact or omission of any statement

necessary to make the statements contained therein, in the light of the circumstances in which sucli
statements were made, not rnisleading.

L. Up to and including25 days after the End of the Underwriting Period, the

Community Facilities District will advise the Underwriter prornptly of any proposal to amend or

supplement the Official Statement and will not effect or consent to any such amendment or
supplement without the consent of the Underwriter, which consent will not be unreasonably
withheld. The Community Facilities District will advise the Underwriter proniptly of the institutiorr
of any proceedings known to it by any governmental agency prohibiting or otherwise materially
affecting the use of the Official Statement in connection with the offering, sale or distribution of the

Bonds. As used herein, the terrn "End of the Underwriting Period" lreans the later of such time as:

(i) the Bonds are delivered to the Underwriter; or (ii) the Underwriter does not retain, directly or as a

mernber of an underwriting syndicate, an unsold balance of the Bonds for sale to the public. Unless

the Underwriter gives notice to the contrary, the End of the Underwriting Period shall be deemed to

be the Closing Date. Any notice delivered pursuant to this provision shall be a written notice
delivered to the City at or prior to the Closing Date, and shall specify a date (other tharr the Closing
Date) to be deenred the "End of the Underwriting Period."

M. There is no action pending (notice of which has been served on tlre
Community Facilities District or tlre City) or to the best knowledge of the Comtnunity Facilities

B-3
Page 448

10/13/2020 Item No.12.



District threatened, in which any such action: (i) in any way questions the existence of the

Community Facilities District or the titles of the officers of the City to their respective offices; (ii)
affects, contests or seeks to prohibit, restrain or enjoin the issuance or delivery of the Bonds or the

Special Tax Bonds orthe payment orcollection of the Special Tax or any amounts pledged orto be

pledged to pay the principal of and interest on the Special Tax Bonds or the Bonds, or in any way
contests or affects the validity of the Formation Docurnents or the District Docurnents or the

consummation of the transactions on the part of the Cornmunity Facilities District contemplated

thereby; (iii) contests the exemption of interest on the Bonds or the Special Tax Bonds from federal

or State income taxation, as applicable, or contests the powers of the City or the Community
Facilities District which may result in any material adverse change relating to the financial condition
of the Cornmunity Facilities District; or (iv) contests the completeness or accuracy of the Preliminary
Official Statement or any supplement or amendment thereto or assefts that the Preliminary Official
Statement contained any untrue statement of a material fact or onritted to state any rlaterial fact

required to be stated therein or necessary to rnake the statements therein, in the light of the

circumstances under which they were made, not rnisleading; and there is no basis for any action, suit,

proceeding, inquiry or investigation of the nature described in clauses (i) through (iv) of this

sentence.

N. Any certificate signed on behalf of the Community Facilities District by any

officer or employee of the City authorized to do so shall be deerned a representation by the

Community Facilities District to the Authority and the Underwriter on behalf of itself and the

Community Facilities District as to the statements made therein.

O. At or prior to the Closing, the Community Facilities District will have duly
authorized, executed and delivered the Continuing Disclosure Certificate in substantially the form
attached as Appendix D to the Official Statement. Except as disclosed in the Preliminary Official
Statement, the City has not failed to comply in all respects with any previous undertakings with
regard to the Rule to provide annualreports or notices of material events in the last five years.

P. The Community Facilities District will apply the proceeds of its Special Tax
Bonds in accordance with the District Indenture.

a. Between the date of the Purchase Agreement and the date of Closing, the

Community Facilities District will not offer or issue any bonds, notes or other obligations for
borrowed money not previously disclosed to the Underwriter.

Capitalized terms not otherwise defined herein shall have the rneaning ascribed to them in the

Bond Purchase Agreement by and between the Authority and the Underwriter.

CITY OF FOLSOM COMMUNITY
FACILTTTES DISTRICT NO. 23 (FOLSOM
RANCH)

B-4

By
Finance Director of the City of Folsom

Page 449

10/13/2020 Item No.12.



EXHIBIT C

FOLSOM RANCH FINANCING AUTHORITI
CITY OF FOLSOM COMMUNITY FACILITIBS DISTRICT NO. 23

(FOLSOM RANCH) IMPROVEMENT AREA NO. I
SPECIAL TAX REVENUE BONDS

SERIES 2O2O

LETTBR OF REPRBSENTATIONS OF
EAST CARPENTER IMPROVEMENT COMPANY, LLC

2020

Folsom Ranch Financing Authority
50 Natoma Street
Folsom, California 95630

City of Folsom Community Facilities District No. 23

(Folsom Ranch)
50 Natoma Street
Folsom, California 95630

Piper Sandler & Co.
8880 Cal Center Drive, Suite 400
Sacramento, California 95826

Ladies and Gentlemen

Reference is made to the Folsom Ranch Financing Authority City of Folsorn Community
Facilities District No. 23 (Folson-r Ranch) lnrprovement Area No. 1 Special Tax Revenue Bonds,

Series 2020 (the "Bonds") and to the Bond Purchase Agreement to be entered into in connection

therewith (the "Purchase Agreement"). This Letter of Representations of East Carpenter

Inrprovement Company,LLC (the "Letter of Representations") is delivered pursuant to the Purchase

Agreement. Capitalized terms used and not otherwise defined herein have the meanings ascribed to

them in the Purchase Agreernent.

The undersigned certifies that he or she is fanriliar with the facts herein certified and is
authorized and qualified to certify the sarne as an authorized officer or representative of East

Carpenter Improvement Company, LLC, a Califbrrria limited liability company (the "Developer"),
and the undersigned, on behalf of the Developer furtlrer certifies as follows:

l. The Developer is a lirrrited liability company validly existing and in good

standing urrderthe laws of the State of Califbrrria and is duly registered to transact intrastate

busirress irr the State of California and is in good starrding in the State of California and has

all requisite right, power and authority: (i) to execute and deliver this Letter of
Representations; and (ii) to undeftake all of the transactiorrs on its part described irr the

Prel im inary Offi cial Staternent.

c-l
Page 450

10/13/2020 Item No.12.



2. As set fortlr in the Preliminary Official Statement, ceftain property witlrin
Inrprovement Area No. I (the "lmprovement Area") of City of Folsom Community Facilities
District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch) (the "Community Facilities District") is held in the name of
the Developer or its Affiliatesr (herein the "Propefty"). The undersigned, on behalf of the

Developer, mal<es the representations herein with respect to all such Property.

3. Except as disclosed in the Preliminary Official Statement, to the Actual
Knowledge of the Undersigned,' (u) the Developer and its Affiliates are not in breacli of or in
default under any applicable judgment or decree or any loan agreement, option agreement,

developnrent agreement, indenture, fiscal agent agreement, bond or note (collectively, the

"Material Agreements") to which the Developer or its Affiliates are a party or otherwise

subject, which breach or default could reasonably be expected to materially and adversely

affect the Developer's ability to cornplete the development of the Property as described in the

Preliminary Official Statement or to pay the Special Tax on the Property (to the extent the

responsibility of the Developer or its Affiliates) prior to delinquency and (b) no event has

occurred and is continuing that with the passage of time or giving of notice, or both, would
constitute such a breach or default.

4. To the Actual Knowledge of the Undersigned, neither the Developer, nor any

of its Affiliates is in def'ault on any obligation to repay borrowed ffloney, which default is
reasonably likely to materially and adversely affect the Developer's ability to complete the

development of the Property as described in the Preliminary Official Statement orto pay the

Special Tax on the Property (to the extent the responsibility of the Developer or its Affiliates)
prior to delinquency.

.5. Except as set forth in the Preliminary Official Statement, no action, suit,

proceeding, inquiry or investigation at law or in equity, before or by any court, regulatory
agency, public board or body is pending against the Developer (with proper service of
process or proper notice to the Developer having been accomplished) or, to the Actual
Knowledge of the Undersigned, is pending against any cunent Affiliate (with proper service

of process to such Affiliate having been accomplished) or to the Actual Knowledge of the

Undersigned is threatened in writing against the Developer or any such Affiliate which if

| "Afiiliut.'' nreans. rvith respect to a Person (i) any other Person clirectly, ol indirectly through one or mole internrediaries.

controlling" controlled b), or under common control with such Person, and (ii) for whom information, including financial

inlbrrnation or operating data. concerning such Person referenced in clause (i) is material to potential investors in their
evaluation of the Improvcment Area and investment decision regarding the Bonds (i.e., infbrmation relevant to the Developer's

clevelopntent plans u'ith respect to its Property and the payment of its Special Tax on the Property prior to delinquency. or such

Person's assets ol'hurds that rvould materially aff'ect the Developer's ability to develop its Property as described in the

Preliminary Olllcial Slatement or to pay its Special Tax on the Propelty prior to delinquency). "Person" means an individual, a

corpolation. a partnership. a linrited liability company. an associatjon, a.ioint stock company, a trust, any unincot'poraled

organization or a govcrnnrent ol political subdivision thereof. For purposes hereof, the term "control" (including the tcrnrs
"conlrolling." "corrlrollecl by" or "undel comlrol.t control with") means the possession, direct or indirect. of the power to direct or

cause llre dilection o1'llre ntanagernent and policies ofa Person, rvhethel through the ownership ofvoting securities. by contlact

or otherrvise. Fol purposcs ol'this Certificate. the telrn "Affiliate" is expressly deemed to include Folsour Real Estate South.

I-LC and Westl-and Capital Partners. l-.P.
2 As 

'.rs.,l 
in this t-ettel of Representations- the phrase "Actual Knowleclge of the Unclersigned" shall mean the knorvleclge ol'

the unclelsignecl as ol'the daie heleof obtained fiom interviews rvith such current officet's and responsible employees of the

Developer ancl its nllrliates as lhc undersigned has determined ale likely. in the ordinaly course of their lespective duties, to have

knou'leclge ol'lhe ntattcrs sct lirrth herein. Ihe undersigned has not conducted any extraordinaly inspection or inquiry other than

such inspections or iltcluiries as arc prudent ancl customary in counection with the ordinary course of the Developer''s cul'rent

business ancl operalions.

c-2
Page 451

10/13/2020 Item No.12.



successful, is reasonably likely to rnaterially and adversely affect the Developer's ability to
cornplete the development of the Properly as described in the Preliminary Olficial Statement

or to pay the Special Tax or od valorem tax obligations on its Property (to the extent the

responsibility of the Developer or its Affiliates) prior to delinquency.

6. To the Actual Knowledge of the Undersigned as of the date thereof, the

Preliminary Official Statement, solely with respect to infornration contained therein with
respect to the Developer, its Affiliates, ownership of the Property, the Developer's
development plan, the Developer's financing plarr, the Developer's lenders, if any, and

contractual arrangements of the Developer or any Affiliates (including, if material to the

Developer's development plan or the Developer's financing plan, other loans of such

Affiliates) as set forth under the caption "PROPOSED PROPERTY DEVELOPMENT" is

true and correct in all material respects and did not contain any untrue statement of a material

fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to rnake the staternents therein, in the light of
the circumstances under which they were made, not misleading.

7. The Developer covenants that, while the Bonds or any refunding obligations
related thereto are outstanding, the Developer and its Affiliates which it controls will not

bring any action, suit, proceeding, inquiry or investigation at law or in equity, before any

court, regulatory agency, public board or body, that in any way seeks to challenge or overturn

the forrnation of the Cornmunity Facilities District or the Improvement Area, to challenge the

adoption of Ordinance No. _ of the City levying the Special Tax within the Improvement
Area, to invalidate the Community Facilities District, the Improvement Area or any of the

Bonds or any refunding bonds related thereto, or to invalidate the special tax liens irnposed

under Section 3115.5 of the Streets and Highways Code based on recordation of the amended

notice of special tax lien relating thereto. The foregoing covenant shall not prevent the

Developer in any way from bringing any other action, suit or proceeding including, without
lirnitation, (a) an action or suit contending that the Special Tax has not been levied in
accordance with the methodologies contained in the Community Facilities District's Rate and

Method of Apportionment of Special Taxes for the Improvement Area pursuant to which the

Special Tax is levied, or (b) an action or suit with respect to the application or use of the

Special Tax levied and collected.

8. Except as disclosed in the Preliminary Official Statement, to the Actual
Krrowledge of the Undersigned, the Developer is not aware that any other public debt secured

by a tax or assessment on the Property exists or is in the process of being authorized or any

assessment districts or corrmunity facilities districts have been or are in the process of being

forrned that include any portion of the Property.

9. The Developer has been developing or has been involved in the development

of numerous projects over an extended period of tirne. It is likely that the Developer has

been delinquent at one time or another in the payrnent of ad valorem property taxes, special

assessments or special taxes. However, except as disclosed in the Preliminary Official
Staternent, to the Actual Knowledge of the Undersigned, neither the Developer nor any

Affiliate is currently in default in, or in the last five (5) years has ever defaulted to any

rrraterial extent in the payment of any ad valorem property tax, special assessment or special

tax on propefty owned by the Developer or any Affiliate within the boundaries of a

comrlunity facilities district or an assessment district within California that (a) caused a draw

on a reserve fund relating to such assessment district or contmunity facilities district

c-3
Page 452

10/13/2020 Item No.12.



financing or (b) resulted in a foreclosure action being comrnenced agairrst the Developer or
any such Affiliate.

10. The Developer intends to comply with the provision of the Mello-Roos
Community Facilities District Act of 1982, as arnended, relating to the Notice of Special Tax
described in Government Code Section 53341.5 in connection with the sale of the Property,
or portions thereof.

11. To the Actual Knowledge of the Undersigned, the Developer is able to pay its
bills as they become due and no legal proceedings are pending against the Developer (with
proper service of process to the Developer having been accomplished) or, to the Actual
Knowledge of the Undersigned, threatened in writing in which the Developer may be

adjudicated as bankrupt or discharged frorn any and all of its debts or obligations, or granted

an extension of time to pay its debts or obligations, or be allowed to reorganize or readjust its
debts, or be subject to control or supervision of the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation.

12. To the Actual Knowledge of the Undersigned, Affiliates of the Developer are

able to pay their bills as they beconre due and no legal proceedings are pending against any

Affiliates of the Developer (with proper service of process to such Affiliate having been

accomplished) or to the Actual Knowledge of the Undersigned, threatened in writing in

which the Affiliates of the Developer may be adjudicated as bankrupt or discharged from any

or all of their debts or obligations, or granted an extension of tirne to pay their debts or
obligations, or be allowed to reorganize or readjust their debts or obligations, or be subject to
control or supervision of the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation.

13. If between the date hereof and the Closing Date any event relating to or
affecting the Developer, its Affiliates, ownership of the Property, the Developer's
development plan, the Developer's financing plan, the Developer's lenders, if any, and

contractual arrangernents of the Developer or any Affiliates (including, if material to the
Developer's development plan or the Developer's financing plan, other loans of such

Affiliates) shall occur of which the undersigned has actual knowledge and which the

undersigned believes would cause the infonnation under the sections of the Preliminary
Official Statement indicated in Paragraph 6 hereof, to contain an untrue statement of a

material fact or to omit to state a rnaterial fact necessary to rnake the statements therein, in
the light of the circumstances under which they were rnade, not rnisleading, the undersigned
shall notify the City and the Underwriter and if in the opinion of counsel to the City or the
Underwriter such event requires the preparation and publication of a supplernent or
amendment to the Preliminary Official Statement, the Developer shall reasonably cooperate

with the City in the preparation of an arnendment or supplement to the Prelirninary Official
Statement in form and substance reasonably satisfactory to counsel to the City and to the
IJnderwriter.

14. Forthe period througli 25 days afterthe "End of the Underwriting Period" as

defined in the Purchase Agreenrent, if any event relating to or aff'ecting the Developer, its

Affiliates, ownership of the Property, the Developer's developrnent plan, the Developer's
financing plan, the Developer's lenders, if any, and contractual arrangements of the

Developer or any Affiliates (including, if material to the Developer's development plan or the

Developer's financing plan, other loans of such Affiliates) shall occur as a result of which it
is necessary, in the opinion of the Underwriter or counsel to the City, to amend or supplenrent

c-4
Page 453

10/13/2020 Item No.12.



the Official Statement in order to make the Official Statemerrt rrot misleading in the light of
the circurnstances existing at the time it is delivered to a purchaser, the Developer shall

reasonably cooperate with the City and the Underwriter in the preparation of an amendment

or supplenrent to the Official Statement in fonn and substance reasonably satisfactory to the

Underwriter and Disclosure Counsel which will arnend or supplement the Official Statement

so that it will not contain an untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact
necessary in orderto make the statements therein, in the light of the circumstances existing at

the tirne the Ofllcial Statemerrt is delivered to a purchaser, not misleading.

15. The Developer agrees to deliver a Closing Certificate dated the date of
issuance of tlie Bonds at the time of issuance of the Bonds in substantially the form attached

as Exhibit D to the Purchase Agreement.

16. On behalf of the Developer, I have reviewed the contents of this Letter of
Representations and have met with counsel to the Developer for the puryose of discussing the

meaning of its contents.

The undersigned has executed this Letter of Representations solely in his or her capacity as

an officer or authorized representative of Developer and he or she will have no personal liability
arising from or relating to this Letter of Representations. Any liability arising from or relating to this
Letter of Representations rnay only be asserted against the Developer.

trAST CARPENTBR IMPROVEMENT COMPANY,
LLC,a California limited liability company

By: HBT ECIC, LLC, a California limited liability
company

Its: Managing Member

By:
Name: William B. Bunce
Its: Manager

c-5
Page 454

10/13/2020 Item No.12.



E,XHIBIT D

FOLSOM RANCH FINANCING AUTHORITY
CITY OF FOLSOM COMMUNITY FACILITIBS DISTRICT NO. 23

(FOLSOM RANCH)
SPBCIAL TAX REVENUB BONDS

SBRIBS 2O2O

CLOSING CBRTIFICATB OF EAST CARPBNTER IMPROVEMENT COMPANY, LLC

[Closing Date]

Folsom Ranch Financing Authority
50 Natoma Street
Folsom, CA, 95630

City of Folsom Community Facilities District No. 23

(Folsom Ranch)
50 Natoma Street
Folsom, CA, 95630

Piper Sandler & Co.
8880 Cal Center Drive, Suite 400
Sacramento, Cal ifornia 9 5826

Ladies and Gentlemen

Reference is made to the Folsom Ranch Financing Authority City of Folsom Community
Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch) Improvement Area No. I Special Tax Revenue Bonds,

Series 2020 (the "Bonds") and to the Bond Purchase Agreement, dated 2020 (the
"Purchase Agreement"), entered into in connection therewith. This cerlificate is delivered by East

Carpenter Lnprovement Cornpany, LLC, a California limited Iiability company (the "Developer")
pursuant to the Purchase Agreement. Capitalized terrns used herein or in the Letter of Representations
(defined below) and not otherwise defined liave the meanings ascribed to tltem in the Purchase

Agreement. A copy of a Letter of Representations (the "Letter of Representations"), dated

2020, delivered by tlre Developer, is attached hereto as Exhibit A.

The undersigned certifies that he or she is familiar with the facts herein certified and is authorized
and qualified to certify the same as an authorized officer or representative of the Developer, and the

undersigned, on behalf of the Developer, fufiher certifies as follows:

l. The Developer has received tlie final Official Statenrent relating to the Bonds. Each

statenteut, representation and warranty made in the Letter of Representations is true and correct in all
ntaterial respects on and as of the date hereof with the same effect as if rnacle on the date hereof, except
that all references therein to the Prelirlinary Official Statemettt shall be deemed to be references to tlte
fi nal Offi cial Statenreut.

2. To the ActLral Knowledge of the Undersigned, no event has occurred since the date of the

Preliminary Official Statement affecting the statements and information described in Paragraph 6 of the

Letter of Representatious relating to the Developer, its Affiliates, orvnership of the Property, the

D-l
Page 455

10/13/2020 Item No.12.



Developer's development plan, the Developer's fiuancing plan, the Developer's leuders, if any, and

contractual arraugentents of tlre Developer or any Affiliates (irrcluding, if material to the Developer's
development plan or the Developer's financing plan, other loans of such Affiliates) which should be

disclosed in the Official Statement for the purposes for which it is to be used in order to make such

statements and information contained in the Official Statenrent not misleading in any material respect.

3. The undersigned has executed this Cerlificate solely in his or her capacity as an officer of
Developer and he or she will have no personal liability arisirrg from or relating to this Certificate. Any
liability arising from or relating to this Certificate nay only be assefted against the Developer.

EAST CARPENTER IMPROVEMENT COMPANY,
LLC,a California limited liability company

By: HBT ECIC, LLC, a California limited liability
company

Its: Managing Member

By
Name: William B. Bunce
Its: Manager

D-2
Page 456

10/13/2020 Item No.12.



EXHIBIT E

SUPPLBMENTAL OPINION OF BOND COUNSEL

ITO COME FROM BOND COLTNSEL]

E-l
Page 457

10/13/2020 Item No.12.



EXHIBIT F

OPINION OF DEVBLOPBR'S COUNSEL

[Closing Date]

Folsom Ranch Financing Authority
50 Natorna Street
Folsom, California 95630

Piper Sandler & Co.
8880 Cal Center Drive, Suite 400
Sacramento, California 95826

Re: $ Folsom Ranch Financing Authority City of Folsom Community
Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch) Improvement Area No. I Special Tax
Revenue Bonds, Series 2020

Ladies and Gentlemen

We have acted as counsel to East Carpenter Improvement Company, LLC, a California limited

liability company (the "Developer") in connection with the issuance and sale by the Folsom Ranch

Financing Authority (the "Issuer") of $_ Folsom Ranch Financing Authority City of
Folsom Comrnunity Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch) Improvement Area No. 1 Special Tax

Revenue Bonds, Series 2020 (the "Bonds") to provide funds to finance the purchase of lirnited

obligation special tax bonds, issued by the City of Folsom Community Facilities District No. 23

(Folsom Ranch) (the "District") with respect to Improvement Area No. I therein (the "lmprovement
Area"). This opinion is rendered pursuant to the Bond Purchase Agreement dated 2020
(the "Bond Purchase Agreement"), entered into in connection therewith. Capitalized terms used

herein without definition shall have the rneanings set forth in the Bond Purchase Agreement.

In rendering the opinions set forth herein, we have reviewed and examined such documents

as we have determined to be appropriate, including the following documents:

1. The Bond Purchase Agreement;

2. The Preliniinary Official Statement and the Final Official Staternent (together, the

"Official Statement");

3. The Developer Continuing Disclosure Certificate dated

by Developer (the "Developer Disclosure Ceftificate"); and

2020, executed

4. Letter of Representations of East Carpenter Improvement Company, LLC, dated

2020, and the Closing Certificate of East Carpenter Irnprovement Company, LLC,
dated _ ,2020, both as required pursuant to the Bond Purchase Agreement (collectively, the

"Developer Cer1ifi cate").

F-I

Page 458

10/13/2020 Item No.12.



With respect to factual matters underlying our opinions herein, we have made no independent
investigatiori or inquiry and have relied solely upon the Developer Certificate. We advise you that
the phrase "to our knowledge," as Llsed herein, means that no facts have come to our attention, based

upon an inquiry of attorneys in this finn who devote substantive legal attention to Developer, or as a

result of our examination of the Developer Certificate, that indicate to us anything contrary to the

statement to which the phrase relates. Except as expressly set forth above, the phrase does not mean

that we have conducted any investigation or inquiry or perfonned any other examination or review.
We have no reason to believe that any factual matters or assul't'rptions relied upon by us are not true,
correct and cornplete.

Our opinions herein are liniited to the internal laws of the State of California and the federal
laws of the United States of Arnerica. We express no opinion whatsoever with respect to the laws of
any other jurisdiction and assume no responsibility for the applicability of such laws.

In rendering our opinions herein, we have assumed the following, with your approval:

i. The genuineness and authenticity of all signatures on original documents
submitted to us (other than any signatures on behalf of Developer); the authenticity and

completeness of all documents subrnitted to us as originals; the conformity to originals of all
documents submitted to us as copies; where any signature, other than any signature on behalf
of Developer purpofts to have been made in a corporate, governmental, fiduciary or other
capacity, the person who affixed such signature had the fullpower and authority to do so;

ii. The due authorization, execution and delivery of the applicable agreements

by the parties thereto, other than the Developer, and the legality, validity, binding effect and

enforceability against such parties of their respective obligations under such agreements;

iii. The truth, accuracy and completeness of all factual representations and

warranties of all parties underthe docurnents described in paragraphs I through 4, above;

iv. The constitutionality or validity of a relevant statute, rule, regulation or
agency action is not in issue unless a reported decision in the State of California has

specifically addressed but not resolved, or has established, its unconstitutionality or
invalidity; and

v. All official public records relied upon by us are accurate and complete.

Based upon the foregoing and in reliance thereon, and based on our examination of such
questions of law as we have deemed appropriate under the circumstances, and subject to any further
assumptions, cotnments, exceptions, qualifications and limitations set forth below, as of the date

hereof, it is our opinion that:

l. Developer is a Iimited liability company validly existing and in good standing
as a limited liability company underthe laws of the State of Califomia and is duly registered
to transact intrastate business in the State of California and is in good standing in tlie State of
California, and has full power and authority to enter into the Developer Disclosure
Certificate.

F-2

Page 459

10/13/2020 Item No.12.



2. The Developer has duly and validly executed and delivered the Developer
Disclosure Certificate, and the Developer Disclosure Certificate constitutes the legal, valid
and bindirrg obligation of the Developer, errforceable against Developer in accordance with
its tenns.

3. To our knowledge, the execution and delivery by the Developer of the

Developer Disclosure Certificate and the performance of its obligations thereunder do not
and will not result in a violation of any provision of, or in default under any agreement or
other instrurnent to which Developer is a party.

4. To our knowledge, Developer is not in violation of any provision of or in
default under, its organizational documents or any agreement or other instrument, violation or
default under which would materially and adversely affect the business, properties, assets,

liabilities or conditions (financial or other) of the Developer with respect to Developer's
ability to develop real property owned by Developer within the Improvement Area.

5. To our knowledge, except as set forth in the Official Statement, there is no

litigation pending against Developer (with service of process to Developer having been duly
given and completed) or overtly threatened against Developer which would materially and

adversely affect the validity or enforceability of the Developer Disclosure Certificate,
Developer's ability to complete the development of its property as proposed in the Official
Statement or to pay the Special Tax.

6. Without having undertaken to detennine independently the accuracy,

completeness or fairness of the statements contained in the Official Statement under the

captions, "INTRODUCTION Property Ownership"; "PROPOSED PROPERTY
DEVELOPMENT"; and "CONTINUING DISCLOSURE;" (except that no opinion or belief
need to be expressed as to any infonnation relating to The Depository Trust Cornpany, or any

information relating to CUSIP numbers, or with respect to any financial, statistical or
engineering infonnation, data or forecasts, numbers, charts, estimates, projections,
assumptions or expressions of opinion, assessed valuations or appraised values, or to any

information which is attributable to a source other than Developer, contained irr the Offrcial
Statement), no facts came to our attention during the course of our representation of
Developer that would lead us to believe that the information under said captions of the

Official Statement relating to the Developer and the Developer's organizations, activities,
properties and financial condition, and its proposed development of the Property, contains
any untrue statement of a material fact or omits any material fact necessary in order to nrake

the staternents therein, in the light of the circurnstances under which they were made, not
rnisleading.

In addition, all of our opinions expressed hereinabove are specifically subject to and limited
by the following:

a) We express no opinion as to matters governed by any laws other tharr the substantive
laws of California which are in effect as of the date lrereof, and we assume no obligation to nTodify or
supplernent this opinion with respect to changes in such laws after the date hereof.

F-3

Page 460

10/13/2020 Item No.12.



b) As counsel to the Developer irr this matter, we have not rendered financial advice to

the Developer and do not represent, by this opinion or otherwise, that we have reviewed or nrade any

assessment about, nor do we offer any opinion about, the financial condition of the Developer, past,

present or future, including any financial information contained irr the Developer Disclosure

Certificate; nor have we reviewed the financial feasibility of this transaction or those matters which
the proceeds of the Bonds will fund or any of it components arrd, accordingly, we offer no opinion
whatsoever regard ing such fi nancial feasibi I ity.

c) The effect of laws or court decisions relating to bankruptcy, insolvency, fraudulent
conveyance, equitable subordination, reorganization, arrangement, rnoratoriurl or other laws or court
decisions relating to or affecting creditors' rights generally.

d) Limitations irnposed by California or federal law or equitable principles upon the

availability of the remedy of specific perfonnance of any of the remedies, covenants or other
provisions of any document or agreement and upon the availability of injunctive relief or other

equitable remedies.

In addition, we express no opinion as to the title of the property within the Improvement Area

or any entitlernents, permits, approvals or other assets relating to the Developer's development of its
property as proposed in the Official Statement.

We express no opinion as to any matter other than as expressly set forlh above, and, in
conjunction therewith, specifically express no opinion concerning the application of or compliance

with any federal securities law, including, but not lirnited to, the Securities Act of 1933, as amended,

and the Trust Indenture Act of 1939, as amended, any state securities or o'Blue Sky" law, or any

federal, state or local tax law, as respecting the Bonds.

This letter is intended solely for your use in relation to the Bond Purchase Agreement and

may not be reproduced or filed publicly or relied upon for any other purpose by you or for any

purpose whatsoever by any other party without the express written consent of the undersigned except

that this opinion may be copied and distributed as part of a closing book of the bond transaction

documents, provided that such distribution shall not expand in any way the permitted uses of this
letter.

We assume no responsibility for the effect of any fact or circurnstance occurring
subsequent to the date of this letter, including, without linritation, legislative or other changes in the

law. Further, we assun'le no responsibility to advise you of any facts or circurnstances of which we

become aware after the date hereof, regardless of whether or not they rnay affect our opinions herein.

This opinion is given as of the date hereof, and we assume no obligation to update our opinions
herein after the date hereof.

Very truly yolrrs,

HEFNER, STARK & MAROIS, LLP

By

F-4

Tirnotlry D. Taron

Page 461

10/13/2020 Item No.12.



EXHIBIT G

FORM OF MERCHANT BUILDER LETTER OF REPRESENTATIONS

FOLSOM RANCH FINANCING AUTHORITY
CITY OF FOLSOM COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT NO. 23

(FOLSOM RANCH) IMPROVEMENT ARDA NO. 1

SPECIAL TAX REVENUE BONDS
SERIBS 2O2O

2020

Folsom Ranch Financing Authority
50 Natoma Street
Folsom, California 9 5630

Piper Sandler & Co.
8880 Cal Center Drive, Suite 400
Sacramento, Cal ifornia 9 5826

Ladies and Gentlemen:

Reference is made to the Folsom Ranch Financing Authority City of Folsom Community
Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch) lmprovement Area No. I Special Tax Revenue Bonds,

Series 2020 (the "Bonds") and to the Bond Purchase Agreement to be entered into in connection

therewith (the "Purchase Agreement"). This Letter of Representations of _ (the "Letter of
Representations") is delivered pursllant to the Purchase Agreement. Capitalized terms used and not
otherwise defined herein have the meanings ascribed to them in the Purchase Agreement.

The undersigned certifies that he or she is familiar with the facts herein certified and is
authorized and qualified to certify the same as an authorized officer or representative of 

-, 

o

Maryland corporation (the "Builder"), and tlre urrdersigned, on behalf of the Builder, further cerlifies
as follows:

1. The Builder is a validly existirrg corporation and in good standing under the laws of
the State of _, is duly registered to transact intrastate business [as a foreign corporation]

and in good standing in the State of California, and has all requisite corporate right, power and

authority: (i) to execute and deliver this Letter of Representations; and (ii) to undertake all of the

transactions on its part described in the Prelilrinary Official Statement.

2. As set forth in the Preliminary Official Statement, the Builder owns certain property

(herein the "Property") within lrnprovement Area No. I (the'oltnprovetrent Area") of City of Folsorn

Comnrunity Facilities District No. 23 (Folson, Ranch) (tlre "District"). The undersigned, on belralf of
the Builder, mal<es the represerrtations herein with respect to all such Property.

G-t

Page 462

10/13/2020 Item No.12.



3. Except as disclosed in the Prelin,inary Official Statetnent, to the Actr"ral Knowledge

of the Urrdersigned (as defined below), (a) the Builder and its Affiliatesr are not in breach of or in
default under any applicable judgrnent or decree or any loan agreernent, option agreement,

development agreement, indenture, fiscal agent agreement, bond or note (collectively, the "Material

Agreements") to which the Builder or its Affiliates are a party or otherwise subject, which breach or

default could reasonably be expected to materially and adversely affect the Builder's ability to
complete the development of the Property as described in the Preliminary Official Staternent or to
pay the Special Tax on the Property (to the extent the responsibility of the Builder) prior to
delinqLrency and (b) no event has occurred and is continuing that with the passage of tir,re or giving
of notice, or both, would constitute such a breach or default.

4. To the Actual Knowledge of the Undersigned2, neitlier the Builder nor any of its

Affiliates is in default on any obligation to repay borrowed rnoney, which default is reasonably likely
to rnaterially and adversely affect the Builder's ability complete the development of the Property as

described in the Preliminary Official Statement or to pay the Special Tax on the Property (to the

extent the responsibility of the Builder) prior to delinquency.

5. Except as set forlh in the Preliminary Official Statement, no action, suit, proceeding,

inquiry or investigation at law or in equity, before or by any court, regulatory agency, public board or

body is pending against the Builder (with proper service of process to the Builder having been

accomplished) or, to the Actual Knowledge of the Undersigned, is pending against any current

Affiliate (with proper service of process to such Affiliate having been accomplished) or to the Actual

Krrowledge of the Undersigned is threatened in writing against the Builder or any such Affiliate
which if successful, is reasonably likely to materially and adversely affect the Builder's ability to
complete the development of the Property as described in the Preliminary Official Statement or to
pay the Special Tax or ad valorem tax obligations on its Property (to the extent the responsibility of
the Builder) prior to delinquency.

6. As of the date of the Prelirninary Official Statement, to the Actual Knowledge of the

Undersigned, the information set forth therein under the captions "PROPOSED PROPERTY
DEVELOPMENT-Property Ownership " "-Development Plan and Status of
Developnrent - 

- 

)') "- Development Plans of Finance- Plan of Finance, " and

I "Affiliot." rneans, ivith lespect to the Builcler, any other Person: (i) who directly, ol indirectly through one or more

intelmeclialics. is currcntly contlolling, controlled by or under common contlol with the Builder, and (ii) for whom infbrrnatiotr.

inclr-rcling financial infbrmation or operating data, concerning such Person is material to potential investors in theil evaluation of
the Inrprovement Area and investment decision regarding the Bonds (i.e., information relevant to: (a) the Builder's cleveloptnent

plans rvith respect to its Property and the payment of its Special Tax on the Property prior to delinquency; or (b) such Person's

orr.6 ur lirncls that ivoulcl rraterially aff'ect the Builder's ability to develop its Property as described in the Preliminary Official

Siatemelt or 10 pay its Special Tax on the Property (to the extent the responsibility of the Builder) prior to delinqttency).
"Person" melns atl inclividual. a corporation, a partnership, a limited liability company, an association, a.loint stock con.lpany, a

trust. zut\/ uninco;poratecl orgalization ol'a govel'nment or political subdivision thereof. For purposes hereol. the tet'm "control"
(including thc terrus "controlling.'' "contlollecl by" or'"undel common control with") means the possession. direct ot' inclirect. ol'

the po1,cr to clirect ol'cause thc clirection of the n-ranagement and policies of a Person, rvhether through the orvnership ol'voting
securitics. b), contracl ot' otherrvise.

2 "Actual Knowledge of the Undersigned'' shall rnean the actual (as opposed to constructive) knoivledge thal the

gnclcrsignecl currenth,has as ofthe date ofthis Letter ofRepresentations or has obtained fi'om (i) intelvicrvs u'ith such currenl

olliccls ancl respgnsible employees ol'the Builder as the undersigned has determined are likely, in the ordinary course of their

respective clutics. to have knorvleclge ol the rratters set forth in this Letter of Represetrtations. and/ot' (ii) a revieiv of sucll

docgptents as thc undersigned determinecl were reasorrably necessaly to obtain knorvleclge of the nratters set lbrth in this Letter t)1'

I{epresentatiops. 'fhc unclclsignecl has not conducted any extlaordinary inspection or inquiry other than such inspectiotls ot'

incluir.ies 1s are pl'udenl ancl custonrary in connection rvith the ordinary course of the Builder's cttt'rent business ancl opet'atiotls.
-l'hc 

unclersi-unecl has not contacted individuals rvho are no longer ernployed by the Builder.

G-2

Page 463

10/13/2020 Item No.12.



"CONTINUING DISCLOSURE - _" but, in each caption, solely as such inforrnation pertains

to Builder, its Affiliates, the Property, Builder's development of the Property and Builder's
contractual arrangements with respect thereto (excluding therefrom in all cases (a) any statements

regarding any other property owner or the propefty owned by a propefty owner other tlian the

Builder, (b) any information on appraised and market values, and annual special tax rates and ratios,

including information regarding the Appraisal and Marl<et Absorption Study (as such terms are

defined in the Prelirninary Official Statement), and (c) any information which is identified as having

been provided by a source other than the Builder) is true and correct in all material respects and did

not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make

the statements therein, in the light of the circumstances under which they were made, not rnisleading.

7. The Builder covenants that, while the Bonds or any refunding obligations related

thereto are outstanding, the Builder and its Affiliates which it controls will not bring any action, suit,
proceeding, inquiry or investigation at law or in equity, before any court, regulatory agency, public
board or body, that in any way seeks to challenge or overturn the fonnation of the District and the

Improvement Area, to challenge the adoption of Ordinance No._ of the District levying the

Special Tax within the Improvement Area, to invalidate the District, the Improvernent Area or any of
the Bonds or any refunding bonds related thereto, or to invalidate the special tax liens imposed under

Section3115.5 of the Streets and Highways Code based on recordation of the notice of special tax

lien relating thereto. The foregoing covenant shall not prevent the Builder or any Affiliate in any

way from bringing any action, suit, proceeding, inquiry or investigation at law or in equity, before

any court, regulatory agency, public board or body, including, without lirnitation, (a) contending that

the Special Tax has not been levied in accordance with the rnethodologies contained in the Rate,

Method of Apportionment, and Manner of Collection of Special Taxes pursuant to which the Special

Tax is levied, (b) with respect to the application or use of the Special Tax levied and collected, or (c)

to enforce the obligations of the Authority, the City, and/or the District under any agreements among

the Builder and its Affiliates, the Authority, the City, and/or the District or to which the Builder or its
Affiliates is a party or beneficiary.

8. Except as disclosed in the Preliminary Official Statement, to the Actual Knowledge
of the Undersigned, the Builder is not aware that any other public debt secured by a tax or assessment

on the Property exists or is in the process of being authorized or any assessment districts or
comnrunity facilities districts have been or are in the process of being fonned that irrclude any

portion of the Property.

9. The Builder has been developing or has been involved in the development of
nurnerous projects over an extended period of tirne. It is likely that the Builder has been delinquent at

one time or another in the payment of ad valorem propefty taxes, special assessnlents or special

taxes. However, except as disclosed in the Preliminary Official Statement, to the Actual Knowledge
of the Undersigned, the Builder is not currently in default in, or, in the last five years, has ever

defaulted to any rnaterial extent in, the payrnent of special taxes or assessments in connection with
the District or any other cornmunity facilities districts or assessment districts in California that (a)

caused a draw on a reserve fund relating to such assessrrer-lt district or community facilities district
financing or (b) was not cured prior to the institution of any enforcement action with a court of law.

10. Builder intends to cornply with the provision of the Mello-Roos Comnrunity
Facilities District Act of 1982, as amended relating to the Notice of Special Tax described in

Governnrent Code Section 53341.5 in connection with the sale of the Property, or portions thereof.

G-3

Page 464

10/13/2020 Item No.12.



I l. To the Actual Knowledge of the Undersigned, the Builder is able to pay its bills as

they become due and no legal proceedings are perrding against the Builder (with proper service of
process to the Builder having been accornplished) or, to the Actual Knowledge of the Undersigned,
threatened in writing in which the Builder may be adjudicated as bankrupt or discharged from any

and all of its debts or obligations, or granted an extension of tirne to pay its debts or obligations, or be

allowed to reorganize or readjust its debts, or be subject to control or supervision of the Federal

Deposit Insurance Corporation.

12. To the Actual Knowledge of the Undersigned, Affiliates of the Builder are able to
pay their bills as they become due and no legal proceedings are pending against any Affiliates of the

Builder (with proper service of process to such Affiliate having been accomplished) or to the Actual
Knowledge of the Undersigned, threatened in writing in which the Affiliates of the Builder may be

adjudicated as bankrupt or discharged from any or all of their debts or obligations, or granted an

extension of tirne to pay their debts or obligations, or be allowed to reorganize or readjusttheir debts

or obligations, or be subject to control or supervision of the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation.

13. If between the date hereof and the Closing Date any event relating to or affecting the

Builder, its Affiliates, ownership of the Property, the Builder's development plan, the Builder's
financing plan, the Builder's lenders, if any, and contractual arrangements of the Builder or any

Affiliates (including, if rnaterial to the Builder's development plan or the Builder's financing plan,

loans of such Affiliates) shall occur of which the undersigned has actual knowledge and which the

undersigned believes would cause the information under the sections of the Prelirninary Official
Statement indicated in Paragraph 6 hereof, to contain an untrue statement of a material fact or to omit
to state a material fact necessary to make the statements therein, in the light of the circurnstances

under which they were made, not rnisleading, the undersigned shall notify the Authority and the

Underwriter and if in the opinion of counsel to the Authority or the Underwriter such event requires
the preparation and publication of a supplement or amendment to the Prelirninary Official Statement,

the Builder shall reasonably cooperate with the Authority in the preparation of an amendment or
supplement to the Preliminary Official Statement in form and substance reasonably satisfactory to
counsel to the Authority and to the Underwriter.

14. The Builder agrees to deliver a Closing Certificate dated the date of issuance of the

Bonds at the time of issuance of the Bonds in substantially the form attached as Exhibit A.

15. On behalf of the Builder, I have reviewed the contents of this Letter of
Representations and have met with counsel to the Builder for the purpose of discussing the meaning
of its contents.

G-4

Page 465

10/13/2020 Item No.12.



The undersigned has executed this Letter of Representations solely in his or her capacity as

an officer or authorized representative of Builder and he or she will have no personal liability arising
from or relating to this Letter of Representations. Any liability arising from or relating to this Letter
of Representations may only be asserted against the Builder.

IBUTLDERI
a _corporation

By
[Name]
lTitlel

G-s

Page 466

10/13/2020 Item No.12.



EXHIBIT A

FORM OF MERCHANT BUILDER CLOSING CERTIFICATE

$

FOLSOM RANCH FINANCING AUTHORIT\
CITY OF FOLSOM COMMUNITY FAC.ILITIES DISTRICT NO. 23

(FOLSOM RANCH) IMPROVBMENT AREA NO. I
SPECIAL TAX RBVENUE BONDS

SERIES 2O2O

lcl-osrNG DATEI

Folsom Ranch Financing Authority
50 Natorna Street
Folsom, CA,95630

Piper Sandler & Co.
8880 Cal Center Drive, Suite 400
Sacramento, Cal ifornia 9 5826

Ladies and Gentlemen

Reference is made to the Folsom Ranch Financing Authority City of Folsom Comrnunity
Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch) Improvement Area No. I Special Tax Revenue Bonds,

Series 2020 (the "Bonds") and to the Bond Purchase Agreement, dated 2020 (the
"Purchase Agreement"), entered into in connection therewith. This Closing Certificate of

(the "Closing Certificate") is delivered by a corporation
(the "Builder") pursuant to the Purchase Agreement . Capitalized terms used herein and not

otherwise defined have the rneanings ascribed to tlrerl in the Letter of Representations of
(the "Letter of Representations"), dated 

-,2020, 

delivered by the Builder'

The undersigned certifies that he or she is farniliar with the facts herein certified and is
authorized and qualified to certify the same as an authorized officer or representative of the Builder,
and the undersigned, on behalf of the Builder, further certifies as follows:

1. The Builder has received the final Official Staternent dated , 2020

relating to the Bonds (the "Official Statement"). Each statenrent, representation and warranty rnade

in the Letter of Representations is true and correct in all nraterial respects on and as of the date hereof
with the same effect as if rnade on the date lrereol', except tlrat all references therein to the

Preliminary Official Statement shall be deen,ed to be ref-erences to the final Official Statenrent.

2. To the Actual Knowledge of the Undersigned, rro event has occurred since the date of
the Preliminary Official Statenrent aff-ecting the statements and irrfbrmation described in Paragraph 6

of the Letter of Representations relating to the Builder, its Affiliates, ownerslrip of the Propefty, the

Builder's development plan, the Builder's financirrg plan, the Builder's lenders, if any, and

contractual arrangernents of the Builder or any A1'filiates (inclLrding, if Inaterial to tlre Builder's

G-6

Page 467

10/13/2020 Item No.12.



development plan orthe Builder's financing plan, loans of such Affiliates) which sliould be disclosed

in the Official Statement fbr the purposes for which it is to be used in order to make such statements

and information corrtailred in the Official Staternent not rnisleading in any material respect.

3. For the period through 25 days after tlre "End of the Underwriting Period" as defined
in the Purchase Agreemerrt to be the date hereof, if any event relating to or affecting the Builder, its
Affiliates, ownership of the Property, the Builder's development plan, the Builder's financing plan,

the Builder's lenders, if any, and contractual arrangements of the Builder or any Affiliates (including,
if material to the Builder's development plan or the Builder's financing plan, loans of such Affiliates)
shall occur and cause the information under the sections of the Official Statement indicated in
Paragraph 6 of the Letter of Representations to contain an untrue statement of a material fact or to
omit to state a material fact necessary to make the statements therein, in the light of the

circumstances under which they were made, not misleading, the undersigned shall notify the

Authority and the Underwriter and if in the opinion of the Underwriter or counsel to the Authority, it
is necessary to amend or supplenrent the Official Statement in order to make the Official Statement

not misleading in the light of the circumstances existing at the tirne it is delivered to a purchaser, the

Builder shall reasonably cooperate with the Authority and the Underwriter in the preparation of an

amendment or supplement to the Official Statement in form and substance reasonably satisfactory to

the Underwriter and Disclosure Counsel which will arnend or supplement the Official Statement so

that it will not contain arr untrue statemeltt of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary

in order to make the statenrents therein, irr the light of the circumstances existing at the time the

Official Staternent is delivered to a purchaser, not misleading.

The undersigned has executed this Closing Certificate solely in his or her capacity as an

officer or representative of Builder and he or she will have no personal liability arising from or
relating to this Closing Certificate. Any liability arising from or relating to this Closing Certificate
may only be asserted against the Builder.

a corporation

By
[Name],
ITitle]

G-7

Page 468

10/13/2020 Item No.12.



E,XHIBIT H-l

FORM OF OPINION OF COUNSEL TO MERCHANT BUILDBRS

2020

Folsonr Ranch Financing Authority
c/o City of Folsorn
50 Natoma Street
Folsom, Califomia 95630

Piper Sandler & Co.
8880 Cal Center Drive, Suite 400
Sacramento, Cal ifornia 9 5826

Re: .$ Folsom Ranclt Financing Authority Cily of Folsom Community
Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranclt) Improvement Area No. 1 Speciol Tax
Revenue Bonds Series 2020

Ladies and Gentlemen:

We have acted as counsel to is delivered by [Name of Builder], a

(the "Builder") in connection with the issuance and sale by the Folsom Ranch
Financing Authority (the "lssuer") of $_ Folsorn Ranch Financing Authority City of Folsom
Cornmunity Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch) Improvement Area No. 1 Special Tax Revenue

Bonds Series 2020 (the "Bonds") to provide funds to finance the purchase of lirnited obligation
special tax bonds, issued by the City of Folsom Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom

Ranch) (the "District") with respect to Improvement Area No. 1 therein (the "lmprovement Area").
This opinion is rendered pursuant to the Bond Purchase Agreement dated 2020 (the
"Bond Purchase Agreement"), entered into in connection therewith. Capitalized terms used herein
without definition shall have the meanings set forth in the Bond Purchase Agreement.

ln renderirrg the opinions set forth herein, we have reviewed and examined sr"rch documents
as we have deternrined to be appropriate, including the following documents:

l. The Bond Purchase Agreement;

2. The Preliminary Official Statement and the Final Official Staternent (together, the

"Official Statement"),

3. The Builder Continuing Disclosure Certificate dated

Builder (the "Builder Disclosure Cefiificate"); and

H-l-t

2020, executed by

Page 469

10/13/2020 Item No.12.



4. Letter of Representations of Builder 2020, and the Closing Certificate of
Builder, dated 2020, both as required pursuant to the Bond Purchase Agreement
(collectively, the "Builder Certificate").

With respect to factual rnatters underlying our opinions herein, we have nrade no independent

investigation or inquiry and have relied solely upon the Builder's Certificate. We advise you that the
phrase "to our knowledge," as used herein, rneans that no facts have come to our attention, based

upon an inquiry of attorneys in this firm who devote substantive legal attention to the Builder, or as a

result of our examination of the Builder's Certificate, that indicate to us anything contrary to the

statement to which the phrase relates. Except as expressly set forth above, the phrase does not mean

that we have conducted any investigation or inquiry or perfonned any other exarnination or review.

We have no reason to believe that any factual matters or assumptions relied upon by us are not true,

correct and complete.

Our opinions herein are limited to the internal laws of the State of California and the federal

laws of the United States of America. We express no opinion whatsoever with respect to the laws of
any other.iurisdiction and assume no responsibility for the applicability of such laws.

In rendering our opinions herein, we have assumed the following, with your approval:

i. The genuineness and authenticity of all signatures on original documents
submitted to us (other than any signatures on behalf of the Builder); the authenticity and

completeness of all documents subrnitted to us as originals; the confonnity to originals of all
documents submitted to us as copies; where any signature, other than any signature on behalf
of Developer purports to have been made in a cotporate, governmental, fiduciary or other

capacity, the person who affixed such signature had the full power and authority to do so;

ii. The due authorization, execution and delivery of the applicable agreements

by the parties thereto, other than the Developer, and the legality, validity, binding effect and

enforceability against such parties of their respective obligations under such agreements;

iii. The truth, accuracy and cornpleteness of all factual representations and

warranties of allparties underthe documents described in paragraphs I through 4, above;

iv. The constitutionality or validity of a relevant statute, rule, regulation or
agency action is not in issue unless a reported decision in the State of California has

specifically addressed but not resolved, or has established, its unconstitutionality or
invalidity; and

v. All official public records relied upon by us are accurate and complete.

Based upon the foregoing and in reliance thereon, and based on our examination of such

questions of law as we have deerned appropriate under the circumstances, and subject to any further
assumptions, collrnents, exceptions, qualifications and lirnitations set forth below, as of the date

hereof, it is our opinion that:

The Builder is a validly existing and in good standing as a

underthe laws of the State of California, and has full powerand authorityto enter

into the Builder Disclosure Certificate.

H-l-2
Page 470

10/13/2020 Item No.12.



2. The Builder has duly and validly executed and delivered the Builder
Disclosure Certificate, and the Builder Disclosure Certificate constitutes the legal, valid and

binding obligation of the Builder, enforceable against the Builder in accordance with its
terms.

3. To our knowledge, except as set forth in the Official Statement, there is no

litigation pending against Developer (with service of process to the Builder having been duly
given and completed) or overtly threatened against the Builder which would materially and

adversely affect the validity or enforceability of the Builder Disclosure Certificate, the

Builder's ability to complete the developrlent of its propefiy as proposed in the Official
Statement or to pay the Special Tax.

4. Without having undertaken to determine independently the accuracy,

completeness or fairness of the statements contained in the Official Statement under the

captions, "PROPOSED PROPERTY DEVELOPMENT-Property Ownership - tt

((-Devefopment Plan and Status of Development - 

-," 

((- Development Plans of
Finance-_ Plan of Finance, " and "CONTINUING DISCLOSURE - ))

(except tl'rat no opinion or belief need to be expressed as to any information t"lating to The

Depository Trust Company, or any information relating to CUSIP numbers, or with respect to

any financial, statistical or engineering information, data or forecasts, numbers, charts,

estimates, projections, assumptions or expressions of opinion, assessed valuations or

appraised values, or to any information which is attributable to a source other than Builder,
contained in the Official Statement), no facts came to our attention during the course of our

representation of the Builder that would lead us to believe that the information under said

captions of the Official Statement relating to the Builder and the Builder's organizations,
activities, properties and financial condition, and its proposed development of the Property,

contains any untrue statement of a material fact or omits any material fact necessary in order

to make the statements therein, in the light of the circumstances under which they were made,

not rnisleading.

In addition, all of our opinions expressed hereinabove are specifically subject to and limited
by the following:

a) We express no opirrion as to matters governed by any laws other than the substantive
laws of California which are in effect as of the date hereof, and we assume no obligation to modify or

supplement this opinion with respect to changes in such laws after the date hereof.

b) As counsel to the Builder in this rnatter, we have not rendered financial advice to the

Builder and do not represent, by this opinion or otherwise, that we have reviewed or made any

assessment about, nor do we offer any opinion about, the financial condition of the Builder, past,

present or future, including any financial inforrnation contained in the Builder Disclosure Certificate;
nor have we reviewed the finarrcial feasibility of this transaction or those matters which the proceeds

of the Bonds will fund or any of it cornponents and, accordingly, we offer no opinion whatsoever

regarding such fi nancial feasibil ity.

c) The effect of laws or court decisions relating to barrkruptcy, insolvency, fraudulent
conveyance, equitable subordination, reol'ganizalion, arrangement, moratorium or other laws or court

decisions relating to or affecting creditors' rights generally.

H-r-3

Page 471

10/13/2020 Item No.12.



d) Lirnitations irnposed by California or federal law or eqr"ritable principles upon the

availability of the rernedy of specific performance of any of the remedies, covenants or other
provisions of any document or agreement and upon the availability of injunctive relief or other
equitable remedies.

In addition, we express no opinion as to the title of the propefty within the Inrprovernerrt Area
or any entitlements, permits, approvals or other assets relating to the Builder's developrnent of its
property as proposed in the Official Statement.

We express no opinion as to any matter other than as expressly set forlh above, and, in
conjunction therewith, specifically express no opinion concerning the application of or conrpliance
with any federal securities law, including, but not limited to, the Securities Act of 1933, as amended,

and the Trust Indenture Act of 1939, as amended, any state securities or "Blue Sky" law, or any

federal, state or local tax law, as respecting the Bonds.

This letter is intended solely for your use in relation to the Bond Purchase Agreement and

may not be reproduced or filed publicly or relied upon for any other pulpose by you or for any

purpose whatsoever by any other party without the express written consent of the undersigned except
that this opinion rnay be copied and distributed as part of a closing book of the bond transaction
documents, provided that such distribution shall not expand in any way the perrnitted uses of this
letter.

We assume no responsibility for the effect of any fact or circumstance occurring subsequent

to the date of this letter, including, without limitation, legislative or other changes in the law.
Further, we assume no responsibility to advise you of any facts or circumstances of which we

become aware after the date hereof, regardless of whether or not they may affect our opinions herein.
This opinion is given as of the date hereof, and we assume no obligation to update our opinions
herein after the date hereof.

Very Truly Yours,

H-t-4
Page 472

10/13/2020 Item No.12.



EXHIBIT H-2

FORM OF OPINION OF COUNSEL TO MBRCHANT BUILDERS

2020

Folsom Ranch Financing Authority
c/o City of Folson,
50 Natoma Street
Folsom, California 95630

Piper Sandler & Co.
8880 Cal Center Drive, Suite 400
Sacramento, California 95826

Re Folsom Ranch Financing Authority
City of Folsom
Community Facilities District No. 23
(Folsom Ranch) Improvement Area No. 1

Snecial Tax Revenue Bonds Series 2020

Ladies and Gentlemen

I am corporate counsel to a _ corporation (the "Developer"). I have been

asked to provide this opinion in connection with the issuance of the above-referenced bonds (the
"Bonds") by the Folsom Ranch Financing Autlrority. The Bonds are being sold to Piper Sandler &
Co., as underwriter (the "Underwriter"). This opinion is being delivered to you pursuant to Section
4(F)(22) of the Bond Purchase Agreement, dated
Underwriter (the "Purchase Agreement").

2020, between the Authority and the

I have made such legal and factual inquiries and examinations as I deemed necessary for the
purposes of this opinion. Whenever my opinion herein with respect to tlie existence or absence of
facts is indicated to be based on my knowledge, it is intended to signify that during the course of my
representation of the Developer, r'lo inforrnation has conre to my attention whicli would give rne

current actual knowledge of the existence or absence of such facts. Except to the extent expressly set

forth herein, I have not undertaken any irrdependent investigations to determine the existence or
absence of such facts, and no inference as to nry knowledge of the existence or absence of such facts

sliould be drawrr from my representation of the Developer.

As to certain factr"ral rnatters material to my opinion, I have relied upon statements,

certificates and other assurances of public officials and of certain olficers and authorized agents of
the Developer, as well as enrployees and/or consultants of the Developer, which factual matters I
have not established or verified.

H-2-1

Page 473

10/13/2020 Item No.12.



In expressing the opinion below, I have assumed, without inquiry or investigation, the

genuineness of all signatures (other than those of the Developer), the authenticity of all documents

submitted to rne as originals, the confornrity to original documents of documents submitted to me as

copies or as exhibits, and the authenticity of such originals of such latter documents.

My opinion is limited to the Subject State Law (as defined below) and the laws of the United

States.

Based solely upon and subject to the foregoing, as well as to the qualifications, limitations,
exclusions, exceptions, assumptions and other matters set forth herein, I am of the opinion that:

1. Based on the certificate of good standing issued by the State of Maryland, attached as

Exhibit A, the Developer is a Maryland corporation duly and validly organized and existing under

the laws of the State of Maryland.

2. The Developer has duly and validly authorized the execution and delivery of the

Developer Continuing Disclosure Certificate - dated as of Decembsr _, 2020 (rhe

"Continuing Disclosure Document"), and the Continuing Disclosure Document has been duly
executed and delivered by the Developer.

3. To my knowledge, the Developer is not in violation of any provision of, or in default
under, the Developer's Articles of Incorporation, as amended, and its Arnended and Restated Bylaws
(the "Developer Organizational Docurnents"), or any agreement or other instrument to which the

Developer is party, the violation of or default under which would materially and adversely affect the

business, propefties, assets, liabilities or conditions (financial or other) of the Developer.

This opinion letter is limited to the matters expressly stated herein and the opinion set forth
herein is qualified and limited in the following respects and is subject to the following assumptions,

exceptions, qualifications, limitations, and exclusions, in addition to those assumptions, exceptions,
qualifications, limitations, and exclusions set forth above:

A. I express no opinion on the subject of Federal and state securities laws, rules

or regulations.

B. I call your attention to the fact that I am licensed to practice law only in the

State of _and do not express any opinion concerning n'latters affected by laws otherthan laws

of the State of (tlre "subject State Law") and the federal laws of the United States of
America. Accordingly, in rendering the foregoirrg opinion, I have assumed, with your consent, and

withor,rt any irrqLriry or investigation in respect thereof, that insofar as the opinion expressed above

relate to matters governed by State law other than the Subject State Law, the relevant laws, and their
application to such matters, are and would be the same as the laws which would be applicable to such

rnatters if they were goverrred by and construed and enforced in accordance with the laws (otherthan
the law governing choice of law matters) of the State of I express no opinion as to the

effect that the laws and decisions of courls of any jurisdiction may have upon suclr opinion, and I
assume no responsibility as to the applicability or effect of the laws of any other jurisdiction.

H-2-2

Page 474

10/13/2020 Item No.12.



C. Whenever I have stated that I have assumed any matter of fact, it is intended

to indicate that I have assurned such matter without rnaking any factual, legal or other inquiry or
investigation, and withor,rt expressing any opinion or conclusion of any kind concerning such matter.

D. This opinion letter is furnished to you specifically in connectiorr witlr the

Purchase Agreement, and solely for your information and benefit. It may not be utilized, relied on,

quoted or distributed to any other person, and it may not be utilized, relied on or quoted by any other

person for any purpose, without in each instance my express prior written consent, provided,

however, a copy of this letter may be included in the transcript of the proceedings for the Bonds.

E. The opinion expressed herein is based on the facts (as I know, believe or have

assunred them to be) and law as in effect on the date of this opinion letter and, as such, the opinion
expressed herein shall be effective only as of the date of this letter. I neither undertake to supplement

or update this opinion letter nor undertake to advise you or any other party if there is a change in law
or facts or new facts come to my attention subsequent to the date hereof which rnay affect the

opinion expressed above and/or which may cause me to amend any portion of this opinion letter in
fr-rll or in part. Furthermore, future acts or omissions of the parties may serve to rlodify, alter or
change the circumstances under which this opinion letter was prepared and upon which the opinion
herein was rendered. Also, actions, conduct or omissions by a party may create a situation of waiver,
estoppel or novation which would supplant the opinion set forth in this opinion letter. This opinion
shall not be construed as a guarantee that a court considering such matters would not rule in a manner

contrary to the opinion set forth above.

Very truly yours,

H-2-3

Page 475

10/13/2020 Item No.12.



BXHIBIT I

FOLSOM RANCH FINANCING AUTHORITY
CITY OF FOLSOM COMMUNITY FACILITIBS DISTRICT NO. 23

(FOLSOM RANCH) IMPROVEMENT AREA NO. I
SPBCIAL TAX REVENUB BONDS

SERIES 2O2O

FORM OF ISSUE PRICB CERTIFICATB

The undersigned, on behalf of Piper Sandler & Co. (the "PSC"), hereby certifies as set forth
below with respect to the sale and issuance of the above-captioned bonds (the "Bonds").

1. Sale of the Generul Rule Maturities. As of the date of this certificate, for each

Maturity of the General Rule Maturities, the first price at which at least 10o/o of such Maturity was

sold to the Public is the respective price listed in Schedule A.

2. Initial Offiring Price of the Hold-tlte-O.ffering-Price Maturities

(a) PSC offered the Hold-the-Offering-Price Maturities to the Public for purchase at the

respective initial offering prices listed in Schedule A (the "Initial Offering Prices") on or before the

Sale Date. A copy of thepricing wire or equivalent cornmunication forthe Bonds is attached to this

certificate as Schedule B.

(b) As set forth in the Bond Purchase Agreement, dated 2020, by and
between PSC and the Issuer, PSC has agreed in writing that: (i) for each Maturity of the Hold-the-
Offering-Price Maturities, it would neither offer nor sell any of the Bonds of such Maturity to any
person at a price that is higher than the Initial Offering Price for such Maturity during the Holding
Period for such Maturity (the "hold-the-offering-price rule"); and (ii) any selling group agreement

shall contain the agreement of each dealer who is a member of the selling group, and any retail
distribution agreement shall contain the agreement of each broker-dealer who is a party to the retail
distribution agreement, to comply with the hold-the-offering-price rule. Pursuant to such agreement,

no Underwriter (as defined below) has offered or sold any Maturity of the Hold-the-Offering-Price
Maturities at a price that is higher than the respective Initial Offering Price for that Maturity of the

Bonds during the Holding Period.

3. Defined Terms.

(a) General Rule Maturilies means those Maturities of the Bonds listed in Schedule A
hereto as the "General Rule Maturities."

(b) Hold-the-Offering-Price Matarities rreans tlrose Maturities of the Bonds listed in
Schedule A hereto as the "Hold-the-Offering-Price Maturities."

(c) Holding Period lneans, with respect to a Hold-the-Offering-Price Maturity, the period

starting on the Sale Date and ending on the earlier of (i) the close of the fifth business day after the

2020 (the Sale Date), or (ii) the date on which the Underwriter has sold at least I 0%o of
such Hold-the-Offering-Price Maturity to tlre Public at prices that are no higher than the Initial
Offering Price for such Hold-the-Offering-Price MatLrrity.

I-1

Page 476

10/13/2020 Item No.12.



(d) Issuer rreans the Folsorn Ranch Financing Authority

(e) Maturity means Bonds with the sanre credit and payment terms. Bonds with different
rlaturity dates, or Bonds with the same maturity date but different stated interest rates, are treated as

separate maturities.

(0 Public rreans any person (including an individual, trust, estate, partnerslrip,
association, company, or corporation) other than an Underwriter or a related party to an Underwriter.
The term "related party" for purposes of this certificate generally means any two or more persons

who have greater than 50 percent common ownership, directly or irrdirectly.

(g) Sale Date rneans the first day on which there is a binding contract in writing for the
sale of a Maturity of the Bonds. The Sale Date of the Bonds is 2020

(h) Underwriter means: (i) any person that agrees pursuant to a written contract with the
Issuer (or with the lead underwriter to form an underwriting syndicate) to participate in the initial
sale of the Bonds to the Public; and (ii) any person that agrees pursuant to a written contract directly
or indirectly with a person described in clause (i) of this paragraph to participate in the initial sale of
the Bonds to the Public (including a member of a selling group or a party to a retail distribution
agreement participating in the initial sale of the Bonds to the Public).

The representations set forth in this certificate are limited to factual matters only. Nothing in
this certificate represents PSC's interpretation of any laws, including specifically Sections 103 and
148 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, and the Treasury Regulations thereunder.
The undersigned understands that the foregoing information will be relied upon by the Issuer with
respect to certain of the representations set forth in the Tax Cerlificate and with respect to
compliance with the federal income tax rules affecting the Bonds, and by Orrick Herrington &
Sutcliffe LLP, in connection with rendering its opinion that the interest on the Bonds is excluded
from gross income for federal income tax purposes, the preparation of the Internal Revenue Service
Form 8038-G, and other federal income tax advice that it rnay give to the Issuer from time to tirne
relating to the Bonds.

PIPER SANDLER & CO

By
Name:

Dated: ,2020

l-2

Page 477

10/13/2020 Item No.12.



SCHEDULE A

(AttacheQ

t-3

Page 478

10/13/2020 Item No.12.



SCHEDULE B

PRICING WIRE

(Artached)

t-4

Page 479

10/13/2020 Item No.12.



EXHIBIT J

FOLSOM RANCH FINANCING AUTHORITY
CITY OF FOLSOM COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT NO. 23

(FOLSOM RANCH) IMPROVEMBNT AREA NO. I
SPECIAL TAX REVENUB BONDS

SBRIBS 2O2O

CBRTIFICATE OF APPRAISER

Folsom Ranch Financing Authority
50 Natorna Street,
Folsom, CA, 95630

City of Folsorn Conrmunity Facilities District No. 23

(Folsom Ranch)
50 Natorna Street,
Folsom, CA,95630

Piper Sandler & Co.
8880 Cal Center Drive, Suite 400
Sacrarnento, Cal iforn ia 9 5826

The undersigned hereby states arrd certifies:

l. Tlrat he is an authorized principal of Integra Realty Resources (the "Appraiser") and as

such is familiar with the facts herein cerlified and is authorized and qualified to certify the same.

2. That the Appraiser has prepared an appraisal report, dated Septenber 23, 2020 (the
"Appraisal Report"), on behalf of the City of Folsom Cornmunity Facilities District No. 23 (Folsorn
Ranch) (the "Community Facilities District") and the Folsorn Ranch Financing Authority (the
"Anthority") in connection with the Prelirninary Official Statement, dated 2020 (tl'te

"Prelinrinary Official Statement") and the Official Staternent dated 2020 ("Official
Statement"), for the Folsorn Ranch Financing Authority City of Folsom Cornmunity Facilities District
No. 23 (Folsom Ranch) Improvement Area No. I Special Tax Revenue Bonds, Series 2020 (Ihe
"Bottds").

3. That the Appraiser hereby consents to the reproduction and use of the Appraisal Report
appended to the Prelirlinary Official Statement and the Official Statement. The Appraiser also cousents

to the references to the Appraiser and the Appraisal made in the Prelirninary Official Statement and the

Official Statenrent.

4. In the opiniorr of the Appraiser the assumptions made in the Appraisal Repofi are

reasonable. Since the date of value of the Appraisal Repoft, the Appraiser is not aware of any facts that
would cause its opinion of value of the taxable property in Improvement Area No. 1 (the "lntprovemeltt
Area") of the Conrrnunity Facilities District to be lower than the value in the Appraisal.

5. Each of the parcels appraised by tlre Appraiser is encompassed witlrin the Inrprovernent
Area as set fbrth iu the boundary map of the Conrrrrunity Facilities District.

J- IPage 480

10/13/2020 Item No.12.



6 That, as of the date of the Official Statement and as of the date hereof, the Appraisal
Reporl apperrded to the Official Statement, to the best of rny knowledge and belief, and subject to all of
the Lirnitirrg Corrditions and Major Assumptions set fofth in the Appraisal Report, does not contain any

untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary in order to make the

statements contained therein, in the light of the circumstances under whiclr they were tnade, not

niisleadirig, and no events or occurrences have been asceftained by us or have colne to our attention that
would substantially change the estimated values stated in the Appraisal Reporl. However, we have not
performed any procedures since the date of the Appraisal Report to obtain knowledge of such events or
occurreuces nor are we obligated to do so in the future.

7. The Community Facilities District and the Underwriter, Piper Sandler & Co., are entitled
to rely on the Certificate.

Dated: fClosing Date] INTE,GRA REALTY RESOURCES

By:
Authorized Representative

J-2

Page 481

10/13/2020 Item No.12.



EXHIBIT K

FOLSOM RANCH FINANCING AUTHORITY
CITY OF FOLSOM COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT NO. 23

(FOLSOM RANCH) IMPROVBMENT AREA NO. I
SPECIAL TAX REVBNUE BONDS

SERIES 2O2O

CERTIFICATE OF MARKET ABSORPTION CONSULTANT

Folsorn Ranch Financing Authority
50 Natoma Street,
Folsom, CA,95630

City of Folsom
50 Natorna Street,
Folsom, CA,95630

Piper Sandler & Co.
8880 Cal Center Drive, Suite 400
Sacramento, California 9 5826

The undersigned hereby states and cerlifies:

1. That he is an authorized principal of The Gregory Group (the "Market Absorption
Consultant") and as such is farniliar with the facts herein ceftified and is authorized and qualified to
cerlify the same.

2. That the Market Absorption Consultant has prepared an Market Report attached as

Appendix H to the Preliminary Official Statement and Official Statement (as defined below) (the "Market
Report"), on behalf of the City of Folsom Community Facilities DistrictNo.23 (Folsorn Ranch) (the

"Community Facilities District") and the Folsom Ranch Financing Authority (the "Authority") in

connection with the Preliminary Official Statement, dated 2020 (the "Preliminary Official
Statement") and the Official Statement dated 2020 ("Official Statement"), for the Folsom

Ranch Financing Authority City of Folsom Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)
Inrprovement Area No. 1 Special Tax Revenue Bonds Series 2020 (the "Bonds").

3. That the Market Absorption Consultant hereby consents to the reproduction and use of
the Market Repoft appended to the Prelirninary Official Statement and the Official Statement. The

Market Absorption Consultant also consents to the referetrces to the Market Absorption Consultant and

the Market Reporl made in the Prelirnirrary Official Statement and the Official Statement.

4. In the opinion of the Market Absorptiorr Consultant the assumptions made in the Market
Reporl are reasonable. Since the date of tlre Market Report, the Market Absorption Consultant is not

aware of any facts that would cause its opinion as to the tim ing of honre sales in Ir.uproverneut Area No. I

of Community Facilities District to be different than the Market Report.

K-lPage 482

10/13/2020 Item No.12.



5 That, as of the date of the Official Statement and as of the date hereof, the Market Reporl
appended to the Official Statement, to the best of my knowledge and belief, and subject to all of the

limiting conditions and rnajor assumptions set forth in the Market Repoft, does not contain any untrue
statement of a material fact or ornit to state a material fact necessary in order to make the statements
contained therein, in tlre light of tlie circumstances under which they were made, not misleading, and no

events or occurrences have been asceftained by us or have come to our attention that would substantially
change the estinrated values stated in the Market Report. However, we have not perfonned any
procedures since the date of the Market Report to obtain knowledge of such events or occurrences nor are

we obligated to do so in the future.

'7. The Community Facilities District and the Underwriter, Piper Sandler & Co, are entitled
to rely on this Cerlificate.

Dated: fClosing Date] THE GREGORY GROUP

By
Authorized Representative

K-2

Page 483

10/13/2020 Item No.12.



ATTACHMENT 8

Page 484

10/13/2020 Item No.12.



DISTRICT CONTINUING DISCLOSURE CBRTIFICATE

THIS DISTRICT CONTINUING DISCLOSURE CERTIFICATE (this "Disclosure Certificate"),
dated as of 2020, is executed and delivered by the City of Folsom Comtnunity Facilities
District No. 23 (Folsorn Ranch) (the "District") relative to the Folsom Ranch Financing Authority (the

"Autltority") in connection with the issuance by the Authority of the Folsom Ranch Financing Authority
City of Folsom Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsorn Rancli) Improver.nent Area No. I Special

Tax Revenue Bonds, Series 2020 (tl^te "Bonds"). The Bonds are being issued pursuant to a Trust Agreement
(the "Trust Agreement"), arnong the District, the Authority and MUFG Union Bank, N.A. (the "Trustee").
The City covenants and agrees as follows.

SECTION 1. Purpose of the Disclosure Certificate. The Disclosure Certificate is being executed

and delivered by the City of Folsom (the "City") for the benefit of the Holders and Beneficial Owners of
the Bonds and in order to assist tlie Participating Underwriter in cornplying with S.E.C. Rule I 5c2-12(b)(5).

SECTION 2. Definitions. In addition to the definitions set forth in the Trust Agreement, which
apply to any capitalized tenn used in this Disclosure Ceftificate unless otherwise defined in tliis Section,

the following capitalized terms shall have the following meanings:

"Annual Report" lneans any Annual Report provided by the City pursuant to, and as described in,

Sections 3 at'td4 hereof.

"Annual Report Date" means the date in each year that is nine months after the end of the City's
fiscal year, which date, as of the date of this Disclosure Certificate, is April l.

"Dissemination Agent" shall mean NBS, or any successor Dissemination Agent designated in
writing by the City and which has filed with the City a written acceptance of suclr designation.

"EMMA System" meaus the MSRB's Electronic Municipal Market Access systertr, or such other
electronic system designated by the MSRB.

"Financial Obligation" rneans, for purposes of the Listed Events set out in Section 5(a)(10) and

Section 5(b)(7), a (i) debt obligation; (ii) derivative instrument entered into in connection with, or pledged
as security or a source of payrnent for, an existing or planned debt obligation; or (iii) guarantee of (i) or (ii).
Tlre tenn "Financial Obligation" shall not include Municipal Securities (as defined in the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934, as amended) as to which a final official statement (as defined in the Rule) has beert

provided to the MSRB consistent with the Rule.

"Listed Events" lneaus any of the events listed in subsection (a) of Section 5 hereof

"MSRB" meaus the Municipal Securities Rulenraking Board, or any successor thereto.

..officialStatetnent,,meallStheofficialStatement,dated-,2020,relatingtotheBorrds.

"Pafticipating Underwriter" rneans the original underwriter of the Bonds required to courply with
the Rule in connection with the offering of the Bonds.

"Rllle" lneans Rule I 5c2-12(b)(5) adopted by the Securities and Exchange Comnrission under the

Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as the same rnay be amended frortt tirne to titne.

SECTION 3. Provisiorr of Annual Reporls.

1.

Page 485

10/13/2020 Item No.12.



(a) The City shall, or shall cause the Dissernination Agent to, provide to the MSRB through

the EMMA System, in an electronic fonnat and accompanied by identifying information all as prescribed

by the MSRB, an Annual Report wliich is consistent with the requirernents of Section 4 hereoi not later

tlrarr the Annual Report Date, commencing with the report for the 2019-20 Fiscal Year. The Annual Reporl
rnay be subniitted as a single document or as separate documents comprising a package, and may include

by reference other information as provided in Section 4 hereof; provided, Itowever, that the audited financial
statements of the City may be subrnitted separately from the balance of the Annual Reporl, and laterthan
the date required above for the filing of the Annual Report if not available by that date. If tlie City's fiscal
year changes, it shall, or shall instruct the Dissemination Agent to, give notice of such change in the same

rnanuer as for a Listed Event under subsection (e) of Section 5 hereof. The first Annual Report rnay include

the filing of or reference to the Official Statement.

(b) Not later than 15 business days prior to the date specified in subsection (a) of this Section

for the providing of the Annual Report to the MSRB, the City shall provide the Annual Report to the

Dissernination Agent.

(c) If the Dissemination Agent is other than the City, then not later than fifteen ( 15) Business

Days prior to said date, the City shall provide the Annual Repoft to the Dissemination Agent. If tlie City is

unable to provide the Annual Repofi to the MSRB by the Annual Repoft Date, the City shall send a notice

to the MSRB in substantially the form attached as Exhibit A to the Disclosure Certificate.

(d) The Dissemination Agent shall

(i) provide any Annual Report received by it to the MSRB, as provided herein; and

(ii) file a report with the City certifying that the Annual Report has been provided
pursuant to this Disclosure Certificate and stating the date it was so provided.

SECTION 4. Content of Annual Repofis. The C ity's Annual Report shall contain or incorporate

by reference the following:

(a) The District's audited financial statements, if any, prepared in accordance with generally

accepted accounting principles as promulgated to apply to govenlnental entities frorl time to time by the

Governrnental Accounting Standards Board. If the District's audited financial statemeuts, if any, are not
available by the time the Annual Report is required to be filed pursuant to subsection (a) of Section 3 hereof,

the Annual Report sliall contain unaudited financial statements, and the audited financial statements, if any,

shall be filed in the same manller as the Annual Report when they become available. If the District's
financial statement is included or consolidated with the financial statement for the City of Folsom, then the

District shall file tlie City's audited financial staternents as its own.

(b) The following information

(i) The principal anrount of Bonds OLrtstanding as of the Decernber 3 I next preceding

the Annual Report Date along with a debt service schedule for tlre Bonds Outstanding as of such

date;

(ii) The balance in each reserve accourrt for the Local Obligatiorts, and a statentent of
the required bond reserve arnouut, as of the Decenrber 3l next preceding the Annual Report Date;

(iii) The total assessed value of all parcels witlrin the Inrprovement Area on wlrich the

Special Taxes are levied, as slrown on the assessnrent roll of the Sacramento CoLrnty Assessor last

2

Page 486

10/13/2020 Item No.12.



equalized prior to the December 3l next preceding the Annual Report Date, and a statement of
assessed value-to-lien ratios therefor based on special tax and assesslneut debt, either by individual
parcel or by categories (e.g., "below 3:1," "3:l to 4: l " etc.);

(iv) The Special Tax delinquency rate for the Improvement Area as of the December
31 next preceding the Annual Report Date; the number of parcels within the Improvenrent Area
delinqr.rent in payment of special taxes as of the Decernber 3 l next preceding the Annual Repoft
Date; the arnount of each delinquency; the length of time delinquent and the date on which
foreclosure was colnmenced, or similar infonnation perlaining to delinquencies deemed

appropriate by tlre City;provided, however, that parcels with aggregate delinquencies of $1,000 or
less (excluding penalties and irrterest) may be gror,rped together and such infonnation may be

provided by category:

(v) Tl-re status of foreclosure proceedings and a summary of the results of any

foreclosure sales in the Improvement Area as of the December 3l next preceding the Annual Reporl
Date;

(vi) The identity of any propefty owner, representing more than 5Yo of the Special Tax
levy, delinquent in payment of special taxes as of the December 31 next preceding the Annual
Report Date;

(vii) All tentative and final maps approved and/or recorded within the Improvement
Area, describing the gross acres, the planned commercial acres and the number and type of planned
residential dwelling units;

(viii) The number of new building permits issued and a description of the purpose of
such pennits (e.g., new single-family, new multi-farnily, uew colnmercial, new industrial);

(ix) A land ownership sunlmary listing the top ten Special Tax payers for the

Improvement Area, as shown on tlre assessment roll of the Sacramento County Assessor last
equalized prior to the December 3l next preceding the Annual Report Date; and

(x) For each immediately preceding Fiscal Year, the amount of the Maximum Special
Tax and the actual Special Tax levied within the Improvement Area, with such amounts reported
separately for Developed Property, Small Lot Final Map Property arid Large Lot Property;
provided, lrowever, that once all Taxable Property within the Improvement Area is Developed
Property, the Maximum Special Tax and tlie actual Special Tax levied may each be shown on an

aggregate basis in the Annual Reporl. For the purposes of this subparagraph (x), all capitalized
terms used but not otherwise defined herein shall have tlie meanings ascribed thereto in the Rate

and Method of Apporlionn-lelrt for the Inrprovernent Area.

In addition to any of the inforrnation expressly required to be provided underthis Section, as set

forlh above, the City shall provide such further information, if any, as may be necessary to make the

specifically required statements, in the light of the circunrstances under which tlrey are rnade, rtot

nr islead ing.

Any or all of the itenrs listed above nray be included by specific reference to other docutnents,
including official statenrents of debt issues of the City or related public entities, which have been submitted
to the MSRB throLrgh the EMMA Systenr. The City shall clearly identify each suclr other docunrent so

iuclLrded by reference.

3

Page 487

10/13/2020 Item No.12.



SECTION 5. Reporting of Significant Events.

(a) Pursuant to tlie provisions of this Sectiou, the City shall give notice, or calrse notice to be

given, not less than ten Business Days afterthe occurrence of any of tlre following events with respect to
the Bonds:

(i) Principal and interest payment delinquencies.

(ii) Unscheduled draws on debt service reserves reflecting financial difficulties.

(iii) Unscheduled draws on credit enhancements reflecting financial difficulties.

(iv) Substitution of credit or liquidity providers, or their failure to perfonn.

(v) Adverse tax opinions, the issuance by the Internal Revenue Service of proposed or
final deternrinations of taxability, Notices of Proposed Issue IRS Form 5701 TEB) or other nraterial
notices or determinations with respect to the tax status of the Bonds, or other material events
affecting the tax-exempt status of the security.

(vi) Defeasances.

(vii) Tender offers.

(viii) Bankruptcy, insolvency, receivership or sirnilar event of the obligated person.

Note: For the purposes of the event identified in subparagraph (ix), the event is
considered to occur when any of the following occur: the appointment of a

receiver, trustee or similar officer for an obligated person in a proceeding under
the U.S. Bankruptcy Code or in any other proceeding under state or federal law in
which a couft or govemmental ar"rthority has assumed jurisdiction over
substantially all of the assets or business of the obligated person, or if such
jurisdiction has been assumed by leaving the existing governmental body and
officials or officers in possession but subject to the supervision and orders of a

couft or govemrnental authority, or the entry of an order confimring a plan of
reorganization, arrangement or liquidation by a court or governnlental authority
having supervision or jurisdiction over substantially all of the assets or business of
the obligated person.

(ix) Rating changes

(x) Default, event of acceleration, tennination event, rnodification of terms or other
sinrilar events under the terrns of a financial Obligation of the District, any of which reflect financial
difficulties.

(b) The City shall give notice, or cause notice to be given, not less than ten Business Days after
the occurreuce of any of the following events with respect to the Bonds, if nraterial:

(i) Modifications to rights of Bond holders.

(ii) Bond calls.

(iii) Release, substitution or sale of property securing repaynrent of the Bonds.

4

Page 488

10/13/2020 Item No.12.



(iv) Non-payrnentrelateddefaults

(v) The consummation of a merger, consolidatiorr, or acquisition involving an

obligated person or the sale of all or substantially all of the assets of the obligated person, other
than in the ordinary course of business, the entry into a definitive agreement to undeftake such an

action or the tennination of a definitive agreement relating to any such actions, other tlran
pursuant to its temrs.

(vi) Appoiritment of a successor or additional trustee or the change of name of a

trustee.

(vii) Incurrence of a Financial Obligation of the District, or agreement to covenants,
events of default, remedies, priority rights, or similar terms of a Financial Obligation of the District, any of
which affect Bondholders.

(c) Whenever the City obtains knowledge of the occurrence of a Listed Event described in
subsection (b) above, the City shall deterrnine if such event would be material under applicable federal
securities laws.

(d) If the City learns of the occurrence of a Listed Event described in subsection (a) of this
Section, or determines that knowledge of a Listed Event described in subsection (b) of this Section would
be material under applicable federal securities laws, the City shall notify the Dissernination Agent thereof
in writing and instruct the Dissemination Agent to report the occurrence pursuant to subsection (e) of this
Section. If in response to a request under subsection (b) of this Section, the City detennines that the Listed
Event would not be rnaterial under applicable Federal securities law, the City shall so notif, the
Dissemination Agent in writing and instruct the Dissemination Agent not to repofi the occurrence pursuant
to subsection (e) of this Section.

(e) If the Dissemination Agent has been instructed by the City to report the occurrence of a
Listed Event, the Dissemination Agent shall file a notice of such occurrence with the MSRB through the
EMMA System. Notwithstanding the foregoing, notice of Listed Events described in paragraph (vii) of
subsection (a) ofthis Section and paragraph (ii) ofsubsection (b) ofthis Section need not be given under
this subsection any earlierthan the notice (if any) of the underlying event is given to holders of affected
Bonds pursuant to the Trust Agreement.

SECTION 6. Termination of Reporting Obligation. The City's obligations under this Disclosure
Certificate shall terminate upon the legal defeasance, prior redemption or payrnent in full of all ofthe Bonds.
If such termination occurs prior to the final maturity of the Bonds, the City shall give notice of such
tennination in the same lnauuer as for a Listed Event under subsection (e) of Section 5 hereof.

SECTION 7. Dissemination Agent. The City rray, frorn tirne to tirne, appoint or engage a

Dissemination Agent to assist it in carrying out its obligations under this Disclosure Cerlificate, and may
discharge any such Dissemination Agent, with or without appointing a successor Dissernination Agent.
The Dissemination Agent shall not be responsible irr any rnanner for the content of any notice or repoft
prepared by the City pursuant to the Disclosure Certificate.

SECTION 8. Arnendment: Waiver. Notwithstanding any other provision of this Disclosure
Ceftificate, the City may amend this Disclosure Ceftificate, aud any provision of tlris Disclosure Cerlificate
may be waived, provided that the following conditions are satisfied:

5

Page 489

10/13/2020 Item No.12.



(a) if tlre amendrnent or waiver relates to tlre provisions of subsection (a) of Section 3 hereof,
Section 4 hereof or subsections (a) and (b) of Section 5 hereof, it may only be made in connection with a

change in circumstances that arises from a change in legal requirements, change in law, or change in the

identity, ltature or status of an obligated person with respect to the Bonds, or type of business conducted;

(b) the underlakings herein, as proposed to be amended or waived, would, in the opinion of
nationally recognized bond counsel, have complied with the requirernents of the Rule at the tirne of the

primary offering of the Bonds, after taking into account any amendments or interpretations of the Rule, as

well as any change in circumstances; and

(c) the proposed anrendment or waiver (i) is approved by Owners of the Bonds in the manner
provided in the Trust Agreement for amendments to the Trust Agreement with the consent of Owners, or
(ii) does not, in the opinion of nationally recognized bond counsel, materially impair the interests of Owners
or Beneficial Owners of the Bonds.

If the annual financial infonration or operating data to be provided in the Annual Reporl is amended

pursuant to the provisions hereof, the annual financial information containing the amended operating data

or financial information shall explairr, in narrative form, the reasons for the amendment and the impact of
the change in the type of operating data or financial inforrnation being provided.

If an amendment is made to tlie undertaking specifying the accounting principles to be followed in
preparing financial statements, the annual financial information for the year in which the change is made

shall present a comparison between the financial statements or information prepared on the basis of the new

accounting principles and those prepared on the basis of the fonner accounting principles. The comparison
shall include a qr.ralitative discussion of the differences in the accounting principles and the irnpact of the

change in the accounting principles on the presentation of the financial statements or infonnation, in order
to provide infonnation to investors to enable tlrem to evaluate the ability of the City to meet its obligations.
To the extent reasonably feasible, the comparison shall be quantitative. A notice of the change in tlre
accounting principles shall be given in the same manuer as for a Listed Event under subsection (e) of Section

5 hereof.

SECTION 9. Additional Information. Nothing in this Disclosure Certificate shall be deemed to
prevent the City from disseminating any other infonnation, nsirrg the means of dissemination set forth in

this Disclosure Certificate or any other nreans of comnrunication, or including any other information in any

Annual Report or notice of occurrence of a Listed Event, in addition to that which is reqLrired by this
Disclosure Certificate. If tlre City chooses to include any infonnation in any Annual Reporl or notice of
occuruence of a Listed Event in addition to that which is specifically required by this Disclosure Certificate,
the City shall have no obligatiorr under tlris Disclosure Certificate to update such infonnation or include it
in any future Annual Repoft or notice of occnrreuce of a Listed Event.

SECTION I 0. Default. In tlre event of a faih-rre of the City or the Dissemination Agent to corlply
witli any provision of this Disclosure Certificate, any Holder or Beneficial Owner of outstanding Bonds
may take such actions as may be necessary and appropriate, includirrg seeking mandate or specific
performance by court order, to cause the City to comply with its obligations under the Disclosure
Certificate. AdefaLrltundertheDisclosureCerlificateshall notbedeernedanEventofDefaultunderthe
Trust Agreernent, and the sole remedy under the Disclosure Cerlificate in the event of any failLrre of the

City to cornply with the Disclosure Ceftificate shall be an actiou to compel performance.

SECTION 11. Duties. Immunities and Liabi ities of Dissemination Asent. The Dissemirration
Agent slrall be entitled to the protections and liniitations fi'orn liability afforded to the Trustee under tlte
Trust Agreement. The Dissemiuation Agent shall rrot be responsible for the form or content of any Annual

6

Page 490

10/13/2020 Item No.12.



Report or notice of Listed Event. The Dissemination Agent shall receive reasonable compensation for its
services provided under this Disclosure Certificate. The Disseniination Agent shall have only such duties
as are specifically set forth in tliis Disclosure Ceftificate, and the City agrees to inderrnify and save the
Dissenrination Agent, its officers, directors, employees and agents, hannless against any loss, expense and

liabilities which it niay incur arising out of or in the exercise or performance of its powers and duties
hereunder, including the costs and expenses (including attorneys'fees) ofdefending against any clainr of
liability, but excluding liabilities due to the Dissernination Agent's negligence or willful misconduct. The
obligations of the City under this Section shall survive resignation or rernoval of the Dissemination Agent
and payment of the Bonds.

SECTION 12. Beneficiaries. This Disclosure Certificate shall inure solely to the benefit of the

City, the Disseniination Agent, the Participating Underwriter and Owners and Beneficial Owners from time
to time of the Bonds, and shall create no rights in any other persott or entity.

SECTION 13. Counterpafts. This Disclosure Cerlificate may be executed in several connterparts,
each of wlrich shall be an original and all of which shall constitute but one and the same instrument.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the District has executed this Disclosure Cerlificate as of the date first
above written.

CITY OF FOLSOM COMMUNITY
FACILITIES DISTRICT NO. 23
(FOLSOM RANCH)

By:

7

Page 491

10/13/2020 Item No.12.



EXHIBIT A

NOTICB OF FAILURE TO FILE ANNUAL REPORT

Folsom Ranch Financing AuthorityName of Issuer

Name of Issue: Folsom Ranch Financing Authority City of Folsom Community Facilities
District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch) Improvernent Area No. I Special Tax
Revenue Bonds, Series 2020

Date of Issuance: 2020

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the City of Folsom Community Facilities District No. 23

(Folsom Ranch) (the "District") has not provided an Annual Report with respect to the above-named Bonds
as required by Section 3 of the Continuing Disclosure Certificate, dated 2020, executed by
the District for the benefit of the Holders and Beneficial Owners of the above-referenced bonds. [The
District anticipates that the Annual Reporl will be filed by

Dated

CITY OF FOLSOM COMMUNITY
FACILITIES DISTRICT NO. 23
(FOLSOM RANCH)

By
Finance Director

8

Page 492

10/13/2020 Item No.12.



ATTACHMENT 9

Page 493

10/13/2020 Item No.12.



City of Folsom
CFD No. 23 (Folsom Ranch) Improvement Area No. L

Special Tax Bonds

SB 450 Summary / Government Code 5852.1*

A. Ttue Interest Cost (TIC) of the Bonds

B, Surn of all fees and charges paid to 3rd parties

a. Bond Proceeds Net of Reserves, Capitalized Interest and
3rd Party Fees and Charges

Net proceeds

Less Rescrwc Fund

Less Sum of all fees and charges paid to 3rd patties

Less Capitalized Intercst

3.86'h1

$405,100 
2

$17,578,147

13,292,7051

(883,000) 
1

(40s,100) 
1

(426,45q1

$23,655,000

22,896,0001

555,000 
3

144,000 
4

45,000 
s

15,ooo 
r'

D. Total Payment Amount

Total Principal and Interest to lVlanrrity**

Special Tax Admin. /Continuing Disclosure Fce

Fiscal Agent Fee

Arbitr:age /Rebate Fee

Counq' Collection Charge

*Summary reflects good faith cstimatcs as of 10/1/20 and all costs associated with thc financing; subject to change

based on interest rates, matket conditions, and other factors
**I-ess Capitalized Interest

Sources
1 

Pteliminarl, Cash Flows (Soutces ancl Uses) as of 10/1/20
t Co.,, oflssuance

' NBS - cstimatccl 30 1,gx15 at $18,500 pcr )'car
o Uni.r.r Banh - 30 years at $4,800 per,vear
t NBS - estimated 30 years at g1,500 per'1,s21
t'NBS - csrimatccl 30 yeals at $500 pcr ye^r

= FIELDMAN iROLAPP
"..3 i'.\ss{x'r,\r ti:

Page 494

10/13/2020 Item No.12.



Folsom Ranch Financing Authority
City of Folsom CFD No. 23 (Folsom Ranch) Improvement Atea No. 1

Special Tax Revenue Bonds, Series 2020

SB 450 Summary / Govemment Code 5852.1*

A. Ttue Interest Cost (TIC) of the Bonds 3.960h1

B. Surn of all fees and charges paid to 3rd parties $405,100

a. Bond Proceeds Net of Reserves, Capitalized Interest and
3rd Party Fees and Charges

Nct proceeds

Less Reserwe Fund

Less Surn of all fees and charges paid to 3rd parties

Less Capitalized Intercst

D. Total Payment Amount

Total Principal and Interest to Maturity**

Speciai Tax Admin. /Continuing Disclosurc Fee

Fiscal Agent Fee

Arbitrage /Rebate Fee

Countl' Collection Charge

$71,578,747

13,292,7051

(883,000) 
1

(40s,100) 
1

(426,4sq 1

$23,655,000

22,896,0001

555,000 
3

144,000 
4

45,000 
5

15,000 
r'

*Summar1, reflects good faith estimates as of 10 /1 /20 and all costs associated rvith the financing; subjcct to change

based on interest rates, matket conditions, and other factors
**Less Capitalized Interest

Sources
I Preliminary Cash Florus (Sources and Uses) as of 10/1/20

'Corr, oflssuance

'NBS - estimated 30 years at $18,500 per ycar
o 

Union Bank - 30 years 
^t$4,800 

per vear
t NBS - estimatecl 30 year:s at g1,500 per year
t' 

NBS - estimated 30 years at $500 pcr ycar

FIELDMAN ]ROLAPP
& '45S<}(t.\r l'5

Page 495

10/13/2020 Item No.12.



ATTACHMENT 10

Page 496

10/13/2020 Item No.12.



Special Tax Revenue Bonds – CFD 23 IA1
City Council Presentation – October 13, 2020

Page 497

10/13/2020 Item No.12.



CFD 23 IA1 – Special Tax Revenue Bonds

Council approved CFD 23 Improvement Area 1 (CFD 23 IA1) on May 26, 2020.

Provides for the construction and acquisition of certain public improvements 
including:

• Backbone infrastructure improvements – Transportation, water system, 
recycled water system, drainage system, wastewater system, and park, 
parkway and open space.

• Subdivision improvements - Underground utilities, subdivision roadways, 
street lighting, soundwalls, and landscaping.

Page 498

10/13/2020 Item No.12.



CFD 23 IA1 – Special Tax Revenue Bonds

Page 499

10/13/2020 Item No.12.



CFD 23 IA1 – Special Tax Revenue Bonds

Proposing to issue Series 2020 Revenue Bonds in an 
amount not to exceed $16,500,000.

Proceeds will be used to finance the acquisition and 
construction of certain public facilities, fund a debt service 
reserve, fund capitalized interest to September 1, 2021, 
and pay certain costs of issuance.

Page 500

10/13/2020 Item No.12.



CFD 23 IA1 – Special Tax Revenue Bonds

The appraised value of the property within CFD 23 IA1 
is $69,721,745.

In compliance with the City’s Policies:

• The value-to-lien ratio is 4.7:1.

• The projected tax burden is 1.85%

Page 501

10/13/2020 Item No.12.



CFD 23 IA1 – Special Tax Revenue Bonds

By taking these actions you are:

Approving the form of various required documents – Indenture, 
Continuing Disclosure Certificate, Preliminary Official Statement, 
Local Obligation Purchase Contract, Bond Purchase Agreement, 
and Trust Agreement

Authorizing the officers of the City and the Folsom Ranch 
Financing Authority to execute any and all documents and take 
appropriate actions to prepare to issue such bonds.

Page 502

10/13/2020 Item No.12.



CFD 23 IA1 – Special Tax Revenue Bonds

Recommend approval of:

•City Council Resolution No. 10535

•Folsom Ranch Financing Authority Resolution No. 
006-FRFA 

Page 503

10/13/2020 Item No.12.



This page is intentionally left blank.

Page 504

10/13/2020 Item No.12.


	Top
	1.	Presentation of 2020 Community Service Day Results
	CC PRESENTATION COMMUNITY SERVICE DAY RESULTS

	2.	Presentation by Folsom Chamber of Commerce and City of Folsom of the Shop Local Campaign
	CC PRESENTATION SUPPORT LOCAL CAMPAIGN

	3.	Presentation on Copper Pipe Pinhole Leaks - Update
	CC PRESENTATION COPPER PINHOLE LEAKS UPDATE
	CC PRESENTATION COPPER PINHOLE LEAKS UPDATE

	4.	Folsom Plan Area Quarterly Update
	CC PRESENTATION FPA QUARTERLY REPORT
	CC SR FPA Quarterly Update 10-13-20

	5.	Approval of the September 22, 2020 Regular Meeting Minutes
	CC MIN 09 22 2020 REGULAR MEETING MINUTES

	6.	Ordinance No. 1308 – An Ordinance of the City of Folsom Repealing and Re-enacting Chapter 2.30 of the Folsom Municipal Code Pertaining to the Establishment and Maintenance of the City Merit System and Personnel Policies, Rules, and Regulations (Second Reading and Adoption)
	CC ORD 1308 REPEAL AND REENACT MERIT SYSTEM

	7.	Resolution No. 10533 – A Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to Execute an Agreement with Pure Technologies, U.S. Inc. dba Wachs Water Services to Complete the Water Distribution System Leak and Loss Detection Survey
	CC RES 10533 WATER LEAK AND LOSS DETECTION SURVEY

	8.	Resolution No. 10534 - A Resolution Authorizing the Public Works Department to Submit Grant Applications to the California Department of Transportation for Highway Safety Improvement Program Funding
	CC RES 10534 SUBMIT GRANT APPLICATION HIGHWAY SAFETY IMP PROGRAM

	9.	Ordinance No. 1309 – An Ordinance of the City of Folsom Amending Sections 12.20.020 and 12.20.030 of the Folsom Municipal Code Governing Encroachments on Public Property (Introduction and First Reading
	CC ORD 1309 ENCROACHMENT PERMITS

	10.	Approval of the December 10, 2019 Joint City Council / Successor Agency / Public Financing Authority / Folsom South of 50 Parking Authority / Folsom Ranch Financing Authority Special Meeting Minutes
	CC MIN 12 10 2019 JOINT MEETING

	11.	Receive and File the City of Folsom, the Folsom Redevelopment Successor Agency, the Folsom Public Financing Authority, the Folsom Ranch Financing Authority, and the South of 50 Parking Authority Monthly Investment Reports for the Month of June 2020
	CC RECEIVE AND FILE MONTHLY INVESTMENT REPORTS

	12.	FRFA City of Folsom CFD No.23 Improvement Area No.1 Special Tax Revenue Bonds, Series 2020
	CC RES 10535 RES 006-FRFA CFD 23 (PART 1 OF 3)
	CC RES 10535 RES 006-FRFA CFD 23 (PART 2 OF 3)
	CC RES 10535 RES 006-FRFA CFD 23 (PART 3 OF 3)
	CC RES 10535 RES 006-FRFA CFD 23 IA1 BOND ISSUANCE PowerPoint

	Bottom

